

August 29, 2023

Meredith Di Liberto, Esq. Judicial Watch, Inc. 425 Third Street, SW Suite 800 Washington, DC 20024 Via Email: mdiliberto@judicialwatch.org

RE: FDA FOIA Requests 2022-1620, 2022-1621 and 2022-1622; *Judicial Watch, Inc. v. HHS*, Civ. A. No. 22-3152 (APM)

Dear Ms. Di Liberto:

This is a response to the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request numbers 2022-1620, 2022-1621, and 2022-1622 that is the subject of the Complaint in *Judicial Watch, Inc. v. HHS*, Civ. A. No. 22-3152 (APM), now pending in the U.S. District Court for the District of Columbia.

FOIA requests 2022-1620, 2022-1621, and 2022-1622 seek, among other things, correspondence regarding Mifeprex (mifepristone) stability and dissolution test results. Please find enclosed 588 pages of responsive records. The pages are Bates-numbered FDACDER000001 to FDACDER000588.

Please direct any questions regarding this response to Christine Coogle of the Department of Justice, at (202) 880-0282 or christine.l.coogle@usdoj.gov.

Sincerely,

Howard R. Philips

Howard Philips Supervisory Regulatory Counsel Division of Information Disclosure Policy Center for Drug Evaluation and Research

cc: Christine Coogle, Esq. Stephanie Nguyen, Esq.

POPULATION COUNCIL/DANCO LABORATORIES, LLC ANNUAL REPORT FOR MIFEPRISTONE TABLETS, 200 mg

NDA # 20-687

TIME PERIOD COVERED: SEPTEMBER 28, 2000 -SEPTEMBER 27, 2001

This document constitutes trade secret and confidential commercial information exempt from public disclosure under 21 C.F.R. 20.61. Should FDA tentatively determine that any portion of this document is disclosable in response to a request under the Freedom of Information Act, Danco Laboratories, LLC requests immediate notification and an opportunity for consultation in accordance with 21 C.F.R. 20.45. Contact number is

TABLE OF CONTENTS

-
Page

9(a)	Summary of Significant New Information	3
U(u)		
9(b)	Distribution Data	4.
9(c)	Labeling	5
9(d)	Chemistry, Manufacturing and Controls Changes	6
	9(d) 1. Drug Substance 9(d) 1.1. Specifications and Test Methods 9(d) 1.2. Manufacturing Procedure 9(d) 1.3. Packaging Procedure 9(d) 1.4. Stability Data	66666
	9(d) 2. Drug Product 9(d) 2.1. Specifications and Test Methods 9(d) 2.2. Formulation 9(d) 2.3. Manufacturers of Drug Substance and Inactive Ingredients 9(d) 2.4. Manufacturing Procedure 9(d) 2.5. Packaging Procedure 9(d) 2.6. Stability Data 9(d) 2.7. Additional Stability Studies	7 7 7 7 7 7 8 9
9(e)	Non-Clinical Laboratory Studies 9(e) 1. Unpublished Reports 9(e) 2. Published Reports	10 10 10
9(f)	Clinical Data 9(f) 1. Published Clinical Trials of the Drug 9(f) 2. Summaries of Completed Unpublished Clinical Trials 9(f) 3. Other Clinical Trials	11 11 11 11
9(g)	Status Reports - Post Marketing Studies 9(g) 1. Status Reports – Post Marketing Study Commitment	12 12
	9(g) 2. Other Post Marketing Studies	12

9(a) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT NEW INFORMATION

The reporting period for the first year since approval included approximately ten and a half months during which Mifeprex was available to health care providers and their patients.

During that time, thirty-two adverse events were reported to Danco and reported by Danco to FDA in periodic reports. Of the 32 reported adverse events, two were 15-day reports (the others were not serious and/or not unexpected). One of the 15-day reports was reported as "hemorrhage due to a ruptured ectopic pregnancy and death." The other was reported as "post abortal parametritis/endometritis, adult respiratory distress syndrome and bilateral pneumonia." This latter 15-day report and one case where fever was reported represent the total reports on the marketed drug suggesting infection. In addition, one infection was reported in the Population Council's 200 mg mifepristone study and one death due to clostridium sordelli infection was reported in the Canadian study. A labeling supplement submitted on November 14, 2001 proposed new text on bacterial infection for inclusion in the prescribing information.

The approval letter for this product waived the pediatric requirement, so nothing on that subject is reported.

9(b) DISTRIBUTION DATA

During the reporting period of September 28, 2000 to September 27, 2001, a total of batches were released for distribution.

The NDC number for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg is 64875-001-03. A summary of the commercial distribution data for the reporting period is tabulated below.

DISTRIBUTION DATA FOR MIFEPRISTONE TABLETS, 200 mg

NDC 64875-001-03	Number of packages (3 tablets/package)
Number of patient packs shipped	
Number of patient packs returned (short dating)	
Net number in commerce	

The distribution system agreed with the FDA at approval remains in place.

9(c) LABELING

There were no changes in the labeling during the reporting period.

Attached are samples of the printed foil, package insert, package carton, patient brochure and medication guide.

NDA 20-687 Sample of Aluminum Foil September 2001



*



Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc. NDA 20-687 Sample of Package Insert September 2001

and the synthetic antipy designed and the synthetic antipy designed and antionally designed and the synthetic synthe

MIFEPREX[™] (mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg For Oral Administration Only

If Mifeprex* results in incomplete abortion, surgical intervention may be necessary. Prescribers should determine in advance whether they will provide such care themselves or through other providers. Prescribers should also give patients clear instructions on whom to call and what to do in the event of an emergency following administration of Mifeprex.

Prescribers should make sure that patients receive and have an opportunity to discuss the Medication Guide and the PATIENT AGREEMENT.

DESCRIPTION

each

Mifeprex tablets

Clinical Studies

MIFEPREX™ (mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg For Oral Administration Only

If Mifeprex* results in incomplete abortion, surgical intervention may be necessary. Prescribers should determine in advance whether they will provide such eare themselves or through other providers. Prescribers should also give patients clear instructions on whom to call and what to do in the event of an emergency following administration of Mifeprex.

Prescribers should make sure that patients receive and have an opportunity to discuss the Medication Guide and the PATIENT AGREEMENT.

Mifeprex tablets each contain 200 mg of mifepristone, a synthetic steroid with antiprogestational effects. The tablets are light yellow in color, cylindrical and biconvex, and are intended for oral administration only. The tablets include the inactive ingredients colloidal silica anhydrous, corn starch, povidone, microcrystalline cellulose, and magnesium slearate

Mifepristone is a substituted 19-nor steroid compound chemically desig-nated as 11B-[p-(Dimethylamino)phenyl]-17B-hydroxy-17-(1-propynyl)estra-4,9-dien-3-one. Its empirical formula is C₂₉H₃₅NO₂. Its structural formula is:



The compound is a yellow powder with a molecular weight of 429.6 and a melting point of 192-196°C. It is very soluble in methanol, chloroform and acetone and poorly soluble in water, hexane and isopropyl ether.

* Mifeprex is a trademark of Danco Laboratories, LLC.

CLINICAL PHARMACOLOGY

Pharmacodynamic Activity

The anti-progestational activity of mifepristone results from competitive interaction with progesterone at progesterone-receptor sites. Based on studies with various oral doses in several animal species (mouse, rat, rabbit and monkey), the compound inhibits the activity of endogenous or exogenous progesterone. The termination of pregnancy results.

Doses of 1 mg/kg or greater of mifepristone have been shown to antag-onize the endometrial and myometrial effects of progesterone in women. During pregnancy, the compound sensitizes the myometrium to the contraction-inducing activity of prostaglandins.

Mifepristone also exhibits antiglucocorticoid and weak antiandrogenic activity. The activity of the glucocorticoid dexamethasone in rats was inhibited following doses of 10 to 25 mg/kg of mifepristone. Doses of 4.5 mg/kg or greater in human beings resulted in a compensatory elevation of adrenocorticotropic hormone (ACTH) and cortisol. Antiandrogenic activity was observed in rats following repeated administration of doses from 10 to 100 mg/kg.

Pharmacokinetics and Metabolism

Absorption

Following oral administration of a single dose of 600 mg, mifepristone is rapidly absorbed, with a peak plasma concentration of 1.98 mg/l occurring approximately 90 minutes after ingestion. The absolute bioavailability of a 20 mg oral dose is 69%.

Distribution

Mifepristone is 98% bound to plasma proteins, albumin and α_1 -acid glycoprotein. Binding to the latter protein is saturable, and the drug displays nonlinear kinetics with respect to plasma concentration and clear-ance. Following a distribution phase, elimination of mifepristone is slow at first (50% eliminated between 12 and 72 hours) and then becomes more rapid with a terminal elimination half-life of 18 hours.

Metabolism

Metabolism of mifepristone is primarily via pathways involving N-demethylation and terminal hydroxylation of the 17-propynyl chain. In viro studies have shown that CYP450 3A4 is primarily responsible for the metabolism. The three major metabolites identified in humans are: (1) RU 42 633, the most widely found in plasma, is the N-mono-demethylated metabolite; (2) RU 42 848, which results from the loss of two methyl groups from the 4-dimethylaminophenyl in position 11B; and (3) RU 42 698, which results from terminal hydroxylation of the 17-propynyl chain. 17-propynyl chain.

Excretion

By 11 days after a 600 mg dose of tritiated compound, 83% of the drug has been accounted for by the feces and 9% by the urine. Serum levels are undetectable by 11 days.

Special Populations

The effects of age, hepatic disease and renal disease on the safety, efficacy and pharmacokinetics of mifepristone have not been investigated.

200 mg are available for 1800 women, while efficacy information is available for 1681 of these women. Success was defined as the complete expul-sion of the products of conception without the need for surgical inter-vention. The overall rates of success and failure, shown by reason for failure, for the U.S. and French studies appear in Table 1.

In the U.S. trials, 92.1% of the 827 subjects had a complete medical In the U.S. trials, 92.1% of the 827 subjects had a complete medical abortion, as shown in Table 1. In 52 women (6.3%) expulsion occurred within two days, and resulted from the action of mifepristone (600 mg) alone, unaided by misoprostol, an analog of prostaglandin E₁. All other women without an apparent expulsion took a 400 µg dose of misopros-tol two days after taking mifepristone. Many women (44.1%) in the U.S. trials expelled the products of conception within four hours after taking misoprostol and 62.8% experienced expulsion within 24 hours taking misoprostol and 62.8% experienced expulsion within 24 hours after the misoprostol administration. There were 65 women (7.9%) who received surgical interventions: 13 (1.6%) were medically indicated interventions during the study period, mostly for excessive bleeding; five (0.6%) interventions occurred at the patient's request; 39 women (4.7%) had incomplete abortions at the end of the study protocol, and eight (1.0%) had ongoing pregnancies at the end of the study protocol.

Women who participated in the U.S. trials reflect the racial and ethnic composition of American women. The majority of women (71.4%) composition of American women. In a majority of women (11.4%) were Caucasian, while 11.3% were African American, 10.9% were East Asian, and 4.7% were Hispanic. A small percentage (1.7%) belonged to other racial or ethnic groups. Women aged 18 to 45 were enrolled in the trials. Nearly two-thirds (66.0%) of the women were under 30 years old with a mean age of 27 years.

In the French trials, complete medical abortion occurred in 95.5% of the 1681 subjects, as shown in Table 1. In 89 women (5.3%), complete abortion occurred within two days of taking mitpristone (600 mg). About half of the women (50.3%) in the French trials expelled the produets of conception during the first four hours immediately following administration of misoprostol and 72.3% experienced expulsion within 24 hours after taking misoprostol. In total, 4.5% of women in the French trials ultimately received surgical intervention for excessive bleeding, incomplete abortions, or ongoing pregnancies at the end of the protocol.

Table 1

Outcome Following Treatment with Milepristone and Misoprostol in the U.S. and French Trials

	U.S	Trials	Frenc	h Triais	
	N	%	N	%	
Complete medical abortion	762	92.1	1605	95.5	
Timing of expulsion					
Before second visit	52	(6.3)	89	(5.3)	
During second visit					
- less than 4 hrs after misoprostol	365	(44.1)	846	(50.3)	
After second visit					
- greater than 4 hrs but less than 24 hrs					
after misoprostol	155	(18.7)	370	(22.0)	
- greater than 24 hrs after misoprostol	68	(8.2)	145	(8.6)	
Time of expulsion unknown	122	(14.8)	155	(9.2)	
Surgical intervention	65	7.9	76	4.5	
Reason for surgery					
Medically necessary interventions during					
the study period	13	(1.6)	NA	(NA)	
Patient request	5 .	(0.6)	NA	(NA)	
Treatment of bleeding during study	NA	(NA)	6	(0.3)	
Incomplete expulsion at study end	39	(4.7)	43	(2.9)	
Ongoing pregnancy at study end	8	(1.0)	22	(1.3)	
Freed	017	100		100	
I OTHI	0.47	100	1081	100	

Note: Mifeprist e 600 mg oral was adm inistered on Day 1, misoprostol 400 µg oral was given on Day 3 (second visit).

INDICATION AND USAGE

Mifeprex is indicated for the medical termination of intrauterine preg-nancy through 49 days' pregnancy. For purposes of this treatment, pregnancy is dated from the first day of the last menstrual period in a presumed 28 day cycle with ovulation occurring at mid-cycle. The duration of pregnancy may be determined from menstrual history and by clinical examination. Ultrasonographic scan should be used if the duration of pregnancy is uncertain, or if ectopic pregnancy is suspected.

Any intrauterine device ("IUD") should be removed before treatment with Mifeprex begins.

Patients taking Mifeprex must take 400 µg of misoprostol two days after taking mifepristone unless a complete abortion has already been confirmed before that time (see DOSAGE AND ADMINISTRATION).

Pregnancy termination by surgery is recommended in cases when Mifeprex and misoprostol fail to cause termination of intrauterine preg-nancy (see PRECAUTIONS).

CONTRAINDICATIONS

Administration of Mifeprex and misoprostol for the termination of pregnancy (the "treatment procedure") is contraindicated in patients with any one of the following conditions:

- Confirmed or suspected ectopic pregnancy or undiagnosed adnexal mass (the treatment procedure will not be operatived to terminate an ectopic pregnancy); IUD in place (see INDICATION AND USAGE);
- Chronic adrenal failure;
- Concurrent long-term corticosteroid therapy; History of allergy to mifepristone, misoprostol or other
- prostaglandin; Hemorrhagic disorders or concurrent anticoagulant therapy; Inherited porphyrias.

Because it is important to have access to appropriate medical care if an emergency develops, the treatment procedure is contraindicated if a patient does not have adequate access to medical facilities equipped to provide emergency treatment of incomplete abortion, blood transfu-sions, and emergency resuscitation during the period from the first visit until discharged by the administering physician.

Mifeprex also should not be used by any patient who may be unable to understand the effects of the treatment procedure or to comply with its regimen. Patients should be instructed to review the Medication Guide regiment. rational should be instructed to review the victuation of duce and the PATIENT AGREEMENT provided with Mifeprex carefully and should be given a copy of the product label for their review. Patients should discuss their understanding of these materials with their health care providers, and retain the Medication Guide for later reference (see PRECAUTIONS).

WARNINGS (see CONTRAINDICATIONS)

1. Bleeding

Vaginal bleeding occurs in almost all patients during the treatment pro-cedure. According to data from the U.S. and French trials, women should expect to experience bleeding or spotting for an average of nine to 16 days, while up to 8% of all subjects may experience some type of bleeding for 30 days or more. Bleeding was reported to last for 69 days in one patient in the French trials. In general the duration of bleeding and spotting increased as the duration of the pregnancy increased.

In some cases, excessive bleeding may require treatment by vasocon-strictor drugs, curettage, administration of saline infusions, and/or blood transfusions. In the U.S. trials, 4.8% of subjects received administration of uterotonic medications and nine women (1.0%) received intravenous fluids. Vasoconstrictor drugs were used in 4.3% of all subjects in the French trials, and in 5.5% of women there was a decrease in hemo-globin of more than 2 g/dL. Blood transfusions were administered in one of 859 subjects in the U.S. trials and in two of 1800 subjects in the French trials. Since heavy bleeding requiring cureitage occurs in about 1% of patients, special care should be given to patients with hemostatic disorders, hypocoagulability, or severe anemia.

2. Confirmation of Pregnancy Termination

Patients should be scheduled for and return for a follow-up visit at rates show the scheduler for an instration of mitpristone to confirm approximately 14 days after administration of mitpristone to confirm that the pregnancy is completely terminated and to assess the degree of bleeding. Vaginal bleeding is not evidence of the termination of preg-nancy. Termination can be confirmed by clinical examination or ultra-sonographic scan. Lack of bleeding following treatment, however, usually indicates failure. Medical abortion failures should be managed with surgical termination.

PRECAUTIONS

Mifeprex is available only in single dose packaging. Administration must be under the supervision of a qualified physician (see DOSAGE AND ADMINISTRATION).

The use of Mifeprex is assumed to require the same preventive mea-sures as those taken prior to and during surgical abortion to prevent rhesus immunization.

There are no data on the safety and efficacy of mifepristone in women with chronic medical conditions such as cardiovascular, hypertensive, hepatic, respiratory or renal disease; insulin-dependent diabetes mellitus; severe anemia or heavy smoking. Women who are more than 35 years of age and who also smoke 10 or more cigarettes per day should be treated with caution because such patients were generally excluded from clinical trials of mifepristone

Although there is no clinical evidence, the effectiveness of Mifeprex may be lower if misoprostol is administered more than two days after mifepristone administration.

Information for Patients

Patients should be fully advised of the treatment procedure and its effects. Patients should be given a copy of the Medication Guide and the PATIENT AGREEMENT. (Additional copies of the Medication Guide and the PATIENT AGREEMENT are available by contacting Danco Laboratories at 1-877-4 Early Option) (1-877-432-7596). Patients should be advised to review both the Medication Guide and the PATIENT AGREEMENT, and should be given the opportunity to dis-cuss them and obtain answers to any questions they may have. Each patient must understand:

- the necessity of completing the treatment schedule, including a follow-up visit approximately 14 days after taking Mifeprex; that vaginal bleeding and uterine cramping probably will occur;
- that prolonged or heavy vaginal bleeding is not proof of a
- complete expulsion: that if the treatment fails, there is a risk of fetal malformation; that medical abortion treatment failures are managed by
- surgical termination; and
- the steps to take in an emergency situation, including precise instructions and a telephone number that she can call if she has any problems or concerns.

Another pregnancy can occur following termination of pregnancy and vertice of a supplicing of approach pregnancy has been confirmed, or before soon as the termination of the pregnancy has been confirmed, or before the woman resumes sexual intercourse.

Patient information is included with each package of Mifeprex (see Medication Guide).

Laboratory Tests

Clinical examination is necessary to confirm the complete termination of pregnancy after the treatment procedure. Changes in quantitative human Chorionic Gonadotropin (hCG) levels will not be decisive until at least 10 days after the administration of Mifeprex. A continuing pregnancy can be confirmed by ultrasonographic scan.

The existence of debris in the uterus following the treatment procedure will not necessarily require surgery for its removal.

Decreases in hemoglobin concentration, hematocrit and red blood cell count occur in some women who bleed heavily. Hemoglobin decreases of more than 2 g/dL occurred in 5.5% of subjects during the French clinical trials of mifepristone and misoprostol.

Clinically significant changes in serum enzyme (serum glutamic oxaloacetic transaminase (SGOT), serum glutamic pyruvic transaminase (SGPT), alkaline phosphatase, gamma-glutamyltransferase (GT) activities were rarely reported.

Drug Interactions

Although specific drug or food interactions with mifepristone have not been studied, on the basis of this drug's metabolism by CYP 3A4, it is possible that ketoconazole, itraconazole, erythromycin, and grapefruit juice may inhibit its metabolism (increasing serum levels of mifepris-tone). Furthermore, rifampin, dexamethasone, St. John's Wort, and cerinduce mifepristone metabolism (lowering serum levels of mifepristone).

Based on in vitro inhibition information, coadministration of mifenris tone may lead to an increase in serum levels of drugs that are CYP 3A4 substrates. Due to the slow elimination of mifepristone from the body, such interaction may be observed for a prolonged period after its admin-istration. Therefore, caution should be exercised when mifepristone is administered with drugs that are CYP 3A4 substrates and have narrow therapeutic range, including some agents used during general anesthesia.

Carcinogenesis, Mutagenesis, Impairment of Fertility

No long-term studies to evaluate the carcinogenic potential of mifepris-tone have been performed. Results from studies conducted in vitro and in animals have revealed no genotoxic potential for mifepristone. Among the tests carried out were: Ames test with and without metabolic activation; gene conversion test in Saccharomyces cerevisiae D4 cells; forward mutation in Schizosaccharomyces pompe P1 cells; induc-tion of unscheduled DNA synthesis in cultured HeLa cells; induction of chromosome aberrations in CHO cells; *in vitro* test for gene mutation in V79 Chinese hamster lung cells; and micronucleus test in mice.

The pharmacological activity of mifepristone disrupts the estrus cycle of animals, precluding studies designed to assess effects on fertility during drug administration. Three studies have been performed in rats to determine whether there were residual effects on reproductive function after termination of the drug exposure.

In rats, administration of the lowest oral dose of 0.3 mg/kg/day caused severe disruption of the estrus cycles for the three weeks of the treat-ment period. Following resumption of the estrus cycle, animals were mated and no effect on reproductive performance was observed. In a neonatal exposure study in rats, the administration of a subcutaneous dose of mifepristone up to 100 mg/kg on the first day after birth had no adverse effect on future reproductive function in males or females. The onset of puberty was observed to be slightly premature in female rats neonatally exposed to mifepristone. In a separate study in rats, oviduct and ovary malformations in female rats, delayed male puberty, deficient male sexual behavior, reduced testicular size, and lowered ejaculation frequency were noted after exposure to mifepristone (1 mg every other day) as neonates.

Pregnancy

Mifepristone is indicated for use in the termination of pregnancy (through 49 days' pregnancy) and has no other approved indication for use during pregnancy.

Teratogenic Effects

Human Data

Over 620,000 women in Europe have taken mifepristone in combination with a prostaglandin to terminate pregnancy. Among these 620,000 women, about 415,000 have received mifepristone together with miso-prostol. As of May 2000 a total of 82 cases have been reported in which women with on-going pregnancies after using mitperistone alone or mitperistone followed by misoprostol declined to have a surgical procedure at that time. These cases are summarized in Table 2.

Table 2

26

20

46

Reported Cases (as of May 2000) of On-going Pregnancies Not Terminated by Surgical Abortion at the End of Treatment with Mifepristone Alone or with Mifepristone-Misoprostol

Mifepris Mifepristor Total Alone Misoprosto Subsequently had surgical abortion No abnorn alities detected alities detected (sirenomelia, cleft palate) Subsequently resulted in live birth 13 26 No abnorm alities detected at birth 13 13 26 alities detected at birth

FDACDER000010

Several reports in the literature indicate that prostaglandins, including misoprostol, may have teratogenic effects in duran beings and by defects, cranial nerve palsies, delayed growth and psychomotor devel opment, facial malformation and limb defects have all been reported opment, facial malformation and limb defects have all been reported Several reports in the literature indicate that prostaglandins, including

Animal Data

l d

Teratology studies in mice, rats and rabbits at doses of 0.25 to 4.0

- mg/kg (less than 1/100 to approximately 1/3 the human exposure level based on body surface area) were carried out. Because of the anti-progestational activity of mifepristone, fetal losses were much higher I
- than in control animals. Skull deformities were detected in rabbit stud-ies at approximately 1/6 the human exposure, although no teratogenic effects of mifepristone have been observed to date in rats or mice. I
- h p
- These deformities were most likely due to the mechanical effects of uterine contractions resulting from decreased progesterone levels.

Nonteratogenic Effects P

The indication for use of Mifeprex in conjunction with misoprostol is te

- for the termination of pregnancy through 49 days' duration of pregnancy (as dated from the first day of the last menstrual period). These drugs Ľ
- together disrupt pregnancy by causing decidual necrosis, myometrial contractions and cervical softening, leading to the expulsion of the products of conception.

Nursing Mothers

It is not known whether mifepristone is excreted in human milk. Many hormones with a similar chemical structure, however, are excreted in breast milk. Since the effects of mifepristone on infants are unknown, N

- breast-feeding women should consult with their health care provider to decide if they should discard their breast milk for a few days following administration of the medications.

Pediatric Lise

Safety and effectiveness in pediatric patients have not been established. ADVERSE REACTIONS

The treatment procedure is designed to induce the vaginal bleeding and uterine cramping necessary to produce an abortion. Nearly all of the women who receive Mifeprex and misoprostol will report adverse reac-tions, and many can be expected to report more than one such reaction.

About 90% of patients report adverse reactions following administration of misoprostol on day three of the treatment procedure. Those adverse events that occurred with a frequency greater than 1% in the U.S. and French trials are shown in Table 3.

- 2

Bleeding and cramping are expected consequences of the action of

(

Bleeding and cramping are expected consequences of the action of Mifeprex as used in the treatment procedure. Following administration of mifepristone and misoprostol in the French clinical studies, 80 to 90% of women reported bleeding more heavily than they do during a heavy menstrual period (see WARNINGS, Bleeding for additional inform-ation). Women also typically experience abdominal pain, including uterine cramping. Other commonly reported side effects were nausea, vomiting and diarrhea. Pelvic pain, fainting, headache, dizziness, and asthenia occurred rarely. Some adverse reactions reported during the four hours following administration of misoprostol were judged by women as being more severe than others: the percentage of women whe 1 women as being more severe than others: the percentage of women who considered any particular adverse event as severe ranged from 2 to 35% in the U.S. and French trials. After the third day of the treatment procedure, the number of reports of adverse reactions declined progressively in the French trials, so that by day 14, reports were rare except for reports of bleeding and spotting.

Table 3

Type of Reported Adverse Events Following Administration of MIG e and Misoprostol in the U.S. and French Trials* (percentages)

U.S. Trials French Trials

Abdominal Pain (cramping)	96	NA	
Uterine cramping	NA	83	
Nausea	61	43	
Headache	31	2	
Vomiting	26	18	
Diarrhea	20	12	
Dizziness	12	1	
Fatigue	10	NA	
Back pain	9	NA	
Uterine hemorrhage	5	NA	
Fever	4	NA	
Viral infections	4	NA	
Vaginitis	3	NA	
Rigors (chills/shaking)	3	NA	
Dyspepsia	3	NA	
Insomnia	3	NA	
Asthenia	2	1	
Leg pain	2	NA	
Anxiety	2	NA	
Anemia	2	NA	
Leukorthea	2	NA	
Sinusitis	2	NA	
Булсоре	1	NA	
Decrease in hemoglobin greater than 2 g/dL	NA	. 6	
Pelvic pain	NA	2	
Fainting	NA.	2	

Only adverse reactions with incidence >1% are included.

OVERDOSAGE

No serious adverse reactions were reported in tolerance studies in healthy non-pregnant female and healthy male subjects where mild

overdose, she should be observed closely for signs of adrenal failure.

DOSAGE AND ADMINISTRATION

Treatment with Mifeprex and misoprostol for the termination of preg-nancy requires three office visits by the patient. Mifeprex should be pre-scribed only by physicians who have read and understood the prescrib-ing information. Mifeprex may be administered only in a clinic, medical ing information, which ever that be autimisted only in a clinic, include office, or hospital, by or under the supervision of a physician, able to assess the gestational age of an embryo and to diagnose ectopic preg-nancies. Physicians must also be able to provide surgical intervention in cases of incomplete abortion or severe bleeding, or have made plans to provide such care through others, and be able to assure patient access to medical facilities enumbed to myside blood transfusions and resuscitamedical facilities equipped to provide blood transfusions and resuscitation, if necessary,

Day One: Mifeprex Administration

Patients must read the Medication Guide and read and sign the PATIENT AGREEMENT before Mifeprex is administered.

Three 200 mg tablets (600 mg) of Mifeprex are taken in a single oral dose.

Day Three: Misoprostol Administration

The patient returns to the healthcare provider two days after ingesting Mifeprex. Unless abortion has occurred and has been confirmed by clinical examination or ultrasonographic scan, the patient takes two 200 μ g tablets (400 μ g) of misoprostol orally.

During the period immediately following the administration of miso-prostol, the patient may need medication for cramps or gastrointestinal symptoms (see ADVERSE REACTIONS). The patient should be given instructions on what to do if significant discomfort, excessive bleeding or other adverse reactions occur and should be given a phone number to call if she has questions following the administration of the misoprostol. In addition, the name and phone number of the physician who will be handling emergencies should be reverided to the activate handling emergencies should be provided to the patient.

Day 14: Post-Treatment Examination

Patients will return for a follow-up visit approximately 14 days after the administration of Mifeprex. This visit is very important to confirm by clinical examination or ultrasonographic scan that a complete termination of pregnancy has occurred.

According to data from the U.S. and French studies, women should expect to experience bleeding or spotting for an average of nine to 16 days. Up to 8% of women may experience some type of bleeding for more than 30 days. Persistence of heavy or moderate vaginal bleeding at this visit, however, could indicate an incomplete abortion.

Patients who have an ongoing pregnancy at this visit have a risk of fetal malformation resulting from the treatment. Surgical termination is rec-ommended to manage medical abortion treatment failures (see PRE-CAUTIONS, Pregnancy).

Adverse events, such as hospitalization, blood transfusion, ongoing pregnancy, or other major complications following the use of Mifeprex and misoprostol must be reported to Danco Laboratories. Please provide a brief clinical and administrative synopsis of any such adverse events in writing to:

Medical Director Danco Laboratories, LLC P.O. Box 4816 New York, NY 10185 1-877-4 Early Option (1-877-432-7596)

For immediate consultation 24 hours a day, 7 days a week with an expert in mifepristone, call Danco Laboratories at 1-877-4 Early Option (1-877-432-7596).

HOW SUPPLIED

Mifeprex will be supplied only to licensed physicians who sign and return a Prescriber's Agreement. Distribution of Mifeprex will be sub-ject to specific requirements imposed by the distributor, including pro-cedures for storage, dosage tracking, damaged product returns and other matters. Mifeprex is a prescription drug, although it will not be avail-able to the public through licensed pharmacies.

Mifeprex is supplied as light yellow, cylindrical, bi-convex tablets imprinted on one side with "MF." Each tablet contains 200 mg of mifepristone. Tablets are packaged in single dose blister packets con-taining three tablets and are supplied in individual cartons (National Drug Code 6487500103).

Store at 25°C (77°F); excursions permitted to 15-30°C (59-86°F) [see USP Controlled Room Temperature].

Manufactured for: Danco Laboratories, LLC P.O. Box 4816 New York, NY 10185 1-877-4 Early Option (1-877-432-7596) www.earlyoptionpill.com

MEDICATION GUIDE How should I take Mifeprex?

Mifeprex (MIF-eh-prex) (mifepristone)

Read this information carefully before taking Mifeprex and misoprostol. It will help you understand how the treatment works. This Medication Guide does not take the place of talking with your health care provider (provider).

What is the most important information I should know about Mifeprex?

Mifeprex is used to end an early pregnancy. It is not approved for ending later pregnancies. Early pregnancy means it is 49 days (7 weeks) or less since your last menstrual period began. By using Mifeprex, you probably will not need a surgical procedure to end your pregnancy.

When you use Mifeprex, you also need to take another medicine called misoprostol. You take misoprostol 2 days after you take Mifeprex.

You need to sign a statement (PATIENT AGREEMENT). Before you get Mifeprex, you will need to read and understand the information in this Medication Guide. Then you will need to sign a statement that you have decided to end your pregnancy.

You must visit your provider on Day 1, Day 3, and about Day 14. See the section called "How should I take Mifeprex?" for information about what happens at each visit. If you do not follow all the steps in "How should I take Mifeprex?" you will not know if your pregnancy has ended.

What to do if you are still pregnant after Mifeprex or Mifeprex with misoprostol treatment. If you are still pregnant, your provider will talk with you about the other choices you have, including a surgical procedure to end your pregnancy. There is a chance that there may be birth defects if the pregnancy is not ended.

Symptoms to expect. This treatment causes cramping and bleeding. Usually, these symptoms mean that the treatment is working. But sometimes you can get cramping and bleeding and still be pregnant. This is why you **must return** to your provider on Day 3 and about Day 14.

If you are not already bleeding after taking Mifeprex, you probably will begin to bleed once you take misoprostol. This is a medicine you take on Day 3. Bleeding or spotting can be expected for an average of 9-16 days and may last for up to 30 days. Your bleeding may be similar to, or greater than, a normal heavy period. You may see blood clots and tissue that come from your uterus. This is an expected part of ending the pregnancy.

Heavy bleeding and the need for surgery. In about 1 out of 100 women, bleeding can be so heavy that it requires a surgical procedure (curettage) to stop it. This is why you must talk with your provider about what to do if you need emergency care to stop heavy and possibly dangerous bleeding

Before you take Mifeprex. Your provider will give you a telephone number to call if you have any questions, concerns, or problems. Your provider will also give you the name and phone number of who will handle emergencies

Talk with your provider. You and your provider should discuss the benefits and risks for you of using Mifeprex.

What is Mifeprex?

Mifeprex blocks a hormone needed for your pregnancy to continue. When used together with another medicine called misoprostol, Mifeprex ends your pregnancy. About 5-8 out of 100 women taking Mifeprex will need a surgical procedure to end the pregnancy or to stop too much bleeding.

Who should not take Mifeprex?

Some women should not take Mifeprex. Do not take it if:

- It has been more than 49 days (7 weeks) since your last menstrual period began.
- You have an IUD. It must be taken out before you take Mifeprex.
- Your provider has told you that you have a pregnancy outside the uterus (ectopic pregnancy).
- You have problems with your adrenal glands (chronic adrenal failure).
- You take a medicine to thin your blood.
- You have a bleeding problem.
- You take certain steroid medicines
- You cannot return for the next 2 visits.
- You cannot easily get emergency medical help in the 2 weeks after you take Mifeprex.
- You are allergic to mifepristone, misoprostol, or medicines that ٠ contain misoprostol, such as Cytotec or Arthrotec.

Tell your provider about all your medical conditions to find out if you can take Mifeprex. Also, tell your provider if you smoke at least 10 cigarettes a day.

Day 1 at your provider's office: - Read this Medication Guide

- Discuss the benefits and risks of using Mifeprex to end
- your pregnancy If you decide Mifeprex is right for you, sign the PATIENT AGREEMENT.
- After getting a physical exam, swallow 3 tablets of
- Mifeprex.
- Day 3 at your provider's office: Your provider will check to see if you are still pregnant.
- If you are still pregnant, take 2 misoprostol tablets Misoprostol may cause cramps, nausea, diarrhea, and other symptoms. Your health care provider may send you home with medicines for these symptoms.
- About Day 14 at your provider's office:
 This follow-up visit is very important. You must return to the provider about 2 weeks after you took Mifeprex to be sure you are well and that you are not pregnant.
 - Your provider will check whether your pregnancy has com-pletely ended. If it has not ended, there is a chance that there may be birth defects. If you are still pregnant, your provider will talk with you about the other choices you have, including a surgical procedure to end your pregnancy.

What should I avoid while taking Mifeprex and misoprostol?

You should not take certain other medicines, because they may interfere with the treatment. Ask your provider about what medicines you can take for pain. Do not take any other prescription or non-prescription medicines (including herbal medicines or supplements) at any time during the treatment period without first asking your provider about them.

If you are breastfeeding at the time you take Mifeprex and misoprostol, discuss with your provider if you should stop using your breast milk for a few days.

What are the possible side effects of using Mifeprex?

See the section "What is the most important information I should know about Mifeprex?" for symptoms to expect.

In some cases, bleeding can be very heavy. In a very few cases, this bleeding will need to be stopped by a surgical procedure. Contact your provider right away if you bleed enough to soak through two thick full-size sanitary pads per hour for two consecutive hours or if you are concerned about heavy bleeding.

Other side effects of the treatment include diarrhea, nausea, vomiting, headache, dizziness, back pain, and tiredness. These side effects lessen after Day 3 and are usually gone by Day 14. Your provider will tell you how to manage any pain or other side effects.

If you are worried about any side effects you have, talk with your provider about them. Your provider will give you a telephone number to call if you have any questions, concerns, or problems. Your provider's telephone number is

When should I begin birth control?

You can become pregnant again right after your pregnancy ends. If you do not want to become pregnant again, start using birth control as soon as your pregnancy ends or before you start having sexual intercourse again.

Medicines are sometimes prescribed for purposes other than those listed in a Medication Guide. For more information, ask your provider for the information about Mifeprex that is written for health care professionals. Ask your provider if you have any questions.

This Medication Guide has been approved by the US Food and Drug Administration.

PATIENT AGREEMENT Obtained wie Fol Anayedudicial Watchs Inc.

I have read the attached Medication Guide for using Mifeprex and misoprostol to end my pregnancy.
 I discussed the information with my health care provider

- (provider).
- My provider answered all my questions and told me about the risks and benefits of using Mifeprex and misoprostol to end my pregnancy.
- 4. I believe I am no more than 49 days (7 weeks) pregnant.
- 5. I understand that I will take Mifeprex in my provider's office.
- 6. I understand that I will take misoprostol in my provider's office two days after I take Mifeprex (Day 3).
- 7. My provider gave me advice on what to do if I develop
- My provider gave me advice on what to do if 1 develop heavy bleeding or need emergency care due to the treatment.
 Bleeding and cramping do not mean that my pregnancy has ended. Therefore, I must return to my provider's office in about 2 weeks (about Day 14) after I take Mifeprex to be sure that my pregnancy has ended and that I am well.
 I know that, in some cases, the treatment will not work. This happens in about 5 to 8 women out of 100 who use this treatment
- treatment.
- 10. I understand that if my pregnancy continues after any part of the treatment, there is a chance that there may be birth defects. If my pregnancy continues after treatment with Mifeprex and misoprostol, I will talk with my provider about my choices, which may include a surgical procedure to end my pregnancy. 11. I understand that if the medicines I take do not end my
- pregnancy and I decide to have a surgical procedure to end my pregnancy, or if I need a surgical procedure to stop bleeding, my provider will do the procedure or refer me to another provider who will. I have the provider's name, address and phone number.
- address and phone number.
 12. I have my provider's name, address and phone number and know that I can call if I have any questions or concerns.
 13. I have decided to take Mifeprex and misoprostol to end my pregnancy and will follow my provider's advice about when to take each drug and what to do in an emergency.
 14. I will do the following:
 advice the my provider's office in 2 does (Day 2) to a state of the model.
 - return to my provider's office in 2 days (Day 3) to check if my pregnancy has ended. My provider
 - will give me misoprostol if I am still pregnant. return to my provider's office about 14 days after beginning treatment to be sure that my pregnancy has ended and that I am well.

Patient Signature:

Patient Name (print):

Date:

The patient signed the PATIENT AGREEMENT in my presence after I counseled her and answered all her questions. I have given her the Medication Guide for mifepristone.

Provider's Signature:

Name of Provider print: .

Date:

After the patient and the provider sign this PATIENT AGREE-MENT, give 1 copy to the patient before she leaves the office and put 1 copy in her medical record. Give a copy of the Medication Guide to the patient.

9/28/00

NDA 20-687 Sample of Package Carton September 2001

MIFEPREX™ (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg

MIFEPREX^w (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg

RX ONLY NDC: 64875-001-03 3 TABLETS (1 DOSE) Each tablet contains 200 mg Mifepristone. See

MIFEPREX

package enclosure for full prescribing information. Store at 25°C (77°F); excursions permitted to 15–30°C (59–86°F) [see USP Controlled Room Temperature]. Protect from light.

> Manufactured for: Danco Laboratories, LLC PO. Box 4816 New York, NY 10185 1-877-4-EARLY OPTION www.earlyoptionpill.com

> > IP.

DANCO LABORATORIES

MIFEPREX" (Mifepristone) Tablets,

200

Bw



RX ONLY NDC: 64875-001-03 3 TABLETS (1 DOSE) Each tablet contains 200 mg Mifepristone. See package enclosure for full prescribing information. Store at 25°C (77°F); excursions permitted to 15–30°C (59–86°F) [see USP Controlled Room Temperature]. Protect from light. Manufactured for: Danco Laboratories, LLC PO. Box 4816 New York, NY 10185 1-877-4-EARLY OPTION

www.earlyoptionpill.com

01

DANCO LABORATORIES

00103 6

MIFEPREX** (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg

FDACDER000015

NDA 20-687 Sample of Patient Brochure September 2001

The Early Option Pill

For ending early pregnancy

MIFEPREX[™] (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg



PRIVATE OPTION

How is Mifeprex provided?

Mifeprex is provided through a doctor's office or clinic. The early option pill can be taken only during the first seven weeks of pregnancy. You make three visits over a two-week period. At the first visit, you receive the Medication Guide (to help you understand how the early option works), counseling and sign a statement that you have decided to end your pregnancy. You then take three tablets, each containing 200 milligrams of Mifeprex.

Two days later, you return and take two tablets each containing 200 micrograms of misoprostol. A followup visit approximately 12 days later is very important to check that the pregnancy has ended because if it has not ended, there is a chance that there may be birth defects. A few women who take Mifeprex will need a surgical procedure to end the pregnancy or to stop heavy bleeding. Your health care provider will communicate to you how s/he has planned to handle this possibility.

Mifeprex offers you a more private option, with support and counseling readily available throughout the process. Your provider will give you a name and number to call if you have any questions and, if different, a name and number to call in an emergency. Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

Where do I get more information?

For more information on Mifeprex*, please contact the Mifeprex hotline by phone at: 1-877-4 Early Option (1-877-432-7596)

Or find us on the Internet at: www.earlyoptionpill.com

* Mifeprex is a trademark of Danco Laboratories, LLC.

DANCO LABORATORIES

The Early Option Pill

For ending early pregnancy

MIFEPREX™ (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg

FDACDER000017

The Early Option Pill

What is Mifeprex ?

Mifeprex is a new option for American women. It is the first Food and Drug Administration (FDA) approved early option pill for ending early pregnancy. Mifeprex followed by misoprostol is a safe and effective non-surgical method for ending early pregnancy. Women in Europe have used this option for more than a decade.

Why choose Mifeprex?

Mifeprex is a non-invasive early option for ending pregnancy. Mifeprex is taken orally, allowing you to avoid anesthesia or surgery in most cases. Some women feel it is a more private option. When you choose the early option pill, you will receive counseling and support throughout the process.





A PROVEN REGIMEN

What experience has there been with Mifeprex?

Mifeprex has gone through the rigorous Food and Drug Administration (FDA) approval process for safety and effectiveness. Mifeprex is the only FDA approved pill for ending early pregnancy. You should tell your provider about any medications you are taking. You should discuss with your health care provider whether or not Mifeprex is right for you.

In Europe, over half a million women have used this drug. Worldwide, this early option has now been approved for use in eighteen countries.

How effective is Mifeprex?

Mifeprex followed by misoprostol is approximately 92–95 percent effective in ending pregnancy.

MIFEPREX AND YOU

How does Mifeprex work?

Mifeprex blocks a hormone needed to maintain pregnancy. When followed by another medicine, misoprostol, Mifeprex ends the pregnancy.

What are the side effects of Mifeprex?

Bleeding and cramping are a normal part of the process. You may experience bleeding similar to or greater than a heavy period and can expect bleeding or spotting for an average of 9–16 days. In some cases, women may have severe bleeding and need to contact their doctor right away. Side effects of the combined regimen that may occur include nausea, headache, vomiting, diarrhea, dizziness, fatigue and back pain. You can take a pain reliever to help alleviate discomfort.

NDA 20-687 Sample of Medication Guide September 2001

MEDICATION GUIDE

MIFEPREX™ (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg

The Early Option Pill

MEDICATION GUIDE

MIFEPREX[™] (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg

The Early Option Pill

DANCO LABORATORIES P.O. Box 4816 New York, NY 10185

1.877.4 EARLY OPTION (1.877.432.7596)

www.earlyoptionpill.com

MIFEPREX™ (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg

For Oral Administration Only

MEDICATION GUIDE

CONTACT INFORMATION

Danco Laboratories P.O. Box 4816 New York, NY 10185

1.877.4 EARLY OPTION (1.877.432.7596) www.earlyoptionpill.com

FDACDER000021

MEDICATION GUIDE MIFEPREX™ (MIF-eh-prex)

(mifepristone)

Read this information carefully before taking Mifeprex* and misoprostol. It will help you understand how the treatment works. This Medication Guide does not take the place of talking with your health care provider (provider).

What is the most important information I should know about Mifeprex?

Mifeprex is used to end an early pregnancy. It is not approved for ending later pregnancies. Early pregnancy means it is 49 days (7 weeks) or less since your last menstrual period began. By using Mifeprex, you probably will not need a surgical procedure to end your pregnancy.

When you use Mifeprex, you also need to take another medicine called misoprostol. You take misoprostol 2 days after you take Mifeprex.

You need to sign a statement (PATIENT AGREEMENT). Before you get Mifeprex, you will need to read and understand the information in this Medication Guide. Then you will need to sign a statement that you have decided to end your pregnancy.

You must visit your provider on Day 1, Day 3, and about Day 14. See the section called "How should I take Mifeprex?" for information about what happens at each visit. If you do not follow all the steps in "How should I take Mifeprex?" you will not know if your pregnancy has ended.

What to do if you are still pregnant after Mifeprex or Mifeprex with misoprostol treatment. If you are still pregnant, your provider will talk with you about the other choices you have, including a surgical * Mifeprex is a trademark of Danco Laboratories, LLC.

2

MIFEPREX™ (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg

procedure to end your pregnancy. There is a chance that there may be birth defects if the pregnancy is not ended.

Symptoms to expect. This treatment causes cramping and bleeding. Usually, these symptoms mean that the treatment is working. But sometimes you can get cramping and bleeding and still be pregnant. This is why you **must return** to your provider on Day 3 and about Day 14.

If you are not already bleeding after taking Mifeprex, you probably will begin to bleed once you take misoprostol. This is a medicine you take on Day 3. Bleeding or spotting can be expected for an average of 9–16 days and may last for up to 30 days. Your bleeding may be similar to, or greater than, a normal heavy period. You may see blood clots and tissue that come from your uterus. This is an expected part of ending the pregnancy.

Heavy bleeding and the need for surgery. In about 1 out of 100 women, bleeding can be so heavy that it requires a surgical procedure (curettage) to stop it. This is why you must talk with your provider about what to do if you need emergency care to stop heavy and possibly dangerous bleeding.

Before you take Mifeprex. Your provider will give you a telephone number to call if you have any questions, concerns, or problems. Your provider will also give you the name and phone number of who will handle emergencies.

Talk with your provider. You and your provider should discuss the benefits and risks for you of using Mifeprex.

What is Mifeprex?

Mifeprex blocks a hormone needed for your pregnancy to continue. When used together with another medicine called misoprostol, Mifeprex ends

MIFEPREX™ (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg

3

your pregnancy. About 5-8 out of 100 women taking Mifeprex will need a surgical procedure to end the pregnancy or to stop too much bleeding.

Who should not take Mifeprex?

Some women should not take Mifeprex. Do not take it if:

- It has been more than 49 days (7 weeks) since your last menstrual period began.
- You have an IUD. It must be taken out before you take Mifeprex.
- Your provider has told you that you have a pregnancy outside the uterus (ectopic pregnancy).
- You have problems with your adrenal glands (chronic adrenal failure).
- You take a medicine to thin your blood.
- You have a bleeding problem.
- You take certain steroid medicines.
- You cannot return for the next 2 visits.
- You cannot easily get emergency medical help in the 2 weeks after you take Mifeprex.
- You are allergic to mifepristone, misoprostol, or medicines that contain misoprostol, such as Cytotec or Arthrotec.

Tell your provider about all your medical conditions to find out if you can take Mifeprex. Also, tell your provider if you smoke at least 10 cigarettes a day.

How should I take Mifeprex?

• Day 1 at your provider's office:

- Read this Medication Guide.
- Discuss the benefits and risks of using Mifeprex to end your pregnancy.
- If you decide Mifeprex is right for you, sign the PATIENT AGREEMENT.
- After getting a physical exam, swallow 3 tablets of Mifeprex.

- Day 3 at your provider's office:
 - Your provider will check to see if you are still pregnant.
 - If you are still pregnant, take 2 misoprostol tablets.
 - Misoprostol may cause cramps, nausea, diarrhea, and other symptoms. Your health care provider may send you home with medicines for these symptoms.

•About Day 14 at your provider's office:

- This follow-up visit is very important. You must return to the provider about 2 weeks after you took Mifeprex to be sure you are well and that you are not pregnant.
- Your provider will check whether your pregnancy has completely ended. If it has not ended, there is a chance that there may be birth defects. If you are still pregnant, your provider will talk with you about the other choices you have, including a surgical procedure to end your pregnancy.

What should I avoid while taking Mifeprex and misoprostol?

You should not take certain other medicines, because they may interfere with the treatment. Ask your provider about what medicines you can take for pain. Do not take any other prescription or nonprescription medicines (including herbal medicines or supplements) at any time during the treatment period without first asking your provider about them.

If you are breastfeeding at the time you take Mifeprex and misoprostol, discuss with your provider if you should stop using your breast milk for a few days.

MIFEPREX™ (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg

FDACDER000023

5

MIFEPREX™ (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg

What are the possible side effects of using Mifeprex?

See the section "What is the most important information I should know about Mifeprex?" for symptoms to expect.

In some cases, bleeding can be very heavy. In a very few cases, this bleeding will need to be stopped by a surgical procedure. Contact your provider right away if you bleed enough to soak through two thick full-size sanitary pads per hour for two consecutive hours or if you are concerned about heavy bleeding.

Other side effects of the treatment include diarrhea, nausea, vomiting, headache, dizziness, back pain, and tiredness. These side effects lessen after Day 3 and are usually gone by Day 14. Your provider will tell you how to manage any pain or other side effects.

If you are worried about any side effects you have, talk with your provider about them. Your provider will give you a telephone number to call if you have any questions, concerns, or problems. Your provider's telephone number is

When should I begin birth control?

You can become pregnant again right after your pregnancy ends. If you do not want to become pregnant again, start using birth control as soon as your pregnancy ends or before you start having sexual intercourse again.

Medicines are sometimes prescribed for purposes other than those listed in a Medication Guide. For more information, ask your provider for the information about Mifeprex that is written for health care professionals. Ask your provider if you have any questions.

This Medication Guide has been approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration.

MIFEPREX™ (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg

PATIENT AGREEMENT

MIFEPREX (mifepristone) Tablets

- I have read the attached Medication Guide for using Mifeprex and misoprostol to end my pregnancy.
- 2. I discussed the information with my health care provider (provider).
- 3. My provider answered all my questions and told me about the risks and benefits of using Mifeprex and misoprostol to end my pregnancy.
- 4. I believe I am no more than 49 days (7 weeks) pregnant.
- 5. I understand that I will take Mifeprex in my provider's office.
- 6. I understand that I will take misoprostol in my provider's office two days after I take Mifeprex (Day 3).
- 7. My provider gave me advice on what to do if I develop heavy bleeding or need emergency care due to the treatment.
- Bleeding and cramping do not mean that my pregnancy has ended. Therefore, I must return to my provider's office in about 2 weeks (about Day 14) after I take Mifeprex to be sure that my pregnancy has ended and that I am well.
- 9. I know that, in some cases, the treatment will not work. This happens in about 5 to 8 women out of 100 who use this treatment.
- 10. I understand that if my pregnancy continues after any part of the treatment, there is a chance that there may be birth defects. If my pregnancy continues after treatment with Mifeprex and misoprostol, I will talk with my provider about my choices, which may include a surgical procedure to end my pregnancy.
- 11. I understand that if the medicines I take do not end my pregnancy and I decide to have a surgical procedure to end my pregnancy, or if I need a surgical procedure to stop bleeding, my provider will do the procedure or refer me to another provider who will. I have the provider's name, address and phone number.

MIFEPREX™ (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg

- 12. I have my provider's name, address and phone number and know that I can call if I have any questions or concerns.
- 13. I have decided to take Mifeprex and misoprostol to end my pregnancy and will follow my provider's advice about when to take each drug and what to do in an emergency.
- 14. I will do the following:
 - return to my provider's office in 2 days (Day 3) to check if my pregnancy has ended. My provider will give me misoprostol if I am still pregnant.
 - return to my provider's office about 14 days after beginning treatment to be sure that my pregnancy has ended and that I am well.

Patient Signature:

Patient Name (print):

Date:_____

The patient signed the PATIENT AGREEMENT in my presence after I counseled her and answered all her questions. I have given her the Medication Guide for mifepristone.

Provider's Signature:_____

Name of Provider (print):_____

Date:_____

After the patient and the provider sign this PATIENT AGREEMENT, give 1 copy to the patient before she leaves the office and put 1 copy in her medical record. Give a copy of the Medication Guide to the patient.

9/28/00

8

MIFEPREX™ (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg



9(d) CHEMISTRY MANUFACTURING AND CONTROLS CHANGES

9(d) 1. Drug Substance

9(d) 1.1. Specifications and Test Methods

There were no changes in test methods or specifications during the reporting period.

9(d) 1.2. Manufacturing Procedure

There were no changes in manufacturing procedures during the reporting period. Batches of kg of Drug Substance remain the standard.

During the report period the code numbers for auxiliary materials were changed. In addition, two new suppliers were approved, one for and one for the Table in the Substance CMC Section, pages 146 and 147 has been revised to show the new code numbers for Auxiliary Raw materials and the two new suppliers, which have been highlighted, in bold print. See <u>Attachment 1.</u>

9(d) 1.3. Packaging Procedure

There were no changes in the packaging materials or procedures during the reporting period.

9(d) 1.4. Stability Data

The three batches of Drug Substance submitted in the original Drug Substance CMC, lot numbers , remain on long-term stability. Additionally, new batches, lot numbers, reflecting the altered manufacturing process in place prior to the September 2000 FDA Approval, remain on long term stability. Finally, three batches from 2001 lot numbers

have been put on long term, stability during the year. Data on all those batches described above are included in Attachment 2.

All data to date on all batches continue to demonstrate the stability of the Drug Substance.

9(d) 2. Drug Product

9(d) 2.1. Specifications and Test Methods

There were no changes in test methods or specifications during the reporting period. A copy of the specifications is included as <u>Attachment 3</u>. The test methods had been previously submitted in Amendment 069 dated January 30, 2001.

As an update to our previous commitment to review the specification for residual (NMT %) in the Drug Product after batches were manufactured, we have since manufactured batches of Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg and will finalize the specification upon completion of the batch.

The results to date for the residual for the batches were "non-detectable" because the levels were below the limit of quantification for the method (LOQ is %).

9(d) 2.2. Formulation

There were no changes in the formulation of the Drug Product.

9(d) 2.3. Manufacturers of Drug Substance and Inactive Ingredients

There were no changes in the manufacturer of the Drug Substance or the manufacturer of any of the inactive ingredients.

9(d) 2.4. Manufacturing Procedure

There were no changes in the manufacturing procedure. The current manufacturing procedure is designated as MPR # 100101 Rev # 03, dated November 11, 1999. This was previously submitted in Amendment 038, dated December 7, 1999 as Attachment 1.

9(d) 2.5. Packaging Procedure

There were no changes in the packaging materials (types or manufacturers) used to produce the blister cards.

There were minor changes to the blister packaging procedure. The changes were formatting and the inclusion of more detail to document the operations. A new labeling procedure was prepared and added to the packaging procedure to document the blister card labeling, the intermediate carton labeling and the shipping carton labeling.

The previously submitted procedure was designated as MPR P00101 Rev #02 dated 11/11/99. During the reporting period, two revisions were made to this procedure. They were designated as Rev # 03; dated 10/16/2000 and Rev #04 dated 11/6/2000. A summary of the changes is tabulated below.

Table comparing Procedure P00101 Rev #03 to P00101 Rev #02 (All steps refer to the step # in Rev #03.)

Step #	Change made	

Table comparing Procedure P00101 Rev #04 to P00101 Rev #03 (All steps refer to the step # in Rev #04.)

Step #	Change made	

Copies of the revised blister packaging and labeling procedures (P00101 Rev #03 and P00101 Rev #04) are included as <u>Attachment 4 and Attachment 5</u>, respectively.

9(d) 2.6. Stability Data

The batches that are in the current stability program are lot numbers These batches were placed in both the controlled room temperature and accelerated stability programs. All batches were manufactured by our approved contract manufacturer for the finished product and tested by our approved contract-testing laboratory. The stability data for each of the five batches are summarized in <u>Attachment 6</u>. The batches met all stability specifications at each time interval. The stability data continues to support the long-term stability of the Drug Product.

9(d) 2.7. Additional Stability Studies

Danco Laboratories committed to performing X-ray diffraction analysis on the first three batches of Drug Product that were stored for 6 months in the accelerated stability chamber. The data for the first two batches (lot numbers were previously submitted in Amendment 044, dated April 20, 2000 as Attachment 4. The X-ray diffraction data from the third lot, number is now available and is included as <u>Attachment 7</u>. The data from all three batches demonstrate that the crystal structure of the drug substance remains unchanged after 6 months of storage in the accelerated stability chamber.

9(e) Non-Clinical Laboratory Studies

9(e) 1. Unpublished Reports

During the reporting period, there were no unpublished reports of non-clinical studies conducted with mifepristone of which we are aware.

9(e) 2. Published Reports

Appended in <u>Attachment 8</u> is an updated bibliography of non-clinical publications on mifepristone and copies of abstracts of selected references on the effects of mifepristone in non-clinical studies are appended in <u>Attachment 9</u>. Copies of listed references will be provided upon request.

9(f) Clinical Data

9(f) 1. Published Clinical Trials of the Drug

Appended in <u>Attachment 10</u> is an updated bibliography of clinical references for mifepristone and in <u>Attachment 11</u>, abstracts of clinical publications on mifepristone related to abortion and to long-term use. Copies of these references will be provided upon request.

9(f) 2. Summaries of Completed Unpublished Clinical Trials

Summaries of completed unpublished clinical trials which have come to our attention are appended in <u>Attachment 12</u>.

9(f) 3. Other Clinical Trials

Below is a tabulation of clinical investigators to whom Danco has provided Drug Product. Investigational use of the drug is described in IND's held by the individual investigators.

In addition, Drug Substance has been provided to the for two separate studies being conducted by

9(g) Status Reports - Post Marketing Studies

9(g) 1. Status Reports – Post Marketing Study Commitments [21CFR 314.81(b)(2)(vii)]

Study Commitment Status Report Not for Public Release

Appended in <u>Attachment 13</u> is a confidential status report of the postmarketing study commitments not for public release.

Study Commitment Status Report for Public Release

Appended in <u>Attachment 14</u> is a status report of the postmarketing study commitments for public release.

9(g) 2. Other Post Marketing Studies [21CFR 313.81 (b)(2)(viii)]

Ongoing Clinical Studies

Status reports of other ongoing postmarketing studies are provided in <u>Attachment</u> <u>15</u>.

Completed Clinical Studies

Other post marketing studies completed during this reporting period are provided in <u>Attachment 16</u>.

Stability Issues

Status reports for all product stability studies are provided in Section 9(d) 2.6.

Population Council/Danco Laboratories, LLC Sept. 28, 2000 - Sept. 27, 2001 Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg NDA 20-687

ATTACHMENT 1

1.6.1 Auxiliary Raw materials and Suppliers

Code Number	Name	Supplier

Annual Update: November 2001

Page 146

FDACDER000034

CMC SECTION: Drug Substance Mifepristone

Annual Update: November 2001

Page 147

FDACDER000035
ATTACHMENT 2

Lot No.			RESU	JLTS & TEST DAT	ГЕ	
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	1999.01.07	1999.02.09	1999.03.10	1999.04.09	1999.07.14
ENVIRONMENT	AL CONDITIONS:		-	_		
bulated by:			4	Reviewed by:		
nnual Update: N	ovember 2001					Page 26

			RESULT	TS & TEST DATE	
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	1999.10.16	2000.01.16	2000.07.13	2001.01.13
NVIRONMEN	TAL CONDITIONS:				
NVIRONMEN ACKING:	TAL CONDITIONS:				
NVIRONMEN ACKING:	TAL CONDITIONS:				
NVIRONMEN	TAL CONDITIONS:		Revie	ewed by:	

Lot No.			RE	SULTS & TEST D	ATE			
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	1999.01.15	1999.02.15	1999.03.22	1999.04.16	1999.07.14		
ENVIRONMENT	AL CONDITIONS:							
PACKING:								
Fabulated by:				Reviewed by:				
Annual Update: N	lovember 2001					Page 28		

Lot No.			RESU	LTS & TEST DAT	E
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	1999.10.16	2000.01.16	2000.07.13	2001.01.13
NVIRONMENTA ACKING:	AL CONDITIONS:				
ulated by:			Re	viewed by:	
nual Update: N	ovember 2001				Page

Lot No.			RES	ULTS & TEST D	ATE	
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	1999.01.20	1999.02.22	1999.03.24	1999.04.22	1999.07.28
NVIRONMENT	AL CONDITIONS:					
PACKING:						
ibulated by:				Reviewed by:		
nnual Update: N	lovember 2001					Page 30

SPECIFICATIONS	1999.10.16	2000.01.16	2000.07.13	2001 01 13	
				2001.01.10	
L CONDITIONS:					
			Reviewed by:		
ovember 2001					Page 31
	vember 2001	vember 2001	vember 2001	CONDITIONS:	CONDITIONS:

LOT No.		RESULTS & TEST DATE					
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	2000. 01.21	2000.03.03	2000.04.03	2000.05.07	2000.08.09	
ENVIRONMENTAL CO	NDITIONS:						
Tabulated by:				Reviewed	by:		
Annual Update: Novemi	ber 2001					Page 31 a	

	ſ	Constant of the second s	and the second			
LOT No.		RESULTS & TEST DATE				
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	2000.11.06	2001.02.06	2001.08.10		
NVIRONMENTAL CO	SNDITIONS:					
ACKING:						
abulated by:				Reviewed by:		
anual Indata: Novam	abor 2001				Page 31 b	
inual Opuale. Noven					1 age 01 b	

LOT No.		RESULTS & TEST DATE						
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	2000.04.06	2000.05.07	2000.06.07	2000.07.05	2000.10.11		
ENVIRONMENTAL C	ONDITIONS:			-				
	ONDITIONS:							
ENVIRONMENTAL C	ONDITIONS:							
ENVIRONMENTAL C	ONDITIONS:							
ENVIRONMENTAL C	ONDITIONS:							
ENVIRONMENTAL Co	ONDITIONS:			Reviewed t	by:			

				and the second se		
LOT No.		RESULTS & TEST DATE				
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	2001.01.13	2001.04.10	2001.07.05		
NVIRONMENTAL C	ONDITIONS:					
PACKING:						
abulated by:				Reviewed by:		

LOT No.		RESULTS & TEST DATE					
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	2000. 05.31	2000.07.14	2000.08.17	2000.09.14	2000.12.13	
ENVIRONMENTAL CO	ONDITIONS:						
DACKING			_		_		
PACKING:							
Tabulated by:				Reviewed b	y:		
Annual Update: Novem	ber 2001					Page 31 e	

LOT NO.		RESULTS & TEST DATE				
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	2001.03.12	2001.06.11			
	ONDITIONS:					
Aurino.						
				Doviound by:		

ACCELERATED STABILITY STUDIES

LOT No.		RES	ULTS & TEST	DATE		
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	2000. 05.31	2000.07.14	2000.08.17	2000.09.14	2000.12.13
ENVIRONMENTAL C	ONDITIONS:					

Annual Update: November 2001

Page 31 g

LOT No.		RESULTS & TEST DATE					
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	2000.05.31	2000.07.14	2000.08.17	2000.09.14	2000.12.15	
						A	
ENVIRONMENTAL CO	ONDITIONS:						
PACKING:							
Tabulated by:				Reviewed k	by:		
nnual Update: Novem	1ber 2001					Page 31 h	

LOT No.	RESULTS & TEST DATE				
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	2001.03.12	2001.06.11		
ENVIRONMENTAL C	ONDITIONS:				
PACKING:					
abulated by:				Reviewed by:	
nnual Update: Noven	nber 2001				Page 31 i

ACCELERATED STABILITY STUDIES

LOT No.	LOT No.			RESULTS & TEST DATE						
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	2000.05.31	2000.07.14	2000.08.17	2000.09.14	2000.12.15				
ENVIRONMENTAL CON	DITIONS:									
PACKING:										
Tabulated by:				Reviewed	by:	í.				
Annual Update: Novembe	er 2001					Page 31 j				

			and and the second s			and the second second second	
LOT No.		RESULTS & TEST DATE					
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	2000.05.31	2000.07.14	2000.08.17	2000.09.14	2000.12.16	
ENVIRONMENTAL CO	ONDITIONS:						
PACKING:							
Fabulated by:				Reviewed by	:		
Annual Update: Novem	nber 2001					Page 31 k	

-						
LOT No.						
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	2001.03.15	2001.06.11			
ENVIRONMENTAL CO	ONDITIONS:		0.1			
PACKING:						
Tabulated by:				Reviewed by:		
Annual Update: Novem	nber 2001				Page 31 I	

ACCELERATED STASBILITY STUDIES

LOT No.		RESU	ULTS & TEST	DATE		
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	2000.05.31	2000.07.14	2000.08.17	2000.09.14	2000.12.16
ENVIRONMENTAL CO	ONDITIONS:					
PACKING:						

Annual Update: November 2001

Page 31 m

LOT No.		RESULTS & TEST DATE						
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	2001.01.17	2001.03.15	2001.04.09	2001.05.09	2001.08.10		
ENVIRONMENTAL C	ONDITIONS:							
PACKING:								
Tabulated by:				Reviewed by				
Annual Update: Nover	mber 2001					Page 31 n		

LOT No.			RES	ULTS & TEST	DATE	
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	2001.02.09	2001.03.16	2001.04.09	2001.05.09	2001.08.10
PACKING:	SNDITIONS:					
Tabulated by:		2		Reviewed b	by:	
Annual Update: Novem	ber 2001					Page 31 o

LOT No.		RESULTS & TEST DATE						
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	2001.02.09	2001.03.16	2001.04.10	2001.05.09	2001.08.10		
ENVIRONMENTAL CO	ONDITIONS:							
PACKING:								
Tabulated by:				Reviewed b	y:			
Annual Update: Novem	nber 2001					Page 31 p		

ATTACHMENT 3

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

Danco Laboratories, Inc. page 1 of 3 SPECIFICATIONS FOR MIFEPRISTONE TABLETS, 200 mg

IN-PROCESS SPECIFICATIONS

Test

Specification

Method

Prepared by

Approved by:

Issue Date: 8/31/01

FDACDER000060

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

Danco Laboratories, Inc. page 2 of 3 SPECIFICATIONS FOR MIFEPRISTONE TABLETS, 200 mg

FINISHED PRODUCT AND STABILITY SPECIFICATION

Test

Specification

Method

Prepared by:

Approved by:

Issue Date: 8/31/00

FDACDER000061

Danco Laboratories, Inc. page 3 of 3 SPECIFICATIONS FOR MIFEPRISTONE TABLETS, 200 mg

HISTORY OF CHANGE

Date	Changes Made	Prepared by
10/6/99		
8/21/00		

Prepared by:

Approved by:

Issue Date: \$31/00

ATTACHMENT 4

PKG MPR: P00101	Rev.#: 03	Effective Date: October 16,2000	Batch #	Exp. 1	Date:
Product Name: Mifepr	istone Table	ts: (200 mg)	Issue Da October 16	ate: 6,2000	Page 1 of 16

BLISTER PACKAGING OPERATION

A. BLISTER PACK SIZE: 1 X 3 Blister/Mini carton

B. BLISTER PACK COMPONENTS:

Checked By:	Date:	
DATE: 10/14/10 APPROVI	ED	DATE: 10/14/00
	Checked By: DATE: /0/14/10 APPROVI	Checked By: Date: DATE: /º/I4/tv APPROVED :

PKG MPR: P00101	Rev.#: 03	Effective Date: October 16,2000	Batch #	Exp. 1	Date:
Product Name: Mifepr	istone Table	ts: (200 mg)	Issue D October 1	ate: 6,2000	Page 2 of 16

BLISTER PACKAGING OPERATION

Performed By:	Date:	
Checked By:	Date:	
Quality Assurance Check:	Date:	

PREPARED BY:	DATE: 10/14/07.	APPROVED BY	DATE: 10/14/W

PKG MPR: P00101	Rev.#: 03	Effective Date: October 16,2000	Batch #	Exp. Da	ate:
Product Name: Mifepri	stone Table	ts: (200 mg)	Issue Da October 16	te: ,2000	Page 3 of 16

Performed By:	Date:	
Checked By:	Date:	
Quality Assurance Check:	Date:	

Performed By:	Date:
Checked By:	Date:
Quality Assurance Check:	Date:

Performed By:	Date:
Checked By:	Date:
Quality Assurance Check:	Date:

PREPARED BY:	DATE: 10/14/00	APPROVED BY	DATE: Loll4(00

PKG MPR: P00101	Rev.#: 03	Effective Date: October 16,2000	Batch #	Exp.	Date:
Product Name: Mifepr	istone Table	ts: (200 mg)	Issue Da October 1	ate: 6,2000	Page 4 of 16

Date: _____

Time End:_____

Time	Start Up				
					_

PREPARED BY:	DATE: 10/14/00	APPROVED BY	DATE: 10/14/W

PKG MPR: P00101	Rev.#: 03	Effective Date: October 16,2000	Batch #	Exp.	Date:
Product Name: Mifepristone Tablets: (200 mg)			Issue D October 1	ate: 6,2000	Page 5 of 16



PREPARED BY:	DATE: 10/14/00 APPROVED B	DATE: 10(14(0

PKG MPR: P00101	Rev.#: 03	Effective Date: October 16,2000	Batch #	Exp.	Date:
Product Name: Mifepristone Tablets: (200 mg)		Issue 1 October	Date: 16,2000	Page 6 of 16	

(b) (4)

Visual Check of Blisters

Time(min)	Actual Time	Appearance A (Pass/Fail)	Count * (Pass Fail)	Performed By
(b) (4)				



PKG MPR: P00101	Rev.#: 03	Effective Date: October 16,2000	Batch #	Exp.	Date:
Product Name: Mifepristone Tablets: (200 mg)		Issue I October 1	Date: .6,2000	Page 7 of 16	

(b) (4)

Time	Appearance A	Count *	Performed
Interval	(Pass/Fail)	(Pass Fail)	Ву
Inspected			
	1 1	(b) (4)	1



PKG MPR: P00101	Rev.#: 03	Effective Date: October 16,2000	Batch #	Exp.	Date:
Product Name: Mifepristone Tablets: (200 mg)			Issue Da October 1	ate: 6,2000	Page 8 of 16

(b) (4)


DANCO LABC ORIES, INC. Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

PKG MPR: P00101	Rev.#: 03	Effective Date: October 16,2000	Batch #	Exp.	Date:
Product Name: Mifep:	ristone Table	ts: (200 mg)	Issue 1 October	Date: 16,2000	Page 9 of 16

LABELING AND FINAL PACKAGING OPERATION



DANCO LABC ORIES, INC. Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

PKG MPR: P00101	Rev.#: 03	Effective Date: October 16,2000	Batch #	Exp.	Date:
Product Name: Mifep	oristone Table	ts: (200 mg)	Issue October	Date: 16,2000	Page 10 of 16

Performed By:	Date:	
Checked By:	Date:	
Quality Assurance Check:	Date:	

	(b) (4), (b) (6)			(b) (4), (b) (6)	
PREPARED BY:		DATE: 10/14/00	APPROVED B		DATE: 10/14/0

DANGRed HARDA by JudiBat Wan, Intenc.

PKG MPR: P00101	Rev.#: 03	Effective Date: October 16,2000	Batch #	Exp.	Date:
Product Name: Mifepr:	istone Table	ts: (200 mg)	Issue D October 1	ate: .6,2000	Page 11 of 16

(b) (4)

QA Label Check: Performed By: _____ Date:_____



DANCO LAB('ORIES INC. Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

KG MPR: P00101	Rev.#: 03	Effective Date: October 16,2000	Batch #	Exp. D	ate:
Product Name: Mifep	ristone Table	ts: (200 mg)	Issue October	e Date: r 16,2000	Page 12 of 16
	(b) (4)				
Performed By:	Date:	Time	Start:		
Performed By:	Date:				
Performed By:	Date:				
Performed By:	Date:	Time	Finished:		
		(0) (4)			
		(0) (4)			
System Started	Ву:	Date:	Time:		
System Started	By:	(b) (4)	Time:		
System Started	Ву:	(b) (4)	Time:		
System Started	By:	(b) (4)	Time :		
System Started	By:	(b) (4)	Time:		
System Started	By:	(b) (4)	Time:		
System Started	By:	Date:(b)(4)	Time:		

DANCO LABOJ PRIES, INC. Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

KG MPR: P00101	Rev.#: 03	Effective Date: October 16,2000	Batch #	Exp. Da	ate:
coduct Name: Mifep	oristone Table	ts: (200 mg)	Issue October	Date: 16,2000	Page 13 of 16
			(b) (4)		
QA Label Check:	: Performed By (b)(4	7: Date			
Performed By: _	Date:	Time	start:		
Performed By: _	Date:				
Performed By: _	Date:				
Performed By: _	Date:	Time	Finished:		
	(b) (4), (b) (6)				
and the second		4 1 .			1.1.1

DANCO LABC ORTES, INC. Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

PKG MPR: P00101	Rev.#: 03	Effective Date: October 16,2000	Batch #	Exp. Date:
Product Name: Mifepr	istone Table	ts: (200 mg)	Issue Da October 16	te: Page 14 of ,2000 16

Performed By: Date:

Quality Assurance Verification: _____ Date:_____

(b) (4)

Label reconciliation performed by:______Date: _____Time:_____

Label reconciliation verified by:______Date: _____Time:_____

DATE: 10/14/00 APPROVED BY DATE: 10		(b) (4), (b) (6)			(b) (4), (b) (6)		
	PREPARED BY:		DATE: 10 /14/00	APPROVED BY		DATE :	10/14/0

DANCO LABO PTEC TNC

G MPR: P00101	Rev.#: 03	Effective Date October 16,200	Batch	#	Exp. Date:	
oduct Name: Mife	pristone Table	ets: (200 mg)		Issue Dat October 16,	e: Pa 2000 10	age 15 of 6
		(b) ((4)			
QA Label Check	: Performed By	7:D	ate:			
		(b) (4)				
Performed By:	Date:	т	ime Start:		_	
				(b) (4) (b) (6)	
	(b) (4), (b) (6)			(0) (1), (0) (
REPARED BY:		DATE: 10/14/00 A	PPROVED BY		DA	TE: 10 (14/00

DANCO LABC ORIES, INC. Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

PKG MPR: P00101	Rev.#: 03	Effective Date: October 16,2000	Batch #	Exp. D	Date:
Product Name: Mife	pristone Table	ts: (200 mg)	Issue October	Date: 16,2000	Page 16 of 16

(b) (4)

Performed By: _____ Date: _____ Time Finished: _____

Quality Assurance review of the batch record and approval for shipment 26. QA Approved By:_____ Date:_____ Danco QA: Date: (b) (4), (b) (6) (b) (4), (b) (6) DATE: 10/14/00 DATE: 10/14/00 APPROVED BY PREPARED BY:

DANCO LABORATORIES, INC.	SOP No. : 1802 REV 0
Change Control Procedure for Master Production and Control Records	Effective Date: 4/23/99

Request for a Change in a Master Production and Control Record

Product Name: Mifeprifac Tablets Document # to Change: <u>Poolol lev</u> # Change Requested: <u>Statement to document retain</u> <u>Samples</u> Reason for change: <u>There was no place to document</u> <u>Betain Sample</u> <u>Betain Sample</u> <u>Betain By the senior member of the quality unit</u>) Change accepted?: <u>Date: <u>11/6/67</u> Example (To be filled in by the senior member of the quality unit) Change accepted?: <u>Date</u> no Example Example Date: 11/6/67 By: <u>Date: 11/6/67</u> By: <u>Date: 11/6/67</u> Send a copy of this completed form to the person requesting the change. Attach a copy of the FDA approval letter to this form if it was requested and obtained. File this completed form with the document that was obsoleted.</u>	(To be filled in by the person	n requesting the	e change)
Change Requested: Statement to document yetain Samples Reason for change: There was no place to document Totation Sample (To be filled in by the senior member of the quality unit) Change accepted?: Date: Tape 11/6/60 (To be filled in by the senior member of the quality unit) Change accepted?: Date: no Revalidation required?: yes no FDA prior approval required?: yes no If the "no" box was checked, enter the reason for the decision: By: Title: Send a copy of this completed form to the person requesting the change. Attach a copy of the FDA approval letter to this form if it was requested and obtained. File this completed form with the document that was obsoleted.	Product Name: Mifeprista	m Tablets	Document # to Change: POOIOI Rev # 3
Samples Reason for change: There was no place to document Totam Sample 0100 million Requested by: Date: 0100 million (To be filled in by the senior member of the quality unit) Change accepted?: The senior member of the quality unit) Change accepted?: Texpression Revalidation required?: Trape If the "no" box was checked, enter the reason for the decision:	Change Requested:	Statement	- to document retain
Reason for change: There was no place to december To plain Securit Requested by: Date: (To be filled in by the senior member of the quality unit) Change accepted?: Date: (To be filled in equired?: yes (To be filled in equired?: Date: <	Sampler		
By: Date: 11/6/07 Send a copy of this completed form to the person requesting the change. Attach a copy of the FDA approval letter to this form if it was requested and obtained. File this completed form with the document that was obsoleted. File this completed.	Reason for change:	+ 1.00	he also to document
Requested by: Date: If /6 / 6D (To be filled in by the senior member of the quality unit) Change accepted?: If es (To be filled in by the senior member of the quality unit) Change accepted?: If es (Revalidation required?: If yes no FDA prior approval required?: If yes no If the "no" box was checked, enter the reason for the decision:	Tetain So	mole	NO PINCE 10 DECOM
(To be filled in by the senior member of the quality unit) Change accepted?: Ives no Revalidation required?: Ives no FDA prior approval required?: Ives no If the "no" box was checked, enter the reason for the decision:	Requested by:	Da	$\frac{(b)(6)}{(b)(6)} \frac{1}{1/6/67} \frac{1}{1/6/67}$
Change accepted?: If set Revalidation required?: If yes If the "no" box was checked, enter the reason for the decision: By: If the: Date: <a>11/61 Send a copy of this completed form to the person requesting the change. Attach a copy of the FDA approval letter to this form if it was requested and obtained. File this completed form with the document that was obsoleted.	(To be filled in by the senior	member of the	quality unit)
Revalidation required?: yes no FDA prior approval required?: yes no If the "no" box was checked, enter the reason for the decision: By:	Change accepted?:	Tyes	🗆 no
FDA prior approval required?: If the "no" box was checked, enter the reason for the decision: By: Date: 11/6/m Send a copy of this completed form to the person requesting the change. Attach a copy of the FDA approval letter to this form if it was requested and obtained. File this completed form with the document that was obsoleted.	Revalidation required?:	□ yes	🗆 no
If the "no" box was checked, enter the reason for the decision:	FDA prior approval required?:	□ yes	🗆 no
By: Date:/6/@ Title: Date:/6/@ Send a copy of this completed form to the person requesting the change. Attach a copy of the FDA approval letter to this form if it was requested and obtained. File this completed form with the document that was obsoleted.	If the "no" box was checked,	enter the reas	on for the decision:
By: Date:/L6/@ Title: Date:/L6/@ Send a copy of this completed form to the person requesting the change. Attach a copy of the FDA approval letter to this form if it was requested and obtained. File this completed form with the document that was obsoleted.	(b) (4), (b) (6)		
Title: Send a copy of this completed form to the person requesting the change. Attach a copy of the FDA approval letter to this form if it was requested and obtained. File this completed form with the document that was obsoleted.	Ву:	Date:	11/6/00
Send a copy of this completed form to the person requesting the change. Attach a copy of the FDA approval letter to this form if it was requested and obtained. File this completed form with the document that was obsoleted.	Title:		
	Send a copy of this complete Attach a copy of the FDA ap File this completed form with	ed form to the p proval letter to the document	person requesting the change. this form if it was requested and obtained. that was obsoleted.

(b) (4), (b) (6)

Approvals:

(b) (4), (b) (6)

Prepared by:

Page 3 of 4

Population Council/Danco Laboratories, LLC	Natch, Inc. Sept. 28, 2000 - Sept. 27, 2001
Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg	NDA 20-687

ATTACHMENT 5

DANCO LABORATOR IA by Judicia Watch, Inc.

PKG MPR: P000101	Rev.#: 04	Effective Date: November 7,2000	Lot #	Expiration Date:
Product Name(#): Mifepris	tone Table	ts: (200 mg) 001	Issue Date: November 6,20	Page 1 of 14

BLISTER PACKAGING OPERATION

A. BLISTER PACK SIZE: 1 X 3 Blister/Mini carton

B. BLISTER PACK COMPONENTS:

Calculated By:

Checked By:

the second second	(b) (4), (b) (6)		(b) (4), (b) (6)
PREPARED BY:	DATE: 11/6/00	APPROVED	DATE: 11.6.00

DANCO LABORATORI ---- INC.

PKG MPR: P000101 .	Rev.#: 04	Effective Date: November 7,2000	Lot #	Expiration Date:
Product Name(#): Mifepris	tone Tablet	cs: (200 mg) 001	Issue Date: November 6,20	Page 2 of 14 00

BLISTER PACKAGING OPERATION

(b) (4)

Performed By:	Date:
Checked By:	Date:
Quality Assurance Check:	Date:

Performed By:	Date:			
Checked By:	Date:		*	
Quality Assurance Check:	Date:	i.et		
the second s	(b) (4)			

	(b) (4), (b) (6)		1
PREPARED BY:		DATE: 11/6/00	APPROVED BY:
		and the second s	

DATE: 11-6-00

DANCO LABORATORI. by Judicia Watch, Inc.

PKG MPR: P000101	Rev.#: 04	Effective Date: November 7,2000	Lot #	Expirati	on Date:
Product Name(#): Mifepr	ristone Table	cs: (200 mg) 001	Issue Date November 6,2	e: Pa	ige 3 of 14

(b) (4)

Performed By:	Date:	1.1
Checked By:	Date:	
Quality Assurance Check:	Date:	

(b) (4)

Performed By:	Date:	
Checked By:	Date:	
Quality Assurance Check:	Date:	

	(b) (4), (b) (6)	1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	-	(b) (4), (b) (6)	
PREPARED BY		DATE: 11/6/00	APPROVED BY:		DATE: 11.6.00

DANCO LABORATORILL, INC.

PKG MPR: P000101	Rev.#: 04	Effective Date: November 7,2000	Lot #	Expiration Date:
Product Name(#): Mifepris	tone Table	ts: (200 mg) 001	Issue Date: November 6,20	Page 4 of 14

Date:

Time End:

Time	Start Up				-		
(0) (4)			- 19 ⁰				
		12					

(b) (4)

	1

	(b) (4), (b) (6)		Sector Sector	(b) (4), (b) (6)	
PREPARED BY:		DATE: 1/6/00	APPROVED BY		DATE: 11.6-00
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1		

DANCO LABORATORIL , INC.

PKG MPR: P000101	Rev.#: 04	Effective Date: November 7,2000	Lot #	Expiration Date:
Product Name(#): Mifepri	stone Table	ts: (200 mg) 001	Issue Date: November 6,20	Page 5 of 14

(b) (4)

Visual Check of Blisters

	Time(min)	Actual Time	Appearance * (Pass/Fail)	Count ^A (Pass Fail)	Performed By	
	(b) (4)					
				4		
			(b) (4)			
and the second second	(b) (4), (b) (6)	A Survey		(b) (4), (b) (6)		
PREPARED BY:		DATE: 11/6/00	APPROVED BY		DATE	: 11.6-00
	1	A Section of				Andrea La Contra da

DANCO LABORATORILL, INC.

1	Rev.#: 04	Effective	e Date: 7,2000	Lot #	Expirat	ion Date:
: Mifepris	tone Table	ts: (200 m	ng) 001	Issue Da November 6	te: F ,2000	Page 6 of 14
			(b) (4)		
					-	
			(b) (4)			
(b) (4), (b) (6)	10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 -			(b) (4), (b) (6)	
	: Mifepris	: Mifepristone Table	: Mifepristone Tablets: (200 m	(b) (4)	(b)(4)	: Mifepristone Tablets: (200 mg) 001 Issue Date: November 6,2000 (b)(4) (b)(4) (b)(4)

DANCO LABORATORILLO, INC.

PKG MPR: P000101	Rev.#: 04	Effective Date: November 7,2000	Lot #	Expiration Date:
Product Name(#): Mifep	pristone Table	ts: (200 mg) 001	Issue Date November 6,2	: Page 7 of 14 000
Yield calculated by	/:	Calculation verifie	d by:	
	LABELING	AND FINAL PACKAGING	OPERATION	

i le te	(D) (4), (D) (D)	1.1.1	a second and a second		11.1.00
				(b) (4), (b) (6)	12220
			(b) (4)		
	Quality Assurance C	neck:	Date:		
	Checked By:		Date:		
	Performed By:		Date:		

DANCO LABORATORILS, INC.

KG MPR: PO	00101	Rev.#: 04	Effective	e Date: 7,2000	Lot #	Ex	xpiration	Date:
roduct Nam	e(#): Mifepris	tone Tablet	ts: (200 n	ng) 001	Issue Novembe	Date: r 6,2000	Page	8 of 14
				(b) (4)				
	Donformed Buy			Data				
	Performed By:		1	Date:				
	Performed By: Checked By: Quality Assur	ance Check:	1	Date: Date: Date:				
	Performed By: Checked By: Quality Assure	ance Check:	1	Date: Date: Date:			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	Performed By: Checked By: Quality Assur	ance Check:	1	Date: Date: Date: (b)(4)				
Syst	Performed By: Checked By: Quality Assur- em Started By:	ance Check:	Date:	Date: Date: (b)(4) Time	A:			
Syst	Performed By: Checked By: Quality Assur	ance Check:	Date:	Date: Date: (b)(4) Time	2:			
Syst	Performed By: Checked By: Quality Assur em Started By: (b)(4),(b)(6)	ance Check:]] Date:	Date: Date: Date: (b)(4) Time	÷:(b)	(4), (b) (6)		
Syst	Performed By: Checked By: Quality Assur em Started By: (b)(4),(b)(6)	ance Check:	Date:	Date: Date: Date: (b)(4) Time APPROVED	≥:(0)	· (4), (b) (6)	DATE	: 146.00

DANCO LABORATORIA INC.

	Ret	r.#: 04	Effective Date: November 7,2000	Lot #	Expir	ation Date:
duct Name(#): 1	Mifepriston	e Table	ts: (200 mg) 001	Issue November	Date: 6,2000	Page 9 of 14
QA Label Check	: Performed	Ву:	Date:			
					1	
Performed By:	Da	ate:	Time Sta	rt:		
Performed By: Performed By:	Da	ate:	Time Sta	rt:		
Performed By: Performed By: Performed By:	Da Da	ate: ate: ate:	Time Sta	rt:		
Performed By: Performed By: Performed By: Performed By:	Da Da Da	ate: ate: ate: ate:	Time Sta	ished:		
Performed By: Performed By: Performed By: Performed By:	Da Da Da	ate: ate: ate: ate:	Time Sta Time Fin (b)(4)	ished:		
Performed By: Performed By: Performed By: Performed By:	Da Da Da	ate: ate: ate: ate:	Time Sta	ished:		
Performed By: Performed By: Performed By: Performed By:	Da Da Da	ate: ate: ate:	Time Sta	ished:		

DATE: 11/6/10. APPROVED BY

DATE: (16.00

Danco LABORATORILL, INC.

	Rev. #. 04	November	7,2000	Lot #	Expiration	Date:	
roduct Name(#): Mife	pristone Table	ats: (200 m	ıg) 001	Issue Date: November 6,20	Page	10 of	14
			(b) (4)				
System Started By:		Date:		_ Time:			
			(b) (4)				
QA Label Check: E	erformed By:		Date:				
QA Label Check: E	erformed By:(b)(4)		Date:				-
QA Label Check: E Performed By:	erformed By: (b)(4) Date:		Date: Time Start	 t:			
QA Label Check: E Performed By: Performed By:	Performed By: (b)(4) Date: Date:		Date: Time Start	t:			
QA Label Check: E Performed By: Performed By: Performed By:	Performed By: (b)(4) Date: Date: Date:		Date: Time Start	t:			
QA Label Check: E Performed By: Performed By: Performed By: Performed By:	Performed By: (b)(4) Date: Date: Date: Date:		Date: Time Start	t:			
QA Label Check: E Performed By: Performed By: Performed By: Performed By:	Performed By: (b)(4) Date: Date: Date: Date:		Date: Time Start	t:			
QA Label Check: E Performed By: Performed By: Performed By: Performed By:	Performed By: (b)(4) Date: Date: Date: Date:		Date: Time Start	t:			
QA Label Check: E Performed By: Performed By: Performed By: Performed By: (b)(EPARED BY:	Performed By: (b)(4) Date: Date: Date: Date: Date: Date:	s: 11/6/00	Date: Time Start Time Finis	t:	DATE	: 14 6.00	2

- 1

DANCO LABORATORILS, INC.

	00101	Rev.#: 04	Effective November 7	Date: 7,2000	Lot #		Expira	tion Da	te:
roduct Nam	e(#): Mifepri	stone Table	ts: (200 mg) 001	Iss Novemb	Der 6,20	00	Page 11	of 14
				(b) (4)					
	Performed By:		Da	te:		1			
	Quality Assur	ance Verific	ation:		_				
			(t	b) (4)		1			
				Th. 1		m -			
Label r Label r	econciliation preconciliation v	performed by: verified by:_		Date:	: Tin	Time:			
Label r Label r	econciliation preconciliation of	performed by: verified by:_		Date: (b)(4)	: Tim	Time:			
Label r Label r	econciliation preconciliation of	performed by: verified by:_		Date:	: Tin	rime:			
Label r Label r	econciliation preconciliation of	performed by: verified by:_		Date	: Tin	Time:			
Label r Label r	econciliation preconciliation (b) (4), (b) (6)	performed by: verified by:_		Date: (b)(4)	: Tim	(b) (4), (b) (6)			
Label r Label r PREPARED BY	econciliation preconciliation (b) (4), (b) (6)	performed by: verified by:_ DATE	: 11/6/00	Date: (^(b) (⁴⁾	: Tim	Time: te: (b) (4), (b) (6)		DATE: 11	- 6-02

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc. DANCO LABORATORILS, INC.

PKG MPR: P000101	Rev.#: 04	Effective Date: November 7,2000	Lot #	Expiration Date:
Product Name(#): Mifepr	istone Table	s: (200 mg) 001	Issue Date: November 6,20	Page 12 of 14

PREPARED BY :		DATE: 21/61	A APPROVED BY	DATE: 14 6.00
	(b) (4), (b) (6)			(b) (4), (b) (6)
Performed	Ву:	Date:	Time Finished:	······
Performed	Ву:	Date:	Ţime Start:	
Qu paper		(b) (4)		

DANCO LABORATORILO, INC.

PKG MPR: P000101	Rev.#: 04	Effective Date: November 7,2000	Lot #	Expiration Date:
Product Name(#): Mifepri	stone Table	ts: (200 mg) 001	Issue Date: November 6,20	Page 13 of 14

(b) (4)

QUALITY ASSURANCE REVIEW OF PACKAGING BATCH RECORD:

Quality Assurance Review By: _____ Date: _____

Danco Quality Assurance Approval for Shipment

(b) (4), (b) (6)

By: Date:

PREPARED BY:

DATE: /1/6 / FO. APPROVED BY

DATE: 14 6. 00

(b) (4), (b) (6)

DANCO LABORATORIES, INC.

PKG MPR: P000101	Rev.#: 04	Effective Date: November 7,2000	Lot #	Expiration	Date:
Product Name(#): Mifepris	tone Tablet	ts: (200 mg) 001	Issue Date: November 6,20	Page 00	14 of 14

....

		history of change		
Revision Number	Date Of Revision	Revised By	Reason for Revision	
1				
2		(b) (4), (b) (6)		(5) (4)
3	October 16, 2000			(D) (4)
4	November 7, 2000			

	(b) (4), (b) (6)	Provide and the Contract		(b) (4), (b) (6)	and the second s
PREPARED BY:		DATE: 11/6/00,	APPROVED BY		DATE: 14.6-00
and a second sec		Par search in some			

ATTACHMENT 6

STABILITY STUDY REPORT FOR BATCH # (b) (4) CONTROLLED ROOM TEMPERATURE STUDY

Product: Mife	epristone Tablets, 200 mg	Batch #: (b) (4)		
Purpose of s	urpose of study: Controlled Room Temperature Manufacturing date: 6/28/99			
Batch size:	(b) (4) tablets	Expiration date: 1/2001		
Incredient		Manufacturar	(b) (4	

CONTAINER/CLOSURE SYSTEM

EVALUATION SCHEDULE

STARII ITY DATA

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

Sept. 28, 2000 - Sept. 28, 2001 NDA 20-687

STABILITY STUDY REPORT FOR BATCH # (b) (4) ACCELERATED STABILITY STUDY

Product: Miteprist	one lablets, 200 mg	Batch #: (0) (4)	
Purpose of study	Accelerated Stability	Manufacturing date: 6/28/99	
Batch size: (b) (4)	tablets	Expiration date: 1/2001	
	Incredient	Manufacturer	(b) (4)
	CONTAINER	CLOSURE SYSTEM	(b) (4)
	EVALUAT	ION SCHEDULE	(b) (4)
	STAR		
			(4) (

STABILITY STUDY REPORT FOR BATCH # (b) (4) CONTROLLED ROOM TEMPERATURE STUDY

Product: Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg	Batch #: (b) (4)	
Purpose of study: Controlled Room Temperature	Manufacturing date: 9/22/99	
Batch size: (b) (4) tablets	Expiration date: 3/2001	
Ingredient	Manufacturer	(1) (4)
CONTAINER/CLC	SUDE SYSTEM	
CONTAINENCE	SORESTSTEM	(b) (4)
FVALUATION	SCHEDULE	(b) (4)
CTABILI	DY DATA	
STABILI	IY DATA	(b)

STABILITY STUDY REPORT FOR BATCH # (b) (4) ACCELERATED STABILITY STUDY

Product: Mife	pristone Tablets,	200 mg	Batch #: (b) (4)		
Purpose of study: Accelerated Stability		Manufacturing d			
Batch size:	(b) (4) tablets		Expiration date:	3/2001	
	Ingredient			Manufacturer	(b) (4)
		CONTAINER/	CLOSURE		(b) (4)
		FVAI 11ATI	ON SCHEDHI F		(b) (4)
		STAB	ILITY DATA		

STABILITY STUDY REPORT FOR BATCH # (b) (4) CONTROLLED ROOM TEMPERATURE STUDY

Product: Mifeprist	one Tablets, 200 mg	Batch #: (0)(4)	
Purpose of study	: Controlled Room Temperature	Manufacturing date: 8/3/00	
Batch size: (b) (4)	tablets	Expiration date: 2/2002	
	Ingredient	Manufacturer	
			(4) (4)
	CONTAINER/CLC	DSURE SYSTEM	(b) (4)
	EVALUATION	SCHEDULE	
			(b) (4)
	STABILIT	TY DATA	
			(b

STABILITY STUDY REPORT FOR BATCH # (b) (4) ACCELERATED STABILITY STUDY

Product: Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg	Batch #: (b) (4)	
Purpose of study: Accelerated Stability	Manufacturing date: 8/3/00	
Satch Size: Lablets	Expiration date: 2/2002 Manufacturer	
		(b) (4)
CONTAINER/	CLOSURE SYSTEM	(b) (a
EVALUAT	ION SCHEDULE	(b) (•
STAB		-

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc. The Population Council/ Danco Laboratories, LLC Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg

Sept. 28, 2000 - Sept. 28, 2001 NDA 20-687

(b) (4) STABILITY STUDY REPORT FOR BATCH # CONTROLLED ROOM TEMPERATURE STUDY

	Batch #: (b) (4)	ne Tablets, 200 mg	Product: Mifepristo
	Manufacturing date: 9/11/00	Controlled Room Temperature	ourpose of study:
	Expiration date: 3/2002	tablets	Batch size: (b) (4)
(b) (Manufacturer	Ingredient	
	SURE SYSTEM	CONTAINER/CLC	
(b)		CONTRACTOR	
	SCHEDUI F	FVAI LIATION	
	YDATA	STABILIT	

 Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

 The Population Council/ Danco Laboratories, LLC
 Sept. 28, 2000 - Sept. 28, 2001

 Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg
 NDA 20-687

STABILITY STUDY REPORT FOR BATCH # (b) (4) ACCELERATED STABILITY STUDY

Purpose of study: Accelerated Stability	Manufacturing data: 0/11/00	
	Manufacturing date. 9/11/00	
Batch size: (b) (4) tablets	Expiration date: 3/2002	
Incredient	Manufacturer	(b) (4)
CONTAINER	N OCUDE SYSTEM	
CONTAINER	LUSURE STATEM	(b) (4
FVAI 11AT	ON SCHEDUI F	(b) (
STAE		

STABILITY STUDY REPORT FOR BATCH # (b) (4) CONTROLLED ROOM TEMPERATURE STUDY

Product: Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg	Batch #: (b) (4)	
Purpose of study: Controlled Room Temperature	Manufacturing date: 10/11/00	
Batch size: (D) (4) tablets	Expiration date: 4/2002	
ingredient	Manufacturer	(b) (4)
CONTAINER/CLC	DSURE SYSTEM	
		(b) (4)
EVALUATION	SCHEDULE	(b) (4)
STARII II		

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Wa	atch, Inc.
The Population Council/ Danco Laboratories, LLC	Sept. 28, 2000 - Sept. 28, 2001
Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg	NDA 20-687

STABILITY STUDY REPORT FOR BATCH # (b) (4) ACCELERATED STABILITY STUDY

Product: Mitepristone Tablets, 200 mg	Batch #: (0) (4)	
Purpose of study: Accelerated Stability	Manufacturing date: 10/11/00	
Batch size: (b) (4) tablets	Expiration date: 4/2002	
Ingredient	Manufacturer	(b) (4)
CONTAINER	CLOSURE SYSTEM	(b) (4)
FVAI IIAT	TON SCHEDUI F	(b) (-
STAR		

ATTACHMENT 7
Memo

(4),	(b)	(6)
	(4),	(4), (b)

From:	(b) (4), (b) (6)

Date: May 1, 2001

Re: Our Commitment to FDA on stability of Mifepristone (b) (4) Completed.

During the FDA approval process we were able to convince FDA that although there were a number of crystal forms for mifepristone our process always generated (b) (4), (b) (6)

We would expect to report these data to the FDA in the annual update in September.

(b) (4), (b) (6)			DATE: 4/25/01
Danco Laborato P. O. Box 4816	ries, LLC		LAB NO: (b) (4)
New York, NY	10185		CLIENT P.O.
SAMPLE Mif	epristone, Bato	ch #20001 - Pu	11 Date 3/28/01
INFORMATION:		(b) (4)	
RESULTS:			
		(b) (4)	
^{(b) (4), (b) (6)} has FDA	A Registration N	(b) (4), (b) (6)	DEA Registraion Number
(b) (4), (b) (6) (b) (4), (b) (6) has FDA (b) (4), (b) (6) and	A Registration N (b) (4), (b) (6)	Tumber (b) (4), (b) (6) -	DEA Registraion Number
^{(b) (4), (b) (6)} has FDA ^{(b) (4), (b) (6)} and	A Registration N (b)(4),(b)(6)	Jumber (b) (4), (b) (6) -	DEA Registraion Number
^{(b) (4), (b) (6)} has FDA ^{(b) (4), (b) (6)} and	A Registration N (b) (4), (b) (6)	lumber -	DEA Registraion Number
^{(b) (4), (b) (6)} has FDA (b) (4), (b) (6) and	A Registration N (b) (4), (b) (6)	Tumber ^{(b) (4), (b) (6)} •	DEA Registraion Number
^{(b) (4), (b) (6)} has FDA (b) (4), (b) (6) and	A Registration N (b) (4), (b) (6)	Tumber (b) (4), (b) (6)	DEA Registraion Number
^{(b) (4), (b) (6)} has FDA (b) (4), (b) (6) and	A Registration N (b) (4), (b) (6)	Tumber ^{(b) (4), (b) (6)}	DEA Registraion Number
^{(b) (4), (b) (6)} has FDA (b) (4), (b) (6) and	A Registration N (b) (4), (b) (6)	Tumber ^{(b) (4), (b) (6)}	DEA Registraion Number
^{(b) (4), (b) (6)} has FDA (b) (4), (b) (6) and	A Registration N (b) (4), (b) (6)	Tumber (b) (4), (b) (6) -	DEA Registraion Number
(b) (4), (b) (6) has FD (b) (4), (b) (6) and	A Registration N (b)(4),(b)(6)	Jumber ^{(b) (4), (b) (6)} -	DEA Registraion Number
(b) (4), (b) (6) has FD (b) (4), (b) (6) and	A Registration N (b) (4), (b) (6)	Number (b) (4), (b) (6) -	DEA Registraion Number

A post of prove proved and a prove prover proved and

(b) (4), (b) (6)

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

(b) (4), (b) (6)

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

ATTACHMENT 8

LITERATURE UPDATE - NONCLINICAL

The present update to the bibliography was generated by a search performed using PubMed with the keywords mifepristone and animal from all sources and languages. This bibliography covers the period of September 28, 2000 to September 27, 2001.

The bibliography generated by this strategy includes published articles on non-clinical investigations on mifepristone. A list of these references in alphabetical order is presented below. The reprints of these articles will be supplied upon request.

R.V. Abruzzese, D. Godin, V. Mehta, J.L. Perrard, M. French, W. Nelson, G. Howell, M. Coleman, B.W. O'Malley and J.L. Nordstrom. Ligand-dependent regulation of vascular endothelial growth factor and erythropoietin expression by a plasmid-based autoinducible GeneSwitch system. Mol. Ther. 2 (3): 276-87, Sep. 2000.

R. Aguilar, C. Bellido, D. Gonzalez, J.C. Garrido-Gracia and J.E. Sanchez-Criado. The in vitro inhibitory action of antiprogestin RU486 on LH and FSH secretion in the absence of progesterone in rats is estrogen-dependent. Pituitary. 3 (3): 153-8, Nov. 2000.

I.A. Antonijevic, J.A. Russell, R.J. Bicknell, G. Leng and A.J. Douglas. Effect of progesterone on the activation of neurons of the supraoptic nucleus during parturition. J Reprod Fertil. 120 (2): 367-76, Nov. 2000.

M.J. Arin, M.A. Longley, X.J. Wang and D.R. Roop. Focal activation of a mutant allele defines the role of stem cells in mosaic skin disorders. J Cell Biol. 152 (3): 645-9, Feb. 5, 2001.

E. Baus, F. Van Laethem, F. Andris, S. Rolin, J. Urbain and O. Leo. Dexamethasone increase intracellular cyclic AMP concentration in murine T lymphocyte cell lines. Steroids. 66 (1): 39-47, Jan. 2001.

S. Belikov, B. Gelius and O. Wrange. Hormone-induced nucleosome positioning in the MMTV promoter is reversible. EMBO J. 20 (11): 2802-11, June 1, 2001.

A. Benyassi, C. Schwartz, B. Ducouret and J. Falcon. Glucocorticoid receptors and serotonin N-acetyltransferase activity in the fish pineal organ. Neuroreport. 12 (5): 889-92, Apr. 17, 2001.

N.J. Bernier and R.E. Peter. Appetite-suppressing effects of urotensin I and corticotropinreleasing hormone in goldfish (Carassius auratus). Neuroendocrinology. 73 (4): 248-60, Apr. 2001.

B. Bouftila and M. Clabaut. [Effects of RU486 on electrical activity, on sexual steroid and prostaglandin F2 alpha concentrations in the myometrium at mid-pregnancy in the rat]. CR Acad Sci III. 324 (9): 805-13, Sep. 2001.

T. Breivik, P.S. Thrane, P. Gjermo and P.K. Opstad. Glucocorticoid receptor antagonist RU 486 treatment reduces periodontitis in Fischer 344 rats. J Periodontal Res. 35 (5): 285-90, Oct. 2000.

C.W. Breuner and M. Orchinik. Seasonal regulation of membrane and intracellular corticosteroid receptors in the house sparrow brain. J Neuroendocrinol. 13 (5): 412-20, May 2001.

M. Bucci, F. Roviezzo, C. Cicala, W.C. Sessa and G. Cirino. Geldanamycin, an inhibitor of heat shock protein 90 (Hsp90) mediated signal transduction has anti-inflammatory effects and interacts with glucocorticoid receptor in vivo. Br J Pharmacol. 131 (1): 13-6, Sep. 2000.

N. Calvo and M. Volosin. Glucocorticoid and mineralocorticoid receptors are involved in the facilitation of anxiety-like response induced by restraint. Neuroendocrinology. 73 (4): 261-71, Apr. 2001.

T. Cao, M.A. Longley, X.J. Wang and D.R. Roop. An inducible mouse model for epidermolysis bullosa simplex: implications for gene therapy. J Cell Biol. 152 (3): 651-6, Feb. 5, 2001.

A. Capasso and A. Loizzo. Arachidonic acid and its metabolites are involved in the expression of neocortical spike-and-wave spindling episodes in DBA/2J mice. J Pharm Pharmacol 53 (6): 993-8, Jun. 2001.

I. Castagliuolo, K. Karalis, L. Valenick, A. Pasha, S. Nikulasson, M. Wlk and C. Pothoulakis. Endogenous corticosteroids modulate Clostridium difficile toxin A-induced enteritis in rats. Am J Physiol Gastrointest Liver Physiol. 280 (4): G539-45, Apr. 2001.

K. Chwalisz, R.M. Brenner, U.U. Fuhrmann, H. Hess-Stumpp and W. Elger. Antiproliferative effects of progesterone antagonists and progesterone receptor modulators on the endometrium. Steroids. 65 (10-11): 741-51, Oct.-Nov. 2000. Review.

M.A. Cole, B.A. Kalman, T.W. Pace, F. Topczewski, M.J. Lowrey and R.L. Spencer. Selective blockade of the mineralocorticoid receptor impairs hypothalamic-pituitary-adrenal axis expression of habituation. J Neuroendocrinol. 12 (10): 1034-42, Oct. 2000.

G. Csaba and A. Inczefi-Gonda. Effect of neonatal treatment with mifepristone or tamoxifen on the binding capacity of the thymic glucocorticoid or uterine estrogen receptor of adult rats: data on the mechanism of hormonal imprinting. Life Sci. 67 (20): 2531-7, Oct. 6, 2000.

G. Csaba and A. Inczefi-Gonda. Similarities and dissimilarities of newborn and adolescent rats in the binding capacity of thymic glucocorticoid receptors. Mech Ageing Dev. 122 (3): 327-34, Mar. 2001.

G. Csaba and C. Karabelyos. The effect of a single neonatal treatment (hormonal imprinting) with the antihormones, tamoxifen and mifepristone on the sexual behavior of adult rats. Pharmacol Res 43 (6): 531-4, Jun. 2001.

H.B. Croxatto, L. Devoto, M. Durand, E. Ezcurra, F. Larrea, C. Nagle, M.E. Ortiz, D. Vantman, M. Vega and H. von Hertzen. Mechanism of action of hormonal preparations used for emergency contraception: a review of the literature. Contraception. 63 (3); 111-21, Mar. 2001. Review.

B.P. Davidson, S.C. Dogra and B.K. May. The antiglucocorticoid RU486 inhibits phenobarbital induction of the chicken CYP2H1 gene in primary hepatocytes. Mol Pharmacol. 60 (2): 274-81, Aug. 2001.

B. Diaz, E. Barreto, R. Cordeiro, M. Perretti, M. Martins and P. Silva. Enhanced sperm glucocorticoid levels mediate the reduction of serosal mast cell numbers in diabetic rats. Life Sci. 68 (26): 2925-32, May 18, 2001.

Z. Duanmu, T.A. Kocarek and M. Runge-Morris. Transcriptional regulation of rat hepatic aryl sulfotransferase (SULT1A1) gene expression by glucocorticoids. Drug Metab Dispos. 29 (8): 1130-5, Aug. 2001.

M. Dukes, B.J. Furr, L.R. Hughes, H. Tucker and J.R. Woodburn. Nonsteroidal progestins and antiprogestins related to flutamide. Steroids. 65 (10-11): 725-31, Oct.-Nov. 2000.

W. Elger, J. Bartley, B. Schneider, G. Kaufmann, G. Schubert and K. Chwalisz. Endocrine pharmacological characterization of progesterone antagonists and progesterone receptor modulators with respect to PR-agonistic and antagonistic activity. Steroids. 65 (10-11): 713-23, Oct.-Nov. 2000. Review.

V. Ellerkamp, T.J. Musholt, S.H. Klebs, P.B. Musholt, G.F. Scheumann, J. Klempnauer and M.W. Hoffman. A murine model of allogeneic adrenocortical cell transplantation: perspectives on the treatment of Addison's disease in humans. Surgery. 128 (6): 999-1006, Dec. 2000.

K.C. Falkner, J.A. Pinaire, G.H. Xiao, T.E. Geoghegan and R.A. Prough. Regulation of the rat glutathione S-transferase A2 gene by glucocorticoids: involvement of both the glucocorticoid and pregnane X receptors. Mol Pharmacol. 60 (3): 611-9, Sep. 2001.

L.P. Filaretova and T.P. Bagaeva. The role of endogenous glucocorticoids in maintenance of the gastric mucosa integrity. Ross Fiziol Zh Im I M Sechenova. 86 (11): 1548-58, Nov. 2000. Review.

M. Fleshner, T. Deak, K.T. Nguyen, L.R. Watkins and S.F. Maier. Endogenous glucocorticoids play a positive regulatory role in the anti-keyhole limpet hemocyanin in vivo antibody response. J Immunol. 166 (6): 3813-9, Mar. 15, 2001.

M.S. Flint and S.S. Tinkle. C57BL/6 mice are resistant to acute restraint modulation of cutaneous hypersensitivity. Toxicol Sci. 62 (2): 250-6, Aug. 2001.

M.S. Flint, D.B. Miller and S.S. Tinkle. Restraint-induced modulation of allergic and irritant contact dermatitis in male and female B6.129 mice. Brain Behav Immun. 14 (4): 256-69, Dec. 2000.

M.S. Flint, J.M. Valosen, E.A. Johnson, D.B. Miller and S.S. Tinkle. Restraint stress applied prior to chemical sensitization modulates the development of allergic contact dermatitis differently than restraint prior to challenge. J Neuroimmunol. 113 (1): 72-80, Feb. 1, 2001.

K. Fukuzuka, C.K. Edwards 3rd, M. Clare-Salzer, E.M. Copeland 3rd, L.L. Moldawer and D.W. Mozingo. Glucocorticoid and Fas ligand induced mucosal lymphocyte apoptosis after burn injury. J Trauma. 49 (4): 710-6, Oct. 2000.

U. Fuhrmann, H. Hess-Stumpp, A. Cleve, G. Neef, W. Schwede, J. Hoffmann, K.H. Fritzemeier and K. Chwalisz. Synthesis and biological activity of a novel, highly potent progesterone receptor antagonist. J Med Chem. 43 (26): 5010-6, Dec. 28, 2000.

D.I. Godfrey, J.F. Purton, R.L. Boyd and T.J. Cole. Stress-free T-cell development: glucocorticoids are not obligatory. Immunol Today. 21 (12): 606-11, Dec. 2000. Review.

J.D. Graham, D.L. Bain, J.K. Richer, T.A. Jackson, L. Tung and K.B. Horwitz. Thoughts on tamoxifen resisitant breast cancer. Are coregulators the answer or just a red herring? J Steroid Biochem Mol Biol. 74 (5): 255-9, Nov. 30, 2000. Review.

T. Hagerty, W.W. Morgan, N. Elango and R. Strong. Identification of a glucocorticoidresponsive element in the promoter region of the mouse tyrosine hydroxylase gene. J Neurochem. 76 (3): 825-34, Feb. 2001.

K. Hatanaka, H. Ikegaya, I. Takase, M. Kobayashi, H. Iwase and K. Yoshida. Immobilization stress-induced thymocyte apoptosis in rats. Life Sci. 69 (2): 155-65, Jun. 1, 2001.

L.E. Haynes, M.R. Griffiths, R.E. Hyde, D.J. Barber and I.J. Mitchell. Dexamethasone induces limited apoptosis and extensive sublethal damage to specific subregions of the striatum and hippocampus: implications for mood disorders. Neuroscience. 104 (1): 57-69, 2001.

Q.J. He, Y. Ying, B. Yang and R.Y. Fang. Synergistic effects of DL111-1T combined with mifepristone on termination of early pregnancy in rhesus monkeys. Contraception. 62 (4): 189-93, Oct. 2000.

B. Hinz and R. Hirschelmann. Dexamethasone megadoses stabilize rat liver lysosomal membranes by non-genomic and genomic effects. Pharm Res. 17 (12): 1489-93, Dec. 2000.

T.J. Huang and Li P. Shirley. Dexamethasone inhibits luteinizing hormone-induced synthesis of steroidogenic acute regulatory protein in cultured rat preovulatory follicles. Biol Reprod. 64 (1): 163-70, Jan. 2001.

Y. Isohama and S.A. Rooney. Glucocorticoid enhances the response of type II cells from newborn rats to surfactant secretagogues. Biochim Biophys Acta. 1531 (3): 241-50, Apr. 30, 2001.

K. Jarukamjorn, T. Sakuma, M. Yamamoto, A. Ohara and N. Nemoto. Sex-associated expression of mouse hepatic and renal CYP2B enzymes by glucocorticoid hormones. Biochem Pharmacol 62 (2): 161-9, Jul. 15, 2001.

S. Jovanovic, S.C. Land, R.E. Olver and S.M. Wilson. Hypoxic activation of an amiloridesensitive cation conductance in alveolar epithelial cells. Biochem Biophys Res Commun. 286 (3): 622-7, Aug. 24, 2001.

M. Kabbaj, D.P. Devine, V.R. Savage and H. Akil. Neurobiological correlates of individual differences in novelty-seeking behavior in the rat: differential expression of stress-related molecules. J Neurosci. 20 (18): 6983-8, Sep. 2000.

J.D. Kalenic, R.J. Ramirez, S. Einzig, W.A. Neal and H.A. Omar. Estrogen-induced relaxation in bovine coronary arteries in vitro: evidence for a new mechanism. W V Med J. 96 (6): 617-21, Nov.-Dec. 2000.

R.H. Karas, M. van Eickels, J.P. Lydon, S. Roddy, M. Kwoun, M. Aronovitz, W.E. Baur, O. Connelly, B.W. O'Malley and M.E. Mendelsohn. A complex role for the progesterone receptor in the response to vascular injury. J Clin Invest. 108 (4): 611-8, Aug. 2001.

Y.J. Karten, C.M. Stienstra and M. Joels. Corticosteroid effects on serotonin responses in granule cells of the rat dentate gyrus. J Neuroendocrinol. 13 (3): 233-8, Mar. 2001.

L. Kim, Y.S. Weems, P.J. Bridges, B.R. LeaMaster, L. Ching, D.L. Vincent and C.W. Weems. Effects of indomethacin, luteinizing hormone (LH), prostaglandin E2 (PGE2), trilostane, mifepristone, ethamoxytriphetol (MER-25) on secretion of prostaglandin E (PGE), prostaglandin F2alpha (PGF2alpha) and progesterone by ovine corpora lutea of pregnancy or the estrous cycle. Prostaglandins Other Lipid Mediat. 63 (4): 189-203, Mar. 2001.

K. Kitayama, M. Abe, T. Kakizaki, D. Honma, R. Natsume, M. Fukaya, M. Watanabe, J. Miyazaki, M. Mishina and K. Sakimura. Purkinje cell-specific and inducible gene recombination system generated from C57BL/6 mouse ES cells. Biochem Biophys Res Commun. 281 (5): 1134-40, Mar. 16, 2001.

S. Klasen, R. Hammermann, M. Fuhrmann, D. Lindemann, K.F. Beck, J. Pfeilschifter and K. Racke. Glucocorticoids inhibit lipopolysaccharide-induced up-regulation of arginase in rat alveolar macrophages. Br J Pharmacol. 132 (6): 1349-57, Mar. 2001.

H.L. Koenig, W.H. Gong and P. Pelissier. Role of progesterone in peripheral nerve repair. Rev Reprod. 5 (3): 189-99. Review, Sep. 2000.

I. Kudawara, T. Ueda, H. Yoshikawa, T. Miyama, T. Yamamoto and Y. Nishizawa. In vivo inhibition of tumour growth by dexamethasone in murine osteosarcomas. Arv. 37 (13): 1703-8, Sep. 2001.

K.J. Laing, J. Holland, S. Bonilla, C. Cunningham and C.J. Secombes. Cloning and sequencing of caspase 6 in rainbow trout, Oncorhynchus mykiss, and analysis of its expression under conditions known to induce apoptosis. Dev Comp Immunol. 25 (4): 303-12, May 2001.

F.C. Lam, R. Liu, P. Lu, A.B. Shapiro, J.M. Renoir, F.J. Sharom and P.B. Reiner. beta-Amyloid efflux mediated by p-glycoprotein. J Neurochem. 76 (4): 1121-8, Feb. 2001.

N.A. Leo and R.H. Bonneau. Mechanisms underlying chemical sympathectomy-induced suppression of herpes simplex virus-specific cytotoxic T lymphocyte activation and function. J Neuroimmunol. 110 (1-2): 45-56, Oct. 2, 2000.

X. Li, J. Qiu, J. Wang, Y. Zhong, J. Zhu and Y. Chen. Corticosterone-induced rapid phosphorylation of p38 and JNK mitogen-activation protein kinases in PC12 cells. FEBS Lett. 492 (3): 210-4, Mar. 16, 2001.

B. Lindenthal, A.L. Holleran, T.A. Aldaghlas, B. Ruan, G.J. Schroepfer Jr., W.K. Wilson and J.K. Kelleher. Progestins block cholesterol synthesis to produce meiosis-activating sterols. FASEB J. 15 (3): 775-84, Mar. 2001.

J. S. Lonstein, P.S. Quadros and C.K. Wagner. Effects of neonatal RU486 on adult sexual, parental, and fearful behaviors in rats. Behav Neurosci. 115 (1); 58-70, Feb. 2001.

S.R. Maitra, S. Wang and M.R. El-Maghrabi. Effects of RU486 on Glu-6-pase gene expression in hemorrhage and resuscitation. Shock. 4 (5): 578-81, Nov. 2000.

S.K. Mani, A. Mitchell and B.W. O'Malley. Progesterone receptor and dopamine receptors are required in Delta 9-tetrahydrocannabinol modulation of sexual receptivity in female rats. Proc Natl Acad Sci USA. 98 (3): 1249-54, Jan. 30, 2001.

C.L. Mann and J.A. Cidlowski. Glucocorticoids regulate plasma membrane potential during rat thymocyte apoptosis in vivo and in vitro. Endocrinology. 142 (1): 421-9, Jan. 2001.

M. Matsumura, H. Kakishita, M. Suzuki, N. Banba and Y. Hattori. Dexamethasone suppresses iNOS gene expression by inhibiting NF-kappaB in vascular smooth muscle cells. Life Sci. 69 (9): 1067-77, Jul. 20, 2001.

C. Mattsson, P. Stierna and S. Hellstrom. Treatment with dexamethasone arrests the development of myringosclerosis after myringotomy. Am J Otol. 21 (6): 804-8, Nov. 2000.

D.L. McCullers and J.P. Herman. Adrenocorticosteroid receptor blockade and excitotoxic challenge regulate adrenocorticosteroid receptor mRNA levels in hippocampus. J Neurosci Res. 64 (3): 277-83, May 1, 2001.

K.J. McKeown, J.R. Challis, C. Small, L. Adamson, A.D. Bocking, M. Fraser, D. Rurak, K.W. Riggs and S.J. Lye. Altered fetal pituitary-adrenal function in the ovine fetus treated with RU486 and meloxicam, an inhibitor of prostaglandin synthase-II. Biol Reprod. 63 (6): 1899-904, Dec. 2000.

V.E. Mick, O.A. Itani, R.W. Loftus, R.F. Husted, T.J. Schmidt and C.P. Thomas. The alphasubunit of the epithelial sodium channel is an aldosterone-induced transcript in mammalian collecting ducts, and this transcriptional response is mediated via distinct cis-elements in the 5' – flanking region of the gene. Mol Endocrinol. 15 (4): 575-88, Apr. 2001.

C.A. Mikosz, D.R. Brickley, M.S. Sharkey, T.W. Moran, S.D. Conzen. Glucocorticoid receptormediated protection from apoptosis is associated with induction of the serine/threonine survival kinase gene, sgk-1. J Biol Chem. 276 (20): 16649-54, May 18, 2001.

T. Minamino, V. Gaussin, F.J. DeMayo and M.D. Schneider. Inducible gene targeting in postnatal myocardium by cardiac-specific expression of a hormone-activated Cre fusion protein. Circ Res. 88 (6): 587-92, Mar. 30, 2001.

T. Mori, T. Tani, K. Hanasawa and M. Kodama. Effects of zinic deficiency and corticosterone elevation on bone marrow in rats. Eur Surg Res 33 (2): 92-8, 2001.

D.D. Murphy and M. Segal. Progesterone prevents estradiol-induced dendritic spine formation in cultured hippocampal neurons. Neuroendocrinology. 72 (3): 133-43, Sep. 2000.

S. Mussche and K. D'Herde. Contribution of progesterone, follicle stimulating hormone and glucocorticoids survival of serum-free cultured granulose cell explants. J Endocrinol. 169 (2): 321-31, May 2001.

D.A. Nguyen, A.F. Parlow and M.C. Neville. Hormonal regulation of tight junction closure in the mouse mammary epithelium during the transition from pregnancy to lactation. J Endocrinol. 170 (2): 347-56, Aug. 2001.

C.M. O'Sullivan, S.Y. Liu, S.L. Rancourt and D.E. Rancourt. Regulation of the strypsin-related proteinase ISP2 by progesterone in endometrial gland epithelium during implantation in mice. Reproduction. 122 (2): 235-44, Aug. 2001.

S. Palmer, C.A. Campen, G.F. Allan, P. Rybcznski, D. Haynes-Johnson, A. Hutchins, P. Kraft, M. Kiddoe, M. Lai, E. Lombardi, P. Pedersen, G. Hodgen, D.W. Combs. Nonsteroidal progesterone receptor ligands with unprecedented receptor selectivity. J Steroid Biochem Mol Biol. 75 (1): 33-42, Dec. 1, 2000.

J. Pan, D. Ju, Q. Wang, M. Zhang, D. Xia, L. Zhang, H. Yu and X. Cao. Dexamethasone inhibits the antigen presentation of dendritic cells in MHC class II pathway. Immunol Lett. 76 (3): 153-61, Apr. 2, 2001.

C.M. Pariante, B.D. Pearce, T.L. Pisell, C. Su and A.H. Miller. The steroid receptor antagonists RU40555 and RU486 activate glucocorticoid receptor translocation and are not excreted by the steroid hormones transporter L929 cells. J Endocrinol. 169 (2): 309-20, May 2001.

J. Parra, B. Cantabrana and A. Hidalgo. Mechanism of mifepristone-induced spasmolytic effect on isolated rat uterus. Life Sci. 66 (26): 2563-9, May 19, 2000.

C. Paul, I. Seiliez, J.P. Thissen and A. Le Cam. Regulation of expression of the rat SOCS-3 gene in hepatocytes by growth hormone, interleukin-6 and glucocorticoids mRNA analysis and promoter characterization. Eur J Biochem. 267 (19): 5849-57, Oct. 2000.

J.J. Peluso, G. Fernandez, A. Pappalardo and B.A. White. Characterization of a putative membrane receptor for progesterone in rat granulosa cells. Biol Reprod 65 (1): 94-101, Jul. 2001.

C.G. Penner, G. Gang, C. Wray, J.E. Fischer and P.O. Hasselgren. The transcription factors NFkappaba and AP-1 are differentially regulated in skeletal muscle during sepsis. Biochem Biophys Res Commun. 281 (5): 1331-6, Mar. 16, 2001.

M.G. Peters, S. Vanzulli, P.V. Elizalde, E.H. Charreau and M.M. Goin. Effects of antiprogestins RU486 and ZK98299 on the expression of cell cycle proteins of a medroxyprogesterone acetate (MPA)-induced murine mammary tumor. Oncol Rep. 8 (2): 445-9, Mar.-Apr. 2001.

A.M. Raafat, L.J. Hofseth and S.Z. Haslam. Proliferative effects of combination estrogen and progesterone replacement therapy on the normal postmenopausal mammary gland in a murine model. Am J Obstet Gynecol. 184 (3): 340-9, Feb. 2001.

H. Sakamoto, K. Ukena and K. Tsutsui. Effects of progesterone synthesized de novo in the developing Purkinje cell on its dendritic growth and synaptogenesis. J Neurosci. 21 (16): 6221-32, Aug. 15, 2001.

J.E. Sanchez-Criado, C. Bellido, R. Aguilar and J.C. Garrido-Gracia. Antiprogestin RU486 blunts the stimulatory effect of galanin on LH secretion from rat pituitaries in vitro in an estrous cycle stage-dependent manner. Neurosci Lett. 305 (1): 73-5, Jun. 1, 2001.

J.C. Santoro, G. Harris and A. Sitlani. Colorimetric detection of glutamine synthetase-catalyzed transferase activity in glucocorticoid-treated skeletal muscle cells. Anal Biochem. 289 (1): 18-25, Feb. 1, 2001.

D.A. Scheuer and S.W. Mifflin. Glucocorticoids modulate baroreflex control of renal sympathetic nerve activity. Am J Physiol Regul Integr Comp Physiol. 280 (5): R1440-9, May 2001.

P. Schmidt, F. Holsboer and D. Spengler. Beta(2)-adrenergic receptors potentiate glucocorticoid receptor transactivation via G protein beta gamma-subunits and the phosphoinositide 3-kinase pathway. Mol Endocrinol. 15 (4): 553-64, Apr. 2001.

FDACDER000121

N. Schneider, S. Lanz, R. Ramer, D. Schaefer and M. Goppelt-Struebe. Up-regulation of cyclooxygenase-1 in neuroblastoma cell lines by retinoic acid and corticosteroids. J Neurochem. 77 (2): 416-24, Apr. 2001.

K. Schorr and P.A. Furth. Induction of bcl-xL expression in mammary epithelial cells is glucocorticoid-dependent but not signal transducer and activator or transcription 5-dependent. Cancer Res. 60 (21): 5950-3, Nov. 1, 2000.

L.B. Schwartz, F. Naftolin, C.R. Lyttle, A.S. Penzias, E.L. Meaddough and H.J. Kliman. Mouse ascites golgi (MAG) mucin expression and regulation by progesterone in the rat uterus. J Soc Gynecol Investig. 8 (4): 216-23, Jul-Aug. 2001.

J. Sengupta and D. Ghosh. Role of progesterone on peri-implantation stage endometriumembryo interactive in the primate. Steroids. 65 (10-11): 753-62, Oct.-Nov. 2000. Review.

J. Shentu, H. Zhou, Q. He, L. Wang and R. Fang. Effects of DL111-IT or combined with RU486 on uterine polyamines biosynthesis in rats during early gestation. Contraception 63 (5): 283-7, May 2001.

N. Sienna, D.E. Larson and B.H. Sells. Dexamethasone stimulates ribosomal protein L32 gene transcription in rat myoblasts. Mol Cell Endocrinol. 167 (1-2): 127-37, Sep. 2000.

O.D. Slayden, N.R. Nayak, K.A. Burton, K. Chwalisz, S.T. Cameron, H.O. Critchley, D.T. Baird and R.M. Brenner. Progesterone antagonists increase androgen receptor expression in the rhesus macaque and human endometrium. J Clin Endocrinol Metab. 86 (6): 2668-79, Jun. 2001.

F. Spencer, L. Chi and M. Zhu. Temporal relationships among uterine pituitary adenylate cyclase-activating polypeptide, decidual prolactin-related protein and progesterone receptor mRNAs expressions during decidualization and gestation in rats. Comp Biochem Physiol C Toxicol Pharmacol. 129 (1): 25-34, May 2001.

I.M. Spitz and K. Chwalisz. Progesterone receptor modulators and progesterone antagonists in women's health. Steroids. 65 (10-11): 807-15, Oct.-Nov. 2000. Review.

I.M. Spitz, P.F. Van Look and H.J. Coelingh Bennink. The use of progesterone antagonists and progesterone receptor modulators in contraception. Steroids. 65 (10-11): 817-23, Oct.-Nov. 2000. Review.

M. Tebar, F.H. de Jong and J.E. Sanchez-Criado. Regulation of inhibin/activin subunits and follistatin mRNA expression in the rat pituitary at early estrus. Life Sci. 67 (21): 2549-62, Oct. 13, 2000.

S.Y. Tsai, K. Schillinger and X. Ye. Adenovirus-mediated transfer of regulable gene expression. Curr Opin Mol Ther. 2 (5): 515-23, Oct. 2000. Review. J.L. Turgeon and D.W. Waring. Progesterone regulation of the progesterone receptor in rat gonadotropes. Endocrinology. 141 (9): 3422-9, Sep. 2000.

S.A. Wadekar, D. Li, S. Periyasamy and E.R. Sanchez. Inhibition of heat shock transcription factor by GR. Mol Endocrinol. 15 (8): 1396-410, Aug. 2001.

J.S. Won and H.W. Suh. The comparative analysis of proenkephalin mRNA expression induced by cholera toxin and pertussis toxin in primary cultured rat cortical astrocytes. Brain Res Mol Brain Res. 88 (1-2): 83-93, Mar. 31, 2001.

F.T. Wunderlich, H. Wildner, K. Rajewsky and F. Edenhofer. New variants of inducible Cre recombinase: a novel mutant of Cre-PR fusion protein exhibits enhanced sensitivity and an expanded range of inducibility. Nucleic Acids Res. 29 (10): E47, May 15, 2001.

J. Xu, G.M. Kim, S.H. Ahmed, J. Xu, P. Yan, X.M. Xu and C.Y. Hsu. Glucocorticoid receptormediated suppression of activator protein-1 activation and matrix metalloproteinase expression after spinal cord injury. J Neurosci. 21 (1): 92-7, Jan. 1, 2001.

M. Xu, J.H. Urban, J.W. Hill and J.E. Levine. Regulation of hypothalamic neuropeptide Y Y1 receptor gene expression during the estrous cycle: role of progesterone receptors. Endocrinology. 141 (9): 3319-27, Sep. 2000.

B. Yang, H.J. Zhou, Q.J. He and R.Y. Fang. Termination of early pregnancy in the mouse, rat and hamster with DL111-IT and RU486. Contraception. 62 (4): 211-6, Oct. 2000.

H. Yazawa, I. Sasagawa, Y. Suzuki and T. Nakada. Glucocorticoid hormone can suppress apoptosis of rat testicular germ cells induced by testicular ischemia. Fertil. Steril. 75 (5): 980-5, May 2001.

B. Zhao, S.S. Chua, M.M. Burcin, S.D. Reynolds, B.R. Stripp, R.A. Edwards, M.J. Finegold, S.Y. Tsai and F.J. DeMayo. Phenotypic consequences of lung-specific inducible expression of FGF-3. Proc Natl Acad Sci USA. 98 (10): 5898-903, May 8, 2001.

Y.F. Zhou, M. Matsuda, T. Mori, S. Sakamoto and T. Mitamura. Effects of mifepristone (RU486) treatment on the development of uterine adenomyosis induced by pituitary grafting in mice. Life Sci. 67 (22): 2713-20, Oct. 20, 2000.

ATTACHMENT 9

Contraception 2000 Oct;62(4):189-93

Synergistic effects of DL111-IT combined with mifepristone on termination of early pregnancy in rhesus monkeys.

He QJ, Ying Y, Yang B, Fang RY.

Department of Pharmacology, College of Pharmacy, Zhejiang University, Hangzhou, People's Republic of China.

The objectives of this study were to determine the synergistic effects of DL111-IT in combination with mifepristone (RU486) on termination of early pregnancy in rhesus monkeys. Pregnancy was confirmed by tactile sensation of pregnant uterus via anus with finger and ultrasound examination. Pregnancy termination was obtained with vaginal bleeding and abortion materials including fetuses and placentae after treatment. With multiple doses of DL111-IT or RU486 given alone between d24 and d50 of gestation, pregnancy arrests were obtained in 40% (2/5) of monkeys treated with DL111-IT intramuscularly (im) (25 mg x kg(-1) x d(-1) x 3 days), in 20% (1/5) of monkeys treated with 9 mg x kg(-1) x d(-1) x 2 days, and 4.5 mg x kg(-1) on day 3 with RU486 intragastrically (ig). DL111-IT (25 mg x kg(-1) on day 1, im) in combination with RU486 (the same treatment as above) resulted in 100% (10/10) termination of pregnancy and uterine bleeding lasted 6.6 +/- 1.3 days. RU486 (as above treatment) in combination with misoprostal (Miso, 109 microg x kg(-1) on day 3, ig) showed 71.4% (5/7) termination of pregnancy, and uterine bleeding lasted 12.9 +/- 9.6 days. The synergistic effect of DL111-IT plus RU486 plus Miso does in rhesus monkeys.

PMID: 11137073 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Biol Reprod 2000 Dec;63(6):1899-904

Altered fetal pituitary-adrenal function in the ovine fetus treated with RU486 and meloxicam, an inhibitor of prostaglandin synthase-II.

McKeown KJ, Challis JR, Small C, Adamson L, Bocking AD, Fraser M, Rurak D, Riggs KW, Lye SJ.

MRC Group in Fetal and Neonatal Health and Development, Department of Physiology, University of Toronto, Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5S 1A8. kevin.mckeown@utoronto.ca

Term and preterm labor are associated with increased fetal hypothalamic-pituitary-adrenal (HPA) activation and synthesis of prostaglandins (PGs) generated through the increased expression of prostaglandin H synthase-II (PGHS-II) in the placenta. Inhibition of PGHS-II has been advocated as a means of producing uterine tocolysis, but the effects of such treatment on fetal endocrine functions have not been thoroughly examined. Because PGE(2) is known to activate the fetal HPA axis, we hypothesized that administration of meloxicam, a PGHS-II inhibitor, to sheep in induced labor would suppress fetal HPA function. Chronically catheterized pregnant ewes were treated with RU486, a progesterone receptor antagonist, to produce active labor, and then treated with either high-maintenance-dose meloxicam, graded-maintenance-dose meloxicam, or a saline infusion. Maternal uterine contraction frequency increased 24 h after the RU486 injection and the animals were in active labor by 48 +/- 4 h. RU486 injection led to increased concentrations of PGE(2), ACTH, and cortisol in the fetal circulation, and increased concentrations of 13,14 dihydro 15-ketoprostaglandin F(2 alpha) (PGFM) in the maternal circulation. Uterine activity was inhibited within 12 h of beginning meloxicam infusion at both infusion regimes. During meloxicam infusion there were significant decreases in fetal plasma PGE(2), ACTH, and cortisol concentrations, and PGFM concentrations in maternal plasma. In control animals, frequency of uterine contractions, maternal plasma PGFM, fetal plasma PGE(2), ACTH, and cortisol concentrations increased after RU486 administration, and continued to rise during saline infusion until delivery occurred. We conclude that RU486-provoked labor in sheep is associated with activation of fetal HPA function, and that this is attenuated during meloxicam treatment to a level considered compatible with pregnancy maintenance.

PMID: 11090463 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

ATTACHMENT 10

LITERATURE UPDATE - CLINICAL

The present update to the bibliography was generated by a search performed using PubMed with the keywords mifepristone and human from all sources and languages. This bibliography covers the period of September 28, 2000 to September 27, 2001.

The bibliography generated by this strategy includes published articles on clinical investigations on mifepristone. The references are organized alphabetically by author. In addition, the references are subdivided into several sections: 1. Medical Abortion, 2. Long-term Treatment; 3. Termination for Fetal Anomaly or Death; 4. Cervical Ripening and 5. Other (Contraception, Ectopic Pregnancy, Biochemical Effects, etc.). The reprints of these articles will be supplied upon request.

1. Medical Abortion

ACOG Practice Bulletin. Clinical management guidelines for obstetrician-gynecologists – Medical management of abortion. Obstet Gynecol. 97 (4): Suppl 1-13, Apr. 2001.

R.H. Allen, C. Westhoff, L. De Nonno, S.L. Fielding and E.A. Schaff. Curettage after mifepristone-induced abortion: frequency, timing and indications. Obstet Gynecol. 98 (1): 101-6, Jul 2001.

Z.K. Anjum. Termination of early pregnancy with a reduced oral dose of mifepristone and vaginal misoprostol. S Afr Med J. 90 (9): 889-91, Sep. 2000.

S. Aschkenazi, T. Levy and Z. Ben-Rafael. Mifepristone-a new antiprogesterone in obstetrics and gynecology. Harefuah. 140 (5): 429-34, May 2001. Review. Hebrew. (Abstract not available.)

P.W. Ashok, G.M. Flett and A. Templeton. Mifepristone versus vaginally administered misoprostol for cervical priming before first-trimester termination of pregnancy: a randomized, controlled study. Am J Obstet Gynecol. 183 (4): 998-1002, 2000.

E. Aubeny. Letter to the Editor. A two-stage increase in the dose of misoprostol improves the efficacy of medical abortion with mifepristone and prostaglandins. Eur J Contracept Reprod Health Care. 6 (1): 54-5, 2001.

E. Aubeny and G. Chatellier. A randomized comparison of mifepristone and self-administered oral or vaginal misoprostol for early abortion. Eur J Contracept Reprod Health Care. 5 (3): 171-6, Sep. 2000.

M. Balter. Profile. For 'father' of abortion drug, vindication at last. Science. 290 (5489): 39, 2000. (Abstract not available.)

J. Bartley, S. Tong, D. Everington and D.T. Baird. Parity is a major determinant of success rate in medical abortion: a retrospective analysis of 3161 consecutive cases of early medical abortion treated with reduced doses of mifepristone and vaginal gemeprost. Contraception. 62 (6): 297-303, 2000.

C. Boorer and J. Murty. Experiences of termination of pregnancy in a stand-alone clinic situation. J. Family Planning and Reproductive Health Care. 27 (2): 97-8, 2001.

A. Bureau and I. Dagousset. IVG médcamenteuse: possibly chez la plupart des femmes. La Revue du Praticien 506: 1377-1381, Sep. 2000. French. (Abstract in English not available.)

M. Bygdeman, K. Gemzell Danielsson, L. Marions and M.-L. Swahn. Pregnancy termination. Steroids. 65 (10-11): 801-5, Oct.- Nov. 2000. Review.

J.L. Carbonell, A. Velazco, L. Varela, R. Tanda, C. Sanchez, S. Barambio, S. Chami, F. Valero, S. Aragon and J. Mari. Misoprostol for abortion at 9-12 weeks' gestation in adolescents. Eur J Contracept Reprod Health Care. 6 (1): 39-45, 2001.

T.J. Child, J. Thomas, M. Rees and I.Z. MacKenzie. A comparative study of surgical and medical procedures: 932 pregnancy terminations up to 63 days gestation. Hum Reprod. 16 (1): 67-71, 2001.

K. Coyaji, B. Elul, U. Krishna, S. Otiv, S. Ambardekar, A. Bopardikar, V. Raote, C. Ellertson and B. Winikoff. Mifepristone abortion outside the urban research hospital setting in India. Lancet. 357 (9250): 120-2, 2001.

M.D. Creinin, H.C. Pymar and J.L. Schwartz. Mifepristone 100 mg in abortion regimens. Obstet Gynecol. 98 (3): 434-439, Sep 2001.

M.D. Creinin, J.L. Schwartz, H.C. Pymar and W. Fink. Efficacy of mifepristone followed on the same day by misoprostol for early termination of pregnancy: report of a randomized trial. BJOG. 108 (5): 469-73, 2001.

R.M. DeHart and M.S. Morehead. Mifepristone. Ann Pharmacother. 35 (6): 707-19, Jun. 2001.

L.J. De Nonno, C. Westhoff, S. Fielding and E. Schaff. Timing of pain and bleeding after mifepristone-induced abortion. Contraception. 62 (6): 305-9, 2000.

B. Elul, S. Hajri, N.N. Ngoc, C. Ellertson, C.B. Slama, E. Pearlman and B. Winikoff. Can women in less-developed countries use a simplified medical abortion regimen? Lancet. 357 (9266): 1402-5, 2001.

A.B. Golberg, M.B. Greenberg and P.D. Darney. Misoprostol and pregnancy. N Engl J Med. 344 (1): 38-47, Jan. 4, 2001. Review. (Abstract not available.)

S. Gottlieb. Abortion pill is approved for sale in the United States. BMJ. 321 (7265): 851, Oct. 7, 2000. (Abstract not available.)

R.W. Hale and S. Zinberg. Use of misoprostol in pregnancy. N Engl Med. 344 (1): 59-60, 2001. (Abstract not available.)

D. Hollander. Most abortion patients view their experience favorably, but medical abortion gets a higher rating than surgical. Family Planning Perspectives 32 (5): 264 Sep./Oct. 2000.

D.A. Hussar. Mifepristone-controversy, beliefs, and politics – issues for everyone. Ann Pharmacother. 35 (3): 373-5, 2001. (Abstract not available.)

Indian Council of Medical Research (ICMR) Task Force Study. A multicentre randomized comparative clinical trial of 200 mg RU486 (mifepristone) single dose followed by either 5 mg 9-methylene PGE(2) gel (meteneprost) or 600 μ g oral PGE(1) (misoprostol) for termination of early pregnancy within 28 days of missed menstrual period. Contraception. 62 (3): 125-30, Sep. 2000.

L. Jin, G. Fan and X. Yang. Clinical study of four cases with malignant gestation trophoblastic tumor after mifepristone abortion. Zhonghua Fu Chan Ke Za Zhi. 35 (12): 733-5, Dec. 2000. Chinese.

U.B. Knudsen. First trimester abortion with mifepristone and vaginal misoprostol. Contraception 63: 247-50, 2001.

T.B. Lindhardt, L.R. Walker, N.S. Colov and P.S. Hansen. Vasospastic angina pectoris following abortion induced by prostaglandin analogue. Ugeskr Laeger. 162 (48): 6536-7, Nov. 2000. Danish. (English Abstract Only)

K. Mahler. Early medical abortion regimens using different dosages of mifepristone are equally successful. Family Planning Perspectives 32 (5): 259, Sep./Oct. 2000.

J.L. Miller. Abortifacient drug approved for restricted, physician-only distribution. Am J Health Syst Pharm. 57 (21): 1940, Nov. 1, 2000. (Abstract not available.)

S. Nemecek. The second abortion pill. Sci Am. 283 (6): 16, 18, 2000. (Abstract not available.)

S.W. Ngai, O.S. Tang and P.C. Ho. Randomized comparison of vaginal (200 microg every 3 h) and oral (400 microg every 3 h) misoprostol when combined with mifepristone in termination of second trimester pregnancy. Hum Reprod. 15 (10): 2205-8, 2000.

S. Omokanye. Time to relax the rules about administration of mifepristone. J Family Planning and Reproductive Health Care. 27 (2): 102, 2001.

H.C. Pymar, M.D. Creinin and J.L. Schwartz. Mifepristone followed on the same day by vaginal misoprostol for early abortion. Contraception. 64 (2): 87-92, 2001.

L.W. Rice. What's new in obstetrics and gynecology. J Am Coll Surg. 193 (1): 60-5, Jul. 2001. Review. (Abstract not available.)

C.R. Richardson. Can vaginal misoprostol be administered 1 to 3 days after mifepristone without loss of efficacy or an increase in adverse events? J Fam Pract. 50 (1): 9, Jan. 2001.

G. Rudd. Mifepristone: less obvious adverse effects. Ann Pharmacother. 35 (3): 381-2, 2001. (Abstract not available.)

E. A. Schaff, S.L. Fielding and C. Westhoff. Randomized trial of oral versus vaginal misoprostol at one day after mifepristone for early medical abortion. Contraception. 64 (2): 81-85, 2001.

E.A. Schaff, S.L. Fielding, S. Eisinger and L. Stadalius. Mifepristone and misoprostol for early abortion when no gestational sac is present. Contraception 63: 251-4, 2001.

E.A. Schaff, S.L. Fielding, C. Westhoff, C. Ellertson, S.H. Eisinger, L.S. Stadalius and L. Fuller. Vaginal misoprostol administered 1, 2, or 3 days after mifepristone for early medical abortion: A randomized trial. JAMA. 284 (15): 1948-53, 2000.

B. Sibbald. Will Canada follow US lead on RU-486? CMAJ. 164 (1): 82, Jan. 9, 2001. (Abstract not available.)

P. Slade, S. Heke, J. Fletcher and P. Stewart. Termination of pregnancy: Patients' perception of care. J Family Planning and Reproductive Health Care. 27 (2): 72-77, 2001.

R. SoRelle. Abortion pill gets FDA approval. Circulation. 102 (15): E9030-1, 2000.

O.S. Tang, K.J. Thong and D.T. Baird. Second trimester medical abortion with mifepristone and gemeprost: a review of 956 cases. Contraception. 64 (1): 29-32, Jul. 2001.

A. Tufts. Abortion pill withdrawn in Germany after financial losses. BMJ. 321 (7268): 1041, Oct. 28, 2000.

C. Westhoff, R. Dasmahapatra and E. Schaff. Analgesia during at-home use of misoprostol as part of a medical abortion regimen. Contraception. 62 (6): 311-4, 2000.

J.C. Willke. Mifepristone – a boom or a bust? Ann Pharmacother. 35 (3): 376-80, 2001. (Abstract not available.)

World Health Organization Task Force on Post-ovulatory Methods for Fertility Regulation. Medical abortion at 57 to 63 days' gestation with a lower dose of mifepristone and gemeprost: a randomized controlled trial. Acta Obstet Gynecol Scand. 80 (5): 447-451, 2001. World Health Organization Task Force on Post-ovulatory Methods for Fertility Regulation. Lowering the does of mifepristone and gemeprost for early abortion: A randomized controlled trial. BJOG. 108 (7): 738-42, Jul. 2001.

J. Xu, H. Chen, T. Ma and X. Wu. Termination of early pregnancy in the scarred uterus with mifepristone and misoprostol. Int J Gynaecol Obstet. 72 (3): 245-51, Mar. 2001.

No authors listed. Mifepristone for termination of early pregnancy. FDA Consum. 34 (6): 7 Nov.-Dec. 2000. (Abstract not available.)

No authors listed. Mifepristone (RU 486). Med Lett Drugs Ther. 42 (1091): 101-2, Oct. 30, 2000. (Abstract not available.)

2. Long-term Treatment with Mifepristone

J.W. Chu, D.F. Matthias, J. Belanoff, A. Schatzberg, A.R. Hoffman and D. Feldman. Successful long-term treatment of refractory Cushing's disease with high-dose mifepristone (RU-486). J Clin Endocrinol Metab. 86 (8): 3568-73, Aug. 2001.

S.M. Grunberg, C. Rankin, J. Townsend, J. Ahmadi, L. Feun, R. Friedericks, C. Russell, F. Kabbinauar, G.R. Barger, K.J. Stelzer, Southwest Oncology Group, Burlington, VT; Eastern Cooperative Oncology Group, Brookline, MA. Phase III Double-Blind Randomized Placebo-Controlled Study of Mifepristone (RU) for the Termination of Unrespectable Meningioma. Program/Proceedings American Society of Clinical Oncology, Thirty-Seventh Annual Meeting, May 12-15, 2001, San Francisco, CA, Vol. 20, page 56a, Poster 222.

O. Heikinheimo, S. Ranta, S. Grunberg and I.M. Spitz. Alterations in sex steroids and gonadotropins in post-menopausal women subsequent to long-term mifepristone administration. Steroids. 65 (10-11): 831-6, Oct.-Nov. 2000.

R.S. Newfield, I.M. Spitz, C. Isacson and MI New. Long-term mifepristone (RU-486) therapy resulting in massive benign endometrial hyperplasia. Clin Endocrinol (Oxf). 54 (3): 399-404, Mar. 2001.

3. Termination for Fetal Anomaly or Death

P.A. le Roux, G.S. Pahal, L. Hoffman, R. Nooh, H. El-Refaey and C.H. Rodeck. Second trimester termination of pregnancy for fetal anomaly or death: comparison of mifepristone/misoprostol to gemeprost. Eur J Obstet Gynecol Reprod Biol. 95 (1): 52-4, Mar. 2001.

4. Cervical Ripening

P. Giacalone, J. Daures, J. Faure, P. Boulot, B. Hedon and F. Laffargue. The effects of mifepristone on uterine sensitivity to oxytocin and on fetal heart rate patterns. Eur J Obstet Gynecol Reprod Biol. 97 (1): 30-4, Jul. 2001.

D.A. Wing, M.J. Fassett and D.R. Mishell. Mifepristone for preinduction cervical ripening beyond 41 weeks' gestation: A randomized controlled trial. Obstet Gynecol. 96 (4): 543-8, Oct. 2000.

5. Other (Contraception, Ectopic Pregnancy, Biochemical Effects, etc.)

R.V. Abruzzese, D. Godin, V. Mehta, J.L. Perrard, M. French, W. Nelson, G. Howell, M. Coleman, B.W. O'Malley and J.L. Nordstrom. Ligand-dependent regulation of vascular endothelial growth factor and erythropoietin expression by a plasmid-based autoinducible GeneSwith system. Mol Ther. 2 (3): 276-87, Sep. 2000.

P. Alban, C. Hurd, S. Dinda, N. Khattree and V.K. Moudgil. Differential regulation of retinoblatoma protein by hormonal and antihormonal agents in T47D breast cancer cells. J Steroid Biochem Mol Biol. 77 (2-3): 135-41, May 2001.

M.J. Arin, M.A. Longley, X.J. Wang and D.R. Roop. Focal activation of a mutant allele defines the role of stem cells in mosaic skin disorders. J Cell Biol. 152 (3): 645-9, Feb. 5, 2001.

P.W. Ashok, P.T. Wagaarachchi, G.M. Flett and A. Templeton. Mifepristone as a late postcoital contraceptive. Hum Reprod. 16 (1): 72-75, Jan. 2001.

N. Bandi and U.B. Kompella. Budesonide reduces vascular endothelial growth factor secretion and expression in airway (Calu-1) and alveolar (A549) epithelial cells. Eur J Pharmacol. 425 (2): 109-16, Aug. 10, 2001.

T. Cao, M.A. Longley, X.J. Wang and D.R. Roop. An inducible mouse model for epidermolysis bullosa simplex: implications for gene therapy. J Cell Biol. 152 (3): 651-6, Feb. 5, 2001.

L. Cheng, H. Zhu, A. Wang, F. Ren and A. Glasier. Once a month administration of mifepristone improves bleeding patterns in women using subdermal contraceptive implants releasing levonorgestrel. Hum Reprod. 15 (9): 1969-72, Sep. 2000.

K. Chwalisz, R.M. Brenner, U.U. Fuhrmann, H. Hess-Stumpp and W. Elger. Antiproliferative effects of progesterone antagonists and progesterone receptor modulators on the endometrium. Steroids. 65 (10-11): 741-51, Oct.-Nov. 2000.

H.B. Croxatto, L. Devoto, M. Durand, E. Ezcurra, F. Larrea, C. Nagle, M.E. Ortiz, D. Vantman, M. Vega and H. von Hertzen. Mechanism of action of hormonal preparations used for emergency contraception: A review of the literature. Contraception. 63 (3): 111-21, Mar. 2001.

K.G. Danielsson, M. Bygdeman and L. Marions. Knowledge about "morning-after pill" should be spread to all women. Comments on meta-analysis of postcoital contraception. Lakartidningen. 97 (50): 5892-5, Dec. 13, 2000. Review. Swedish. A. Dovio, M.L. Sartori, R.G. Masera and A. Angeli. Inhibitory effect of physiological concentrations of cortisol but not estradiol on interleukin (IL)-6 production by human osteoblast-like cell lines with different constitutive IL-6 expression. Cytokine. 15 (1): 47-52, Jul. 7, 2001.

V. Ellerkamp, T.J. Musholt, S.H. Klebs, P.B. Musholt, G.F. Scheumann, J. Klempnauer and M.W. Hoffmann. A murine model of allogeneic adrenocortical cell transplantation: perspectives the treatment of Addison's disease in humans. Surgery. 128 (6): 999-1006, Dec. 2000.

K.C. Falkner, J.A. Pinaire, G.H. Xiao, T.E. Geoghegan and R.A. Prough. Regulation of the rat glutathione S-transferase A2 gene by glucocorticoids: involvement of both the glucocorticoid and pregnane X receptors. Mol Pharmacol. 60 (3): 611-9, Sep. 2001.

D.I. Godfrey, J.F. Purton, R.L. Boyd and T.J. Cole. Stress-free T-cell development: glucocorticoids are not obligatory. Immunol Today. 21 (12): 606-11, Dec. 2000. Review.

J.D. Graham, D.L. Bain, J.K. Richer, T.A. Jackson, L. Tung and K.B. Horwitz. Thoughts on tamoxifen resistant breast cancer. Are coregulators the answer or just a red herring? J Steroid Biochem Mol Biol. 74 (5): 255-9, Nov. 30, 2000. Review.

D.K. Hapangama, A. Brown, A.F. Glasier and D.T. Baird. Feasibility of administering mifepristone as a once a month contraceptive pill. Hum Reprod. 16 (6): 1145-50, Jun. 2001.

S.M. Hyder, C. Chiappetta and G.M. Stancel. Pharmacological and endogenous progestins induce vascular endothelial growth factor expression in human breast cancer cells. Int J Cancer. 92 (4): 469-73, May 15, 2001.

S.M. Hyder, J.C. Huang, Z. Nawaz, H. Boettger-Tong, S. Makela, C. Chiappeta and G.M. Stancel. Regulation of vascular endothelial growth factor expression by estrogens and progestins. Environ Health Perspect. 108 Suppl 5: 785-90, Oct. 2000. Review.

K. Ito, E. Jazrawi, B. Corsio, P.J. Barnes and I.M. Adcock. P65-activated histone acetyltransferase activity is repressed by glucocorticoids: mifepristone fails to recruit HDAC₂ to the p65-HAT complex. J Biol Chem. 276 (32): 30208-15. Aug. 10, 2001.

B.M. Kacinski, M.B. Flick and E. Sapi. RU-486 can abolish glucocorticoid-induced increases in CSF-1 receptor expression in primary human breast carcinoma specimens. J Soc Gynecol Investig. 8 (2): 114-6, Mar.-Apr. 2001.

K.D. Kim, Y.K. Choe, I.S. Choe and J.S. Lim. Inhibition of glucocorticoid-mediated, caspaseindependent dendritic cell death by CD40 activation. J Leukoc Biol. 69 (3): 426-34, Mar. 2001.

J.G. Klijn, B. Setyono-Han and J.A. Foekens. Progesterone antagonists and progesterone receptor modulators in the treatment of breast cancer. Steroids. 65 (10-11): 825-30, Oct.-Nov. 2000. Review

H. Koshiba, J. Kitawaki, H. Ishihara, N. Kado, I. Kusuki, K. Tsukamoto and H. Honjo. Progesterone inhibition of functional leptin receptor mRNA expression in human endometrium. Mol Hum Reprod. 7 (6): 567-72, Jun. 2001.

K. Koyama, K. Myles, R. Smith and Z. Krozowski. Expression of the 11beta-hydroxysteroid dehydrogenase type II enzyme in breast tumors and modulation of activity and cell growth in PMC42 cells. J Steroid Biochem Mol Viol. 76 (1-5): 153-9, Jan.-Mar. 2001.

K.J. Laing, J. Holland, S. Bonilla, C. Cunningham and C.J. Secombes. Cloning and sequencing of caspase 6 in rainbow trout, Oncorhynchus mykiss, and analysis of its expression under conditions known to induce apoptosis. Dev Comp Immunol. 25 (4): 303-12, May 2001.

F.C. Lam, R. Liu, P. Lu, A.B. Shapiro, J.M. Renoir, F.J. Sharom and P.B. Reiner. Beta-Amyloid efflux medicated by p-glycoprotein. J Neurochem. 76 (4): 1121-8, Feb. 2001.

M. Lasa, M. Brook, J. Saklatvala and A.R. Clark. Dexamethasone destabilizes cyclooxygenase 2 mRNA by inhibiting mitogen-activated protein kinase p38. Mol Cell Biol. 21 (3): 771-80, Feb. 2001.

B. Lindenthal, A.L. Holleran, T.A. Aldaghlas, B. Ruan, G.J. Schroepfer Jr., W.K. Wilson and J.K. Kelleher. Progestins block cholesterol synthesis to produce meiosis-activation sterols. FASEB J. 15 (3): 775-84, Mar. 2001.

F. Lopez de Castro, N. Campos Campos, S. Castillo Portales and F. Rodriguez Alcala. After levonorgestrel, will mifepristone (RU486) be the next day-after pill? Alten Primaria. 27 (5): 367-8, Mar. 31, 2001. (Review in Spanish)

C.L. Mann and J.A. Cidlowski. Glucocorticoids regulate plasma membrane potential during rat thymocyte apoptosis in vivo and in vitro. Endocrinology. 142 (1): 421-9, Jan. 2001.

A.C. McDonnel and W.J. Murdoch. High-dose progesterone inhibition of urokinase secretion and invasive activity by SKOV-3 ovarian carcinoma cells: evidence for a receptor-independent nongenomic effect on the plasma membrane. J Steroid Biochem Mol Biol. 78 (2): 185-91, Aug. 2001.

A.L. McGaughran. Informed consent and emergency contraception. Am Fam Physician. 62 (10): 2219-20, Nov. 15, 2000.

V.E. Mick, O.A. Itani, R.W. Loftus, R.F. Husted, T.J. Schmidt and G.P. Thomas. The alphasubunit of the epithelial sodium channel is an aldosterone-induced transcript in mammalian collecting ducts, and this transcriptional response is mediated via distinct cis-elements in the 5'flanking region of the gene. Mol Endocrinol. 15 (4): 575-88, Apr. 2001.

C.A. Mikosz, D.R. Brickley, M.S. Sharkey, T.W. Moran and S.D. Conzen. Glucocorticoid receptor-medicated protection from apoptosis is associated with induction of the serine/threonine survival kinase gene, sgk-1. J Biol Chem. 276 (20): 16649-54, May 18, 2001.

A.A. Murphy, M.H. Zhou, S. Malkapuram, N. Santanam, S. Parthasarathy and N. Sidell. RU-486-induced growth inhibition of human endometrial cells. Fertil Steril. 74 (5): 1014-9, Nov. 2000.

C.J. Newton, D. Bilko, S. Pappa and S.L. Atkin. Dexamethasone blocks antioestrogen-and oxidant-induce death of pituitary tumour cells. J. Endocrinol. 169 (2): 249-61, May 2001.

H. Okada, T. Nakajima, T. Yoshimura, K. Yasuda and H. Kanzaki. The inhibitory effect of dienogest, a synthetic steroid, on the growth of human endometrial stromal cells in vitro. Mol Hum Reprod. 7 (4): 341-7, Apr. 2001.

S. Palmer, C.A. Campen, G.F. Allan, P. Rybczynski, D. Haynes-Johnson, A. Hutchins, P. Kraft, M. Kiddoe, M. Lai, E. Lombardi, P. Pedersen, G. Hodgen and D.W. Combs. Nonsteroidal progesterone receptor ligands with unprecedented receptor selectivity. J Steroid Biochem Mol Biol. 75 (1): 33-42, Dec. 1, 2000.

K. Pestell. Monthly pill. Trends Pharmacol Sci. 22 (8): 401, Aug. 2001.

L. Sahlin, H. Wang, Y. Stjernholm, M. Lundberg, G. Ekman, A. Holmgren and H. Eriksson. The expression of glutaredoxin is increased in the human cervix in term pregnancy and immediately post-partum, particularly after prostaglandin-induced delivery. Mol Hum Reprod. 6 (12): 1147-53, Dec. 2000.

M. Schmidt, N. Lugering, A. Lugering, H.G. Pauels, K. Schulze-Osthoff, W. Domschke and T. Kucharzik. Role of the CD95/CD95 ligand system in glucocorticoid-induced monocyte apoptosis. J Immunol. 166 (2): 1344-51, Jan. 15, 2001.

J. Sengupta and D. Ghosh. Role of progesterone on peri-implantation stage endometriumembryo interaction in the primate. Steroids. 65 (10-11): 753-62, Oct.-Nov. 2000. Review.

O.D. Slayden, N.R. Nayak, K.A. Burton, K. Chwalisz, S.T. Cameron, H.O. Critchley, D.T. Baird and R.M. Brenner. Progesterone antagonists increase androgen receptor expression in the rhesus macaque and human endometrium. J Clin Endocrinol Metab. 86 (6): 2668-79, Jun. 2001.

I.M. Spitz and K. Chwalisz. Progesterone receptor modulators and progesterone antagonists in women's health. Steroids. 65 (10-11): 807-15, Oct.-Nov. 2000.

I.M. Spitz and H.J.T. Coelingh Bennink. Progesterone receptor modulators at the start of a new millenium. Steroids. 65 (10-11): 837-838, Oct.-Nov. 2000.

I.M. Spitz, P.F. Van Look and H.J. Coelingh Bennink. The use of progesterone antagonists and progesterone receptor modulators in contraception. Steroids. 65 (10-11): 817-23, Oct.-Nov. 2000.

C. Spycher and G. Bigler. Postcoital emergency contraception. Ther Umsch. 58 (9): 541-6, Sep. 2001. Review. German.

M.A. Thomas. Postcoital contraception. Clin Obstet Gynecol. 44 (1): 101-5, Mar. 2001. Review.

J.A. Tidy, A.M. Gillespie, N. Bright, C.R. Radstone, R.E. Coleman and B.W. Hancock. Gestational trophoblastic disease: as study of mode of evacuation and subsequent need for treatment with chemotherapy. Gynecol Oncol. 78 (3 Pt 1): 309-12, Sep. 2000.

S.Y. Tsai, K. Schillinger and X. Ye. Adenovirus-mediated transfer of regulable gene expression. Curr Opin Mol Ther. 2 (5): 515-23, Oct. 2000.

B. Vastag. Effect of mifepristone approval on research remains to be seen. J Natl Cancer Inst. 92 (24): 1970-1, Dec. 20, 2000.

Q. Wang, Z. Wu, Y. Wang, G. Luo, E. Wu and X. Gao. Determination of gestrinone in human serum by liquid chromatography—electrospray tandem mass spectrometry. J Chromatogr B. Biomed Sci Appl. 746 (2): 151-9, Sep. 2000.

K. Webster, A. Taylor and K. Gaston. Oestrogen and progesterone increase the levels of apoptosis induced by the human papillomavirus type 16 E2 and E7 proteins. J Gen Virol. 82 (Pt 1): 201-13, Jan. 2001.

F.T. Wunderlich, H. Wildner, K. Rajewsky and F. Edenhofer. New variants of inducible Cre recombinase: a novel mutant of Cre-PR fusion protein exhibits enhanced sensitivity and an expanded range of inducibility. Nucleic Acids Res. 29 (10): E47, May 15, 2001.

Y. Yokoyama, A. Shinohara, Y. Takahashi, X. Wan, S. Takahashi, K. Niwa and T. Tamaya. Synergistic effects of danazol and mifepristone on the cytotoxicity of UCN-01 hormoneresponsive breast cancer cells. Anticancer Res. 20 (5A): 3131-5, Sep.-Oct. 2000.

S. Zalanyi and L. Kovacs. Effect of antigestagens on human reproduction. Orv Hetil. 142 (16): 827-31, Apr. 22, 2001. (Review in Hungarian)

X. Zhang, E. Moilanen and H. Kankaanranta. Enhancement of human eosinophil apoptosis by fluticasone propionate, budesonide, and beclomethasone. Eur J Pharmacol. 406 (3): 325-32, Oct. 20, 2000.

ATTACHMENT 11

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

1. Medical Abortion

Obstet Gynecol 2001 Apr;97(4):suppl 1-13

ACOG Practice Bulletin. Clinical management guidelines for obstetrician-gynecologists. Medical management of abortion.

American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists Committee on Practice Bulletins--Gynecology.

According to the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, 1.18 million legal abortions were performed in the United States in 1997. Of these, 55.5% were performed at or before 56 days of gestation (calculated from the first day of the last menstrual period [LMP]) (I). Almost 98% of abortion procedures were performed by uterine curettage; all but 1% of these used suction curettage. There were 305 legal induced abortions per 1,000 live births, and the abortion rate was 20 per 1,000 women aged 15-44 years. For the first time in 1997, medical abortions were counted and comprised 0.25% of all abortions; 0.45% of those procedures were performed up to 56 days of gestation. Because of the lack of availability of mifepristone, these procedures mostly represent the use of a combination of methotrexate and misoprostol. Over the past two decades, medical methods of abortion have developed throughout the world and are now used clinically in the United States. This document will present evidence of effectiveness, benefits, and risks of medical methods of abortion and provide a framework for the evaluation and counseling of women who are considering such medical methods.

Publication Types: Guideline Practice Guideline

PMID: 11501565 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Obstet Gynecol 2001 Jul;98(1):101-6

Curettage after mifepristone-induced abortion: frequency, timing, and indications.

Allen RH, Westhoff C, De Nonno L, Fielding SL, Schaff EA.

Columbia University College of Physicians and Surgeons, New York, New York 10032, USA.

OBJECTIVE: To characterize women who underwent curettage after medical abortion with mifepristone and vaginal misoprostol, to describe when curettage occurred and the reasons for the intervention, and to categorize the indications for curettage according to a simple classification schema. METHODS: These analyses used data from two multisite, randomized controlled trials sponsored by Abortion Rights Mobilization. In the first study, women pregnant less than 63 days received 200 mg of mifepristone and 800 & mgr;g of vaginal misoprostol to use 48 hours after taking mifepristone. In the second study, women pregnant less than 56 days were randomly assigned to insert vaginal misoprostol at 1, 2, or 3 days after mifepristone administration. Case report forms and clinical case notes of all women who underwent curettage were examined. RESULTS: Of the 4393 women enrolled in both studies, 116 (2.6%, 95% confidence interval 2.1%, 3.1%) curettages were identified. The gestational age and a history of prior elective abortion were associated with the rate of curettage. The distribution of indications for curettage included bleeding, 61 (53%); continuing pregnancy, 17 (15%); patient request, 36 (31%); and indeterminate, 2 (1.7%). The timing of curettage differed by the indication and scheduled interval between study visits. The distribution of the timing was bimodal. One subset of women, 44 (38%), underwent curettage in the first study week and another subset, 43 (37%), during weeks 3-5. CONCLUSION: Curettage after medical abortion with mifepristone and vaginal misoprostol is rare. At least one half of the curettages were performed for persistent bleeding several weeks after treatment. Both acute heavy bleeding and continuing pregnancy are extremely rare.

PMID: 11430965 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

S Afr Med J 2000 Sep;90(9):889-91

Termination of early pregnancy with a reduced oral dose of mifepristone and vaginal misoprostol.

Anjum ZK.

Northern General Hospital, Sheffield, UK.

OBJECTIVE: To determine the efficacy of termination of pregnancy with a reduced oral dose of mifepristone and vaginal misoprostol. DESIGN: A retrospective review of 369 medical terminations of pregnancy. SETTING: Northern General Hospital, Sheffield, UK. SUBJECTS: All women presenting for medical termination of pregnancy before 63 days' gestation between October 1996 and December 1997. INTERVENTIONS: Patients were pretreated with mifepristone 200 mg orally, 36-48 hours before the prostaglandin E analogue, misoprostol, was administered vaginally. Two doses of misoprostol 400 micrograms, were given 2 hours apart. Women were allowed home 6 hours after the first dose of misoprostol. If the products of conception were not passed before going home, patients were to contact the hospital if bleeding did not take place within 4 days. OUTCOME MEASURES: Need for a surgical procedure and number of ongoing pregnancies after full treatment were considered primary outcome measures. RESULTS: A total of 369 women were treated with this regimen: 343 women (93.46%) aborted completely within a 6-hour observation period and did not require further intervention. A further 8 women aborted completely within the next 4 days. Overall, the complete abortion rate was 95.64%. Surgical intervention was necessary in 1.09% of the patients. No woman had serious complications. CONCLUSION: This combination is effective, safe and cost-effective in a clinical setting.

PMID: 11081141 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Am J Obstet Gynecol 2000 Oct;183(4):998-1002

Mifepristone versus vaginally administered misoprostol for cervical priming before first-trimester termination of pregnancy: a randomized, controlled study.

Ashok PW, Flett GM, Templeton A.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology, University of Aberdeen, Aberdeen, United Kingdom.

OBJECTIVE: This study was undertaken to compare the effectiveness of mifepristone orally administered at 24 or 48 hours before first-trimester vacuum aspiration abortion with that of vaginally administered misoprostol as a cervical priming agent. STUDY DESIGN: In a randomized comparative trial 90 women who requested surgical termination of pregnancy were randomly assigned to receive 200 mg mifepristone orally 24 or 48 hours before the operation or 800 microg misoprostol vaginally 2 to 4 hours before the operation. The main outcome measures were baseline cervical dilatation, cumulative force required to dilate the cervix to 9 mm, and intraoperative blood loss. RESULTS: The baseline cervical dilatation was significantly greater among women who received mifepristone 48 hours before the operation (P = .02). This group also required the least mechanical force to dilate the cervix (P=.06). There were no significant differences among the 3 groups in the intraoperative blood loss, in the operating time, or in patient acceptability. Side effects such as hot flushes and headaches were significantly higher among women who received mifepristone 24 or 48 hours before the operation than among those who received misoprostol (P = .01 and P = .002, respectively). CONCLUSION: Mifepristone is an effective cervical priming agent when orally administered 48 hours before vacuum aspiration for termination of first-trimester pregnancy. Because of its cost and availability in comparison with misoprostol, however, selective use may have to be considered.

Publication Types:

- Clinical Trial
- Randomized Controlled Trial

PMID: 11035353 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]
Aubeny E.

The European Journal of Contraception and Reproductive Health Care 2001;6:54-57

Letters to the Editor

A two-stage increase in the dose of misoprostol improves the efficacy of medical abortion with mifepristone and prostaglandins

Since 1992 we have been using the drug regimen and protocol authorized in France for the medical termination of early pregnancy (up to 49 days of amenorrhea), i.e. day 1: oral mifepristone 600 mg; day 3: oral misoprostol 400 μ g followed by observation for 3 h; days 10–15: follow-up visit. The results using this protocol have been reported¹. A success rate of 95.4% has been achieved. The failures (4.6%) include cases of continuing pregnancy (1.5%), incomplete abortion (2.8%) and hemostatic curettage (0.3%).

We felt that the rate of failure of the method, although low, should be further decreased and we therefore investigated a new treatment regimen.

In France, women undergoing early medical termination of pregnancy must stay at the treatment center for 4h after the administration of misoprostol (this monitoring period was shortened to 3 h in 1998). Within the 4-h observation period, up to 69.1% women abort and, in approximately 90% of these women, pregnancy was terminated in the first 3 h¹.

We hoped to improve the success rate of the method by the administration of a second dose of misoprostol 3 h after the first, to women who had not aborted within this time. The rationale for this regimen is supported by the clinical observation that the majority of expulsions occur within 3 h of oral intake of misoprostol. After 3 h, the number of observed expulsions decreases rapidly. The clinical observation reflects the pharmacokinetic profile of misoprostol: 2 h after oral administration, a rapid decrease in plasma level is seen^{2,3}.

During 1993–94 and from 1995–97, two alternative drug regimens were studied in a sequential manner. The results are summarized in Table 1.

The decrease in the proportion of continuing pregnancies is highly important; both women and practitioners can be more confident with the procedure. As a consequence of the above observations, regimen 2 is now the routine treatment at Broussais Hospital.

We believe that the sequential administration of two 400- μ g doses of misoprostol has a number of advantages, especially if gestation is limited to 49 days. First, it is more effective than a regimen using only a single dose of 400 μ g misoprostol. The overall success rate is increased to a level not previously published and, although this may have been due to chance or an increase in operator experience, the 80% reduction in continuing pregnancies is less likely to be due to such factors. The proportion of continuing pregnancies has been reduced to that seen when gemeprost, a particularly potent prostaglandin, is used⁵.

It is difficult to compare these results to those observed when misoprostol is given as a single dose of 800 µg. Only El Refaey and colleagues⁴ have studied

Table 1 Success rates with a two-step regimen for the early therapeutic termination of pregnancy (≤ 49 days of amenorrhea)

Regimen		Total number of subjects	Number receiving a single dose of misoprostol (400 µg)	Number receiving an additional dose of misoprostol	Overall success rate (%)	Continuing pregnancies (%)
(1)	Mifepristone 600mg + misoprostol 400 µg + 200 µg as required	487	206	281	95.5	1.2
(2)	Mifepristone 600mg + misoprostol 400 µg + 400 µg as required	1973	1344	629	98.4*	0.2

*Failures include cases of incomplete abortion (1.4%) and continuing pregnancy (4 cases; 0.2%)

the use of 600 mg mifepristone followed by misoprostol given as a single 800 μ g oral or vaginal dose. They reported a success rate lower than ours. However, the age of pregnancy in their series was up to 63 days of amenorrhea (success rate 87% with oral misoprostol).

Second, as the majority of side-effects related to medical termination of pregnancy are associated with the administration of prostaglandin and appear to be dose-related, it is desirable to use the lowest possible dose of prostaglandin. With this method, a large proportion (62.1%) of women will abort within the first 3 h after administration of only the first dose of 400 μ g misoprostol. Administration of a larger dose would be unnecessary in the majority of women.

The incidence and severity of uterine pain were lower in our study than in the study by El Refaey and colleagues⁴; both the oral and vaginal routes of administration of 800 μ g misoprostol were associated with use of *parenteral* narcotic analgesia in 16% and 10% of women, respectively. In our method, only nonnarcotic analgesics were necessary. One may argue that this higher use of narcotic analgesia was due to the inclusion of more advanced pregnancies in the study by El Refaey⁴; however, other work has shown that use of narcotic analgesia is not related to gestation but to other factors (parity, history of dysmenorrhea)⁵.

The data of the trials about gastrointestinal side-effects do not allow one to arrive at an assured conclusion because gastrointestinal side-effects were not registered in the same way. Figures about gastrointestinal side-effects in the 800- μ g misoprostol trial relate to vomiting alone and diarrhea alone; in the 400 + 400- μ g trial, all gastrointestinal side-effects are considered together (nausea + vomiting + diarrhea).

We conclude that, for the medical termination of early pregnancy (up to 49 days of gestation) with oral mifepristone 600 mg and misoprostol 400 μ g, the administration of a second oral dose of 400 μ g misoprostol to women who have not aborted within 3 h of the first dose increases the overall efficacy of the method. This regimen also appears to be better tolerated than a regimen in which misoprostol is given as a single 800- μ g dose.

Family Planning Center Broussais Hospital 75014 Paris France E. Aubeny

REFERENCES

- Peyron R, Aubeny E, Targosz V, Silvestre L. Early termination of pregnancy with mifepristone (RU 486) and the orally active prostaglandin misoprostol. N Engl J Med 1993;328:1509-13
- Zieman M, Fong SK, Benowitz NL, Bankester D, Darney P. Absorption kinetics of misoprostol with oral and vaginal administration. *Obstet Gynecol* 1997;90:88-92
- Gemsell Danielsson K, Marion L, Rodriguez A, Spur BW, Wong PYK, Bygdeman M. Comparison between oral and vaginal administration of misoprostol on uterine contractility. Obstet Gynecol 1999;93:275-80
- El Rafaey H, Rajasekar D, Abdalla M, Calder L, Templeton AA. Induction of abortion with mifepristone (RU 486) and oral or vaginal misoprostol. N Engl J Med 1995;332:983-7
- UK Multicentre Study Final Results. The efficacy and tolerance of mifepristone and prostaglandin in termination of pregnancy of less than 63 days gestation. *Contraception* 1997;55:1–5

The European Journal of Contraception and Reproductive Health Care

: Eur J Contracept Reprod Health Care 2000 Sep;5(3):171-6

A randomized comparison of mifepristone and self-administered oral or vaginal misoprostol for early abortion.

Aubeny E, Chatellier G.

Orthogenic Center, Broussais Hospital, Paris, France.

In France, mifepristone in association with orally administered misoprostol is widely used for the early termination of pregnancy (up to 49 days' gestation). In other centers, mifepristone in association with vaginally administered misoprostol has also been used. The aim of the present study was to compare the efficacy and tolerance of mifepristone in association with misoprostol administered orally or vaginally for the termination of pregnancy of up to 49 days' gestation. A total of 237 women were enrolled in the study. All women received 600 mg mifepristone administered orally and 400 microg misoprostol administered either orally (n = 119) or vaginally (n = 118). A second dose of 400 microg misoprostol was administered if women had not expelled the pregnancy within 3 h. Women were randomized into treatment groups according to the day of their admission. The overall success rate was 98.7% and there was no significant difference in efficacy between the two groups. There was one treatment failure in the group in which misoprostol was administered orally. Of those women who aborted within 3 h of administration of the first dose of misoprostol, the route of administration of misoprostol did not influence the time to abortion. Of the women who received a second dose of misoprostol, the time to abortion was shorter in those who received misoprostol orally (52 min versus 77 min). Tolerance was assessed by visual analog scales and was similar for both groups. In both groups, women preferred the oral route of administration.

Publication Types:

- Clinical Trial
- Randomized Controlled Trial

PMID: 11131781 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Contraception 2000 Dec;62(6):297-303

Parity is a major determinant of success rate in medical abortion: a retrospective analysis of 3161 consecutive cases of early medical abortion treated with reduced doses of mifepristone and vaginal gemeprost.

Bartley J, Tong S, Everington D, Baird DT.

Centre for Reproductive Biology, University of Edinburgh, 37 Chalmers Street, Edinburgh, EH3 9ET, Scotland.

The antiprogesterone mifepristone in combination with a suitable prostaglandin provides an effective method for induction of abortion in early pregnancy up to 63 days of gestation. The combination of 600 mg mifepristone followed by 1 mg of gemeprost vaginal pessary 48 h later is one of the standard regimens in practice, which is registered in several countries in Europe. In 1995, we reduced the doses for both mifepristone and gemeprost to 200 mg and 0.5 mg respectively, as this was shown to decrease significantly the incidence of side effects whilst maintaining a high efficacy. In this article, we report our experience with this regimen in routine clinical practice by analysing 3161 consecutive medical abortions retrospectively. Twelve case notes (0.4%) were not available, and for 310 (9.8%) women, the outcome was not known with certainty as they did not return for their follow up visit. Of the remaining 2839 women, 2732 (96.2%) had a complete abortion following their treatment. One-hundredtwo (3.6%) women required an evacuation of the uterus: for incomplete abortion in 63 (2.2%) and ongoing pregnancy in 39 (1.4%). Three women had to undergo surgery for ectopic pregnancies. The surgical intervention rate was significantly higher at gestation of >49 days compared to < or = 49 days (5.7% vs. 2.6%, p = 0.002) and at >56 days than among those at < or = 56 days (6.7% vs. 3.1%; p <0.001). However, for incomplete abortion a significant increase was only seen at gestation >49 days compared to < or = 49 days (3% vs. 1.6%, p = 0.017). The incidence of ongoing pregnancies increased significantly only after 56 days of gestation compared to < or = 56 days (3.8% vs. 0.9%; p <0.001). Parity was related to the outcome with parous women having significantly more incomplete/ongoing abortions compared to nulliparous women (5.4% vs. 2.0%; p <0.001), although parous women did present earlier in pregnancy for termination than nulliparous women (p = 0.01). The incidence of complications was low: 165 (5.8%) women were given antibiotics for presumed genital infection and severe haemorrhage occurred in 11 (0.4%) women, of whom only two required blood transfusion. In summary, the recommended regimen with the reduced doses of mifepristone and gemeprost is highly effective, meeting the anticipated efficacy with a complete abortion rate of >95%. We have concluded from the data that gestation and parity are strong predictors for clinicians to anticipate the probability of a successful medical termination of pregnancy.

PMID: 11239616 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Journal of Family Planning and Reproductive Health Care 2001: 27(2):97-98

Experiences of termination of pregnancy in a stand-alone clinic situation

Boorer C, Murty J

Summary

This paper describes the authors' experience of conducting termination of pregnancy on conscious patients in community settings. If patients are appropriately selected and prepared, and the procedure conducted in the presence of well-trained and motivated nursing assistance, the method described is successful, safe and acceptable to patients.

Steroids 2000 Oct-Nov;65(10-11):801-5

Pregnancy termination.

Bygdeman M, Gemzell Danielsson K, Marions L, Swahn M.

Department of Woman and Child Health, Div. for Obstetrics and Gynecology, Karolinska Hospital, S-171 76, Stockholm, Sweden. astblad@obgyn.ks.se

During pregnancy, the antiprogestin mifepristone will induce uterine contractions, increase the sensitivity of the myometrium to prostaglandin, and ripen the cervix. These effects indicate that mifepristone can be used for termination of pregnancy. The clinical experience has shown that mifepristone is sufficiently effective for this purpose only if combined with a suitable prostaglandin, e.g. gemeprost or misoprostol. The combined treatment has been used for termination of early pregnancy (up to 63 days of amenorrhea) and for termination of second trimester pregnancy. During early pregnancy, the recommended dose of mifepristone is 600 mg (although 200 mg seems sufficient), followed 36-48 h later by 0.4-0.8 mg misoprostol administered either orally or vaginally, or vaginal administration of 1.0 mg gemeprost. For termination of second trimester pregnancy, the treatment with mifepristone is most commonly combined with 1.0 mg gemeprost repeated at 3-6-h intervals. The combined treatment is as effective and safe during early pregnancy as is the alternative vacuum aspiration and is also equally acceptable if the woman is allowed to choose the method she prefers. During the second trimester, the pretreatment will significantly reduce the duration of labor, dose of prostaglandin, and the frequency of side effects.

Publication Types:

- Review
- Review, Tutorial

PMID: 11108891 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Eur J Contracept Reprod Health Care 2001 Mar;6(1):39-45

Misoprostol for abortion at 9-12 weeks' gestation in adolescents.

Carbonell JL, Velazco A, Varela L, Tanda R, Sanchez C, Barambio S, Chami S, Valero F, Aragon S, Mari J.

Clinca Mediterrania Medica, Valencia, Castello, Spain.

The objectives of the present clinical study were to evaluate the safety and efficacy of misoprostol (Cytotec), self-administered into the vagina for medical abortion, in adolescents under 18 years of age. A group of 150 adolescents with gestations between 63 and 84 days, with previous written consent from the patient and parents or guardians, received 800 microg of vaginal misoprostol every 24 h, up to a maximum of three main doses, for abortion. Outcomes assessed included successful abortion (complete abortion without surgery), sideeffects, decrease in hemoglobin, mean time of vaginal bleeding, mean expulsion time and mean time for the return of menses. Complete abortion occurred in 126/150 (84.0%, 95% confidence interval 77-89) patients. The frequencies of nausea and vomiting were statistically significantly higher when compared to those obtained for adult females. Vaginal bleeding lasted for 13.2 +/- 3.8 days (median 13 days, range 1-22 days). The mean expulsion time was 8.0 +/- 3.4 h (median 8 h, range 1-14 h) for all subjects who aborted after the first misoprostol dose. The mean drop in hemoglobin was statistically significant (p = 0.001), but without clinical relevance. From the high abortion rate obtained, we concluded that misoprostol alone is a valid method for terminating unwanted pregnancies at 10-13 weeks' gestation in adolescents under 18 years of age in the absence of mifepristone.

Publication Types:

Clinical Trial

PMID: 11334475 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Hum Reprod 2001 Jan;16(1):67-71

A comparative study of surgical and medical procedures: 932 pregnancy terminations up to 63 days gestation.

Child TJ, Thomas J, Rees M, MacKenzie IZ.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, Women's Centre, The John Radcliffe Hospital, Headington, Oxford, UK. Tim.child@muhc.mcgill.ca

The aim of this retrospective study was to compare the efficacy and complications associated with early medical and surgical pregnancy termination. The study population comprised 932 consecutive women undergoing pregnancy termination at gestations of 63 days or less. There were no age or parity differences between the study groups. Medical termination was performed with mifepristone 200 mg orally and misoprostol 800 microgram vaginally; surgical aspiration termination was performed under general anaesthesia. Outcome measures were: surgical curettage for presumed retained products of conception; ongoing pregnancy; and planned and emergency review in the unit. Early medical and surgical termination were associated with a 90.2 and 94.5% complete abortion rate respectively (P = 0.025). The complete abortion rate with medical termination decreased significantly with increasing parity; no such relationship with surgical abortion was found. Women of parity three or more were less likely to have a complete abortion following a medical (83.3%) compared to surgical procedure (97.7%) (P = 0.028). The ongoing pregnancy rate was 0.9% with medical and 0.5% with surgical termination (P = NS). Medical termination was associated with a lower complete abortion rate than surgical termination, particularly for women of higher parity. However, early medical termination allows over 90% of women to avoid the risks of surgical instrumentation of the uterus and anaesthesia.

Publication Types:

Clinical Trial

PMID: 11139539 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Lancet 2001 Jan 13;357(9250):120-2

Mifepristone abortion outside the urban research hospital setting in India.

Coyaji K, Elul B, Krishna U, Otiv S, Ambardekar S, Bopardikar A, Raote V, Ellertson C, Winikoff B.

Medical abortion holds great promise in less-developed countries, where abortion morbidity and mortality remain high. We tested the French mifepristone-misoprostol regimen in two urban outpatient family-planning clinics (n=600) and a rural hospital (n=300) in India. 4% of urban women and 1% of rural women were lost to follow-up. Perfect use and typical-use success rates were as high as European rates at all sites. Although rural women reported fewer side-effects, most women in urban and rural settings were satisfied with their medical abortions. Medical abortion can be offered safely, effectively, and acceptably in urban outpatient clinics and rural hospitals in India.

Publication Types:

• Letter

PMID: 11197403 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Obstet Gynecol 2001 Sep;98(3):434-9

Mifepristone 100 mg in abortion regimens.

Creinin MD, Pymar HC, Schwartz JL.

Department of Obstetrics, Gynecology and Reproductive Sciences, University of Pittsburgh School of Medicine, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, USA. mcreinin@mail.magee.edu

OBJECTIVE: To examine the clinical efficacy of mifepristone 100 mg followed 2 days later by misoprostol 400 microg orally or 800 microg vaginally in women at up to 49 days' gestation. METHODS: Eighty participants received mifepristone 100 mg and then were randomized to misoprostol, administered 48 hours later, at a dose of 400 microg orally (group 1) or 800 microg vaginally (group 2). Women returned for follow-up evaluations 24 ± -1 hour after using the misoprostol and then 2-3 weeks later. If abortion still had not occurred and the pregnancy was nonviable, the subject returned again after an additional 3 weeks. RESULTS: Twenty-four hours after receiving misoprostol, 34 (85%; 95% confidence interval [CI] 71%, 94%) of the 40 women in group 1 and 38 (95%; 95% CI 85%, 99%) of the 40 women in group 2 had complete abortions. Overall, complete abortion without surgical intervention occurred in 34 women in group 1 (85%; 95% CI 71%, 94%) and 40 women in group 2 (100%; 95% CI 91%, 100%; P =.03). Four women in group 1 required suction aspiration for continuing pregnancy at the second follow-up, compared with none in group 2 (P = .12). Side effects occurred with similar frequency in both treatment groups. CONCLUSION: Low-dose mifepristone (100 mg) combined with vaginal misoprostol 800 microg may be an effective alternative to regimens using 200 or 600 mg of mifepristone with misoprostol.

Publication Types: Clinical Trial Randomized Controlled Trial

PMID: 11530125 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

BJOG 2001 May;108(5):469-73

Efficacy of mifepristone followed on the same day by misoprostol for early termination of pregnancy: report of a randomised trial.

Creinin MD, Schwartz JL, Pymar HC, Fink W.

Department of Obstetrics, Gynecology and Reproductive Sciences, University of Pittsburgh School of Medicine, Magee-Womens Hospital, Pennsylvania 15213-3180, USA.

OBJECTIVE: To examine the clinical efficacy of mifepristone 600 mg followed on the same day or two days later by misoprostol 400 microg orally in women undergoing medical termination of pregnancy whose pregnancies have a gestational age up to 49 days. DESIGN: Prospective, randomised trial. SETTING: Clinical research office. PARTICIPANTS: Eightysix women, requesting elective termination of a pregnancy which has a gestational age of < or = 49 days. METHODS: After administration of mifepristone 600 mg, participants were randomised to take misoprostol six to eight hours later (Group 1) or 48 hours later (Group 2). Women returned for a follow up evaluation 24 ± -1 hours after taking the misoprostol. Participants in Group 1 who had not aborted received a second dose of misoprostol to take 48 hours after the mifepristone. All women returned approximately two weeks after receiving mifepristone. If termination of pregnancy had still not occurred and the pregnancy was nonviable, the woman returned again in three weeks. MAIN OUTCOME MEASURES: Rate of complete abortion 24 hours after administration of misoprostol. RESULTS: At 24 hours after receiving misoprostol, 21/42 (50%, 95% CI 35%, 65%) women in Group I and 40/44 (91%, 95% CI 82%, 99%) women in Group 2 had complete abortions. By follow up two weeks later after the administration of mifepristone, 40/42 (95%, 95% CI 89%, 100%) women in Group 1 and 43/44 (98%, 95% CI 93%, 99%) women in Group 2 were known to have complete abortions. Nausea, vomiting or diarrhoea in women using the standard regimen (Group 2) occurred in 68%, 36%, and 20%, respectively. CONCLUSIONS: After treatment with mifepristone 600 mg, administration of misoprostol 400 microg orally on the same day is not as effective at causing abortion within the first 24 hours compared with the standard time interval of 48 hours between medications.

Publication Types:

- Clinical Trial
- Randomized Controlled Trial

PMID: 11368131 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Ann Pharmacother 2001 Jun;35(6):707-19

Mifepristone.

DeHart RM, Morehead MS.

McWhorter School of Pharmacy, Samford University, USA. rmdehart@samford.edu

OBJECTIVE: To review the efficacy and safety of mifepristone (with misoprostol) for the termination of early pregnancy. DATA SOURCES: A MEDLINE search (1966-October 2000) was conducted, and additional references listed in articles were included; unpublished data obtained from the manufacturer were used to identify data from the scientific literature. Studies evaluating mifepristone were considered for inclusion. STUDY SELECTION: Human clinical studies in the English language were reviewed and evaluated. Clinical trials selected for detailed review were limited to those including the regimens of mifepristone and misoprostol, recently approved by the Food and Drug Administration for early pregnancy termination. DATA SYNTHESIS: Mifepristone is an antiprogestin available for pregnancy termination in combination with a prostaglandin such as misoprostol. Mifepristone offers efficacy similar to, if not better than, other drugs used for pregnancy termination, but appears less efficacious overall than surgical termination of pregnancy. Mifepristone in combination with misoprostol commonly causes adverse effects such as abdominal pain and, less commonly, can cause serious adverse effects such as incomplete abortion; endometritis; and bleeding warranting transfusion, hospitalization, or surgery. Mifepristone is metabolized by the cytochrome P450 system. Thus, the potential for drug interactions with this agent exists, although this has not been well studied. Data are included from clinical trials evaluating the safety, tolerability, efficacy, and pharmacoeconomics of mifepristone combined with misoprostol for early pregnancy termination. Data comparing the use of these agents with surgical abortion and other drugs used for pregnancy termination are included where available. CONCLUSIONS: Mifepristone in combination with misoprostol for the termination of early pregnancy (amenorrhea of < or = 49 d) is effective in 92-95% of women. Incomplete abortion requiring surgical abortion after the fact occurs in 3-5% of women, and pregnancy continues 1-2% of the time. Mifepristone with misoprostol treatment is not without significant risks, including hemorrhage, infection, and potential for long-term emotional consequences.

Publication Types:

- Review
- · Review, Tutorial

PMID: 11408990 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Contraception 2000 Dec;62(6):305-9

Timing of pain and bleeding after mifepristone-induced abortion.

De Nonno LJ, Westhoff C, Fielding S, Schaff E.

Columbia University College of Physicians and Surgeons, New York, NY, USA.

Previous studies of medical abortion with mifepristone and a prostaglandin have reported percentages of subjects who experience cramping and/or bleeding relative to prostaglandin use. This is the first analysis of cramping and bleeding onset patterns in subjects treated with low-dose (200 mg) mifepristone and 800 microg vaginal misoprostol at 24, 48, or 72 h after mifepristone. We analyzed the cramping and bleeding onset patterns in subjects up to 8 weeks pregnant who used 800 microg vaginal misoprostol at 24, 48, or 72 h after 200 mg of oral mifepristone. We collected data from subjects' symptom diaries and divided symptom onset into 3 categories: before misoprostol use, 0--12 h following misoprostol, and more than 12 h after misoprostol. Of the 2,302 subjects, cramping and bleeding onset data were available for 2,030 (88%) and 2,123 (92%), respectively. Across all groups, 230 (11%) experienced cramping and 445 (21%) experienced bleeding before misoprostol use. There was a significantly higher percentage of subjects who experienced early cramping and/or early bleeding between the three treatment groups, and this was related to the interval between mifepristone and misoprostol. In the 12 h following misoprostol administration, cramping and bleeding patterns were similar in the three groups. The longer subjects waited to insert misoprostol, the more likely they were to experience early cramping and/or bleeding. After misoprostol insertion, cramping and bleeding patterns are similar regardless of treatment group. Patients and providers cannot rely on symptom onset to predict treatment success.

Publication Types:

- Clinical Trial
- Multicenter Study
- Randomized Controlled Trial

PMID: 11239617 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Lancet 2001 May 5;357(9266):1402-5

Can women in less-developed countries use a simplified medical abortion regimen?

Elul B, Hajri S, Ngoc NN, Ellertson C, Slama CB, Pearlman E, Winikoff B.

Population Council, New York, NY, USA.

BACKGROUND: Mifepristone-misoprostol abortion, consisting of oral pills, is potentially simple and safe enough for use in less-developed countries. But the labour-intensive, costly, clinic-based European protocols are not affordable or feasible in most less-developed countries. METHODS: We prospectively tested two simplifications to the French mifepristone-misoprostol regimen in Vietnam and Tunisia. Women (n=315) with amenorrhoea 8 weeks or less since their last menstrual period received 200 mg mifepristone in the clinic and then chose whether to take 400 mg oral misoprostol 2 days later either at home or in the clinic. FINDINGS: Despite the two-thirds reduction in mifepristone dose, success rates were high: Vietnam 93%, Tunisia 91%. About 88% of participants chose home administration of misoprostol. Most Vietnamese and Tunisian women were satisfied with their abortions, but efficacy and satisfaction rates were higher among those who used misoprostol at home. INTERPRETATIONS: A simplified medical abortion regimen of 200 mg mifepristone followed by the option of home administration of misoprostol seems feasible.

PMID: 11356438 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Family Planning Perspectives 32(5):264, Sept./Oct. 2000.

Hollander D.

Most Abortion Patients View Their Experience Favorably, But Medical Abortion Gets a Higher Rating Than Surgical

A group of U.S. women who had a medical abortion reported a significantly higher level of satisfaction with the method than a similar group who underwent suction curettage at the same facility. Nearly all women in both groups (93–97%) said that they would recommend their method to a friend, but those who had a medical procedure were more likely than those who had surgery to say that they would choose the same method if they needed to terminate another pregnancy.¹

Using self-administered questionnaires given to abortion patients just before and about three weeks after their procedure, researchers gathered information on women's expectations about and actual experiences with their method. To be included in the study, women had to be at least 18 years old and no more than nine weeks pregnant.

The analyses are based on data from 146 women who participated in an acceptability trial of abortion using mifepristone and misoprostol in 1994–1995 and 174 women who had a surgical procedure in 1995–1996. Women in both groups were predominantly white (90–92%), with an average age of 26–27. The average gestation of their pregnancies was 51–52 days, and roughly three in 10 had never been pregnant before.

Participants were asked to rate the amount of discomfort, anxiety and bleeding that they expected and experienced, on a scale from one (indicating none) to five (signifying extreme). They also were asked to rate their expected and actual length of bleeding on a scale from one (denoting 1–3 days) to five (indicating 13 or more).

The two groups both expected and experienced similar levels of discomfort, but differed on most other measures. Women undergoing surgical abortions anticipated a significantly higher level of anxiety (mean rating, 3.1) than those having medical procedures (2.9), yet ratings of the actual level were statistically indistinguishable (2.7–2.8). Those who had medical abortions expected significantly more bleeding than those who had surgical procedures (3.6 vs. 3.1) and experienced significantly more (3.4 vs. 2.6). Likewise, the medical abortion group thought they would bleed longer than women having surgical abortions (3.2 vs. 2.8) and rated the actual duration of bleeding higher (3.8 vs. 3.2).

Women's overall satisfaction with their abortion, rated on a scale from one (signifying very satisfied) to five (denoting very dissatisfied) was high, but those in the medical group gave the procedure a significantly more positive rating (1.4) than those in the surgical group (1.8). The overwhelming majority in both groups would recommend their method to a friend: 93% of those who had surgical procedures and 97% of those who had medical abortions. However, women in the medical abortion group were significantly more likely than surgical abortion patients to say that they would choose the same procedure if they had to have another abortion (91% vs. 58%).

Among women who had medical abortions, overall satisfaction with the method was reduced if bleeding was heavier than expected. Also in this group, overall satisfaction, the likelihood of recommending the procedure to a friend and the likelihood of choosing the same method to terminate a subsequent pregnancy declined if the method failed and the woman required a surgical procedure. Failure of surgical abortions, however, had no effect on these measures.

The researchers point out that their study has the advantage of directly comparing women undergoing medical and surgical abortion. However, they add, medical abortion patients "made a conscious decision to seek out a generally unavailable [procedure] as research subjects," whereas surgical abortion patients had no choice of procedure, and this difference may have biased the results. For example, women in the medical abortion study may have viewed the procedure more favorably and may have reported symptoms more accurately than those in the surgical abortion group. Furthermore, some surgical abortion patients might have chosen a medical procedure if given the option.

Despite the study's limitations, the investigators conclude that women's experiences with abortion depend to some extent on the procedure used. Although both medical and surgical abortion are safe and effective, they note, women contemplating abortion should receive thorough counseling and education about both methods before making their choice. In particular, "attitudes and expectations regarding fears of instrumentation and bleeding should be explored," to help ensure that women choose the procedure with which they are most likely to feel satisfied.—D. Hollander

Reference

 Jensen JT, Harvey SM and Beckman LJ, Acceptability of suction curettage and mifepristone abortion in the United States: a prospective comparison study, American Journal of Obstetrics and Gynecology, 2000, 182(6):1292–1299.

Family Planning Perspectives

Contraception 2000 Sep;62(3):125-30

A multicentre randomized comparative clinical trial of 200 mg RU486 (mifepristone) single dose followed by either 5 mg 9-methylene PGE(2) gel (meteneprost) or 600 microg oral PGE(1) (misoprostol) for termination of early pregnancy within 28 days of missed menstrual period. ICMR Task Force Study. Indian Council of Medical Research.

A multicentre, randomized, comparative clinical trial of 200 mg RU486 (Mifepristone) followed 48 h later by either 5 mg 9-methylene PGE(2) vaginal gel (meteneprost) or 600 microg oral PGE(1) (misoprostol) for termination of pregnancy within 28 days of the missed period, was carried out through the Indian Council of Medical Research's (ICMR) network of Human Reproduction Research Centres (HRRCs). A total of 893 subjects were assessed regarding their therapeutic responses to the two different treatment groups. The results indicated a success rate of 84.6% among 453 women treated with RU486 followed by 9 methylene PGE(2) vaginal gel, that was not significantly different from the success rate of 87.7% observed in 440 women treated with RU486 followed by oral PGE(1). The majority of study subjects (90%) started bleeding within 72 h. About 26% of the subjects had started bleeding before the administration of any prostaglandin. The average duration of bleeding in all the subjects was about 7 days. No life threatening side effects were observed among the subjects in two treatment groups. Gastro-intestinal complaints were reported more often by women treated with oral PGE(1) as compared to those treated with 9-methylene vaginal PGE(2) gel; nausea occurred in 25.7% and 19.2%, vomiting in 6.8% and 4.6%, and diarrhoea in 4.8% and 0.9% of the subjects in the 2 treatment groups, respectively. Fever higher than 38 degrees C and severe abdominal pain were reported by 4.2% and 5.0% of all subjects treated, respectively. Intravenous infusion of glucose and saline was required by 6 subjects in each treatment of the prostaglandin treated groups. Blood transfusion was required in 2 subjects, one in each treatment group, for profuse bleeding.

Publication Types:

- Clinical Trial
- Multicenter Study
- Randomized Controlled Trial

PMID: 11124359 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Zhonghua Fu Chan Ke Za Zhi 2000 Dec;35(12):733-5

[Clinical study of four cases with malignant gestation trophoblastic tumor after mifepristone abortion]

[Article in Chinese]

Jin L, Fan G, Yang X.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology, Peking Union Medical College Hospital, Peking Union Medical College, Chinese Academy of Medical Science, Beijing 100730, China.

OBJECTIVE: To describe the clinical characteristics of malignant gestational trophoblastic tumor after medical abortion used by mifepristone combined with misoprostol and its diagnosis and differential diagnosis from incomplete abortion. METHODS: Four cases with malignant gestational trophoblast tumor after medical abortion were presented focusing on the clinical manifestation and the methods of diagnosis and differential diagnosis. RESULTS: Irregular vaginal bleeding and abnormal high level of beta-human chorionic gonadotropin (hCG) in plasma were the common manifestation of the gestational trophoblast tumour and incomplete abortion after medical abortion. However, beta-hCG of the former after curettage was still higher by dynamic monitoring. Malignant gestational trophoblast tumor showed rich blood flow signal and low blood flow resistance index (RI, RI < 0.5) in uterus in color doppler echography, digital subtraction angiography (DSA) with abnormal enlargement of the arteria of uterine, arteriovenous fistula beside the uterine were the main characteristics of malignant gestational trophoblast tumour. CONCLUSIONS: Pay attention to the early stage malignant gestational trophoblast tumour among patients with abnormal vaginal bleeding after medical abortion. beta-hCG and DSA were the most effective methods to diagnose and differentially diagnose choriocarcinoma from the incomplete abortion among the patients with abnormal vaginal bleeding after medical abortion.

PMID: 11286033 [PubMed - in process]

Contraception 2001 May;63(5):247-50

First trimester abortion with mifepristone and vaginal misoprostol.

Knudsen UB.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology, University Hospital of Arrhus, Skejby, Denmark. UBK@dadlnet.dk

This study assessed the efficacy and side effects of first trimester medical abortion using mifepristone and vaginally administered misoprostol. Medical abortion was first introduced in Denmark in December 1997, and the acceptability of this new approach in a Danish population was evaluated. The study included the first 100 women seeking medical abortion. The gestational age was from 33 to 56 days. All received 600 mg mifepristone (RU 486) orally followed 2 days later by vaginally administered misoprostol 400 microg. Success was defined as achieving complete abortion without the need for surgical evacuation. Ninety-three percent achieved a successful medical termination of pregnancy. Side effects were few, and the acceptability was high. Ninety percent of the women would prefer medical abortion in case of a new unwanted pregnancy. The combination of mifepristone and vaginally administrated misoprostol is effective, safe, has few side effects and is well accepted by Danish women.

Publication Types: Clinical Trial

PMID: 11448463 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Ugeskr Laeger 2000 Nov 27;162(48):6536-7

[Vasospastic angina pectoris following abortion induced by prostaglandin analogue]

[Article in Danish]

Lindhardt TB, Walker LR, Colov NS, Hansen PS.

Kardiologisk afdeling P, og gynaekologisk obstetrisk afdeling G, Amtssygehuset i Gentofte.

A case of vasospastic angina pectoris with loss of consciousness, bradycardia and seizures induced by medical abortion following administration of mifepristone and gemeprost is reported. The patient had a history of smoking and migraine, and former treatment with ergot alkaloids or serotonin agonists had also resulted in chest pain and lipothymia. The case underlines the importance of obtaining a detailed history of vasospastic disorders in women referred for medical abortion.

PMID: 11187221 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Family Planning Perspectives 32 (5): 259, Sep./Oct. 2000.

Mahler K.

DIGEST

Early Medical Abortion Regimens Using Different

Dosages of Mifepristone Are Equally Successful

A regimen of medical abortion consisting of 200 mg of mifepristone and 400 mcg of misoprostol is as likely to successfully terminate an early pregnancy as a regimen using the same dosage of misoprostol and 600 mg of mifepristone. In a study of treatment effectiveness conducted at 17 centers worldwide, 89% of women treated with the lower dose of mifepristone and 88% of those treated with the higher dose of the drug had a complete abortion.¹ The proportion of women in each group who experienced side effects such as lower abdominal pain, nausea, vomiting and diarrhea was similar. The success of both of the regimens was related to gestational age: The risk of a continuing pregnancy was more than twice as high among women who received treatment 4-5 weeks after the expected date of menses as it was among those who were treated no more than 15 days after they missed their menstrual period. Women were eligible to erroll in the study if they had positive pregnancy test results, were in good health, had a history of regular menstrual periods and were no more than 35 days past the expected date of their menses; gestational age was confirmed through a pelvic exam. Exclusion criteria included medical conditions that would contraindicate use of either of the drugs in the treatment regimen, and a history of thromboembolism, liver disease or pruritus of pregnancy (an inflammatory skin condition characterized by severe itching). In addition, women could not participate in the study if they were heavy smokers (defined as having smoked 10 or more cigarettes per day over the prior two years), were using an IUD, were breastfeeding or had a known or suspected ectopic pregnancy.

A total of 1,589 women were randomly assigned to one of two treatment regimens. One group of women was treated with a single oral dose of 600 mg of mifepristone, followed 48 hours later by a 400 mcg oral dose of the prostaglandin misoprostol. Women in the second group received 200 mg of mifepristone, also followed by 400 mcg of misoprostol. The women's vital signs and any side effects of the drug were assessed hourly for three hours after the administration of misoprostol. All women were asked to maintain a diary of side effects (e.g., nausea, vomiting, diarrhea and lower abdominal pain) and to note any days of bleeding during the study period. Study participants were evaluated 15 days and 43 days after beginning treatment.

The mean age of the women in the sample was 27, and approximately two-thirds had ever given birth. At enrollment, the study participants were an average of 19 days past the expected date of menstrual onset. The two treatment groups did not differ significantly on any of these baseline characteristics.

Eighty-nine percent of women who received the 200 mg dose of mifepristone and 88% of those who received the 600 mg dose had a complete abortion without surgical intervention. When the data were reanalyzed to omit 41 cases in which the treatment regimen was not completed properly or the outcome was unknown, the success of the two regimens increased to 92% and 91%, respectively. Some 3% of patients who took the lower dose of mifepristone and 5% of those who took the higher dose had incomplete abortions and required curettage. Three percent of women who received the 200 mg treatment and 2% of those who received the 600 mg treatment had a continuing pregnancy. In about 2% of cases in each group, no cardiac activity was present after treatment, but the gestational sac was not expelled.

Regardless of mifepristone dosage, the likelihood of treatment failure rose with increasing delay in menses (p<.01). Overall, the failure rate was 8% among women with a menstrual delay of no more than 14 days, 11% among those with a delay of 15-21 days and 13% among those with a delay of 22-28 days; that rate rose to 20% among women with a menstrual delay of 29 days or more. Compared with women who had a menstrual delay of fewer than 15 days, women who had a menstrual delay of 22-28 days or 29 days or more had odds of abortion failure more than twice as high (2.2-2.3) after the effects of treatment center were accounted for.* In addition, the proportion of women with a continuing pregnancy after treatment increased significantly with the length of the delay (p<.01), from fewer than 2% among women with a delay of no more than 21 days and 3% among those with a delay of 22-28 days to 9% among those with a delay of 29-35 days.

The dose of mifepristone was not related to the occurrence of side effects. More than 80% of women receiving either dosage regimen reported experiencing lower abdominal pain at some point during treatment, and more than 65% reported experiencing nausea. Nearly 30% of the women in each group reported vomiting, and about 10% reported diarrhea. However, five women who took the higher dose of mifepristone needed a blood transfusion, compared with none of those who took the lower dose of the drug (p=.03). The researchers conclude that, in combination with a 400 mcg dose of misoprostol, a 200 mg dose of mifepristone is as effective as a 600 mg dose for medical termination of pregnancy within the first three weeks after a missed menstrual period. They note, however, that the efficacy of either oral regimen among women with a menstrual delay of more than 21 days "is too low to justify [its use] in such pregnancies."--K. Mahler

Reference

1. World Health Organization Task Force on Post-Ovulatory Methods of Fertility Regulation, Comparison of two doses of mifepristone in combination with misoprostol for early medical abortion: a randomized trial, *British Journal of Obstetrics and Gynaecology*, 2000, 107(4):524-530.

*The center at which a woman received treatment was the only variable with a significant effect on the risk of failure (p<.01).

Hum Reprod 2000 Oct;15(10):2205-8

Randomized comparison of vaginal (200 microg every 3 h) and oral (400 microg every 3 h) misoprostol when combined with mifepristone in termination of second trimester pregnancy.

Ngai SW, Tang OS, Ho PC.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, University of Hong Kong, Queen Mary Hospital, Hong Kong, People's Republic of China.

It is known that when misoprostol is given at 200 microg every 3 h after mifepristone pretreatment, the vaginal route is more effective than the oral route. However, women prefer the oral route. This randomized study was to test our hypothesis that oral misoprostol 400 microg is as effective as vaginal misoprostol 200 microg when given every 3 h in termination of second trimester pregnancy after priming with mifepristone. A total of 142 patients was randomly assigned to group 1 (200 mg mifepristone + 400 microg oral misoprostol every 3 h up to five doses) or group 2 (200 mg mifepristone + 200 microg vaginal misoprostol every 3 h up to five doses). The incidence of side-effects and the preference study were assessed through a standardized questionnaire during and after the abortion. For the oral group, both the incidence of diarrhoea (40.0 versus 23.2%, P = 0.03) and the amount of drug used (1734) compared with 812 microg, P < 0.0001) were significantly higher than that of the vaginal group but the incidence of fever appeared to be lower (not significant). There was no significant difference in complete abortion rate: 81.4% in the oral group and 75.4% in the vaginal group. The median induction-abortion interval was similar in the two groups (10.4 versus 10.0 h). The percentage of women who aborted in 24 h was also similar: 57/70 (81.4%) in the oral group and 58/69 (87.0%) in the vaginal group. Overall, 82.0% of women preferred the oral route. Oral misoprostol (400 microg) given every 3 h up to five doses, when combined with mifepristone, was as effective as the vaginal (200 microg) route in second trimester termination of pregnancy. This regimen could also be offered to those women who found repeated vaginal administration unacceptable.

Publication Types:

- Clinical Trial
- Randomized Controlled Trial

PMID: 11006200 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Journal of Family Planning and Reproductive Health Care 2001 27(2):102

Time to relax the rules about administration of mifepristone

Omokanje S.

Summary

Pre-clinical and clinical data indicate that mifepristone is a safe and effective drug for the termination of pregnancy. The author suggests that it could be given by nursing staff rather than by a doctor, and that the 2-hour post-administration observation period is unnecessary in the majority of cases.

Contraception 64 (2001) 87–92 Original research article

Mifepristone followed on the same day by vaginal misoprostol for early abortion

Helen C. Pymar*, Mitchell D. Creinin, Jill L. Schwartz

Department of Obstetrics, Gynecology and Reproductive Sciences, University of Pittsburgh School of Medicine and Magee Womens Research Institute, Pittsburgh, PA 15213-3180, USA

Received 13 December 2000; received in revised form 9 May 2001; accepted 10 May 2001

Abstract

We performed a pilot study to examine the clinical efficacy of mifepristone 200 mg followed on the same day by misoprostol 800 μ g vaginally in women with pregnancies up to 49 days gestation. Forty women received mifepristone 200 mg after which they self-inserted misoprostol intravaginally 6 to 8 h later at home. Participants returned for an evaluation, including transvaginal ultrasonography, 24 ± 1 h after using the misoprostol. Participants who had not aborted received a second dose of misoprostol to administer 48 h after the mifepristone. All participants returned approximately 2 weeks after receiving mifepristone. At 24 h after receiving misoprostol, 37/40 (92%, 95% CI 81–98%) had ultrasonographic evidence of complete abortion. By follow-up 2 weeks after the mifepristone, 40/40 (100%, 95% CI 92–100%) women were felt to have complete abortions. One subject subsequently had a suction aspiration for an incomplete abortion on study Day 44. Nausea, vomiting, diarrhea, and warmth/chills occurred in 38%, 13%, 13%, and 60%, respectively. This pilot study suggests that mifepristone 200 mg, followed on the same day by misoprostol 800 μ g vaginally, effects abortion at rates comparable to regimens using the standard time interval of 48 h between medications. © 2001 Elsevier Science Inc. All rights reserved.

Keywords: Abortion; Medical abortion; Mifepristone; Misoprostol

The Journal of Family Practice • JANUARY 2001 • Vol. 50, No. 1 POEMs - Patient-Oriented Evidence That Matters

Can vaginal misoprostol be administered 1 to 3 days after mifepristone without loss of efficacy or an increase in adverse events?

Schaff EA, Fielding SL, Westhoff C, et al. Vaginal misoprostol administered 1, 2, or 3 days after mifepristone for early medical abortion: a randomized trial. JAMA 2000; 284:1948-53.

• BACKGROUND The United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA) has approved the use of mifepristone (RU 486) in a protocol for early medical abortion.¹ In that protocol, 600 µg of mifepristone is followed by 400 µg of oral misoprostol 48 hours later. Previous studies have shown that low-dose mifepristone (200 µg) followed 2 days later by 800 µg vaginal misoprostol has fewer side effects and is more effective than the approved protocol. Restricting administration of vaginal misoprostol to a narrow time window 2 days after the mifepristone dose may be inconvenient or unsafe.

• POPULATION STUDIED Healthy pregnant women aged 18 years and older who desired abortions were recruited from 16 sites including hospitals, abortion clinics, family practice offices, and gynecology offices. A total of 2295 women were recruited, and all underwent a transvaginal ultrasound to rule out ectopic pregnancy and to confirm fetal size consistent with a gestation of 56 days or less.

• STUDY DESIGN AND VALIDITY This is an unblinded randomized controlled trial with 3 arms. Subjects were assigned by concealed computer-generated randomization to self-administered 800 μ g misoprostol vaginally either 1 (n=745), 2 (n=778), or 3 (n=772) days after a 200- μ g dose of mifepristone.

This study is large enough to detect a difference in rate of complete medical abortion of 5% or greater. Very few patients were lost to follow-up (40/2295, 1.7%). Researchers first analyzed the data for all women in each group (intention-to-treat analysis) and then repeated the analysis on those subjects who actually complied with the study protocol by using the misoprostol on the assigned day.

OUTCOMES MEASURED Complete medical abortion without surgical intervention was the primary outcome.
RESULTS There was no statistically significant difference in the percentage of women who had complete medical abortions across the 3 groups. The percentages of complete medical abortions for the day 1 and day 2 groups were both 98% (95% confidence interval [CI], 97%-99%), and for the day 3 group it was 96% (95% CI, 95%-97%). More than 90% of subjects in all 3 arms agreed or strongly agreed that the overall procedure was acceptable. Those subjects assigned to the day 3 group were significantly less satisfied with the wait time to complete abortion. Among the subjects in the day 3 group, 56 (7%) admitted to not taking the misoprostol on the assigned day compared with 26 (3%) subjects in the day 1 group and 21 (3%) in the day 2 group.

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR CLINICAL PRACTICE

Low-dose mifepristone (200 μ g) followed 1 to 3 days later by 800 μ g of self-administered vaginal misoprostol is a safe and effective procedure for early medical abortion. Rigid adherence to the oral administration of misoprostol in a medical office 48 hours after mifepristone is not necessary either from a safety or efficacy perspective. Administration of misoprostol 1 or 2 days after mifepristone is preferable, since patients in the day 3 group found the wait less acceptable. Information is available on the Internet about FDA special requirements and approved protocols involving mifepristone.¹

Caroline R. Richardson, MD

University of Michigan, Ann Arbor

E-mail: Caroli@umich.edu

REFERENCE

 US Food and Drug Administration. Mifepristone information. Available on-line at: www.fda.gov/cder/drug/infopage/mifepristone. Accessed November 22, 2000. Contraception 64 (2001) 81-85 Original research article

Randomized trial of oral versus vaginal misoprostol at one day after mifepristone for early medical abortion

Eric A. Schaff^{a,*}, Stephen L. Fielding^a, Carolyn Westhoff^b

^aDepartment of Family Medicine, University of Rochester School of Medicine, Rochester, NY 14620, USA ^bDepartment of Obstetrics and Gynecology and School of Public Health, Columbia University, New York, NY 10032, USA

Received 14 February 2001; received in revised form 3 May 2001; accepted 9 May 2001

Abstract

Mifepristone was recently approved in the United States. Regimens with shorter intervals may be more acceptable. The objective of this study was to determine whether the oral route of misoprostol was as effective as the vaginal route of misoprostol 1 day after mifepristone. A prospective, open-labeled, randomized trial of healthy adult women up to 63 days pregnant and wanting a medical abortion were randomized to use either two doses of oral misoprostol 400 μ g taken 2 h apart or misoprostol 800 μ g vaginally. Women self-administered misoprostol 1 day after taking one-third of the standard dose of mifepristone (200 mg) orally. Women then returned to the clinic up to 5 days later for a repeat sonogram evaluation. A dose of vaginal misoprostol was administered to women with a continuing pregnancy who then returned 1 day later to Day 15. The primary outcome measures were a complete medical abortion by the first or by the second follow-up visits. Surgical intervention was indicated for continuing pregnancy at the second follow-up visit, excessive bleeding, or persistent products of conception 5 weeks later. One thousand one hundred sixty-eight women were enrolled. Of the 1144 (98%) women who complied with their random assignment, two oral doses of misoprostol (800 μ g total) were 90% effective at inducing an abortion by the first follow-up visit, compared with one dose of misoprostol by vaginal of 97% ($\chi^2 = 23.95$, p = 0.001). By the second follow-up visit, the complete abortion rate was 95% for oral misoprostol and 99% for vaginal misoprostol ($\chi^2 = 21.76$, p = 0.001). There were minimal differences in side effects. Women preferred the oral route. The trial demonstrated that although two doses of oral misoprostol were effective, the vaginal misoprostol was more effective at inducing an early medical abortion at 1 day after low-dose mifepristone, and the regimen could be extended to 63 days gestation. © 2001 Elsevier Science Inc. All rights reserved.

Keywords: Abortion; Mifepristone; Misoprostol

Contraception 2001 May;63(5):251-4

Mifepristone and misoprostol for early abortion when no gestational sac is present.

Schaff EA, Fielding SL, Eisinger S, Stadalius L.

Reproductive Health Program, Department of Family Medicine, University of Rochester School of Medicine, Rochester, NY, USA. eschaff@aol.com

The study was conducted to determine whether the administration of mifepristone followed by vaginal misoprostol can induce an abortion in early pregnancy when no gestational sac is present on sonogram. This report presents a prospective, pilot study of 30 healthy adult women, pregnant and seeking an abortion, and with no gestational sac on sonogram. All women had a baseline serum chorionic gonadotropin (hCG) level measured prior to using mifepristone 200 mg orally followed by misoprostol 800 mcg vaginally 48 h later, and then returned up to 4 days later for a repeat sonogram and serum hCG level. Women with initial hCG levels > 2000 IU/L were evaluated for ectopic pregnancy. At the first follow-up visit, if the hCG decreased by >50%, the women were followed with home pregnancy (25 IU/L) tests weekly until negative. If the levels did not decrease by 50%, a second dose of misoprostol was given. Surgical intervention was indicated for persistent hCG levels or excessive bleeding. Of the 30 women enrolled, the mean number of days of amenorrhea was 40 (SD 9) days. Two women had surgical intervention for continuing pregnancy, 2 had ectopic pregnancies, and 1 was lost to follow-up. Complete medical abortions occurred in 25/30 (88%) women, but when recalculated, in 25/27 (93%) women who completed the protocol and who did not have an ectopic pregnancy. There was 1 adverse event in a woman with an ongoing pregnancy who then received methotrexate. She was hospitalized a day later with a complicated pelvic infection and likely methotrexate-induced pneumonitis. Twenty-three women had a decrease in hCG at first follow-up visit of >50%. All 27 women who completed the protocol found the overall regimen acceptable. Mifepristone followed at 48 h by vaginal misoprostol were effective and acceptable in inducing an abortion in very early pregnancy. There may be a higher incidence of failure in very early pregnancies. Documentation of a complete abortion by hCG level is necessary to ensure the pregnancy is neither ongoing nor ectopic.

Publication Types:

Clinical Trial

PMID: 11448464 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

JAMA 2000 Oct 18;284(15):1948-53

Erratum in:

JAMA 2000 Nov 22-29;284(20):2597

Vaginal misoprostol administered 1, 2, or 3 days after mifepristone for early medical abortion: A randomized trial.

Schaff EA, Fielding SL, Westhoff C, Ellertson C, Eisinger SH, Stadalius LS, Fuller L.

Reproductive Health Program, Department of Family Medicine, University of Rochester School of Medicine, 1000 South Ave, Box 101, Rochester, NY 14620, USA. eschaff@aol.com

CONTEXT: The conventional timing of misoprostol administration after mifepristone for medical abortion is 2 days, but more flexible intervals, which may make the regimen more convenient, have not been studied. OBJECTIVE: To determine whether vaginal misoprostol administered 1, 2, or 3 days after mifepristone influences safety or effectiveness for abortion at up to 56 days' gestation. DESIGN: Prospective, randomized, open-label trial conducted from March 1998 to June 1999. SETTING: Sixteen US primary care and referral abortion facilities. PATIENTS: A total of 2295 healthy patients aged 18 years or older who were 56 or fewer days pregnant. Forty (1.7%) were lost to follow-up. INTERVENTIONS: Patients received 200 mg of oral mifepristone and were randomly assigned to self-administer 800 microg of vaginal misoprostol at home 1 (n = 745), 2 (n = 778), or 3 (n = 772) days later. Women returned to the clinic up to 8 days after mifepristone for ultrasonographic evaluation. A second dose of misoprostol was administered if the abortion was not complete. Patients with continuing pregnancy, excessive bleeding, or retained pregnancy tissue 5 weeks later received an aspiration curettage. MAIN OUTCOME MEASURES: Effectiveness of the procedure (ie, a complete medical abortion without surgical intervention), adverse effects, acceptability of the procedure based on patient questionnaires, reasons for surgical intervention, and adverse outcomes, compared among the study groups. RESULTS: Of the 2255 women completing followup, complete medical abortion rates were 98% (95% confidence interval [CI], 97%-99%) among those using misoprostol after 1 day, 98% (95% CI, 97%-99%) for those using misoprostol after 2 days, and 96% (95% CI, 95%-97%) among those using misoprostol after 3 days. Fifty-five subjects aborted before taking misoprostol, 9 had early surgery, and 103 did not take misoprostol on their assigned day. No blood transfusions were required. Cramping and nausea were the most common adverse effects reported, with similar percentages of patients in all 3 groups reporting such effects. Thirteen unexpected or serious adverse events occurred: 6 in those using misoprostol after 1 day; 4 in those using it after 2 days; and 3 in those using it after 3 days. Nearly all women (>90%) found the procedure to be acceptable. CONCLUSIONS: Our results suggest that vaginal misoprostol, 800 microg, can be used from 1 to 3 days after mifepristone, 200 mg, for early medical abortion, and need not be administered strictly 48 hours after mifepristone. JAMA. 2000:284:1948-1953.

Publication Types:

- Clinical Trial
- Multicenter Study
- Randomized Controlled Trial

PMID: 11035891 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

2000 American Heart Association, Inc.

Circulation. 2000;102:e9030.)

Cardiovascular News

Ruth SoRelle, MPH, Circulation Newswriter

Abortion Pill Gets FDA Approval

The FDA approved the controversial abortion pill called mifepristone or RU 486 on September 28, 2000, provoking expected responses from both sides of the abortion issue. Supporters of abortion hailed the ruling for giving women the ability to have abortions in privacy and making abortion available through private physicians who have previously not provided that service when it involved a surgical procedure. Those opposed to abortions vowed to fight the decision legislatively and in the courts.

FDA officials denied that politics played a part in the decision. However, the road to approval for the abortion pill has been long and arduous. Approval has been opposed in Congress, and the FDA's newest ruling is destined to play a part in the ongoing race for the US Presidency. Doctors who prescribe the drug must be able to determine how long a woman has been pregnant and to ensure that women who take it have access to and agree to have a surgical abortion if the pill does not work. In tests, the abortion pill failed to cause a complete abortion in 5% of cases. Women take RU 486 or mifepristone first to block the action of progesterone, the drug needed to maintain a pregnancy. After 36 to 48 hours, the woman takes a second drug called misoprostol to cause the body to expel the fetal tissue. Side effects include bleeding, cramping, headaches, vomiting, and diarrhea. All women must receive written instructions on using the pill and information about its side effects.

Contraception 2001 Jul;64(1):29-32

Second trimester medical abortion with mifepristone and gemeprost: a review of 956 cases.

Tang OS, Thong KJ, Baird DT.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, University of Edinburgh, Centre for Reproductive Biology, Edinburgh, Scotland, UK.

The treatment outcomes of 956 women undergoing second trimester termination of pregnancy with mifepristone and gemeprost were studied. The median gestational age was 16 weeks (range: 12-24 weeks). All women were treated with 200 mg mifepristone orally, followed 36 h later with 1 mg vaginal gemeprost administered every 6 h to a maximum of 4 doses in the first 24 h. A second course of 1 mg vaginal gemeprost was given 3-hourly in the next 12 h, if abortion had not occurred. Overall, 96.4% and 98.8% of the women aborted within 24 and 36 h, respectively. The median induction-to-abortion interval was 7.8 h (range: 0.5-109.9 h). The induction-abortion interval was longer in nulliparous women and women with a gestation age 17 weeks or above. Surgical evacuation of the uterus was performed in 11.5% of women for incomplete abortion or retained placenta. More multiparous women (7.3%; p <0.001). Ten (0.1%) women failed to abort with gemeprost and required other methods for abortion. In conclusion, a combination of mifepristone and gemeprost is a safe, effective, and noninvasive method of medical abortion for second trimester pregnancy.

PMID: 11535210 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

BMJ 2000;321:1041 (28 October)

News roundup

Abortion pill withdrawn in Germany after financial losses

Annette Tuffs Heidelberg

Distribution of the abortion pill, mifepristone (Mifegyne), in Germany is to be stopped by the end of 2000.

The company that distributes the drug, Femagen in Bavaria, announced last week that it will stop distributing it to doctors and hospitals by the end of 2000 because of huge financial losses. Femagen orders the pill from the French producer Exelgyn.

This year 96% of all abortions in Germany have still been carried out by surgery, and Femagen handled only 600 prescriptions a month instead of the expected minimum of 2000.

This recent development adds another chapter to the difficult story of the introduction of mifepristone in Germany. After long discussions and strong opposition from the church and conservative politicians, mifepristone was finally introduced last year as an alternative to surgery.

According to Petra Schoettler, managing director of Femagen, the main reason for the pill's failure is the low profit margin for pharmaceutical abortion compared with surgical abortion. Doctors are paid about DM500 (£148; \$207) for a surgical abortion, but they receive just DM120 for prescribing mifepristone and the three necessary medical examinations of the patient, which, according to gynaecologists, does not cover their costs.

In addition, most women seeking an abortion have a very low income. Costs of the abortion are usually not paid by health insurance, and, when a patient's income falls below a certain level, the costs must be covered by the federal states.

Not all the states, however, cover the entire cost of mifepristone treatment. Women who do not receive social benefits are sometimes faced with a charge of DM800. Furthermore, the law permits direct distribution only to doctors and hospitals, which adds to the cost of mifepristone compared with drugs dispensed over the counter.

Meanwhile, Exelgyn is looking for a new partner firm in Germany. Politicians, although enraged by this recent development, see no direct possibility of intervening as it is the responsibility of the doctors' associations and the health insurance companies to set rates of payment for standard treatments.

Contraception 2000 Dec;62(6):311-4

Analgesia during at-home use of misoprostol as part of a medical abortion regimen.

Westhoff C, Dasmahapatra R, Schaff E.

College of Physicians and Surgeons, Columbia University, 630 West 168 St., New York, NY, USA. clw3@columbia.edu

The objective of this study was to identify predictors of narcotic analgesic use during medical abortion. Two-thousand-seven-hundred-forty-seven women with pregnancies of 63 days gestational age or less received 200 mg mifepristone followed by at-home use of 800 microg vaginal misoprostol in two consecutive clinical trials in the United States, and also reported their use of analgesics. Overall, 79% of these subjects used narcotic analgesics. Women in the 2nd of the two studies were randomized to use misoprostol 24, 48, or 72 h after mifepristone. Those who were randomized to 24 h were more likely to use narcotic analgesics than those who were randomized to 48 or 72 h. In both studies, the use of narcotic analgesia during medical abortion was less prevalent among parous women and Asian women, and among those with a gestational age of 56 days or less. The clinic providing care for the patient was the most important determinant of narcotic analgesia use, even though the analgesia was used at home. Use of narcotic analgesics in these women undergoing medical abortion at home was more prevalent than use reported in previous studies where women underwent medical abortion in a clinical setting.

Publication Types:

- Clinical Trial
- Multicenter Study
- Randomized Controlled Trial

PMID: 11239618 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Acta Obstet Gynecol Scand 2001 May;80(5):447-51

Medical abortion at 57 to 63 days' gestation with a lower dose of mifepristone and gemeprost. A randomized controlled trial.

World Health Organization Task Force on Post-ovulatory Methods of Fertility Regulation.

OBJECTIVE: To compare the abortifacient efficacy and side-effects of 200 mg and 600 mg of mifepristone, followed by gemeprost 1 mg vaginally, at 57 to 63 days' gestation, DESIGN: Double-blind, randomized controlled trial. SETTING: Ten international centers. SUBJECTS: Eight hundred and ninety-six healthy women requesting medical abortion. INTERVENTIONS: Participants were randomly assigned to receive a single oral dose of mifepristone of either 200 mg or 600 mg followed in 48 h by gemeprost 1 mg vaginally. The allocation sequence was concealed by using a central pharmacy, and double masking was maintained throughout the study. MAIN OUTCOME MEASURES: Complete abortion rate was the principal outcome measure. We also evaluated the incidence of side-effects and time to abort. RESULTS: The complete abortion rate with the lower dose of mifepristone was similar to that with the higher dose (92.4% vs. 91.7%). The relative risk of failure to achieve a complete abortion with the 200 mg dose compared to 600 mg dose was 0.9 (95% CI 0.6-1.4). The timing of the abortion and the incidence of side-effects were comparable in both groups, with the exception of reported nausea at one-week follow-up which was reported more frequently by women in the higher-dose group. CONCLUSIONS: The 200 mg dose of mifepristone is equally as effective as the 600 mg dose in the antiprogestogen-prostaglandin regimen for pregnancy termination. With vaginal gemeprost, the abortifacient efficacy of the regimen remains high at 57-63 days' gestation.

Publication Types:

- Clinical Trial
- Multicenter Study
- Randomized Controlled Trial

PMID: 11328223 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

BJOG 2001 Jul;108(7):738-42

Lowering the doses of mifepristone and gameprost for early abortion: a randomised controlled trial. World Health Organization Task Force on Post-ovulatory Methods for Fertility Regulation.

OBJECTIVE: To test the efficacy of lower doses of mifepristone and gemeprost for medical induction of early abortion. DESIGN: Randomised controlled trial. Participants were blinded as to the therapy and physicians to the dose of mifepristone. SETTING: Thirteen hospital gynaecological units in different continents. PARTICIPANTS: 1,224 healthy pregnant women requesting medical abortion at <57 days from last menses. INTERVENTION: Random allocation to one of four regimens: mifepristone 50 mg by mouth followed by either 0.5 mg or 1.0 mg gemeprost vaginally on day 3; mifepristone 200 mg by mouth followed by either 0.5 mg or 1.0 mg gemeprost vaginally. We concealed the allocation sequence from clinicians enrolling participants, and maintained double blinding throughout. MAIN OUTCOME MEASURES: Incidence of complete abortion; subordinate outcome measures included side effects such as vomiting and fall in haemoglobin, as well as the need for emergency curettage and blood transfusion. RESULTS: The success rate was significantly related to the dose of mifepristone. The relative risk of failure to have a complete abortion with the lower dose of mifepristone was 1.6 (95% CI: 1.1-2.3) times that with the higher dose. The relative risk of failure with the lower dose of gemeprost (1.3; 95% CI: 0.9-1.8) did not reach statistical significance. CONCLUSIONS: A single dose of mifepristone 50 mg followed by gemeprost is inadequate for early medical abortion. There was no significant difference in side effects between the four treatment groups.

Publication Types: Clinical Trial Multicenter Study Randomized Controlled Trial

PMID: 11467701 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Int J Gynaecol Obstet 2001 Mar;72(3):245-51

Termination of early pregnancy in the scarred uterus with mifepristone and misoprostol.

Xu J, Chen H, Ma T, Wu X.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology, Tongji Hospital, Tongji Medical College, Huazhong University of Science and Technology, Wuhan, 430030, PR China. jpxu@tjh.tjmu.edu.cn

OBJECTIVE: To analyze the safety and possibility of terminating early pregnancy up to 49 days gestation after cesarean section with mifepristone and misoprostol. METHODS: Onehundred and ninety-two early pregnant women were recruited, of which, 35 cases with uterine cicatrix and 157 cases were no-uterine cicatrix as control group. All of them took 25 mg of mifepristone, b.i.d. for 3 days and 600 microg of misoprostol on the 4th day. RESULTS: Of the 35 cases with uterine cicatrix, 33 achieved complete abortion after medical abortion. The complete abortion rate was 94.29% (95% CI 81-99%) in the cicatrix group and 89.81% (95% CI 75-91%) in the control group. There were no obvious complications detected in the cicatrix group. CONCLUSION: For the termination of early pregnancy in scarred uterus, administration of mifepristone and misoprostol is safe and effective, and a further large series study needs be done to confirm its acceptability as a routine medication in such situations.

Publication Types:

Clinical Trial

PMID: 11226445 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

2. Long-term Treatment with Mifepristone

Clin Endocrinol Metab 2001 Aug;86(8):3568-73

Successful long-term treatment of refractory Cushing's disease with high-dose mifepristone (RU 486).

Chu JW, Matthias DF, Belanoff J, Schatzberg A, Hoffman AR, Feldman D.

Department of Medicine, Stanford University School of Medicine, Stanford, California 94305, USA.

An extremely ill patient, with Cushing's syndrome caused by an ACTH-secreting pituitary macroadenoma, experienced complications of end-stage cardiomyopathy, profound psychosis, and multiple metabolic disturbances. Initially treated unsuccessfully by a combination of conventional surgical, medical, and radiotherapeutic approaches, he responded dramatically to high-dose long-term mifepristone therapy (up to 25 mg/kg x d). Treatment efficacy was confirmed by the normalization of all biochemical glucocorticoid-sensitive measurements, as well as by the significant reversal of the patient's heart failure, the resolution of his psychotic depression, and the eventual unusual return of his adrenal axis to normal. His 18-month-long mifepristone treatment course was notable for development of severe hypokalemia that was attributed to excessive cortisol activation of the mineralocorticoid receptor, which responded to spironolactone administration. This case illustrates the efficacy of high-dose long-term treatment with mifepristone in refractory Cushing's syndrome. The case also demonstrates the potential need for concomitant mineralocorticoid receptor blockade in mifepristone-treated Cushing's disease, because cortisol levels may rise markedly, reflecting corticotroph disinhibition, to cause manifestations of mineralocorticoid excess.

PMID: 11502780 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]
Program/Proceedings American Society of Clinical Oncology, Thirty-Seventh Annual Meeting, May 12-15, 2001, SanFrancisco, CA Vol 20, page 56a, Poster 222

Phase III Double-Blind Randomized Placebo-Controlled Study of Mifepristone (RU) for the Treatment of Unresectable Meningioma

S.M. Grunberg, C. Rankin, J. Townsend, J. Ahmadi, L. Feun, R. Fredericks, C. Russell, F. Kabbinavar, G. R. Barger, K.J. Stelzer; Southwest Oncology Group, Burlington, VT; Eastern Cooperative Oncology Group, Brookline, MA

Meningiomas (M), which are 3 times more common in women as in men, are often progesterone receptor positive but seldom estrogen receptor positive. We have therefore studied the antiprogestin RU for the treatment of unresectable M. A previous open-label pilot study in which 8/28 patients (pts) receiving RU showed clinical benefit justified this trial. In the present study adults with unresectable histologically confirmed nonmalignant M which had appeared (22%) or progressed (78%) within 2 years were ramdomized to receive blinded RU 200 mg po qd or placebo (P) with an endpoint of freedom from progression (FFP) for the next 2 years. Progression was defined as anatomic growth or neurologic deterioration. 193 pts were entered with 160 (80 per arm) fully evaluable. Median age was 57 with 30% male, 19% premenopausal female, and 51% postmenopausal female. 29% had received prior radiotherapy. There was no significant difference in response between the arms. 2 RU pts and 1 P pt had partial or unconfirmed responses. Median FFP was 10 months for RU and 12 months for P (p=0.44). Treatment was generally well tolerated with the most common toxicities being fatigue (72% RU vs 54% P), headache (44% RU vs 41% P), and hot flashes (38% RU vs 26% P). 9 RU pts (16% of female RU pts) also developed endometrial hyperplasia. Although increased FFP was not demonstrated in this population, prolonged treatment with an antiprogestin (RU) was safe and feasible. Antiprogestins may be useful in the chronic treatment of other progesterone-dependent conditions.

Steroids 2000 Oct-Nov;65(10-11):831-6

Alterations in sex steroids and gonadotropins in post-menopausal women subsequent to long-term mifepristone administration.

Heikinheimo O, Ranta S, Grunberg S, Spitz IM.

Steroid Research Laboratory, Department of Biomedicine, University of Helsinki, Helsinki, Finland. Oskari.Heikinheimo@Helsinki.fi

Long-term administration of progesterone antagonists (PAs) and progesterone receptor modulators (PRMs) has been proposed as a novel hormonal therapy for various hormone dependent maladies. We studied the long-term endocrine effects of mifepristone on the kinetics of estradiol (E(2)) and its precursors, and on gonadotropin levels in five postmenopausal women treated for unresectable meningioma with mifepristone [200 mg/day] for at least 15 months. Serum samples were analyzed for LH, FSH and SHBG with fluoroimmunoassay; androstenedione (A), testosterone (T), estrone (E(1)) and E(2) were measured with radioimmunoassay (RIA). Serum levels of mifepristone were measured using both RIA and high performance-liquid chromatography (HPLC). Serum levels (mean +/- SD) of LH and FSH were suppressed from pretreatment values of 32 +/- 16 and 65 +/- 30 IU/l to 13 ± 7 and 33 ± 16 IU/l at 6 months (P < 0.05), respectively. Serum (mean ± 7 SD) A, T, E(1), and E(2) were increased from initial values of $6.9 \pm 0.9 \text{ nmol/l}$, $1.2 \pm 0.3 \text{ nmol/l}$, 77 +/- 25 pmol/l, and 29 +/- 14 pmol/l to 6 month values of 13.1 +/- 5.6 nmol/l, 1.8 +/- 0.6 nmol/l, 178 +/- 60 pmol/l, and 45 +/- 22 pmol/l (n.s.). The correlation coefficients between the levels of A, T, E(1), and E(2) were statistically significant, whereas the ratios of T/A, E(1)/A, E(2)/E(1), and E(2)/T remained unchanged. The levels of SHBG remained stable, and ranged from 48 +/- 10 to 65 +/- 9 nmol/l (mean +/- SD). Thus, prolonged mifepristone treatment marginally increased the serum levels of A, T, E(1) and E(2). These effects of mifepristone are likely due to its antiglucocorticoid effect and thus increased secretion of adrenal A. Serum levels of LH and FSH declined. The serum levels of gonadotropins and those of T, E(1) and E(2) were inversely, yet significantly, correlated. Therefore the decrease in LH and FSH might reflect the slightly increased levels of T, E(1) and E(2). However, the lack of change in SHBG and the low E(2) levels suggest that enhanced systemic estrogen effects are unlikely during long-term mifepristone treatment.

PMID: 11108895 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Clin Endocrinol (Oxf) 2001 Mar;54(3):399-404

Long-term mifepristone (RU486) therapy resulting in massive benign endometrial hyperplasia.

Newfield RS, Spitz IM, Isacson C, New MI.

Department of Paediatrics, The New York Hospital--Cornell Medical Center, New York, NY, USA.

Mifepristone (RU486) is a potent antiprogestagen, and at high doses it also acts as an antiglucocorticoid drug. Mifepristone, administered as a single 600 mg dose, is commonly employed to induce medical abortion in conjunction with prostaglandins. The long-term safety profile of mifepristone, especially at high doses, is less well-established. Long-term mifepristone is considered efficacious in treating uterine myomas, endometriosis (25--100 mg/day), and possibly in inoperable meningiomas (200 mg/day), as well as inoperable Cushing's syndrome. Many animal studies document an antiproliferative effect (antioestrogenic), as do some reports in humans. However, there are also data to suggest that. as an antiprogestagen, mifepristone may promote an unopposed oestrogen milieu, and thus have a proliferative effect upon the endometrium. We hereby describe the first reported case of an adolescent female with Cushingoid features and morbid osteoporosis who was treated with mifepristone for its antiglucocorticoid effect (400 mg/day) in an attempt to prevent further bone loss. The patient's striae, weight gain, and buffalo hump markedly improved, and further bone loss was halted. However, with each of the two 6-month courses of mifepristone (9 months apart) she developed massive simple endometrial hyperplasia and a markedly enlarged uterus. This reversed to normal after cessation of mifepristone treatment. In conclusion, High doses of the antiprogestagen mifepristone over a prolonged period of time may promote an unopposed oestrogen milieu leading to endometrial hyperplasia. Therefore, interval pelvic imaging in women who receive long-term mifepristone may be prudent.

PMID: 11298094 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

3. Termination for Fetal Anomaly or Death

Eur J Obstet Gynecol Reprod Biol 2001 Mar;95(1):52-4

Second trimester termination of pregnancy for fetal anomaly or death: comparing mifepristone/misoprostol to gemeprost.

le Roux PA, Pahal GS, Hoffman L, Nooh R, El-Refaey H, Rodeck CH.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, University College Hospital, London, UK. pleroux@iafrica.com

OBJECTIVE: To assess the effect of changing the regimen for second trimester induction of labour from gemeprost to mifepristone/misoprostol. DESIGN and SETTING: A retrospective study at a university teaching hospital over the 5-year period 1993-1997. SUBJECTS, METHODS and REGIMENS: 68 patients, 34 in the gemeprost group and 34 in the mifepristone/misoprostol group. The gemeprost group received 1mg vaginally every 3h to a maximum of five doses. The mifepristone/misoprostol group were pre-treated with 600 mg mifepristone orally followed by 800 microg misoprostol vaginally and then 400 microg orally every 3h to a maximum of four oral doses. MAIN OUTCOME MEASURES: Induction to abortion interval; delivery within 24h. RESULTS: The mifepristone/misoprostol group had a lower induction to abortion interval compared to the gemeprost group (median 8.9h versus 19.8h, respectively, p<0.01). The mifepristone/misoprostol regimen was more successful than the gemeprost regimen; 94% versus 68%, respectively, aborted without extra medical or surgical intervention, p=0.02. There were no significant differences in side effects, analgesia requirements or complications between the two groups. Three patients with previous Caesarean sections had a ruptured uterus; two from the gemeprost group and one from the mifepristone/misoprostol group. CONCLUSIONS: The new mifepristone/misoprostol regimen was more effective in second trimester induction of labour. Induction of labour with misoprostol or gemeprost should be used with care in patients with a previous Caesarean section.

PMID: 11267720 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

4. Cervical Ripening

Eur J Obstet Gynecol Reprod Biol 2001 Jul;97(1):30-4

The effects of mifepristone on uterine sensitivity to oxytocin and on fetal heart rate patterns.

Giacalone PL, Daures JP, Faure JM, Boulot P, Hedon B, Laffargue F.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology, Hopital Arnaud de Villeneuve, University of Montpellier, 371 rue du Doyen Gaston Giraud, 34295 Montpellier Cedex 5, France. plgiacalone@chu-montpellier.fr

OBJECTIVE: To compare the incidences of tachysystole, hypertonia and fetal heart rate (FHR) abnormalities in women treated by mifepristone plus prostaglandins (PGs), mifepristone alone or PGs alone for an unfavourable cervix. STUDY DESIGN: In this retrospective study, all women between 37 and 42 weeks were eligible for the study if they had undergone cervical ripening prior to labour induction. In group 1, the women were treated with mifepristone plus PGs (n=103). Group 2 women were treated with mifepristone alone (n=96) and group 3 women with PGs alone (n=100). Incidences of tachysystole, hypertonia and FHR abnormalities were compared. RESULTS: During induction of labour, tachysystole and hypertonia occurred more frequently in women treated with mifepristone. Severe bradycardia and recurrent late decelerations were more frequent after the initiation of oxytocin in groups 1 and 2 than in group 3. CONCLUSIONS: In this study, mifepristone increased the incidences of tachysystole, hypertonia and FHR abnormality.

PMID: 11435005 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Obstet Gynecol 2000 Oct;96(4):543-8

Mifepristone for preinduction cervical ripening beyond 41 weeks' gestation: a randomized controlled trial.

Wing DA, Fassett MJ, Mishell DR.

Department of Obstetrics-Gynecology, Division of Maternal-Fetal Medicine, Women's & Children's Hospital, Keck School of Medicine of the University of Southern California, Los Angeles, California 90033, dwing@hsc.usc.edu

OBJECTIVE: To compare the effect of mifepristone with placebo on cervical ripening before labor induction in prolonged pregnancies. METHODS: One hundred eighty women with pregnancies beyond 41 weeks and undilated, uneffaced cervices were assigned randomly to receive mifepristone 200 mg or placebo and observed for 24 hours. We then gave intravaginal misoprostol 25 microg every 4 hours or intravenous oxytocin. We expected 60% of placebo-treated and 80% of mifepristone-treated women to deliver vaginally within 48 hours. RESULTS: Among 180 subjects, 97 received mifepristone and 83 received placebo. The mean interval (+/- standard deviation [SD]) from start of induction to delivery was 2209 +/- 698 minutes for mifepristone-treated subjects and 2671 +/- 884 minutes for placebotreated subjects (P <.001, log-transformed data). Twelve (13, 6%) mifepristone-treated women and seven (10.8%) placebo-treated women delivered vaginally on day 1 (P = .60). After 24 hours, the median Bishop score for both groups was 3 (0-11) (P = .51). One hundred thirty-one subjects required misoprostol, 65 (67.0%) were mifepristone-treated women, and 66 (79.5%) placebo-treated women (P = .06). The median (range) oxytocin dose was 871.5 (0-22,174) mU for mifepristone-treated women and 2021.0 (0-24,750) mU for placebotreated women (P = .02). Seventy-seven (87.5%) mifepristone-treated women and 46 (70.8%) placebo-treated women delivered vaginally 48 hours after the start of treatment (P = .01). There were nine cesareans in the mifepristone group and 18 in the placebo group (P = .02). More nonreassuring fetal heart rate patterns and uterine contractile abnormalities occurred in mifepristone-treated subjects. There were no statistically significant differences in neonatal outcomes between groups. CONCLUSION: Mifepristone had a modest effect on cervical ripening when given 24 hours before labor induction, appearing to reduce the need for misoprostol and oxytocin compared with placebo.

Publication Types:

- Clinical Trial
- Randomized Controlled Trial

PMID: 11004356 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

ATTACHMENT 12

Completed Unpublished Clinical Trial

The following clinical trial was conducted with the Exelgyn drug product, Mifegyne[®]:

COMPARISON OF ABORTIONS INDUCED BY METHOTREXATE OR MIFEPRISTONE FOLLOWED BY MISOPROSTOL. Ellen Wiebe, Sheila Dunn, Edith Guilbert, Francis Jacot, Lisa Lugtig. A randomized non-blinded controlled trial.

Mifepristone has recently been approved in the US but is still unavailable in Canada and many other countries. It is much more expensive than methotrexate which is widely available. No other study has compared these two methods of inducing early abortion. Five abortion clinics across Canada were setting the study. 1001 women 16 years and older at 49 days gestation or less presenting for abortion were included. A randomised non-blinded controlled trial comparing methotrexate 50mg/m² followed 4-6 days later by 800µg vaginal misoprostol to mifepristone 600mg orally followed 36-48 hours by 400µg oral misoprostol.

There were 505 women in the methotrexate group and 494 women in the mifepristone group. In the methotrexate group, 20 women had surgery, 2 for continuing pregnancy, 8 due to doctor's request (usually for excessive bleeding) and 10 due to patient's request. In the mifepristone group, 22 women had surgery, 17 due to the doctor's request, 5 due to the patient's request and none for continuing pregnancy. By D8, only 374 in the methotrexate group had completed the abortion compared to 453 in the mifepristone group and the mean number of days from beginning to completion was 6.9 for methotrexate and 3.2 for mifepristone (p=.000). The mean worst pain on a scale from 0 to 10 was 6.4 for methotrexate and 5.8 for mifepristone (p=.001). The mean number of days of bleeding was 12.8 for methotrexate and 14.6 for mifepristone (p=.005). There were no differences in complications. Eleven women visited a hospital, 22 women were treated for excessive bleeding but no one needed a transfusion and 8 women received antibiotics for possible infection. Side effects were similar with mifepristone causing more headache and methotrexate causing more diarrhea. Acceptance was slightly higher with mifepristone (413/466) than with methotrexate (389/464). In conclusion, abortion induced with mifepristone completed faster than those induced with methotrexate but the overall success rates, side effects and complications were similar. Acceptance was slightly higher with mifepristone than methotrexate.

Source: Exelgyn Laboratory Periodic Safety Update Report No. 12, December 1, 2000 to May 31, 2001, Page 9.

Completed Unpublished Clinical Trial

The following clinical trial was conducted with the Exelgyn drug product, Mifegyne[®]:

MANAGEMENT OF MISSED ABORTION

Comparison of medical treatment with either mifepristone+misoprostol or misoprostol alone with surgical evacuation

A. Grønlund, L. Grønlund, L. Clevin, B. Andersen, N. Palmgren, Ø. Lidegaard.

Multi-centre trial, Copenhagen Country, Denmark

The objective is to compare the efficacy of two different medical treatment regimens: Mifepristone 600mg orally + misoprostol 0.4mg vaginally (Mf+Ms) or Misoprostol 0.4mg (Ms) vaginally with conventional surgical evacuation (SE) in women with missed abortion.

176 women with missed abortion accepted to participate in the study during the period October 1999 to October 2000.

A prospective crossover study with alternating regimens every four months.

The main outcome measures are the proportion of women, who needed surgical evacuation after medical treatment and the number of women who needed re-evacuation after primary surgical evacuation, duration of vaginal bleeding.

treated infections, the need of analgesics, and subjective experiences from the participating women.

54, 73 and 49 patients were randomised to Mf+Ms, Ms and SE, respectively. Within one week, complete expulsion occurred in 40 (74%), 52 (71%), 47 (96%) of the three arms, respectively. Duration of bleeding was 7.0, 7.0 and 2.5 days, respectively. Women with an initial plasma chorionic gonadotrophin (β -hCG) between 2,000 and 20,000 IU/I had significantly better response to the medical treatment than women not fulfilling these criteria. Initial plasma – (p)-progesterone did not correlate to success of medical treatment.

In conclusion, vaginal misoprostol 0.4mg - 0.6mg is effective in most patients with missed abortion. Pre-treatment with the anti-progesterone mifepristone does not increase the success rate. Selection of women with missed abortion for medical treatment from gestational age (GA) and initial β -hCG level may increase the success of medical treatment significantly.

Source: Exelgyn Laboratory Periodic Safety Update Report No. 12, December 1, 2000 to May 31, 2001, Pages 10-11.

Completed Unpublished Clinical Trial

The following clinical trial was conducted with the Exelgyn drug product, Mifegyne[®]:

MIFEPRISTONE-MISOPROSTOL MEDICAL ABORTION: Evaluation of a simplified regimen in the Taiwan medical environment. A multi-center single-arm open-label study FM601-080599

The study aimed to determine how two refinements of mifepristone-misoprostol regimen work together in Taiwan. In this study, the abortifacient efficacy and the tolerance of treatment comprising the consecutive administration of mifepristone (600mg) and misoprostol (400µg or 600µg orally) were evaluated in 42 patients with intrauterine pregnancy and gestational age less than or equal to 7 weeks.

Efficacy was assessed 15 days after administration of 600mg of mifepristone on the basis of clinical, ultrasonographic and/or biological (β -hCG levels) finding. Safety was evaluated on the basis of uterine bleeding duration, any adverse event occurrence or abnormal clinical finding and the adverse event linked to the prostaglandin analog.

The successful rate in the 42 patients was 95.2%. Only two patients failed (one ongoing pregnancy and incomplete abortion).

In terms of clinical tolerance, none of the patients were reported to have had any adverse events within 15 minutes following mifepristone intake. The most frequent adverse events were vaginal bleeding (83.3%), abdominal pain (81.0%), nausea (64.3%), vomiting (28.6%) and diarrhea (21.4%). Only one case required analgesic drugs, while in the other cases, no action was taken. Therefore, the clinical tolerance of this protocol can be rated as acceptable.

Some reports show that gastrointestinal upsets are related to the doses of misoprostol and suggest that the dose of misoprostol can be reduced to 400µg orally.

In conclusion, the consecutive administration of 600mg of mifepristone and 400µg or 600µg of misoprostol orally 36 to 48 hours later in women resulted in pregnancy termination in 95.2% of case. It is effective and safe and the clinical tolerance is excellent.

Source: Exelgyn Laboratory Periodic Safety Update Report No. 10, December 1, 1999 to May 31, 2000, Page 9. **ATTACHMENT 13**

Not For Public Release Status Report Post Marketing Study Commitment

Date of Report:	December 2001
Applicant Name:	Population Council
Product Name:	Mifeprex [™] (mifepristone) Tablets (Oral), 200 mg
Application Number:	NDA 20-687
Date of Application Approval:	September 28, 2000
Date of Post Marketing Study Commitment:	September 28, 2000
Description of Post Marketing Study Commitment:	 Two studies are to be conducted. Study 1 – A cohort-based study of safety outcomes of patients having medical abortions under the care of physicians with surgical intervention skills compared to physicians who refer their patients for surgical intervention Previous study questions related to age, smoking, and follow-up on day 14 (compliance with return visit) will be incorporated into this cohort study, as well as an audit of signed Patient Agreement forms. Study 2 – A surveillance study on outcomes of ongoing pregnancies.
Original Schedule for Post Marketing Study Commitment:	Final protocols for both studies to be submitted within six months of NDA approval.

Post Marketing Study Commitment Status Report Page 2

Current Status of Post Marketing Study Commitment:

PENDING

Explanation of Status Of Studies:

Study 1 -

Study Status - Pending

Explanation of Status – Protocol was submitted as scheduled on March 9, 2001. The final protocol has not been agreed upon by both FDA and the Population Council. Negotiations and revisions are in process. We are responding to comments sent to us by FDA on April 20, 2001 as well as a phone conversation between ^{(b) (6)}

and ^{(b) (4), (b) (6)} on June 19, 2001. We plan for the negotiation process to be complete and the final protocol submitted to FDA in early 2002. Enrollment will begin when national sales of mifepristone support selection of the study sample.

The majority of the sales in the first year of distribution have been to (b) (4)

Currently, sales volume of mifepristone is too small to allow for the selection of a cohort of providers of mifepristone medical abortion who would refer their patients when surgical intervention is required. We anticipate that in the next year, with more time on the market, the population of referring providers of mifepristone medical abortion will increase sufficiently to allow for the selection of the sample. **Post Marketing Study Commitment Status Report** Page 3

Study 2 -

Study Status – Pending

Explanation of Status – Protocol was submitted on May 29, 2001, eight months after approval. We are currently revising the protocol in response to comments sent to us by FDA on August 20, 2001. We plan for the negotiation process to be complete and the final protocol submitted to FDA in early 2002. Again, given the rarity of the outcome of interest, numbers of users of the method is too low at this time for this study to begin.

ATTACHMENT 14

For Public Release Status Report Post Marketing Study Commitment

Date of Report:	December 2001	
Applicant Name:	Population Council	
Product Name:	Mifeprex [™] (mifepristone) Tablets (Oral), 200 mg	
Application Number:	NDA 20-687	
Date of Application Approval:	September 28, 2000	
Commitment #1: Commitment Date:	September 28, 2000	
Commitment:	A cohort-based study of safety outcomes of patients having medical abortions under the care of physicians with surgical intervention skills compared to physicians who refer their patients for surgical intervention. Previous study questions related to age, smoking, and follow-up on day 14 (compliance with return visit) will be incorporated into this cohort study, as well as an audit of signed Patient Agreement forms.	
Current Status: Explanation of Status:	Pending Discussions between the FDA and the Population Council on the final protocols are in process. Enrollment will begin when national sales of mifepristone support selection of the study sample.	
Commitment #2: Commitment Date: Commitment:	September 28, 2000. A surveillance study on outcomes of ongoing pregnancies.	
Current Status: Explanation of Status:	Pending Discussion between the FDA and the Population Council on the final protocol are in process. Again, given the rarity of the outcome of interest, numbers of users of the method is too low at this time for this study to begin.	

ATTACHMENT 15

STATUS REPORT OF OTHER POST MARKETING STUDIES - ONGOING STUDIES

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (I) – September 28, 2001

Study Title:	Mifepristone-Misoprostol Medical Abortion: Simplifying the Regimen		
Protocol Number:	205-US		
Study Phase:			
Date of Study Initiation	January 19, 2001		
Study Status (Ongoin	g/Completed/Discontinued): Ongoing		
Investigator(s)/Study	Center(s):		
	(b) (4), (b) (6)		
	1.		
	2.		
	3.		
	4.		
Objective:	To investigate the safety, efficacy and acceptability of a simplified regimen of mifepristone-misoprostol medical abortion, including home administration of misoprostol and a lower dose of mifepristone (200 mg).		
Study Design:	Prospective, non-comparative trial		
Drugs:			
Investigational Drug:	Mifepristone + Misoprostol		
Control Drug:	None		
Dosage:	200 mg oral mifepristone, 400 μ g oral misoprostol (2 days later)		
Description of Patients: Pregnant women with gestations under 49 days LMP			
Number of Patients			
Planned	370		
Enrolled:	255		
Age Range:	18 - 45		
Gender:	female		
Race:	n/a		

Dropped	0	
Completed:	237	
Safety Variables:	Frequency of blood transfu hospitalization	sion, administration of IV fluids and
Efficacy Variables:	Success, complete abortion	without a surgical intervention
Safety Results:	Blood transfusion	= 0
	Administration IV fluids	= 2
	Hospitalization	= 1*
Efficacy Results:	Success	= 91.6% (217/237)

^{*}IND Safety Reports on this serious adverse event were submitted to IND 22,047 (Initial Report, Submission Serial Number 215, June 19, 2001 and Follow-up Report, Submission Serial Number 217, August 21, 2001).

STATUS REPORTS OF OTHER POST MARKETING STUDIES - ONGOING STUDIES

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (II) - September 28, 2001

Study Title:	Comparison of abortions induced by mifepristone followed ginal versus oral misoprostol up to 56 days gestation	
Protocol Number:	298	
Study Phase:		
Date of Study Initiation	: February 27, 2001	
Date of IND Submission	n: June 19, 2001 (Submission Serial Number: 216)	
Study Status (Ongoing	g/Completed/Discontinued): Suspended	
Investigator(s)/Study	Center(s):	
Objective:	 Ellen Wiebe, University of British Columbia, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada Francis Jacot, Clinique de Planification des Naissances de l'Éstrie, Centre Universitaire de Santé de l'Éstrie, Sherbrooke, Quebec Edith Guilbert, The Family Planning Clinic of Le Center Hospitalier Universitaire de Quebec, Quebec City, Quebec Sheila Dunn, Bay Center for Birth Control, University of Toronto, Toronto, Ontario Lisa Lugtig, Klinic Community Health Centre, Inc., Winnipeg, Canada To compare the use of vaginal misoprostol (800 µg) and oral misoprostol (400 µg or 600 µg) in combination with mifepristone (200 mg) to terminate pregnancies of up to 56 days gestation. 	
Study Design:	sign: Randomized, non-placebo controlled trial	
Drugs:		
Investigational I Control Drug:	Drug: Mifepristone + Misoprostol None	
Dosage:	200 mg oral mifepristone, 400 µg oral misoprostol or 600 mcg oral misoprostol or 800 mcg vaginal misoprostol (2 days later)	
Description of Patient	S: Pregnant women with gestations \leq 56 days gestation	

Number of Patients

Planned:	1500		
Enrolled:	940		
Age Range:	18 - 45		
Gender:	female		
Race:	n/a		
Dropped:	0		
Completed:	940		
Safety Variables:	Frequency of blood transfus hospitalization	ion, ac	dministration of IV fluids and
Efficacy Variables:	Success, complete abortion without a surgical intervention		
Safety Results:	Blood transfusion	= 1	
	Administration IV fluids	= 2	
	Hospitalization	= 1*	
	Death	= 1*	
Efficacy Results:	Success (interim analysis of	f 817 c	cases)
	Overall =		97.8%
	400 μ g oral misoprostol =		97.1%
	$600 \ \mu g \text{ oral misoprostol} =$		98.5%
	800 µg vaginal misoprostol	=	97.8%

^{*}IND Safety Reports were submitted to IND 22,047 (Initial Report, Submission Serial Number 218, September 5, 2001 and Follow-up Report, Submission Serial Number 219, September 19, 2001).

STATUS REPORT OF OTHER POST MARKETING STUDIES – ONGOING STUDIES

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (III) - SEPTEMBER 28, 2001

Study Title:	Mifepristone – Misoprostol Medical Abortion: Simplifying the Regimen
Protocol Number:	205-Vietnam
Study Phase:	
Date of Study Initiation:	January 1, 2001
Study Status (Ongoing/Con	npleted/Discontinued): Ongoing
Investigator(s)/Study Cente	r(s):

Objective:	To investigate the safety, efficacy and acceptability of a simplified regimen of mifepristone-misoprostol medical abortion, including home administration of misoprostol and a lower dose of mifepristone (200 mg).	
Study Design:	Prospective, non-comparative trial	
Drugs:		
Investigational D	rug:	Mifepristone + Misoprostol
Control Drug:		None
Dosage:		200 mg oral mifepristone, 400 μ g oral misoprostol (2 days later)
Description of Pati	ents:	Pregnant women with gestations under 56 days LMP

(b) (4), (b) (6)

Number of Patients

Planned:	1600	
Enrolled:	1560	
Age Range:	18 - 45	
Gender:	female	
Race:	n/a	
Dropped:	0	
Completed:	1560	
Safety Variables:	Frequency of blood transfu hospitalization	sion, administration of IV fluids and
Efficacy Variables:	Success, complete abortion	without a surgical intervention
Safety Results:	Blood transfusion	= 0
	Administration IV fluids	= 0
	Hospitalization	= 0
Efficacy Results:	Success	= 87.5% (911/1041)

STATUS REPORT OF OTHER POST MARKETING STUDIES - ONGOING STUDIES

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (IV) - SEPTEMBER 28, 2001

Study Title:	Mifepristone – Misoprostol Medical Abortion: Expanding Access and Increasing Autonomy	
Protocol Number:	283	
Study Phase:		
Date of Study Initia	tion:	
	Sweden: anticipated December 2001	
	Austria: anticipated early 2002	
	France: June 8, 2001	
Study Status (Ongo	ing/Completed/Discontinued): Ongoing	
Investigator(s)/Stud	y Center(s):	
	Dr. Danielle Hassoun, MD, Hopital Delafontaine, Paris, France	
Objective:	To investigate the safety, efficacy and acceptability of a simplified regimen of mifepristone-misoprostol medical abortion, including a lower dose of mifepristone (200 mg) and two doses of misoprostol (400 mcg). All women are offered the option to administer their misoprostol at home	
Study Design:	Prospective, non-comparative trial	
Drugs:		
Investigational Dr	<i>ug:</i> Mifepristone + Misoprostol	
Control Drug:	None	
Dosage:	200 mg oral mifepristone, 800 μ g oral misoprostol (at day 1 and day 3 following administration of mifepristone)	
Description of Patie	ents: Pregnant women with gestations under 56 days LMP	
Number of Patients		
Planned:	Austria=100, Sweden=100, France=30	
Enrolled:	11	
Age Range:	18 - 45	
Gender:	female	

Race:	n/a	
Dropped:	0	
Completed:	11	
Safety Variables:	Frequency of blood transfu hospitalization	sion, administration of IV fluids and
Efficacy Variables:	Success, complete abortion without a surgical intervention	
Safety Results:	Blood transfusion	= 0
	Administration IV fluids	= 0
	Hospitalization	= 0
Efficacy Results:	Success	= n/a

ATTACHMENT 16

STATUS REPORT OF OTHER POST MARKETING STUDIES COMPLETED STUDIES STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (I)

Study Title:	Mifepristone – Misoprostol Medical Abortion: Simplifying the Regimen
Protocol Number:	205 -Tunisia
Study Phase:	
Date of Study Initiation:	January 1, 2001
Study Status (Ongoing/Con	npleted/Discontinued): Completed
Investigator(s)/Study Cente	er(s):

Objective:	To in regin hom mife	investigate the safety, efficacy and acceptability of a simplified gimen of mifepristone-misoprostol medical abortion, including me administration of misoprostol and a lower dose of ifepristone (200 mg).	
Study Design:	Pros	Prospective, non-comparative trial	
Drugs:			
Investigational Di	rug:	Mifepristone + Misoprostol	
Control Drug:		None	
Dosage:		200 mg oral mifepristone, 400 µg oral misoprostol (2 days later)	
Description of Patie	ents:	Pregnant women with gestations under 56 days LMP	
Number of Patients	r		
Planned:		360	
Enrolled:		360	
Age Range:		18 - 45	

(b) (4), (b) (6)

Gender:	female	
Race:	n/a	
Dropped:	0	
Completed:	360	
Safety Variables:	Frequency of blood transfusion, administration of IV fluids and hospitalization	
Efficacy Variables:	Success, complete abortion without a surgical intervention	
Safety Results:	Blood transfusion	= 0
	Administration IV fluids	= 0
	Hospitalization	= 0
Efficacy Results:	Success	= 93%

STATUS REPORT OF OTHER POST MARKETING STUDIES COMPLETED STUDIES STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (II)

Study Title:	Mifepristone – Misoprostol Medical Abortion: Simplifying the Regimen
Protocol Number:	205 -Turkey
Study Phase:	
Date of Study Initiation:	August 2000
Study Status (Ongoing/Co	mpleted/Discontinued): Completed

Investigator(s)/Study Center(s):

Objective:	To in regin hom mife	To investigate the safety, efficacy and acceptability of a simplified regimen of mifepristone-misoprostol medical abortion, including home administration of misoprostol and a lower dose of mifepristone (200 mg).	
Study Design:	Prospective, non-comparative trial		
Drugs:			
Investigational L	Drug:	Mifepristone + Misoprostol	
Control Drug:		None	
Dosage:		200 mg oral mifepristone, 400 μ g oral misoprostol (2 days later)	
Description of Pau	tients:	Pregnant women with gestations under 56 days LMP	

(b) (4), (b) (6)

Number of Patients

Planned:	200	
Enrolled:	208	
Age Range:	18 - 45	
Gender:	female	
Race:	n/a	
Dropped:	0	
Completed:	208	
Safety Variables:	Frequency of blood transfusion, administration of IV fluids and hospitalization	
Efficacy Variables:	Success, complete abortion without a surgical intervention	
Safety Results:	Blood transfusion	= 0
	Administration IV fluids	= 0
	Hospitalization	= 0
Efficacy Results:	Success	= 84%

STATUS REPORT OF OTHER POST MARKETING STUDIES

COMPLETED STUDIES

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (III)

Study Title:	Mifepristone – Misoprostol Medical Abortion: Simplifying the Regimen
Protocol Number:	205 (Vietnam & Tunisia)
Study Phase:	
Date of Study Initiation:	December 1997
	and the second

Study Status (Ongoing/Completed/Discontinued): Completed and published in Lancet 357 (9266): 1402-5, May 5, 2001.

Investigator(s)/Study Center(s):

Objective:	To investigate the safety, efficacy and acceptability of a simplified regimen of mifepristone-misoprostol medical abortion, including home administration of misoprostol and a lower dose of mifepristone (200 mg).	
Study Design:	Prospective, non-comparative trial	
Drugs:		
Investigational D	rug:	Mifepristone + Misoprostol
Control Drug:		None
Dosage:		200 mg oral mifepristone, 400 µg oral misoprostol (2 days later)
Description of Path	ients:	Pregnant women with gestations under 56 days LMP.
Number of Patient	\$	
Planned:		315
Enrolled:		315
Age Range:		18 - 45
Gender:		female
Race:		n/a

(b) (4), (b) (6)

Dropped:	0	
Completed:	315	
Safety Variables:	Frequency of blood transfusion, administration of IV fluids and hospitalization	
Efficacy Variables:	Success, complete abortion without a surgical intervention	
Safety Results:	Blood transfusion	= 0
	Administration IV fluids	= 0
	Hospitalization	= 0
Efficacy Results:	Success = 93% (Vietnam) 91% (Tunisia)	

STATUS REPORT OF OTHER POST MARKETING STUDIES

COMPLETED STUDIES

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (IV)

Study Title: The feasibility of mifepristone and misoprostol for the medical termination of pregnancy in urban family planning centers and in a well-delineated rural community in Maharastra State, India

Protocol Number: 172

Study Phase:

Date of Study Initiation: October 1995

Study Status (Ongoing/Completed/Discontinued): Completed and published in Lancet 357 (9250): 120-2, Jan. 13, 2001.

Investigator(s)/Study Center(s):

- 1. Usha Krishna, M.D., Bhatia Hospital, Bombay, India
- 2. Kurus Coyaji, M.D., K.E.M. Hospital, Pune, India
- 3. Kurus Coyaji, M.D., Shirdi Saibaba Hospital, Vadu, India

Objective:	To e early throu	To evaluate whether the combination of mifepristone and misoprostol for early abortion can be safely delivered through a family planning clinic and through a rural health station.	
Study Design:	Prospective, non-comparative trial		
Drugs:			
Investigational D	Drug:	Mifepristone + Misoprostol	
Control Drug:		None	
Dosage:		600 mg oral mifepristone, 400 µg oral misoprostol (2 days later)	
Description of Pat	ients:	Pregnant women with gestations under 56 days LMP in one rural site (300) and with gestation under 63 days in two urban sites (600) and with gestation between 63 and 70 days (20)	

Number of Patients

Planned:	920	
Enrolled:	912	
Age Range:	18 - 45	
Gender:	female	
Race:	n/a	
Dropped:	0	
Completed:	912	
Safety Variables:	Frequency of blood transfusion, administration of IV fluids and hospitalization	
Efficacy Variables:	Success, complete abortion without a surgical intervention	
Safety Results:	Blood transfusion	= 1*
	Administration IV fluids	= 2*
	Hospitalization	= 2*
Efficacy Results:	Success	= 95.3% (Pune) 90.3% (Bombay) 95% (Vadu) 83.3% (Pune, 63-70 days)

ned via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

Ob

*IND Safety Reports were submitted to IND 22,047 (Initial Reports, Submission Serial Number 204, December 16, 1999).
Mifepristone LONG TERM STABILITY STUDIES (1) LOT No. (b) (4) **RESULTS & TEST DATES** TESTS SPECIFICATIONS 01.01.17 01.03.15 01.04.09 01.05.09 01.08.10 (b) (4) (b) (4) **ENVIROMMENTAL CONDITIONS:** (b) (4) PACKING: (b) (4), (b) (6) -Tabulated by (b) (4), (b) (6) Reviewed by August_15th,2002 August 13th,2002 Date: Date:

CMC SECTION: Drug Substance

FDACDER000416

- CMC-SECTION: Drug-Substance Mifepristone

LONG TERM STABILITY STUDIES (2)

LOT No			RESU	LTS & TEST DAT	ΈS	
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	01.11.09	02.02.28	02.08.12 (b) (4)		
ENVIROMMENTAL CON PACKING:	DITIONS:	(b) (4) (b) (4)		·	
					(b) (d) (b) (6)	

 Tabulated-by
 (b) (4), (b) (6)

Date:
 August 13th,2002

Date: August 15th,2002

Revision: October 2002

Page 31 n2



Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

Date:

August 13th,2002

Date: August 15th,2002

Revision: October 2002

Page 31 o

Obtained via FOIA by	Judicial Watch, Inc.
----------------------	----------------------

CMC SECTION: Drug Substance Mifepristone

5 / 2 S S A

and second a

LOT No. (b) (4)						
	L.		DECU	TO & TEOT DA	TEO	
			RESUL	15 & IESI DA	NIE5	
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	01.11.09	02.02.28	<u>02</u> .08.12_(b)		
ENVIROMMENTAL CON PACKING:	DITIONS		(b) (4) (b) (4)			

Tabulated b	ру _ (b) (4), (b) (6)	
Date:	<u>August 13th,2002</u>	Date: <u>August 15th,2002</u>

Obtained via FOIA by	/ Judicial Watch, Inc.
----------------------	------------------------

CMC SECTION: Drug Substance Mifepristone

	LONG TE	M STASBILITY STUDIES (1)			
LOT No(b) (4)		RESULT	S & TEST DA	TES	
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	01.02.09 01.03.16	01.04.10	01.05.09	01.08.10 (b) (4)
ENVIROMMENTAL CO	ONDITIONS:	(b) (4)			
PACKING		(b) (4)			
Fabulated by _ (b)	(4), (b) (6)	R	eviewed by	(b) (4), (b) (6)	1
Date: <u>August 1</u>	3 th ,2002	Da	ate: <u>Aug</u>	ust 15 th ,2002	

Page 31 p



Real Property in

LONG TERM STABILITY STUDIES (2)

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

TESTS SPECIFICATIONS 01.11.09 02.02.28 02.08.12 (b) (4) (b) (4) (b) (4) (b) (4) (c) (4) NVIROMMENTAL CONDITIONS: (b) (4) (c) (4) (c) (4) ACKING: (b) (4) (c) (4) (c) (4)						
NVIROMMENTAL CONDITIONS: (b) (4)	TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	01.11.09	02.02.28	02.08.12 (b) (4)	
ACKING:	NVIROMMENTAL CONE	DITIONS:	(t) (4)		
	ACKING:			(b) (4)		

Page 31 p2

(b) (4)

CMC SECTION: Drug Substance Mifepristone

LONG TERM STABILITY STUDIES (1)

LOT No (b) (4)		RESULTS & TEST DATES				
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	02.07.12	02.08.14	02.09.16 (b) (4)	1 1	1 1
ENVIROMMENTAL C	ONDITIONS:		(b) (4)		(b) (4)	

Tabulated by	(b) (4), (b) (6)	Reviewed b	(b) (4), (b) (6)
Date:	September 17 th ,2002	Date:	September17 th ,2002

Revision: October 2002

Page 31 q

	LONG T	ERM STABILII	Y STUDIES (1)			
LOT No			RESUL	.TS & TEST DA	TES	
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	02.07.12	02.08.14	02.09.16	1 1	
				(b) ((4)	
ENVIROMMENTAL C	ONDITIONS:		(b) (4)			
ENVIROMMENTAL C	ONDITIONS:		(b) (4) (b) (4)			
ENVIROMMENTAL CO PACKING:	ONDITIONS:		(b) (4) (b) (4)			-
ENVIROMMENTAL CO PACKING:	ONDITIONS:		(b) (4) (b) (4)			-

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

.

,

Obtained via FOIA by	/ Judicial Watch, Inc.
----------------------	------------------------

CMC SECTION: Drug Substance Mifepristone

OT No. (b) (4)			RESULT	S & TEST DAT	ES	
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	02.07.16	02.08.14	02.09.16 (b) (4)	1 1	1 1
VIROMMENTAL CO	NDITIONS:	(t)) (4)			
ACKING:			(b) (4)			

Page 31 s

Population Council/Danco Laboratories, LLC Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg

ATTACHMENT 6



(b) (4), (b) (6) (b) (4), (b) (6)

Prepared by:

Approved by:

Issue Date: 8/31/0

page 2 of 3

Danco Laboratories, Inc. pag SPECIFICATIONS FOR MIFEPRISTONE TABLETS, 200 mg

FINISHED PRODUCT AND STABILITY SPECIFICATION

Test	Sp	ecification		Method	
				1	(b) (4)
		•			
	•				
					b.
• •		· · ·			• •
	: •	•	· · ·		
			۰.		-
			·		
	· ·	· · · ·			
•	4			· · ·	• • •
· .	Sec. 1				
. •	•				
·			· · ·		
		• •	•		
					-

Prepared by:

Approved by

(b) (4), (b) (6)

(b) (4), (b) (6)

Issue Date: 8/31/00

page 3 of 3

SPECIFICATIONS FOR MIFEPRISTONE TABLETS, 200 mg

HISTORY OF CHANGE



.

Danco Laboratories, Inc.

(b) (4), (b) (6)

Approved by:

(b) (4), (b) (6)

issue Date: <u>\$31/00</u>

Prepared by:

ATTACHMENT 7

DANCO LABOR RIES, INC. Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

PKG MPR: P000101	Rev.#: 05 Effective Date:	Lot #	Expiration Date:
	December 7,2001		
Product Name(#): Mifepris	tone Tablets: (200 mg) 001		Page 1 of 16

BLISTER PACKAGING OPERATION

BLISTER PACK SIZE: 1 X 3 Blister/Mini carton Α.

в. BLISTER PACK COMPONENTS:

1

Calculated By: _ _____Checked By:___

PREPARED BY:	(b) (4), (b) (6)	DATE: 12/7/2001	APPROVED	BY:	(b) (4), (b) (b) DATE: [2]]]01
Issued for Bl	ister Packagin	ng by:		Date:	

DANCON LABOR by JudicIaESarch, INC.

/

PKG MPR: P000101	Rev.#: 05	Effective Date:	Lot #	Expiration Date:
		December 7,2001		
Product Name(#): Mifepris	tone Tablet		Page 2 of 16	

BLISTER PACKAGING OPERATION

Performed By:	Date:
Checked By:	Date:
Quality Assurance Check:	Date:

Performed	d By:		Date:	
Checked By	y:		Date:	
Quality As	ssurance	Check:	Date:	

PREPARED BY:	(b) (4), (b) (6)	DATE: 12/7/2001	APPROVED BY:	(b) (4), (b) (6)	DATE: 12/7/01

'n

(b) (4)

	DANG	Red LIABOR by Jud Rill ESte	h, INC.		÷ .
A second second		action and the second			
PKG MPR: P000101	Rev.#: 05 E	ffective Date: ecember 7,2001	Lot #	Expiration Date:	
Product Name(#): Mife	epristone Tablets:	(200 mg) 001		Page 3 of 16	

Performed By:	Date:
Checked By:	Date:
Quality Assurance Check:	Date:

Performed By:		Date:	
Checked By:		Date:	
Quality Assurance	Check:	Date:	

	(h)(A)(b)(6)			(b) (4), (b) (6)	
PREPARED BY:	(b) (4), (b) (b)	DATE: 12/7/2001	APPROVED BY:	DATE:	
		. / . / = - 1		12/2/01	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					
				•	-

FDACDER000432

(b) (4)

(b) (4)



		(b) (A) (b) (C)			(b) (4), (b) (6)	
PREPA	RED BY:	(b) (4), (b) (b)-	DATE: 12 / 2/2 m	APPROVED BY:		DATE:
			12/1/2001			1277/01
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			

DANCO LABO ORIES, INC. Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

. -

PKG MPR: P000101	Rev.#: 05	Effective Date:	Lot #	Expiration Date:
·		December 7,2001		
Product Name(#): Mifepris	tone Tablet	s: (200 mg) 001		Page 5 of 16

Visual Check of Blisters

Time(min)	Actual	Time	Appearance *	Count *	Performed
(b) (4)			(Pass/Fail)	(Pass Fail)	Ву
(0) (4)-					
÷					· · · ·
t i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	-				
+		· ·			
ļ.					
+					
-	/				
		-			
-			. ,		
-					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
-					
					·

. net 1 = 5 1 *

(b) (4), (b) (6) (b) (4), (b) (6) PREPARED BY: DATE: APPROVED BY: DATE: 12/7/2001 12/7/01

*		Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch	, Inc.	
PI MPR: P000101	Rev.#: 05	Effective Date:	Lot #	Expiration Date:
		December 7,2001		
Product Name(#): Mifepria	tone Table	ts: (200 mg) 001		Page 6 of 16
		······································		(b) (4

<u>Note A</u>

and and a

Reason tor Re-inspection:_

Time Interval Inspected	Appearance * (Pass/Fail)	Count * (Pass Fail)	Performed By

 PREPARED BY:
 (b) (4), (b) (6)
 DATE:
 2 |7| 200 APPROVED BY:
 (b) (4), (b) (6)

 DATE:
 12 |7| 200 APPROVED BY:
 12 |7/0|

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

- /			Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch	n, Inc.	
na i chini boni d	PKG MPR: P000101	Rev.#: 05	Effective Date:	Lot #	Expiration Date:
			December 7,2001		
	Product Name(#): Mifepris	tone Table	ts: (200 mg) 001		Page 7 of 16

QA	releas	seđ	by:
----	--------	-----	-----

Date:

(b) (4),	(b) (6)	(D) (4), (D) (6)
PREPARED BY:	DATE: 12/1/2001 APPR	DATE: $(2/2/a)$

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

PKG MPR: P000101	Rev.#: 05 Effective Date: Lot #	Expiration Date:
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	December 7,2001	
Product Name(#): Mifepris	tone Tablets: (200 mg) 001	Page 8 of 16

LABELING AND FINAL PACKAGING OPERATION



Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

. 121. 1

Pkg MPR: P000101	Rev.#: 05	Effective Date:	Lot #	Expiration Date:
		December 7,2001		
Product Name(#): Mifepris	tone Tablet	s: (200 mg) 001	,	Page 9 of 16

Performed By:	Date:	
Checked By:	Date:	
Quality Assurance Check:	Date:	

System Started By: _____ Date: _____ Time: _____

· .

*

.

. . .

.

(b) (4

1

	(b) (4), (b) (6)			(b) (4), (b) (6)
PREPARED BY:		DATE: 12/7/2001	APPROVED BY:	DATE 12/7/01
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

*س*ر ,



Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

PKG MPR: P000101	Rev.#: 05	Effective Date:	Lot #	Expiration Date:
		December 7,2001		
Product Name(#): Mifepris	Page 11 of 16			

				(b) (4)
System Started 1	3y:Date:	Time:		(b) (4)
				(-)(-)
QA Label Check:	Performed By:	Date:(b)(4)		
Performed By:	Date:	Time Start:	Label #	_
Performed By:	Date:		Label #	
Performed By:	Date:		Label #	_
Performed By:	Date:	Time Finished:	Label #	_
(b) (4), (b) (6)			(b) (4), (b) (6)	
PREPARED BY:	DATE: 12/7/2001	APPROVED BY:	DATE 12/7101	

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

PKG MPR: P000101	Rev.#: 05 Ef:	fective Date:	Lot #	Expiration Date:
	Dec	ember 7,2001		
Product Name(#): Mifepris	Page 12 of 16			

					(b) (4.
- 1					
- 1					
- 1					
	F	Performed By:	Date:		:
		Quality Assurance Verification: _			
		Date:			
					(b) (4)
	Label re	conciliation performed by:	Date:	Time:	
	Label re	conciliation verified by:	Date:		
					(b) (4
	-				

	(b) (4), (b) (6)			(b) (4), (b) (6)		
PREPARED BY:		DATE: 12/7/2001	APPROVED BY:	DA	ATE 12/7/01	
L			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			

,

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

PKG MPR: P000101	Rev.#: 05 Effective	Date: Lot #	Expiration Date:
	December	7,2001	
Product Name(#): Mifepris	Page 13 of 16		

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

1.1

System Started By: _____ Date: _____ Time:_____

Sec.2.175.

QA Label Check: Performed By: _____ Date:_____ .

(b) (4), (b) (6)	÷		(b) (4), (b) (6)	·
PREPARED BY:	DATE: 12 Internat	APPROVED BY:	DATE	n later
	1-112001			12/ 101
		1		

KG MPR: P000101	Rev.#: 05	Effective Date: December 7,2001	Lot #	Expiration Date:
roduct Name(#): Mife	epristone Table	ts: (200 mg) 001		Page 14 of 16
		(b) (4)		
		(b) (4)		
Performed By:	Date:	(b)(4)	art:	

ange som er er

.

	(b) (4), (b) (6)				(b) (4), (b) (6)	
PREPARED BY:		DATE: (272001	APPROVED BY	: DA	TE 12/7/01
,			·			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

(b) (4

DANCO LABORA CLES, INC. Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

PKG MPR: P000101	Rev.#: 05	Effective Date:	Lot #	Expiration Date:
	}	December 7,2001		
Product Name(#): Mifepris	tone Tablet	s: (200 mg) 001		Page 15 of 16

QUALITY ASSURANCE REVIEW OF PACKAGING BATCH RECORD:

Quality Assurance Review By: _____ Date: _____

Danco Quality Assurance Approval for Shipment

By: _____Date: _____

	(b) (4), (b) (6)			(b) (4), (b) (6)	
PREPARED BY:		DATE: 12/7/10 may	APPROVED BY:	DA	TE 12/2/01
					,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
L			[

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

PR. APR: P000101	Rev.#: 05 Effective Date:	Lot #	Expiration Date:
	December 7,2001		
Product Name(#): Mifepris	tone Tablets: (200 mg) 001		Page 16 of 16

History of Change

Revision Number	Date Of Revision	<u>Revised By</u>	Reason for Revision
1			
2		(b) (4) (b) (6)	(b) (4)
3	October 16, 2000		
4	November 7, 2000		
5	December 07, 2001		

(b) (4), (b) (6))		(b) (4), (b) (6)
PREPARED BY:	DATE	APPROVED BY	DATE is t
ENDERNING DIT	12/7/2001	MILKOVED DI	12/7/0/
			,

FDACDER000445

÷

ATTACHMENT 8

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

Danco Laboratories, LLC Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg Sept. 28, 2001 - Sept. 27, 2002 NDA 20-687

ł.

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

STABILITY STUDY REPORT FOR BATCH # (b) (4) CONTROLLED ROOM TEMPERATURE STUDY

Batch #: (b) (4)
Manufacturing date: 6/28/99
Expiration date: 1/2001
Manufacturer
(b)

CONTAINER/CLOSURE SYSTEM

EVALUATION SCHEDULE

STABILITY DATA

Danco Laboratories, LLC Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

STABILITY STUDY REPORT FOR BATCH # ACCELERATED STABILITY STUDY

Product: Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg	Batch #: (b) (4)	
Purpose of study: Accelerated Stability	Manufacturing date: 6/28/99	
Batch size: (b) (4) tablets	Expiration date: 1/2001	
Ingredient	Manufacturer	• •
		(b)

CONTAINED/CLOSUDE SVOTEM

EVALUATION SCHEDULE

STADII ITV DATA

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc. Danco Laboratories, LLC Se Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg

Sept. 28, 2001 - Sept. 27, 2002 NDA 20-687

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

STABILITY STUDY REPORT FOR BATCH # (b) (4) CONTROLLED ROOM TEMPERATURE STUDY

Product: Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg	Batch #: (b) (4)	
Purpose of study: Controlled Room Temperature	Manufacturing date: 9/22/99	,
Batch size: (b) (4) tablets	Expiration date: 3/2001	
Ingredient	Manufacturer	
		(b) (4)

CONTAINER/CLOSURE SYSTEM

EVALUATION SCHEDULE

STABILITY DATA

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc. Danco Laboratories, LLC Se Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg

Sept. 28, 2001 - Sept. 27, 2002 NDA 20-687

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

(b) (4

(b) (4)

STABILITY STUDY REPORT FOR BATCH # ACCELERATED STABILITY STUDY

Product: Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg	Batch #: (b) (4)
Purpose of study: Accelerated Stability	Manufacturing date: 9/22/99
Batch size: (b) (4) ablets	Expiration date: 3/2001
Ingredient	Manufacturer
	(b) (4

EVALUATION SCHEDULE

CONTAINER/CLOSURE

STABILITY DATA

Danco Laboratories, LLC Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

STABILITY STUDY REPORT FOR BATCH # (b) (4) CONTROLLED ROOM TEMPERATURE STUDY

Product: Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg	Batch #: (b) (4)
Purpose of study: Controlled Room Temperature	Manufacturing date: 8/3/00
Batch size: (b) (4) tablets	Expiration date: 2/2002
Ingredient	Manufacturer

EVALUATION SCHEDULE

CONTAINEDICI OSIIDE SVSTEM

STABILITY DATA

Δ
	Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, In	nc.
Danco Laboratories, LLC	-	S
Annual Report for Mifepristone Tak	olets, 200 ma	

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

STABILITY STUDY REPORT FOR BATCH # (b) (4) ACCELERATED STABILITY STUDY

Product: Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg	Batch #: (b) (4)
Purpose of study: Accelerated Stability	Manufacturing date: 8/3/00
Batch size: (b) (4) tablets	Expiration date: 2/2002
Ingradiant	Monufacturor

CONTAINER/CLOSURE SYSTEM

EVALUATION SCHEDULE

STABILITY DATA

.

Danco	Laborat	ories	, LLC			
Annua	l Report	for N	lifepristo	ne Table	ets. 200	ma

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc. Sept. 28, 2001 - Sept. 27, 2002 lets, 200 mg NDA 20-687

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

STABILITY STUDY REPORT FOR BATCH # (^{(b) (4)} CONTROLLED ROOM TEMPERATURE STUDY

Product: Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg	Batch #: (b) (4)	
Purpose of study: Controlled Room Temperature	Manufacturing date: 9/11/00	
Batch size: tablets	Expiration date: 3/2002	
Ingredient	Manufacturer	
		(b) (4)

CONTAINER/CLOSURE SYSTEM

EVALUATION SCHEDULE

STABILITY DATA

Danco Laboratories, LLC Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg Sept. 28, 2001 - Sept. 27, 2002 NDA 20-687

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

. .

(b) (4)

STABILITY STUDY REPORT FOR BATCH # ACCELERATED STABILITY STUDY

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

	(b) (4)
Product: Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg	Batch #:
Purpose of study: Accelerated Stability	Manufacturing date: 9/11/00
Batch size: (b) (4) tablets	Expiration date: 3/2002
Ingredient	Manufacturer
	(b) (4)

CONTAINER/CLOSURE SYSTEM

EVALUATION SCHEDULE

STARII ITV DATA

NDA 20-687

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

4

STABILITY STUDY REPORT FOR BATCH # CONTROLLED ROOM TEMPERATURE STUDY

Product: Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg	Batch #: (b) (4)
Purpose of study: Controlled Room Temperature	Manufacturing date: 10/11/00
Batch size: (b) (4) tablets	Expiration date: 4/2002
Ingredient	Manufacturer

CONTAINER/CLOSURE SYSTEM

EVALUATION COMEDINE

STABILITY DATA

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

)

(b) (4) STABILITY STUDY REPORT FOR BATCH # ACCELERATED STABILITY STUDY

Product: Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg	Batch #: (b) (4)
Purpose of study: Accelerated Stability	Manufacturing date: 10/11/00
Batch size: (b) (4) tablets	Expiration date: 4/2002
Ingredient	Manufacturer
	(b) (4)

CONTAINER/CLOSURE SYSTEM

EVALUATION SCHEDULE

	STA	ABILITY D	ATA		i		
ATTRIBUTE SPECIFIC	ATION INITIAL	1 MO.	2 MO.	3 MO.	6 MO.	12 MO.	
							(b

Danco Laboratories, LLC Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg Sept. 28, 2001 - Sept. 27, 2002 NDA 20-687

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

(b) (4)

STABILITY STUDY REPORT FOR BATCH # CONTROLLED ROOM TEMPERATURE STUDY

		- '
Product: Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg	Batch #: (b) (4)	
Purpose of study: Controlled Room Temperature	Manufacturing date: 12/18/01	- -
Batch size: (b) (4) tablets	Expiration date: 12/2003	
Ingredient	Manufacturer	•
		(b) (4)

CONTAINER/CLOSURE SYSTEM

EVALUATION SCHEDULE

3 1_____

ATTACHMENT 9

LITERATURE UPDATE – NONCLINICAL

The present update to the bibliography was generated by a search performed using PubMed with the keywords mifepristone and animal from all sources and languages. This bibliography covers the period of September 28, 2001 to September 27, 2002.

The bibliography generated by this strategy includes published articles on non-clinical investigations on mifepristone. A list of these references in alphabetical order is presented below. The reprints of these articles will be supplied upon request.

D. Alvaro, A. Gigliozzi, L. Marucci, G. Alpini, B. Barbaro, R. Monterubbianesi, L. Minetola, M.G. Mancino, J.F. Medina, A.F. Attili and A. Benedetti. Corticosteroids modulate the secretory processes of the rat intrahepatic biliary epithelium. Gastroentology. 122 (4): 1058-69, Apr. 2002.

B.J. Attardi, J. Burgenson, S.A. Hild, J.R. Reel and R.P. Blye. CDB-4124 and its putative monodemethylated metabolite, CDB-4453, are potent antiprogestins with reduced antiglucocorticoid acitivity: in vitro comparison to mifepristone and CDB-2914. Mol. Cell. Endocrinol. 188 (1-2): 111-23, Feb. 25, 2002.

A.L. Bennett, B. Greco, M.E. Blasberg and J.D. Blaustein. Response to male odours in progestin receptor- and oestrogen receptor-containing cells in female rat brain. J. Neuroendocrinol. 14 (6): 442-9, Jun. 2002.

R.J. Bernardi, D.L. Trump, W.D. Yu, T.F. McGuire, P.A. Hershberger and C.S. Johnson. Combination of 1alpha,25-dihydroxyvitamin D(3) with dexamethasone enhances cell cycle arrest and apoptosis: role of nuclear receptor cross-talk and Erk/Akt signaling. Clin. Cancer Res. 7 (12): 4164-73, Dec. 2001.

M.S. Bitar. Co-administration of etomoxir and RU-486 mitigates insulin resistance in hepatic and muscular tissues of STZ-induced diabetic rats. Horm. Metab. Res. 33 (10): 577-84, Oct. 2001.

J.D. Blaustein and B. Greco. A progestin antagonist blocks vaginocervical stimulation-induced fos expression in neurons containing progestin receptors in the rostral medial preoptic area. J. Neuroendocrinol. 14 (2): 109-15, Feb. 2002.

S. Bradesi, H. Eutamene, J. Fioramonti and L. Bueno. Acute restraint stress activates functional NK1 receptor in the colon of female rats: involvement of steroids. Gut. 50 (3): 349-54, Mar. 2002.

T. Cao, W. He, D.R. Roop and X.J. Wang. K14-GLp65 transactivator induces transgene expression in embryonic epidermis. Genesis. 32 (2): 189-90, Feb. 2002.

T. Cao, S.Y. Tsai, B.W. O'Malley, X.J. Wang and D.R. Roop. The epidermis as a bioreactor: topically regulated cutaneous delivery into the circulation. Hum. Gene Ther. 13 (9): 1075-80, Jun. 10, 2002.

M.L. Chaisson, J.T. Brooling, W. Ladiges, S. Tsai, and N. Fausto. Hepatocyte-specific inhibition of NF-kappaB leads to apoptosis after TNF treatment, but not after partial hepatectomy. J. Clin. Invest. 110 (2): 193-202, Jul. 2002.

K.W. Cheng, C.K. Cheng and P.C. Leung. Differential role of PR-A and –B isoforms in transcription regulation of human GnRH receptor gene. Mol. Endocrinol. 15 (12): 2078-92, Dec. 2001.

C.J. Cook. Glucocorticoid feedback increases the sensitivity of the limbic system to stress. Physiol. Behav. 75 (4): 455-64, Apr. 1, 2002.

C. Crochemore, T.M. Michaelidis, D. Fischer, J.P. Loeffler and O.F. Almeida. Enhancement of p53 activity and inhibition of neural cell proliferation by glucocorticoid receptor activation. FASEB J. 16 (8): 761-79, Jun. 2002.

R. Draghia-Akli, P.B. Malone, L.A. Hill, K.M. Ellis, R.J. Schwartz and J.L. Nordstrom. Enhanced animal growth via ligand-regulated GHRH myogenic-injectable vectors. FASEB J. 16 (3): 426-8, Mar. 2002.

M.J. Eaton, J.P. Herman, N. Jullien, T.L.Lopez, M. Martinez and J. Huang. Immortalized chromaffin cells disimmortalized with Cre/lox site-directed recombination for use in cell therapy for pain after partial nerve injury. Exp. Neurol. 175 (1): 49-60, May 2002.

K. Ghoshal, S. Majumder, Q. Zhu, J. Hunzeker, J. Datta, M. Shah, J.F. Sheridan and S.T. Jacob. Influenza virus infection induces metallothionein gene expression in the mouse liver and lung by overlapping but distinct molecular mechanisms. Mol. Cell Biol. 21 (24): 8301-17, Dec. 2001.

T.C. Groves, G.F. Wagner and G.E. DiMattia. cAMP signaling can antagonize potent glucocorticoid post-transcriptional inhibition of stanniocalcin gene expression. J. Endocrinol. 171 (3): 499-516, Dec. 2001.

O. Herkert, H. Kuhl, J. Sandow, R. Busse and V.B. Schini-Kerth. Sex steroids used in hormonal treatment increase vascular procoagulant activity by inducing thrombin receptor (PAR-1) expression: role of the glucocorticoid receptor. Circulation. 104 (23): 2826-31, Dec. 4, 2001.

Z. Islam, Y.S. Moon, H.R. Zhou, L.E. King, P.J. Fraker and J.J. Pestka. Endotoxin potentiation of trichothecene-induced lymphocyte apoptosis is mediated by up-regulation of glucocorticoids. Toxicol. Appl. Pharmacol. 180 (1): 43-55, Apr. 1, 2002.

W. Jiang, Z. Zhu, N. Bhatia, R. Agarwal and H.J. Thompson. Mechanisms of energy restriction: effect of corticosterone on cell growth, cell cycle machinery, and apoptosis. Cancer Res. 62 (18): 5280-7, Sep. 15, 2002.

K.A. Koch, J.C. Wingfield and J.D. Buntin. Glucocorticoids and parental hyperphagia in ring doves (Streptopelia risoria). Horm. Behav. 41 (1): 9-21, Feb. 2002.

2

A.P. Konstantinos and J.F. Sheridan. Stress and influenza viral infection: modulation of proinflammatory cytokine responses in the lung. Respir. Physiol. 128 (1): 71-7, Oct. 2001.

G.J. Lai and D.P. McCobb. Opposing actions of adrenal androgens and glucocorticoids on alternative splicing of Slo potassium channels in bovine chromaffin cells. Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci. U.S.A. 99 (11): 7722-7, May 28, 2002.

C.H. Lang, G.J. Nystrom and R.A. Frost. Burn-induced changes in IGF-I and IGF-binding proteins are partially glucocorticoid dependent. Am. J. Physiol. Regul. Integr. Comp. Physiol. 282 (1): R207-15, Jan. 2002.

C. Ling and H. Billig. PRL receptor-mediated effects in female mouse adipocytes: PRL induces suppressors of cytokine signaling expression and suppresses insulin-induced leptin production in adipocytes in vitro. Endocrinology. 142 (11): 4880-90, Nov. 2001.

W.Y. Lui, C.W. Chi, Y.F. Chang, H.W. Chu, C.C. Hsieh, P.H. Yin, T.Y. Liu, Y.R. Ou and F.K. P'eng. In vivo and in vitro growth stimulation of murine hepatoma cells by glucocorticoid. Anticancer Res. 22 (3): 1413-22, May-Jun. 2002.

W. Ma, J. Tan, H. Matsumoto, B. Robert, D.R. Abrahamson, S.K. Das and S.K. Dey. Adult tissue angiogenesis: evidence for negative regulation by estrogen in the uterus. Mol. Endocrinol. 15 (11): 1983-92, Nov. 2001.

D.L. McCullers, P.G. Sullivan, S.W. Scheff and J.P. Herman. Mifepristone protects CA1 hippocampal neurons following traumatic brain injury in rat. Neuroscience. 109 (2): 219-30, 2002.

D.L. McCullers, P.G. Sullivan, S.W. Scheff and J.P. Herman. Traumatic brain injury regulates adrenocorticosteroid receptor mRNA levels in rat hippocampus. Brain Res. 947 (1): 41-9, Aug. 23, 2002.

A.M. Mercado, D.A. Padgett, J.F. Sheridan and P.T. Marucha. Altered kinetics of IL-1 alpha, IL-1 beta, and KGF-1 gene expression in early wounds of restrained mice. Brain Behav. Immun. 16 (2); 150-62, Apr. 2002.

G. Mercier, N. Turque and M. Schumacher. Early activation of transcription factor expression in Schwann cells by progesterone. Brain Res. Mol. Brain Res. 97 (2): 137-48, Dec. 30, 2001.

N. Morales-Peza, P. Auewarakul, V. Juarez, A. Garcia-Carranca and A. Cid-Arregui. In vivo tissue-specific regulation of the human papillomavirus type 18 early promoter by estrogen, progesterone, and their antagonists. Virology. 294 (1): 135-40, Mar. 1, 2002.

E.S. Ngan, Z.Q. Ma, S.S. Chua, F.J. DeMayo and S.Y. Tsai. Inducible expression of FGF-3 in mouse mammary gland. Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci. U.S.A. 99 (17): 11187-92, Aug. 20, 2002.

T. Osterwalder, K.S. Yoon, B.H. White and H. Keshishian. A conditional tissue-specific transgene expression system using inducible GAL4. Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci. U.S.A. 98 (22): 12596-601, Oct. 23, 2001.

A.M. Pasapera, R. Gutierrez-Sagal, R. Garcia-Becerra, A. Ulloa-Aguirre and J.F. Savouret. Transactivation of progestin- and estrogen-responsive promoters by 19-nor progestins in African Green Monkey Kidney CV1 cells. Endocrine. 16 (3): 217-25, Dec. 2001.

G. Penner, G. Gang, X. Sun, C. Wray and P.O. Hasselgren. C/EBP DNA-binding activity is upregulated by a glucocorticoid-dependent mechanism in septic muscle. Am. J. Physiol. Regul. Integr. Comp. Physiol. 282 (2): R439-44, Feb. 2002.

P.S. Quadros, V. Lopez, G.J. De Vries, W.C. Chung and C.K. Wagner. Progesterone receptors and the sexual differentiation of the medial preoptic nucleus. J. Neurobiol. 51 (1): 24-32, Apr. 2002.

I. Rogatsky, K.A. Zarember and K.R. Yamamoto. Factor recruitment and TIF2/GRIP1 corepressor activity at a collagenase-3 response element that mediates regulation by phorbol esters and hormones. EMBO J. 20 (21): 6071-83, Nov. 1, 2002.

I.G. Rojas, D.A. Padgett, J.F. Sheridan and P.T. Marucha. Stress-induced susceptibility to bacterial infection during cutaneous wound healing. Brain Behav. Immun. 16 (1): 74-84, Feb. 2002.

T. Raivio, J.J. Palvimo, S. Kannisto, R. Voutilainen and O.A. Janne. Transactivation assay for determination of glucocorticoid bioactivity in human serum. J. Clin. Endocrinol. Metab. 87 (8): 3740-4, Aug. 2002.

G. Roman, K. Endo, L. Zong and R.L. Davis. P[Switch], a system for spatial and temporal control of gene expression in Drosophila melanogaster. Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci. U.S.A. 98 (22): 12602-7, Oct. 23, 2001.

H. Sakamoto, K. Ukena and K. Tsutsui. Dendritic spine formation in response to progesterone synthesized de novo in the developing Purkinje cell in rats. Neurosci. Lett. 322 (2): 111-5, Apr. 5, 2002.

S.G. Sawant, R.S. Kozlowski and D.B. Couch. The role of adrenal corticosteroids in induction of micronuclei by morphine. Mutat. Res. 498 (1-2): 129-33, Nov. 15, 2001.

D.A. Scheuer and A.G. Bechtold. Glucocorticoids modulate baroreflex control of heart rate in conscious normotensive rats. Am. J. Physiol. Regul. Integr. Comp. Physiol. 282 (2): R475-83, Feb. 2002.

A. Schurr. Bench-to-bedside review: a possible resolution of the glucose paradox of cerebral ischemia. Crit. Care. 6 (4): 330-4, Aug. 2002, Review.

O.J. Shah, J.A. Iniguez-Lluhi, A. Romanelli, S.R. Kimball and L.S. Jefferson. The activated glucocorticoid receptor modulates presumptive autoregulation of ribosomal protein S6 protein kinase, p70 S6K. Biol. Chem. 277 (4): 2525-33, Jan. 25, 2002.

C.Y. Shin, J.W. Choi, E.S. Jang, J.H. Ryu, W.K. Kim, H.C. Kim and K.H. Ko. Glucocorticoids exacerbate peroxynitrite mediated potentiation of glucose deprivation-induced death of rat primary astrocytes. Brain Res. 923 (1-2): 163-71, Dec. 27, 2001.

K.A. Sloman, P.R. Desforges and K.M. Gilmour. Evidence for a mineral corticoid-like receptor linked to branchial chloride cell proliferation in freshwater rainbow trout. J. Exp. Biol. 204 (Pt. 22): 3953-61, Nov. 2001.

M. Soaje, E.G. de Di Nasso and R.P. Deis. Regulation by endogenous opioids of sucklinginduced prolactin secretion in pregnant and lactating rats: role of ovarian steroids. J. Endocrionol. 172 (2): 255-61, Feb. 2002.

R. Sorrentino, A. Capasso, R. d'Emmanuele di Villa Bianca and A. Pinto. Dexamethasone modulates hypotension induced by opiods in anaesthetised rats. Eur. J. Pharmacol. 430 (1): 79-85, Oct. 26, 2001.

S. Sridhar, A.A. Ali, Y. Liang, M.F. El Etreby, R.W. Lewis and M.V. Kumar. Differential expression of members of the tumor necrosis factor alpha-related apoptosis-inducing ligand pathway in prostate cancer cells. Cancer Res. 61 (19): 7179-83, Oct. 1, 2001.

C.O. Stocco, J. Chedrese and R.P. Deis. Luteal expression of cytochrome P450 side-chain cleavage, steroidogenic acute regulatory protein, 3beta-hydroxysteroid dehydrogenase, and 20alpha-hydroxysteroid dehydrogenase genes in late pregnant rats: effect of luteinizing hormone and RU486. Biol. Reprod. 65 (4): 1114-9, Oct. 2001.

N. Sugo, P.D. Hurn, M.B. Morahan, K. Hattori, R.J. Traystman and A.C. DeVries. Social stress exacerbates focal cerebral ischemia in mice. Stroke. 33 (6): 1660-4, Jun. 2002.

N. Sui, J. Hu, J. Chen, P. Kuang and D. Joyce. Reversed effects of RU486 and anisomycin on memory retention of light exposure or corticosterone facilitation in the dark-incubated chicks. J. Psychopharmacol. 15 (4): 287-91, Dec. 2001.

C.L. Swan, M.C. Agostini, P.M. Bartlewski, V. Feyles, R.J. Urban and P.J. Chedrese. Effects of progestins on progesterone synthesis in a stable porcine granulosa cell line: control of transcriptional activity of the cytochrome p450 side-chain cleavage gene. Biol. Reprod. 66 (4): 959-65, Apr. 2002.

T.C. Tai, R. Claycomb, S. Her, A.K. Bloom and D.L. Wong. Glucocorticoid responsiveness of the rat phenylethanolamine N-methyltransferase gene. Mol. Pharmacol. 61 (6): 1385-92, Jun. 2002.

FDACDER000463

5

Y. Terada, H. Tanaka, T. Okado, S. Inoshita, M. Kuwahara, T. Akiba, S. Sasaki and F. Marumo. Efficient and ligand-dependent regulated erythropoietin production by naked DNA injection and in vivo electroporation. Am. J. Kidney. Dis. 38 (4 Suppl 1): S50-3, Oct. 2001.

J.A. Tuxhorn, S.J. McAlhany, T.D. Dang, G.E. Ayala and D.R. Rowley. Stromal cells promote angiogenesis and growth of human prostate tumors in a differential reactive stroma (DRS) xenograft model. Cancer Res. 62 (11): 3298-307, Jun. 1, 2002.

S.A. Van Acker, M.F. Fluttert, R.M. Sibug and E.R. De Kloet. Intracerebroventricular administration of a glucocorticoid receptor antagonist enhances the cardiovascular responses to brief restraint stress. Eur. J. Pharmacol. 430 (1): 87-91, Oct. 26, 2001.

C.J. Wray, B. Tomkinson, B.W. Robb and P.O. Hasselgren. Tripeptidyl-peptidase II expression and activity are increased in skeletal muscle during sepsis. Biochem. Biophys. Res. Commun. 296 (1): 41-7, Aug. 9, 2002.

X. Xu, M. Otsuki, S. Sumitani, H. Saito, H. Kouhara and S. Kasayama. RU486 antagonizes the inhibitory effect of peroxisome proliferator-activated receptor alpha on interleukin-6 production in vascular endothelial cells. J. Steroid Biochem. Mol. Biol. 81 (2): 141-6, Jun. 2002.

J.G. Yang, C.C. Yu and P.S. Li. Dexamethasone enhances follicle stimulating hormone-induced P450scc mRNA expression and progesterone production in pig granulosa cells. Chin. J. Phsyiol. 44 (3): 111-9, Sep. 30, 2001.

X. Ye, K. Schillinger, M.M. Burcin, S.Y. Tsai and B.W. O'Malley. Ligand-inducible transgene regulation for gene therapy. Methods Enzymol. 346: 551-61, 2002.

W.J. Yu, B. Tomlinson and J.T. Cheng. Regulation of endothelin-1 production in deoxycorticosterone acetate-salt-treated endothelial cells. Pharmacology. 64 (4): 169-75, Apr. 2002.

S. Zalanyi. Progesterone and ovulation. Eur. J. Obstet. Gyncol. Reprod. Biol. 98 (2): 152-9, Oct. 2001. Review.

P. Zhang, E.A. Terefenko, A. Fensome, J. Wrobel, R. Winneker, S. Lundeen, K.B. Marschke and Z. Zhang. 6-Aryl-1, 4-dihydro-benzo[d][1,3]oxazin- 2-ones: a novel class of potent, selective, and orally active nonsteroidal progesterone receptor antagonists. J. Med. Chem. 45 (20): 4379-82, Sep. 26, 2002.

Z. Zhou, D. Wang, X.J. Wang and D.R. Roop. In utero activation of K5.CrePR1 induces gene deletion. Genesis. 32 (2): 191-2, Feb. 2002.

6

ATTACHMENT 10

Population Council/Danco Laboratories, LLC Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg

(a

17

Sept. 28, 2001 - Sept. 27, 2002 NDA 20-687

LITERATURE UPDATE – CLINICAL

The present update to the bibliography was generated by a search performed using PubMed with the keywords mifepristone and human from all sources and languages. This bibliography covers the period of September 28, 2001 to September 27, 2002.

The bibliography generated by this strategy includes published articles on clinical investigations on mifepristone. The references are organized alphabetically by author. In addition, the references are subdivided into several sections: 1. Medical Abortion, 2. Cervical Softening, Surgical Abortion, Management of Late Intrauterine Death and Cesarean Section, 3. Other (Alzheimer's Disease, Contraception, Depression, Emergency Contraception and Biochemical Effects, etc.). The reprints of these articles will be supplied upon request.

1. Medical Abortion

P. Aavitsland. [Interrupted pregnancy, mifepristone and patient rights] Tidsskr Nor Laegeforen. 121 (28): 3261, Nov. 20, 2001. Norwegian. No abstract available.

P.W. Ashok, A. Kidd, G.M. Flett, A. Fitzmaurice, W. Graham and A. Templeton. A randomized comparison of medical abortion and surgical vacuum aspiration at 10-13 weeks gestation. Hum. Reprod. 17 (1): 92-8, Jan. 2002.

D.T. Baird. Medical abortion in the first trimester. Best Pract. Res. Clin. Obstet. Gynaecol. 16 (2): 221-36, Apr. 2002. Review.

J. Bartley, A. Brown, R. Elton and D.T. Baird. Double-blind randomized trial of mifepristone in combination with vaginal gemeprost or misoprostol for induction of abortion up to 63 days gestation. Hum. Reprod. 16 (10): 2098-102, Oct. 2001. Scitland N~ foo

E.E. Baulieu, D.S. Seidman and S. Hajri. Mifepristone (RU486) and voluntary termination of pregnancy: enigmatic variations or anecdotal religion-based attitudes? Letter to the Editor. Hum. Reprod. 16 (10): 2243-4, Oct. 2001.

L. Bjorge and O.E. Iversen. [Mifepristone – a controversial drug with great potential] Tidsskr Nor Laegforen. 121 (28): 3286-91, Nov. 20, 2001. Review. Norwegian.

L. Bjorge, S.L. Johnsen, G. Midboe, G. Augestad, I. Okland, H. Helland, S. Stray-Pedersen and O.E. Iversen. Early pregnancy termination with mifepristone and misoprostol in Norway. Acta. Obstet. Gynecol. Scand. 80 (11): 1056-61, Nov. 2001.

T.J. Child, M. Rees and I.Z. MacKenzie. Curettage after mifepristone-induced abortion: frequency, timing, and indications. Letter to the Editor. Obstet. Gynecol. 98 (6): 1149, Dec. 2001.

K. Coyaji, B. Elul, U. Krishna, S. Otiv, S. Ambardekar, A. Bopardikar, V. Raote, C. Ellertson and B. Winikoff. Mifepristone-misoprostol abortion: a trial in rural and urban Maharashtra, India. Contraception. 66 (1): 33-40, Jul. 2002.

C. Ellertson and S.N. Waldman. The mifepristone-misoprostol regimen for early medical abortion. Curr. Womens Health Rep. 1 (3): 184-90, Dec. 2001. Review.

S.L. Fielding, E. Edmunds and E.A. Schaff. Having an abortion using mifepristone and home misoprostol: a qualitative analysis of women's experiences. Perspect. Sex Reprod. Health. 34 (1): 34-40, Jan.-Feb. 2002.

S.L. Fielding, S.S. Lee and E.A. Schaff. Professional considerations for providing mifepristoneinduced abortion. Nurse Pract. 26 (11): 44-54, Nov. 2001. Review.

S.L. Fielding, E.A. Schaff and N.Y. Nam. Clinicians' perception of sonogram indication for mifepristone abortion up to 63 days. Contraception. 66 (1): 27-31, Jul. 2002.

D.P. Garcia. RU-486: is it hot, or is it not? J. Ky. Med. Assoc. 99 (11): 499-500, Nov. 2001. No abstract available.

G.L. Goss. Pregnancy termination. Understanding and supporting women who undergo medical abortion. AWHONN Lifelines. 6 (1): 46-50, Feb.-Mar. 2002. Review. No abstract available.

C. Harper, C. Ellertson and B. Winikoff. Could American women use mifepristone-misoprostol pills safely with less medical supervision? Contraception. 65 (2): 133-42, Feb. 2002.

R. Mashiach, G.I. Seidman and D.S. Seidman. Use of mifepristone as an example of conflicting and misleading medical information on the internet. BJOG. 109 (4): 437-42, Apr. 2002.

G. Norel. [Voluntary pharmacologic termination of pregnancy] Rev. Med. Brux. 23 (1): A52-3, Feb. 2002. French. No abstract available.

R.H. Phelps, E.A. Schaff and S.L. Fielding. Mifepristone abortion in minors. Contraception. 64 (6): 339-43, Dec. 2001.

N.N. Sarkar. Mifepristone: bioavailability, pharmacokinetics and use-effectiveness. Eur. J. Obstet. Gynecol. Reprod. Biol. 101 (2): 113-20, Mar. 10, 2002.

O.S. Tang and P.C. Ho. Medical abortion in the second trimester. Best Pract. Res. Clin. Obstet. Gynaecol. 16 (2): 237-46, Apr. 2002. Review.

O.S. Tang, J. Xu, L. Cheng, S.W. Lee and P.C. Ho. The effect of contraceptive pills on the measured blood loss in medical termination of pregnancy by mifepristone and misoprostol: a randomized placebo controlled trial. Hum. Reprod. 17 (1): 99-102, Jan. 2002.

S.R. Trupin and C. Moreno. Medical abortion: overview and management. Medscape Womens Health. 6 (6): 4. Dec. 2001.

E.M. Tsai, C.H. Yang and J.N. Lee. Medical abortion with mifepristone and misoprostol: a clinical trial in Taiwanese women. J. Formos. Med. Assoc. 101 (4): 277-82, Apr. 2002.

P.F. Van Look and J.C. Cottingham. Unsafe abortion: an avoidable tragedy. Best Pract. Res. Clin. Obstet. Gynaecol. 6 (2): 205-20, Apr. 2002. Review.

K. Walker, E. Schaff, S. Fielding and L. Fuller. Monitoring serum chorionic gonadotropin levels after mifepristone abortion. Contraception. 64 (5): 271-3, Nov. 2001.

C. Westhoff and R. Allen. Curretage after mifepristone-induced abortion: frequency, timing, and indications. In reply to letter to the editor of Child et al. Obstet. Gynecol. 98 (6): 1149-50, Dec. 2001. (See Child et al. letter)

E. Wiebe, S. Dunn, E. Guilbert, F. Jacot and L. Lugtig. Comparison of abortions induced by methotrexate or mifepristone followed by misoprostol. Obstet. Gynecol. 99 (5 Pt 1): 813-9, May 2002.

2. Cervical Softening, Surgical Abortion, Management of Late Intrauterine Death and Cesarean Section

[No authors listed]

Mifepristone: new preparation. Avoids or facilitates cervical dilation before vacuum aspiration of pregnancy. Prescrire Int. 10 (55): 135-40, Oct. 2001.

A. Hunter, H. Porter and P. Kyle. Not assuming the obvious: failed surgical termination of pregnancy and multiple fetal abnormalities. BJOG. 109 (9): 1069-71, Sep. 2002. No abstract available.

M.E. Paul, C.M. Mitchell, A.J. Rogers, M.C. Fox and E.G. Lackie. Early surgical abortion: efficacy and safety. Am. J. Obstet. Gynecol. 187 (2): 407-11, Aug. 2002.

P.T. Wagaarachchi, P.W. Ashok, N.N. Narvekar, N.C. Smith and A. Templeton. Medical management of late intrauterine death using a combination of mifepristone and misoprostol. BJOG. 109 (4): 443-7, Apr. 2002.

P.T. Wagaarachchi, P.W. Ashok, N.C. Smith and A. Templeton. Medical management of early fetal demise using sublingual misoprostol. BJOG. 109 (4): 462-5, Apr. 2002.

W. Wang, W. Long and O. Yu. Complication of cesarean section: pregnancy on the cicatrix of a previous cesarean section. Chin. Med. J. (Engl.). 115 (2): 242-6, Feb. 2002.

W. Weimin and L. Wenqing. Effect of early pregnancy on a previous lower segment cesarean section scar. Int. J. Gynaecol. Obstet. 77 (3): 201-7. Jun. 2002. Review.

3. Other (Alzheimer's Disease, Contraception, Depression, Emergency Contraception and Biochemical Effects, etc.)

J.T. Arnold, B.A. Lessey, M. Seppala and D.G. Kaufman. Effect of normal endometrial stroma on growth and differentiation in Ishikawa endometrial adenocarcinoma cells. Cancer Res. 62 (1): 79-88, Jan. 1, 2002.

P.W. Ashok, C. Stadler, P.T. Wagaarachchi, G.M. Flett, L. Melvin and A. Templeton. A randomised study comparing a low dose of mifepristone and the Yuzpe regimen for emergency contraception. BJOG. 109 (5): 553-60, May 2002.

J.K. Belanoff, B.H. Flores, M. Kalezhan, B. Sund, and A.F. Schatzberg. Rapid reversal of psychotic depression using mifepristone. J. Clin. Psychopharmacol. 21 (5): 516-21, Oct. 2001.

A. Brown, L. Cheng, S. Lin and D.T. Baird. Daily low-dose mifepristone has contraceptive potential by suppressing ovulation and menstruation: a double-blind randomized control trial of 2 and 5 mg per day for 120 days. J. Clin. Endocrinol. Metab. 87 (1): 63-70, Jan. 2002.

T. Cao, S.Y. Tsai, B.W. O'Malley, X.J. Wang and D.R. Roop. The epidermis as a bioreactor: topically regulated cutaneous delivery into the circulation. Hum. Gene Ther. 13 (9): 1075-80, Jun. 10, 2002.

K.W. Cheng, C.K. Cheng and P.C. Leung. Differential role of PR-A and –B isoforms in transcription regulation of human GnRH receptor gene. Mol. Endocrinol. 15 (12): 2078-92, Dec. 2001.

A. Christow, X. Sun and K. Gemzell-Danielsson. Effect of mifepristone and levonorgestrel on expression of steroid receptors in the human Fallopian tube. Mol. Hum. Reprod. 8 (4): 333-40, Apr. 2002.

C. Crochemore, T.M. Michaelidis, D. Fischer, J.P. Loeffler and O.F. Almeida. Enhancement of p53 activity and inhibition of neural cell proliferation by glucocorticoid receptor activation. FASEB J. 16 (8): 761-70, Jun. 2002.

C.A. Da Silva, O. Kassel, E. Mathieu, G. Massard, B. Gasser and N. Frossard. Inhibition by glucocorticoids of the interleukin-1beta-enhanced expression of the mast cell growth factor SCF. Br. J. Pharmacol. 135 (7): 1634-40, Apr. 2002.

A. Glasier. Emergency Contraception. Best Pract. Res. Clin. Obstet. Gynaecol. 16 (2): 181-9. Apr. 2002. Review.

A.F. Glasier, H. Wang, J.E. Davie, R.W. Kelly and H.O. Critchley. Administration of an antiprogesterone up-regulates estrogen receptors in the endometrium of women using Norplant: a pilot study. Fertil. Steril. 77 (2): 366-72, Feb. 2002.

D.A. Grimes and E.G. Raymond. Emergency Contraception. Ann. Intern. Med. 137 (3): 180-9, Aug. 6, 2002. Review.

D.K. Hapangama, A.F. Glasier and D.T. Baird. Noncompliance among a group of women using a novel method of contraception. Fertil. Steril. 76 (6): 1196-201, Dec. 2001.

O. Herkert, H. Kuhl, J. Sandow, R. Busse and V.B. Schini-Kerth. Sex steroids used in hormonal treatment increase vascular procoagulant activity by inducing thrombin receptor (PAR-1) expression: role of the glucocorticoid receptor. Circulation. 104 (23): 2826-31, Dec. 4, 2001.

P.C. Ho, E.H. Yu Ng and O.S. Tang. Mifepristone: contraceptive and non-contraceptive uses. Curr. Opin. Obstet. Gynaecol. 14 (3): 325-30, Jun. 2002. Review.

E.P. Kettyle and C. Klima. Adolescent emergency contraception: attitudes and practices of certified nurse-midwives. J. Midwifery Womens Health. 47 (2): 68-73, Mar.-Apr. 2002.

K. Koyama and Z. Krozowski. Modulation of 11 beta-hydroxysteroid dehydrogenase type 2 activity in Ishikawa cells is associated with changes in cellular proliferation. Mol. Cell Endocrinol. 183 (1-2): 165-70, Oct. 25, 2001.

A.V. Krishan, X.Y. Zhao, S. Swami, L. Brive, D.M. Peehl, K.R. Ely and D. Feldman. A glucocorticoid-responsive mutant androgen receptor exhibits unique ligand specificity: therapeutic implications for androgen-independent prostate cancer. Endocrinology. 143 (5): 1889-900, May 2002.

F. Li, T. Ye, N. Wang and H. Zheng. [Effect of RU38486 on fibronectin expression in cultured human trabecular cells] Chung Hua Yen Ko Tsa Chih. 38 (1): 42-4, Jan. 2002. Chinese.

V.C. Lin, S.E. Aw, E.H. Ng and M.G. Tan. Demonstration of mixed properties of RU486 in progesterone receptor (PR)-tranfected MDA-MB-231 cells: a model for studying the functions of progesterone analogues. Br. J. Cancer. 85 (12): 1978-86, Dec. 14, 2001.

Z. Liu, D. Auboeuf, J. Wong, J.D. Chen, S.Y. Tsai, M.J. Tsai and B.W. O'Malley. Coactivator/corepressor ratios modulate PR-mediated transcription by the selective receptor modulator RU486. Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci. U.S.A. 99 (12): 7940-4, Jun. 11, 2002.

L. Marions, K. Hultenby, I. Lindell, X. Sun, B. Stabi and K. Gemzell-Danielsson. Emergency contraception with mifepristone and levonorgestrel: mechanism of action. Obstet. Gynecol. 100 (1): 65-71, Jul. 2002.

S. Ogata, N. Yorioka and N. Kohno. Glucose and prednisolone alter basic fibroblast growth factor expression in peritoneal mesothelial cells and fibroblasts. J. Am. Soc. Nephrol. 12 (12): 2787-96, Dec. 2001.

S. Pandit, W. Geissler, G. Harris and A. Sitlani. Allosteric effects of dexamethasone and RU486 on glucocorticoid receptor-DNA interactions. J. Biol. Chem. 277 (2): 1538-43, Jan. 11, 2002.

N. Pomara, P.M. Doraiswamy, H. Tun and S. Ferris. Mifepristone (RU 486) for Alzheimer's disease. Neurology. 58 (9): 1436-37, May 14, 2002.

T. Raivio, J.J. Palvimo, S. Kannisto, R. Voutilainen and O.A. Janne. Transactivation assay for determination of glucocorticoid bioactivity in human serum. J. Clin. Endocrinol. Metab. 87 (8): 3740-4, Aug. 2002.

I. Rogatsky, K.A. Zarember and K.R. Yamamoto. Factor recruitment and TIF2/GRIP1 corepressor activity at a collagenase-3 response element that mediates regulation by phorbol esters and hormones. EMBO J. 20 (21): 6071-83, Nov. 1, 2001.

N.N. Sarkar. The potential of mifepristone (RU486) as a female contraceptive drug. Int. J. Clin. Pract. 56 (2): 140-4, Mar. 2002. Review.

G. Sathya, M.S. Jansen, S.C. Nagel, C.E. Cook and D.P. McDonnell. Identification and characterization of novel estrogen receptor-beta-sparing antiprogestins. Endocrinology. 143 (8): 3071-82, Aug. 2002.

M. Schultz, M. Eggert, A. Baniahmad, A. Dostert, T. Heinzel and R. Renkawitz. RU486-induced glucocorticoid receptor agonism is controlled by the receptor N terminus and by coreprocessor binding. J. Biol. Chem. 277 (29): 26238-43, Jul. 19, 2002.

A. Schurr. Bench-to-bedside review: a possible resolution of the glucose paradox of cerebral ischemia. Crit. Care. 6 (4): 330-4, Aug. 2002. Review.

O.J. Shah, J.A. Iniguez-Lluhi, A. Romanelli, S.R. Kimball and L.S. Jefferson. The activated glucocorticoid receptor modulates presumptive autoregulation of ribosomal protein S6 protein kinase, p70 S6K. J. Biol. Chem. 277 (4): 2525-33, Jan. 25, 2002.

A.R. Shepard, N. Jacobson, J.H. Fingert, E.M. Stone, V.C. Sheffield and A.F. Clark. Delayed secondary glucocorticoid responsiveness of MYOC in human trabecular meshwork cells. Invest Opthalmol. Vis. Sci. 42 (13): 3173-81, Dec. 2001.

N. Sidell, S.W. Han and S. Parthasarathy. Regulation and modulation of abnormal immune responses in endometriosis. Ann. N.Y. Acad. Sci. 955: 159-73; discussion 199-200, 396-406, Mar. 2002. Review.

S. Sridhar, A.A. Ali, Y. Liang, M.F. El Etreby, R.W. Lewis and M.V. Kumar. Differential expression of members of the tumor necrosis factor alpha-related apoptosis-inducing ligand pathway in prostate cancer cells. Cancer Res. 61 (19): 7179-83, Oct. 1, 2001.

E. Sundkvist, R. Jaeger and G. Sager. Pharmacological characterization of the ATP-dependent low K(m) guanosine 3',5'-cyclic monphosphate (cGMP) transporter in human erythrocytes. Biochem. Pharmacol. 63 (5): 945-9, Mar. 1, 2002.

E.C. Svensson, E. Markstrom, R. Shao, M. Andersson and H. Billig. Progesterone receptor antagonists Org 31710 and RU 486 increase apoptosis in human periovulatory granulosa cells. Fertil. Steril. 76 (6): 1225-31, Dec. 2001.

H. Tatsumi, J. Kitawaki, K. Tanaka, T. Hosoda and H. Honjo. Lack of stimulatory effect of dienogest on the expression of intercellular adhesion molecule-1 and vascular cell adhesion molecule-1 by endothelial cell as compared with other synthetic progestins. Maturitas. 42 (4): 287-94, Aug. 30, 2002.

J.A. Tuxhorn, S.J. McAlhany, T.D. Dang, G.E. Ayala and D.R. Rowley. Stromal cells promote angiogenesis and growth of human prostate tumors in a differential reactive stroma (DRS) xenograft model. Cancer Res. 62 (11): 3298-307, Jun. 1, 2002.

V. Vicennati, A. Vottero, C. Friedman and D.A. Papanicolaou. Hormonal regulation of interleukin-6 production in human adipocytes. Int. J. Obes. Relat. Metab. Disord. 26 (7): 905-11, Jul. 2002.

Z. Wang, J. Frederick and M.J. Garabedian. Deciphering the phosphorylation "code" of the glucocorticoid receptor in vivo. J. Biol. Chem. 277 (29): 26573-80, Jul. 19, 2002.

M.S. Wanner and R.L. Couchenour. Hormonal emergency contraception. Pharmacotherapy. 22 (1): 43-53, Jan. 2002. Review.

X. Xu, M. Otsuki, S. Sumitani, H. Saito, H. Kouhara and S. Kasayama. RU486 antagonizes the inhibitory effect of peroxisome proliferator-activated receptor alpha on interleukin-6 production in vascular endothelial cells. J. Steroid Biochem. Mol. Biol. 81 (2): 141-6, Jun. 2002.

X. Ye, K. Schillinger, M.M. Burcin, S.Y. Tsai and B.W. O'Malley. Ligand-inducible transgene regulation for gene therapy. Methods Enzymol. 346: 551-61, 2002.

W.J. Yu, B. Tomlinson and J.T. Cheng. Regulation of endothelin-1 production in deoxycorticosterone acetate-salt-treated endothelial cells. Pharmacology. 64 (4): 169-75, Apr. 2002.

S. Zalanyi. Progesterone and ovulation. Eur. J. Obstet. Gynecol. Reprod. Biol. 98 (2): 152-9, Oct. 2001. Review.

P. Zhang, E.A. Terefenko, A. Fensome, J. Wrobel, R. Winneker, S. Lundeen, K.B. Marschke and Z. Zhang. 6-Aryl-1,4-dihydro-benzo[d][1,3]oxazin-2-ones: a novel class of potent selective, and orally active nonsteroidal progesterone receptor antagonists. J. Med. Chem. 45 (20): 4379-82, Sep. 26, 2002.

X. Zhang, E. Moilanen and H. Kankaanranta. Beclomethasone, budesonide and fluticasone propionate inhibit human neutrophil apoptosis. Eur. J. Pharmacol. 431 (3): 365-71, Nov. 23, 2001.

X. Zhang, E. Moilanen, I.M. Adcock, M.A. Lindsay and H. Kankaanranta. Divergent effect of mometasone on human eosinophil and neutrophil apoptosis. Life Sci. 71 (13): 1523-34, Aug. 16, 2002.

Y. Zhang, G. Chen, Y. Liu and G. Fu. [Apoptosis and expression of relative genes in early pregnant chorionic villi and decidua] Zhonghua Fu Chan Ke Za Zhi. 37 (4): 220-2, Apr. 2002. Chinese.

D. Zhao, D.I. Lebovic and R.N. Taylor, Long-term progestin treatment inhibits RANTES (regulated on activation, normal T cell expressed and secreted) gene expression in human endometrial stromal cells. J. Clin. Endocrinol. Metab. 87 (6): 2514-9, Jun. 2002.

Population Council/Danco Laboratories, LLC Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg

. .

ATTACHMENT 11

.

ſ

.

.

. .

.

.

.

1. Medical Abortion

. .

. . .

Tidsskr Nor Laegeforen 2001 Nov 20;121(28):3261

[Interrupted pregnancy, mifepristone and patient rights]

[Article in Norwegian]

Aavitsland P.

Publication Types:

• Editorial

PMID: 11826453 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Hum Reprod 2002 Jan;17(1):92-8

A randomized comparison of medical abortion and surgical vacuum aspiration at 10-13 weeks gestation.

Ashok PW, Kidd A, Flett GM, Fitzmaurice A, Graham W, Templeton A.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, University of Aberdeen, Aberdeen Maternity Hospital, Scotland, UK. ashok@abdn.ac.uk

BACKGROUND: Since 1991, mifepristone in combination with a prostaglandin analogue has been licensed for termination of pregnancy in the UK at up to 9 weeks amenorrhoea, and since 1995, beyond 13 weeks. Surgical methods are used almost exclusively at 10-13 weeks amenorrhoea. METHODS: A patient-centred, partially randomized, controlled trial was carried out. Those who expressed a strong preference for either medical (n = 15) or surgical (n = 62) abortion were allocated to that method. The remainder agreed to be randomized. The medical method (n = 188) was mifepristone 200 mg followed by misoprostol up to 3 doses, and surgery (n = 180) was by vacuum aspiration under general anaesthesia. Outcome measures included efficacy rates, medical complications within 8 weeks of the procedure. patient preferences and acceptability. RESULTS: Among women who underwent medical abortion, 5.4% required a second procedure compared with 2.1% who had surgery, although this difference was not statistically significant. Side effects experienced were higher in women who underwent medical abortion compared with those who underwent surgery. There were no significant differences in the rates of major complications up to 8 weeks. Prior to termination, 80% of women had a preference for a method, with 72% preferring medical and 28% preferring surgical abortion. Following abortion, 70% of those who underwent medical termination and 79% who underwent surgery would opt for the same method in the future. CONCLUSION: Medical abortion is safe and effective at 10-13 weeks gestation and should be considered an option for those women who wish to avoid surgery and anaesthesia.

Publication Types:

- Clinical Trial
- Randomized Controlled Trial

PMID: 11756368 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Best Pract Res Clin Obstet Gynaecol 2002 Apr;16(2):221-36 Medical abortion in the first trimester.

Baird DT.

Centre for Reproductive Biology, University of Edinburgh, 37 Chalmers Street, UK.

Pregnancy can be terminated safely by inducing abortion medically at any stage of gestation. Antagonists such as mifepristone block the action of progesterone and hence result in uterine contractions and increase the sensitivity of the uterus to prostaglandins. In the last 15 years the combination of a single dose of mifepristone (600 mg) followed 48 hours later with a suitable prostaglandin (1 mg gemeprost vaginal pessary or 400 microg oral misoprostol) has been licensed in most countries in Europe and the USA for induction of abortion in the early weeks of pregnancy. The safety and efficacy of these methods is comparable to vacuum aspiration at the same gestation. The complete abortion rate is related to the type and dose of prostaglandin, the route of administration as well as the gestation and parity. Published data suggest that the dose of mifepristone can be reduced from 600 mg to 200 mg without loss of efficacy. Although misoprostol tablets are formulated for oral use, extensive clinical experience has demonstrated vaginal administration is more effective and is associated with fewer side-effects. Successful abortion using medical methods requires a well organized service which includes referral without delay and a robust system of follow up to identify failures. The failure rate as reflected by the number of women who require surgical intervention falls with increasing experience. In those countries where medical abortion has been freely available for about 10 years, such as France, Scotland and Sweden, about 60-70% of eligible women elect for this method. Copyright 2002 Elsevier Science Ltd.

Publication Types:

- Review
- Review, Tutorial

PMID: 12041964 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Hum Reprod 2001 Oct;16(10):2098-102

Double-blind randomized trial of mifepristone in combination with vaginal gemeprost or misoprostol for induction of abortion up to 63 days gestation.

Bartley J, Brown A, Elton R, Baird DT.

Centre for Reproductive Biology, University of Edinburgh, 37 Chalmers Street, Edinburgh EH3 9ET, UK.

BACKGROUND: Gemeprost and misoprostol are two of the most widely used prostaglandins in combination with mifepristone for medical abortion in early pregnancy. However, the efficacy and side-effects of those two drugs given vaginally have not been assessed in a randomized trial. METHODS: Randomized double-blind controlled trial involving 999 women undergoing an abortion at gestational age < or = 63 days who received either 0.5 mg gemeprost (group I, n = 499) or 800 microg misoprostol (group II, n = 500) vaginally approximately 48 h after taking 200 mg mifepristone by mouth. The rate of complete abortion and the side-effects were compared between the groups. RESULTS: A total of 89 cases was excluded from full analysis of outcome because either they aborted after mifepristone alone (n = 2), had an ectopic pregnancy (n = 1), or because the outcome was uncertain as they failed to attend their follow-up appointment (n = 86). The rate of complete abortion was very high (>95%) in both groups but significantly higher after treatment with misoprostol than with gemeprost [436/453 (98.7%) versus 451/457 (96.2%), P = 0.019, difference 2.5%, confidence interval 0.4-4.7%] and there were fewer ongoing pregnancies (n = 1 versus n = 8, P < 0.018). Surgical intervention rose significantly with gestation in women who received gemeprost (P < 0.03) but not with misoprostol. The incidence of side-effects such as diarrhoea (13.7 versus 16.4%) and vomiting (27.8 versus 29.7%) was similar in women who received misoprostol or gemeprost respectively, as was the duration and amount of bleeding. CONCLUSIONS: (i) Both regimens using a reduced dose of mifepristone are highly effective methods of inducing abortion in early pregnancy; (ii) vaginal misoprostol is the preferred prostaglandin because it is it is associated with fewer failures than low-dose gemeprost, particularly at gestation > or =49 days.

Publication Types:

- Clinical Trial
- Randomized Controlled Trial

PMID: 11574498 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Hum Reprod 2001 Oct;16(10):2243-4

Mifepristone (RU486) and voluntary termination of pregnancy: enigmatic variations or anecdotal religion-based attitudes?

Baulieu EE, Seidman DS, Hajri S.

Letters to the Editor

Mifepristone (RU486) and voluntary termination of pregnancy: enigmatic variations* or anecdotal religionbased attitudes?

Dear Sir,

Mifepristone (RU486), the first clinically efficient antiprogesterone (Herrmann et al., 1982; Baulieu, 1989), has made the concept of medical abortion a reality (Ulmann et al., 1992). Here we only refer to the voluntary termination of early pregnancy, which sustains so much controversy in the vast and evolving domain of women's reproductive health (Van Look, 2000). Legally on the market for years in France, Britain and Sweden and massively produced and used in China, the compound has become available to women in need in Israel, funisia and Germany, where what might be called religionbased attitudes have been observed.

Of course the biology of pregnancy is quasi-identical for women all over the world, and its termination with an antagonist to the hormone of pregnancy, progesterone, should also be the same everywhere. But the use of this antagonist, mifepristone (RU486), does not mean the same thing to everybody everywhere.

In Israel, mifepristone was approved and has been sold to the public since September 1999. Remarkably, its reception by religious fundamentalist Jews was not hostile and even the opposite: on the grounds that under Jewish law, although the fetus is considered to be a potential person from the moment of conception, before 40 days of gestation it is 'mayim b'alma' (mere water) according to the Talmud (Eisenberg, 1998). Although disagreement does exist, many Jewish scholars believe that prior to 40 days one cannot 'wound' or 'murder' that which does not have the status of an existing person. Since fear of injury to the mother by abortion within these 40 days still remains an objection by Jewish law, a safe medical termination with mifepristone, which is easy to perform and efficient earlier than with an instrumental technique, may thus be preferable. This should be appreciated when attempting to avoid real or foreseen obstacles to the introduction of new forms of contraception or abortion. This argument of a spiritual. nature may be important for confronting other objections: apparently some Israeli physicians are not over-enthusiastic about a method which is less financially rewarding than an instrumental intervention.

Clearly, the strong opposition from fundamentalist Christian groups should not automatically be extended to another (monotheist) religion. This can also be deduced from the Tunisian experience. In Tunisia, trials have been conducted by the Population Council and the Tunisian 'Planning familial' and

*The play *Enigmatic variations* by Eric-Emmanuel Schmitt has been performed in several countries. It is based on the symphonic 'Enigma variations' by Edward Elgar.

© European Society of Human Reproduction and Embryology

confirm the Israeli case with respect to the opinion of religious Muslims. Tunisian trials have involved Muslim women practising the five daily prayers and regularly following Ramadan, sometimes even wearing a tchador during the consultations. They found the procedure more acceptable because it is early and 'natural' (non instrumental), and imams cite a 'hadith' also describing the first 40 days of embryogenesis as that preceding 'unity' ('God's breath' being insufflated on ~120th day) (Banwell and Paxman, 1992). One unexpected favourable argument was provided by seven young single women (20-29 years old) who chose mifepristone which, not involving instrumental intrusion, would 'protect their virginity' in conformity with their fiances' indication that they had only had a 'superficial' sexual relationship, and, of course, this was eventually also approved by their family. The preservation of future fertility (unpublished observations in cases reported in Ulmann et al., 1992) is one more favourable reason for accepting mifepristone.

In Europe, mifepristone has recently been approved for use in a further eight countries, including Germany. In Germany, opposition came not directly from religious groups but from the German Society for Gynecology and Obstetrics (DGGG). This association reacted rapidly to the application for mifepristone, presented by the Bounder Institut für Arzneumittei and Medizin Products, and insisted on the 'considerable mental duress for women, the (frequently life long) psychosomatic consequences' caused by an abortion. The appointed DGGG committee recommended certain diagnosis of intact intrauterine pregnancy using vaginal sonographic proof of embryonic cardiac activity (German Society for Gynecology and Obstetrics, 1999), which is not possible before day 38-42 after the last menstrual period at the earliest. They tried to convince the Health Authorities and the public that mifepristone, which may be used to interrupt pregnancy very early-a physiologic-ally and psychologically beneficial property- should be only used after the 42nd day because earlier intervention could constitute abortion 'of an unfit object' which would have been spontaneously eliminated anyway in up to 30% of cases (Blanch et al., 1998). The delay would avoid future remorse for these women, and thus it would be better to wait (and possibly suffer more from use of an instrumental method). One of the rare cases when an appropriate medical treatment becomes improper because of its very early application! The story did end with the regular registration of mifepristone in Germany. At last.

The next 'interesting' case will be the USA, where the majority of religiously oriented professionals (pharmacists) supporting the right to refuse to dispense abortifacients, indicated abortion should remain a legal option including that using RU486 (Gianetti, 1996). The Food and Drug Administration has approved the drug (*Time Magazine*, 2000), a decision that generated debate between the candidates in the Presidential election (*The New York Times*, 2000).

How interesting the diversity of confrontations of human beings with a drug. It is not unexpected that pregnancy interruption generates behavioural variations which are, after all, not so enigmatic... Tidsskr Nor Laegeforen 2001 Nov 20;121(28):3286-91

[Mifepristone--a controversial drug with great potential]

[Article in Norwegian]

Bjorge L, Iversen OE.

Kvinneklinikken Haukeland Sykehus 5021 Bergen. line.bjorge@gades.uib.no

BACKGROUND: Antiprogestins, agents that inhibit the action of progesterone, are among the most controversial and yet the more interesting therapeutic compounds developed over the past 20 years. MATERIAL AND METHODS: We present a review of the literature identified through limited searches on Medline, Cochrane and the Internet, with a discussion of the biological, clinical, political and ethical aspects of this important drug. RESULTS: The first effective antiprogestin in clinical use was mifepristone (also known as RU 486). This agent provides the most effective and safest means of medical abortion. It may also be used as a contraceptive and delivery-inducing agent and in the treatment of spontaneous abortion, ectopic pregnancies, leiomyoma, endometriosis, intrauterine fetal death, Cushing's syndrome and progesterone-dependent malignancies. INTERPRETATION: The introduction of mifepristone as an abortion-inducing agent has created intense political, ethical and moral controversies which have delayed clinical investigations and evaluations for potential expanded use.

Publication Types:

- Historical Article
- Review
- Review, Tutorial

PMID: 11826459 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Acta Obstet Gynecol Scand 2001 Nov;80(11):1056-61

Early pregnancy termination with mifepristone and misoprostol in Norway.

Bjorge L, Johnsen SL, Midboe G, Augestad G, Okland I, Helland H, Stray-Pedersen S, Iversen OE.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology, N-5021 Haukeland University Hospital, Bergen, Norway.

OBJECTIVES: Medical abortion was first introduced in Norway in April 1998. The aims of this study were to assess the efficacy, side effects, and acceptability of medical abortion using mifepristone orally and misoprostol vaginally in a Norwegian population. DESIGN: The study included the first 226 pregnant women with gestational age of <63 days who requested nonsurgical abortion during the first year in the first Norwegian hospital using this regimen. METHODS: All women received a single dose of mifepristone 600 mg orally, followed at 48 hours by 800 microg misoprostol vaginally. Treatment outcome and complications were the principal outcome measures. We also measured the rates of side effects such as abdominal pain and bleeding and the women's acceptability of treatment. RESULTS: Abortion was successful in 95%, surgical evacuation became necessary in 4%, and the pregnancy continued in one woman. During the study period the method was chosen by 23% of those requesting abortion before 63 days amenorrhea; 80% would use the method again: 81% would recommend it to a friend; in retrospect, 69% would not have been willing to be randomly allocated to either a medical or a surgical method. CONCLUSIONS: The combination of orally administrated mifepristone and vaginally administrated misoprostol is an abortion method that is both effective and safe, has few side effects and is well accepted by Norwegian women.

Publication Types:

• Clinical Trial

PMID: 11703208 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Curettage After Mifepristone-Induced Abortion: Frequency, Timing, and Indications

To the Editor:

Allen et al reported the outcome of 4393 medical abortions at gestations up to 63 days using 200 mg of oral mifepristone plus 800 μ g of vaginal misoprostol.¹ One hundred sixteen (2.6%) women subsequently underwent curettage ("failed abortion"). The authors found that gestational age and prior elective abortion were associated with curettage, whereas age and parity were not. (The 17 centers participating in the study are to be congratulated in obtaining such a high success rate with medical abortion.)

We recently reported a comparative study of 533 medical and 399 surgical aspiration abortions up to 63 days' gestation.² The age and parity distributions were similar in the two treatment groups. Medical abortions were performed using the same drug regimen as that used by Allen et al.¹ The rate of curettage after medical abortion was 8.3% for incomplete or missed abortions and 0.9% for ongoing pregnancy and after surgical abortion 5.0% and 0.5%, respectively. This was an audited analysis within a general gynecologic service in a single institution providing all necessary follow-up.

We found a significantly higher rate of subsequent curettage with increasing parity irrespective of gestation for medical abortion (P = .012) but not surgical abortion (Table 1). The difference was particularly significant between the two abortion methods for para 3 and greater (P = .028), although the denominators were small. Allen

Table 1. Complete Abortion Rates for Women Undergoing Medical or Surgical Procedures at up to 63 Days' Gestations

	acstations		
	Medical	Surgical	P
Parity			
0	304/330 (92.0%)*	238/251 (94.8%) ⁺	NS∓
1	66/72 (91.7%)*	46/51 (90.2%) [†]	NS§
2	76/89 (85.4%)*	50/53 (94.3%) ⁺	NS§
- ≥3	35/42 (83.3%)*	43/44 (97.7%)*	.028 [§]

Values are complete abortions/total abortions (percentage). *[†] Mantel-Haenszel χ^2 test for trend, controlling for gestation: * P = .012; [†] P = NS.

 x^{2} test, two-tailed P value.

§ Fisher's exact test (two-tailed).

et al¹ analyzed outcomes for nulliparous and multiparous groups and found no difference in curettage rates. It would, therefore, be of clinical value to know, with their large data set, whether increasing parity was associated with a higher rate of curettage after medical abortion.

Tim J. Child, MD Margaret Rees, MD Ian Z. MacKenzie, MD Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology Women's Centre John Raddiffe Hospital Oxford OX3 9DU, UK

REFERENCES

- Allen RH, Westhoff C, De Nonno L, Fielding SL, Schaff EA. Curettage after mifepristone-induced abortion: Frequency, timing, and indications. Obstet Gynecol 2001;98: 101-6.
- Child TJ, Thomas J, Rees M, MacKenzie IZ. A comparative study of surgical and medical procedures: 932 pregnancy terminations up to 63 days gestation. Hum Reprod 2001; 16:67-71.

In Reply:

In our study of curettage after medical abortion, we had 341 subjects with a parity of three or greater.¹ The rate of curettage in these women was 2.3%, which is similar to our overall rate. Other studies of the success of medical abortion, as cited by Child et al, also found no effect of parity on the rate of curettage; thus, their recent finding remains unconfirmed.² Our two studies used similar protocols with 200 mg of mifepristone and 800 μ g of vaginal misoprostol to terminate pregnancies up to 63 days' gestation. The larger difference between our results is an overall curettage rate of

2.6% in our patients and 9.8% rate in theirs. These results represent the full range seen in the current literature and demand explanation. If all of the 59 women lost to follow-up in our study underwent curettage, then our rate would increase to only 4.0%. A possibly relevant protocol difference is that we allowed women a second dose of misoprostol in our study to assist expulsion rather than proceeding directly to aspiration; this intervention might have avoided a few curettages. These explanations bring our results only slightly closer together. The remaining difference in our curettage rates confirms that subtleties of practice style will continue to have a large impact on the success of medical abortion regimens.

Carolyn Westhoff, MD Rebecca Allen, MD

Contraception 2002 Jul;66(1):33-40

Mifepristone-misoprostol abortion: a trial in rural and urban Maharashtra, India.

Coyaji K, Elul B, Krishna U, Otiv S, Ambardekar S, Bopardikar A, Raote V, Ellertson C, Winikoff B.

K.E.M. Hospital, Pune, India.

As several important policy questions remain regarding the use of medical abortion in developing countries, we investigated the safety, efficacy, and acceptability of mifepristone-misoprostol abortion in the outpatient family planning departments of two urban hospitals and one rural hospital in India. Nine-hundred women (with gestations of < or =63 days in the urban sites and < or =56 days in the rural site) received 600 mg mifepristone followed 48 h later by 400 microg oral misoprostol in the clinic. Four point four percent or fewer urban women and 1.0% rural women were lost to follow-up. Perfect and typical-use failure rates were low at all sites. While rural women reported fewer side effects at all sites, the vast majority of women were satisfied with their medical abortions. Medical abortion can be offered safely, effectively, and acceptably in the outpatient family planning departments of urban and rural hospitals in India.

Publication Types:

Clinical Trial

• Multicenter Study

PMID: 12169379 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Curr Womens Health Rep 2001 Dec;1(3):184-90

The mifepristone-misoprostol regimen for early medical abortion.

Ellertson C, Waldman SN.

cellertson@popcouncil.org.mx

The combination of mifepristone, an antiprogesterone known in the United States as Mifeprex (Danco Laboratories, New York, NY), and misoprostol, a prostaglandin analogue marketed in the United States under the brand name Cytotec (Pharmacia [formerly Searle], Peapack, NJ), provides a nonsurgical abortion in the early stages of a pregnancy. Mifepristone blocks the action of progesterone, a hormone necessary to sustain a pregnancy, whereas misoprostol causes contractions that expel the embryo and other pregnancy tissue. Since September 2000, mifepristone has been approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration for induced abortions of gestations of 49 days or less since the last menstrual period, but is not yet approved for any other uses. Misoprostol has long been approved to prevent and treat stomach ulcers.

Publication Types:

- Review
- Review, Tutorial

PMID: 12112968 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Perspect Sex Reprod Health 2002 Jan-Feb;34(1):34-40

Having an abortion using mifepristone and home misoprostol: a qualitative analysis of women's experiences.

Fielding SL, Edmunds E, Schaff EA.

Department of Family Medicine, Reproductive Health Program, University of Rochester, NY, USA. Steve_Fielding@URMC.Rochester.edu

CONTEXT: Women choose medical over surgical abortion because it is more natural, more private and less painful. Whether their perceptions change during the medical abortion process has not been explored. METHODS: A nonprobability sample of 43 participants in a clinical trial of abortion using mifepristone completed two open-ended questionnaires about this method, one before taking mifepristone and the second during their follow-up clinic visit 4-8 days after taking misoprostol. Thirty women participated in in-depth interviews 1-6 weeks following their abortion. Researchers analyzed transcripts to identify common themes. RESULTS: On the first visit to the clinic, women expressed anxiety and uncertainty about the effectiveness of medical abortion, guilt or ambivalence, and a desire to avoid surgery. For most women, emotional distress decreased after their abortion. Control was the overarching theme women expressed regarding the meaning of the procedure: Women stressed the importance of being able to select the type of abortion procedure, to maintain control over their future and to preserve their family's quality of life, given the constraints of time, finances and emotional resources. In in-depth interviews, eight women remained concerned about long-term health effects; 18 said that having an abortion at home was a comfortable experience. CONCLUSIONS: Learning whether women are concerned about personal control may help clinicians identify appropriate candidates for medical abortion. In addition, clinicians could help allay women's anxiety at their first abortion visit by explaining that the uncertainties posed by any medical procedure create similar feelings. Clinicians also should reemphasize at the follow-up visit that there are no long-term health effects related to abortion.

Publication Types:

• Evaluation Studies

PMID: 11990637 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Nurse Pract 2001 Nov;26(11):44-54

Professional considerations for providing mifepristone-induced abortion.

Fielding SL, Lee SS, Schaff EA.

Reproductive Health Program, University of Rochester, Rochester, N.Y., USA.

Primary care clinicians who provide comprehensive reproductive heath care can now offer patients mifepristone (Mifeprex) as an abortifacient option. Clinicians, however, must first determine if the state in which they practice has regulations specifying who can perform abortions and dispense drugs, and they must consider clinical office zoning ordinances, staffing, public relations issues, and reimbursement. This article discusses the pharmacology of mifepristone and misoprostol, professional considerations, and how to prevent and manage adverse effects and complications of medical abortion.

Publication Types:

- Review
- Review, Tutorial

PMID: 11759615 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]
Contraception 2002 Jul;66(1):27-31

Clinicians' perception of sonogram indication for mifepristone abortion up to 63 days.

Fielding SL, Schaff EA, Nam NY.

Department of Family Medicine, University of Rochester, Rochester, NY, USA. SteveFielding@urmc.rochester.edu

One barrier in the US to wider acceptance of mifepristone for abortion is the additional cost of the routine use of two sonograms, that is, for pregnancy dating and confirmation of a complete abortion. The purpose of this study is to document how the accuracy of medical abortion clinicians experienced with pelvic exams and dating pregnancies in assessing gestational age at the first visit compared with sonograms, and to identify the factors influencing whether they perceive that sonograms are desired or indicated at the first and follow-up visits. This was a prospective study of 1016 women wanting to participate in a medical abortion trial. After informed consent, clinicians (1) dated the pregnancy before routine sonography and (2) determined whether a sonogram was indicated. Women with sonographic pregnancies of less than 63 days were eligible for mifepristone followed by misoprostol 48 h later. Women returned on Day 4 to Day 8, and clinicians performed a clinical assessment of whether the abortion was complete and determined whether a sonogram was indicated. Fifteen sites participated. Advanced-level providers performed 56% of the assessments. When clinicians assessed a pregnancy under 43 days gestation, they perceived that a sonogram was "not indicated" in 60% of these women. This percentage increased to 66% at 43-49 days gestation, and declined to 46% of women assessed at more than 49 days. Clinicians correctly assessed gestational age as no more than 63 days in 87% of women. In only 1% (14/1013) of their assessments did clinicians underestimate gestational age. In 7/24 (29%) women with a persistent gestational sac, clinicians did not indicate the need for sonography when it was likely indicated. We conclude that the clinicians in our study felt confident in not using sonography in most cases. If clinicians monitor hCG levels to identify any ectopic or continuing pregnancies, medical abortion can be safely performed without sonography.

Publication Types:

• Multicenter Study

PMID: 12169378 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

J Ky Med Assoc 2001 Nov;99(11):499-500

RU-486: is it hot, or is it not?

Garcia DP.

Publication Types:

• Editorial

PMID: 11816952 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

AWHONN Lifelines 2002 Feb-Mar;6(1):46-50

Pregnancy termination. Understanding and supporting women who undergo medical abortion.

Goss GL.

California State University-Dominguez Hills, Carson, CA, USA.

Publication Types:

- Review
- Review, Tutorial

PMID: 11913202 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Contraception 2002 Feb;65(2):133-42

Could American women use mifepristone-misoprostol pills safely with less medical supervision?

Harper C, Ellertson C, Winikoff B.

Center for Reproductive Health Research & Policy, University of California, San Francisco, CA, USA. harper@obgyn.ucsf.edu

Medical methods of early abortion differ from surgical methods in that women themselves can potentially administer the regimens. As currently researched and offered, however, the main regimen used for medical abortion, mifepristone-misoprostol, is highly medicalized, involving several clinic visits and extensive physician involvement. We re-examined the role of clinical supervision in each step of the abortion process, using data collected during a large clinical trial of mifepristone-misoprostol abortions in the US, fielded during 1994-1995. The trial was carried out in 17 geographically diverse centers, including private, public, and nongovernmental organization clinics, and enrolled 2121 women, aged 18-45 years, seeking early abortion (< or =63 days since last menstrual period). Women received 600 mg oral mifepristone, followed 48 h later by 400 microg oral misoprostol. Evidence suggests that most women can handle most steps of the medical abortion process themselves, effectively and safely. The utility of clinic visits to ingest mifepristone and misoprostol is questionable. For many women, even the follow-up visit could perhaps be replaced by telephone followup, combined with home pregnancy tests. Alternatives to the present protocol might allow greater control, comfort, and convenience at lower cost. Where clinician involvement might be useful, mid-level health care providers typically possess the skills necessary to offer the method safely, implying that physicians might be necessary only as complications arise. Future research useful for determining the optimal amount of medical involvement to provide mifepristone-misoprostol safely and effectively should include self-screening tests, label comprehension tests, calendars to aid in calculating gestational age, and the development of special pregnancy tests with telephone follow-up.

Publication Types:

Clinical Trial

PMID: 11927116 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

BJOG 2002 Apr;109(4):437-42

Use of mifepristone as an example of conflicting and misleading medical information on the internet.

Mashiach R, Seidman GI, Seidman DS.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, Lis Medical Center, Tel-Aviv, Israel.

OBJECTIVE: To evaluate the accuracy and reliability of medical information available on the internet regarding medical abortion using mifepristone, with special emphasis on the possible bias of the internet websites providing the information. METHODS: A systematic search of the internet identified patient-oriented websites distributing medical information about mifepristone. The sites were divided into three groups according to their views of the drug (i.e. in favour, against or indifferent). RESULTS: Forty sites met the criteria for inclusion in our analysis: 15 sites (37.5%) were in favour of using mifepristone, 16 (40%) were against and nine (22.5%) were indifferent. Incorrect information found in 12 sites (30%), was significantly more common (P < 0.006) in websites that opposed the use of mifepristone than in websites that favoured it, 56.3% and 6.7%, respectively. Websites against the use of mifepristone provided significantly more (P < 0.05) graphic descriptions (31.3% vs 0%) and significantly fewer (P < 0.03) links (18.8% vs 60%), than the sites in favour of the use of mifepristone. CONCLUSIONS: We found that information provided on the internet regarding the use of mifepristone was significantly less complete and accurate and included more graphic descriptions when the site opposed medical termination of pregnancy. These findings reinforce the concerns regarding the reliability and credibility of medical information on the internet and the need for quality control.

PMID: 12013165 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Rev Med Brux 2002 Feb;23(1):A52-3

[Voluntary pharmacologic termination of pregnancy]

[Article in French]

Norel G.

Centre d'Orthogenie, C.H. de Roubaix, France.

PMID: 11913092 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

FDACDER000493

Contraception 2001 Dec;64(6):339-43

Mifepristone abortion in minors.

Phelps RH, Schaff EA, Fielding SL.

Department of Family Medicine, Reproductive Health Program, University of Rochester, Rochester, NY, USA. rhphelps@rochester.rr.com

Approximately one-third of pregnant teenagers in the U.S. choose abortion. This prospective study evaluated whether medical abortion with mifepristone and misoprostol is physically and emotionally acceptable in adolescents. Adolescents 14- to 17-years-old, with pregnancies < or =56 days gestation, and seeking abortion services with parental consent from at least one parent were enrolled. Mifepristone (200 mg) was administered, followed 2 days later by 800 microg of misoprostol administered vaginally. Follow-up visit occurred on Day 4-8 to confirm abortion completion. Questionnaires regarding acceptability of the procedure as well as emotional coping were administered at the initial visit, at the follow-up visit, and by phone at 4 weeks postabortion. All 28 adolescents had complete medical abortions without complications or surgical intervention, and five minors did not require misoprostol. At the Day 4-8 follow-up visit, 75% of teens found the procedure acceptable, and that increased to 96% by the 4-week visit. Although 57% reported stress and 43% reported fear initially, by 4 weeks postabortion only 21% of the teens reported stress, and 8% were still experiencing fear. In addition, the minors' satisfaction with their abortion decision increased from 43% to 79% by 4 weeks postabortion. Medical abortion with mifepristone and misoprostol was highly effective and well tolerated, physically and emotionally, by adolescents in our sample. A larger clinical trial is needed to generalize these findings to other adolescent populations seeking medical abortion services.

Publication Types:

Clinical Trial

PMID: 11834231 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Eur J Obstet Gynecol Reprod Biol 2002 Mar 10;101(2):113-20

Mifepristone: bioavailability, pharmacokinetics and use-effectiveness.

Sarkar NN.

Department of Reproductive Biology, All India Institute of Medical Sciences, Ansarinagar, 110029, New Delhi, India.

The potentiality of mifepristone as an abortifacient and contraceptive drug along with its pharmacokinetic parameters is reviewed. Mifepristone or RU486 acts as antagonist to progestational and glucocorticoid functions. It is an orally active compound with nearly 70% absorption rate but its bioavailability is reduced to around 40% because of the first-pass effect. Peak plasma concentrations of 1.9 ± 0.8 , 3.8 ± 0.9 and 5.3 ± 0.13 micromol/l are reached within 1-2 h after oral administration of 50, 200 and 600 mg mifepristone in women, respectively, and are maintained at relatively high level up to 48 or 72 h depending on the ingested dose. The plasma kinetics of mifepristone followed two-compartment open model with a mean alpha-half-life of 1.4h, volume of distribution 1.47 l/kg and beta-half-life of 20-30 h in most of the subjects studied. Clearance from the body was mainly through feces (83%). Biologically active mono-demethylated, di-demethylated and hydroxylated metabolites were found in plasma soon after oral administration of mifepristone. RU486 and its mono-demethylated metabolite bind to progesterone receptors with high affinity. Mifepristone-bound receptor dimers suppress transcription activation and thus, bring about anti-progestational activity that makes mifepristone a potential abortifacient and contraceptive agent. Clinical trials for termination of early pregnancy with 50-600 mg mifepristone plus a prostaglandin analogue achieved a success rate of 82-97%. However, abdominal pain, cramping, nausea, vomiting, bleeding and delay in onset of the next menstrual cycle were the side effects. Administration of 25 mg mifepristone twice 12h apart. as a post-coital contraceptive showed 100% contraceptive efficacy. A low dose of mifepristone which does not inhibit ovulation reduced fertility significantly by affecting endometrial milieu. These findings suggest that reduced dose(s) of mifepristone, 200 mg or less, may be used as a post-coital contraceptive and in combination with vaginal misoprostol for termination of early pregnancy with high efficacy and minimal or no side effects.

Publication Types:

- Review
- Review, Tutorial

PMID: 11858883 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Best Pract Res Clin Obstet Gynaecol 2002 Apr;16(2):237-46

Medical abortion in the second trimester.

Tang OS, Ho PC.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, The University of Hong Kong, China.

The introduction of prostaglandin analogues and mifepristone has changed the management of second trimester abortion in the last 2 decades. Gemeprost and misoprostol are the two most extensively studied prostaglandin analogues that are used in this period. The combination of either gemeprost or misoprostol with mifepristone is most effective. With these regimens, over 90% of women abort within 24 hours and the mean induction to abortion interval is about 6 hours. Mifepristone is expensive and is not available in many countries. Therefore, prostaglandin analogue-only regimens might be the only option. These regimens are still effective with an abortion rate of >90% in 48 hours. However, the induction to abortion interval (15 hours) is much longer. Intra-cervical tents can be used to shorten the induction to abortion intervals. Copyright 2002 Elsevier Science Ltd.

Publication Types:

- Review
- Review, Tutorial

PMID: 12041965 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Hum Reprod 2002 Jan;17(1):99-102

The effect of contraceptive pills on the measured blood loss in medical termination of pregnancy by mifepristone and misoprostol: a randomized placebo controlled trial.

Tang OS, Xu J, Cheng L, Lee SW, Ho PC.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, The University of Hong Kong, Queen Mary Hospital, Hong Kong SAR, China. ostang@graduate.hku.hk

BACKGROUND: A prospective randomized placebo controlled trial was performed to assess the immediate use of oral contraceptive (OC) on the amount of blood loss in the postabortion period in women undergoing medical abortion by mifepristone and misoprostol. METHODS: One hundred women were randomized by computer to receive either OC pills or placebo, immediately after medical abortion. RESULTS: There was no difference in the complete abortion rate between the two groups. The complete abortion rate was 98 and 92% in the OC and placebo groups respectively. The side-effects and duration of bleeding were also similar. The median days of vaginal bleeding were 17 (range: 3-41) and 15 (range: 5-48) in the OC and placebo groups respectively. There was a statistically significant decrease in the mean haemoglobin level on day 15 in the OC group (from 12.0 to 11.5 g/dl) whereas the mean haemoglobin level in the placebo group remained stable. The median measured blood loss was 69.9 ml in the OC group and 72.8 ml in the placebo group and there was no statistically significant difference between the two groups. CONCLUSION: We conclude that it is safe to offer women combined OC pills immediately after medical abortion as an option of contraception, as it does not affect the duration or amount of vaginal bleeding or the complete abortion rate.

Publication Types:

• Clinical Trial

• Randomized Controlled Trial

PMID: 11756369 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Medscape Womens Health 2001 Dec;6(6):4

Medical abortion: overview and management.

Trupin SR, Moreno C.

University of Illinois College of Medicine, Urbana, USA.

Medical abortion regimens are safe, effective, and offer a new range of choices for patients and providers. In September 2000, the US Food and Drug Administration (FDA) approved a regimen of mifepristone and misoprostol, which effects abortion by luteolysis, uterine contractions, and expulsion of the products of conception without surgical instrumentation. The regimen requires that a provider be capable of diagnosing ectopic gestations and be able to make arrangements for a surgical abortion in the case of failure or medical emergencies. With a medical abortion, the pregnancy is passed spontaneously, and there may not be tissue obtained for confirmation. Physicians must be aware of their state requirements with regard to expulsed tissue examination. Completion of the procedure can be established by ultrasound or by measurement of serum levels of human chorionic gonadotropin (hCG). The FDA-approved protocol allows for use up to 49 days after the first day of the last menstrual period (LMP) and consists of mifepristone 600 mg orally on day 1, misoprostol 400 mcg orally on day 3, and a follow-up appointment on days 12-20. Half of all patients pass their pregnancy in the first few hours after the second visit. It is important to be able to determine the difference between expected bleeding, 14 days on average, and the complication of hemorrhage, as 2% to 10% of patients require a surgical abortion. Continuing viable pregnancies are rare. Several other regimens can safely expand options and reduce expense, including protocols using methotrexate. Medication indications and contraindications, management strategies for patients undergoing treatment with these regimens, and safety issues are reviewed.

PMID: 11965218 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

J Formos Med Assoc 2002 Apr;101(4):277-82

Medical abortion with mifepristone and misoprostol: a clinical trial in Taiwanese women.

Tsai EM, Yang CH, Lee JN.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology, Kaohsiung Medical University Hospital, 100 Shih-Chuan First Road, Kaohsiung, Taiwan.

BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE: Medical abortion was not officially approved in Taiwan until the end of 2001. We investigated the efficacy of combination mifepristone and misoprostol therapy for medical abortion (which has now been approved) in early pregnant Taiwanese women and whether the attitudes of women who received this treatment affected the clinical outcome of medical abortion. METHODS: Eighty healthy women in early pregnancy (< 49 d of gestation) were enrolled into two studies of medical abortion using mifepristone and misoprostol regimens. The outcomes were evaluated based on complete expulsion of intrauterine contents, with or without surgical intervention. Study 1 used treatment with mifepristone (200 mg or 600 mg) and misoprostol (400 micrograms), and the decision to perform surgical intervention was made mainly on the basis of the patient's request. Study 2 used treatment with mifepristone (200 mg or 600 mg) and misoprostol (600 micrograms) where the decision to perform surgical intervention was made exclusively by the physician. Serum or urinary human chorionic gonadotropin (hCG) concentration was measured serially after abortion. RESULTS: In general, the success rate was 95% as judged by complete expulsion of intrauterine contents without surgical intervention. However, the success rate in Study 1 was only 62.5%. The mean duration of bleeding after abortion was 16.7 to 21.7 days. Serum or urinary hCG concentration remained positive in one woman (1.2%) studied during 43 to 60 days after abortion. CONCLUSION: A combination of mifepristone and misoprostol for medical abortion in Taiwanese women during early pregnancy can achieve a high success rate. Our study showed that a mifepristone dose of 200 mg and a misoprostol dose of 400 micrograms were most effective. Our results suggest that sufficient physician and patient communication regarding medical abortion affects the clinical outcome.

PMID: 12101864 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Best Pract Res Clin Obstet Gynaecol 2002 Apr;16(2):205-20

Unsafe abortion: an avoidable tragedy.

Van Look PF, Cottingham JC.

Department of Reproductive Health and Research, World Health Organization, 1211 Geneva 27, Switzerland.

An estimated 60 000-70 000 women die annually from complications of unsafe abortion and hundreds of thousands more suffer long-term consequences which include chronic pelvic pain and infertility. The reasons for the continuing high incidence of unwanted pregnancy leading to unsafe abortion include lack of access to, or misuse of and misinformation about, effective contraceptive methods, coerced sex which prohibits women from protecting themselves, and contraceptive failure. Unsafe abortion is closely associated with restrictive legal environments and administrative and policy barriers hampering access to existing services. Vacuum aspiration and medical methods combining mifepristone and a prostaglandin for early abortion are simple and safe. For second trimester abortion, the main choices are repeat doses of prostaglandin with or without prior mifepristone, and dilatation and evacuation by experienced providers. Strategies for preventing unsafe abortion include: upgrading providers' skills; further development of medical methods for pregnancy termination and their introduction into national programmes; improving the quality of contraceptive and abortion services; and improving partner communication. Copyright 2002 Elsevier Science Ltd.

Publication Types:

- Review
- Review, Tutorial

PMID: 12041963 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

FDACDER000500



Contraception

Contraception 64 (2001) 271–273 Commentary

Monitoring serum chorionic gonadotropin levels after mifepristone abortion

Kym Walker*, Eric Schaff, Stephen Fielding, Lisa Fuller

Department of Family Medicine, University of Rochester, Rochester, NY, USA

1. Introduction

Mifepristone was approved in September 2000 as the first medical abortifacient in the US for up to 7 weeks of pregnancy. Approximately 1.4 million abortions occur each year [1], and almost half are eligible (less than 8 weeks gestation) for a medical abortion [2]. Medical abortion has the potential to offer many US women an earlier abortion option than surgical abortion.

Medical abortion requires careful monitoring by the clinician to ensure that the abortion is complete. There are several options for monitoring the process: (a) clinical parameters at 2 weeks with a history of vaginal bleeding and expulsion of the pregnancy and physical examination demonstrating the involution of the uterus; (b) measurement of the decline in human chorionic gonadotropin (hCG); and (c) sonogram examination to document the absence of the gestational sac. Clinical examination may not be sufficiently reliable to detect an incomplete abortion or ectopic pregnancy. Routine sonography, whereas accurate, can be expensive and may not be readily available.

Knowing the rate of decline in serum hCG levels would help clinicians determine the best time to have women return for follow-up care. In a retrospective analysis, Thonneau reported a significant decrease in the serum hCG levels at 2 weeks after mifepristone and misoprostol for abortion [3]. Among the 25 women with a failed medical abortion (retained tissue or continuing pregnancy), 23 had a persistent hCG level of greater than 500 IU/L, demonstrating the correlation between unsuccessful abortion and the continued elevation of hCG.

A study using hCG to monitor methotrexate abortions found that hCG dropped only 10% on average on Day 7 if bleeding had not occurred versus >90% with a history of significant vaginal bleeding [4]. Creinin et al. concluded that a successful abortion is accompanied by at least a 48% decrease in hCG levels within 24 h following a methotrexate medical abortion [5]. In studies following hCG values after confirmed medical abortions by using methotrexate and misoprostol, the hCG decreased to <26 IU/L by a mean of 32 days [6] and <10 IU/L by a mean of 39 days [7] after misoprostol was administered.

Following induced abortions by surgical aspiration, Van der Lugt and Drogendijk [8] demonstrated two different rates of decrease of serum hCG. Within the first 2 days, the serum hCG decreased with a half-life of 0.63 days, and in the next 2 weeks, the serum hCG decreased with a half-life of 3.85 days. This study demonstrated an exponential drop in serum hCG levels, with the fastest rate of decline in the first 2 days. This same study also followed the decline in urine hCG levels after a surgical aspiration. The rate of decrease of urine hCG was less than that of the initial decrease in serum hCG. They found that an urine pregnancy test with a sensitivity of 1000 IU/L will nearly always be negative 2 weeks after abortion.

To help clinicians monitor a medical abortion without the use of ultrasound, we performed a small study, approved by the University of Rochester Institutional Review Board, to determine the rate of decline in serum hCG and the absolute hCG values in women using mifepristone for an induced abortion.

2. Materials and methods

Women were recruited from mifepristone abortion trials in Rochester. There were 29 women in the study, the mean gestational age was 45 days (95% CI 43-48), and 53% of the women had one or more prior pregnancies. The medical abortion protocol included sonogram confirmation of dating, 200 mg of mifepristone administered orally on Day 1, misoprostol self-administered at home on Day 3 (orally or vaginally depending on the study), and return visit within the first week after misoprostol administration for sonogram evaluation. The inclusion and exclusion criteria, methods, and results of these studies have been reported elsewhere

^{*} Corresponding author. Tel.: +1-716-341-6292; fax: +1-716-341-6293.

E-mail address: kwalker@mc.rochester.edu (K. Walker).

^{0010-7824/01/\$ -} see front matter © 2001 Elsevier Science Inc. All rights reserved. PII: \$0010-7824(01)00266-9

Obstet Gynecol 2002 May;99(5 Pt 1):813-9

Comparison of abortions induced by methotrexate or mifepristone followed by misoprostol.

Wiebe E, Dunn S, Guilbert E, Jacot F, Lugtig L.

Department of Family Practice, University of British Columbia, Vancouver, BC, Canada.

OBJECTIVE: To compare the effectiveness, side effects, and acceptability of medical abortions induced by methotrexate and misoprostol with abortions induced by mifepristone and misoprostol, METHODS: This was a multicenter, randomized, nonblinded, controlled trial comparing 50 mg/m(2) of methotrexate followed 4-6 days later by 800 microgram of vaginal misoprostol with 600 mg of oral mifepristone followed 36-48 hours by 400 microgram of oral misoprostol. RESULTS: There were 518 women in the methotrexate group and 524 women in the mifepristone group. In the methotrexate group, 21 women required suction curretage, two for continuing pregnancy, eight because of physician request (usually for excessive bleeding), and 11 because of patient request. In the mifepristone group, 22 women needed surgical termination, 17 because of physician request, and five because of patient request. By day 8, only 386 (74.5%) in the methotrexate group had completed the abortion compared with 474 (90.5%) in the mifepristone group, and the mean number of days from beginning to completion was 7.1 for methotrexate and 3.3 for mifepristone (P </=.001). There were no differences in complications, and side effects were similar. Acceptance was slightly higher with mifepristone (88.0%) than with methotrexate (83.2%). CONCLUSION: Abortions induced with mifepristone completed faster than those induced with methotrexate, but the overall success rates, side effects, and complications were similar. Acceptance rates were slightly higher with mifepristone than methotrexate (P = .03).

Publication Types:

Clinical Trial

Multicenter Study

• Randomized Controlled Trial

PMID: 11978292 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

2. Cervical Softening, Surgical Abortion, Management of Late Intrauterine Death and Cesarean Section

Prescrire Int 2001 Oct;10(55):135-40

Mifepristone: new preparation. Avoids or facilitates cervical dilatation before vacuum aspiration of pregnancy.

(1) Cervical softening with prostaglandins or laminaria before vacuum aspiration of pregnancy can avoid or facilitate mechanical dilatation. (2) Mifepristone is now licensed in France for cervical softening before vacuum aspiration of pregnancy. (3) The clinical file on mifepristone in this indication contains data from about 20 comparative clinical trials using surrogate end points, namely the need for and/or ease of cervical dilatation. (4) In these trials the cervix was easier to dilate in women who received mifepristone than in women who received a placebo. (5) A few comparative trials showed comparable efficacy of prostaglandins, laminaria (small hydrophilic stents inserted into the cervix that gradually swell, leading to cervical dilatation) and mifepristone in this indication. (6) Before vacuum aspiration, metrorrhagia occurred more frequently in women on mifepristone than in those on a placebo. Blood losses during vacuum aspiration were comparable in women who had received prostaglandins and those who had received mifepristone. (7) The incidence of abdominal pain may be lower on mifepristone than with laminaria or prostaglandins.

PMID: 11824427 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

FDACDER000504

BJOG 2002 Sep;109(9):1069-71

Not assuming the obvious: failed surgical termination of pregnancy and multiple fetal abnormalities.

Hunter A, Porter H, Kyle P.

Department of Fetal and Maternal Medicine, St Michael's Hospital, Bristol, UK.

PMID: 12269685 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Am J Obstet Gynecol 2002 Aug;187(2):407-11

Early surgical abortion: efficacy and safety.

Paul ME, Mitchell CM, Rogers AJ, Fox MC, Lackie EG.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology, University of Massachusetts Medical School, Boston, MA, USA.

OBJECTIVE: Because of concern over the higher rates of failed abortion, many clinicians defer surgical abortion until 7 menstrual weeks or later. We conducted this study to evaluate the efficacy and safety of early surgical abortions that are performed by numerous physicians in a community-based setting. STUDY DESIGN: We prospectively gathered data on all eligible patients who had surgical abortions at <6 weeks of gestation at 3 Planned Parenthood clinics from January 1, 1998, to August 31, 2000. Outcomes were evaluated with the use of proportions with 95% CI and chi(2) analysis. RESULTS: A total of 1132 women had early surgical abortions during the study interval, and follow-up was available for 750 of those women (66%). Seventeen women (2.3%; 95% CI, 1.4%, 3.7%) had failed attempted abortions. Other complications occurred in 13 women. CONCLUSION: Early surgical abortion is safe and effective. In this series, the frequency of complications that required curettage was similar to that reported with mifepristone and vaginal misoprostol.

Publication Types:

Clinical Trial

PMID: 12193934 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

BJOG 2002 Apr;109(4):443-7

Medical management of late intrauterine death using a combination of mifepristone and misoprostol.

Wagaarachchi PT, Ashok PW, Narvekar NN, Smith NC, Templeton A.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, Aberdeen Maternity Hospital, UK.

OBJECTIVE: To assess the efficacy and safety of mifepristone in combination with misoprostol in the management of late fetal death. DESIGN: Observational study. SETTING: Aberdeen Maternity Hospital, Aberdeen, METHODS: A consecutive series of 96 women with intrauterine death after 24 weeks of gestation were studied. Each woman received a single dose of 200 mg mifepristone orally, following which a 24-48 hour interval was recommended before administration of misoprostol. For gestations of 24-34 weeks, 200 microg of intravaginal misoprostol was administered, followed by four oral doses of 200 microg at three hourly intervals. Gestations over 34 weeks were given a similar regimen but a reduced dose of 100 microg misoprostol. RESULTS: The average induction to delivery interval was 8.5 hours. Ninety-five women (98.9%) were delivered within 72 hours of administration of first dose of misoprostol, with 66.7%, 87.5%, 92.7% and 95.8% women delivering within 12, 24, 36 and 48 hours, respectively. No significant correlation was found between mean induction to delivery interval and maternal age, parity, Bishop's score, birthweight and mifepristone/ misoprostol interval. The induction to delivery interval was shorter with increasing gestation (P = 0.04). Mild side effects were noted in eight (8.3%) women. Three (3.1%) women had treatment for presumed or proven pelvic sepsis. No cases of uterine tachysystole, haemorrhage or coagulopathy were recorded. CONCLUSION: The combination of mifepristone and misoprostol for induction of labour following late fetal death is an effective and safe regimen. The induction to delivery interval with this regimen appears shorter than studies using mifepristone or misoprostol.

PMID: 12013166 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

BJOG 2002 Apr;109(4):462-5

Medical management of early fetal demise using sublingual misoprostol.

Wagaarachchi PT, Ashok PW, Smith NC, Templeton A.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, University of Aberdeen, UK.

The aim of this study was to determine the efficacy of mifepristone in combination with sublingual misoprostol for the medical management of early fetal demise. Fifty-six consecutive women were studied prospectively. The mean (SD) gestation at diagnosis was 9.6 weeks (1.84). Four women had complete miscarriage with mifepristone alone. The overall success rate was 83.9% and the median induction-miscarriage interval was 8.19 hours (range 0.83 to 37.50 hours). Of those women who had a successful outcome, 91.5% were satisfied with the regimen. Sublingual misoprostol in combination with mifepristone is an effective and safe alternative to vaginal or oral misoprostol in the management of early fetal demise.

PMID: 12013170 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Chin Med J (Engl) 2002 Feb;115(2):242-6

Complication of cesarean section: pregnancy on the cicatrix of a previous cesarean section.

Wang W, Long W, Yu Q.

Department of Gynecology and Obstetrics, Zhabei District Central Hospital, Shanghai 200070, China. wangwmz@online.sh.cn

OBJECTIVE: To probe into the clinical manifestation, diagnosis, as well as treatment of pregnancy on the cicatrix of a previous cesarean section at the uterine isthmus in the first trimester. METHODS: Analysis of 14 patients with pregnancy on the cicatrix of a previous cesarean section at the uterine isthmus in the first trimester was made after conservative treatment by drugs from January 1996 to December 1999. RESULTS: The 14 patients with a pregnancy on the cicatrix of a previous cesarean section at the uterine isthmus in the first trimester were painless, had slight vaginal bleeding, and concurrently had increased serum beta-subunit human chorionic gonadotropin (beta-HCG). Doppler ultrasonic examination revealed an obvious enlargement of the previous cesarean section cicatrix in the uterine isthmus, and found a gestational sac or mixed mass attached to the cicatrice, with a very thin myometrium between the gestational sac and bladder walls. Among the 14 patients, 12 patients had crystalline trichosanthes injected into the cervix, mifepristone taken orally, or methotrexate in the form of intramuscular injection. Following this procedure, their serum beta-HCG dropped to normal. The other 2 patients had a total hysterectomy. CONCLUSIONS: Pregnancy on the cicatrix of a previous cesarean section at the uterine isthmus in the first trimester is a complication of cesarean section. Early diagnosis and effective conservative treatment by drugs are instrumental in decreasing the potential occurrence of uterine rupture, which is also conducive to preserving the patient's future fertility.

PMID: 11940341 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Int J Gynaecol Obstet 2002 Jun;77(3):201-7

Effect of early pregnancy on a previous lower segment cesarean section scar.

Weimin W, Wenqing L.

Department of Gynaecology and Obstetrics, Zhabei District Central Hospital, Shanghai, China. wangwmz@online.sh.cn

OBJECTIVE: To summarize the manifestation, diagnosis, and early management of early pregnancy on a previous cesarean section scar. METHOD: Fifteen cases of early pregnancies implanted on previous cesarean section scars were diagnosed and treated in two obstetrical centers. RESULTS: The 15 patients had light, painless vaginal bleeding and their serum betasubunit human chorionic gonadotropin (beta-HCG) was elevated. The interval between cesarean section and admission ranged from 6 months to 12 years (7.1 ± 7.3) cears). Doppler and real-time ultrasonic examinations demonstrated an enlargement of the previous cesarean section scar in the lower segment, a gestational sac or a mixed mass attached to the cicatrix, and a very thin myometrium between the gestational sac and the bladder wall. Serum beta-HCG dropped to normal in 12 of the 15 patients following treatment with crystalline trichosanthin injected into the cervix followed by oral mifepristone, intramuscular injections of methotrexate, or other appropriate treatment. Two patients underwent total hysterectomy due to massive vaginal bleeding. The remaining patient was misdiagnosed with choriocarcinoma and also had total hysterectomy. CONCLUSION: Pregnancy on a previous lower segment cesarean section scar is rare but very dangerous. Early diagnosis and effective conservative drug treatment may be instrumental in decreasing the occurrence of uterine rupture.

Publication Types:

- Review
- Review, Tutorial

PMID: 12065130 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.



Cancer Res 2002 Jan 1;62(1):79-88

Effect of normal endometrial stroma on growth and differentiation in Ishikawa endometrial adenocarcinoma cells.

Arnold JT, Lessey BA, Seppala M, Kaufman DG.

Department of Laboratory Pathology and Medicine, Division of Reproductive Endocrinology and Infertility, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill, North Carolina 27599, USA. jarnold@mail.nih.gov

Endometrial cancer is characterized by alterations in the stromal cells and the supporting extracellular matrix in addition to the intrinsic alterations of the malignant epithelial cells. We have developed a cell culture model that demonstrates the role of stromal cells in the regulation of proliferation, hormone responsiveness, and differentiation of an endometrial adenocarcinoma cell line (Ishikawa). Conditioned medium (CM) was collected from normal primary human endometrial stromal cells grown on plastic or within the basement membrane extract, Matrigel. The CM produced by stromal cells cultured in contact with Matrigel markedly inhibited Ishikawa cell proliferation compared with CM from stromal cells cultured on plastic. Ishikawa cell proliferation varied with steroid hormone treatment in the presence of CM from stromal cells embedded in Matrigel. When the Ishikawa cells were placed in coculture in contact with stromal cells in Matrigel, production of a differentiated epithelial secretory product, glycodelin, was induced. Gene expression of stromal cell hormone receptors, growth factors, and integrins was analyzed by reverse transcription-PCR in the presence of Matrigel to determine the potential factors involved in stromal regulatory function. These combined studies imply that the phenotype of the Ishikawa cells can be induced to differentiate to more closely resemble normal endometrial epithelium by reintroduction of stromal factors and appropriate extracellular matrix. Additionally, the study shows that basement membrane proteins influence the regulatory function of stromal cells as they mediate epithelial cell growth.

PMID: 11782363 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

BJOG 2002 May;109(5):553-60

A randomised study comparing a low dose of mifepristone and the Yuzpe regimen for emergency contraception.

Ashok PW, Stalder C, Wagaarachchi PT, Flett GM, Melvin L, Templeton A.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, University of Aberdeen, Aberdeen Maternity Hospital, UK.

OBJECTIVE: To compare 100 mg mifepristone with the standard Yuzpe regimen for emergency contraception. DESIGN: Randomised controlled trial. SETTING: Family Planning Clinic, Aberdeen. SAMPLE: One thousand women seeking emergency contraception within 72 hours after an episode of unprotected sexual intercourse. METHODS: Women were randomised to receive either 100 mg (half tablet) of mifepristone as a single dose or the Yuzpe regimen (two tablets each with 50 microg ethinyloestradiol and 0.25 mg levonorgestrel, to be repeated 12 hours later). OUTCOME MEASURES: Crude pregnancy rates, proportion of pregnancies prevented, side effects and patient acceptability. RESULTS: The crude pregnancy rates (95% CI) for the Yuzpe regimen and mifepristone were 3.6% (2.3-5.7) and 0.6% (0.2-1.8), respectively, with a significant difference between the two groups (RR 6.04; 95% CI 1.75-20.75). Mifepristone prevented 92% of pregnancies and the Yuzpe regimen preventing 56%. An increasing coitus to treatment interval was associated with contraceptive failure in the Yuzpe group (P = 0.03) with no association seen with mifepristone. Following administration of mifepristone 24.5% and 13.1% given the Yuzpe regimen had a delayed period (RR 2.14; 95% CI 1.46-3.15). Overall, mifepristone was better tolerated than the Yuzpe regimen with significantly fewer side effects. More women were satisfied (P < 0.0001) with mifepristone as an emergency contraceptive and would recommend it to a friend (P = 0.02). CONCLUSION: Mifepristone administered in a 100 mg dose is a highly effective post-coital contraceptive with high patient acceptability and fewer side effects compared with the standard Yuzpe regimen. Delay in the onset of menstruation did not decrease patient acceptability.

Publication Types:

- Clinical Trial
- Randomized Controlled Trial

PMID: 12066946 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

J Clin Psychopharmacol 2001 Oct;21(5):516-21

Rapid reversal of psychotic depression using mifepristone.

Belanoff JK, Flores BH, Kalezhan M, Sund B, Schatzberg AF.

Department of Psychiatry, Stanford University Medical Center, California 94305, USA.

The rationale for treating psychotic major depression with glucocorticoid receptor (GR) antagonists is reviewed. Five patients with psychotic major depression were given 600 mg of mifepristone in a 4-day, double-blind, placebo-controlled crossover study. All the patients completed the protocol and adverse effects were not observed or reported. All of the five patients showed substantial improvements in their Hamilton Rating Scale for Depression scores while they were receiving mifepristone, and four of the five patients showed substantial improvement in their Brief Psychiatric Rating Scale scores. Little, if any, improvement was seen with placebo. These preliminary results suggest that short-term use of GR antagonists may be effective in the treatment of psychotic major depression and that additional study, perhaps using higher doses or more treatment days, seems warranted.

Publication Types:

- Clinical Trial
- Randomized Controlled Trial

PMID: 11593077 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

FDACDER000514

J Clin Endocrinol Metab 2002 Jan;87(1):63-70

Daily low-dose mifepristone has contraceptive potential by suppressing ovulation and menstruation: a double-blind randomized control trial of 2 and 5 mg per day for 120 days.

Brown A, Cheng L, Lin S, Baird DT.

Contraceptive Development Network, Centre for Reproductive Biology, University of Edinburgh, Edinburgh, EH3 9ET, United Kingdom.

Daily administration of progesterone (P) antagonists to women inhibits ovulation and disrupts endometrial function. In this double-blind randomized trial, we have explored the contraceptive potential of two doses of the P antagonist mifepristone in healthy volunteers in Edinburgh and Shanghai, Ninety-eight women (58 in Edinburgh and 40 in Shanghai) were randomized to receive either 2 or 5 mg mifepristone daily for 120 d. Ovarian activity was monitored by the weekly measurement of steroid metabolites in urine and of E2 and P in plasma every month. Endometrial function was assessed by menstrual records, and ultrasound measurement of endometrial thickness was assessed every month. Endometrial biopsy was collected on d 12 of the control cycle and after 60 and 120 d of treatment. Ninety women (50 in Edinburgh and 40 in Shanghai) completed the study. Follicular activity continued during treatment with both doses in Edinburgh women, although ovulation was suppressed in the majority of cycles (90 and 95% of cycles in 2- and 5-mg groups, respectively). The women in Shanghai showed evidence of ovulation in only 3 of 160 months of treatment (2 in 2-mg group and 1 in 5-mg group). The majority of women in both centers were amenorrheic (65% in 2-mg group and 88% in 5-mg group in Edinburgh, and 90% in both dose groups in Shanghai). The endometrial thickness increased significantly in women in Edinburgh and decreased in Shanghai; histology showed either atrophic or cystic changes without evidence of hyperplasia. There was no pregnancy reported in the 200 months of exposure in 50 sexually active women who had used no other method of contraception during the study. We conclude that mifepristone in low daily doses inhibits ovulation and induces amenorrhea in the majority of women and has the potential to be developed as a novel estrogen- free oral contraceptive pill.

Publication Types:

- Clinical Trial
- Multicenter Study
- Randomized Controlled Trial

PMID: 11788624 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Hum Gene Ther 2002 Jun 10;13(9):1075-80

The epidermis as a bioreactor: topically regulated cutaneous delivery into the circulation.

Cao T, Tsai SY, O'Malley BW, Wang XJ, Roop DR.

Pacific Biomedical Research Center, University of Hawaii at Manoa, Honolulu, HI 96822, USA.

Previous studies have documented that the skin can be used as a bioreactor to produce proteins for systemic release to treat diseases. A gene-switch system has been developed that allows regulated expression of therapeutic genes. To determine whether this system could be used in the skin, we developed a transgenic mouse model in which expression of a therapeutic gene could be topically induced in epidermal keratinocytes. After a single induction, high levels of the therapeutic protein, human growth hormone (hGH), were released from keratinocytes into the circulation. The serum levels of hGH were dependent on the amount of inducer applied, and repeated induction resulted in increased weight gain by transgenic versus control mice. Furthermore, physiological levels of hGH were detected in the serum of nude mice after topical induction of small transgenic skin grafts. These results clearly demonstrate the feasibility of using the gene-switch system to regulate the delivery of therapeutic proteins into the circulation via genetically modified keratinocytes.

PMID: 12067440 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Mol Endocrinol 2001 Dec;15(12):2078-92

Differential role of PR-A and -B isoforms in transcription regulation of human GnRH receptor gene.

Cheng KW, Cheng CK, Leung PC.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, The University of British Columbia, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada V6H 3V5.

The presence of progesterone response element (PRE) in the 5'-flanking region of the human GnRH receptor (GnRHR) suggests the possible regulation of this gene by progesterone (P). In the present study, we examined the effects of P in transcriptional regulation of human GnRHR gene expression at the pituitary and placenta levels since the GnRHR has been detected in both tissues. By the use of transient transfection assays, a differential regulation of human GnRHR promoter activity by P was observed. P treatment resulted in a decrease in promoter activity in the pituitary alphaT3-1 cells, suggesting a P-mediated inhibitory action. Interestingly, P is found to have a stimulatory role at the placental expression of this gene. Addition of RU486 to, or inhibition of endogenous P production by, the placental JEG-3 cells leads to a decrease in promoter activity, which is reversed by the replacement of P. Further studies have identified a putative PRE, namely human GR-PRE (located between -535 and -521, related to translation start site), that may be responsible for the P action since the mutation of these motifs reversed the P-mediated effects. The binding of PR to this element is confirmed by antibody supershift assays. The physiological effects of P are mediated through two PR isoforms, namely PR-A and PR-B. In the present study, overexpression of human PR-A resulted in a decrease in human promoter activity in both pituitary and placental cells. Interestingly, overexpression of PR-B exhibits a cell-dependent transcriptional activity, whereby it functions as a transcription activator in the placenta but as a transcription repressor in the pituitary. In summary, our results demonstrated a differential usage of PR-A and PR-B in transcriptional regulation of human GnRHR gene expression by P at the pituitary and placenta levels.

PMID: 11731610 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Mol Hum Reprod 2002 Apr;8(4):333-40

Effect of mifepristone and levonorgestrel on expression of steroid receptors in the human Fallopian tube.

Christow A, Sun X, Gemzell-Danielsson K.

Division of Obstetrics and Gynecology, Department of Woman and Child Health, Karolinska Hospital, S-171 76 Stockholm, Sweden.

It is likely that mifepristone or levonorgestrel in the future will find extended use for contraceptive purposes. It is therefore essential to characterize the modes of action of these compounds. To assess the effect on the human Fallopian tube, 24 women with regular menstrual cycles and proven fertility, admitted to the hospital for voluntary sterilization by laparoscopic technique, were randomly allocated to a control or one of two treatment groups. Treatments were given with either a single dose of 200 mg mifepristone or 0.75 mg levonorgestrel in two doses 12 h apart, on day LH+2. Surgery was performed on day LH+4 to LH+6. Steroid receptor expression was analysed by immunohistochemistry, Western blot and RT-PCR. In the controls, there was a higher concentration of progesterone receptors in the stromal cells in the isthmic region than in those in the ampullar region. Treatment with mifepristone increased the progesterone receptor concentration in epithelial and stromal cells and increased the estrogen receptor concentration in epithelial cells. No effect on steroid receptor concentration was found following levonorgestrel. The contraceptive effect of postovulatory mifepristone has previously been considered to be dependent on an effect on the endometrium. However an effect on the Fallopian tube could contribute to alter the periimplantation milieu influencing fertilization and embryo development.

PMID: 11912281 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

FASEB J 2002 Jun;16(8):761-70

Enhancement of p53 activity and inhibition of neural cell proliferation by glucocorticoid receptor activation.

Crochemore C, Michaelidis TM, Fischer D, Loeffler JP, Almeida OF.

Max Planck Institute of Psychiatry, 80804 Munich, Germany.

In analyzing the molecular mechanisms underlying glucocorticoid-induced apoptosis in neural cells, we observed that dexamethasone, by activating glucocorticoid receptors, causes arrest of HT-22 cells in the G1 phase of the cell cycle; upon withdrawal of the agonist, cells resume proliferation. Our investigations revealed that glucocorticoid treatment, although having no effects on endogenous p53 protein stability, induces rapid translocation of p53 to the nucleus and enhances its transcriptional activity. Consistently, transfection studies with p53-responsive promoters revealed a substantial stimulation of the trans-activation potential of exogenous p53 by dexamethasone. Cells arrested in G1 failed to show signs of apoptosis even after overexpression of p53. Although dexamethasone induced transcription of the proapoptotic gene bax, there was no increase of Bax protein levels. We conclude that glucocorticoid receptor-induced neural cell cycle arrest is associated with an increase in nuclear translocation and transcriptional activity of p53, and suggest that potentiation of p53 may serve as a brake on cell proliferation and may prime cells for differentiation or death induced by other signals.

PMID: 12039857 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Br J Pharmacol 2002 Apr;135(7):1634-40

Inhibition by glucocorticoids of the interleukin-1 beta-enhanced expression of the mast cell growth factor SCF.

Da Silva CA, Kassel O, Mathieu E, Massard G, Gasser B, Frossard N.

INSERM U425, Universite Louis Pasteur Strasbourg I, 67401 Illkirch cedex, France. carla.dasilva@pharma.u-strasbg.fr

1. Stem cell factor (SCF) is a major mast cell growth factor that promotes differentiation and chemotaxis of mast cells and inhibits their apoptosis. 2. We evaluated the effect of interleukin (IL)-1beta, a major pro-inflammatory cytokine, on the constitutive expression of SCF and studied the effects of two glucocorticoids, budesonide and dexamethasone, on the IL-1beta-enhanced SCF expression. 3. Human lung fibroblasts in culture were serum-starved for 48 h and treated with IL-1beta, budesonide and/or RU486. SCF cDNA was quantified after total RNA reverse transcription by on-line fluorescent polymerase chain reaction. SCF protein was quantified by ELISA. 4. IL-1beta induced an increase in SCF mRNA (+91% at 2.5 h) and protein production (+32%) by human lung fibroblasts in culture (P<0.001). 5. Budesonide inhibited IL-1beta-induced SCF mRNA expression (-68%) at 2.5 h and even more so at 10 h (-192%) (P<0.001). The expression of SCF protein also decreased by 3.5fold at 10 h. Results were similar with dexamethasone. The glucocorticoid antagonist RU486 cancelled the effects induced by the glucocorticoids. 6. Increased SCF mRNA levels were associated with increased stability of this mRNA as measured after treatment with actinomycin D (1.9-fold at 2.5 h). Budesonide decreased this IL-1 beta-enhanced stability by about 1.5-fold (P<0.001). 7. We conclude that in 'inflammatory' conditions, mimicked in vitro by IL-1 beta, glucocorticoid treatment inhibits expression of the mast cell growth factor SCF. The reduced number and activation of mast cells observed in the bronchi of asthmatic patients treated by glucocorticoids may be due in part to this effect.

PMID: 11934803 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Best Pract Res Clin Obstet Gynaecol 2002 Apr;16(2):181-91

Emergency contraception.

Glasier A.

Lothian Primary Care NHS Trust Family Planning and Well Woman Services, University of Edinburgh Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, 18 Dean Terrace, UK.

The last decade has seen a huge interest in emergency contraception (EC) because of the potential it has to reduce abortion rates. A variety of hormonal methods is available although mifepristone-arguably the best method-is only licensed in China. The intrauterine device is highly effective but its use is limited because of the technical skill required for successful insertion. The mechanism of action of both the Yuzpe regimen of EC and of levonorgestrel is poorly understood and for all methods there are serious methodological difficulties involved with calculating efficacy. Nevertheless the risks and side-effects of EC are negligible and the practicalities of prescribing it are extremely simple. Research and programmatic efforts should concentrate on improving availability if EC is to fulfil its promise as a public health intervention to reduce unwanted pregnancy. Copyright 2002 Elsevier Science Ltd.

Publication Types:

- Review
- Review, Tutorial

PMID: 12041961 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Fertil Steril 2002 Feb;77(2):366-72

Administration of an antiprogesterone up-regulates estrogen receptors in the endometrium of women using Norplant: a pilot study.

Glasier AF, Wang H, Davie JE, Kelly RW, Critchley HO.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, Centre for Reproductive Biology, University of Edinburgh, 37 Chalmers Street, Edinburgh, EH9 3ET, Scotland, UK. a.glasier@ed.ac.uk

OBJECTIVE: To determine the effect of a single dose of mifepristone (200 mg) on endometrial estrogen and progesterone receptors in Norplant users. DESIGN: A prospective single-blind placebo-controlled pilot study. SETTING; Women were recruited from a large family planning clinic and were studied either at the clinic or in a clinical research unit attached to a teaching hospital gynecology department. PATIENT(S): Eight women using Norplant and experiencing vaginal bleeding more often than once every 24 days. All completed the study. INTERVENTION(S): Endometrial biopsies were taken after treatment with both placebo and 200 mg of mifepristone, both given at the start of a bleeding episode. MAIN OUTCOME MEASURE(S): Expression of endometrial progesterone (PR) and estrogen (ER) receptors, ovulation, and vaginal bleeding. RESULT(S): Mifepristone administration was associated with down-regulation of PR receptor subtype B and upregulation of ER. Women treated with mifepristone showed a tendency to increased ovulation rates and reduced vaginal bleeding. CONCLUSION(S): The effect of mifepristone on endometrial steroid receptors was consistent with functional inhibition of progesterone. The findings warrant further investigation of this regimen as a strategy to reduce frequent bleeding.

Publication Types:

Clinical Trial

PMID: 11821099 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Ann Intern Med 2002 Aug 6;137(3):180-9

Emergency contraception.

Grimes DA, Raymond EG.

Family Health International, PO Box 13950, Research Triangle Park, NC 27709, USA. dgrimes@fhi.org

Emergency contraception is used to prevent pregnancy after a coital act not adequately protected by a regular method of contraception. In contrast to early medical abortion, emergency contraception prevents a pregnancy from starting and does not disrupt an established pregnancy. The most commonly used approaches consist of two oral doses of contraceptive steroids. The levonorgestrel-only regimen (levonorgestrel, 0.75 mg, repeated in 12 hours) appears to be more effective and better tolerated than the Yuzpe regimen (ethinyl estradiol, 100 microg, and levonorgestrel, 0.5 mg, repeated in 12 hours). In the largest randomized, controlled trial to date, levonorgestrel prevented about 85% of pregnancies that would have occurred without its use. Hormonal emergency contraception has no known medical contraindications, although it is not indicated for suspected or confirmed pregnancy. However, if hormonal emergency contraception is inadvertently taken in early pregnancy, neither the woman nor the fetus will be harmed. Nausea and vomiting associated with the Yuzpe regimen can be reduced by prophylactic use of meclizine. A strong medical and legal case exists for making hormonal emergency contraception available over the counter, as has happened in countries other than the United States. Easier access to and wider use of emergency contraception could dramatically lower the high rates of unintended pregnancy and induced abortion in the United States.

Publication Types:

- Review
- Review, Tutorial

PMID: 12160366 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]
Fertil Steril 2001 Dec;76(6):1196-201

Noncompliance among a group of women using a novel method of contraception.

Hapangama DK, Glasier AF, Baird DT.

Contraceptive Development Network, Department of Reproductive and Development Sciences, The University of Edinburgh, Centre for Reproductive Biology, Edinburgh, United Kingdom.

OBJECTIVE: To compare the incidence of noncompliance measured objectively by a home use fertility monitor with the traditional self-reported incidence of compliance in a study of a new method of contraception. DESIGN: Prospective cohort study. SETTING: A large family planning clinic in Edinburgh. PATIENT(S): Thirty-two healthy women who took part in a trial assessing the efficacy of a novel method of contraception involving accurately timed administration of a single dose of mifepristone. INTERVENTION(S): Mifepristone was administered orally and a blood sample was collected on the same day. MAIN OUTCOME MEASURE(S): Percentage of missed tests detected by the monitor against the self-reported percentage during the critical period. RESULT(S): Women failed to perform 24.2% (95% confidence interval, 16.5-31.5) of the tests in the 162 cycles analyzed. They missed tests at an absolutely vital time for contraceptive efficacy in 42% of cycles according to the monitor while admitting to missing tests in 14.8%. Poor compliance was associated with younger women, those who discontinued the study before completion, and cycles in which women were not relying on the contraceptive method. CONCLUSION(S): The use of microelectronic monitoring systems may improve our understanding of the extent of patient noncompliance, providing objective information that no other monitoring technique can produce. This understanding provides the opportunity to make the optimum use of potentially effective treatments while validating research evidence.

PMID: 11730750 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Circulation 2001 Dec 4;104(23):2826-31

Sex steroids used in hormonal treatment increase vascular procoagulant activity by inducing thrombin receptor (PAR-1) expression: role of the glucocorticoid receptor.

Herkert O, Kuhl H, Sandow J, Busse R, Schini-Kerth VB.

Institut fur Kardiovaskulare Physiologie, Zentrum der Frauenheilkunde und Geburtshilfe, Klinikum der Johann Wolfgang Goethe-Universitat, Frankfurt am Main, Germany.

BACKGROUND: The use of sex steroids in oral contraception or hormonal replacement therapy is associated with an increased risk of cardiovascular thrombole mbolic complications. Although both the estrogen and the progestin components have been involved, the underlying mechanisms responsible are unclear. METHODS AND RESULTS: This study examined whether sex steroids promote hemostasis indirectly by increasing the procoagulant activity of blood vessels. Treatment of vascular smooth muscle cells with several progestins (progesterone, 3-keto-desogestrel, gestodene, and medroxyprogesterone acetate) upregulated proteolytically activatable thrombin receptor (PAR-1) expression, resulting in a potentiated thrombin-induced tissue factor expression and surface procoagulant activity. In contrast, neither the progesting levonorgestrel, norethisterone, and norgestimate nor the synthetic estrogen 17alpha-ethinylestradiol had such effects. The effect of the stimulatory progesting, which induce glucocorticoid-like effects in several cell systems, was mimicked by dexamethasone and inhibited by the progesterone and glucocorticoid receptor antagonist RU-38486. In addition, long-term administration of progesterone, 3-keto-desogestrel, or medroxyprogesterone acetate to ovariectomized rats increased PAR-1 protein level in the arterial wall, resulting in an increased responsiveness of isolated aortic rings to thrombin. CONCLUSIONS: These data demonstrate that several progestins markedly potentiate the vascular procoagulant effects of thrombin by increasing the availability of membrane thrombin receptors in the smooth muscle, an effect that is most likely due to their glucocorticoid-like activity.

PMID: 11733402 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Curr Opin Obstet Gynecol 2002 Jun;14(3):325-30

Mifepristone: contraceptive and non-contraceptive uses.

Ho PC, Yu Ng EH, Tang OS.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, University of Hong Kong, Hong Kong. pcho@hkusub.hku.hk

Mifepristone is an orally active progesterone antagonist. It can be used for both contraceptive and non-contraceptive clinical indications. It is a very effective drug for emergency contraception with a low incidence of side effects. There is a potential for mifepristone to be used as a once-a-month pill. There is a need, however, for a simple, inexpensive and accurate method to identify the luteinizing hormone surge before this method can be used in clinical practice. The daily administration of mifepristone offers promise as an effective method of contraception but more studies need to be done. The combination of mifepristone with a prostaglandin analogue is a well-established method for termination of pregnancy of up to 9 weeks. Recent data suggest that this combination may also be used up to 9-13 weeks of pregnancy. Although mifepristone is effective in dilating the cervix before vacuum aspiration, misoprostol is probably the drug of choice in most situations. In the second trimester, mifepristone is effective in shortening the abortion process induced by prostaglandin analogues. The combination of mifepristone and prostaglandin also offers a medical method for management of miscarriages. Mifepristone has been used for a number of other indications, but further studies are needed before such treatment can be recommended.

Publication Types:

- Review
- Review, Tutorial

PMID: 12032390 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

FDACDER000526

J Midwifery Womens Health 2002 Mar-Apr;47(2):68-73

Adolescent emergency contraception: attitudes and practices of certified nurse-midwives.

Kettyle EP, Klima C.

Yale University's Nurse-Midwifery program and School of Public Health, USA.

Teenage pregnancy has reached epidemic proportions in the United States with I million pregnancies and more than 500,000 live births occurring each year among women under the age of 20. The safety and efficacy of postcoital administration of oral contraceptives, commonly called "emergency contraception" (EC), have been well documented. However, EC is dramatically underused in the United States. Because low use of EC may be attributable, in part, to both lack of knowledge, as well as misinformation on the part of health care providers, further research in this area is warranted. Because midwives play a significant role in the provision of reproductive health care to adolescents, their attitudes about the use of EC among teens may impact the availability of emergency contraception options to these clients. This article presents results of a survey of certified nurse-midwives with respect to their attitudes, practices, and policies related to EC and provides recommendations specific to this provider population.

PMID: 12019988 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

FDACDER000527

Mol Cell Endocrinol 2001 Oct 25;183(1-2):165-70

Modulation of 11 beta-hydroxysteroid dehydrogenase type 2 activity in Ishikawa cells is associated with changes in cellular proliferation.

Koyama K, Krozowski Z.

Laboratory of Molecular Hypertension, Baker Medical Research Institute, P.O. Box 6492, St. Kilda Rd. Central, Melbourne 8008, Australia.

An important determinant of the potency of steroid hormones is the presence of activating and inactivating enzymes in target cells. The 11 beta-hydroxysteroid dehydrogenase type 1 and type 2 enzymes (11 beta HSD1 and 11 beta HSD2) modulate glucocorticoid action and may be important in regulating cellular growth. In the present study we examined 11 betahydroxysteroid dehydrogenase in Ishikawa endometrial cancer cells to see if modulation of enzyme activity could potentiate the antiproliferative effects of glucocorticoids. Ishikawa cells contain an NAD dependent enzyme migrating at 41 kDa on Western blots, consistent with the presence of the glucocorticoid-inactivating enzyme 11 beta HSD2, while the NADP dependent 11 beta HSD1 is barely detectable. Given that glucocorticoids decrease cellular proliferation we asked whether inhibition of 11 beta HSD2 could further enhance this effect. Cultivation of cells in the presence of 1 microM cortisol resulted in an elevation of 11 beta HSD2 and this was associated with a decrease in cell number. Enzyme activity and cell proliferation showed a biphasic response to the synthetic anti-progestin and antiglucocorticoid RU38486, with <or =10 nM exerting agonistic effects and > or =100 nM producing antagonist effects in the presence of 1 microM cortisol. Inhibition of 11 beta HSD2 activity by glycyrrhetinic acid did not enhance the anti-proliferative effects of 1 microM cortisol, but the inhibitor showed significant antiproliferative activity in the absence of added glucocorticoid, consistent with protection of the low levels of glucocorticoids present in culture medium. Interestingly, the commonly used 11 beta HSD inhibitor, Carbenoxolone, did not block 11 beta HSD2 activity in whole Ishikawa cells, and there was no effect on cell proliferation, however, complete inhibition of 11 beta HSD2 was achieved in cellular homogenates suggesting that a barrier exists to entry of the inhibitor into intact cells. This study suggests that inhibition of 11 beta HSD2 activity can enhance the antiproliferative effects of low, but not high concentrations of glucocorticoids, and that beneficial effects may be attained in vivo at the nadir of diurnal glucocorticoid levels.

PMID: 11604236 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Endocrinology 2002 May;143(5):1889-900

A glucocorticoid-responsive mutant androgen receptor exhibits unique ligand specificity: therapeutic implications for androgen-independent prostate cancer.

Krishnan AV, Zhao XY, Swami S, Brive L, Peehl DM, Ely KR, Feldman D.

Department of Medicine, Stanford University School of Medicine, Stanford, CA 94305, USA.

The cortisol/cortisone-responsive AR (AR(ccr)) has two mutations (L701H and T877A) that were found in the MDA PCa human prostate cancer cell lines established from a castrated patient whose metastatic tumor exhibited androgen-independent growth. Cortisol and cortisone bind to the AR(ccr) with high affinity. In the present study, we characterized the structural determinants for ligand binding to the AR(ccr). Our data revealed that many of the C17, C19, and C21 circulating steroids, at concentrations that are found in vivo, functioned as effective activators of the AR(ccr) but had little or no activity via the wild-type AR or GRalpha. Among the synthetic glucocorticoids tested, dexamethasone activated both GRalpha and AR(ccr), whereas triamcinolone was selective for GRalpha. In MDA PCa 2b cells, growth and prostate-specific antigen production were stimulated by potent AR(ccr) agonists such as cortisol or 9alpha-fluorocortisol but not by triamcinolone (which did not bind to or activate the AR(ccr)). Of the potential antagonists tested, bicalutamide (casodex) and GR antagonist RU38486 showed inhibitory activity. We postulate that corticosteroids provide a growth advantage to prostate cancer cells harboring the promiscuous AR(ccr) in androgen-ablated patients and contribute to their transition to androgen-independence. We predict that triamcinolone, a commonly prescribed glucocorticoid, would be a successful therapeutic agent for men with this form of cancer, perhaps in conjunction with the antagonist casodex. We hypothesize that triamcinolone administration would inhibit the hypothalamic-pituitary-adrenal axis, thus suppressing endogenous corticosteroids, which stimulate tumor growth. Triamcinolone, by itself, would not activate the AR(ccr) or promote tumor growth but would provide glucocorticoid activity essential for survival.

PMID: 11956172 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Chung Hua Yen Ko Tsa Chih 2002 Jan;38(1):42-4

[Effect of RU38486 on fibronectin expression in cultured human trabecular cells]

[Article in Chinese]

Li F, Ye T, Wang N, Zheng H.

Zhongshan Ophthalmic Center, Sun Yat-sen University of Medical Sciences, Guangzhou 510060, China. champkee@163.net

OBJECTIVE: To study the effect of RU38486 on fibronectin expression in human trabecular cells (HTCs) in vitro. METHODS: The trabecular specimens from human donors were primarily cultured and subcultured. Cultured cells were observed by light and electron microscopes. Fibronectin (FN), laminin (LN) and neuron-specific enolase (NSE) in extracellular matrix (ECM) of the cells were immunohistochemically stained with LSAB method. The quantities of FN [optical density (A) means] affected by different concentrations of dexamethasone (Dex) and RU38486 were measured through indirect immunochemical method associated with computer image analysis. RESULTS: According to the growing characteristics and morphological features, the cultured cells were identified as HTCs. Comparison of A means of FN induced by Dex and RU38486 was 10(-6) mol/L dex (12 days) > 10(-7) mol/L Dex (12 d) > 10(-7) mol/L Dex (5 d) + 20(-7) mol/L Dex (5 d) + 10(-8) mol/L RU38486 (7 d). CONCLUSION: Dex can stimulate HTCs in vitro to secrete more FN. Bit RU38486 can reverse this high level of FN expression induced by Dex on receptor level. The efficacy of RU 38486 [glucocorticoid receptor (GR)-antagonist] in reducing intraocular pressure in vivo should be confirmed by further studies.

PMID: 11955301 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Br J Cancer 2001 Dec 14;85(12):1978-86

Demonstration of mixed properties of RU486 in progesterone receptor (PR)-transfected MDA-MB-231 cells: a model for studying the functions of progesterone analogues.

Lin VC, Aw SE, Ng EH, Ng EH, Tan MG.

Department of Clinical Research, Singapore General Hospital, Republic of Singapore 169608.

Progesterone antagonist RU486 (mifepristone) has been implicated for many anti-neoplastic and obstetrical applications. But the compound has demonstrated undesired agonist-like effect depending on cell, tissue and species studied. Using PR-transfected breast cancer cells MDA-MB-231, this report describes the similarities and differences between progesteroneand RU486-mediated effects on cell growth, cell differentiation and, at the molecular level, on the activation of p44/p42 MAP kinases (MAPK). Like progesterone, RU486 inhibited cells growth by arresting the cells in G0/G1 phase of the cell cycle. In contrast to progesterone that induced cell spreading, RU486 induced a multipolar, stellate morphology. RU486-treated cells showed no increase of stress fibers, nor was there any increase of focal adhesions as progesterone-treated cells did. Furthermore, despite of the fact that both compounds inhibited cell growth, RU486 significantly stimulated the activation of p44/p42 MAP kinases whereas progesterone markedly inhibited the activation. Nonetheless, the effects of RU486 were PR-mediated and RU486 was able to antagonize the effect of progesterone on cell growth and focal adhesion. In conclusion, RU486 can act not only as a progesterone antagonist, a progesterone agonist but also induced morphological and molecular changes that were distinct from progesterone-mediated effects in PR-transfected MDA-MB-231 cells. The non-progesterone-like effect of RU486 may be mediated through a pathway that is different from the progesterone-mediated pathway, or it is the result of a blockade of certain critical step(s) in the progesterone-mediated pathway. In any case, undesired side effects of antiprogestin may create clinical complications. PR-transfected MDA-MB-231 breast cancer cells provide a model for studying the functions of progesterone analogues.

PMID: 11747343 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Proc Natl Acad Sci U S A 2002 Jun 11;99(12):7940-4

Coactivator/corepressor ratios modulate PR-mediated transcription by the selective receptor modulator RU486.

Liu Z, Auboeuf D, Wong J, Chen JD, Tsai SY, Tsai MJ, O'Malley BW.

Department of Molecular and Cellular Biology, Baylor College of Medicine, One Baylor Plaza, Houston, TX 77030, USA.

Selective receptor modulators, such as the antiprogestin RU486, are known to exhibit partial agonist activities in a cell-type-dependent manner. Employing an in vitro chromatin transcription system that recapitulates progesterone receptor (PR)-mediated transcription in vivo, we have investigated the molecular basis by which the antiprogestin RU486 regulates transcription in a cell-type-specific manner. We have compared the effects of RU486 on PRdependent transcription in vitro using T47D and HeLa cell nuclear extracts. RU486 exhibits a differential ability to activate transcription within these two cell types. The differential effect on transcription correlates with different ratios of endogenous coactivators/corepressors in these cells. Unlike agonist-bound PR that interacts only with coactivators such as steroid receptor coactivator-1 (SRC-1), RU486-bound PR binds to both coactivator SRC-1 and corepressor silencing mediator for retinoid and thyroid hormone receptor (SMRT) in vitro. Both SRC-1 and SMRT have the capacity to modulate RU486-dependent activity. Moreover, a change in the relative levels of SRC-1 and SMRT contained in our chromatin transcription system modulates agonist/antagonist effects of RU486 on transcription by PR. Our data indicate that the ability of RU486 to activate transcription is modulated by the ratio of coactivators to corepressors and substantiate the important roles of coregulators in the regulation of steroid receptor mediated transactivation in response to selective receptor modulators.

PMID: 12048256 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Obstet Gynecol 2002 Jul;100(1):65-71

Emergency contraception with mifepristone and levonorgestrel: mechanism of action.

Marions L, Hultenby K, Lindell I, Sun X, Stabi B, Gemzell Danielsson K.

Department of Women and Child Health, Karolinska Hospital, Stockholm, Sweden. lena.marions@ks.se

OBJECTIVE: To study the effect of mifepristone and levonorgestrel on ovarian function and endometrial development in doses effective as emergency contraception. METHODS: Twelve fertile women were treated with either 10 mg of mifepristone as a single dose (n = 6)or two doses of 0.75 mg of levonorgestrel, 12 hours apart (n = 6) before and after ovulation. An endometrial biopsy performed during the implantation period was analyzed for endometrial maturation and expression of markers of endometrial receptivity. The markers tested for were integrin alpha4 and beta3, cyclooxygenase-1 and -2, progesterone receptors, Dolichos biflorus agglutinin lectin binding, and pinopodes. Urinary excretion of luteinizing hormone, estrone, and pregnanediol were also determined. RESULTS: Treatment with mifepristone and levonorgestrel before ovulation inhibited the luteinizing hormone surge showing no significant differences between the means of luteinizing hormone measurements. When mifepristone was administered in the early luteal phase, downregulation of progesterone receptors was inhibited in five of six women. No significant alteration was found in any of the remaining markers of endometrial receptivity. CONCLUSION: The mode of action of emergency contraception with mifepristone or levonorgestrel is primarily due to inhibition of ovulation rather than inhibition of implantation.

Publication Types:

Clinical Trial

PMID: 12100805 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

J Am Soc Nephrol 2001 Dec;12(12):2787-96

Glucose and prednisolone alter basic fibroblast growth factor expression in peritoneal mesothelial cells and fibroblasts.

Ogata S, Yorioka N, Kohno N.

Second Department of Internal Medicine, Hiroshima University School of Medicine, Hiroshima, Japan.

The mechanism of peritoneal fibrosis in patients on continuous ambulatory peritoneal dialysis is poorly understood. The production of basic fibroblast growth factor (bFGF) by human peritoneal mesothelial cells cultured in high glucose medium was investigated, and the behavior of peritoneal fibroblasts, as well as the inhibitory effect of prednisolone, was assessed. Reverse transcriptase-PCR and immunocytochemistry showed the expression of glucocorticoid receptors in mesothelial cells. The semiquantitative reverse transcriptase-PCR showed that high glucose medium (4.0%) increased bFGF mRNA by 2.5-fold relative to control medium (0.1% glucose), with 83% suppression of the increase by 1 microM prednisolone. The bFGF protein level in culture supernatant was also increased by 1.5-fold in high glucose medium, with this change showing 45% suppression by 1 microM prednisolone. These effects of prednisolone were prevented by a glucocorticoid receptor antagonist (RU486) in a concentration-dependent manner. The proliferation of peritoneal fibroblasts was increased 1.9-fold by the supernatant of mesothelial cells cultured in high glucose medium, with 85% suppression by 1 microM prednisolone and suppression to 16% below basal proliferation by an anti-bFGF neutralizing antibody (10 microg/ml), whereas proliferation showed a concentration-dependent increase on addition of an anti-transforming growth factor beta-neutralizing antibody. Recombinant bFGF (50 to 1000 pg/ml) likewise caused a concentration-dependent increase of peritoneal fibroblast proliferation and fibronectin release by these cells was also increased (at 50 to 5000 pg/ml). These results suggest the potential importance of bFGF for initiation of peritoneal fibrosis and the possible efficacy of glucocorticoids for preventing such fibrosis in patients receiving peritoneal dialysis.

PMID: 11729249 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

J Biol Chem 2002 Jan 11;277(2):1538-43

Allosteric effects of dexamethasone and RU486 on glucocorticoid receptor-DNA interactions.

Pandit S, Geissler W, Harris G, Sitlani A.

Department of Metabolic Disorders, Merck and Company, Inc., Rahway, New Jersey 07065, USA.

The glucocorticoid receptor (GR) is a DNA-binding protein that can regulate the transcription of a large number of genes in a ligand-dependent fashion. Although much progress has been made on the mechanism of transcriptional regulation by GR, a potential allosteric effect of GR-binding ligands on specific GR-DNA interactions is controversial. In this study, gel-shift methods are used to measure the effects of a classical agonist dexamethasone and a prototypical antagonist RU486 on the in vitro interactions of GR with DNA substrates, which contain glucocorticoid response elements (GREs) from promoters of GR-regulated genes. These studies show that cell extracts containing human GR bind specifically and with high affinity to GREs in the absence of ligand. An agonist dexamethasone and antagonist RU486 do not affect the affinity of GR for DNA but subtly alter the electrophoretic mobility of the GR-DNA complex. Importantly, the dissociation rate of GR from DNA increases as a function of the concentration of GRE-containing DNA. At a fixed DNA concentration, dexamethasone-bound GR dissociates from DNA significantly faster than does ligand-free GR or RU486-bound GR. These results are consistent with a model for transcriptional activation in which a dynamic complex is formed between agonistbound GR and DNA.

PMID: 11682470 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Neurology 2002 May 14;58(9):1436

Mifepristone (RU 486) for Alzheimer's disease.

Pomara N, Doraiswamy PM, Tun H, Ferris S.

Department of Psychiatry, New York University School of Medicine, USA. pomara@nki.rfmh.org

Mifepristone (RU 486) for Alzheimer's disease

Nunzio Pomara, MD; P. Murali Doraiswamy, MD; Hla Tun, MD; and Steven Ferris, PhD

Prolonged exposure to high glucocorticoid levels during life has been linked to hippocampal pathology and cognitive impairment.¹ For example, excessive levels of endogenous or exogenous corticosteroids have been associated with impaired attention, concentration, and memory.^{1.2} Longitudinal studies have correlated increased plasma cortisol with cognitive decline and hippocampal atrophy.³ In rats, adrenalectomy at midlife attenuates subsequent hippocampal degeneration and cognitive decline.⁴

AD is associated with hippocampal atrophy and increased hypothalamo-pituitary-adrenal (HPA) axis activity, both of which may correlate with cognitive deficits.³ If prolonged exposure to glucocorticoids also plays a role in AD, we hypothesized that countering such effects might have therapeutic potential. We evaluated mifepristone (RU 486, Roussel UCLAF, Romainville, Seine-St.-Davideins, France), a long-acting antagonist of progesterone and glucocorticoid receptors,⁶ for the treatment of AD.

This was a pilot, single-site, randomized, placebo-controlled, double blind, 6-week trial in patients with mild to moderate AD. The study was reviewed by the Institutional Review Board of New York University School of Medicine, and participants were enrolled after providing written informed consent. Key inclusion criteria were diagnosis of probable AD (National Institute of Communicative Disorders and Stroke and AD and Related Disorders Association criteria), Mini-Mental State Examination (MMSE) score between 10 and 27, medically stable condition, and Global Deterioration Scale score of 3, 4, 5, or 6 (mild to severe). No participants were taking cholinesterase inhibitors. Eligible participants were randomized to mifepristone (200 mg) or placebo daily at bedtime. The AD Assessment Scale-Cognitive subscale (ADAS-Cog)⁶ was administered at screening, at approximately 12 hours after the first dose and at postbaseline weeks 3, 5, and 6. Other assessments included the Hamilton Depression Rating Scale (HDRS) and safety evaluations. Before the intended enrollment of patients could be completed, Roussel UCLAF, the study sponsor, decided to withdraw mifepristone from the US and discontinued all studies, including this one. For the patients enrolled before study termination, efficacy variables were analyzed as a change from baseline by treatment both for completers and for the intent-to-treat population (last observation carried forward). Student's t-tests (one-tailed) were used to test the hypothesis that mifepristone was more effective than placebo.

Nine patients (6 men and 3 women, mean age = 72.0 ± 10.8 years; mean MMSE score = 20.8 ± 3.8 ; mean ADAS-Cog total score = 22.6 ± 5.3 , mean HDRS score = 5.6 ± 1.9) were randomized—four to placebo and five to mifepristone. At baseline, the

mifepristone group tended to be older but did not significantly differ from the placebo group in mean age (p = 0.56), baseline ADAS-Cog score (p = 0.49), HDRS score (p = 0.80), and MMSE (p = 0.94) score. Six patients completed the study. Two patientson active medication discontinued after 2 and 3 weeks, and one patient on placebo dropped out at week 6.

At 12 hours after first dose, the change from baseline in ADAS-Cog total scores was not statistically different between the two groups. However, patients treated with mifepristone performed better (t = 2.83, p < 0.0128) on the ADAS-Cog Word Recall subtest. At week 6, the mean change from baseline in ADAS-Cog total score among completers revealed that patients treated with mifepristone tended to improve (by 2.67 points) whereas patients treated with placebo tended to worsen (by 1.67 points). However, this difference of 4.3 points failed to reach substantial significance. There was also a trend for better performance by the mifepristone group on scores of specific ADAS-Cog subtests (Orientation, Word Recognition, and Word Recall) as shown in the table. There was no significant difference between the groups in HDRS scores. Intent-to-treat analyses revealed similar results.

Mifepristone was associated with the following adverse effects: One participant developed a generalized pruritic maculopapular rash after 2 weeks and was discontinued. Another individual developed a nonpruritic rash limited to the chest and the abdomen after 5 weeks of treatment and was treated with an antihistamine. A third participant developed asymptomatic hypokalemia (2.8 mmol/L) on his final visit and was treated with a potassium supplement. Two individuals also had increased fatigue and loss of appetite without weight change, and one individual experienced two episodes of severe headache after 3 weeks of treatment.

two episodes of severe headache after 3 weeks of treatment. This is the first controlled trial to examine the effects of a central glucocorticoid receptor antagonist on cognition in AD. Although limitations such as small sample size, short treatment duration, and one-tailed tests do not allow any firm conclusions regarding efficacy, this pilot study provides new data on the safety and the feasibility of this approach. A longer study involving a better tolerated, second-generation glucocorticoid receptor antagonist is warranted to confirm efficacy in AD.

From the Department of Psychiatry (Drs. Pomara and Ferris), New York University School of Medicine; Nathan S. Kline Institute for Psychiatric Research (Drs. Pomara, Tun, and Ferris), Orangeburg, NY; and Department of Psychiatry, Duke University Medical Center (Dr. Doraiswamy), Durham, NC.

Supported by a grant from Roussel to N.P. N.P. has also received grants or honoraria from Merck, Whitehouse Station, NJ; Pharmacia & Upjohn, Per pack, NJ; Eli Lilly, Indianapolis, IN; Forest, St. Louis, MO; Novartis, Sammi, mit, NJ; Mediolanum, Milan, Italy; Zeneca, Wilmington, DE; Janssen-Titusville, NJ; Fidia, Washington DC; and G.D. Searle, Skokie, IL. S.F. hos received grants or honoraria from Pfizer, New York, NY; Eisai, Teaneck, NJ: Eli Lilly, Indianapolis, IN; Novartis, Summit, NJ; Merck, Whitehouse Sta-

Table Cognitive outcomes of completers at week 6 in AD

Measure	Placebo (n $= 3$)	RU486 (n = 3)	t-Test statistics	p.Value*
ADAS-Cog total score	1.67 ± 8.9	-2.67 ± 6.7	0.67	0.20
Word Recall Item score	0.00 ± 1.0	-0.33 ± 0.6	. 0.50	0.30
Orientation Item score	1.00 ± 1.0	-1.67 ± 2.1	2.00	0.05
Word Recognition Item score	1.67 ± 2.1	-0.67 ± 3.1	1.09	0.10

Values are expressed as mean ± SD.

Data shown are change from baseline at week 6; a positive change indicates worsening and a negative change reflects improvement.

* One-tailed.

1436 NEUROLOGY 58 May (1 of 2) 2002

ADAS-Cog = AD Assessment Scale-Cognitive.

J Clin Endocrinol Metab 2002 Aug;87(8):3740-4

Transactivation assay for determination of glucocorticoid bioactivity in human serum.

Raivio T, Palvimo JJ, Kannisto S, Voutilainen R, Janne OA.

Biomedicum Helsinki, Institute of Biomedicine, University of Helsinki, FIN-00014 Helsinki. taneli.raivio@helsinki.fi

We have developed a mammalian cell (COS-1) bioassay, which measures glucocorticoid bioactivity (GBA) directly from a small amount of human serum. The assay is based on the expression of human glucocorticoid receptor (GR) together with a coactivator protein and reporter plasmid containing GR response elements upstream of the luciferase gene. Ten microliters of human serum, in duplicate, are added directly to the cell culture medium, and GBA is derived from reporter gene activity. The assay differentiates between biopotencies of synthetic steroids, and importantly, mifepristone (RU486) is able to block glucocorticoidinduced response. The assay is sensitive (<15.6 nM cortisol in fetal calf serum) and precise, with the within- and between-assay coefficients of variation less than 8% and 10%, respectively. We measured serum GBA (bioassay) and cortisol (RIA) levels in 34 asthmatic children (age range, 5.7-14.2 yr) at baseline and after treatment with either inhaled budesonide (800 microg/d, n = 14), fluticasone propionate (500 microg/d, n = 14), or cromones (control group, n = 6). Pretreatment serum GBA and cortisol levels correlated strongly (r = 0.90, P < 0.0001, n = 34). Two months of treatment with inhaled budesonide resulted in excess GBA in circulation, which was not attributable to endogenous cortisol (P < 0.001). In the fluticasone propionate group, the presence of serum excess GBA was at the borderline of statistical significance (P < 0.08) after 2 months of inhalation therapy, and no excess GBA was detected in the cromone group. In conclusion, our bioassay enables measurement of mammalian cell response to bioactive glucocorticoids in circulation and provides a novel means to investigate patients receiving drugs acting through the GR.

Publication Types:

Clinical Trial

PMID: 12161504 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

EMBO J 2001 Nov 1;20(21):6071-83

Factor recruitment and TIF2/GRIP1 corepressor activity at a collagenase-3 response element that mediates regulation by phorbol esters and hormones.

Rogatsky I, Zarember KA, Yamamoto KR.

Department of Cellular and Molecular Pharmacology, University of California, 513 Parnassus Avenue, HSW1201, San Francisco, CA 94143-0450, USA.

To investigate determinants of specific transcriptional regulation, we measured factor occupancy and function at a response element, col3A, associated with the collagenase-3 gene in human U2OS osteosarcoma cells; col3A confers activation by phorbol esters, and repression by glucocorticoid and thyroid hormones. The subunit composition and activity of AP-1, which binds col3A, paralleled the intracellular level of cFos, which is modulated by phorbol esters and glucocorticoids. In contrast, a similar AP-1 site at the collagenase-1 gene, not inducible in U2OS cells, was not bound by AP-1. The glucocorticoid receptor (GR) associated with col3A through protein-protein interactions with AP-1, regardless of AP-1 subunit composition, and repressed transcription. TIF2/GRIP1, reportedly a coactivator for GR and the thyroid hormone receptor (TR), was recruited to col3A and potentiated GRmediated repression in the presence of a GR agonist but not antagonist. GRIP1 mutants deficient in GR binding and coactivator functions were also defective for corepression, and a GRIP1 fragment containing the GR-interacting region functioned as a dominant-negative for repression. In contrast, repression by TR was unaffected by GRIP1. Thus, the composition of regulatory complexes, and the biological activities of the bound factors, are dynamic and dependent on cell and response element contexts. Cofactors such as GRIP1 probably contain distinct surfaces for activation and repression that function in a context-dependent manner.

PMID: 11689447 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Int J Clin Pract 2002 Mar;56(2):140-4

The potential of mifepristone (RU486) as a female contraceptive drug.

Sarkar NN.

Department of Reproductive Biology, All India Institute of Medical Sciences, Ansari Nagar, New Delhi.

This article reviews the development of mifepristone (RU486) as a female contraceptive drug. Mifepristone is an orally active compound with nearly 40% bioavailability after first pass effect. The steady plasma level of mifepristone ranges from 65 nmol/l with 1 mg/day to 1 micromol/l with 10 mg/day and reaches 2.5 micromol/l, 4.5 micromol/l and 5.4 micromol/l with mifepristone 50 mg, 100 mg and 200 mg daily, respectively, over the treatment period. Inhibition of ovulation may be achieved at serum mifepristone concentration of 232.7 nmol/l. Mifepristone appears to antagonise progesterone at the pituitary level to suppress gonadotropin and steroid hormone secretion rather than to act primarily on the hypothalamus to delay or inhibit ovulation. In fact, the endometrium is most sensitive to mifepristone. Lowdose mifepristone impairs luteal phase endometrial development and receptivity by altering endometrial parakine, cytokine and enzyme activity. Thus, low-dose mifepristone can significantly reduce the rate of conception without inhibiting ovulation. However, further research is needed to standardise the dose and dose-schedule to achieve the desired efficacy of low-dose mifepristone for routine clinical use with minimal or no side-effects.

Publication Types:

- Review
- Review Literature

PMID: 11926701 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Endocrinology 2002 Aug;143(8):3071-82

Identification and characterization of novel estrogen receptor-beta-sparing antiprogestins.

Sathya G, Jansen MS, Nagel SC, Cook CE, McDonnell DP.

Department of Pharmacology and Cancer Biology, Duke University Medical Center, Durham, NC 27710, USA.

The steroid hormones estrogen and progesterone together regulate the development and maintenance of the female reproductive system. The actions of these two hormones are mediated by their respective nuclear receptors located within overlapping cell populations in target organs. The molecular mechanism of action of these two hormones has been defined to a large extent using estrogen receptor (ER) and progesterone receptor (PR) antagonists. In the case of ER, the available antagonists are highly receptor selective. With respect to PR, however, the available antiprogestins also interact with the receptors for glucocorticoids, mineralocorticoids, and androgens. Whereas these cross-reactivities can usually be managed in studies of female reproductive function, it is the recent demonstration that RU486 is an effective antagonist of the beta-isoform of ER that suggested the need for more selective antiprogestins. In this study, we used cell-based transcriptional assays combined with screens using coactivator peptide analogs to identify two novel classes of antiprogestins that distinguish themselves from the antiprogestin RU486 in the manner they interact with PR. One class exhibits the characteristics of a pure antiprogestin in that its members bind to the receptor and induce a conformational change that prevents the presentation of two potential coactivator binding surfaces on the protein. The second class of compounds distinguish themselves from RU486 in that they are ERbeta sparing. When tested in vivo the ER-sparing antiprogestins were as effective as RU486 in suppressing superovulation. It is anticipated that the availability of these new antiprogestins will advance the studies of PR pharmacology in a manner similar to how the availability of selective ER modulators has helped the study of ER action.

PMID: 12130573 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

J Biol Chem 2002 Jul 19;277(29):26238-43

RU486-induced glucocorticoid receptor agonism is controlled by the receptor N terminus and by corepressor binding.

Schulz M, Eggert M, Baniahmad A, Dostert A, Heinzel T, Renkawitz R.

Institute for Genetics, Justus-Liebig-University Giessen, Heinrich-Buff-Ring 58-62, D-35392 Giessen, Germany.

Glucocorticoid-induced gene transcription has been shown to be mediated by coactivators bound to the glucocorticoid receptor (GR). The glucocorticoid antagonist RU486 interferes with the steroid-mediated activation and can also exhibit partial agonist activity, a response in which corepressors have been implicated. Here we have shown that deletion of the N terminus of GR totally abolishes the agonist activity of RU486. Furthermore, we have demonstrated that corepressors bind directly to the RU486-bound GR as determined by glutathione S-transferase pull-down, mammalian two-hybrid assay, and coimmunoprecipitation. Fine mapping of the interaction regions within GR and the corepressor NCoR reveals a complex interaction profile that involves a number of domains in each protein. Notably, the N and the C termini of GR are both involved in corepressor binding. Thus, the N terminus of GR is a major determinant for RU486-dependent NCoR interaction as well as for RU486-mediated agonist activity.

PMID: 12011091 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Crit Care 2002 Aug;6(4):330-4

Bench-to-bedside review: a possible resolution of the glucose paradox of cerebral ischemia.

Schurr A.

Brain Attack Research Laboratory, Department of Anesthesiology, University of Louisville School of Medicine, Louisville, KY 40292, USA. a0schu01@gwise.louisvile.edu

The glucose paradox of cerebral ischemia (namely, the aggravation of delayed ischemic neuronal damage by preischemic hyperglycemia) has been promoted as proof that lactic acidosis is a detrimental factor in this brain disorder. Recent studies, both in vitro and in vivo, have demonstrated lactate as an excellent aerobic energy substrate in the brain, and possibly a crucial one immediately postischemia. Moreover, evidence has been presented that refutes the lactic acidosis hypothesis of cerebral ischemia and thus has questioned the traditional explanation given for the glucose paradox. An alternative explanation for the aggravating effect of preischemic hyperglycemia on the postischemic outcome has consequently been offered, according to which glucose loading induces a short-lived elevation in the release of glucocorticoids. When an episode of cerebral ischemia in the rat coincided with glucose-induced elevated levels of corticosterone (CT), the main rodent glucocorticoid, an aggravation of the ischemic outcome was observed. Both the blockade of CT elevation by chemical adrenalectomy with metyrapone or the blockade of CT receptors in the brain with mifepristone (RU486) negated the aggravating effect of preischemic hyperglycemia on the postischemic outcome.

Publication Types:

- Review
- Review, Tutorial

PMID: 12225609 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

J Biol Chem 2002 Jan 25;277(4):2525-33

The activated glucocorticoid receptor modulates presumptive autoregulation of ribosomal protein S6 protein kinase, p70 S6K.

Shah OJ, Iniguez-Lluhi JA, Romanelli A, Kimball SR, Jefferson LS.

Department of Cellular and Molecular Physiology, Pennsylvania State University College of Medicine, Hershey, Pennsylvania 17033-0850, USA.

Protein metabolism in eukaryotic organisms is defined by a synthesis-degradation equilibrium that is subject to regulation by hormonal and nutritional signals. In mammalian tissues such as skeletal muscle, glucocorticoid hormones specify a catabolic response that influences both protein synthetic and protein degradative pathways. With regard to the former, glucocorticoids attenuate mRNA translation at two levels: translational efficiency, i.e. translation initiation, and translational capacity, i.e. ribosome biogenesis. Glucocorticoids may impair translational capacity through the ribosomal S6 protein kinase (p70 S6K), a recognized glucocorticoid target and an effector of ribosomal protein synthesis. We demonstrate here that the reduction in growth factor-activated p70 S6K activity by glucocorticoids depends upon a functional glucocorticoid receptor (GR) and that the GR is both necessary and sufficient to render p70 S6K subject to glucocorticoid regulation. Furthermore, the DNA binding and transcriptional activation but not repression properties of the GR are indispensable for p70 S6K regulation. Finally, a mutational analysis of the p70 S6K carboxyl terminus indicates that this region confers glucocorticoid sensitivity, and thus glucocorticoids may facilitate autoinhibition of the enzyme ultimately reducing the efficiency with which T389 is phosphorylated.

PMID: 11705993 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Invest Ophthalmol Vis Sci 2001 Dec;42(13):3173-81

Delayed secondary glucocorticoid responsiveness of MYOC in human trabecular meshwork cells.

Shepard AR, Jacobson N, Fingert JH, Stone EM, Sheffield VC, Clark AF.

Glaucoma Research R2-41, Alcon Research, Ltd., 6201 South Freeway, Fort Worth, TX 76134-2099, USA.

PURPOSE: To characterize the glucocorticoid responsiveness of the glaucoma gene MYOC (myocilin/TIGR) in cultured human trabecular meshwork (TM) cells. METHODS: MYOC expression in two independently derived human TM cell lines was quantified by Western immunoblot analysis of protein levels and quantitative PCR analysis of mRNA levels. Promoter activity was measured indirectly with the luciferase reporter gene in a dual luciferase reporter assay. RESULTS: Application of the synthetic glucocorticoid dexamethasone (Dex) to cultured TM cells at 100 nM resulted in a delayed (8-16 hours) induction of myocilin. The concentration dependence (median effective concentration [EC(50)], approximately 10 nM) and reversal by the glucocorticoid antagonist, RU486, implicates the glucocorticoid receptor (GR). In an interesting observation, RU486 alone acted as a partial agonist to MYOC expression. Treatment of TM cells with the protein synthesis inhibitor cycloheximide abolished the Dex induction, suggesting an indirect effect of the GR on MYOC expression. In addition, the RNA synthesis inhibitor actinomycin D also blocked Dex induction, indicating that the Dex effect was due to increased MYOC transcription. Analysis of up to 2700 nucleotides (nt) of the MYOC gene 5'-flanking region in luciferase reporter constructs showed no Dex induction, despite the presence of multiple putative glucocorticoid response element (GRE)-like half-sites in the MYOC promoter and the presence of an intact cellular GR-mediated signaling system. CONCLUSIONS: MYOC is a delayed secondary glucocorticoid-responsive gene. Characterization of the transcription factors that mediate the secondary response will shed new light on the pathophysiology of steroid-induced ocular hypertension and glaucoma.

PMID: 11726619 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Ann N Y Acad Sci 2002 Mar;955:159-73; discussion 199-200, 396-406

Regulation and modulation of abnormal immune responses in endometriosis.

Sidell N, Han SW, Parthasarathy S.

Department of Gynecology and Obstetrics, Emory Center for Advanced Research on Women's Health, Emory University, Atlanta, Georgia 30322, USA. nsidell@emory.edu

There is ample evidence demonstrating that endometriosis is accompanied by inflammatory reactions in the peritoneum, resulting in abnormal levels of a variety of cytokines and chemokines in the peritoneal fluid. Among the immunological parameters that have been shown to be altered in the peritoneal cavity of women with endometriosis, an increase in the number of activated nonadherent macrophages that show reduced surface expression of scavenger receptors has been observed. The cause-and-effect relationship between aberrant peritoneal macrophage activity and endometriosis is still unknown. We have demonstrated that steroid hormone receptor agonists and antagonists [e.g., retinoids, antiglucocorticoids, ligands to peroxisome proliferator activated receptors (PPARs)] can regulate macrophage functions in ways that could either suppress or stimulate the growth of ectopic endometrial lesions. Our studies include a number of relevant findings: (1) RU486, acting as an antioxidant, can suppress activation of NFkappaB, a nuclear transcription factor that affects the expression of several inflammatory genes such as those for MCP-1, GM-CSF, CSF-1, and various adhesion molecules; (2) IL-6 secretion from a variety of cell types including endometrial cells is inhibited by retinoic acid; and (3) retinoids and PPARgamma ligands can upregulate the expression of scavenger receptors in cells of the monocyte/macrophage lineage. These observations, combined with the possibility that macrophage activity may play a fundamental role in endometriosis, suggest that pharmacologic manipulation of macrophage function may provide a novel mechanism for treating this disease.

Publication Types:

- Review
- Review, Tutorial

PMID: 11949945 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Cancer Res 2001 Oct 1;61(19):7179-83

Differential expression of members of the tumor necrosis factor alpharelated apoptosis-inducing ligand pathway in prostate cancer cells.

Sridhar S, Ali AA, Liang Y, El Etreby MF, Lewis RW, Kumar MV.

Medical College of Georgia, Section of Urology, Augusta, Georgia 30912, USA.

Androgen ablation therapy induces apoptosis only in androgen-sensitive prostate cancer cells; therefore, other cytotoxic drugs are being used to induce apoptosis in androgen-refractory cells. Mifepristone, an antiprogestin used individually or together with the antiestrogen Tamoxifen, has been recommended for induction of cell death and treatment of several hormonal cancers. However, little is known about the mechanism of action of these drugs in prostate cancer. Therefore, we investigated the effect of Mifepristone on the tumor necrosis factor alpha-related apoptosis-inducing ligand (TRAIL) pathway, a newly identified and very effective member of tumor necrosis factor-alpha family. Mifepristone and Tamoxifen induced significant expression of death receptors in prostate cancer cells in vitro and in xenografts. However, Mifepristone in combination with Tamoxifen did not increase prostate cancer cell death compared with their individual values. The involvement of the TRAIL pathway was further confirmed by the activation of caspase-8 in Mifepristone-treated cells. This was followed by truncation of Bid, confirming that Mifepristone activates the TRAIL pathway. This knowledge is being used to design a combination treatment of TRAIL and Mifepristone to induce significant apoptosis in prostate cancer cells.

PMID: 11585752 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Biochem Pharmacol 2002 Mar 1;63(5):945-9

Pharmacological characterization of the ATP-dependent low K(m) guanosine 3',5'-cyclic monophosphate (cGMP) transporter in human erythrocytes.

Sundkvist E, Jaeger R, Sager G.

Department of Pharmacology, Medical Faculty, Institute of Medical Biology, University of Tromso, N-9037, Tromso, Norway.

The efflux pump for cGMP has been shown to be an ATP-energized multiorganic anion transporter. The present study was performed to extend the knowledge of the pharmacological characteristics of this efflux pump, Inside-out vesicles prepared from fresh blood were incubated with [3H]-cGMP (1 microM) with or without various concentrations of competitors for 120min at 37 degrees. The tested compounds could be divided in four groups: one with high affinity (K(i) < 5 microM), a second with moderate affinity (K(i): 5-50 microM), a third with low affinity (K(i): 0.1-5mM) and the fourth with extremely low or no affinity at all. With the mean K(i)-values given in parenthesis, the high affinity group consisted of mifepristone (0.2 microM), zaprinast (0.35 microM), dipyridamole (0.35 microM), estradiol 3-beta-glucuronide (0.42 microM), genistein (0.43 microM), estradiol 17beta-glucuronide (0.47 microM), onapristone (1.3 microM), progesterone (1.7 microM) and sildenafil (3.6 microM). The inhibitors with medium affinity were estradiol (8 microM), sulfinpyrazone (13 microM), daunorubicin (23 microM), megestrol acetate (26 microM), doxorubicin (28 microM), 6-thioguanine (28 microM) and 6-thioguanosine-5'monophosphate (32 microM). The low affinity group comprised 6-TIMP (220 microM), 6methylmercaptopurine (MMP) (220 microM), vincristine (270 microM), medroxyprogesterone (680 microM), para-aminohippurate (PAH) (1.9mM) and taurocholate (2.2mM). No or minimal effect was seen in the presence of 6-mercaptopurine (6-MP), methotrexate, 9-(2-phosphonylmethoxyethyl)adenine and mitoxantrone. The cGMP transporter had a unique pharmacological profile, different from that of MRP1, but with some characteristics in common with MRP4 and MRP5.

PMID: 11911846 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Fertil Steril 2001 Dec;76(6):1225-31

Progesterone receptor antagonists Org 31710 and RU 486 increase apoptosis in human periovulatory granulosa cells.

Svensson EC, Markstrom E, Shao R, Andersson M, Billig H.

Department of Physiology, Goteborg University, Goteborg, Sweden.

OBJECTIVE: To investigate if progesterone receptor (PR)-mediated effects are involved in regulating the susceptibility to apoptosis in LH receptor-stimulated human luteinizing granulosa cells. DESIGN: Laboratory study. SETTING: Goteborg University and an in vitro fertilization laboratory of a university hospital. PATIENT(S): Women undergoing oocyte retrieval for in vitro fertilization after ovulation induction with gonadotropins. INTERVENTION(S): Luteinizing granulosa cells were isolated from follicular aspirates after oocyte removal. The cells were treated with or without RU 486 (1 microM-100 microM), Org 31710 (1 microM-100 microM), progesterone (1 nM-10 microM), dexamethasone (0.5 microM-100 microM), dihydrotestosterone (1 nM-25 microM), RU 486 (10 microM-100 microM) + dexamethasone (50 microM), and picrotoxin (1 microM-100 microM) and were cultured under serum-free conditions. MAIN OUTCOME MEASURE(S): Measurement of caspase-3 activity; detection of internucleosomal DNA fragmentation using gel electrophoresis and fluorospectrophotometry; progesterone analysis of spent medium. RESULT(S): Addition of the PR antagonists RU 486 or Org 31710 in vitro to human luteinizing granulosa cells caused an increase in caspase-3 activity and a dose-dependent increase in internucleosomal DNA fragmentation. No effect on DNA fragmentation was seen after addition of dexamethasone, dihydrotestosterone, or picrotoxin. CONCLUSION(S): Nuclear PR-mediated effects are involved in regulating the susceptibility to apoptosis in LH receptor-stimulated human luteinizing granulosa cells.

PMID: 11730755 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Maturitas 2002 Aug 30;42(4):287-94

Lack of stimulatory effect of dienogest on the expression of intercellular adhesion molecule-1 and vascular cell adhesion molecule-1 by endothelial cell as compared with other synthetic progestins.

Tatsumi H, Kitawaki J, Tanaka K, Hosoda T, Honjo H.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology, Kyoto Prefectural University of Medicine, 465 Kajii-cho, Kamigyo-ku, Kyoto 602-8566, Japan.

OBJECTIVES: Monocyte adhesion to endothelial cells is an important initial event at the onset of atherosclerosis. It is partially mediated by the expression of adhesion molecules on the endothelial cell surface. While estrogens inhibit the development of atherosclerosis, the effect of co-administered progestin remains controversial. We examined the effect of progestins on cytokine-stimulated human umbilical venous endothelial cell (HUVEC) expression of adhesion molecules. METHODS: In HUVECs, mRNA expression of progesterone receptors (PRs) and androgen receptors (AR) was determined by RT-PCR. HUVECs were stimulated by interleukin-1beta (IL-1beta) for 24 h with or without various steroids, and then the cell-surface expression of intercellular adhesion molecule-1 (ICAM-1) and vascular cell adhesion molecule-1 (VCAM-1) was semiguantified by ELISA. RESULTS: In all preparations of HUVECs used in this study, RT-PCR confirmed mRNA expression of both isoforms of PR, PR-A and PR-B, as well as AR. Addition of progesterone (10(-10)-10(-7) M) or dienogest (DNG) (10(-10)-10(-8) M) did not affect IL-1beta-stimulated ICAM-1 or VCAM-1 expression. In contrast, medroxyprogesterone acetate, norethindrone acetate and levonorgestrel (10(-10)-10(-8) M) dose-dependently increased cell adhesion molecules. The progestin-induced increase was blocked by the concomitant addition of mifepristone, a PR antagonist, but not by hydroxyflutamide, an AR antagonist, indicating that the progestin stimulation was mediated predominantly via PR. CONCLUSIONS: These results suggest that DNG, unlike other synthetic progestins, lacks stimulation of cell adhesion molecules. For the prevention of atherosclerosis, estrogen in combination with DNG may be a suitable regimen in hormone replacement therapy in postmenopausal women. Copyright 2002 Elsevier Science Ireland Ltd.

PMID: 12191851 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Cancer Res 2002 Jun 1;62(11):3298-307

Stromal cells promote angiogenesis and growth of human prostate tumors in a differential reactive stroma (DRS) xenograft model.

Tuxhorn JA, McAlhany SJ, Dang TD, Ayala GE, Rowley DR.

Department of Molecular and Cellular Biology, Baylor College of Medicine, Houston, TX 77030, USA.

Reactive stroma has been reported in many cancers, including breast, colon, and prostate. Although changes in stromal cell phenotype and extracellular matrix have been reported, specific mechanisms of how reactive stroma affects tumor progression are not understood. To address the role of stromal cells in differential regulation of tumor incidence, growth rate, and angiogenesis, LNCaP xenograft tumors were constructed in nude mice with five different human prostate stromal cell lines as well as GeneSwitch-3T3 cells engineered to express lacZ under mifepristone regulation. Alone, LNCaP prostate carcinoma cells were essentially nontumorigenic, whereas combinations of LNCaP cells with three different human prostate stromal cell lines (L/S tumors) resulted in a tumor incidence (50-63%) similar to that of control LNCaP plus Matrigel (L/M) tumors over a 9-week period. In contrast, LNCaP combinations with two other human prostate stromal cell lines were nontumorigenic, illustrating that stromal cell effects are differential. L/S tumors exhibited well-developed blood vessels at 2 weeks, whereas control L/M tumors were avascular at 2 weeks and exhibited blood lakes in lieu of extensive vessels at later time points. Xenografts constructed under three-way conditions (LNCaP, Matrigel, and stromal cells; L/M/S tumors) exhibited a 100% tumor incidence and showed rapid blood vessel formation as early as day 7 with mature vessels formed by day 10. L/M/S tumors exhibited a 10.3-fold increase in microvessel density, and the corresponding hemoglobin:tumor weight ratio was increased 2fold relative to L/M control tumors at day 10. L/M/S tumor wet weight and volume increased by 1.6- and 2.4-fold, respectively, by day 21, compared with control L/M tumors. L/M/S tumors made with LNCaP cells plus GeneSwitch-3T3-pGene/lacZ stromal cells showed similar results. Mifepristone-regulated gene expression was observed in stromal cells immediately adjacent to clusters of carcinoma cells and in vessel walls in a mural cell (pericyte) position. This study shows that regulation of angiogenesis is one mechanism through which stromal cells affect LNCaP tumor incidence and growth rate. This regulation may be mediated through direct recruitment and interactions of stromal cells with endothelial cells. Furthermore, this study describes for the first time a model system with regulated transgene expression in the stromal compartment of an experimental carcinoma. These findings point to the stromal compartment as a potential source of new prognostic markers and therapeutic targets and show the utility of the carcinoma-stromal xenograft model system in dissecting specific mechanisms of reactive stroma.

PMID: 12036948 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Int J Obes Relat Metab Disord 2002 Jul;26(7):905-11

Hormonal regulation of interleukin-6 production in human adipocytes.

Vicennati V, Vottero A, Friedman C, Papanicolaou DA.

Endocrine Unit, S. Orsola Hospital, University of Bologna, Bologna, Italy.

OBJECTIVE: To elucidate the hormonal regulation of interleukin-6 (IL-6) production by human adipose tissue and its relation to leptin. DESIGN: In vitro study. Human adipocytes were incubated with dexamethasone (with or without RU486), norepinephrine and epinephrine (with or without propranolol), or insulin. MEASUREMENTS: IL-6 and leptin secretion by human adipocytes. RESULTS: A gradual increase in IL-6 secretion by adipocytes during differentiation was observed. A positive correlation was found between basal IL-6 release and both glycerol 3-phosphate dehydrogenase activity--a marker of adipocyte differentiation-and leptin release. Dexamethasone decreased IL-6 secretion and increased leptin secretion in a dose-dependent manner. Both catecholamines increased IL-6 and leptin secretion. The effects of dexamethasone and catecholamines on IL-6 and leptin were abrogated by RU486 and propranolol, respectively. Incubation with insulin resulted in a dose-dependent stimulation of IL-6 and leptin secretion. CONCLUSIONS: IL-6 is produced by human adipocytes and is a potential marker of adipocyte differentiation. Furthermore it is a hormonally regulated cytokine, suppressed by glucocorticoids, and stimulated by catecholamines and insulin in physiological concentrations.

PMID: 12080442 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

J Biol Chem 2002 Jul 19;277(29):26573-80

Deciphering the phosphorylation "code" of the glucocorticoid receptor in vivo.

Wang Z, Frederick J, Garabedian MJ.

Department of Microbiology, Kaplan Comprehensive Cancer Center, New York University School of Medicine, New York, New York 10016, USA.

The glucocorticoid receptor (GR) is phosphorylated at multiple serine residues in a hormonedependent manner, yet progress on elucidating the function of GR phosphorylation has been hindered by the lack of a simple assay to detect receptor phosphorylation in vivo. We have produced antibodies that specifically recognize phosphorylation sites within human GR at Ser(203) and Ser(211). In the absence of hormone, the level of GR phosphorylation at Ser(211) was low compared with phosphorylation at Ser(203). Phosphorylation of both residues increased upon treatment with the GR agonist dexamethasone. Using a battery of agonists and antagonists, we found that the transcriptional activity of GR correlated with the amount of phosphorylation at Ser(211), suggesting that Ser(211) phosphorylation is a biomarker for activated GR in vivo. Mechanistically, the kinetics of Ser(203) and Ser(211) phosphorylation in response to hormone differed, with Ser(211) displaying a more robust and sustained phosphorylation relative to Ser(203). Analysis of GR immunoprecipitates with phospho-GR-specific antibodies indicated that the receptor was phosphorylated heterogeneously at Ser(203) in the absence of hormone, whereas in the presence of hormone, a subpopulation of receptors was phosphorylated at both Ser(203) and Ser(211). Interestingly, biochemical fractionation studies following hormone treatment indicated that the Ser(203)-phosphorylated form of the receptor was predominantly cytoplasmic, whereas Ser(211)-phosphorylated GR was found in the nucleus. Likewise, by immunofluorescence, Ser(203)-phosphorylated GR was located in the cytoplasm and perinuclear regions of the cell, but not in the nucleoplasm, whereas strong phospho-Ser(211) staining was evident in the nucleoplasm of hormone-treated cells. Our results suggest that differentially phosphorylated receptor species are located in unique subcellular compartments, likely modulating distinct aspects of receptor function.

PMID: 12000743 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Pharmacotherapy 2002 Jan;22(1):43-53

Hormonal emergency contraception.

Wanner MS, Couchenour RL.

Department of Pharmacy Practice, School of Pharmacy, Temple University, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, USA. Melissa.L.Wanner@GSK.com

In the 1960s, high-dose estrogen was identified as a highly effective emergency contraceptive but was associated with a high frequency of nausea and vomiting. The combination of low-dose estrogen and a progestin (the Yuzpe regimen) is highly effective and much better tolerated. Recently, a progestin-only regimen containing levonorgestrel was found to be more effective than the Yuzpe regimen and caused significantly less nausea and vomiting. Danazol, an antigonadotropin, is well tolerated but has questionable efficacy Mifepristone has several pharmacologic actions that make it highly effective with an adverseeffect profile similar to that of the Yuzpe regimen. Progress has been made in the last 3 years toward increasing the number of emergency contraceptives that are accessible to women in the United States, and several highly effective options are available. The most effective and well-tolerated regimen available is levonorgestrel. However, the barriers to access and low patient and provider awareness limit the impact of emergency contraception on the rate of unintended pregnancies.

Publication Types:

• Review

• Review, Tutorial

PMID: 11794429 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

FDACDER000553

J Steroid Biochem Mol Biol 2002 Jun;81(2):141-6

RU486 antagonizes the inhibitory effect of peroxisome proliferatoractivated receptor alpha on interleukin-6 production in vascular endothelial cells.

Xu X, Otsuki M, Sumitani S, Saito H, Kouhara H, Kasayama S.

Department of Molecular Medicine, Osaka University Graduate School of Medicine (C-4), 2-2 Yamada-oka, Suita-city, Osaka, Japan.

Peroxisome proliferator-acitivated receptor alpha (PPARalpha) is a member of nuclear receptor superfamily. Recent studies have shown that the activators for PPARalpha inhibit the expression of some inflammatory molecules in vascular endothelial cells (ECs) and vascular smooth muscle cells, indicating the anti-inflammatory roles of PPARalpha on vascular walls. In this investigation, we showed that RU486, already proved to be an active anti-glucocorticoid and anti-progesterone agent, blocked the inhibition of tumor necrosis factor (TNF)-alpha-stimulated interleukin-6 (IL-6) production by the PPARalpha activator fenofibrate in human umbilical vein ECs. Transient transfection of boyine aortic ECs with an IL-6 promoter construct demonstrated that RU486 blocked the inhibitory effect of fenofibrate on TNF-alpha-induced IL-6 promoter activity. By fluorescence microscopy, RU486 was found to prevent fenofibrate-induced nuclear translocation of PPARalpha. Thus, RU486 has an antagonizing effect on PPARalpha-mediated down-regulation of IL-6 in vascular ECs. This effect may be exerted by its interference with the nuclear translocation of PPARalpha.

PMID: 12137803 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Methods Enzymol 2002;346:551-61

Ligand-inducible transgene regulation for gene therapy.

Ye X, Schillinger K, Burcin MM, Tsai SY, O'Malley BW.

Department of Molecular and Cellular Biology, Baylor College of Medicine, Houston, Texas 77030, USA.

A synthetic ligand regulable system for gene transfer and expression has been developed in our laboratory based on mechanistic studies of steriod hormone receptor and transcriptional regulation. This gene switch system possesses most of the important features that are required for application of the system in biological research and clinical gene therapy in the future. As the primary ligand tested in this system, mifepristone can effectively turn on the regulatory circuit at doses much lower than those used in the clinic. By modification of the chimeric regulator and its feedback regulatory mode, this system has been optimized to produce very low basal activity with high inducibility in the presence of mifepristone. Also, improvements in regulator composition have been made to minimize immunogenicity and make the system more amenable to human gene therapy. Moreover, incorporation of this gene switch system into the HC-Ad vector system has further enhanced the efficiency of gene transfer and the long-term inducible expression of transgenes. However, for each application within a different biological system, the gene switch needs to be optimized to achieve appropriate inductions. In particular, the method used to deliver the transgenes and adjustment of ligand dosage are critical for in vivo gene expression.

PMID: 11883090 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Pharmacology 2002 Apr;64(4):169-75

Regulation of endothelin-1 production in deoxycorticosterone acetate- salttreated endothelial cells.

Yu WJ, Tomlinson B, Cheng JT.

Department of Pharmacology, College of Medicine, National Cheng Kung University, Tainan City, Taiwan, ROC.

The aim of this study was to investigate the direct effect of deoxycorticosterone acetate (DOCA) on the expression of endothelin-1 (ET-1) mRNA and production of ET-1 peptides in cultured bovine carotid endothelial cells (BCEC) and human umbilical vein endothelial cells (HUVEC). The mineralocorticoid, DOCA, was administered to BCEC and HUVEC with or without additional salt (200 mmol/l). The ET-1 mRNA was elevated to 150% and 180% after a 24-hour incubation with DOCA (5 micromol/l) in BCEC and HUVEC, respectively. Intracellular content of ET-1 peptides of BCEC and HUVEC was increased from 21.66 +/- 0.3 to 23.64 +/- 0.19 fmol/10(5) cells and from 8.38 +/+ 0.82 to 11.26 +/- 0.91 fmol/10(5) cells, respectively, in the DOCA-conditioned medium. Also, DOCA treatment for 24 h increased the secretion of ET-1 peptide from 1.62 ± 0.17 to 5.33 ± 0.67 fmol/10(5) cells in BCEC and from 0.95 ± 0.08 to 3.56 ± 0.36 fmol/10(5) cells in HUVEC. In DOCA-salt-treated endothelium, regulation of ET-1 gene was similar to that with DOCA alone. The DOCA-induced increase in expression of ET-1 mRNA and the ET-1 peptide level were both diminished in dexamethasone (DEX, 10 nmol/l)- or mifepristone (RU486, 0.5 micromol/l)-treated endothelium. These results suggest that DOCA directly increased the ET-1 mRNA expression in endothelium and could be mediated in part by a glucocorticoid receptor pathway which was independent of salt and hyperosmolarity. Copyright 2002 S. Karger AG, Basel

PMID: 11893896 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Eur J Obstet Gynecol Reprod Biol 2001 Oct;98(2):152-9

Progesterone and ovulation.

Zalanyi S.

MAV-TEK, 6826 Szeged, Csanadi u. 34/a., Hungary.

The role of progesterone (P) in the mechanism of ovulation is controversial at best. The contraceptive application of P was established in rodents in 1936 and with orally absorbed progestogenes was put to human use. There were hints on the proovulatory actions of P administered before the time of ovulation in rats by 1948. Similarly, in 1954 the observation of high P level in the preovulatory follicle pointed to a role in ovulation. Neither of these two observations was further investigated and the positive feedback effect of P exerted on gonadotropins was described in 1968. Still the positive feedback between P and gonadotropins were not recognized as a physiologic mechanism, much less utilized pharmacologically. The apparent contradiction between these two different actions of P continues up to now. The paper sets out to expose this controversy and tries to resolve it using extensive literary data and the author's experiences with synthetic progestogenes in contraception, in the treatment of infertility and with the antigestagen mifepristone in blocking ovulation. The precise mechanisms lying behind these applications are explored and discussed in detail. The putative role of oestradiol (E2) in the mechanism of eliciting the gonadotropin surge is extensively discussed but refuted as the ovulatory signal. The time sequence between the rise of P and gonadotropins contradicts the common wisdom of LH causing luteinization. The positive feedback effect of P on the E2 sensitized ovulatory axis on the hypothalamic and pituitary level is discussed and its local role in the mechanism of follicular rupture is also taken into account. The final proof seems to be the antiovulatory effect of mifepristone, which blocked both GnRH pulsatility, pituitary sensitivity to GnRH and follicular rupture in several experiments. Thus, the dogma of LH peak causing follicular rupture and subsequent luteinization seems questionable, the putative role of E2 to initiate the ovulatory cascade has to be discarded and P's role as a trigger of the physiological mechanisms leading to ovulation should be firmly recognized.

Publication Types:

- Review
- Review, Tutorial

PMID: 11574124 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

J Med Chem 2002 Sep 26;45(20):4379-82

6-Aryl-1,4-dihydro-benzo[d][1,3]oxazin- 2-ones: a novel class of potent, selective, and orally active nonsteroidal progesterone receptor antagonists.

Zhang P, Terefenko EA, Fensome A, Wrobel J, Winneker R, Lundeen S, Marschke KB, Zhang Z.

Chemical Sciences, Women's Health Research Institute, Wyeth Research, 500 Arcola Road, Collegeville, Pennsylvania 19426, USA. Zhangp@wyeth.com

Novel 6-aryl-1,4-dihydro-benzo[d][1,3]oxazin-2-ones were synthesized and tested as progesterone receptor (PR) antagonists. These compounds were potent and showed good selectivity for PR over other steroid receptors such as the glucocorticoid and androgen receptors (e.g., greater than 80-fold selectivity at PR for 4h). Numerous 6-aryl benzoxazinones (e.g., 4h-j) were active orally in the uterine decidualization and component C3 assays in the rats. In these in vivo models,4h had potencies comparable to mifepristone.

PMID: 12238914 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Eur J Pharmacol 2001 Nov 23;431(3):365-71

Beclomethasone, budesonide and fluticasone propionate inhibit human neutrophil apoptosis.

Zhang X, Moilanen E, Kankaanranta H.

Medical School, University of Tampere, Tampere, Finland.

Inhaled glucocorticoids are widely used to treat chronic obstructive pulmonary disease without much evidence of efficiency in this disease where neutrophils may contribute to the pathophysiology. This prompted us to test the effects of several currently used inhaled and systemic glucocorticoids on human neutrophil apoptosis. Beclomethasone, budesonide, dexamethasone, fluticasone propionate, hydrocortisone and prednisolone inhibited apoptosis in a concentration-dependent manner as assessed by flow cytometric analysis, annexin-V binding and morphological analysis. The maximal inhibition of apoptosis was 50-60%. The order of potency was fluticasone propionate (EC(50) 0.6+/-0.2 nM) approximately equal to budesonide (EC(50) 0.8+/-0.2 nM)> dexamethasone approximately equal to prednisolone approximately equal to beclomethasone approximately equal to hydrocortisone. The inhibitory effects of glucocorticoids were reversed by mifepristone. Moreover, glucocorticoids slightly enhanced the inhibitory effect of granulocyte-macrophage colony-stimulating factor (GM-CSF) on neutrophil apoptosis. The present data suggests that budesonide and fluticasone propionate prolong human neutrophil survival by inhibiting apoptosis at clinically relevant drug concentrations via an effect on glucocorticoid receptor.

PMID: 11730731 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

FDACDER000559
Life Sci 2002 Aug 16;71(13):1523-34

Divergent effect of mometasone on human eosinophil and neutrophil apoptosis.

Zhang X, Moilanen E, Adcock IM, Lindsay MA, Kankaanranta H.

The Immunopharmacological Research Group, Medical School, University of Tampere, FIN-33014 Tampere, Finland.

Mometasone is a potent synthetic glucocorticoid, which is under development as an inhaled preparation for the treatment of asthma. Previous studies have suggested that glucocorticoids have direct effects on human eosinophil and neutrophil apoptosis. The present study was designed to characterize the effects of mometasone on constitutive apoptosis and cytokineafforded survival in isolated human eosinophils and neutrophils. The isolated eosinophils or neutrophils were cultured in vitro, and apoptosis was assessed by flow cytometric analysis of relative DNA content, by annexin-V binding and morphological analysis. Mometasone enhanced constitutive human eosinophil apoptosis in a concentration-dependent manner. The maximal enhancement of eosinophil apoptosis was 2.1-fold with an EC(50) value of 5.63 +/-2.33 nM. This enhancing effect was reversed by the glucocorticoid receptor antagonist, mifepristone. In the presence of added cytokines, mometasone reversed tumor necrosis factor -alpha-induced eosinophil survival but not that afforded by interleukin -5. In contrast, mometasone inhibited human neutrophil apoptosis in a concentration-dependent manner. The maximal inhibition of neutrophil apoptosis was 50% with an EC(50) value of 0.17 + 0.03nM. The inhibitory effect was partly reversed by mifepristone. In the presence of added cytokines, mometasone further enhanced neutrophil survival induced by the granulocytemacrophage colony-stimulating factor and leukotriene B(4). The present data suggests that mometasone has opposite effects on apoptosis of human eosinophils and neutrophils at clinically relevant drug concentrations via an effect on glucocorticoid receptor.

PMID: 12127907 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Zhonghua Fu Chan Ke Za Zhi 2002 Apr;37(4):220-2

[Apoptosis and expression of relative genes in early pregnant chorionic villi and decidua]

[Article in Chinese]

Zhang Y, Chen G, Liu Y, Fu G.

Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology, The Third Medical School, Peking University, Beijing 100083, China.

OBJECTIVE: To investigate the effects of mifepristone on apoptosis and expression of relative genes in early pregnant chorionic villi and decidua. METHODS: The specimen of early pregnant chorionic villi and decidua obtained from 10 cases of requesting termination of pregnancy by curettage, 20 cases of mifepriston contragestation. The paraffin sections were used to determine apoptotic cells by TdT-mediated dUTP-biotin nick end labeling method, to identify bcl-2, bax, fas, fasL and proliferating cell nuclear antigen (PCNA) by immunohistochemistry, to demonstrate fas and fasL mRNA by in situ hybridization. RESULTS: In normal early pregnant specimens, apoptotic cells were mainly observed in syncytiotrophoblast, but not in cytotrophoblast cells, occasionally seen in decidua cells. The antigen of bax, fas, fasL were present in syncytiotrophoblast cells and decidua with lower amount. While bcl-2 antigen staining was strong in cytotrophoblastic cells and in decidua. PCNA protein was present in cytotrophoblastic and decidual cells only. In the specimens treated with mifepristone, apoptotic cells were increased in syncytiotrophoblastic cells of villi and visualized in decidua cells. The expression of fas, fasL and bax was also higher than that of normal. CONCLUSIONS: Mifepristone increased apoptosis in syncytiotrophoblastic and decidua cells, but had no effect on the expression of bcl-2 and PCNA.

PMID: 12133415 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

J Clin Endocrinol Metab 2002 Jun;87(6):2514-9

Long-term progestin treatment inhibits RANTES (regulated on activation, normal T cell expressed and secreted) gene expression in human endometrial stromal cells.

Zhao D, Lebovic DI, Taylor RN.

Center for Reproductive Science, Department of Obstetrics, Gynecology, and Reproductive Sciences, University of California-San Francisco, Box 0556, San Francisco, CA 94143-0556, USA.

RANTES (regulated on activation, normal T cell expressed and secreted) is synthesized by endometrial and endometriotic stromal cells and circulates in peritoneal fluid. Reports indicate that medroxyprogesterone acetate (MPA) is clinically effective in alleviating pelvic pain in the majority of endometriosis patients, which leads us to hypothesize that MPA may be antiinflammatory. Prolonged treatment (8 d) with MPA resulted in 36% and 50% decreases in luciferase activity and RANTES protein production, respectively, whereas shorter treatment (2 or 4 d) with MPA had no significant effect. We also observed that 8 d of MPA increased PR expression. Both effects were blocked by RU486. Cotransfection of endometrial stromal cells with PR enhanced the effects mediated by endogenous PR. In addition, its action via progesterone response element cis-elements, PR appeared to inhibit trans-activation of a nuclear factor-kappaB-responsive element, further suppressing RANTES expression. These studies indicate that prolonged progestin exposure downregulates endometrial RANTES gene transcription in vitro. The effect is PR dependent and mediated in part through a nuclear factor-kappaB pathway. The clinical effectiveness of chronic progestin treatment in endometriosis-associated pelvic pain may be attributed to its inhibition of RANTES production and its suppression of inflammatory responses in the pelvis.

PMID: 12050207 [PubMed - indexed for MEDLINE]

Population Council/Danco Laboratories, LLC Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg

ť.

Sept. 28, 2001 - Sept. 27, 2002 NDA 20-687

ATTACUMENT 42

ATTACHMENT 12

• • • •

FDACDER000563

Not For Public Release Status Report Post Marketing Study Commitment

Date of Report:

December 2002

Population Council

Applicant Name:

Product Name:

Mifeprex[®] (mifepristone) Tablets (Oral), 200 mg

Application Number:

Date of Application Approval:

Date of Post Marketing Study Commitment:

Description of Post Marketing Study Commitment:

Original Schedule for Post Marketing Study Commitment: September 28, 2000

NDA 20-687

September 28, 2000

Two studies are to be conducted.

Study 1 – A cohort-based study of safety outcomes of patients having medical abortions under the care of physicians who provide surgical intervention compared to physicians who refer their patients for surgical intervention. Questions related to age, smoking, and follow-up on day 14 (compliance with return visit) will be incorporated into this cohort study, as well as an audit of signed Patient Agreement forms.

Study 2 – A surveillance study on outcomes of ongoing pregnancies.

Final protocols for both studies to be submitted within six months of NDA approval.

Post Marketing Study Commitment Status Report Page 2

Current Status of Post Marketing Study Commitment:

PENDING

Study 1 -

Explanation of Status Of Studies:

.

Study Status – *Pending* **Explanation of Status** – Protocol was resubmitted to FDA on January 25, 2002. The final protocol was submitted to FDA on November 8, 2002. Enrollment will begin when national sales of mifepristone support selection of the study sample.

As in the first year, the majority of the sales in the second year of distribution have been to (b) (4)

(b) (4)

^{(b) (4)} almost all of which provide their own surgical services. Currently, sales volume of mifepristone is too small to allow for the selection of a cohort of providers of mifepristone medical abortion who would refer their patients when surgical intervention is required.

In order to establish the referring/non-referring status of providers, we will be sending a letter to all Mifeprex[®] providers. We anticipate that the number of referring providers may be too small to support selection of the study sample this year.

Post Marketing Study Commitment Status Report Page 3

Study 2 –

Study Status – Pending

Explanation of Status – We are currently revising the protocol in response to comments sent to us by FDA on April 1, 2002.

We are also in the process of making final revisions on study forms. We anticipate that the study will begin in the first quarter of 2003.

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Wa	atch, Inc.	
Population Council/Danco Laboratories, LLC	Sept. 28, 2001	Sept. 27, 2002
Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg		NDA 20-687

ť

· ;

ATTACHMENT 13

For Public Release Status Report Post Marketing Study Commitment

Date of Report:

December 2002

Population Council

Applicant Name:

Product Name:

Mifeprex[®] (mifepristone) Tablets (Oral), 200 mg

Application Number:

NDA 20-687

September 28, 2000

Date of Application Approval:

Commitment #1: Commitment Date:

September 28, 2000

Commitment:

A cohort-based study of safety outcomes of patients having medical abortions under the care of physicians who provide surgical intervention compared to physicians who refer their patients for surgical intervention. Questions related to age, smoking, and follow-up on day 14 (compliance with return visit) will be incorporated into this cohort study, as well as an audit of signed Patient Agreement forms.

Current Status:

Pending

Explanation of Status:

Discussion between the FDA and the Population Council on the final protocol are in process. Enrollment will begin when national sales of mifepristone support selection of the study sample.

Commitment #2 Commitment Date:

September 28, 2000

Commitment:

Current Status:

Pending

Explanation of Status:

The final protocol has been submitted to the FDA. It is anticipated that the study will begin in the first quarter of 2003.

A surveillance study on outcomes of ongoing pregnancies.



FDACDER000568

ATTACHMENT 14

ATTACHMENT

•

FDACDER000569

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

STATUS REPORT OF OTHER POST MARKETING STUDIES - ONGOING STUDIES

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (I) – SEPTEMBER 27, 2002

Study Title:

Mifepristone-misoprostol medical abortion: Simplifying the regimen

Protocol Number: 205-US

Study Phase:

Date of Study Initiation: February 1, 2001

Study Status (Ongoing/Completed/Discontinued): Ongoing

Investigator(s)/Study Center(s):

3) 4) 5)

1) 2)

Objective:

To investigate the safety, efficacy and acceptability of a simplified regimen of mifepristone-misoprostol medical abortion, including home administration of misoprostol and a lower dose of mifepristone (200 mg).

Study Design:

Prospective, non-comparative trial

Drugs:

Investigational Drug:

Mifepristone + Misoprostol

Control Drug:

None

Dosage:

Description of Patients:

200 mg oral mifepristone, 400 µg oral misoprostol (2 days later)

Pregnant women with gestations under 49 days LMP

(b) (4), (b) (6

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (I) – SEPTEMBER 27, 2002 (CONT.)

Number of Patients

Planned:	370	
Enrolled:	361	
Age Range:	18 - 45	
Gender:	female	
Race:	n/a	
Dropped:	. 0	
Completed:	361	
Safety Variables:	Frequency of blood transfu hospitalization	sion, administration of IV fluids and
Efficacy Variables:	Success, complete abortion	without a surgical intervention
Safety Results:	Blood transfusion	= 0
	Administration IV fluids	= 2
	Hospitalization	= 1
Efficacy Results:	Success	= 92.8% (284/306)
	Results still preliminary. Fi	inal results to be calculated in coming

months.

STATUS REPORT OF OTHER POST MARKETING STUDIES - ONGOING STUDIES

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (II) - SEPTEMBER 27, 2002

Study Title: Mifepristone-misoprostol medical abortion: Simplifying the regimen

Protocol Number:

205-Eastern Europe

Study Phase:

Date of Study Initiation: December 2001

Study Status (Ongoing/Completed/Discontinued): Ongoing

Investigator(s)/Study Center(s):

Objective:To investigate the safety, efficacy and acceptability of a simplified
regimen of mifepristone-misoprostol medical abortion, including home
administration of misoprostol and a lower dose of mifepristone (200 mg).Study Design:Prospective, non-comparative trialDrugs:Mifepristone + MisoprostolControl Drug:NoneDosage:200 mg oral mifepristone, 400 μg oral misoprostol (2 days later)Description of Patients:Pregnant women with gestations under 56 days LMP

FDACDER000572

(b) (4), (b) (6)

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (II) - SEPTEMBER 27, 2002 (CONT.)

Number of Patients

Planned:

Enrolled: Age Range: Gender: Race: 500 (200, Albania; 100, Latvia; 100, Lithuania; 100, Slovakia) 200 (200, Albania) 18 - 45 female n/a

Dropped: Completed: 0 200

Safety Variables:

Frequency of blood transfusion, administration of IV fluids and hospitalization

= 0

= 0

= 0

Efficacy Variables:

Success, complete abortion without a surgical intervention

Safety Results:

Efficacy Results:

Success

Blood transfusion

Hospitalization

= 98.0% (196/200)

Results still preliminary.

Administration IV fluids

STATUS REPORT OF OTHER POST MARKETING STUDIES - ONGOING STUDIES

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (III) - SEPTEMBER 27, 2002

Study Title:	Mifepristone-misoprostol medical abortion: Simplifying the regimen	
Protocol Number:	205-India	
Study Phase:		
Date of Study Initiation	<i>m:</i> July 2002	
Study Status (Ongoin	g/Completed/Discontinued): Ongoing	
Investigator(s)/Study	Center(s):	
	(b) (4), (b)	
Objective:	To investigate the safety, efficacy and acceptability of a simplified regimen of mifepristone-misoprostol medical abortion, including home administration of misoprostol and a lower dose of mifepristone (200 mg).	
Study Design:	Prospective, non-comparative trial	
Drugs:		
Investigational Drug	: Mifepristone + Misoprostol	
Control Drug:	None	
Dosage:	200 mg oral mifepristone, 400 µg oral misoprostol (2 days later)	
Description of Patient	s: Pregnant women with gestations under 56 days LMP.	
Number of Patients		
Planned:	400	
Enrolled:	50	
Age Range:	18 - 45	
Gender:	female	
Race:	n/a	

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (III) – SEPTEMBER 27, 2002 (CONT.)

`\

· ____

.

Dropped: Completed:	0 50		
Safety Variables:	Frequency of blood transfu hospitalization	sion, administration	n of IV fluids and
Efficacy Variables:	Success, complete abortion	without a surgical	intervention
Safety Results:	Blood transfusion Administration IV fluids Hospitalization	= 0 = 0 = 0	
Efficacy Results:	Success	= 80%	
	Results preliminary.		4

÷

I.

STATUS REPORT OF OTHER POST MARKETING STUDIES - ONGOING STUDIES

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (IV) - SEPTEMBER 27, 2002

Study Title:	Mifepristone-misoprostol medical abortion: Expanding access and increasing autonomy
Protocol Number:	283
Study Phase:	
Date of Study Initiatio	<i>n</i> : June 2001, France December 2001, Sweden
Study Status (Ongoing	/Completed/Discontinued): Ongoing
Investigator(s)/Study (Center(s):
	(b) (4), (b) (6)
Objective:	To investigate the safety, efficacy and acceptability of a regimen of mifepristone-misoprostol medical abortion which includes 200 mg mifepristone (600 mg in Sweden) and two doses of 400 µg misoprostol given 2 days apart (1 and 3 days following administration of mifepristone).
Study Design:	Prospective, non-comparative trial
Drugs:	
Investigational Drug	Mifepristone + Misoprostol
Control Drug:	None
Dosage:	200 mg oral mifepristone, 2 doses 400 μ g oral misoprostol (1 and 3 days later)
Description of Patient	s: Pregnant women with gestations under 56 days LMP
Number of Patients	
Planned: Enrolled:	250 (100, Austria; 100, Sweden; 50, France) 102 (52, Sweden; 50, France)

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (IV) – SEPTEMBER 27, 2002 (CONT.)

Age Range:	18 - 45	
Gender:	female	
Race:	n/a	
Dropped:	0	
Completed:	102	
Safety Variables:	Frequency of blood transfusion hospitalization	n, administration of IV fluids and
Efficacy Variables:	Success, complete abortion wi	thout a surgical intervention
Safety Results:	Blood transfusion Administration IV fluids Hospitalization	= 0 = 0 = 0
Efficacy Results:	Success	= 100.0% (102/102)
	Results still preliminary.	

FDACDER000577

STATUS REPORT OF OTHER POST MARKETING STUDIES – ONGOING STUDIES STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (V) – SEPTEMBER 27, 2002

Study Title:		Mifepristone-Induced Cervical Softening F	rior to Hysteroscopy
Protocol Number:		290 (The Population Council is the sponso investigational drug was provided by Exel	r of this study. The gyn, Paris, France)
Study Phase:			
Date of Study Initiat	ion:	December 25, 2001	
Study Status (Ongoin	ng/Comp	leted/Discontinued): Ongoing	
Investigator(s)/Ștudy	Center((s):	
1)			(b) (4), (b) (6)
Objective:	The obj cervical hystero	ective of this study is to determine whether l softening and dilation in non-pregnant wo scopy for a medical indication.	mifepristone produces men who require
Study Design:	Randon	nized double blind placebo controlled study	1 Y
Drugs:			
Investigational Dru	g:	Mifegyne [®] from Exelgyn	
Control Drug:		Placebo	
Dosage:		200 mg oral mifepristone or placebo	
Description of Patien	ıts:	Normal non-pregnant women who are sche hysteroscopy for a medical indication.	eduled to undergo
Number of Patients			
Planned: Enrolled: Age Range: Gender: Race: Dropped: Completed:		60 (30 treated and 30 placebos) 56 18 - 50 female n/a 0 56	

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (V) – SEPTEMBER 27, 2002 (CONT.)

. -

- .

-- '

Safety Variables:	Follow normal safety evaluation. (The double blind code will be broken in case of an adverse event, which might threaten the women's health.)
Efficacy Variables:	As a result of the study treatment there may be a reduction in pain which normally occurs with a hysteroscopy procedure.
Safety Results:	No adverse events were reported.
Efficacy Results:	Since this is a double blind study its premature to determine the effectiveness of this study until the study is completed and the code is broken.

STATUS REPORT OF OTHER POST MARKETING STUDIES - ONGOING STUDIES

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (VI) - SEPTEMBER 27, 2002

Study Title:		A randomized study of buccal versus vaginal misoprostol administration 24 to 48 hours after mifepristone (200 mg) for abortion up to 56 days LMP	
Protocol Number:		302	
Study Phase:			
Date of Study Initia	tion:	December 31, 2001	
Study Status (Ongoi	ing/Con	mpleted/Discontinued): Ongoing	
Investigator(s)/Stud	y Cente	er(s):	
	1)	(b) (4), (b) (6)	
Objective:	To compare the safety, efficacy and acceptability of two regimens of mifepristone-misoprostol medical abortion, 800 μ g buccal misoprostol and 800 μ g vaginal misoprostol given 24 to 48 hours following administration of 200 mg mifepristone.		
Study Design:	Rand	lomized, comparative trial	
Drugs:			
Investigational Dri	ug:	Mifepristone + Misoprostol	
Control Drug:		None	
Dosage:		200 mg oral mifepristone, 800 μ g buccal or vaginal misoprostol (1 to 2 days later)	
Description of Patie	ints:	Pregnant women with gestations under 56 days LMP	
Number of Patients			
Planned:		442	
Enrolled:		141	
Age Range:		18 - 45	
Gender:		female	
Race:		n/a	

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (VI) – SEPTEMBER 27, 2002 (CONT.)

Ľ,

í.

Dropped: Completed:	0 141		
Safety Variables:	Frequency of blood transfusion	on, administrati	on of IV fluids and
Efficacy Variables:	Success, complete abortion without a surgical intervention		
Safety Results:	Blood transfusion Administration IV fluids Hospitalization	= 0 = 1 = 0	
Efficacy Results:	Success	=	
	95.5 (800 μg buccal misoprostol, n = 66) 90.0 (800 μg vaginal misoprostol, n = 67) Results still preliminary.		
			1

STATUS REPORT OF OTHER POST MARKETING STUDIES – ONGOING STUDIES

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (VII) - SEPTEMBER 27, 2002

Study Title:		Mifepristone followed in 24 to 48 hours by misoprostol for late first trimester abortion (between 9 and 12 weeks LMP)
Protocol Number:		313
Study Phase:		
Date of Study Initia	tion:	May 31, 2002
Study Status (Ongo	ing/Co	mpleted/Discontinued): Ongoing
Investigator(s)/Stud	ly Cente	er(s):
	1) 2)	(b) (4), (b) (6)
Objective:	To examine the safety, efficacy and acceptability of a regimen of 200 mg mifepristone and 800 μ g misoprostol (and up to two additional doses of 400 μ g oral misoprostol every 3 to 4 hours following the initial dose, where necessary) for termination of gestations 64 to 84 days LMP.	
Study Design:	Pros	pective, non-comparative trial
Drugs:		
Investigational Dr	ug:	Mifepristone + Misoprostol
Control Drug:		None
Dosage:		200 mg oral mifepristone, 800 μ g vaginal misoprostol 1 to 2 days later. Up to 2 additional doses of 400 μ g oral misoprostol every 3 to 4 hours following initial dose, where necessary.
Description of Patie	ents:	Pregnant women with gestations under 64 to 84 days LMP
Number of Patients		
Planned: Enrolled:		250 18
Age Range:		18 - 45
Gender:		female
Race:		n/a

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (VII) – SEPTEMBER 27, 2002 (CONT.)

Dropped:	0		
Completed:	18 (15, Rochester; 3, India))	
Safety Variables:	Frequency of blood transfusion, administration of IV fluids and hospitalization		
Efficacy Variables:	Success, complete abortion without a surgical intervention		
Safety Results:	Blood transfusion	= 0	
	Administration IV fluids	= 0	
	Hospitalization	= 0	

Efficacy Results:

Success

= 88.9% (16/18)

Results still preliminary.

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Wa	atch, Inc.	
Population Council/Danco Laboratories, LLC	Sept. 28, 2001	- Sept. 27, 2002
Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg		NDA 20-687

Ç.,

Ĺ

ATTACHMENT 15

STATUS REPORT OF OTHER POST MARKETING STUDIES - COMPLETED STUDIES

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (I) - SEPTEMBER 27, 2002

Study Title:	Mifepristone-misoprostol medical abortion: Simplifying the regimen
Protocol Number:	205-Vietnam
Study Phase:	
Date of Study Initiation:	January 1, 2001
Study Status (Ongoing/Cor	npleted/Discontinued): Completed
Investigator(s)/Study Cente	er(s):

Objective:	To investigate the safety, efficacy and acceptability of a simplified regimen of mifepristone-misoprostol medical abortion, including home administration of misoprostol and a lower dose of mifepristone (200 mg).
Study Design:	Prospective, non-comparative trial
Drugs:	
Investigational Drug:	Mifepristone + Misoprostol
Control Drug:	None

(b) (4), (b) (6)

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (I) – SEPTEMBER 27, 2002 (CONT.)

Dosage:	200 mg oral mifepristone, 400 µg oral misoprostol (2 days later)
Description of Patients:	Pregnant women with gestations under 56 days LMP
Number of Patients	
Planned:	1600
Enrolled:	1560.
Age Range:	18 - 45
Gender:	female
Race:	n/a
Dropped:	0
Completed:	1560
Safety Variables:	Frequency of blood transfusion, administration of IV fluids and hospitalization
Efficacy Variables:	Success, complete abortion without a surgical intervention
Safety Results:	Blood transfusion $= 0$
	Administration IV fluids $= 0$
	Hospitalization $= 0$
Efficacy Results:	Success
	Home users: 88.3 (1178)
	Clinic users: 93.3 (167)

Results still preliminary. Final results to be calculated in coming months.

.

Ċ

STATUS REPORT OF OTHER POST MARKETING STUDIES – COMPLETED STUDIES

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (II) – SEPTEMBER 27, 2002

Study Title:		Comparison of abortions induced by mifepriversus oral misoprostol up to 56 days gestati	stone followed by vaginal on
Protocol Number:		298	
Study Phase:			
Date of Study Initiation	on:	February 27, 2001	
Date of IND Submiss	ion:	June 19, 2001 (Submission Serial Number 2	16)
Study Status (Ongoin	ng/Com	pleted/Discontinued): Completed	
Investigator(s)/Study	Center((s):	
	1) 2) 3) 4) 5)		
Objective:	To con mifepri oral mi followi	pare the safety, efficacy and acceptability of stone-misoprostol medical abortion, 400 μ g soprostol and 800 μ g vaginal misoprostol giving administration of 200 mg mifepristone.	three regimens of oral misoprostol, 600 μg en 24 to 48 hours
Study Design:	Randor	nized, comparative trial	- - -
Drugs:			:
Investigational Drug	g:	Mifepristone + Misoprostol	
Control Drug:		None	
Dosage:		200 mg oral mifepristone, 400 μ g oral misop misoprostol or 800 μ g vaginal misoprostol (prostol or 600 μg oral 1 to 2 days later)
Description of Patien	its:	Pregnant women with gestations under 56 da	ays LMP

STUDY STATUS SUMMARY (II) – SEPTEMBER 27, 2002 (CONT.)

N	un	nb	er	of	P	atie	ents

ť,

T.

	Planned: Enrolled: Age Range: Gender: Race:	1500 971* 18 - 45 female n/a	
	Dropped: Completed:	0 971	
	Safety Variables:	Frequency of blood transfu hospitalization	sion, administration of IV fluids and
	Efficacy Variables:	Success, complete abortion	without a surgical intervention
	Safety Results:	Blood transfusion Administration IV fluids Hospitalization Death	= 1 = 2 = 1 = 1
·	Efficacy Results:	Success	-
		94.7 \pm 2.5 (400 µg oral mis 92.7 \pm 3.0 (600 µg oral mis 94.1 \pm 2.6 (800 µg vaginal Results still preliminary.	oprostol, n =302) soprostol, n=294) misoprostol, n=301)

* Please note the enrollment figure of 940 as reported in the last annual report for NDA 20-687 dated December 14, 2001 was a preliminary enrollment figure.

	Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch. Inc.
Population Council/Danco Labora	itories, LLC
Annual Report for Mifepristone Ta	ablets, 200 mg

POPULATION COUNCIL/DANCO LABORATORIES, LLC

ANNUAL REPORT FOR MIFEPRISTONE TABLETS, 200 mg

NDA # 20-687

TIME PERIOD COVERED: SEPTEMBER 28, 2001 – SEPTEMBER 27, 2002

This document constitutes trade secret and confidential commercial information exempt from public disclosure under 21 C.F.R. 20.61. Should FDA tentatively determine that any portion of this document is disclosable in response to a request under the Freedom of Information Act, Danco Laboratories, LLC requests immediate notification and an opportunity for consultation in accordance with 21 C.F.R. 20.45. Contact number is

	TABLE OF CONTENTS	Page
	Transmittal Form FDA 2252	2
9(a)	Summary of Significant New Information	3
9(b)	Distribution Data	4
9(c)	Labeling	5
9(d)	Chemistry, Manufacturing and Controls Changes	6
	9(d) 1.Drug Substance 9(d) 1.1. Specifications and Test Meth 9(d) 1.2. Manufacturing Procedure 9(d) 1.3. Packaging Procedure 9(d) 1.4. Stability	6 ods 6 6 6 6
	9(d) 2. Drug Product 9(d) 2.1. Specifications and Test Meth 9(d) 2.2. Formulation 9(d) 2.3. Manufacturers of Inactive Ing 9(d) 2.4. Manufacturing Procedure 9(d) 2.5. Packaging Procedure 9(d) 2.6. Stability Data	7 ods 7 redients 7 7 7 8
9(e)	Non-Clinical Laboratory Studies 9(e) 1. Unpublished Reports 9(e) 2. Published Reports	9 9 9
9(f)	Clinical Data 9(f) 1. Published Clinical Trials of the Drug 9(f) 2. Summaries of Completed Unpublished Clinic 9(f) 3. Other Clinical Trials	10 10 al Trials 10 10
9(g)	Status Reports - Post Marketing Studies 9(g) 1. Status Reports – Post Marketing Study Commitments 9(g) 2. Other Post Marketing Studies	11 11
		11

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc. Population Council/Danco Laboratories, LLC

Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg

;

.

Sept. 28, 2001 - Sept. 27, 2002

NDA 20-687

9(a) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT NEW INFORMATION

ę,

đ

A "Dear Health Care Provider" letter, developed with the FDA was sent to all current Mifeprex[®] providers and to new providers thereafter. See <u>Attachment 1</u>.

During the reporting period, Supplement S-001 was filed to extend the expiration dating of Mifeprex from 18 months to 24 months. This Supplement was approved on March 29, 2002.

The approval letter for this product waived the pediatric requirement so no information on that subject is reported.

Danco has received information, from Laboratoires Exelgyn and from certain clinical investigators conducting studies under their own INDs, which, although not required to be reported as periodic or 15-day reports, may constitute "significant new information...that might affect the safety...of the drug product." That information is included as Attachment 2 and Attachment 3 respectively.

9(b) DISTRIBUTION DATA

During the period of this report, a total of ^{(b) (4)} batches were released for distribution. The standard theoretical batch size is ^{(b) (4)} tablets (equivalent to ^{(b) (4)} patient packs containing three tablets each). The NDC number for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg is 64875-001-03. A summary of the commercial distribution data for the reporting period is tabulated below.

DISTRIBUTION DATA FOR MIFEPRISTONE TABLETS, 200 mg

NDC 64875-001-03	# of patient packs (3 tablets/pack)
# patient packs shipped	(b) (4)
# patient packs returned (short dating)	
Net # shipped	(b) (4)

9(c) LABELING

There were no changes in the labeling during the reporting period.

Immediately following are samples of the printed foil, package insert, package carton, patient brochure and medication guide.

NDA 20-687 Sample of Aluminum Foil September 2002

MIFEPREX[™] (mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg For Oral Administration Only

If Mifeprex* results in incomplete abortion, surgical intervention may be necessary. Prescribers should determine in advance whether they will provide such care themselves or through other providers. Prescribers should also give patients clear instructions on whom to call and what to do in the event of an emergency following administration of Mifeprex.

Prescribers should make sure that patients receive and have an opportunity to discuss the Medication Guide and the PATIENT AGREEMENT.

DESCRIPTION

Mifeprex tablets each contain 200 mg of mifepristone, a synthetic steroid with antiprogestational effects. The tablets are light yellow in color, cylindrical and biconvex, and are intended for oral administration only. The tablets include the inactive ingredients colloidal silica anhydrous, com starch, povidone, microcrystalline cellulose, and magnesium stearate.

Mifepristone is a substituted 19-nor steroid compound chemically designated as 118-[p-(Dimethylamino)phenyl]-178-hydroxy-17- (1-propynyl)estra-4,9-dien-3-one. Its empirical formula is $C_{29}H_{35}NO_2$. Its structural formula is:



The compound is a yellow powder with a molecular weight of 429.6 and a melting point of 192-196°C. It is very soluble in methanol, chloroform and acetone and poorly soluble in water, hexane and isopropyl ether.

* Mifeprex is a trademark of Danco Laboratories, LLC

CLINICAL PHARMACOLOGY

Pharmacodynamic Activity

The anti-progestational activity of mifepristone results from competitive interaction with progesterone at progesterone-receptor sites. Based on studies with various oral doses in several animal species (mouse, rat, rabbit and monkey), the compound inhibits the activity of endogenous or exogenous progesterone. The termination of pregnancy results.

Doses of 1 mg/kg or greater of mifepristone have been shown to antagonize the endometrial and myometrial effects of progesterone in women. During pregnancy, the compound sensitizes the myometrium to the contraction-inducing activity of prostaglandins.

Mifepristone also exhibits antiglucocorticoid and weak antiandrogenic activity. The activity of the glucocorticoid dexamethasone in rats was inhibited following doses of 10 to 25 mg/kg of mifepristone. Doses of 4.5 mg/kg or greater in human beings resulted in a compensatory elevation of adrenocorticotropic hormone (ACTH) and cortisol. Antiandrogenic activity was observed in rats following repeated administration of doses from 10 to 100 mg/kg.

Pharmacokinetics and Metabolism

Absorption

Following oral administration of a single dose of 600 mg, mifepristone is rapidly absorbed, with a peak plasma concentration of 1.98 mg/l occurring approximately 90 minutes after ingestion. The absolute bioavailability of a 20 mg oral dose is 69%.

Distribution

Mifepristone is 98% bound to plasma proteins, albumin and α_1 -acid glycoprotein. Binding to the latter protein is saturable, and the drug displays nonlinear kinetics with respect to plasma concentration and clearance. Following a distribution phase, elimination of mifepristone is slow at first (50% eliminated between 12 and 72 hours) and then becomes more rapid with a terminal elimination half-life of 18 hours.

Metabolism

Metabolism of mifepristone is primarily via pathways involving Ndemethylation and terminal hydroxylation of the 17-propynyl chain. In vitro studies have shown that CYP450 3A4 is primarily responsible for the metabolism. The three major metabolites identified in humans are: (1) RU 42 633, the most widely found in plasma, is the N-monodemethylated metabolite; (2) RU 42 848, which results from the loss of two methyl groups from the 4-dimethylaminophenyl in position 118; and (3) RU 42 698, which results from terminal hydroxylation of the 17-propynyl chain.

Excretion

By 11 days after a 600 mg dose of tritiated compound, 83% of the drug has been accounted for by the feces and 9% by the urine. Serum levels are undetectable by 11 days.

Special Populations

The effects of age, hepatic disease and renal disease on the safety, efficacy and pharmacokinetics of mifepristone have not been investigated.

Clinical Studies

Obtained via FO(shew hild initial. Watch officitie U.S. clinical trials and from two French trials of mifepristone are reported below. The U.S. trials provide safety data on 859 women and efficacy data on 827 women with gestation durations of 49 days or less (dated from the first day of the last menstrual period). In the two French clinical trials, safety evaluable data are available for 1800 women, while efficacy information is available for 1681 of these women. Success was defined as the complete expulsion of the products of conception without the need for surgical intervention. The overall rates of success and failure, shown by reason for failure, for the U.S. and French studies appear in Table 1.

Tailure, for the U.S. and French studies appear in Table 1. In the U.S. trials, 92.1% of the 827 subjects had a complete medical abortion, as shown in Table 1. In 52 women (6.3%) expulsion occurred within two days, and resulted from the action of mifepristone (600 mg) alone, unaided by misoprostol, an analog of prostaglandin E₁. All other women without an apparent expulsion took a 400 µg dose of misoprostol two days after taking mifepristone. Many women (44.1%) in the U.S. trials expelled the products of conception within four hours after taking misoprostol and 62.8% experienced expulsion within 24 hours after the misoprostol administration. There were 65 women (7.9%) who received surgical interventions: 13 (1.6%) were medically indicated interventions during the study period, mostly for excessive bleeding; five (0.6%) interventions occurred at the patient's request; 39 women (4.7%) had incomplete abortions at the end of the study protocol; and eight (1.0%) had ongoing pregnancies at the end of the study protocol.

Women who participated in the U.S. trials reflect the racial and ethnic composition of American women. The majority of women (71.4%) were Caucasian, while 11.3% were African American, 10.9% were East Asian, and 4.7% were Hispanic. A small percentage (1.7%) belonged to other racial or ethnic groups. Women aged 18 to 45 were enrolled in the trials. Nearly two-thirds (66.0%) of the women were under 30 years old with a mean age of 27 years.

In the French trials, complete medical abortion occurred in 95.5% of the 1681 subjects, as shown in Table 1. In 89 women (5.3%), complete abortion occurred within two days of taking mifepristone (600 mg). About half of the women (50.3%) in the French trials expelled the products of conception during the first four hours immediately following administration of misoprostol and 72.3% experienced expulsion within 24 hours after taking misoprostol. In total, 4.5% of women in the French trials ultimately received surgical intervention for excessive bleeding, incomplete abortions, or ongoing pregnancies at the end of the protocol.

Table 1

Outcome Following Treatment with Mifepristone and Misoprostol in the U.S. and French Trials

	U.S	Triais	Frenc	h Trials
	N	%	N	%
Complete medical abortion	762	92.1	1605	95.5
Timing of expulsion				
Before second visit	52	(6.3)	89	(5.3)
During second visit				
- less than 4 hrs after misoprostol	365	(44.1)	846	(50.3)
After second visit				
- greater than 4 hrs but less than 24 hrs				
after misoprostol	155	(18.7)	370	(22.0)
- greater than 24 hrs after misoprostol	68	(8.2)	145	(8.6)
Time of expulsion unknown	122	(14.8)	155	(9.2)
Surgical Intervention	65	7.9	76	4.5
Reason for surgery				
Medically necessary interventions during				
the study period	13	(1.6)	NA	(NA)
Patient request	5	(0.6)	NA	(NA)
Treatment of bloeding during study	NA	(NA)	6	(0.3)
Incomplete expulsion at study end	39	(4.7)	48	(2.9)
Ongoing pregnancy at study end	8	(1.0)	22	(1.3)
Total	827	100	1681	100

Note: Mifapristone 600 mg oral was administered on Day 1, misoprostol 400 µg oral was given on Day 3 (second visit).

INDICATION AND USAGE

Mifeprex is indicated for the medical termination of intrauterine pregnancy through 49 days' pregnancy. For purposes of this treatment, pregnancy is dated from the first day of the last menstrual period in a presumed 28 day cycle with ovulation occurring at mid-cycle. The duration of pregnancy may be determined from menstrual history and by clinical examination. Ultrasonographic scan should be used if the duration of pregnancy is uncertain, or if ectopic pregnancy is suspected.

Any intrauterine device ("IUD") should be removed before treatment with Mifeprex begins.

Patients taking Mifeprex must take 400 µg of misoprostol two days after taking mifepristone unless a complete abortion has already been confirmed before that time (see DOSAGE AND ADMINISTRATION).

Pregnancy termination by surgery is recommended in cases when Mifeprex and misoprostol fail to cause termination of intrauterine pregnancy (see PRECAUTIONS).

CONTRAINDICATIONS

Administration of Mifeprex and misoprostol for the termination of pregnancy (the "treatment procedure") is contraindicated in patients with any one of the following conditions:
- Confirmed or suspected ectopic pregnancy or undiagnosed adnexal mass (the treatment procedure will not be the streatment procedure will not be streat in to terminate an ectopic pregnancy); IUD in place (see INDICATION AND USAGE); Chronic adrenal failure;

- Concurrent long-term corticosteroid therapy; History of allergy to mifepristone, misoprostol or other 2
- prostaglandin; Hemorrhagic disorders or concurrent anticoagulant therapy; Inherited porphyrias.

Because it is important to have access to appropriate medical care if an emergency develops, the treatment procedure is contraindicated if a patient does not have adequate access to medical facilities equipped to provide emergency treatment of incomplete abortion, blood transfu-sions, and emergency resuscitation during the period from the first visit until discharged by the administering physician.

Mifeprex also should not be used by any patient who may be unable to understand the effects of the treatment procedure or to comply with its regimen. Patients should be instructed to review the Medication Guide and the PATIENT AGREEMENT provided with Mileprex carefully and should be given a copy of the product label for their review. Patients should discuss their understanding of these materials with their health care providers, and retain the Medication Guide for later reference (see PRECAUTIONS).

WARNINGS (see CONTRAINDICATIONS)

Vaginal bleeding occurs in almost all patients during the treatment pro-cedure. According to data from the U.S. and French trials, women should expect to experience bleeding or spotting for an average of nine to 16 days, while up to 8% of all subjects may experience some type of bleeding for 30 days or more. Bleeding was reported to last for 69 days in one patient in the French trials. In general the duration of bleeding and spotting increased as the duration of the pregnancy increased.

In some cases, excessive bleeding may require treatment by vasocon-strictor drugs, curettage, administration of saline infusions, and/or blood transfusions. In the U.S. trials, 4.8% of subjects received administration of uterotonic medications and nine women (1.0%) received intravenous fluids. Vasoconstrictor drugs were used in 4.3% of all subjects in the French trials, and in 5.5% of women there was a decrease in hemo-globin of more than 2 g/dL. Blood transfusions were administered in one of 859 subjects in the U.S. trials and in two of 1800 subjects in the French trials. Since heavy bleeding requiring curettage occurs in about French trials. Since heavy bleeding requiring curettage occurs in about 1% of patients, special care should be given to patients with hemostatic disorders, hypocoagulability, or severe anemia

2. Confirmation of Pregnancy Termination

Patients should be scheduled for and return for a follow-up visit at approximately 14 days after administration of mifepristone to confirm that the pregnancy is completely terminated and to assess the degree of bleeding. Vaginal bleeding is not evidence of the termination of pregnancy. Termination can be confirmed by clinical examination or pleg-sonographic scan. Lack of bleeding following treatment, however, usu-ally indicates failure. Medical abortion failures should be managed with surgical termination.

PRECAUTIONS

General

Mifeprex is available only in single dose packaging. Administration must be under the supervision of a qualified physician (see DOSAGE AND ADMINISTRATION).

The use of Mifeprex is assumed to require the same preventive mea-sures as those taken prior to and during surgical abortion to prevent rhesus immunization.

There are no data on the safety and efficacy of mifepristone in women with chronic medical conditions such as cardiovascular, hypertensive, hepatic, respiratory or renal disease; insulin-dependent diabetes mellitus; severe anemia or heavy smoking. Women who are more than 35 years of age and who also smoke 10 or more cigarettes per day should be treated with caution because such patients were generally excluded from clinical trials of mifepristone.

Although there is no clinical evidence, the effectiveness of Mifepren may be lower if misoprostol is administered more than two days after mifepristone administration.

Information for Patients

Patients should be fully advised of the treatment procedure and its effects. Patients should be given a copy of the Medication Guide and the PATIENT AGREEMENT. (Additional copies of the Medication, Guide and the PATIENT AGREEMENT are available by contacting Danco Laboratories at 1-877-4 Early Option) (1-877-432-7596). Patients should be advised to review both the Medication Guide and the DATTENT AGREEMENT are available up to more the more than the total of the total should be advised to review both the Medication Guide and the DATTENT AGREEMENT are available up to more the total of the total should be advised to review both the Medication Guide and the DATTENT AGREEMENT are available up to more the total should be advised to review both the Medication Guide and the DATTENT are available up to a more the total should be advised to review both the Medication Guide and the DATTENT are available up to a more the total should be advised to review both the Medication Guide and the DATTENT are available up to a more the total should be advised to review both the Medication Guide and the DATTENT are available up to a more the total should be advised to review both the Medication Guide and the DATTENT are available up to a more the total should be advised to review both the Medication Guide and the DATTENT are available up to a more the total should be advised to review both the Medication Guide and the DATTENT are available up to a more the total should be advised t PATIENT AGREEMENT, and should be given the opportunity to dis-cuss them and obtain answers to any questions they may have. Each patient must understand:

- the necessity of completing the treatment schedule, including a follow-up visit approximately 14 days after taking Mifeprex; that vaginal bleeding and uterine cramping probably will occur,
- that prolonged or heavy vaginal bleeding is not proof of a
- complete expulsion; that if the treatment fails, there is a risk of fetal malformation; that medical abortion treatment failures are managed by
- surgical termination; and the steps to take in an emergency situation, including pre-cise instructions and a telephone number that she can call if she has any problems or concerns.

Another pregnancy can occur following termination of pregnancy and before resumption of normal menses. Contraception can be initiated as soon as the termination of the pregnancy has been confirmed, or before the woman resumes sexual intercourse.

Patient information is included with each package of Mifeprex (see Medication Guide).

Laboratory Tests

Clinical examination is necessary to confirm the complete termination of pregnancy after the treatment procedure. Changes in quantitative human Chorionic Gonadotropin (hCG) levels will not be decisive until at least 10 days after the administration of Mifeprex. A continuing pregnancy can be confirmed by ultrasonographic scan.

The existence of debris in the uterus following the treatment procedure will not necessarily require surgery for its removal.

Decreases in hemoglobin concentration, hematocrit and red blood cell count occur in some women who bleed heavily. Hemoglobin decreas of more than 2 g/dL occurred in 5.5% of subjects during the French clinical trials of mifepristone and misoprostol.

Clinically significant changes in serum enzyme (serum glutamic oxaloacetic transaminase (SGOT), serum glutamic pyruvic transaminase (SGPT), alkaline phosphatase, gamma-glutamyltransferase (GT)) activities were rarely reported.

Drug Interactions

Although specific drug or food interactions with mifepristone have not been studied, on the basis of this drug's metabolism by CYP 3A4, it is possible that ketoconazole, itraconazole, erythromycin, and grapefruit juice may inhibit its metabolism (increasing serum levels of mifepris-tone). Furthermore, rifampin, dexamethasone, St. John's Wort, and cerinduce mifepristone metabolism (lowering serum levels of mifepristone).

Based on in vitro inhibition information, coadministration of mifepristone may lead to an increase in serum levels of drugs that are CYP 3A4 substrates. Due to the slow elimination of mifepristone from the body, such interaction may be observed for a prolonged period after its admin-istration. Therefore, caution should be exercised when mifepristone is administered with drugs that are CYP 3A4 substrates and have narrow therapeutic range, including some agents used during general anesthesia.

Carcinogenesis, Mutagenesis, Impairment of Fertility

No long-term studies to evaluate the carcinogenic potential of mifepris-tone have been performed. Results from studies conducted *in vitro* and in animals have revealed no genotoxic potential for mifepristone. Among the tests carried out were: Ames test with and without metabolic activation; gene conversion test in Saccharomyces cerevisiae D4 cells; forward mutation in Schizosaccharomyces pompe P1 cells; induc-tion of unscheduled DNA synthesis in cultured HeLa cells; induction of chromosome aberrations in CHO cells; in vitro test for gene mutation in V79 Chinese hamster lung cells; and micronucleus test in mice.

The pharmacological activity of mifepristone disrupts the estrus cycle of animals, precluding studies designed to assess effects on fertility during drug administration. Three studies have been performed in rats to deter-mine whether there were residual effects on reproductive function after termination of the drug exposure.

In rats, administration of the lowest of al dose of 0.3 mg/kg/day caused severe disruption of the estrus cycles for the three weeks of the treatment period. Following resumption of the estrus cycle, animals were mated and no effect on reproductive performance was observed. In a neonatal exposure study in rats, the administration of a subcutaneous dose of mifepristone up to 100 mg/kg on the first day after birth had no adverse effect on future reproductive function in males or females. The onset of puberty was observed to be slightly premature in female rats neonatally exposed to mifepristone. In a separate study in rats, oviduct and ovary malformations in female rats, delayed male puberty, deficient male sexual behavior, reduced testicular size, and lowered ejaculation frequency were noted after exposure to mifepristone (1 mg every other day) as neonates.

Pregnancy

Mifepristone is indicated for use in the termination of pregnancy (through 49 days' pregnancy) and has no other approved indication for use during pregnancy.

Teratogenic Effects

Human Data

Over 620,000 women in Europe have taken mifepristone in combination with a prostaglandin to terminate pregnancy. Among these 620,000 women, about 415,000 have received mifepristone together with misoprostol. As of May 2000 a total of 82 cases have been reported in which women with on-going pregnancies after using mifepristone alone or mifepristone followed by misoprostol declined to have a surgical procedure at that time. These cases are summarized in Table 2.

20

Table 2 Reported Cases (as of May 2000) of On-going Pregnancies Not Terminated by Surgical Abortion at the End of Trestment with Mifepristone Alone or with Mifepristone-Misoprostol

	Mifepristone Alone	Mifepristone- Misoprostol	Total .	
Subsequently had surgical abortion	3	7	10	
No abnormalities detected	2	7	9	
Abnormalities detected (sirenomelia, cleft palate)	1	0	1	
Subsequently resulted in live birth	13	13	26	
No abnormalities detected at birth	13	13	26	
Abnormalities detected at birth	0	0	0	
	Subsequently had surgical abortion No abnormalities detected Abnormalities detected (sirenomelia, eleft palate) Subsequently resulted in live birth No abnormalities detected at birth Abnormalities detected at birth	Mifepristone Alone Subsequently had surgical abortion 3 No abnormalities detected 2 Abnormalities detected 1 (sirenomelia, cleft palate) 13 No abnormalities detected at birth 13 No abnormalities detected at birth 0	Mifepristone Alone Mifepristone- Misoprostol Subsequently had surgical abortion 3 7 No abnormalities detected 2 7 Abnormalities detected 1 0 (sirenomelia, cleft palate) 3 13 Subsequently resulted in live birth 13 13 No abnormalities detected at birth 0 0	Mifepriston AloneMifepriston- MisoprostolTotal.Subsequently had surgical abortion3710No abnormalities detected279Abnormalities detected101(sirenomelia, cleft palate)131326No abnormalities detected at birth131326Abnormalities detected at birth000

FDACDER000223

Several reports in the literature indicate that prostaglandins, including misoprostol, may have teratogenic effects in human beings. Skull defects, cranial nerve palsies, delayed growth and psycholatained via opment, facial malformation and limb defects have all been reported opment. A facial malformation and limb defects have all been reported to the second secon after exposure during the first trimester.

Animal Data

Teratology studies in mice, rats and rabbits at doses of 0.25 to 4.0 mg/kg (less than 1/100 to approximately 1/3 the human exposure level based on body surface area) were carried out. Because of the antiprogestational activity of mifepristone, fetal losses were much higher than in control animals. Skull deformities were detected in rabbit studies at approximately 1/6 the human exposure, although no teratogenic effects of mifepristone have been observed to date in rats or mice. These deformities were most likely due to the mechanical effects of uterine contractions resulting from decreased progesterone levels.

Nonteratogenic Effects

The indication for use of Mifeprex in conjunction with misoprostol is for the termination of pregnancy through 49 days' duration of pregnancy (as dated from the first day of the last menstrual period). These drugs together disrupt pregnancy by causing decidual necrosis, myometrial contractions and cervical softening, leading to the expulsion of the products of conception.

Nursing Mothers

It is not known whether mifepristone is excreted in human milk. Many hormones with a similar chemical structure, however, are excreted in breast milk. Since the effects of mifepristone on infants are unknown, breast-feeding women should consult with their health care provider to decide if they should discard their breast milk for a few days following administration of the medications.

Pediatric Use

Safety and effectiveness in pediatric patients have not been established.

ADVERSE REACTIONS

The treatment procedure is designed to induce the vaginal bleeding and uterine cramping necessary to produce an abortion. Nearly all of the women who receive Mifeprex and misoprostol will report adverse reactions, and many can be expected to report more than one such reaction. About 90% of patients report adverse reactions following administration of misoprostol on day three of the treatment procedure. Those adverse events that occurred with a frequency greater than 1% in the U.S. and French trials are shown in Table 3.

Bleeding and cramping are expected consequences of the action of Mifeprex as used in the treatment procedure. Following administration Mifeprex as used in the treatment procedure. Following administration of mifepristone and misoprostol in the French clinical studies, 80 to 90% of women reported bleeding more heavily than they do during a heavy menstrual period (see WARNINGS, Bleeding for additional inform-ation). Women also typically experience abdominal pain, including uterine cramping. Other commonly reported side effects were nausea, vomiting and diarrhea. Pelvic pain, fainting, headache, dizziness, and asthenia occurred rarely. Some adverse reactions reported during the four hours following administration of misoprostol were judged by women as being more severe than others: the percentage of women whe women as being more severe than others: the percentage of women who considered any particular adverse event as severe ranged from 2 to 35% in the U.S. and French trials. After the third day of the treatment procedure, the number of reports of adverse reactions declined progressively in the French trials, so that by day 14, reports were rare except for reports of bleeding and spotting.

Table 3

Type of Reported Adverse Events Following Administrat

Mifepristone and Misoprostol in the U.S.	and French Tri	als* (percentages)
T - 1	U.S. Trials	French Trials
Abdominal Pain (cramping)	96	NA
Uterine cramping	NA	83
Nausea	61	43
Headache	31	2
Vomiting	26	18
Diarthea	20	12
Dizziness	12	1
Fatigue	10	NA
Back pain	9	NA
Uterine hemorrhage	5	NA
Fever	4	NA
Viral infections	4	NA
Vaginitis	3	NA
Rigors (chills/shaking)	3	NA
Dyspepsia	3	NA
Insomnia	3	NA
Asthenia	2	1
Leg pain	2	NA
Anxiety	2	NA
Anemia	2	NA
Leukorrhea	2	NA
Sinusitis	2	NA
Syncope	1	NA
Decrease in hemoglobin greater than 2 g/dL	NA	6

Only adverse reactions with incidence >1% are included.

OVERDOSAGE

Pelvic pair

Fainting

No serious adverse reactions were reported in tolerance studies in

2

2

NA

NA

ed for termination of pregnancy).

DOSAGE AND ADMINISTRATION

Treatment with Mifeprex and misoprostol for the termination of preg-nancy requires three office visits by the patient. Mifeprex should be pre-scribed only by physicians who have read and understood the prescrib-ing information. Mifeprex may be administered only in a clinic, medical office, or hospital, by or under the supervision of a physician, able to assess the gestational age of an embryo and to diagnose ectopic preg-nancies. Buyeristic and the solution to the supervision of a physician intervaling in the matrix of the solution nancies. Physicians must also be able to provide surgical intervention in cases of incomplete abortion or severe bleeding, or have made plans to provide such care through others, and be able to assure patient access to medical facilities equipped to provide blood transfusions and resuscitation, if necessary.

Day One: Mifeprex Administration

Patients must read the Medication Guide and read and sign the PATIENT AGREEMENT before Mifeprex is administered

Three 200 mg tablets (600 mg) of Mifeprex are taken in a single oral dose.

Day Three: Misoprostol Administration

The patient returns to the healthcare provider two days after ingesting Mifeprex. Unless abortion has occurred and has been confirmed by clinical examination or ultrasonographic scan, the patient takes two 200 µg tablets (400 µg) of misoprostol orally.

During the period immediately following the administration of miso-prostol, the patient may need medication for cramps or gastrointestinal symptoms (see ADVERSE REACTIONS). The patient should be given instructions on what to do if significant discomfort, excessive bleeding or other adverse reactions occur and should be given a phone number to call if she has questions following the administration of the misoprostol. In addition, the name and phone number of the physician who will be handling emergencies should be provided to the patient.

Day 14: Post-Treatment Examination

Patients will return for a follow-up visit approximately 14 days after the administration of Mifeprex. This visit is very important to confirm by clinical examination or ultrasonographic scan that a complete termination of pregnancy has occurred.

According to data from the U.S. and French studies, women should According to data notif the 0.0, and relater should be determined in the 16 expect to experience bleeding or spotting for an average of nine to 16 days. Up to 8% of women may experience some type of bleeding for more than 30 days. Persistence of heavy or moderate vaginal bleeding at this visit, however, could indicate an incomplete abortion.

Patients who have an ongoing pregnancy at this visit have a risk of fetal malformation resulting from the treatment. Surgical termination is recommended to manage medical abortion treatment failures (see PRE-CAUTIONS, Pregnancy).

Adverse events, such as hospitalization, blood transfusion, ongoing pregnancy, or other major complications following the use of Mifeprex and misoprostol must be reported to Danco Laboratories. Please provide a brief clinical and administrative synopsis of any such adverse events in writing to:

Medical Director Danco Laboratories, LLC P.O. Box 4816 New York, NY 10185 1-877-4 Early Option (1-877-432-7596)

For immediate consultation 24 hours a day, 7 days a week with an expert in mifepristone, call Danco Laboratories at 1-877-4 Early Option (1-877-432-7596).

HOW SUPPLIED

Mifeprex will be supplied only to licensed physicians who sign and return a Prescriber's Agreement. Distribution of Mifeprex will be sub-ject to specific requirements imposed by the distributor, including pro-cedures for storage, dosage tracking, damaged product returns and other matters. Mifeprex is a prescription drug, although it will not be avail-able to the public through licensed pharmacies.

Mifeprex is supplied as light yellow, cylindrical, bi-convex tablets imprinted on one side with "MF." Each tablet contains 200 mg of mifepristone. Tablets are packaged in single dose blister packets con-taining three tablets and are supplied in individual cartons (National Drug Code 6487500103).

Store at 25 °C (77 °F); excursions permitted to 15-30 °C (59-86 °F) [see USP Controlled Room Temperature].

Manufactured for: Danco Laboratories, LLC P.O. Box 4816 New York, NY 10185 1-877-4 Early Option (1-877-432-7596) www.earlyoptionpill.com

MEDICATION GUIDE Obtained via FOIA by

Mifeprex (MIF-eh-prex) (mifepristone)

Read this information carefully before taking Mifeprex and misoprostol. It will help you understand how the treatment works. This Medication Guide does not take the place of talking with your health care provider (provider).

What is the most important information I should know about Mifeprex?

Mifeprex is used to end an early pregnancy. It is not approved for ending later pregnancies. Early pregnancy means it is 49 days (7 weeks) or less since your last menstrual period began. By using Mifeprex, you probably will not need a surgical procedure to end your pregnancy

When you use Mifeprex, you also need to take another medicine called misoprostol. You take misoprostol 2 days after you take Mifeprex.

You need to sign a statement (PATIENT AGREEMENT). Before you get Micherex, you will need to read and understand the information in this Medication Guide. Then you will need to sign a statement that you have decided to end your pregnancy.

You must visit your provider on Day 1, Day 3, and about Day 14. See the section called "How should I take Mifeprex?" for information about what happens at each visit. If you do not follow all the steps in "How should I take Mifeprex?" you will not know if your pregnancy has ended.

What to do if you are still pregnant after Mifeprex or Mifeprex with misoprostol treatment. If you are still pregnant, your provider will talk with you about the other choices you have, including a surgical proce-dure to end your pregnancy. There is a chance that there may be birth defects if the pregnancy is not ended.

Symptoms to expect. This treatment causes cramping and bleeding. Usually, these symptoms mean that the treatment is working. But sometimes you can get cramping and bleeding and still be pregnant. This is why you must return to your provider on Day 3 and about Day 14.

If you are not already bleeding after taking Mifeprex, you probably will begin to bleed once you take misoprostol. This is a medicine you take on Day 3. Bleeding or spotting can be expected for an average of 9-16 days and may last for up to 30 days. Your bleeding may be similar to, or greater than, a normal heavy period. You may see blood clots and tissue that come from your uterus. This is an expected part of ending the pregnancy.

Heavy bleeding and the need for surgery. In about 1 out of 100 women, bleeding can be so heavy that it requires a surgical procedure (curettage) to stop it. This is why you must talk with your provider about what to do if you need emergency care to stop heavy and possibly dangerous bleeding.

Before you take Mifeprex. Your provider will give you a telephone number to call if you have any questions, concerns, or problems. Your provider will also give you the name and phone number of who will handle emergencies

Talk with your provider. You and your provider should discuss the benefits and risks for you of using Mifeprex.

What is Mifeprex?

Mifeprex blocks a hormone needed for your pregnancy to continue. When used together with another medicine called misoprostol, Mifeprex ends your pregnancy. About 5-8 out of 100 women taking Mifeprex will need a surgical procedure to end the pregnancy or to stop too much bleeding.

Who should not take Mifeprex?

Some women should not take Mifeprex. Do not take it if:

- It has been more than 49 days (7 weeks) since your last menstrual period began.
- You have an IUD. It must be taken out before you take Mifeprex.
- Your provider has told you that you have a pregnancy outside the uterus (ectopic pregnancy).
- You have problems with your adrenal glands (chronic adrenal failure).
- You take a medicine to thin your blood.
- You have a bleeding problem
- You take certain steroid medicines.
- You cannot return for the next 2 visits.
- You cannot easily get emergency medical help in the 2 weeks after you take Mifeprex.
- You are allergic to mifepristone, misoprostol, or medicines that contain misoprostol, such as Cytotec or Arthrotec.

Tell your provider about all your medical conditions to find out if you can take Mifeprex. Also, tell your provider if you smoke at least 10 cigarettes a day.

How should I take Mifeprex?

Day 1 at your provider's office: Read this Medication Guide

- Discuss the benefits and risks of using Mifeprex to end your pregnancy. If you decide Mifeprex is right for you, sign the PATIENT
- AGREEMENT.
- After getting a physical exam, swallow 3 tablets of Mifeprex.
- Day 3 at your provider's office:
- Your provider will check to see if you are still pregnant. If you are still pregnant, take 2 misoprostol tablets.
- Misoprostol may cause cramps, nausea, diarrhea, and other symptoms. Your health care provider may send you home with medicines for these symptoms.
- About Day 14 at your provider's office:
 This follow-up visit is very important. You must return to the provider about 2 weeks after you took Mifeprex to be sure you are well and that you are not pregnant.
- Your provider will check whether your pregnancy has com-pletely ended. If it has not ended, there is a chance that there may be birth defects. If you are still pregnant, your provider will talk with you about the other choices you have, including a surgical procedure to end your pregnancy.

What should I avoid while taking Mifeprex and misoprostol?

You should not take certain other medicines, because they may interfere with the treatment. Ask your provider about what medicines you can take for pain. Do not take any other prescription or non-prescription medicines (including herbal medicines or supplements) at any time dur-ing the treatment period without first asking your provider about them.

If you are breastfeeding at the time you take Mifeprex and misoprostol, discuss with your provider if you should stop using your breast milk for a few days.

What are the possible side effects of using Mifeprex?

See the section "What is the most important information I should know about Mifeprex?" for symptoms to expect.

In some cases, bleeding can be very heavy. In a very few cases, this bleeding will need to be stopped by a surgical procedure. Contact your provider right away if you bleed enough to soak through two thick full-size sanitary pads per hour for two consecutive hours or if you are concerned about heavy bleeding.

Other side effects of the treatment include diarrhea, nausea, vomiting, headache, dizziness, back pain, and tiredness. These side effects lessen after Day 3 and are usually gone by Day 14. Your provider will tell you how to manage any pain or other side effects.

If you are worried about any side effects you have, talk with your provider about them. Your provider will give you a telephone number to call if you have any questions, concerns, or problems. Your provider's telephone number is

When should I begin birth control?

You can become pregnant again right after your pregnancy ends. If you do not want to become pregnant again, start using birth control as soon as your pregnancy ends or before you start having sexual intercourse again.

Medicines are sometimes prescribed for purposes other than those listed in a Medication Guide. For more information, ask your provider for the information about Mifeprex that is written for health care professionals. Ask your provider if you have any questions.

*

This Medication Guide has been approved by the US Food and Drug Administration.

Obtained Nie Elektrywhydigial Watch, Inc. Mifeprex (mifepristone) Tablets

- 1. I have read the attached Medication Guide for using
- Mifeprex and misoprostol to end my pregnancy. 2. I discussed the information with my health care provider

(provider)

- 3. My provider answered all my questions and told me about the risks and benefits of using Mifeprex and misoprostol to end my pregnancy.
- 4. I believe I am no more than 49 days (7 weeks) pregnant. 5. I understand that I will take Mifeprex in my provider's
- office.
- 6. I understand that I will take misoprostol in my provider's office two days after I take Mifeprex (Day 3). 7. My provider gave me advice on what to do if I develop
- My provider gave me advice on what to do if I develop heavy bleeding or need emergency care due to the treatment.
 Bleeding and cramping do not mean that my pregnancy has ended. Therefore, I must return to my provider's office in about 2 weeks (about Day 14) after I take Mifeprex to be sure that my pregnancy has ended and that I am well.
 I know that, in some cases, the treatment will not work. This happens in about 5 to 8 women out of 100 who use this treatment
- treatment.
- 10. I understand that if my pregnancy continues after any part of the treatment, there is a chance that there may be birth defects. If my pregnancy continues after treatment with Mifeprex and misoprostol, I will talk with my provider about my choices, which may include a surgical procedure to end my pregnancy.
- 11. I understand that if the medicines I take do not end my pregnancy and I decide to have a surgical procedure to end my pregnancy, or if I need a surgical procedure to stop bleeding, my provider will do the procedure or refer me to another provider who will. I have the provider's name, address and phone number.

- address and phone number.
 12. I have my provider's name, address and phone number and know that I can call if I have any questions or concerns.
 13. I have decided to take Mifeprex and misoprostol to end my pregnancy and will follow my provider's advice about when to take each drug and what to do in an emergency.
 14. I will do the following:
- - return to my provider's office in 2 days (Day 3) to check if my pregnancy has ended. My provider will give me misoprostol if I am still pregnant. return to my provider's office about 14 days after beginning treatment to be sure that my pregnancy has ended and that I am well.

.

Patient Signature:

Patient Name (print):

Date:

The patient signed the PATIENT AGREEMENT in my presence after I counseled her and answered all her questions. I have given her the Medication Guide for mifepristone.

Provider's Signature:

Name of Provider print:

Date:

After the patient and the provider sign this PATIENT AGREE-MENT, give 1 copy to the patient before she leaves the office and put 1 copy in her medical record. Give a copy of the Medication Guide to the patient.

12/08/00 Rev. 1

NDA 20-687 Sample of Package Carton September 2002

MIFEPREX[™] (Mitepristone) Tablets, 200 mg MIFEPREX* (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200mg

RX ONLY NDC: 64875-001-03 3 TABLETS (1 DOSE) Each tablet contains 200 mg Mifepristone. See package enclosure for full prescribing information. Store at 25°C (77°F); excursions permitted to 15-30°C (59-86°F) [see USP Controlled Room Temperature]. Protect from light. Manufactured for: Dance Laboratories, LLC P.O. Box 4816 New York, NY 10185 1-877-4-EARLY OPTION www.earlyeptionpill.com Þ DANCO LABORATORIES

00103

NDA 20-687 Sample of Patient Brochure September 2002

The Early Option Pill



MIFEPREX[™] (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg



PRIVATE OPTION

How is Mifeprex provided?

Mifeprex is provided through a doctor's office or clinic. The early option pill can be taken only during the first seven weeks of pregnancy. You make three visits over a two-week period. At the first visit, you receive the Medication Guide (to help you understand how the early option works), counseling and sign a statement that you have decided to end your pregnancy. You then take three tablets, each containing 200 milligrams of Mifeprex.

Two days later, you return and take two tablets each containing 200 micrograms of misoprostol. A followup visit approximately 12 days later is very important to check that the pregnancy has ended because if it has not ended, there is a chance that there may be birth defects. A few women who take Mifeprex will need a surgical procedure to end the pregnancy or to stop heavy bleeding. Your health care provider will communicate to you how s/he has planned to handle this possibility.

Mifeprex offers you a more private option, with support and counseling readily available throughout the process. Your provider will give you a name and number to call if you have any questions and, if different, a name and number to call in an emergency. Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

Where do I get more information?

For more information on Mifeprex; please contact the Mifeprex hotline by phone at: 1-877-4 Early Option (1-877-432-7596)

Or find us on the Internet at: www.earlyoptionpill.com

* Mifeprex is a trademark of Danco Laboratories, LLC.

DANCO LABORATORIES

The Early Option Pill

For ending early pregnancy

MIFEPREX™ (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg

FDACDER000229

The Early Option Pill

What is Mifeprex ?

Mifeprex is a new option for American women. It is the first Food and Drug Administration (FDA) approved early option pill for ending early pregnancy. Mifeprex followed by misoprostol is a safe and effective non-surgical method for ending early pregnancy. Women in Europe have used this option for more than a decade.

Why choose Mifeprex?

Mifeprex is a non-invasive early option for ending pregnancy. Mifeprex is taken orally, allowing you to avoid anesthesia or surgery in most cases. Some women feel it is a more private option. When you choose the early option pill, you will receive counseling and support throughout the process.





A PROVEN REGIMEN

What experience has there been with Mifeprex?

Mifeprex has gone through the rigorous Food and Drug Administration (FDA) approval process for safety and effectiveness. Mifeprex is the only FDA approved pill for ending early pregnancy. You should tell your provider about any medications you are taking. You should discuss with your health care provider whether or not Mifeprex is right for you.

In Europe, over half a million women have used this drug. Worldwide, this early option has now been approved for use in eighteen countries.

How effective is Mifeprex?

Mifeprex followed by misoprostol is approximately 92–95 percent effective in ending pregnancy.

MIFEPREX AND YOU

How does Mifeprex work?

Mifeprex blocks a hormone needed to maintain pregnancy. When followed by another medicine, misoprostol, Mifeprex ends the pregnancy.

What are the side effects of Mifeprex?

Bleeding and cramping are a normal part of the process. You may experience bleeding similar to or greater than a heavy period and can expect bleeding or spotting for an average of 9–16 days. In some cases, women may have severe bleeding and need to contact their doctor right away. Side effects of the combined regimen that may occur include nausea, headache, vomiting, diarrhea, dizziness, fatigue and back pain. You can take a pain reliever to help alleviate discomfort.

NDA 20-687 Sample of Medication Guide September 2002

MEDICATION GUIDE

MIFEPREX[™] (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg

The Early Option Pill



FDACDER000232



Danco Laboratories P.O. Box 4816 <u>New</u> York, NY 10185

1.877.4 EARLY OPTION (1.877.432.7596) www.earlyoptionpill.com

MEDICATION GUIDE

MIFEPREX™ (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg For Oral Administration Only

MEDICATION GUIDE MIFEPREX™ (MIF-eh-prex) (mifepristone)

Read this information carefully before taking Mifeprex* and misoprostol. It will help you understand how the treatment works. This Medication Guide does not take the place of talking with your health care provider (provider).

What is the most important information I should know about Mifeprex?

Mifeprex is used to end an early pregnancy. It is not approved for ending later pregnancies. Early pregnancy means it is 49 days (7 weeks) or less since your last menstrual period began. By using Mifeprex, you probably will not need a surgical procedure to end your pregnancy.

When you use Mifeprex, you also need to take another medicine called misoprostol. You take misoprostol 2 days after you take Mifeprex.

You need to sign a statement (PATIENT AGREEMENT). Before you get Mifeprex, you will need to read and understand the information in this Medication Guide. Then you will need to sign a statement that you have decided to end your pregnancy.

You must visit your provider on Day 1, Day 3, and about Day 14. See the section called "How should I take Mifeprex?" for information about what happens at each visit. If you do not follow all the steps in "How should I take Mifeprex?" you will not know if your pregnancy has ended.

What to do if you are still pregnant after Mifeprex or Mifeprex with misoprostol treatment. If you are still pregnant, your provider will talk with you about the other choices you have, including a surgical * Mifeprex is a trademark of Danco Laboratories, LLC.

2

MIFEPREX™ (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg

procedure to end your pregnancy. There is a chance that there may be birth defects if the pregnancy is not ended.

Symptoms to expect. This treatment causes cramping and bleeding. Usually, these symptoms mean that the treatment is working. But sometimes you can get cramping and bleeding and still be pregnant. This is why you **must return** to your provider on Day 3 and about Day 14.

If you are not already bleeding after taking Mifeprex, you probably will begin to bleed once you take misoprostol. This is a medicine you take on Day 3. Bleeding or spotting can be expected for an average of 9–16 days and may last for up to 30 days. Your bleeding may be similar to, or greater than, a normal heavy period. You may see blood clots and tissue that come from your uterus. This is an expected part of ending the pregnancy.

Heavy bleeding and the need for surgery. In about 1 out of 100 women, bleeding can be so heavy that it requires a surgical procedure (curettage) to stop it. This is why you must talk with your provider about what to do if you need emergency care to stop heavy and possibly dangerous bleeding.

Before you take Mifeprex. Your provider will give you a telephone number to call if you have any questions, concerns, or problems. Your provider will also give you the name and phone number of who will handle emergencies.

Talk with your provider. You and your provider should discuss the benefits and risks for you of using Mifeprex.

What is Mifeprex?

Mifeprex blocks a hormone needed for your pregnancy to continue. When used together with another medicine called misoprostol, Mifeprex ends

your pregnancy. About 5-8 out of 100 women taking Mifeprex will need a surgical procedure to end the pregnancy or to stop too much bleeding.

Who should not take Mifeprex?

Some women should not take Mifeprex. Do not take it if:

- It has been more than 49 days (7 weeks) since your last menstrual period began.
- You have an IUD. It must be taken out before you take Mifeprex.
- Your provider has told you that you have a pregnancy outside the uterus (ectopic pregnancy).
- You have problems with your adrenal glands (chronic adrenal failure).
- You take a medicine to thin your blood.
- You have a bleeding problem.
- You take certain steroid medicines.
- You cannot return for the next 2 visits.
- You cannot easily get emergency medical help in the 2 weeks after you take Mifeprex.
- You are allergic to mifepristone, misoprostol, or medicines that contain misoprostol, such as Cytotec or Arthrotec.

Tell your provider about all your medical conditions to find out if you can take Mifeprex. Also, tell your provider if you smoke at least 10 cigarettes a day.

How should I take Mifeprex?

• Day 1 at your provider's office:

- Read this Medication Guide.
- Discuss the benefits and risks of using Mifeprex to end your pregnancy.
- If you decide Mifeprex is right for you, sign the PATIENT AGREEMENT.
- After getting a physical exam, swallow 3 tablets of Mifeprex.

• Day 3 at your provider's office:

- Your provider will check to see if you are still pregnant.
- If you are still pregnant, take 2 misoprostol tablets.
- Misoprostol may cause cramps, nausea, diarrhea, and other symptoms. Your health care provider may send you home with medicines for these symptoms.

About Day 14 at your provider's office:

- This follow-up visit is very important. You must return to the provider about 2 weeks after you took Mifeprex to be sure you are well and that you are not pregnant.
- Your provider will check whether your pregnancy has completely ended. If it has not ended, there is a chance that there may be birth defects. If you are still pregnant, your provider will talk with you about the other choices you have, including a surgical procedure to end your pregnancy.

What should I avoid while taking Mifeprex and misoprostol?

You should not take certain other medicines, because they may interfere with the treatment. Ask your provider about what medicines you can take for pain. Do not take any other prescription or nonprescription medicines (including herbal medicines or supplements) at any time during the treatment period without first asking your provider about them.

If you are breastfeeding at the time you take Mifeprex and misoprostol, discuss with your provider if you should stop using your breast milk for a few days.

MIFEPREX™ (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg

FDACDER000235

5

What are the possible side effects of using Mifeprex?

See the section "What is the most important information I should know about Mifeprex?" for symptoms to expect.

In some cases, bleeding can be very heavy. In a very few cases, this bleeding will need to be stopped by a surgical procedure. Contact your provider right away if you bleed enough to soak through two thick full-size sanitary pads per hour for two consecutive hours or if you are concerned about heavy bleeding.

Other side effects of the treatment include diarrhea, nausea, vomiting, headache, dizziness, back pain, and tiredness. These side effects lessen after Day 3 and are usually gone by Day 14. Your provider will tell you how to manage any pain or other side effects.

If you are worried about any side effects you have, talk with your provider about them. Your provider will give you a telephone number to call if you have any questions, concerns, or problems. Your provider's telephone number is

When should I begin birth control?

You can become pregnant again right after your pregnancy ends. If you do not want to become pregnant again, start using birth control as soon as your pregnancy ends or before you start having sexual intercourse again.

Medicines are sometimes prescribed for purposes other than those listed in a Medication Guide. For more information, ask your provider for the information about Mifeprex that is written for health care professionals. Ask your provider if you have any questions.

This Medication Guide has been approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration.

6

MIFEPREX™ (Mifepristone) Tablets, 200 mg

PATIENT AGREEMENT

MIFEPREX (mifepristone) Tablets

- 1. I have read the attached Medication Guide for using Mifeprex and misoprostol to end my pregnancy.
- 2. I discussed the information with my health care provider (provider).
- 3. My provider answered all my questions and told me about the risks and benefits of using Mifeprex and misoprostol to end my pregnancy.
- 4. I believe I am no more than 49 days (7 weeks) pregnant.
- 5. I understand that I will take Mifeprex in my provider's office.
- 6. I understand that I will take misoprostol in my provider's office two days after I take Mifeprex (Day 3).
- 7. My provider gave me advice on what to do if I develop heavy bleeding or need emergency care due to the treatment.
- Bleeding and cramping do not mean that my pregnancy has ended. Therefore, I must return to my provider's office in about 2 weeks (about Day 14) after I take Mifeprex to be sure that my pregnancy has ended and that I am well.
- 9. I know that, in some cases, the treatment will not work. This happens in about 5 to 8 women out of 100 who use this treatment.
- 10. I understand that if my pregnancy continues after any part of the treatment, there is a chance that there may be birth defects. If my pregnancy continues after treatment with Mifeprex and misoprostol, I will talk with my provider about my choices, which may include a surgical procedure to end my pregnancy.
- 11. I understand that if the medicines I take do not end my pregnancy and I decide to have a surgical procedure to end my pregnancy, or if I need a surgical procedure to stop bleeding, my provider will do the procedure or refer me to another provider who will. I have the provider's name, address and phone number.

- 12. I have my provider's name, address and phone number and know that I can call if I have any questions or concerns.
- 13. I have decided to take Mifeprex and misoprostol to end my pregnancy and will follow my provider's advice about when to take each drug and what to do in an emergency.
- 14. I will do the following:
 - return to my provider's office in 2 days (Day 3) to check if my pregnancy has ended. My provider will give me misoprostol if I am still pregnant.
 - return to my provider's office about 14 days after beginning treatment to be sure that my pregnancy has ended and that I am well.

Patient Signature: _

Patient Name (print):

Date:

The patient signed the PATIENT AGREEMENT in my presence after I counseled her and answered all her questions. I have given her the Medication Guide for mifepristone.

Provider's Signature:

Name of Provider (print):

Date:__

After the patient and the provider sign this PATIENT AGREEMENT, give 1 copy to the patient before she leaves the office and put 1 copy in her medical record. Give a copy of the Medication Guide to the patient.

9/28/00

8



9(d) CHEMISTRY MANUFACTURING AND CONTROLS CHANGES

9(d) 1. Drug Substance

9(d) 1.1. Specifications and Test Methods

There were no changes in test methods or specifications during the reporting period. However, the retest period for Drug Substance was extended tc⁽⁰⁾⁽⁴⁾ months based or⁽⁰⁾⁽⁴⁾ month long term data on three lots of Drug Substance.

9(d) 1.2. Manufacturing Procedure

There were no changes in manufacturing procedures during the reporting period. Batches of ^(b)/₍₄₎kg of Drug Substance remain the standard.

The Auxiliary Raw Materials and Suppliers pages 146 and 147 in **Section 1.6.2** of the CMC section for the drug substance have been revised to include new, qualified suppliers of raw materials. The new suppliers have been highlighted, in bold print. See Attachment 4.

9(d) 1.3. Packaging Procedure

There were no changes in the packaging materials or procedures during the reporting period.

9(d) 1.4. Stability Data

The three batches of Drug Substance submitted in the original Drug Substance CMC, lot numbers ^{(b) (4)}, have attained ^(b) months of long-term stability. Based on these data the retest dating was extended to ^(b) months.

Additionally, lot numbers,

(b) (4)

^{(b) (4)} reported on last year remain on long term stability. Finally, three batches from 2002; lot numbers and ^{(b) (4)} have been put on long-term stability. Data on all those batches described above are included in <u>Attachment 5</u>.

All data to date on all batches continue to demonstrate the stability of the Drug Substance.

9(d) 2. Drug Product

9(d). 2.1 Specifications and Test Methods

There were no changes in test methods or specifications during the reporting period. A copy of the specifications is included as <u>Attachment 6</u>. The test methods were previously submitted in Amendment 069, dated January 2001.

Regarding our previous commitment to review the specification for residual (NMT ^{(b) (4)}) in the drug product after ^(b) batches were manufactured, we have since manufactured ^(b) batches of Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg and have submitted a proposed change in the specification as Supplement S-004.

The results for the residual (b) (4) for the (b) batches were nondetectable because the levels were below the limit of quantification for the method (LOQ is (b) (4)).

9(d) 2.2 Formulation

There were no changes in the formulation of the product.

9(d) 2.3 Manufacturers of Drug Substance and Inactive Ingredients

There were no changes in the manufacturer of any of the inactive ingredients.

9(d) 2.4 Manufacturing Procedure

There were no changes in the manufacturing procedure. The current manufacturing procedure is designated as MPR # 100101 Rev # 03, dated 11/11/1999. This was previously submitted in Amendment 038, dated December 7, 1999 as Attachment 1.

9(d) 2.5 Packaging Procedure

There were no changes in the packaging materials (types or manufacturers) used to produce the blister cards.

A new ^{(b)(4)} blister packaging machine, model ^{(b)(4)}, was purchased, installed in January 2002 and qualified for use with mifepristone tablets, 200 mg. The functionality of the machine and

performance is essentially the same as the previous blister packaging machine.

The blister packaging procedure was revised to reflect the use of the blister packaging machine. The current procedure is designated as MPR P000101 Rev # 5 dated 12/7/2001.

A copy of the revised procedure is included as Attachment 7.

9(d) 2.6 Stability Data

The batches that are in the current stability program are batch #s (b) (4) The first five batches were placed in both controlled room temperature and accelerated stability programs. The most recent annual stability batch (^{(b) (4)}) was placed in the controlled room temperature stability program. All batches were manufactured by our approved contract manufacturer for the finished product and tested by our approved contract testing laboratory. The stability data for each of the six batches are summarized in <u>Attachment 8</u>. The batches met all stability specifications at each time interval. The stability data supports the current expiration period of 24 months.

9(e) NON-CLINICAL LABORATORY STUDIES

9(e) 1. Unpublished Reports

• .'

۰.

During the reporting period, there were no unpublished reports of non-clinical studies conducted with mifepristone of which we are aware.

9(e) 2. Published Reports

Appended in <u>Attachment 9</u> is an updated bibliography of non-clinical publications on mifepristone. Copies of listed references will be provided upon request.

9(f) CLINICAL DATA

9(f) 1. Published Clinical Trials of the Drug

Appended in <u>Attachment 10</u> is an updated bibliography of clinical references for Mifepristone. In <u>Attachment 11</u> abstracts of clinical publications on mifepristone are provided. Copies of these references will be provided upon request.

9(f) 2. Summaries of Completed Unpublished Clinical Trials

No information regarding completed unpublished clinical trials not performed by us or on our behalf has come to our attention in the period covered by this report.

Summary information regarding clinical studies performed by us or on our behalf and for which there is no postmarketing study commitment is provided in section 9(g) 2. of this report.

9(f) 3. Other Clinical Trials

Below is a tabulation of institutions to which Danco has provided Drug Product or Drug Substance. Investigational use of the drug is described in IND's held by the individual investigators working with those institutions.

Drug Product: (b) (4)

9(g) STATUS REPORTS - POST MARKETING STUDIES

9(g) 1. Status Reports – Post Marketing Study Commitments [21CFR 314.81(b)(2)(vii)]

Study Commitment Status Report Not for Public Release

Appended in <u>Attachment 12</u> is a confidential status report of the postmarketing study commitments not for public release.

Study Commitment Status Report for Public Release

Appended in <u>Attachment 13</u> is a status report of the postmarketing study commitments for public release.

9(g) 2. Other Post Marketing Studies [21CFR 313.81 (b)(2)(viii)]

Ongoing Clinical Studies

Status reports of other ongoing postmarketing studies are provided in <u>Attachment</u> <u>14</u>.

Completed Clinical Studies

Other post marketing studies completed during this reporting period are provided in <u>Attachment 15</u>.

Stability Issues

Status reports for all product stability studies are provided in Section 9(d) 2.6.

.

 \tilde{a}

ATTACHMENT 1

New York, NY 10185

Infoline



DANCO LABORATORIES

1.877.4.EARLY OPTION

www.earlyoptionpill.com

April 19, 2002

Dear Health Care Provider:

This letter is to inform you of new safety information with regard to prescribing Mifeprex[®] and to remind you of your responsibility to report certain events and provide patient counseling, as stated in your Prescriber's Agreement.

New Safety Information

We have received a small number of reports of ruptured ectopic pregnancies (including one death from hemorrhage due to a ruptured ectopic pregnancy). As you will recall, Mifeprex* and misoprostol are not an effective treatment of ectopic pregnancy. Confirmed or suspected ectopic pregnancy is a contraindication for the use of Mifeprex and should be ruled out prior to initiating Mifeprex treatment. Because ectopic pregnancy may be present despite your best efforts to rule it out before starting Mifeprex treatment, you should be mindful of the possibility of an ectopic pregnancy throughout the treatment period and have a plan for its management.

Two cases of serious systemic bacterial infection (one fatal) following treatment with Mifeprex and misoprostol have been reported. While it is known that menstruation, childbirth and bortion (whether spontaneous, surgical or medical) create conditions that can result in infection, we do not believe that Mifeprex and misoprostol present a special risk of infection.

Although serious infection in medical abortion is rare, we ask that you be alert to this possibility if your patients report symptoms or have signs of infection.

We have also received a report of myocardial infarction occurring in a 21 year old woman three days following use of Mifeprex and misoprostol.

No causal relationship between any of these events and use of Mifeprex and misoprostol has been established.

Approved Regimen

As a reminder, the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) approved regimen for administration of Mifeprex is:

• 600 mg Mifeprex taken orally in the office or clinic

• 400 mcg of misoprostol taken orally in the office or clinic 48 hours after the Mifeprex. The FDA has not reviewed or approved other dosing regimens for early termination of pregnancy.

ifeprex is a registered trademark of Danco Laboratories, LLC

Reporting Adverse Events and On-going Pregnancy

We would like to remind you to report any Serious Adverse Events (SAEs) associated with Mifeprex use to the address below. Serious adverse events include death, hospitalization, blood transfusion, and other major events. In the case of on-going pregnancy following treatment with the Mifeprex regimen (approximately 1%), you should also notify us if the patient chooses to proceed with her pregnancy.

Please provide a brief clinical synopsis by writing, calling, or emailing:

Medical Director Danco Laboratories, LLC P.O. Box 4816 New York, NY 10185 <u>Medicaldirector@earlyoptionpill.com</u> Toll free at 1-877-4 Early Option (1-877-432-7596)

We may need to contact you to obtain additional information, so please include your contact information. The following information is helpful when you report adverse events: age of patient; gestational age; dosages and means of administration of all medications, including concomitant medications; clinical information on the patient, including relevant past medical history, laboratory results, and health care course; and final outcome of the patient.

Patient Counseling

We would like to remind you of the importance of helping your patients understand the benefits and risks of the Mifeprex regimen. During the first of three office visits, please give the patient a Medication Guide to read, as well as a Patient Agreement to read and sign. (These materials are included with each Mifeprex order. If you need additional copies, please contact our authorized distributor.)

As you are aware, bleeding and cramping are a normal part of the process; women can expect bleeding or spotting for an average of 9 to 16 days. Women may experience bleeding that is similar to, or greater than, a heavy period. In the U.S. clinical trials, about 1 out of 100 women required a surgical procedure, identical to the procedure for miscarriage, to stop heavy bleeding. If you do not plan to provide this procedure yourself, you must have made arrangements with someone who will and provide this contact information to your patient. Other side effects that may occur include nausea, headache, vomiting, diarrhea, dizziness, fatigue and back pain.

For more information about Mifeprex, visit <u>www.earlyoptionpill.com</u> or call the 24-hour hotline, toll-free at 1-877-4 Early Option (1-877-432-7596). If you have an emergent question, a physician will usually return your call within the hour. For general questions, our Medical Director typically returns calls within 24 hours.

Sincerely, Danco Laboratories, LLC

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial	I Watch, Inc.	
Population Council/Danco Laboratories, LLC Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg	Sept. 28, 2001	l - Sept. 27, 2002 NDA 20-687

.

1

1

ATTACHMENT 2

2

.

EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

PERIODIC SAFETY UPDATE REPORT FOR:



June 1st, 2001 until May 31st, 2002

(b) (4), (b) (6)

PSUR nº 13 \ JUNE 2002

June 30th, 2002

(b) (4), (b) (6)

FDACDER000248



- 1 -

EXELGYN Medical Department

ĥ

۰'.

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	_
	4
WORLDWIDE MARKET AUTHORIZATION STATUS.	5
UPDATE OF REGULATORY OR MANUFACTURER ACTIONS TAKEN FOR SAFETY REASONS	
3.1. ACTION TAKEN BY MARKETING AUTORISATIO	N HOLDER5
CHANGES TO REFERENCE SAFETY INFORMATION	6
PATIENT EXPOSURE	
5.1. CLINICAL TRIALS	
5.2. MARKET EXPERIENCE	
5.3. TOTAL EXPOSURE	
INDIVIDUAL CASE HISTORIES	
6.1. SPONTANEOUS REPORTS	
6.2. STUDY REPORTS	
STUDIES	
7.1. NEWLY ANALYZED AND PUBLISHED STUDIE	S9
7.2. TARGETED NEW STUDIES	
7.3. PUBLISHED SAFETY STUDIES	
OTHER INFORMATION	
8.1. EFFICACY-RELATED INFORMATION	
8.2. LATE-BREAKING INFORMATION	
OVERALL SAFETY INFORMATION	
9.1. OVERVIEW	
9.2. DRUG INTERACTIONS	
9.3. OVERDOSE OR MISUSE	
	INTRODUCTION

Page

EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31 st, 2002

	9.4. DRUG ABUSE
	9.5. EXPERIENCE IN PREGNANCY
	9.6. EXPERIENCE DURING LACTATION
	9.7. LONG-TERM TREATMENT
	9.8. EXPERIENCE IN SPECIAL PATIENT GROUPS
10.	CONCLUSION
11.	APPENDICES14
	11.1. CUMULATIVE REGULATORY APPROVAL DECISION DATES
	11.1.1. Registration status up to November, 1998
	11.1.2. New registration and launch dates
	11.1.3. Differences in the labeling of the European SmPC and other countries20
	11.2. UPDATED LABELINGS
	11.2.1. Master Data Sheet27
	11.2.2. European SmPC approved July 6, 1999
	11.3. STATUS OF CLINICAL TRIALS
	11.3.1. Clinical trials in progress55
	11.3.2. Named-patients studies57
	11.4. LINE-LISTINGS OF INDIVIDUAL CASE HISTORIES
	11.5. LIST OF REFERENCES69
	11.6. UPDATED LISTING OF ONGOING PREGNANCIES FROM 1987 TO JUNE 2002

FDACDER000250

EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report h 13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31 st, 2002

1 - INTRODUCTION

This is the thirteenth Periodic Safety Update Report (PSUR N°13) on *Mifepristone*, compiled for regulatory authorities since January 1991. It summarises safety data received by the Medical Department of Exelgyn from

worldwide sources, during the period from June 1, 2001 to May 31, 2002.

Mifepristone (RU 486) is a potent antiprogestin, available as 200mg tablets for oral administration. Mifepristone is marketed by Exelgyn and was developed by Roussel Uclaf. The Population Council (USA) also has rights to mifepristone under a special agreement.

The initial and main indication for *Mifepristone* is medical termination of early intrauterine pregnancy (first approval in France in December 1988), in combination with a prostaglandin analogue (misoprostol or gemeprost). This combination leads to successful pregnancy termination in more than 95% of cases.

Mifepristone is also approved for therapeutic termination of pregnancy beyond the first trimester in combination with prostaglandin analogues, softening and dilatation of the cervix uteri prior to surgical pregnancy termination and induction of labour for fœtal death in utero.

This report is compiled in the format proposed by ICH3 Topic E2C (Step 4 Document issued in November 1996).

FDACDER000251

EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31 st, 2002

2 - WORLDWIDE MARKET AUTHORISATION STATUS

The cumulative worldwide market authorisation status of *Mifepristone*, specifying the respective dates of approval and dates of launch is presented in Appendix 11.1.

During the period covered by the PSUR:

 New marketing authorisations were obtained through national procedure in the following countries: Azerbaijan, New Zealand and Uzbekistan.

3 - UPDATE OF REGULATORY OR MANUFACTURER ACTIONS TAKEN FOR SAFETY REASONS

3.1. Action taken by the Marketing Authorisation Holder (MAH)

The action taken for safety reasons during the covered period are described hereunder

- In Sweden, a type II variation was submitted on December 4th, 2001 in order to harmonise the section "4.1. Therapeutic indication" of the Swedish SmPC, with the European SmPC. In this context, the following new indications were submitted and are still outstanding :
 - Softening and dilatation of the cervix uteri prior to surgical termination of pregnancy during the first trimester.
 - Preparation for the action of prostaglandin analogues in the termination of pregnancy for second trimester.
 - Labour induction in foetal death in utero, in patients where prostaglandin and oxytocin cannot be used.
- In UK, type II variations mentioned in the previous report was approved and all amendments concerning the indication is now in the SmPC.

3.2. Action taken by the Regulatory Authorities

During the period of review, there was no specific action taken for safety reasons by the regulatory authorities.

There was no marketing authorisation rejection, no suspension or withdrawal, no restriction of distribution, no clinical trial suspension, no dosage or formulation modification, and no change in target population or indications.

4 – CHANGES TO REFERENCE SAFETY INFORMATION

The Master Data Sheet (MDS) which includes the Core Safety Information has been used as a reference document for the preparation of the present PSUR (see Appendix 11.2.1).

Although there is no major change, the Master Data Sheet was revised in 1998 to be in line with the document proposed in the mutual recognition procedure. Since the last report, there is no major modification in the MDS and in the SmPC.

However in Sweden harmonisation of SmPC in section "4.1. Therapeutic indication" was submitted to be in line with the European SmPC

In UK, the type II variation concerning two modifications in the indications are now mentioned in the SmPC.

5 - PATIENT EXPOSURE

A crude estimate of the number of patients treated with *Mifepristone* has been calculated from the sales volumes, in units, of drug sold in the period from June 1, 2001 to May 31, 2002. It has been assumed that each patient has received the standard dose of 600mg (3 tablets). This may underestimate the number of patients exposed to the drug. Indeed, in the UK, many physicians use a lower dose of 200mg. Also, since the approval of the indication "Softening and dilatation of the cervix" at the dose of 200mg in France, a number of patients received only one tablet.

- 6 -

EXELGYN Medical Department Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 -- from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

5.1. CLINICAL TRIALS

From information obtained by Exelgyn Laboratories, it is estimated that ^{(b)(4)} patients, included in ongoing clinical trials during the period of review, received *Mifepristone*.

For all these trials, the medication is provided by Exelgyn only

Information regarding these studies is presented in Appendix 11.3.1 and 11.3.2.

5.2. MARKET EXPERIENCE

During the period covered by this review (from June 1, 2001 to May 31, 2002), *Mifepristone* sales amount to (^{(b) (4)} units (on May 2002). Assuming one unit represents one treatment course, this would correspond to (^{(b) (4)} women who received mifepristone.

5.3. TOTAL EXPOSURE

Clinical trials Worldwide sales Total

Thus it is estimated that over patients received *Mifepristone* in the period covered by this safety update report.

6 - INDIVIDUAL CASE HISTORIES

All spontaneous and clinical trial reports, published and unpublished, meeting the criteria defined below, and received by the Medical Department of Exelgyn, from worldwide sources during the review period, are presented in Appendix 11.4. The cases have been classified by body system and the details tabulated in a line-listing format. When reports of events affecting more than one body system were received, the most clinically serious event has been assigned to the corresponding body system and the other events listed with it.

6.1. SPONTANEOUS REPORTS

All serious (irrespective of labelling), and non serious, spontaneous reports received by Exelgyn, and medically unsubstantiated consumer reports mentioned in this section, are presented in a line-listing format in the attached documents: Appendix 11.4. is a listing with information on each individual case as recommended in the ICH guidelines.

(b) (4)

During the period of review, the Medical Department of Exelgyn recorded from health professionals and authorities 23 spontaneous reports (of which 12 cases of serious adverse events, 11 non serious adverse events and no case from clinical trials) in association with *Mifepristone*.

- The 12 cases of serious adverse events reported during the period of review are classified as follows:
 - 3 serious unlabelled, in which 1 case of unintended pregnancy with fetal malformation, 1 case of death and 1 case of thoracic pain (ischaemic accident).
 - 9 serious labelled with 5 cases of unintended pregnancy, 2 cases of allergic reaction, 1 excessive bleeding and 1 septicaemia to *Streptococcus*.

Among the 11 non serious cases, 9 cases of unintended pregnancy and 2 cases of rash-were reported.

The outcome of the cases **S20000024S/MIF2** (previously reported as case S20000024S/MIF1 in PSUR n°11) and **S2000017UK/MIF1** (from PSUR n°12), are normal pregnancy with healthy baby (date of birth:

6.2. STUDY REPORTS

Unlabelled, serious, attributable adverse event reports are included. An unlabelled event is defined, as any particular untoward medical happening experienced by a patient that is not described in the Master Data Sheet. A serious event is one that is fatal, life-threatening, disabling, incapacitating, results in hospitalisation or prolongs hospitalisation, overdose, cancer or congenital anomaly. For the purpose of this report an event is considered to be attributable if the investigator or the company has rated the causality relationship with mifepristone as possible or more than possible.

No case was reported from clinical trials during the period of review.

Other studies are conducted by independent investigators or organisations and are listed in Appendix 11.3.1, the products used in these trials are provided by Exelgyn.

- 8.-

EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31 st, 2002

7 – STUDIES

المروقية المحصان

7.1. NEWLY ANALYSED AND PUBLISHED STUDIES (References list Appendix 11.5.)

There is no newly analysed study.

7.2. TARGETED NEW STUDIES

There are no targeted new studies during the period of review.

7.3. PUBLISHED SAFETY STUDIES

SETTING UP A ONE-STOP MIFEPRISTONE-MISOPROSTOL MEDICAL TERMINATION OF PREGNANCY SERVICE FOR ALL GESTATION FROM 5 TO 23 WEEKS – A REVIEW OF 482 CASES.

J. I. Ojidu, S. D. Sabharwal.

J. Obstet. Gynaecol., 2001, Vol/Iss/Pg.21/4 (386-388)

Mifepristone-misoprostol combination is increasingly being utilised for medical termination of pregnancy on account of its reported efficacy, safety and lower cost. Experience with this modality of effecting termination of pregnancy from 9 to 13 weeks' gestation is scanty. At the Scunthorpe General Hospital in the United Kingdom, we established a nurse-led, one-stop medical termination of pregnancy service using *mifepristone* and misoprostol for all gestations from 5 to 23 weeks. A review of the case records of 482 women who had medical termination of pregnancy at all gestations from 5 to 23 weeks from December 1997 to May 1999 was undertaken in order to assess the effectiveness and complication associated with the *mifepristone*-misoprostol protocol. Complete abortion was achieved in 406 (84 %) women. Surgical evacuation was required to complete the abortion in 74 (16 %) women. The complete abortion rate was similar across the spectrum, i.e. 87 % in the 5-8-weeks group; 79 % in the 9-13-weeks group; and 87 % in those of greater-than or equal to 14 weeks. Two failures occurred: one of them proceeded to surgical evacuation after three courses of misoprostol, while the over continued with her pregnancy after one course. Three women (0.6 %) required blood transfusion for haemorrhage, while two others were treated for infection. Oral *mifepristone* with or without vacinal misoprostol is an effective and safe regimen for termination of all pregnancies from 5 to 23 weeks' gestation.

-9-

EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31 st, 2002

FIRST TRIMESTER ABORTION WITH MIFEPRISTONE AND VAGINAL MISOPROSTOL.

U. B. Knudsen

Contraception 2001; 63/5: 247-250.

This study assessed the efficacy and side effects of first trimester medical abortion using *mifepristone* and vaginally administered misoprostol. Medicalabortion was first in Denmark in December 1997, and the acceptability of this new approach in a Danish population was evaluated. This study included the first 100 women seeking medical abortion. The gestational age was from 33 to 56 days. All received 600 mg *mifepristone (RU 486)* orally followed 2 days later by vaginally administered misoprostol 400 µg. Success was defined as achieving complete abortion without the need for surgical evacuation. Ninety-three percent achieved a successful medical termination of pregnancy. Side effects were few, and the acceptability was high. Ninety percent of the women would prefer medical abortion in case of a new unwanted pregnancy. The combination of *mifepristone* and vaginally administered misoprostol is effective, safe, has few side effects and in well accepted by Danish women.

SECOND TRIMESTER MEDICAL ABORTION WITH MIFEPRISTONE AND GEMEPROST.

O. S. Tang, K. J. Thong, D. T. Baird Contraception 2001; 64/1: 29-32

The treatment outcomes of 956 women undergoing second trimester termination of pregnancy with *mifepristone* and gemeprost were studied. The median gestational age was 16 weeks (range: 12-24 weeks). All women were treated with 200 mg *mifepristone* orally, followed 36 h later with 1 mg vaginal gemeprost administered every 6 h to maximum of 4 doses in the first 24 h. A second course of 1 mg vaginal gemeprost was given 3-hourly in the next 12 h, if abortion had not occurred. Overall, 96.4 % and 98.8 % of the women aborted within 24 and 36 h, respectively. The median induction-to-abortion interval was 7.8 h (range: 0.5-109.9h). The induction-abortion interval was longer in nulliparous women (7.3%; p<0.001). Ten (0.1%) women failed to abort with gemeprost and required other methods for abortion. In conclusion, a combination of *mifepristone* and gemeprost is a safe, effective, and non-invasive method of medical abortion for second trimester pregnancy.

A RANDOMIZED COMPARISON OF MEDICAL ABORTION AND SURGICAL VACUUM ASPIRATION AT 10-13 WEEKS GESTATION

P. W. Ashok, A. Kidd, G. M.M.Flett, A. Fitzmaurice, W. Graham and A. Templeton

Human Reproduction, 2002, Vol.17/1: 92-98

A patient-centred, partially randomised, controlled trial was carried out. Those who expressed a strong preference for either medical (n = 15) or surgical (n = 62) abortion were allocated to that method. The remainder agreed to be randomized.

EXELGYN Medical Department Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 – from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

The medical method (n = 188) was mifepristone 200 mg followed by misoprostol up to 3 doses, and surgery (n = 180) was by vacuum aspiration under general anaesthesia. Outcome measures included efficacy rates, medical complications within 8 weeks of the procedure, patient preferences and acceptability.

Among women who underwent medical abortion, 5.4% required a second procedure compared with 2.1% who had surgery, although this difference was not statistically significant. Side effects experienced were higher in women who underwent medical abortion compared with those who underwent surgery. There were no significant differences in the rates of major complications up to 8 weeks. Prior to termination, 80% of women had a preference for a method, with 72% preferring medical and 28% preferring surgical abortion. Following abortion, 70% of those who underwent medical termination and 79% who underwent surgery would opt for the same method in the future.

Medical abortion is safe and effective at 10-13 weeks gestation and should be considered an option for those women who wish to avoid surgery and anaesthesia.

8 - OTHER INFORMATION

8.1. EFFICACY-RELATED INFORMATION

No information was received during the period of review involving relevant lack of efficacy, which might represent a significant hazard to the treated population.

8.2. LATE-BREAKING INFORMATION

There is no information received since the data lock point, which might alter the risk benefit profile of mifepristone.

9 - OVERALL SAFETY EVALUATION

9.1.OVERVIEW

From the data presented in this safety update and cumulative experience to date, it is considered that no further amendment to the Master Data Sheet is required at present, with respect to the reported listed adverse reactions, and especially those qualified as serious. No significant increase in the frequency of reports for any category of known toxicity was identified.
From the cumulative experience on mifepristone, it is considered that the statements given in the Core Safety Information of the last version of the Master Data Sheet are adequate with respect to mifepristone use in all its approved indications.

However type II variation for harmonisation of Swedish SmPC (section 4.1. Therapeutic indication) was submitted on December 4th, 2001 to be on line with the European SmPC. and the second مى مەرىقە بەرىخىمە يېرىمىيە يېرىمىيە ي

9.2. DRUG INTERACTIONS

- .'

المارة مارم المحالية المراجع ال

a tang kana ti gikan tina sa kana sa

ار با المشريطي من الموجد ال

'n

No information concerning interaction has been identified during the period of 1.5 review.

9.3. OVERDOSE OR MISUSE

One case of misuse was reported. This case from France (S2001020F/MIF1) concerns a 22-year-old female patient who received 200 mg of mifepristone (instead of 600 mg as mentioned in SmPC) for medical termination of pregnancy at 12 weeks gestation. The patient experienced incomplete abortion with excessive bleeding.

9.4. DRUG ABUSE

There is no potential of drug abuse with mifepristone, as prescription is restricted to hospital (only one dose).

9.5. EXPERIENCE IN PREGNANCY

Twelve new cases of developing pregnancy were recorded during the period of review. In the majority of these cases of continuing pregnancies, women changed their mind either after mifepristone intake, before prostaglandin administration, or after exposure to both drugs.

Some cases were reported prospectively. The outcome was the following:

- seven cases of surgical termination of pregnancy,
- continuing pregnancy in five patients.

All cases are presented in the consecutive PSURs. The tables have been updated since PSUR nº 12 and are presented in Appendix 11.6.

The outcome of two previous pregnancies (case # S2000024S/MIF1 from PSUR n°11 and S2000017UK/MIF1 from PSUR n°12) were reported, normal birth in one patient and spontaneous abortion in the other patient.

12.21

السيام المراقبة والمحمولي المراجع المراجع المحمولي المحمولية والمحمولية والمحمولية والمحمولية والمحمولية والمح المحمولية المحمولية المحمولية المحمولية المحمولية المحمولية المحمولية المحمولية المحمولية والمحمولية والمحمولية المحمولية والمحمولية و

t<u>ter</u> des _{aug}er L'htter

المحجم بشيب بالالباد فالهج بالهاد الهاديا الرا

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31 st, 2002

Since the first marketing in 1989, **146** cases of ongoing pregnancies were identified either as spontaneous cases reported to or solicited by the company, or included in the listing even if the case was insufficiently documented. Ten of these cases were reported with various malformations.

The manufacturer recommends in the Master Data Sheet, "the woman must be informed that in the event of the failure of the method, the pregnancy is liable to continue to develop. The foetus may then be exposed to a risk of malformation".

9.6. EXPERIENCE DURING LACTATION

No new information concerning experience during lactation has emerged during the period of review.

9.7. LONG-TERM TREATMENT

The currently approved indications of mifepristone require one single dose, or two doses in case of foetal death in utero.

However some patients have received long-term daily treatment with mifepristone in non-registered indication such as unresectable meningiomas, leiomyosarcomas, Cushing syndrome. The two main adverse reactions identified during long-term use are reversible amenorrhea in premenopausal women and sub-acute adrenal failure symptoms. In addition, endometrial hyperplasia might be a potential adverse reaction of long-term mifepristone administration, possibly related to continued unopposed estrogen action.

9.8.EXPERIENCE IN SPECIAL PATIENT GROUPS

There is no information concerning the experience in special patient groups.



No area of safety concern has been identified during the period of review. The data presented in this report are consistent with the cumulative experience to date and provide no information, which could alter the risk-benefit ratio of mifepristone.

Exelgyn Medical Department will continue to monitor reports of adverse experiences received worldwide and will revise the SmPC when an evaluation of surveillance data yields significant new information.

FDACDER000260

- 13 -

EXELGYN Medical Department Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 – from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

11. APPENDICES

EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31 st, 2002

APPENDIX 11.1

CUMULATIVE REGULATORY APPROVAL / DECISION DATES

1.00

Let a second the s

-

5.4

್ಷ ಆಗ್ ಆರ್ಟ್ - ಎಂದೆ ಮೇ ಆಗ್ ಇವರಿತ

EXELGYN Medical Department

د الجي الحريقة العالمات الي وال^{يو} تعريق عالم الرواد

ب مرو خودرو در

Ĩ Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report nº13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31 st, 2002

APPENDIX 11.1.1.

REGISTRATION STATUS UP TO 1998

1 I .

 į.

31

1.4

ŗ

1.00

1.1

EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report nº13 - from June 1st , 2001 to May 31st, 2002

MIFEGYNE® REGISTRATION STATUS AS OF NOVEMBER 1998

		DATE OF				
COUNTRY	DOSAGE PER TABLET	APPROVAL	LAUNCH	TRANSFER OF MARKETING AUTHORIZATION	INDICATIONS (and POSOLOGY)	
FRANCE	200mg	December 28 th , 1988	September 1989	8/8/97	 DMedical alternative to surgical termination of intra-uterine pregnancy of up to 49 days amenorrhea (600mg single dose) 	
		July 17 th , 1992		CIP N°556 473.0	DPreparation for the prostaglandin action in therapeutic pregnancy termination (600mg single dose)	
					• DFœtal death in utero (600mg x 2 days)	
		November 6 th , 1998			 DSoftening, and dilatation of the cervix uteri prior to voluntary pregnancy termination by vacuum aspiration during the first quarter (200mg single dose) 	
U.K.	200mg	July 1 st , 1991	July 1991	24/09/97	 DMedical alternative to surgical termination of Intra-uterine pregnancy of up to 63 days amenorrhea (600mg single dose) 	
		August 4 th , 1995		PL 16152/0001	 DSoftening and dilatation of the cervix uteri prior to mechanical cervical dilatation for pregnancy termination (600mg single dose) 	
					 UTermination of pregnancy between 13 and 20 weeks gestation in combination with gemeprost (600mg single dose) 	
SWEDEN	200mg	September 4 th , 1992	October 1992	1/10/97 ASP 91-0246	 DMedical alternative to surgical termination of intra-uterine pregnancy of up to 63 days amenorrhea (600mg single dose) 	
					 DTermination of pregnancy in the second trimester (600mg single dose) 	
	600mg	August 2 nd , 1995		ASP95-0005	Same Indications as for 200mg tablets	

FDACDER000264

EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

- 5

APPENDIX 11.1.2.

NEW REGISTRATION AND LAUNCH DATES

۰. - A - 2 $(x_1, x_2, \dots, x_n) \in \mathbb{R}^n$

EXELGYN Medical Department Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 – from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

COUNTRY	DATE OF SUBMISSION	DATE OF APPROVAL	PLANNED / ACTUAL DATE OF LAUNCH	LICENSE NUMBER
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		E U R O P E		
Mutual Recognition Procedure	April 6 th , 1999	July 6 th , 1999		FR/H/137/01
AUSTRIA	April 6 th , 1999	September 21 st , 1999	Marketed December 1999	1-23220
BELGIUM	April 6 th , 1999	November 22 nd , 1999	July 3 rd , 2000	2 532 IE 1 F3
DENMARK	April 6 th , 1999	August 27 th , 1999	Marketed Q ₁ 2000	30 741
FINLAND	April 6 th , 1999	December 20 th , 1999	Marketed Q ₁ 2000	MTnr 14064 FIN
FRANCE	-	December 28 th , 1988 Update December 15 th , 1999	Marketed 1989	556 473.0
GERMANY	April 6 th , 1999	August 19 th , 1999	Marketed November 1999	46 038 .00.00
GREECE	April 6 th , 1999	October 10 th ,1999	Q ₄ 2001	2455001
LUXEMBOURG	November 26 th , 1999	December 11 th , 2000	January, 2001	1181/00/11/0052
NETHERLANDS	April 6 th , 1999	August 25 th , 1999	Marketed January 2000	RVG 24 206
SPAIN	April 6 th , 1999	October 21 st , 1999	Marketed February 2000	62.278
SWEDEN	—	September 4 th ,1992	Marketed Q ₃ 1992	11642
UK	-	July 1 st , 1991 Updated August 4 th , 1999 Updated August 8 th , 2001	Marketed Q ₃ 1991	PL 16152 / 0001
		O T H E R S		, ,
AZERBAIJAN		April 20 th , 2001	2002	SN-004 00254
GEORGIA	September 13 th , 2000	December 11 th , 2000	March, 2001	R-0000075
ISRAEL	February 7 th , 1999	August 10 th , 1999	Marketed September 1999	115 52 29641 00
NEW ZEALAND	2000	August 30 th , 2001	September 2001	-
NORWAY	March 29 th , 1999	December, 2000	May 1 st , 2001	99.1943
OUZBEKISTAN		June 8 th ,2001	2002	6-250-95
RUSSIA	November 22 nd , 1998	April 14 th , 1999	Marketed September 1999	P-8-242 N°01 1033
SOUTH AFRICA	April 9 th , 1999	Pending	Q ₃ 2001	NA
SWITZERLAND	February 10 th , 1999	July 14 th , 1999	Marketed October 99	55205
TAIWAN	1999	Pending	Q ₃ 2001	. NA
TUNISIA	August 8 th , 1999	November 15 th , 2000	200/27	4303011H
UKRAINIA	May, 1999	June 23 rd , 2000	January, 2001	P.0600/01921

۶.

EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report nº13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

APPENDIX 11.1.3.

DIFFERENCES IN THE LABELING OF THE EUROPEAN SMPC AND OTHERS COUNTRIES

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

· · • • 🖞 🎍

APPROVED EUROPEAN SPC JULY 6, 1999

Therapeutic Indications & Posology

The European SPC has used the following wording. Consequently, the initial wording used in France and referred to in Appendix 11.1.1. has been modified to reflect the harmonized EU SmPC.

The following countries have been included in the procedure of Mutual Recognition: Austria, Belgium, Denmark, Finland, France (Reference Member State), Germany, Greece, the Netherlands, Spain.

Medical termination of developing intra-uterine pregnancy. In sequential use with a prostaglandin analogue, up to 49 days of amenorrhea.

600mg of mifepristone (i.e. 3 tablets of 200mg each) is taken in a single oral dose, followed by 36 to 48 hours later, the administration of a prostaglandin analogue; misoprostol 400µg orally, or gemeprost 1mg per vaginum.

Softening and dilatation of the cervix uteri prior to surgical termination of pregnancy during the first trimester.

200mg of mifepristone (one tablet), followed 36 to 48 hours later (but not beyond) by surgical termination of pregnancy.

 Preparation for the action of prostaglandin analogues in the termination of pregnancy for medical reasons (beyond the first trimester).

600mg of mifepristone (i.e. 3 tablets of 200mg each) taken in a single oral dose, 36 to 48 hours prior to scheduled prostaglandin administration which will be repeated as often as indicated.

4- Labour induction in foetal death in utero.

In patients where prostaglandin or oxytocin cannot be used. 600mg of mifepristone (e.g. 3 tablets of 200mg each) in a single oral daily dose, for two consecutive days. EXELGYN Medical Department Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 – from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

in the other countries where the product has been approved the wording is the following:

Israel

Medical alternative to uterine suction for termination of intra-uterine pregnancy:

-up-to-and no later than 49 days of amenorrhea (seven weeks).

In sequential use with a prostaglandin analogue, misoprostol 400µg per os administered 36 to 48 hours after mifegyne® intake.

Only this indication has been approved at the moment.

Russia

. .. <u>1</u>

- Medical termination of pregnancy up to 42 days of amenorrhea:
- 600mg of mifepristone in a single dose.
- Medical termination of pregnancy up to 63 days of amenorrhea in association with a prostaglandin analogue (misoprostol, gemeprost):
- 600mg of mifepristone followed 36 to 48hours later by gemeprost 1mg per vaginum.
- Dilatation of the cervix uteri prior to a surgical termination of pregnancy up to 12 weeks:
- 600mg of mifepristone in a single dose.
- Preparation to the action of prostaglandin for termination of pregnancy between 13 and 20 weeks gestation for medical or social reasons:
 600mg of mifepristone followed 36 to 48hours later by gemeprost 1mg p.v., repeated every three hours until complete expulsion.

The indication Labour induction for foetal death in utero has not been approved in Russia.

Sweden

- Medical alternative to surgical termination of intra-uterine pregnancy of up to 63 days amenorrhea (600 mg single dose).
- Termination of pregnancy in the second trimester (600 mg single dose).

EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

Switzerland

UK

The same text as in the EU has been approved for indications and posology with a slight difference in the wording of one indication: Medical termination of intrauterine pregnancy.

and an art and months are

Medical termination of intra-uterine pregnancy of up to 63 days gestation

- Softening and dilatation of the cervix uteri prior to mechanical cervical dilatation for pregnancy termination.
- For use in combination with gemeprost for termination of pregnancy between 13 and 24 weeks gestation.
- Labour induction in fetal death in utero.

Contra-indications

For the above-mentioned countries the section Contra-Indications include the following:

In all indications:

- chronic adrenal failure
- known allergy to mifepristone or to any component of the product
- severe asthma uncontrolled by therapy

For countries included in the Mutual Recognition Procedure and for the UK, the following contra-indication has been added in all indications:

Inherited porphyria

In the indication: medical termination of developing intra-uterine pregnancy:

- pregnancy not confirmed by ultrasound scan or biological tests
- pregnancy of 50 days' amenorrhea and beyond
- suspected extra-uterine pregnancy
- contra-indication to the prostaglandin analogue selected

EXELGYN Medical Department Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 – from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

In the indication: softening and dilatation of the cervix uteri prior to surgical termination of pregnancy:

- pregnancy not confirmed by ultrasound scan or biological test
 - pregnancy of 84 days of amenorrhea and beyond (according to legal requirements)

- suspected extra-uterine pregnancy

يتم ينتقني

<u>Preparation for the action of prostaglandin analogues in the termination of pregnancy for medical reasons (beyond the first trimester):</u>

- contra-indication to the prostaglandin analogue selected

Labour induction in foetal death in utero:

العم التي يو المراجع ا المراجع المراجع

Should prostaglandin combination be required, refer to Contra-Indications to the selected prostaglandin analogue.

In Israel, the section on Contra-Indications is different and include the following items:

- 1. Known allergy to mifepristone or to any component of the product.
- 2. Suspected extra-uterine pregnancy.
- 3. Pregnancy not confirmed by ultrasound scan.
- 4. Chronic adrenal failure.
- 5. Hemorrhagic disorders.
- 6. Long-term corticosteroid therapy.
- 7. Severe asthma uncontrolled by corticosteroid therapy.
- 8. Cardiac disease.
- 9. Hyperlipidemia.

10. Diabetes.

11. Patients with antipsychotic drug therapy.

- 12. Pregnancy beyond 49 days of amenorrhea.
- **13.** As a special precaution, the medical method is not recommended for use in women over 35 years of age or who smoke more than 10 cigarettes/ day.
- **14.** Know allergy to prostaglandins.
- **15.** Patients with or history of cardiovascular disease.

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 – from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

In the UK, the following items are included in the Contra-Indication section of the UK data sheet:

1. Known allergy to mifepristone or to any component of the product.

2. Suspected extra-uterine pregnancy.

-

- 3. Pregnancy not confirmed by ultrasound scan or biological tests.
- 4. Chronic adrenal failure.
- 7. Severe asthma uncontrolled by corticosteroid therapy
- 16. Inherited porphyria

.

Items 5, 6, 13 have been moved into the precautions section of the EU SmPC and item 13 is worded "... women over 35 years of age <u>and</u> who smoke more than 10 cigarettes/day". Item 9 and 11 do not exist in any of the master data sheet, EU, UK of Swedish information. Item 10 is included in the Precaution for use of the Master Data Sheet.

In addition, the following conditions have been considered in the warnings section: hepatic failure, renal failure, and malnutrition.

EXELGYN Medical Department

- '___

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report nº13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

المعج - الأجزار المسلحة المعالم - المسلحة المعالم المعالم المعالم

APPENDIX 11.2.

UPDATED LABELINGS

. ana ata ponya na ana 1915 na ang panantana sita tita tita. ی دیک معمد العلمین العظیل الی الد 194

ويري والمراجعين

and the Sy fingers 2 to 200 and the state of the state

م معدية ، ديرهم،

- 26 -

FDACDER000273

÷

.....

·

1995 Sec. 2

ang ing ing a salar sa

in the second second

EXELGYN Medical Department

مرد مرجوع ، در مور مرجوع ، در

. بر ۲۰۰۰

1.0

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

- #

1-1______ 3_____

APPENDIX 11.2.1.

MASTER DATA SHEET

2.31

- Chier This

ويريد ويعتروه الأرا

1999 - 1999 - 1999 1997 - 1999 - 1999 1997 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1

EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

Exelgyn Laboratories 6, rue Christophe Colomb F-75008 Paris

MIFEGYNE® 200mg Mifepristone

Master Data Sheet

November 2001

EXELGYN Medical Department

à

A

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

SUMMARY OF PRODUCT CHARACTERISTICS

TRADE NAME OF THE MEDICINAL PRODUCT

MIFEGYNE® 200mg, tablets.

2. QUALITATIVE AND QUANTITATIVE COMPOSITION

3. PHARMACEUTICAL FORM

Light yellow, cylindrical, bi-convex tablets, for oral administration.

4. CLINICAL PARTICULARS

4.1 <u>Therapeutic indications</u>

 Medical alternative to surgical termination of intra-uterine pregnancy.

<u>In sequential use</u> with a prostaglandin analogue, administered 36 to 48 hours after MIFEGYNE® intake (see Posology and Method of Administration):

- misoprostol 400µg orally (for pregnancies up to 49 days of amenorrhea),
- or gemeprost 1mg, vaginal pessary (for pregnancies up to 63 days of amenorrhea).

Under these conditions, the association of mifepristone and prostaglandins leads to a success rate of about 95 per cent of the attempted pregnancy terminations. (See Warnings and Precautions for use)

FDACDER000276

(b) (4)

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

• Softening and dilatation of the cervix uteri prior to surgical pregnancy termination.

Pre-treatment with mifepristone facilitates the surgical step of the mechanical dilatation.

- Preparation for the action of prostaglandins analogues in the termination of pregnancy for medical reasons.
 - The use of MIFEGYNE® allows a significant reduction of the prostaglandins doses required for the expulsion.
- Labour induction in fetal death in utero.
 - MIFEGYNE® administered alone leads to expulsion in about 60%, allowing avoidance, or reduction in the dose of prostaglandins. Therefore, it is indicated especially when prostaglandins are contra-indicated.

4.2 Posology and method of administration

1) 1

ار میکون کرد. د میکون کرد از در دار

د. الانتظ^{يري}ة المنظر المنظر المستخ

Medical alternative to surgical termination of intra-uterine pregnancy.

MIFEGYNE® must not be administered if there is doubt as to the existence and age of the pregnancy, or in case of extra-uterine pregnancy. The prescribing doctor should in any case perform an ultrasound scan and/or measure ß-hCG before administration.

The method of administration which will be prescribed by the physician and applied in the presence of the practitioner or of a health professional will be as follows:

- 600mg of mifepristone (i.e. 3 tablets of 200mg each) is taken in a single oral dose, followed by
- 36 to 48 hours later, the administration of a prostaglandin analogue; misoprostol 400µg orally (pregnancies up to 49 days of amenorrhea), or gemeprost 1mg vaginally (pregnancies up to 63 days of amenorrhea).

2) <u>Softening and dilatation of the cervix uteri prior to surgical pregnancy</u> <u>termination.</u>

 200mg of mifepristone (one tablet) in the presence of the physician or of a health professional, followed 36 to 48 hours later (but not beyond) by surgical termination of pregnancy. EXELGYN Medical Department Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 – from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

3) Preparation for the action of prostaglandin analogs in the termination of pregnancy for medical reasons.

600mg of mifepristone (i.e. 3 tablets of 200mg each) taken in a single oral dose, in the presence of the physician or of a health professional, 36 to 48 hours prior to scheduled prostaglandin administration which will be repeated as often as indicated.

4) Labour induction for expulsion of a dead fetus (fetal death in utero).

600mg of mifepristone, e.g. 3 tablets of 200mg each, in a single oral daily dose, for two consecutive days

Labour should be induced by the usual methods if it has not started within 72 hours following the first administration of mifepristone.

4.3 Contra-Indications

.

· · · · ·

All and a second se

This product SHOULD NEVER be prescribed in the following situations.

- Chronic adrenal failure.
- Known allergy to mifepristone or to any component of the product.
- Severe asthma uncontrolled by corticosteroid therapy.
- Inherited porphyria.

In the indication: medical alternative to surgical termination of Intra-uterine pregnancy.

- Pregnancy not confirmed by ultrasound scan or biological tests.
- Pregnancy beyond 49 days of amenorrhea with misoprostol or beyond 63 days of amenorrhea with gemeprost.
- Suspected extra-uterine pregnancy.
- Contra-Indications due to the prostaglandins:
 - Known allergy to prostaglandins.
 - Patients with or history of cardiovascular disease (angina, Raynaud's syndrome or disease, cardiac arrhythmias, cardiac failure, severe hypertension).
 (See Precautions for use)

<u>Preparation for the action of prostaglandins analogues in the termination of pregnancy for medical reasons.</u>

Contra-indications to prostaglandins where relevant.

FDACDER000278

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

Labour induction for expulsion of a dead fetus (fetal death in utero).

 Should prostaglandins combination be required, refer to contraindications to the selected prostaglandin analogue.

4.4 Warnings and Precautions for use

Warnings

Specific national legal requirements

MIFEGYNE® and the prostaglandin analogues can only be prescribed and administered in accordance with the national legal requirements.

As a consequence, they can only be prescribed by a medical doctor and in a public or private hospital or centre (having approval to undertake terminations of pregnancies) in accordance with the national legal requirements.

The signature of an informed consent letter by the patient would certify that she has been fully informed about the method and its risks, except in the cases of preparation to the action of prostaglandins for pregnancy termination for medical reasons as well as for the labour induction for expulsion of a dead fetus (Fetal Death in Utero).

1) <u>Medical alternative to surgical pregnancy termination of intra-uterine</u> pregnancy

Failures

Unless abortion has already been completed, the use of MIFEGYNE® must be followed, 36 to 48 hours later, by a prostaglandin analogue administered either vaginally or orally, as mifepristone alone given without prostaglandins would lead to a failure rate of the method of at least 20 per cent.

According to the clinical trials and to the type of prostaglandin used, the failure rate varies. Failures occur in 1.3 to 7.5% of the cases receiving sequentially MIFEGYNE® followed by a prostaglandin analogue, of which:

- 0 to 1.5% of ongoing pregnancies
- 1.3 to 4.6% of partial abortion, with incomplete expulsion
- 0 to 1.4% of hemostatic curettage

Bleeding

The patient must be informed of the occurrence of prolonged vaginal bleeding (about 9 days after MIFEGYNE® intake) which may be heavy.

Bleeding occurs in almost all cases and <u>is not in anyway a proof of complete</u> expulsion.

FDACDER000279

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report nº13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

The patient should be informed not to travel far away from the prescribing centre as long as complete expulsion has not been recorded. She will receive precise instructions as to whom she should contact and where to go, in the event of any problems emerging, particularly in the case of very heavy vaginal bleeding.

125.00

A follow-up visit must take place mandatorily within a period of **10** to **14** days after administration of MIFEGYNE® to verify by the appropriate means (dinical examination, Beta-hCG measurement, ultrasound scan, etc...) that expulsion has been completed and that vaginal bleeding has stopped (apart from light bleeding the disappearance of which should be checked within a few days).

Persistence of vaginal bleeding at this point could indicate incomplete abortion, or an unnoticed extra-uterine pregnancy, and an appropriate treatment should be considered.

Since heavy bleeding requiring hemostatic curettage occurs in up to 1.4% of the cases during the medical method of pregnancy termination, special care should be given to patients with <u>hemorrhagic disorders</u> with hypocoagulability, or with <u>anemia</u>.

The decision to use the medical or the surgical method should be decided with specialised consultants according to the type of hemostatic disorder and the level of anemia.

2) <u>Softening and dilatation of the cervix uteri prior to surgical pregnancy</u> termination

For the full efficacy of therapy, the use of MIFEGYNE® must mandatorily be followed, 36 to 48 hours later and not beyond, by surgical termination.

The woman must be informed of the risk of bleeding, which may be heavy, following mifepristone intake. She will be informed of the rare occurrence (0.9%) of expulsion prior to the surgical termination.

She will receive precise instructions as to whom she should contact and where to go, in the event of any problems emerging, particularly in the case of very heavy vaginal bleeding. Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

Preparation for the action of prostaglandin analogs for termination of 3) pregnancy for medical reasons

The administration of prostaglandins carries some risks; however pretreatment with MIFEGYNE® has been shown to reduce the total dose of prostaglandins required. Moreover, the risks of other (mechanical) methods of termination for advanced pregnancies, beyond 12 weeks, have to be considered.

1) In all instances

2 . . .

Precautions for use

- The use of MIFEGYNE® requires blood group and rhesus determination and hence the prevention of rhesus allo-immunisation as well as other general measures taken usually during any pregnancy termination.
- case of suspected acute adrenal failure, dexamethasone In. administration is recommended.
- Due to the antiglucocorticoid activity of mifepristone, the efficacy of longterm corticosteroid therapy may be decreased during the 3 to 4 days following MIFEGYNE® 's intake. Therapy should be adjusted.

In the event of inhaled corticosteroid therapy, particularly in patients with asthma, it is recommended to adjust the treatment by doubling the dose during the 48 hours preceeding mifepristone's administration and for about one week duration.

- In patients with insulin-dependent diabetes, the occurrence of gastro-intestinal disorders induced by the pregnancy itself or by the treatment, would require an adjustment of insulin therapy.
- During clinical trials, pregnancies occurred between fetal expulsion and the resumption of menses. To avoid potential exposure of a subsequent pregnancy to mifepristone, it is recommended that conception be avoided during the next menstrual cycle. Reliable contraceptive precautions should therefore commence as early as possible after mifepristone administration.
- As a precaution and in the absence of specific studies, mifepristone should not be used in patients with:
 - Renal failure
 - Liver failure
 - Malnutrition

न्ध्रय प्राणम जि

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

2) Medical alternative to surgical termination of intra-uterine pregnancy.

In any case of a pregnancy occurring on an intra-uterine device, this device must be removed before administration of MIFEGYNE.

During the initial clinical trials, rare serious cardiovascular accidents similar to coronary spasms have been reported following the administration of a PGE₂ analogue (intra-muscular sulprostone). These events were reported in women over 30 years of age and smoking more than 10 cigarettes a day.

No such cases have been reported, since analogues of PGE₁ (gemeprost of misoprostol) have been used. The present experience is based upon (^{b) (4)} treatments of which about (^{b) (4)} used misoprostol and about (^{b) (4)} used gemeprost.

Therefore, as a special precaution, the medical method is not recommended for use in women over 35 years of age and who smoke more than 10 cigarettes a day.

In any case, the risk of cardiovascular events must be taken into consideration when prostaglandins are used in association with mifepristone.

Method of prostaglandins administration

During intake and for three hours following the intake, the patients should be monitored in the treatment centre, which must be fitted with the appropriate cardiovascular monitoring and resuscitation equipment.

3) For the sequential use of MIFEGYNE® - Prostaglandins, whatever the indication.

The precautions related to the prostaglandins used should be followed if relevant.

4.5 Interaction with other drugs and other types of interactions.

Associations to be avoided

 Non steroidal anti-inflammatory drugs (NSAIDs) including aspirin. A decrease of the efficacy of the method can theoretically occur due to the antiprostaglandin properties of NSAIDs. Use preferably non-NSAIDs analgesics.

4.6 Pregnancy and lactation

Patients must be informed that in the event of failure of the methods, the pregnancy is liable to continue to develop. The fetus may then be exposed to a risk of malformation.

In studies performed in animals, fetal anomalies have been observed in rabbits (skull lesions), but not in rats and mice. No teratogenicity was observed after in vitro exposure of monkey embryos to mifepristone. When the pregnancy continued after mifepristone alone or with prostaglandins, uncommon cases of malformations have been reported in the fetus or the infant. Malformations have also been reported after the use of prostaglandins alone.

The exact role of mifepristone, prostaglandin analogue, or coincidental event cannot be established.

It is essential that termination of pregnancy by another method be undertaken at a follow-up visit, in the event of such failure.

Mifepristone is a lipophilic compound and may theoretically be excreted in the mother's breast milk. However, no data is available. Consequently, mifepristone use should be avoided during breast-feeding.

4.7 Effects or ability to drive and to use machines

Unknown.

4.8 Undesirable effects

Very common			:	>1/10
Common	>1/100	and	<1/10	
Uncommon	>1/1000	and	<1/100	i
Rare	>1/10,000	and	<1/1000	i
Very rare	<1/10,000			1

Urogenital

Bleeding

Bleeding occurs in almost all women and increases with the age of pregnancy at the time of termination.

Heavy bleeding occurs in about 5% of the cases and may require hemostatic curettage in up to 1.4% of the cases.

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

- Very common uterine contractions or cramping (10 to 45%) in the hours following prostaglandin intake.
- Uterine rupture has been uncommonly reported after prostaglandin intake for induction of second trimester termination of pregnancy of labour induction for fetal death in utero during the third trimester.

The reports occurred particularly in multiparous women or in women with a cesarean section scar.

Gastrointestinal

Nausea, vomiting, diarrhea, are very common after prostaglandin intake.

and a second and a second a s Cardiovascular

Uncommon hypotension (0.25%).

Hypersensitivity and skin

Uncommon skin rashes (0.2%). Single cases of urticaria of erythroderma, erythema nodosum, epidermal necrolysis have also been reported.

Other systems

Rare cases of headaches, malaise, common vagal symptoms (hot flushes, dizziness, chills), and uncommon fever have been reported.

4.9 Overdose

Dose-ranging studies have shown that administration of single doses of mifepristone up to 2 g caused no unwanted reaction.

In the event of accidental massive ingestion, signs of adrenal failure might occur. Any suggestion of acute intoxication, therefore, requires treatment in a specific environment, and with dexamethasone administration if relevant.

PHARMACOLOGICAL PROPERTIES 5.

5.1 Pharmacodynamic properties

OTHER SEX HORMONE AND MODULATOR OF THE REPRODUCTIVE FUNCTION/

ANTIPROGESTOGEN (GO3 X B01: Urogenital System and Sex Hormones).

Mifepristone is a synthetic steroid with an antiprogestational action as a result of competition with progesterone at the progesterone receptors.

FDACDER000284

. . . <u>.</u>

EXELGYN Medical Department

ليد المدينة بالمراجعين 2013 - مدينة المراجعين 2013 - مراجعين المراجع

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

At doses ranging from 3 to 10mg/kg orally, it inhibits the action of endogenous or exogenous progesterone in different animal species (rat, mouse, rabbit and monkey). This action is manifested in the form of pregnancy termination in rodents.

In women at doses greater than or equal to Img/kg, mifepristone antagonises the endometrial and myometrial effects of progesterone. During pregnancy it sensitises the myometrium to the contraction-inducing action of prostaglandins. During the first trimester, pre-treatment with mifepristone allows the dilatation and opening of the cervix uteri. While clinical data have demonstrated that mifepristone facilitates dilatation of the cervix, no data are available to indicate that this results in a lowering of the rate of early or late complications to the dilatation procedure.

> In the event of an early termination of pregnancy, the combination of a prostaglandin analogue used in a sequential regimen after mifepristone leads to an increase in the success rate to about 95 % of the cases and accelerates the expulsion of the conceptus.

In clinical trials, according to the prostaglandin used and the time of application, the results slightly vary.

The success rate is up to 95.7% when misoprostol is used orally up to 49 days of amenorrhea, and with gemeprost applied vaginally, it reaches to 98.7% up to 49 days of amenorrhea and to 94.8% up to 63 days of amenorrhea.

According to the clinical trials and to the type of prostaglandin used, the failure rate may vary. Failures occur in 1.3 to 7.5% of the cases receiving sequentially MIFEGYNE® followed by a prostaglandin analog, of which:

- 0 to 1.5% of ongoing pregnancies
- 1.3 to 4.6% of partial abortion, with incomplete expulsion
- 0 to 1.4% of hemostatic curettage

Combinations of mifepristone with other prostaglandin analogues have not been studied.

During the termination of pregnancy for medical reasons beyond the first trimester, mifepristone administered at a 600-mg dose, 36 to 48 hours prior to the first administration of prostaglandins, reduces the induction-abortion interval, and also decreases the prostaglandin doses required for the expulsion.

When used for labour induction of fetal death in utero, mifepristone alone induces expulsion in about 60% of cases within 72 hours following the first intake. In that event, the administration of prostaglandin or ocytocics would not be required.

الأنبعة بدراني المتحدية ال

a with their states of program

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

Mifepristone binds to the glucocorticoid receptor. It doesn't bind to mineralocorticoid receptors; therefore, the risk of acute adrenal failure during mifepristone intake is negligible. In animals at doses of 10 to 25mg/kg it inhibits the action of dexamethasone. In man the antiglucocorticoid action is manifested at a dose equal to or greater than 4.5mg/kg by a compensatory elevation of ACTH and cortisol.

Mifepristone has a weak anti-androgenic action which only appears in animals during prolonged administration of very high doses

5.2 Pharmacokinetic properties

After oral administration of a single dose of 600mg mifepristone is rapidly absorbed. The peak concentration of 1.98mg/l is reached after 1:30 hours (means of 10 subjects).

There is a non-linear dose response. After a distribution phase, elimination is at first slow, the concentration decreasing by a half between about 12 and 72 hours, and then more rapid, giving an elimination half-life of 18 hours. With radio receptor assay techniques, the terminal half-life is of up to 90 hours, including all metabolites of mifepristone able to bind to progesterone receptors.

After administration of low doses of mifepristone (20mg orally or intravenously), the absolute bioavailability is 69%.

In plasma mifepristone is 98% bound to plasma proteins: albumin and principally alpha-1-acid glycoprotein (AAG), to which binding is saturable. Due to this specific binding, volume of distribution and plasma clearance of mifepristone are inversely proportional to the plasma concentration of AAG.

N-Demethylation and terminal hydroxylation of the 17-propynyl chain are primary metabolic pathways of hepatic oxidative metabolism.

Mifepristone is mainly excreted in faeces. After administration of a 600mg labelled dose, 10% of the total radioactivity is eliminated in the urine and 90% in the faeces.

5.3 Preclinical safety data

In toxicological studies in rats and monkeys up to a duration of 6 months, mifepristone produced effects related to its antihormonal (antiprogesterone, antiglucocorticoid and antiandrogenic) activity.

م مستجيره و موجود مديني مديني مستجيره و موجود مديني

. in in the second

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

In reproduction toxicology studies, mifepristone acts as a potent abortifacient. No teratogenic effect of mifepristone was observed in rats and mice surviving foetal exposure. In rabbits surviving foetal exposure, however, isolated cases of severe abnormalities occurred (cranial vault, . . brain and spinal cord). The number of foetal anomalies was not statistically significant and no dose-effect was observed. In monkeys, the number of foetuses surviving the abortifacient action of mifepristone was insufficient for a conclusive assessment. a conclusive assessment. اليجيب بالمحد يدرين بالم المعالي المراجع الا الم أو الأراجي والعرب المراجع المحمول المحمول والمحرف المراجع والمراجع المعمدين بالتركين المعرون المعروفين المركسون المركس 6. PHARMACEUTICAL PARTICULARS 6.1 List of excipients Anhydrous colloidal silica, maize starch, povidone, microcrystalline cellulose; magnesium stearate. 6.2 Incompatibilities None known. 6.3 Shelf-life 3 years. 6.4 Special precautions for storage None. 6.5 Nature and contents of container Blister pack (PVC and Aluminium foil and carton) containing 3 tablets. 6.6 Instructions for Use/Handling The treatment procedure should be fully explained and completely understood by the patient.

- 7. MARKETING AUTHORISATION HOLDER
- MARKETING AUTORISATION NUMBER 8.
- DATE OF FIRST AUTHORISATION 9.
- 10. DATE OF REVISION OF THE TEXT November 2001.

:1

 $2 \times 2^{-1} \times 2^{-1}$

10 E

EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report nº13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31, 2002

APPENDIX 11.2.2.

31 L A

EUROPEAN SMPC APPROVED JULY 6TH, 1999 UPDATED NOVEMBER, 2000

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

SUMMARY OF PRODUCT CHARACTERISTICS

NAME OF THE MEDICINAL PRODUCT

MIFEGYNE® 200mg tablet

2. QUALITATIVE AND QUANTITATIVE COMPOSITION

Each tablet contains 200-mg mifepristone.

3. PHARMACEUTICAL FORM

Tablet.

داني ديده سده دا اس العقو يدديه ارتسطوه و

سادى سائا تەترىتى ھ

anna i baile a'

مى بىغىرىيە بىرىيىيە يېرىيە يېرىيە. ئىگە بىغار بىرىيە تەرىپە يېرىيە يېرىيە

Light yellow, cylindrical, biconvex tablets marked "167 B" on one side.

4. CLINICAL PARTICULARS

For termination of pregnancy, MIFEGYNE® and the prostaglandin can only be prescribed and administered in accordance with the countries laws and regulations.

As a consequence, they can only be prescribed by a medical doctor and in public or private hospital or centre (having approval to undertake termination of pregnancy). The product will be administered in the presence of the medical practitioner or of a delegated health professional.

If required by the afore mentioned laws and regulations, the patient should sign a letter of informed consent to certify that she has been fully informed about the method and its risks.

This timing of the first visit should take into account the requirement of some countries for a period of reflection prior to the abortion procedure.

4.1 Therapeutic indications

1- Medical termination of developing intra-uterine pregnancy.

In sequential use with a prostaglandin analogue, up to 49 days of amenorrhea.

FDACDER000289

المستحدثينية والمربع ويترجم والمروك والمناج والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع

ر سای درمان بر می در در می در از سال می در می در از می در می د در می در م

مېشمېسى د د د مەربىيى مەربىيى د مىر مېشمېسى د د د مەربىيى بېرىيى مىيتىد يەركىسى د مىر

el de **la presenta de la companya de la companya** de la companya de la comp

د الآيات. مواقعوا taran Barran Angela (an anti-angela angela ang Angela (angela angela angel

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

- Softening and dilatation of the cervix uteri prior to surgical termination of pregnancy during the first trimester.
- 3- Preparation for the action of prostaglandin analogues in the termination of pregnancy for medical reasons (beyond the first ten en tri Na en tri Na ant y trimester).

e **e de la companya de la companya de la companya**

4- Labour induction in foetal death in utero.

4- Labour induction in foetal death in utero. In patients where prostaglandin or oxytocin cannot be used.

Posology and Method of Administration

اس بنیزین بر اند

1- Medical termination of developing intra-uterine pregnancy

The method of administration will be as follows:

600mg of mifepristone (i.e. 3 tablets of 200mg each) is taken in a single oral dose, followed by 36 to 48 hours later, the administration of a prostaglandin analogue; misoprostol 400µg orally, or gemeprost 1mg per vaginum.

2- Softening and dilatation of the cervix uteri prior to surgical termination of pregnancy during the first trimester

200mg of mifepristone (one tablet), followed 36 to 48 hours later (but not beyond) by surgical termination of pregnancy.

3- Preparation for the action of prostaglandin analogues in the termination of pregnancy for medical reasons

600mg of mifepristone (i.e. 3 tablets of 200mg each) taken in a single oral dose, 36 to 48 hours prior to scheduled prostaglandin administration which will be repeated as often as indicated.

4- Labour induction in foetal death in utero

600mg of mifepristone (e.g. 3 tablets of 200mg each) in a single oral daily dose, for two consecutive days.

Labour should be induced by the usual methods if it has not started within 72 hours following the first administration of mifebristone.

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report nº13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

4.3 Contra-indications

a star in the

the strategies and a second second

This product SHOULD NEVER be prescribed in the following situations.

ವ ಕ್ರಮ ವೈದ್ಯ ಸ್ಥೇಷ್ಠವು ಗೋಗಿದೆ. ಇದು ಗ್ರೇಕ್ಷ್ ಪ್ರಮುಖ ಮೇಲೆ ಕ್ರಮ ಸಂಗ್ರೆಯು

In all indications

- Chronic adrenal failure
 - Known allergy to mifepristone or to any component of the product
 - Severe asthma uncontrolled by therapy

Inherited porphyria

In the indication: medical termination of developing intra-uterine pregnancy

- pregnancy not confirmed by ultrasound scan or biological tests
- pregnancy of 50 days' amenorrhea and beyond
- suspected extra-uterine pregnancy.
- contra-indication to the prostaglandin analogue selected

In the indication: softening and dilatation of the cervix uteri prior to surgical termination of pregnancy:

- pregnancy not confirmed by ultrasound scan or biological test
- pregnancy of 84 days of amenorrhea and beyond (according to legal requirements)
- suspected extra-uterine pregnancy

<u>Preparation for the action of prostaglandin analogues in the termination</u> of pregnancy for medical reasons (beyond the first trimester)

contra-indications to the prostaglandin analogue selected

Labour induction in foetal death in utero

Should prostaglandin combination be required, refer to contra-indications to the prostaglandin analogue selected.

1.17

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

4.4 Special warnings and special precautions for use

Warnings

S Rev Las

In the absence of specific studies, MIFEGYNE® is not recommended in -patients with: -1.5.221 Renal failure 💷 Hepatic failure Malnutrition

1- Medical termination of developing intra-uterine pregnancy -

This method requires an active involvement of the woman who should be informed of the method's requirements:

- the necessity to combine treatment with prostaglandin to be administered at a second visit,
- the need for a control visit (3rd visit) within 10 to 14 days after MIFEGYNE's intake in order to check for complete expulsion,
- The possible failure of the method, leading to a pregnancy termination by another method.

In the case of a pregnancy occurring with an intra-uterine device in situ, this device must be removed before administration of MIFEGYNE®.

The expulsion may take place before prostaglandin administration (in about 3% of cases). This does not preclude the control visit in order to check for the complete expulsion and the uterine vacuity.

Risks related to the method

- Failures

The non-negligible risk of failure, which occurs in 1.3 to 7.5 % of the cases, makes the control visit mandatory in order to check that the expulsion is completed.

Bleeding

The patient must be informed of the occurrence of prolonged vaginal bleeding (up to 12 days after MIFEGYNE® intake) which may be heavy. Bleeding occurs in almost all cases and is not in anyway a proof of complete expulsion.

FDACDER000292

5

6.5

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

The patient should be informed not to travel far away from the prescribing centre as long as complete expulsion has not been recorded. She will receive precise instructions as to whom she should contact and where to go, in the event of any problems emerging, particularly in the case of very heavy vaginal bleeding.

A follow-up visit must take place within a period of 10 to 14 days after administration of MIFEGYNE® to verify by the appropriate means (clinical examination, ultrasound scan, and Beta-HCG measurement) that expulsion has been completed and that vaginal bleeding has stopped. In case of persistent bleeding (even light) beyond the control visit, its disappearance should be checked within a few days.

If an ongoing pregnancy is suspected, a further ultrasound scan may be required to evaluate its viability.

Persistence of vaginal bleeding at this point could signify incomplete abortion, or an unnoticed extra-uterine pregnancy, and appropriate treatment should be considered.

In the event of an ongoing pregnancy diagnosed after the control visit, termination by another method will be proposed to the woman.

Since heavy bleeding requiring hemostatic curettage occurs in 0 to 1.4% of the cases during the medical method of pregnancy termination, special care should be given to patients with <u>hemostatic disorders</u> with hypocoagulability, or with <u>anemia</u>. The decision to use the medical or the surgical method should be decided with specialised consultants according to the type of hemostatic disorder and the level of anaemia.

2- Softening and dilatation of the cervix uteri prior to surgical pregnancy termination

For the full efficacy of therapy, the use of MIFEGYNE® must be followed,

36 to 48 hours later and not beyond, by surgical termination.

Risks related to the method

- Bleeding

The woman will be informed of the risk of vaginal bleeding which may be heavy, following MIFEGYNE's intake. She should be informed of the risk of abortion prior to surgery (although minimal): she will be informed on where to go in order to check for the completeness of expulsion, or in any case of emergency.

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

Other risks

They are those of the surgical procedure.

3- In all instances

The use of MIFEGYNE® requires rhesus determination and hence the prevention of rhesus allo-immunisation as well as other general measures taken usually during any termination of pregnancy.

During clinical trials, pregnancies occurred between embryo expulsion and the resumption of menses.

To avoid potential exposure of a subsequent pregnancy to mitepristene, it is recommended that conception be avoided during the next menstrual cycle. Reliable contraceptive precautions should therefore commence as early as possible after mitepristone administration.

والتشريح والمراجع

Precautions for use

1- In all instances

In case of suspected acute adrenal failure, dexamethasone administration is recommended. 1mg of dexamethasone antagonises a dose of 400mg of mifepristone.

Due to the antiglucocorticoid activity of mifepristone, the efficacy of longterm corticosteroid therapy, including inhaled corticosteroids in asthmatic patients, may be decreased during the 3 to 4 days following MIFEGYNE's intake. Therapy should be adjusted.

A decrease of the efficacy of the method can theoretically occur due to the antiprostaglandin properties of non-steroidal anti-inflammatory drugs (NSAIDs) including aspirin (acetyl salicylic acid). Use preferably non-NSAI analgesics.

2- Medical termination of developing intra-uterine pregnancy

Rare serious cardiovascular accidents have been reported following the intra muscular administration of the prostaglandin analogue sulprostone (withdrawn in 1992). No such cases have been reported since analogues of PGE₁ (gemeprost or misoprostol) have been used. For these reasons and as a special precautionary measure, the medical method is not recommended for use in women over 35 years of age and who smoke more than 10 cigarettes a day.

Method of prostaglandin administration

During intake and for three hours following the intake, the patients should be monitored in the treatment centre, which must be equipped with the appropriate equipment.

FDACDER000294
Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 -- from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

3- For the sequential use of MIFEGYNE® - Prostaglandin, whatever the indication

The precautions related to the prostaglandin used should be followed where relevant.

4.5 Interaction with other medicinal products and other forms of interactions

No studies to investigate possible interactions between mifepristone and other drugs have been carried out.

Ъ. .

• and the second s

Pregnancy and lactation

ا مېدىنى يې بېدىنە مەروۋتورۇمىۋە بېتە بور ئى

In animals (see section 5.3 Pre-clinical safety data), the abortifacient effect of mifepristone precludes the proper assessment of any teratogenic effect of the molecule.

With subabortive doses, isolated cases of malformations observed in rabbits, but not in rats or mice were too few to be considered significant, or attributable to mifepristone.

In humans, the few reported cases of malformations do not allow a causality assessment for mifepristone alone or associated to prostaglandin. Therefore, data is too limited to determine whether the molecule is a human teratogen.

Consequently:

- Women should be informed, that due to the risk of failure of the medical method of pregnancy termination and to the unknown risk to the foetus, the control visit is mandatory (see Section 4.4 special warnings and special precautions for use).
- Should a failure of the method be diagnosed at the control visit (viable ongoing pregnancy), and should the patient still agree, pregnancy termination should be completed by another method.
- Should the patient wish to continue with her pregnancy, the available data is too limited to justify a systematic termination of an exposed pregnancy. In that event, a careful ultra-sonographic monitoring of the pregnancy will be established.

Lactation

Mifepristone is a lipophilic compound and may theoretically be excreted in the mother's breast milk. However, no data is available. Consequently, mifepristone use should be avoided during breast-feeding.

FDACDER000295

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report nº13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

4.7 Effects on ability to drive and to use machines

Not known.

4.8 Undesirable effects

Most frequently reported undesirable effects

- Urogenital
 - Bleeding

Heavy bleeding occurs in about 5% of the cases and may require hemostatic curettage in up to 1.4% of the cases.

 Very common uterine contractions or cramping (10 to 45%) in the hours following prostaglandin intake.

- During induction of second trimester termination of pregnancy or labour induction for foetal death in utero during the third trimester, uterine rupture has been uncommonly reported after prostaglandin intake. The reports occurred particularly in multiparous women or in women with a caesarean section scar.

- Gastrointestinal
 - Cramping, light or moderate.
 - Nausea, vomiting.
- Undesirable effects related to prostaglandin use: nausea, vomiting or diarrhoea, and rarely hypotension (0.25%)

Other undesirable effects

- Hypersensitivity and skin
 - Hypersensitivity: skin rashes uncommon (0.2%), single cases of urticaria.
 - Single cases of erythroderma, erythema nodosum, epidermal necrolysis have also been reported.
- Other systems

Rare cases of headaches, malaise, vagal symptoms (hot flushes, dizziness, chills have been reported) and fever.

4.9 Overdose

After extensive clinical use, no reports of acute intoxication have been reported.

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report nº13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

In the event of accidental massive ingestion, signs of adrenal failure might occur. Signs of acute intoxication may require specialist treatment including the administration of dexamethasone.

5. PHARMACOLOGICAL PROPERTIES

5.1 Pharmacodynamic properties

OTHER SEX HORMONE AND MODULATOR OF THE REPRODUCTIVE FUNCTION/ ANTIPROGESTOGEN (GO3 X B01: Urogenital System and Sex Hormones).

Mifepristone is a synthetic steroid with an antiprogestational action as a result of competition with progesterone at the progesterone receptors.

متريين . متريين .

At doses ranging from 3 to 10mg/kg orally, it inhibits the action of endogenous or exogenous progesterone in different animal species (rat, mouse, rabbit and monkey). This action is manifested in the form of pregnancy termination in rodents.

In women at doses of greater than or equal to 1mg/kg, mifepristone antagonises the endometrial and myometrial effects of progesterone. During pregnancy it sensitises the myometrium to the contraction- inducing action of prostaglandin. During the first trimester, pre-treatment with mifepristone allows the dilatation and opening of the cervix uteri. While clinical data have demonstrated that mifepristone facilitates dilatation of the cervix, no data are available to indicate that this results in a lowering of the rate of early or late complications to the dilatation procedure.

In the event of an early termination of pregnancy, the combination of a prostaglandin analogue used in a sequential regimen after mifepristone leads to an increase in the success rate to about 95 per cent of the cases and accelerates the expulsion of the conceptus.

In clinical trials, according to the prostaglandin used and the time of application, the results vary slightly.

The success rate is up to 95.7% when misoprostol is used orally up to 49 days of amenorrhea, and with gemeprost applied vaginally, it reaches 98.7% up to 49 days of amenorrhea and 94.8% up to 63 days of amenorrhea.

According to the clinical trials and to the type of prostaglandin used, the failure rate varies. Failures occur in 1.3 to 7.5% of the cases receiving sequentially MIFEGYNE® followed by a prostaglandin analog, of which:

- 0 to 1.5% of ongoing pregnancies

.

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

- 1.3 to 4.6% of partial abortion, with incomplete expulsion

- 0 to 1.4% of hemostatic curettage

Combinations of mifepristone with other prostaglandin analogues have not been studied.

During the termination of pregnancy for medical reasons beyond the first trimester, mifepristone administered at a 600-mg dose, 36 to 48 hours prior to the first administration of prostaglandins, reduces the induction-abortion interval, and also decreases the prostaglandin doses required for the expulsion.

When used for labour induction of foetal death in utero, mifepristone alone induces expulsion in about 60% of cases within 72 hours following the first intake. In that event, the administration of prostaglandin or ocytocics would not be required.

Mifepristone binds to the glucocorticoid receptor. It doesn't bind to mineralocorticoid receptors; therefore, the risk of acute adrenal failure during mifepristone intake is negligible. In animals at doses of 10 to 25mg/kg it inhibits the action of dexamethasone. In man the antiglucocorticoid action is manifested at a dose equal to or greater than 4.5mg/kg by a compensatory elevation of ACTH and cortisol.

Mifepristone has a weak anti-androgenic action which only appears in animals during prolonged administration of very high doses.

5.2 Pharmacokinetic properties

After oral administration of a single dose of 600mg mifepristone is rapidly absorbed. The peak concentration of 1.98mg/l is reached after 1.30 hours (means of 10 subjects).

There is a non-linear dose response. After a distribution phase, elimination is at first slow, the concentration decreasing by a half between about 12 and 72 hours, and then more rapid, giving an elimination half-life of 18 hours. With radio receptor assay techniques, the terminal half-life is of up to 90 hours, including all metabolites of mifepristone able to bind to progesterone receptors.

After administration of low doses of mifepristone (20mg orally or intravenously), the absolute bioavailability is 69%.

In plasma mifepristone is 98% bound to plasma proteins: albumin and principally alpha-1-acid glycoprotein (AAG), to which binding is saturable. Due to this specific binding, volume of distribution and plasma clearance of mifepristone are inversely proportional to the plasma concentration of AAG.

FDACDER000298

. --[:].

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

N-Demethylation and terminal hydroxylation of the 17-propynyl chain are primary metabolic pathways of hepatic oxidative metabolism.

Mifepristone is mainly excreted in faeces. After administration of a 600mg labelled dose, 10% of the total radioactivity is eliminated in the urine and 90% in the faeces.

Preclinical safety data

and a second In toxicological studies in rats and monkeys up to a duration of 6 months, mifepristone produced effects related to its antihormonal (antiprogesterone, antiglucocorticoid and antiandrogenic) activity.

ان به ومسیعه می آرد به کوه به در مسیقه می تواند کوه در ماهم

- ---- --- A

In reproduction toxicology studies, mifepristone acts as a potent abortifacient. No teratogenic effect of mifepristone was observed in rats and mice surviving foetal exposure. In rabbits surviving foetal exposure, however, isolated cases of severe abnormalities occurred (cranial vault, brain and spinal cord). The number of foetal anomalies was not statistically significant and no dose-effect was observed. In monkeys, the number of foetuses surviving the abortifacient action of mifepristone was insufficient for a conclusive assessment.

PHARMACEUTICAL PARTICULARS 6.

6.1 List of excipients

Colloidal silica anhydrous, maize starch, povidone, magnesium stearate, microcrystalline cellulose.

6.2 Incompatibilities

Not applicable.

6.3 Shelf-life

3 years.

6.4 Special precautions for storage

None.

FDACDER000299

EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report nº13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

6.5 Nature and contents of container

3 tablets in blister (PVC / Aluminium).

6.6 Instructions for use and handling

n i mari i

Not applicable.

7.

. .

MARKETING AUTHORISATION HOLDER

EXELGYN 6, rue Christophe Colomb 75008 PARIS France

8. MARKETING AUTHORISATION NUMBER

9. DATE OF FIRST AUTHORISATION/RENEWAL OF THE AUTHORISATION

10. DATE OF REVISION OF THE TEXT

November 2000.

EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report nº13 -- from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

APPENDIX 11.3.

STATUS OF CLINICAL TRIALS

EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

APPENDIX 11.3.1

CLINICAL TRIALS IN PROGRESS

يغتير ه

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report nº13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

ONGOING CLINICAL TRIALS NOT SPONSORED BY THE COMPANY BUT FOR WHICH EXELGYN PROVIDED THE ACTIVE AND PLACEBO TABLETS

	PRINCIPAL INVESTIGATOR	COUNTRY	TITLE	N PATIENTS		SINGLE DOSE	Report	
and TRIAL CODE				ENROLLED	EXPECTED	(mg)		
							a)) (4)
			·					

1 . . .

EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 – from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

APPENDIX 11.3.2.

NAMED-PATIENTS STUDIES

EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 314, 2002

Named-patients studies May 31st, 2002

- 41 with unresectable meningioma
 - 1 with leiomyosarcoma
 - 1 with adrenal tumors (Cushing syndromes)
 - 1 with paraganglioma
 - 1 with paraneoplastic syndrome
 - 2 with psychotic depression
 - 1 with neurofibromatosis type II
 - 1 with ovarian cancer

49 Patients

APPENDIX 11.4

LINE LISTINGS OF INDIVIDUAL CASE HISTORIES

EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report nº13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

4

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 – from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

CIOMS LISTING

Company number	Reaction term			· - 15	a Tha Jama and	
Date Country	Type of rep	oort labell	ed Indication	1	Outco	още
Reaction / event descripti	oa					
Case comments				-		
SERIOUSNE	SS		·	Yes	2. A 2 1. A 2.	
	REPRODU	JCTIVE DIS	SORDERS, F	EMALE		
S2002003F/MIF1 F	PREGNANCY U	NINTENTED N	TERMINATION C	OF PREGNANCY	Fetal n	nalformation
UNINTENTED PREGNA	NCY, FETAL MALFOR	RMATION:		i		
On (b) (6) for medical On (b) (6) she came corresponding to 15 week On (b) (6) therapeutic was malformed with meni	termination of pregnancy back to the hospital for s gestation and revealed c termination of pregnan- ngo-encephalocele, fingo	y at 7 weeks gestat an amenorrhea. A embryo (LCC: 90) cy was decided and er defects on the le	tion. She did not return n ultrasound examina rum) with a cephalic a d performed. Post-abo ft hand (oligodactylia)	n for the control 2 ation showed a via abnonnality (encep ortum examination) and feet (monod)	weeks later, able intra-uteri phalocele). revealed a 92 actidia) and du	ine pregnanc g fetus whic
Company comments: There were no reported ca	ses of malformation asso	ociated with use of	misoprostol when use	ed with mifepristor	ne.	Sinorpina.
Company comments: There were no reported ca S2001020F/MIF1 (b) (6) F	ses of malformation asso EXCESSIVE BLI spontaneous	eciated with use of EEDING Y	misoprostol when use	ed with mifepriston	ne.	covered
Company comments: There were no reported ca S2001020F/MIF1 (b) (6) F INCOMPLETE ABORTIC	Ses of malformation asso EXCESSIVE BLI Spontaneous DN, EXCESSIVE BLEE	eciated with use of EEDING Y	misoprostol when use	ed with mifepriston	ne. CY Re	covered
Company comments: There were no reported ca S2001020F/MIF1 (b) (6) F INCOMPLETE ABORTIC This case from France (R medical termination of pr She changed her mind, d excessive bleeding and ca recovered with sequelae.	EXCESSIVE BLI Spontaneous DN, EXCESSIVE BLEE egional Centre of Pharm egnancy at 12 weeks ges lecided to keep her preg une to the emergency roo	EEDING Y DING: nacovigilance) inv. tation, on (b) gnancy and did no om. An incomplete	TERMINATION olved a 22-year-old w to take misoprostol. C e abortion was diagno	od with mifepriston	CY Re red mifepristor (b) (6) sh was performe	ecovered ne 200 mg fa e experience d. The patien
Company comments: There were no reported ca S2001020F/MIF1 (b) (6) F INCOMPLETE ABORTIO This case from France (R medical termination of par She changed her mind, d excessive bleeding and ca recovered with sequelae. Company comments: Case of misuse. Non c administered (medical TO	EXCESSIVE BLI Spontaneous ON, EXCESSIVE BLEE egional Centre of Pharm gnancy at 12 weeks ges lecided to keep her preg une to the emergency ro- onformed uses with re	EEDING Y DING: nacovigilance) invi- tation, on (b) gnancy and did no om. An incomplete spect to the Sml rrhea).	TERMINATION TERMINATION TERMINATION olved a 22-year-old w (6) t take misoprostol. C e abortion was diagno	ed with mifepriston	cY Re cY Re ed mifepristor (b) (6) sh was performe y. Mifepristor	ecovered ne 200 mg fa e experience d. The patie
Company comments: There were no reported ca S2001020F/MIF1 (b) (6) F INCOMPLETE ABORTIO This case from France (R medical termination of pro She changed her mind, do excessive bleeding and ca recovered with sequelae. Company comments: Case of misuse. Non c administered (medical TO S2001025F/MIF1 □ F	Ses of malformation asso EXCESSIVE BLI spontaneous ON, EXCESSIVE BLEE egional Centre of Pharm egnancy at 12 weeks ges lecided to keep her preg inter to the emergency ro- onformed uses with re Pat 12 weeks of amenon PREGNANCY U spontaneous	EEDING Y DING: nacovigilance) inv tation, on (b) gnancy and did no om. An incomplete spect to the Smi rrhea).	TERMINATION O	ed with mifepriston	CY Re ed mifepristor (b) (6) sh was performe y. Mifepristor Reco	ecovered ne 200 mg f de experience d. The patie ne incorrect
Company comments: There were no reported ca S2001020F/MIF1 (b) (6) F INCOMPLETE ABORTION This case from France (R medical termination of pro- She changed her mind, do excessive bleeding and ca recovered with sequelae. Company comments: Case of misuse. Non c administered (medical TO S2001025F/MIF1 F UNINTENDED PREGN/	Ses of malformation asso EXCESSIVE BLI spontaneous ON, EXCESSIVE BLEE egional Centre of Pharm egnancy at 12 weeks gess lecided to keep her preg ime to the emergency row onformed uses with re PREGNANCY U spontaneous NNCY:	EEDING Y DING: nacovigilance) investation, on mancy and did no om. An incomplete spect to the Sml mhea).	TERMINATION O	ed with mifepriston	CY Re ed mifepristor (b) (6) sh was performe y. Mifepristor Reco	ecovered ne 200 mg f e experience d. The patien ne incorrect
Company comments: There were no reported ca S2001020F/MIF1 (b) (6) F INCOMPLETE ABORTION This case from France (R medical termination of pro- She changed her mind, do excessive bleeding and ca recovered with sequelae. Company comments: Case of misuse. Non c administered (medical TO S2001025F/MIF1 □ F UNINTENDED PREGNA This case from France im- later for termination of pro-	ses of malformation asso EXCESSIVE BLI spontaneous ON, EXCESSIVE BLEE egional Centre of Pharm gnancy at 12 weeks ges lecided to keep her preg- ime to the emergency row onformed uses with re- P at 12 weeks of amenor PREGNANCY U spontaneous NNCY: volved a 32-year-old wor egnancy. The treatment f	EEDING Y DING: nacovigilance) investation, on (b) gnancy and did no om. An incomplete spect to the Smirrhea). NINTENDED Y man who received failed and the patie	TERMINATION TERMINATION olved a 22-year-old w (6) t take misoprostol. C e abortion was diagno PC of Mifegyne [®] . I TERMINATION O mifepristone 600 mg ent requested surgical i	ed with mifepriston N OF PREGNANC voman. She receiv One day later on used and curettage improper posolog F PREGNANCY on (b) (6) and termination of pre	cy Re cy Re ed mifepristor (b) (6) sh was performe y. Mifepristor Reco f misoprostol	ecovered ne 200 mg fa ne experience d. The patien ne incorrect overed 400 me 2 day

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 – from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

CIOMS LISTING

. -

	·					
	· · · · ·		MIFEPRISTONE			م من
	Company number	Reaction term				
× * * *-	Date Country-	Type of	f report label	led Indication		Outcome
	Reaction / event description	1		• •		
	Case comments	· · ·				
	SERIOUSNES	S		-	Yes	
		REPRO	DUCTIVE DIS	SORDERS, FE	MALE	
	S2001026F/MIF1	PREGNANC spontaneous	Y UNINTENDED Y	TERMINATION	OF PREGNANCY	Recovered
	UNINTENDED PREGNAN	ICY:				
	This case from France invo	lved a 29-year-old nancy. The treatm	woman who received ent failed and the patie	mifepristone 600 mg o nt requested surgical te	n (b) (6) and misop mination of pregnancy	rostol 400 µg 2 days on (b) (6)
	Company comments:					
	S2001027F/MIF1	PREGNANC spontaneous	Y UNINTENDED Y	TERMINATION	OFPREGNANCY	Recovered
	UNINTENDED PREGNAN	ICY:				•
	This case from France invo later for termination of preg	lved a 23-year-old nancy. The treatm	woman who received ent failed and the patie	mifepristone 600 mg o int requested surgical te	n (b) (o) and misop mination of pregnancy	rostol 400 ng 2 days (b) (6)
	Company comments:					
	S2001028F/MIF1	PREGNANC	Y UNINTENDED	TEPMINIATION		Bassyand
	U L	spontancous	1	TERMINATION	OF FREDRANC I	Recovered
	This case from France invo later for termination of preg	lved a 28-year-old mancy. The treatm	woman who received ent failed and the patie	mifepristone 600 mg o ent requested surgical te	n (b) (6) ind misop mination of pregnancy	on (b) (6)
	Company comments:					
	S2001029F/MIF1	PREGNANC	Y UNINTENDED			
	□ F UNINTENDED PREGNAN	spontaneous	Y	TERMINATION	OF PREGNANCY	Recovered
	This case from France invo later for termination of preg	lved a 32-year-old mancy. The treatm	woman who received ent failed and the patie	mifepristone 600 mg o ent requested surgical to	(b) (6) and misor mination of pregnancy	on (b) (6)
	Company comments:					
					1	

. . .

ment cap to so . the

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

OMS LISTING ner: MIFEPRISTONE Company number Reaction term Date Country Type of report labelled Indication Outcome * Reaction / event description Case comments SERIOUSNESS Yes BODY AS WHOLE-GENERAL DISORDERS S2002004UK/MIF1 DEATH TERMINATION OF PREGNANCY N (b) (6) UK spontaneous DEATH: This case from UK involved a young woman who received mifepristone 200 mg on (b) (6) followed by misoprotol 800 µg two days later for medical termination of pregnancy at 7.5 weeks gestation. She was treated also by codeine and paracetamol for pain relief and azithromycin I mg antibiotic as prophylaxis of infection. The procedure went well and the patient was discharged home. (b) (6) evening, the patient started to feel unwell and reported pain in her leg, headache and racing heart. She reported to the On hospital accident and emergency department but she collapsed and she died in the ambulance before her arrival at the hospital. No information available at the moment of the time scale involved nor the details of her symptoms at the time of death. Preliminary information from post-mortem indicates that one litre of blood was found in the stomach and gastric ulceration was identified. Company comments:

The cause of the death is still unknown. Further details are requested. Results of the toxicology tests and the Coroners findings are still not available.

S2002001F/MI	71	CHEST PAIN			
(b) (6)	F	spontaneous	N	FETAL DEATH IN UTERO	Recovered

THORACIC PAIN, ISCHEMIC ACCIDENT:

This case from France involved a 29-year-old female patient without relevant medical history. She received mifepristone 600 mg on (b) (6) for fetal death in utero at 22 weeks gestation.

Or (b) (6), another dose of mitepristone 600 mg was given, and the same day the patient experienced thoracic pain. She came to the emergency room, an ECG was performed and showed a subepicardial anteseptal ischemia. The patient was hospitalised in cardiology unit. Biological complementary exams were performed and showed very high level of antiphospholipid antibodies. This result together with the symptoms (Fetal Death in Utero + ischemia) allowed the physician to make the diagnosis of antiphospholipid Syndrome (systemic disease).

Or (b) (6), cervical dilatation with laminarias was performed to induce dead foetus evacuation.

Or (b) (6) expulsion occurred under peridural anaesthesia without any cardiovascular symptom. She was transferred to the intensive care unit and monitored during 24h. The patient recovered and had no additional complications. Complementary exams were requested by the physician to confirm the diagnosis of systemic disease.

Company comments:

There is no known effect of mifepristone on the vessels. The relationship to Mifegyn[®] is unlikely in view of the fact that the patient was suffering from a latent systemic disease.

. 4. ...

à

ţ

EXELGYN Medical Department

÷

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

marte , '- '		, , - , - , - , - , - , - , - , - ,	
ا بوئیہ ا مرید ہ	CIOMSLISTING		
	CICINIS LISTING		-
			- 2 ⁽⁴⁾⁷ = -
and the second	MIEFPDISTONE		in and in a second s Second second
			andre for an alternative and the second s The second seco
	Company number Reaction term		
 A standard and a standard and a	Date	Outcome	And and an an an and an and an
	Laberton Country-		and a second at the second sec
	Reaction / event description	4, , da, 72, , da 4, y	and the second
- 7,777,		-	- 2. The second se
مەربىيە بېرىشىدى. مەربىيە بېرىشىدى بىرىسىدى مەربىيە بېرىشى بىرىسىدى بىرىسىدى			ματικής τους ματικής μαραγικής του ματαπογικής παραγικής του ματαπογικής παραγικής του ματαπογικής παραγικής του ματαπογικής παραγικής του ματαπογικής παραγικής πορογικης πορογικης πορογικης πορογικης πορογικης πορογικης πορογικης πορογικης πορογιστης πορογικης πορογικης πορογικης πορογικης πορογικης πορογικης πορογικης πορογικης πορογικης πορογικης πορογικης πορογικης πορογικης πορογικης πορογιστης πορογ α α α α α α α α α α α α α α α α α α α
ra i venet i li ji	SERIOUSNESS Yes		
	BODY AS WHOLE-GENERAL DISORDERS		· · ·
- 42 4	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		ant mittagen fa
	S2001022F/MIF1 EDEMA (b) (6) F spontaneous Y TERMINATION OF EARLY PRE	EGNANCY Recovered	
8. 	ALLERGIC REACTION, PALPEBRAL EDEMA:		
* *.	This case from France involved a 19-year-old woman who received mifepristone 600 mg on (b) (6)	for medical termination of	
- 1	pregnancy. On (b) (6), she received at 6:45 a.m. misoprostol, Temgesic® (buprenorphine), Monocline® (dox	very state (very state of the s	
t	(metoclopramide). At 8a.m., she received Pro-Dafalgan® (propacétamol) and Profenid® (kétaprofene). Sh experienced bilateral palpebral edema without any cardiovascular and pulmonary symptom. The hemodyn	e vomited immediately and	
7	She was treated immediately with Celesten® (betaméthasone) and she left the hospital the same day. Cuta for Cytotec [®] (micoprotol). Temesic [®] Monocline [®] Pro-Datalgan [®] Profenid [®] and Monocline [®] All were ne	neous tests were performed	
,			
8	Company comments: Expected and listed adverse event		
	. ·		
:	S2001030F/MIF1 ALERGIC REACTION (b) (6) F spontaneous Y TERMINATION OF EARLY PRE	GNANCY Recovered	
1	CYTOTEC ALLERGIC REACTION:		
• •	This case from France involved a patient who received mifepristone and misoprostol for medical te	mination of pregnancy on	
2 1	(b) (6). The patient developed allergic reaction 2 hours after taking misoprostol, she had nallor, tachycardia hy	potension. The patient was	
	hospitalized and treatment was given. The medical termination of pregnancy failed and the patient reques	sted surgical termination of intrinordial. The tests were	
	negative for mifepristone and trinordiol. Misoprostol test was strongly positive and the drug became contra-	indicated for the patient.	
	Company comments: Expected and listed adverse event		
•.*	Company continents. Expected and aster acress over		
•			x

æ .

, ,

EXELGYN Medical Department

÷

1 - D.44

3

<, -,Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

t n an a	and a second for the second	
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	CIONGLISTING	••• • • •
,		
		ny nagala g
	MIFEPRISTONE	ئى. يۇجۇرچە تى تەرى
	Company number Reaction term	
and a second sec	Date Country Type of report labelled Indication Outcome	Stram Stram
	Reaction / event description	աներությունները Տեղերեն հետորություն Դրու
		المركز معرضي مركز المركز المركز معرضي مركز المركز المركز مركز المركز الم
a sa ang ng nanana na 1,2 mara a A na na 2,200 na na ang na ang na ang na na ng nang na	Case comments	
ಕ್ಷ್ ಕ್ಷೇತ್ರ ಸಂಕರ್ಷ ಕ್ಷೇತ್ರ ಕ್ಷಣ್ಣ ಕ್ಷಣ್ಣ ಹೆಸ್ಟ್ ಕ್ಷಣ್ಣ ಕ್ಷಣ್ಣ ಕ್ಷಣ್ಣ ಕ್ಷಣ್ಣ	SERIOUSNESS	-
La construction de la construcción de la construcci	RESISTENCE MECHANISM DISORDERS	
n na	S2001019F/MIF1 SEPTICEMIA (b) (6) F spontaneous Y TERMINATION OF EARLY PREGNANCY Recovered	
5 1	STREPTOCOCCUS SEPTICEMIA, ENDOMETRITIS, ARTHRITIS, ICTERUS, ANEMIA:	
	This case from France involved a 29-year-old woman who was given mitepristone 400 mg on (b) (6) for medical termination of pregnancy while she was at 7.3 weeks of amenorhea. She received misoprostol (400 μ g x 2) two days later on the (b) (6) The patient did not bleed very much during the three hours observation period and the expulsion did not occur. She went home with a prescription for an ultrasound examination, analgesics and oral contraception. On (b) (6), the patient experienced fever (40°C), vomiting and diarrhea. After examination, the doctor diagnosed febrile arthritis of the left knee. The patient came to emergency room with icterus, important metrorrhagia and pelvic pain at the gynaecological examination. An ultrasound was done and showed a normal uterus with a normal size. Hemoglobin level was 8.7 g/l, SGPT 69 and SGOT 96, bilirubin level was 66 μ mol/l and β HCG were 47,000 mUl/ml. She was hospitalised and the diagnosis of endometritis with secondary localisation at left knee was done. She was treated with amoxicillin-clavulanic acid, netilmicin and oxytocin. On (b) (6), at 1 a.m., vacuum aspiration was performed because of heavy bleeding and low hemoglobin level (6.9 g/l). The same day, at 6 a.m. the hemoglobin level decreased to 4.9 g/l and blood transfusion was performed. Hemocultures and bacteriological test of vaginal fluid were done and revealed a <i>Streptococcus dysgalactiae penicillin sensible</i> . The treatment was changed to amoxicillin and metronidazole. On (b) (6) puncture of the knee showed 1,000 white blood cells (95% sterile polynuclear). On an arthroscopy was performed and β HCG were 4,800 mUl-ml. Apyrexia was obtained after 72h of antibiotherapy. On gynaecologic problems were resolved, the outcome was favorable with a good status of the patient and normal clinical examination.	
n an N	Company comments: The dose of mifepristone (400 mg) was less than the recommended one (600 mg).	
- - - -		
- - - - - - - -		

FDACDER000311

EXELGYN Medical Department

ł

ļ

ų.

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

.

21 - M	the second s	7 1910 - 1911 - 1911 - 1911 - 1911 - 1911 - 1911 - 1911 - 1911 - 1911 - 1911 - 1911 - 1911 - 1911 - 1911 - 1911 -
La di La construir di La const	CIOMS LISTING	
		-
	MIFEPRISTONE	
	Company number Reaction term	
	Date Country Type of report labelled Indication Outcome	And The Contract of the Contra
аларан аларан Аларан аларан	Reaction / event description	ار استان استان استان استان است استان استان است استان استان است
չիստեսումները այս է հայնումները են անձանումները առաները հայնումները հայնում հայ հետումները հայ հետում հայ հետումները հայ հետում հայ հետումները հայ հետում հայ հետում հետու հետում հետու հետու հետում հետու	Case comments	nan
	SERIOUSNESS No	
	REPRODUCTIVE DISORDERS, FEMALE	r
• `• • ` •	S20000024S/MIF2 PREGNANCY UNINTENDED	
	UNINTENDED PRECINANCY NORMAL BABY:	
	This case from Sweden involved 20-year-old woman who was treated with mifepristone 600 mg followed by gemeprost Img at 8-9 weeks gestation. She came back to the hospital, after 4 weeks for control by urinary pregnancy test. The result was negative. She came back again later to the hospital and a 23 weeks pregnancy was shown by ultrascan. Application for late abortion was made but the authority did not approve (this case was reported in PSUR n°10: S2000024S/MIF). The pregnancy was normal and a totally healthy baby girl was born on (b) (6)	
	Company comments: This case has been reported retrospectively.	
: :	S2001031UK/MIF1 PREGNANCY UNINTENDED UK spontaneous Y TERMINATION OF PREGNANCY Ongoing	
	UNINTENDED PREGNANCY:	
	This case from UK involved 21-year-old woman who received mifepristone 200 mg at 17 weeks gestation for termination of pregnancy. She changed her mind and wanted to keep her pregnancy. More information is requested.	
	Company comments: No other information, a follow-up has been required. This case has been reported prospectively.	
, , ,	S2001032UK/MIF1 PREGNANCY UNINTENTED UK spontaneous Y TERMINATION OF PREGNANCY Ongoing	
ź.	UNINTENTED PREGNANCY:	
1	This case from UK involved female patient who received mifepristone 200 mg and misoprostol 800 µg vaginally for termination of early pregnancy. She changed her mind and decided to keep her pregnancy. More information is requested.	
	 <u>Company comments</u>: No other information, follow-up has been required. This case has been reported prospectively. 	*

FDACDER000312

EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report nº13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

CIOMS LISTING

			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
MIR	EPRISTON	E.	A Construction of the second s	and the second se
ompany number	ار می می اور	La S Transmister	الم	
Date Country	labelled	dication	Outcome	دى يەيدە ئەرەپىيە مەتلەردى بىرىمى مەتلەردى بىرىمى *
eaction / event description		. :	میرد اور ایران کار ایران کار ایران کار ایران کار ایران کار ایران کار	
14 14	руни . ит т	and and the second s		
ase comments	· · · · ·		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
SERIOUSNESS	·	No		interaction of the second s Second second s

SERIOUSNESS

REPRODUCTIVE DISORDERS, FEMALE

S2001033UK/MIF1	PREGNANCY UNIN	TENDED		а <u>а</u>	5	
U UK	spontaneous	Y	TERMIN	ATION O	F PREGNANCY	Ongoing

UNINTENDED PREGNANCY:

This case from UK involved a woman who received mifepristone 600 mg for termination of pregnancy at 18 weeks of gestation. She changed her mind and decided to keep her pregnancy. More information is requested.

Company comments:

-31 -322

ng Kangara Tanang Ka

ر و بروی کرد. می د از محمد

No other information, a follow-up has been required. This case has been reported prospectively.

S2001034UK/	MIFI	PREGNANCY UNIN	TENTED		
D	UK	. spontaneous	Y	TERMINATION OF PREGNANC	Y Ongoing

UNINTENTED PREGNANCY:

This case from UK involved female patient who received mifepristone 200 mg at 9 weeks gestation for termination of pregnancy. She changed her mind and wanted to keep her pregnancy. More information is requested.

Company comments:

No other information, follow-up has been required. This case has been reported prospectively.

S2001035U	K/MIF1	PREGNANCY UNINTI	ENDED		
.0	UK	spontaneous	Y	TERMINATION OF PREGNANCY	Ongoing

UNINTENDED PREGNANCY:

This case from UK involved female patient who received mifepristone 200 mg and misoprostol 600 µg vaginally followed by misoprostol 400 µg per os for termination of pregnancy at 10 weeks gestation.. The treatment failed and the patient decided to keep her pregnancy.

Company comments:

No other information, a follow-up has been required. This case has been reported prospectively.

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

	CIOMS LISTING	
	MIFEPRISTONE	د عمرہ ۱۰ محمد ۲۰ میں ۱۰ ۱۰ محمد ۲۰ میں ۱۰
	Company number Reaction term	· · · · ·
and a standard and a standard and a standard and a standard a standard a standard a standard a standard a stand a standard a standard a a standard a	Date Country Type of report	
	Reaction / event description	· · `·-
	Case comments	· . ·
· · · ·	SERIOUSNESS	-*
a v n wa-	REPRODUCTIVE DISORDERS, FEMALE	
· .	S2001024D/MIF1 PREGNANCY UNINTENDED D D spontaneous Y TERMINATION OF PREGNANCY	
	UNINTENDED PREGNANCY:	
	This case from Germany involved female patient who received mitepristone 600 mg on (b) (6) followed by misoprostol 400 µg 36 hours later for termination of pregnancy at less than 6 weeks amenorrhea. She came back for control on (b) (6) She was bleeding and the ultrasound showed continuing intra-uterine pregnancy. The patient requested a surgical termination of pregnancy which was performed.	
	Company comments:	
	S2001023D/MIF1 PREGNANCY UNINTENDED D spontaneous Y TERMINATION OF PREGNANCY	
	UNINTENDED PREGNANCY:	
	This case from Germany involved a 24-year-old woman who received mifepristone 600 mg on (b) (6) followed by misoprostol 400 µg 2 days later for medical termination of pregnancy. She came back for control on (b) (6) An ultrasound was performed and showed continuing intra-uterine pregnancy. Surgical termination of pregnancy was performed.	
	Company comments:	
	S2001017UK/MIF2 PREGNANCY UNINTENDED UK spontaneous Y TERMINATION OF PREGNANCY fetal death	
	UNINTENDED PREGNANCY, FETAL DEATH IN UTERO:	
	This case from UK involved a 22-year-old woman who received mifepristone 200 mg or (b) (6) followed by misoprostol 400 μ g two days later for medical termination of pregnancy in the first trimester. The treatment failed and the patient decided to keep her pregnancy (this case was reported in PSUR n° 12, case # S2001017UK/MIF) She came back for control or (b) (6) An ultrasound was performed and showed fetal death in utero with no fetal abnormality and a large placenta abruption. The abortion occurred on (b) (6)	
	<u>Company comments:</u> Fetal death in utero is probably related to the large placenta abruption and not related to the early administration of mifepristone.	
	L L	

•

ł

•

EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 – from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

and the second s	CIOMS LISTI	NG
		~~~~~
·		
الم	MIFEPRISTONE	
الم		
	Company number   Reaction term	
Berlander Bargeland and Bargeland	Date Country Type of report labelled Indicati	ion Outcome
است. مسلس کی شمار در است در در در میشور برای در مرد در ا	Paratian ( yount description	
		. Sterner
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Case comments	
− μ − 2μ°μα, 5μ°μα − − − σκι παστικι ματηγοριατίζει		Ala
	SERIOUSNESS	NO
** <u>*</u> <u>*</u> ***	BODY AS WHOLE-GENERAL DI	SORDERS
· ·	S2001021F/MIF1 RASH (b) (6) F spontaneous Y UNRESEC	TABLE MENINGIOMA Recovered
	GENERALISED RASH, TOXIDERMA:	
	A 71 year-old female patient with relevant medical and surgical histories of unresecta	ble meningioma, ovarian and uterine surgery and
	arterial hypertension. She received since (b) (6) mifepristone 200 mg.	
	In the investigator judgement the event is related to the drug mifepristone. The treatm	ent was stopped and the patient recovered totally
	with an aninistaminic treatment (Lynecus).	1
	Company comments:	
	Expected and listed adverse event.	
	(b) (6) D spontaneous Y TERMINAT	TION OF EARLY PREGNANCY Recovered
	ALLERGIC REACTION:	
	This case from Denmark involved female patient who received mifepristone 600	mg on (b) (6) for a medical termination of
	She also experienced pressure over the breast and tendency for fainting. She was tree	ated with antihistaminic agent and solumedrol 80
	mg. The event disappeared and the patient totally recovered.	
	Company comments:	
	Expected and listed adverse event	

.

1

i

.

## **EXELGYN Medical Department**

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002



## LIST OF REFERENCES

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

## REFERENCES

 J.L. Ojidu, S.D. Sabharwal
 Setting up a one-stop mifepristone-misoprostol medical termination of pregnancy service for all gestations from 5 to 23 weeks – a review of 482 cases.
 J. Obstet. Gynaecol. 2001, 21(4): 386-388

2. U.B. Knudsen First trimester abortion with mifepristone and vaginal misoprostol. Contraception 2001; 63: 247-250

 O.S. Tang, K.J. Thong, D.T. Baird
 Second trimester medical abortion with mifepristone and gemeprost: a review of 956 cases.
 Contraception 2001; 64: 29-32

4. P.W. Ashok, A. Kidd, G.M.M. Flett, A. Fitzmaurice, W. Graham, A. Templeton

A randomized comparison of medical abortion and surgical vacuum aspiration at 10-13 weeks gestation. Human Reproduction 2002; 17(1): 92-98

- E.A. Schaff, S.L. Fielding, S. Eisinger, L. Stadalius Mifepristone and misoprostol for early abortion when no gestational sac is present. Contraception 2001; 63: 251-254
- 6. J.W. Chu, D.F. Matthias, J. Belanoff, A. Schatzberg, A.R. Hoffman, D. Feldman
  - Successful long-term treatment of refractory Cushing's disease with high-dose mifepristone (RU 486).
    - J. Clinical Endocrinology & Metabolism 2001; 86(8): 3568-3573
- P.T. Wagaarachchi, P.W. Ashok, N. Narvekar, N.C. Smith, A. Templeton Medical management of early fetal demise using a combination of mifepristone and misoprostol. Human Reproduction 2001; 16(9): 1849-1853
- D.K. Hapangama, A. Brown, A.F. Glasier, D.T. Baird Feasibility of administering mifepristone as a once a month contraceptive pill. Human Reproduction 2001; 16(6): 1145-1150

**EXELGYN Medical Department** 

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

 M.D. Creinin, J.L. Schwartz, H.C. Pymar, W. Fink Efficacy of mifepristone followed on the same day by misoprostol for early termination of pregnancy: report of a randomised trial. B. Journal of Obstetrics & Gynaecology 2001; 108: 469-473

مىرى تەرىپىيە ئىرى تەرىپ

10. J. Rademakers, E. Koster, A.C.V. Jansen-van Hees, F. Willems Medical abortion as an alternative to vacuum aspiration: firstexperiences with the "abortion pill" in The Netherlands. The European Journal of Contraception & Reproductive Health Care 2001; 6: 185-191

- 71 -

EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Penodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

**REFERENCE 1** 

## J.I. Ojidu, S.D. Sabharwal

Setting up a one-stop mifepristone-misoprostol medical termination of pregnancy service for all gestation from 5 to 23 weeks – a review of 482 cases.

J. Obstet. Gynaecol. 2001; 21(4): 386-388

日本公司法

2-£.



وي من المحمد المحرورة

## GYNAECOLOGY

## Setting up a one-stop mifepristone—misoprostol medical termination of pregnancy service for all gestations from 5 to 23 weeks—a review of 482 cases

## J. I. OJIDU and SANGEETA D. SABHARWAL

Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, Scunthorpe General Hospital, Scunthorpe, UK

#### Summary

Mifepristone-misoprostol combination is increasingly being utilised for medical termination of pregnancy on account of its reported efficacy, safety and lower cost. Experience with this modality of effecting termination of pregnancy from 9 to 13 weeks' gestation is scanty. At the Scunthorpe General Hospital in the United Kingdom, we established a nurse-led, one-stop medical termination of pregnancy service using milepristone and misoprostol for all gestations from 5 to 23 weeks. A review of the case records of 482 women who had medical termination of pregnancy at all gestations from 5 to 23 weeks from December 1997 to May 1999 was undertaken in order to assess the effectiveness and complications associated with the mifepristone-misoprostol protocol. Complete abortion was achieved in 406 (84%) women. Surgical evacuation was required to complete the abortion in 74 (16%) women. The complete abortion rate was similar across the spectrum, i.e. 87% in the 5-8-weeks group; 79% in the 9-13 weeks group; and 87% in those of≥14 weeks. Two failures occurred: one of them proceeded to surgical evacuation after three courses of misoprostol, while the other continued with her pregnancy after one course. Three women (0.6%) required blood transfusion for haemorrhage, while two others were treated for infection. Oral mifepristone with or without vaginal misoprostol in an effective and safe regimen for termination of all pregnancies from 5 to 23 weeks' gestation.

#### ٠.

#### Introduction

The medical option for termination of pregnancy is increasingly being utilised. The efficacy of mifepristone and misoprostol in this regard has been established (UK Multicentre Study, 1997; Ashok and Templeton, 1999; Gouk *et al.*, 1999). The other option, surgical evacuation of the uterus, although safe and effective, requires skilled personnel (Grimes and Cates, 1997). In addition, the medical option offers patients choice and is cheaper (Cameron *et al.*, 1996). Various regimens utilising mifepristone and misoprostol for terminating pregnancies at all possible gestations have been used (El-Rafaey *et al.*, 1995; Ashok *et al.*, 1998; Ashok and Templeton, 1999).

Although the manufacturers of mifepristone recommend the use of a 600-mg dose pretreatment and gemeprost as the prostaglandin of choice, for termination of pregnancy, 200 mg of mifepristone and Table I. Cost per termination of pregnancy by method

Method	Cost per case		
Surgical Gemeprost Mifepristone/misoprostol	£226 £175 £18		

misoprostol (although not licensed for this indication) can be as effective (WHO, 1993; Webster *et al.*, 1996; Dickenson *et al.*, 1998). These have cost-saving implications. Using low-dose mifepristone and misoprostol as described in this text could save £157 per case compared to the manufacturer's recommendation (Table I).

Mifepristone is recommended for use at gestations of  $\leq 8$  and  $\geq 13$  weeks, but not from 9 to 12 weeks. It is in the latter area that experience is scanty. In this unit, prior to June 1997, most early pregnancy terminations were performed surgically while late termination involved using gemeprost. In June 1997, a medical termination of pregnancy clinic using mifepristone/misoprostol for all gestations from 5 to 23 weeks was established. This review was undertaken to assess the effectiveness of and problems associated with this method as the sole means of termination of pregnancy.

#### Methods

This service is provided by a specially dedicated termination of pregnancy clinic based exclusively on a day-case ward. It is led by specially trained nurses (additional qualifications include certificate in counselling) and supported by nursing and medical personnel, and the ultrasound department. We aim to see and treat patients within 2 weeks of referral (this target has been achieved in 90% of cases).

When a patient is referred, she first has an ultrasound examination to establish viable intrauterine pregnancy and gestational age. An occasional asymptomatic ectopic gestation is picked up at this stage. She then moves into the counselling room, during

Correspondence to: James Ojidu, Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, Scunthorpe General Hospital, Scunthorpe DN157B1, UK.

ISSN 0144-3615 print/ISSN 1364-6893 online/01/040386-03 © Taylor & Francis Limited, 2001

Pregnancy termination with mifepristone-misoprostol 387

which time her wish to terminate her pregnancy is confirmed. She is assured of support, medical and surgical options for termination of pregnancy are discussed with her as well as future contraception.

If she elects to proceed with medical termination, the medications are usually commenced on the same day or the next day according to patient preference. Medication consists of mifepristone 200 mg orally. She is observed for 2 hours to ensure that she does not vomit and that the medication is retained. She goes home and returns 36-48 hours later when 800 mcg of misoprostol is administered vaginally. Those who are ≤8 weeks' gestation are observed for 6 hours and discharged. Most in this group (73%) expel the products of conception at this stage. Those who are ≥9 weeks' gestation receive further doses of misoprostol at 400 mcg orally 3-hourly for three doses if they had not expelled products of conception. This group may be observed overnight in hospital if necessary. In the occasional case in which the product of conception is not expelled, a repeat course of misoprostol is administered 24 hours later. The clinic staff check all products of conception for completeness. Contraception is commenced soon after abortion is complete.-

When the patients go home, they are in contact with clinic staff and their GP by telephone. They are advised to report if unwell, if there is excessive bleeding, or offensive vaginal discharge. They are seen 2 weeks later to ensure that all is well. An ultrasound scan is performed in those women in whom the clinic staff did not visually confirm expulsion of products of conception, so as to ensure that abortion had occurred and was complete.

#### Results

The case records of 482 women who had mifepristone/ misoprostol termination of pregnancy from June 1997 to May 1999 was reviewed. This represented 76% of all terminations of pregnancy during this period. This is compared to 27% in the period before June 1997 (Figure 1) The women were aged from 12 to 42 years with a mean of 24-2 years. Multiparous women made up 57.5% while 42.5% were nulliparous.

A total of 406 (84%) women had complete expulsion of the products of conception without any need for surgical intervention (made up of 403 women who succeeded after one course and three women who required repeat medication to succeed) (Figure 2). Seventy-four women did expel products of conception but required surgical evacuation to complete the





- 22

Table II. Ou therapy	tcome followi	ng mifepristone	/misoprostol-		
-**	Gestation				
·	≤8 weeks	9–13 weeks	≥14 weeks		
	(n=236)	(n=169)	(n=76)		
Complete	205 (86-9%)	134 (79-2%)	67 (87%)		
Incomplete	30 (12-7%)	35 (20-7%)	9 (11·6%)		
Failed	1 (0-4%)	0	1 (1·3%)		

process. Two women did not expel any products of conception—one was an 8 weeks' pregnancy that continued after one course of medication while the other was a 16 weeks' pregnancy which remained intact and had to have a surgical termination. A breakdown of the outcome into gestational age groups showed that complete success was achieved in 86.9% of those of  $\leq$ 8 weeks' 79% in the 9–13 weeks' group, and 86.8% in the  $\geq$ 14 weeks, group (Table II). Outcome was similar in multiparous and nulliparous groups with success rates of 84-9% and 83.6%, respectively.

The time from the administration of vaginal misoprostol to expulsion of the products of conception (misoprostol—abortion interval) ranged from 30 minutes to 29.5 hours across the board. Subdivided into gestational age groups, the mean misoprostol—abortion interval was 4.9 hours in the  $\leq 8$  weeks' 7.5 hours in the 9–13 weeks' group and 9.5 hours in the  $\geq 14$  weeks' group (Figure 3).

Haemorrhage requiring blood transfusion occurred in three patients (0.6%) and two (0.4%) patients were treated for infection.



Figure 1. Proportion of termination of pregnancy performed surgically and medically before and after June 1997.



Figure 3. Mean misoprostol-abortion interval.

#### 388 J. I. Ojidu and S. D. Sabharwal

#### Discussion

- 72 P

÷. 1

ت مىلايىتەر

Termination of pregnancy services are increasingly adopting methods that reduce cost and provide choice for women. Setting up a one-stop termination of pregnancy service is one way of achieving this aim. Providing all the service in one ward helped patient uptake of the service. A recent audit (unpublished) showed that 97% of all terminations of pregnancy in this hospital are now performed using the protocol described, the remaining 3% by the surgical method.

Our results add to the growing body of evidence that low dose mifepristone and misoprostol regimen offers an effective modality for terminating pregnancy at all possible gestations, and this has been shown to be cheaper (Hinshaw, 1999). Based on local costing (Table I), a saving of £208 and £157 accrues for each case of pregnancy terminated using this mifepristone/ misoprostol protocol compared to the surgical or gemeprost options, respectively. Mifepristone is licensed for termination of_pregnancy at ≤8 weeks and at  $\geq 13$  weeks' gestation. In most hospitals, surgical methods are used almost exclusively to effect termination of pregnancy from 9 to 13 weeks' gestation. Our success rate of 79% at 9-13 weeks further attest to the feasibility of a medical approach at this gestation (Ashok et al., 1998a; Gouk et al., 1999). Before June 1997, all the 168 women who presented for medical termination would have gone to theatre for suction termination. But following the introduction of this protocol, 133 of them had their wish accomplished without surgical intervention.

Our overall success rate of 84% is within the range of success rates reported in the literature, for those methods that used a similar regimen (Spitz *et al.*, 1998; Ashok *et al.*, 1998b). The success rate of 79% at 9–13 weeks could improve now that we are at the top end of the 'learning curve' since introducing the protocol in June 1997. This has nevertheless transformed the provision of termination of pregnancy service from a predominantly surgical procedure to an almost exclusively low-cost medical procedure.

Major complications are rare. Our blood transfusion rate of 0.6% is within the literature range of 0.4–0.7% (UK Multicentre Study, 1997; Gouk *et al.*, 1999). The prophylactic antibiotic regimen utilised in this protocol follows the recommendation of Sawaya *et al.* (1996), and the RCOG (1997). This seem effective since only two (0.4%) women were treated for infection. The low dose mifepristone/misoprostol protocol for termination of pregnancy at all gestations from 5 to 23 weeks is effective and safe. It reduces cost, releases theatre slots and staff, resources which are usually under pressure, for use by other competing needs. In addition, it offers women choice, especially those of 9-13 weeks' gestation who in most hospitals have no choice but surgical evacuation of uterus.

#### References

- Ashok P.W., Flett A. and Templeton A. (1998a) Termination of pregnancy at 9–13 weeks amenorrhoca with milepristone and misoprostol. *Lancet*, 352, 542–543.
- Astok P.W., Penny GC., Flett G.M. and Templeton A. (1998b) An effective regimen for early medical abortion; a report of 2000 consecutive cases. *Human Reproduction*, 13,
- 2962-2965. Ashok P.W. and Templeton A. (1999) Nonsurgical midtrimester termination of pregnancy: a review of 500 cases. British
- Journal of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, 106, 706-710. Cumeron S.T., Glusier A.F., Logan J., Bonton L. and Baird
- D.T. (1996) Impact of the introduction of new medical methods on therapeutic abortions at the Royal Infirmary of Edinburgh. British Journal of Obstetries and Gynaecology, 103, 1222–1229.
- El-Rafacy H., Rajasekar D., Abdalla M., Calder L. and Templeton A. (1995) Induction of abortion with milepristone
- and oral or vaginal misoprostol. New England Journal of Medicine, 332, 983-987.
- Gouk E.V., Lincoln K., Khair A., Hasloek J., Knight J. and Cruikshank D.J. (1999) Medical termination of pregnancy at 63 to 83 days gestation. *British Journal of Obstetrics and Gynaecology*, 106, 535–539.
- Grimes D.A. and Cates W. (1979) Complications from legally induced abortion: a review. Obstetrical and Cynecological Survey, 34, 177–191.
- Hinshaw K. (1999) Medical uterine evacuation in the management of first trimester miscarriage. In: *Clinical* Management of Early Pregnancy, edited by W. Prendiville and J.R. Scott, pp. 79–89. London, Amold.
- Royal College of Obstetricians and Gynaecologists (RCOG) (1997) Induced Abortion. Clinical 'Green top' Guldelines no. 11, July. London, RCOG.
- Sawaya G.F., Grady D., Kerlikowske, and Grimes D. (1996) Antibiotics at the time of induced abortion; the case for universal prophylaxis based on meta-analysis. *Obstatrics and Gynecology*, 87, 884–890.
- Spitz I.M., Bardin C.W., Benton L. and Robbins A. (1996) Early pregnancy termination with mifepristone and misoprostol in the United States. New England Journal of Medicine, 388, 1241-1243.
- UK Multicentre Study (1997) Final results. The efficacy and tolerance of milepristone in termination of pregnancy of less than 63 days gestation. *Contraception*, 55, 1–5.
- World Health Organisation Taskforce on Post-ovulatory methods of Fertility Regulation (1993) Termination of pregnancy with reduced doses of milepristone. British Medical Journal, 307, 532–537.

## EXELGYN Medical Department via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc. Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 – from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002



Contraception 2001; 63: 247-250



Contraception 63 (2001) 247-250 Original research article

## First trimester abortion with mifepristone and vaginal misoprostol

Ulla Breth Knudsen*

Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology, University Haspital of Arrhus, Skejby, Denmark

Received 27 September 2000, revised 15 February 2001, accepted 27 February 2001

## Abstract

This study assessed the efficacy and side effects of first trimester medical abortion using mifepristone and vaginally administeredmisoprostol. Medical abortion was first introduced in Denmark in December 1997, and the acceptability of this new approach in a Danish population was evaluated. The study included the first 100 women seeking medical abortion. The gestational age was from 33 to 56 days. All received 600 mg mifepristone (RU 486) orally followed 2 days later by vaginally administered misoprostol 400  $\mu$ g. Success was defined as achieving complete abortion without the need for surgical evacuation. Ninety-three percent achieved a successful medical termination of pregnancy. Side effects were few, and the acceptability was high. Ninety percent of the women would prefer medical abortion in case of a new unwanted pregnancy. The combination of mifepristone and vaginally administrated misoprostol is effective, safe, has few side effects and is well accepted by Danish women. © 2001 Elsevier Science Inc. All rights reserved.

Keywords: Early medical abortion; Vaginal misoprostol; Vaginal PGE, Danish population

#### 1. Introduction

Medical abortion during the first 49–63 days of gestation is generally successful after using pretreatment with the progesterone antagonist mifepristone (Mifegyne[®]) followed by a prostaglandin E-1 analog [1-3]. Several medical regimens have been used, where the most common prostaglandin E-1 preparation in Europe is gemeprost (Cervagem[®]). Recently, the prostaglandin-E-1 misoprostol (Cytotec[®]) has been introduced. Most reports have been based on oral administration, but vaginal administration is associated with fewer side effects and improved efficacy [2,4-6].

Medical abortion is a new approach in Denmark, and the purpose of this study was to assess the efficacy, side effects and the acceptability of mifepristone followed by vaginal administration of 400  $\mu$ g misoprostol 2 days later.

#### 2. Materials and methods

The study was performed at the Department of Gynaecology, University Hospital of Aarhus, Denmark, from September 1998 to July 1999. During that period, 753 women

* Tel.: +45 -8617-3617: fax: +45-8617-9901. E-mail address: UBK@dadinet.dk (U.B. Knudsen). underwent termination of pregnancy in the department. Women over the age of 18, requesting termination of pregnancy and with a gestation of less than 56 days, received written information about the methods offered before attending the clinic. They were all tested for chlamydia by their general practitioner and, if positive, treated with antibiotics prior to the day of attendance. All women underwent a transvaginal ultrasound scan to evaluate the gestational age. Two-hundred-eighty women (34.5%) were less than 56 days pregnant. If no medical contraindications to the mifepristone-misoprostol regimen were found, the woman was offered the choice between termination by vacuum aspiration or medical termination.

Contraception

At the first visit, including ultrasound scan, a further 25 women did not fulfill inclusion criteria and were excluded. A total of 100 (39.2%) chose the medical abortion method and thus constitute the patients entered into the study.

Oral mifepristone 600 mg was administered either on the same day as the first visit to the clinic or within the following 4 days (day 1), and the women were allowed to go home 30 min later. They were informed that in some cases abortion might occur at home following the mifepristone administration, and an emergency telephone number was given. Thirty-six to 48 h later, they returned in the morning to the outpatient clinic (day 3). Here, vaginal misoprostol 400  $\mu g$ was given (self administration) and 2 tablets containing 400 mg paracetamol and 28.7 mg codeinphosphat, administered

0010-7824/01/S - see front matter () 2001 Elsevier Science Inc. All rights reserved. Pfl: \$0010-7824(01)00196-2 -46]

248

Table 1	
Data of the first 100 women undertaking medical abortion	-
Age (years; median; range) 29	÷. ⊷ [18-
Contational and (days, median, sana) 49	177

Gestational age (days; median; range)	4	δ'.	105-561	
Nullipara	 - 4	<b>s</b> 1	• •	
Previous termination of pregnancy*	3	0.	(32 %)	
		·		
• 07 ·		-	,	

orally. The patients were observed by the nurses for bleeding and pain over the next hours, permitting further administration of analgesic or antiemetic agents if necessary. If abortion had not taken place, evaluated by the amount of bleeding within the first 3 h, a further 400 µg misoprostol was administered vaginally. They were allowed to leave the hospital if bleeding and pain were acceptable 2-5 h after the. last misoprostol administration. The nurses telephoned all patients on day 4. Two weeks later, the women-had avaginal ultrasound scan. If the thickness of the endometrium was less than 15 mm, with no sign of retained product, no further action was taken. If the thickness was more than 15 mm,  $\beta$ -hCG concentration was measured, and the woman was followed weekly by ultrasound scan until measurement of  $\beta$ -hCG was below detection level. Rhesus-negative women received anti-D (Rho) immunoglobulin at day 3.

All women were asked to fill in a daily chart concerning bleeding, pain, nausea, vomiting, diarrhea, and whether they had gone to work/done as usual over the next fortnight from day 1. The amount of bleeding was estimated by a visual analog score (VAS-scale) with a line (12 cm long) ranging from "no bleeding" to "heavy bleeding" at the ends, with the mark "like your period" in the middle. Likewise, the severity of pain was measured on a VAS-scale ranging from "no pain" to "severe pain," with the mark "moderate pain" in the middle. The satisfaction with the method was estimated on a VAS-scale ranging from "dissatisfied" to "very satisfied" (range 0 to 12) with "satisfied" in the middle. All medical records were reviewed 2 months after entry to the study to evaluate the success rate and complication.

#### 3. Results

One hundred women (39.2%) chose the medical abortion method, and demographic data can be seen in Table 1. Five



Fig. 1. Bleeding after misoprostol administration (day 3 after mifepristone administration). X-axis: hours after misoprostol administration; y-axis: score on VAS-scale. Median. 5 and 95-percentiles.

women did not attend the follow-up 14 days later, in spite of several letters/telephone calls. When contacted by telephone, all 5 reported cessation of bleeding and symptoms of pregnancy.

Side effects are presented in Table 2. After administration of mifepristone, 59% started to bleed with a median of 0.6 on a scale from 0-12 (range 0-11.6). Almost 4 of 5 women experienced pain with a median pain score of 1.1 (75 percentile: 2.6, total range 0-9) on a scale from 0 to 12, and 23 took paracetamol for the pain. The VAS scores of bleeding and pain after misoprostol administration (day 3 after mifepristone administration) are presented in Figs. 1 and 2.

Eighty-seven percent of the pregnancies were aborted at the hospital. Nine women believed they had aborted on day 2, and 4 that they had aborted on day 4. The nurses recorded when the women had been bleeding more heavily and probably aborted. A fixed time for abortion could be recorded for 84 women, and the time from administration of vaginal misoprostrol to abortion was a median of 3 h (75 percentile: 3 h and 30 min). An additional dose of misoprostol (400  $\mu$ g) was administered to 9 women 3 h after the initial dose, as the bleeding was less than expected for an abortion to have taken place. Twenty women had extra analgesics, mainly paracetamol (1 g), and only one patient received an injection of pethidine. No other drugs were administered.

Figures 3 and 4 show the VAS scores of bleeding and pain from day 4 to 13.

At the follow-up 14 days after mifepristone administration, 66% were still bleeding, although it was mainly spotting (median 0.4 on the VAS-scale), and only 4% indicated that it was more than a period. Two patients marked pain of

Table 2				
Side effects (pe	rcents and n in parentheses)		i	
	<b>-</b> ··· ·	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••		
	Prior to abortion	After milepristone administration	After misoprostol administration	Day 14
		(day 1) (n = 100)	(day 3) (n = 99)	(n = 94)
		······································		
Nausea	65% (65)	72% (72)	51% (50)	0
Vomiting	12% (12)	12% (12)	18% (18)	0
Diarthea	-	-	3% (3)	0
Bleeding	-	59% (59)	100% (99)	66% (62)
Pain	-	79% (79)	98% (97)	5% (5)





Fig. 2. Pain experienced after misoprostol administration (day 3 after mifepristone administration): X-axis: hours after misoprostol administration; y-axis: score on a VAS-scale=Median, 5 and 95 percentiles.

> 2

more than 5 on the VAS on day 14. None required analgesic at this time.

The endometrium was measured by ultrasound on day 14, and the median thickness was 9.2 mm (range: 3-18 mm, n = 87) (from edge to edge).

The overall success rate, defined as termination without use of evacuation, was 93% after 2 months of follow-up. No ongoing pregnancies were found at the 2-week follow-up. Four women were evacuated due to bleeding 7 to 9 weeks after administration of mifepristone, 2 had an evacuation due to infection (pyrexia, pain, discharge) at day 15 and 23, respectively, and one was evacuated due to severe headache occurring after administration of mifepristone; this patient did not receive misoprostol on day 3. Six of the 7 patients who had an evacuation had a gestation of more than 49 days.

Two patients were admitted to the ward due to bleeding and discharged the following day. Three women were given ergometrine tablets (Methergin®) orally for the next 3 days due to heavy bleeding, but none necessitating transfusion. No prophylactic antibiotics were given, and only the two women with clinical signs of infection received antibiotics.

All 100 women who had entered the study were asked to fill out a questionnaire on day 14. Approximately 14% felt that the bleeding had been more than expected. Likewise around 15% felt the pain and the nausea (16%) had been worse than expected. On the VAS-scale, satisfaction with



Fig. 3. Bleeding on day 4 to 13 after milepristone administration, X-axis: days after milepristone administration; y-axis: score on VAS-scale. Median, 5 and 95 percentiles.





Fig. 4. Pain experienced on day 4 to 13 after milepristone administration. X-axis: days after milepristone administration; y-axis: score on VAS-scale. Median, 5 and 95 percentiles.

the method was a median of 12 (on a scale from 0 to 12; range 0-12). If they had to go through an abortion again, 90% would choose this method āgain. Of those who previously had experienced a surgical abortion (n = 26), 21 (81%) would choose the medical abortion.

Table 3 shows the influence of medical abortion on social life or working life. Sixty-two percent did go to work/did as usual on day 2, 68% on day 4, and only 1 or 2 women per day did not attend to their usual tasks from day 5 to 13 (n = 89).

#### 4. Discussion

This study demonstrates that medical abortion using 600 mg mifepristone orally and 400  $\mu$ g misoprostol vaginally is a well accepted, effective method of pregnancy termination for gestations less than 56 days. The success rate of 93% after 2 months of follow-up is similar to other studies for gestations less than 63 days [2.5,7–8]. In many studies the length of the follow-up period and the completeness of follow-up is difficult to evaluate. In this study, all medical records of the 100 women were evaluated 2 months after the medical abortion.

Thirty-nine per cent of the women who had the opportunity chose medical abortion. This is somewhat lower than reported in other countries [3,9-10,13], and could be due to the fact that medical abortion is a new method in Denmark; only 2 other hospitals had started the program at the time these data were collected. Moreover, as it has been shown

7	۰.,	٤.	٩.,	 1
- 1	- 11	o	æ	 2

Effect of medical abortion on attending work or social life

	+		
	Day 2 (n = 100)	Day 4 (n = 89)	Day 5- 13 (n = 89)
Unaffected work/social life	62% (62)	68% (61)	98% (87)

that the attitude of the advising medical staff influences a woman's choice [3], we expect more women to choose medical abortion in the future, as the staff becomes more familiar with the method. The very fact that women have a choice in method is important, hence she is more likely to be satisfied with the treatment [11].

The few gastrointestinal side effects seen in our study are as expected after vaginal administration compared to oral administration [2]. Twenty per cent of our population reguired more analgesics (mainly paracetamol), than those given at the time of administration of misoprostol, but only -one received intramuscular opiate analgesia. Reported analgesic requirements for early medical termination of pregnancy vary greatly between centres, ranging from 12.5% [1] to 68% [8]. In a Danish study using gemeprost 55% received pethidine [12]. In addition, the price of misoprostol is substantially less: DKK 5 (USD 0.6), less than 2% of the DKK 290 (USD 34.4) that gemeprost costs.

This study has shown that mifepristone and misoprostol vaginally for early medical abortion is well tolerated and effective with an overall success rate of 93%. No antiemetic agents were needed, analgesic requirements were minimal and few side effects were reported.

#### Acknowledgments

Thanks to Dr. Ole Mogensen, Dr. Ingo Clausen, and Dr. Bo Loeje Hejl for valuable discussions.

#### References

 Peyron R, Aubény E, Targosz V, et al. Early termination of pregnancy with mifepristone (RU 486) and the orally active prostaglandin misoprostol. N Engl J Med 1993;328:1509–13. [2] Él-Rafaey H. Rajasekar D. Abdalla M. Calder L. Templeton A. Induction of abortion with milepristone (RU 486) and oral or vaginal misoprostol. N Engl J Med 1995;332:983-7.

- [3] Cameron ST, Glusier AF, Logan J, Benton L, Baird DT, Impact of the introduction of new medical methods on therapeutic abortions at the Royal Infirmary of Edinburgh. Br J Obstet Gynecol 1996;103: 1222-9.
- [4] Ho PC, Ngai SW, Liu KL, Wong GC. Lee SW. Vaginal misoprostol compared with oral misoprostol in the termination of second-trimester pregnancy. Obstet Gynecol 1997;90:735-8.
- [5] Schaff EA. Studallus LS, Eisinger SH, Franks P. Vaginal nisoprostoladministered at home after milepristone (RU 486) for abortion. J Fam.
- Fract 1997:44:353-60. [6] Tang OS, Guo PP-Cheng L, Lee SW, Ho PC, A randomized doubles
- blind placebo-controlled study to assess the effect of oral contraceptive pills on the outcome of medical abortion with milepristone, and misoprostol. Hum Reprod 1999;14:722-5.
- [7] Mc Kinley C, Thong KJ, Baird DT. The effect of dose of milepristone and gestation on the efficacy of medical abortion with milepristone and misoprostol. Hum Reprod 1993;8:1502-5.
- [8] Spitz IM, Bardin CW, Benton L, Robbins A. Early pregnancy termimation with mifepristone and misoprostol in the United States. N Engl J Med 1998:338:1241-7.
- [9] Murray S, "Muse K. Mifepristone and first trimester abortion. Clin Obstet Gynecol 1996;39:474-85.
- [10] Gouk EV, Lincoln K, Khair A, Haslock J, Knight J, Cruickshank DJ, Medical termination of pregnancy at 63 to 83 days gestation. Br J Obstet Gynecol 1999:106:535-9
- [11] Howie FL, Henshaw RC, Naji SA, Russell IT, Templeton AA. Medical abortion or vacuum aspiration? Two-year follow-up of a patient preference trial. Br J Obstet Gynecol 1997;104:829-33.
- [12] Olsen CD, Wittendorff HE, Jørgensen JJ, Reintroduktion af medicinsk abort i Danmark, Ugeskr Læger 2000;12:1742-4.
- [13] Tang GWK, Lau OWK, Yip P. Further acceptability evaluation of RU 486 and ONO 802 as abortifacient agents in a Chinese population. Contraception 1993;48:267-76.
- [14] Henry AM, Haukkamaa M, Comparison of yaginal misoprostol and gemeprost as pre-treatment in first trimester pregnancy interruption. Br J Obstet Gynecol 1999;106:540-3.

10.00

### FDACDER000327

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002



## O.S. Tang, K.J. Thong, D.T. Baird

Second trimester medical abortion with mifepristone and gemeprost: a review of 956 cases.

Contraception 2001; 64: 29-32

## Original research article econd trimester medical abortion with mifepristone and gemepros

Contraception 64 (2001) 29-32

a review of 956 cases

## O. S. Tang, K. J. Thong^{*}, D. T. Baird

- - ² -

Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, University of Edinburgh, Centre for Reproductive Biology, Edinburgh, Scotland

#### Abstract

The treatment outcomes of 956 women undergoing second trimester termination of pregnancy with mifepristone and gemeprost were studied. The median gestational age was 16 weeks (range: 12-24 weeks). All women were treated with 200 mg mifepristone orally, followed 36 h later with 1 mg vaginal gemeprost administered every 6 h to a maximum of 4 doses in the first 24 h. A second course of 1 mg vaginal gemeprost was given 3-hourly in the next 12 h, if abortion had not occurred. Overall, 96.4% and 98.8% of the women aborted within 24 and 36 h, respectively. The median induction-to-abortion interval was 7.8 h (range: 0.5-109.9 h). The induction-abortion interval was longer in nulliparous women and women with a gestation age 17 weeks or above. Surgical evacuation of the uterus was performed in 11.5% of women for incomplete abortion or retained placenta. More multiparous women (16.7%) required surgical evacuation of uterus than did nulliparous women (7.3%; p <0.001). Ten (0.1%) women failed to abort with gemeprost and required other methods for abortion. In conclusion, a combination of mifepristone and gemeprost is a safe, effective, and noninvasive method of medical abortion for second trimester pregnancy. © 2001 Elsevier Science Inc. All rights reserved.

Keywords: Second trimester: Abortion: Mifepristone: Misoprostol

#### 1. Introduction

Since the introduction of prostaglandin analogs for medical abortion more than two decades ago, medical methods have provided a safe alternative to surgical termination of pregnancy [1]. Although dilatation and evacuation is widely used in the United States, a combination of mifepristone and prostaglandin is the preferred method in the United Kingdom.

Different types of prostaglandin analogs have been used in the past 20 years for second trimester medical abortion. Currently, gemeprost (Cervagem, Farillon, Dagenham, UK) and misoprostol (Cytotec, Searle, Bucks, UK) are the two most common prostaglandin analogs used for this purpose. Both have been shown to be safe and effective when combined with mifepristone for second trimester abortion [2–4]. Although misoprostol is cheaper and stable at room temperature when compared with gemeprost, only the latter is licensed for the purpose of medical abortion.

Mifepristone (Exelgyn, UK) is a progesterone receptor blocker that increases the sensitivity of the uterus to prostaglandin analogs when adminis .red to pregnant women [5]. The administration of 600 mg of mifepristone 36-48 h before gemeprost has been shown to shorten the induction-to-abortion interval [6]. Recently published data suggested that 200 mg is as effective as 600 mg for second trimester abortion [7].

Contraception

The regimen used in present study was previously reported in a study of 100 women [2], and the purpose of this study was to report the effectiveness and safety of the same regimen in clinical practice over a period of 6 years.

#### 2. Materials and methods

Nine hundred fifty-six consecutive women admitted to the Edinburgh Royal Infirmary for second trimester abortion from January 1994 to July 2000 were studied. Abortion was carried out under the conditions of the 1967 United Kingdom Abortion Act.

The gestational age was determined by menstrual history and clinical examination, and ultrasound was performed only if it was necessary as judged by the attending doctor. After the decision for termination of pregnancy was made, the women were referred to the Simpson Memorial Maternity Pavilion medical abortion unit where they were coun-

[•] Corresponding author. Tel.: +440131536-4260; fax: +440131536-4186.

E-mail address: joothong@hotmail.com (K.J. Thong).

#### O.S. Tang et al / Contraception 64 (2001) 29-32

Table I

Table 2

Characteristics of the 956 women who underwent midtrimester abortion

Characteristics	Gestation age		Parity	Total	
مونثين محرر	12-16 weeks	$\frac{17-24 \text{ weeks}}{n = 304}$	Nulliparous Multiparous $n = 531$ $n = 425$	n = 956	
Median age in years (range) Median gestation age in wks (range) Parous (%)	21 (14-44) 	22 (13-44) 	19 (13–44) 26° (14–44) 16 (12–24) 15.5 (12–21)	22 (13-44) 16 (12-24) 44.5	

Significant difference by Mann–Whitney test, p < 0.001.

seled by a doctor and a nurse. The women were then given a date for administration of a single dose of 200 mg oral mifepristone in the medical abortion unit. The women were admitted to the unit 36 h later. One milligram of gemeprost was inserted to the posterior vaginal fornix every 6 h for a maximum of four doses over the first 24 h. If abortion had not occurred within the first 24 h, 1 mg of vaginal gemeprost was inserted every 3 h to a maximum of five doses over the next 12 h. Intravenous (iv) oxytocin in incremental dosage of up to 111 mU/min was started 36 h from the first pessary, if abortion had not occurred after the second course of gemeprost.

Analgesia [paracetamol 1 g, dihydrocodeine 30 mg, or intramuscular (im) diamorphine 7.5 mg] and antiemetic (im cyclizine 50 mg) were administered as required.

Intramuscular syntometrine (5 IU oxytocin and 0.5 mg ergometrine maleate; Alliance, UK) was administered following expulsion of the fetus and placenta. The product of conception was examined by the attending doctor for completeness. Surgical evacuation of the uterus was carried out if there was evidence of retained placenta or clinical suspicion of incomplete abortion.

SPSS for Windows Statistical Package was used for statistical analysis. Continuous variables were compared by Mann-Whitney test. Differences in proportions were analyzed with the chi-square test or Fisher's exact test as appropriate. A p < 0.05 was considered significant.

#### 3. Results

Table 1 shows the characteristics of the 956 women who underwent second trimester abortion. The median gestation age was 16 weeks (range: 12-24 weeks), and 31.2% of them were above 16 weeks. Multiparous women were older than nulliparous women (median 26 years versus 19 years, p < 0.001). Table 2 shows the treatment outcomes of these 956 women. The median dose of gemeprost required was two, and the median induction-to-abortion interval was 7.8 h. Two (0.2%) women aborted after mifepristone without gemeprost. One of them was a nulliparous woman at 14 weeks of gestation, and the other woman, at 16 weeks of gestation, had three previous vaginal deliveries. Both of the women aborted at home and there was no excessive bleeding after abortion. Following insertion of gemeprost, 32.8% and 53.1% of women aborted within 6 and 8 h, and 80.5% and 96.4% aborted within 12 and 24 h, respectively. Overall, 98.8% of women aborted within 36 h (Fig. 1). The median induction-to-abortion interval was significantly longer in nulliparous (8.5 h) compared to multiparous women (6.7 h) (p <0.001). Women with gestational age of 17 weeks or above had a significantly longer inductionabortion interval (8.8 h) than women less than 17 weeks (7.00 h; p <0.001)

Overall, 110 (11.5%) women required surgical evacuation of the uterus for incomplete abortion. The rate of

Treatment outcomes by parity a	and gestation age				
	Gestation age		Parity	Parity	
	12-16 weeks n = 652	17-24 weeks n = 304	Nulliparous n = 531	Multiparous n = 425	n = 956
Median dose of gemeprost (range)	1 (0-14)	2ª (1-14)	2* (0-9)	1 (0-14)	2 (0-14)
Median induction. in hours (range)	7.00 (1.3-48.2)	8.8* (0.5-109.9)	8_5* (0.5-57_3)	6.7 (1:25-109.9)	7.8 (0.5-1009.9)
Surgical evacuation of uterus for incomplete abortion (%)	77 (11.8)	33 (10.9)	39 (7.3)	71 (16.7)*	110 (11.5)
Need for other therapy (%) ^c	5 (0.8)	5 (1.6)	1 (0.2)	9 (2.1) ^d	10 (1.0)

Significant difference by Mann-Whitney test, p <0.001.

* significant difference by chi-square test, p <0.001.

* Therapies include oxytocin, surgical evacuation of uterus, and hysterotomy.

^d significant difference by Fisher's Exact test, p = 0.007.




incomplete abortion was analyzed with respect to gestation, parity, and history of previous abortion. There was a trend (p = 0.057) toward a higher incidence of surgical evacuation in the 111 women with gestation of less than 14 weeks (17.1%) compared to women of greater than 14 weeks of gestation (10.8%). Women with a history of previous abortion had a significantly higher incidence of surgical evacuation (16.0%; p = 0.001) compared to women without a history of abortion (8.8%). Multiparous women had a significantly higher incidence of surgical evacuation (16.7%; p < 0.001) for incomplete abortion or retained placenta compared to nulliparous women (7.3%; Table 3).

Ten (0.1%) women failed to abort with gemeprost and required other methods for abortion. Seven (0.7%) women required an iv. infusion of oxytocin, two (0.2%) women at less than 14 weeks gestation needed surgical evacuation, and one (0.1%) woman underwent a hysterotomy. The woman who had a hysterotomy was 42 years old at 16 weeks of gestation. She failed to abort after nine doses of gemeprost and developed heavy vaginal bleeding requiring a blood transfusion during oxytocin infusion. An emergency hysterotomy was performed to terminate the pregnancy. Her hemoglobin concentration dropped from 11.9 g/dL to 7.5 g/dL prior to the hysterotomy. Three (0.3%) women were given more than nine doses of gemeprost. All of them were in the group of 10 women requiring other methods for abortion. The proportion requiring other methods for abortion was found to be higher in multiparous women.

Four patients (0.42%) stayed in hospital for more than 3 days. The woman who had a hysterotomy stayed for 5 days. The other three patients aborted after 48 h and also required surgical evacuation of the uterus for retained placenta. Blood transfusion was required only by the woman who had a hysterotomy. There was not a single case of cervical tear or cardiovascular complication.

31

- -----

#### 4. Discussion

The results of the present series, which was larger than the previous study, of women who underwent second trimester termination of pregnancy confirms the efficacy of this combination regimen of mifepristone and gemeprost [2]. Out of the 956 women, 68.6% aborted within 10 h and could be managed as day-cases. The median induction-toabortion interval (7.8 h) is comparable to previous studies using gemeprost or misoprostol in combination with mifepristone [2–4].

In this study, 11% of the women required evacuation of the uterus for retained placenta or incomplete abortion. Thirty percent of the women required evacuation of the uterus in our previous study using a similar regimen when pelvic ultrasound was used in addition to clinical judgment for the diagnosis of incomplete abortion or retained placenta [2]. In the past 6 years, our diagnosis of retained placenta or incomplete abortion has been based on clinical judgment alone, and this has reduced the proportion of women requiring surgical intervention. The surgical evacuation rate in the present study is comparable to the regimen using mifepristone and misoprostol (9.4%) [3].

The response of multiparous women was different from that of nulliparous women following treatment with the antiprogesterone, mifepristone and gemeprost. The induction-to-abortion interval of multiparous women (6.7 h) was significantly shorter than nulliparous women (8.5 h). This can be explained by the difference in the compliance of the cervix in the two groups of women. In contrast, multiparous women (16.7%) were found to have a significantly higher incidence of surgical evacuation of the uterus after medical abortion compared to nulliparous women (7.3%). Surgical

#### Table 3

Effect of obstetric history on the incidence of incomplete abortion

	Obstetric history		•		
	Nulliparous		Multiparous		
	No past history of previous abortion n = 390	History of previous abortion $n = 141$	No past previous history of abortion n = 209	History of previous abortion $n = 216$	Total a = 956
Surgical evacuation for incomplete abortion (%)	23 (5.9)	16 (11.3)*	30 (14.4)	41 (19.0) ⁶	110 (11.5)

* History of previous abortion versus no history of previous abortion in nulliparous women (p = 0.053 by chi-square test).

* History of previous abortion versus no history of previous abortion in multiparous women (p = 0.251 by chi-square test).

# O.S. Tung et al / Contraception 64 (2001) 29-32

evacuation is usually performed for incomplete abortion based on the clinical diagnosis of retained placenta, incomplete placenta, or excessive hemorrhage. In this study, the incidence of surgical evacuation was found to be higher in women with a previous history of abortion. Thus, women with a history of previous pregnancy that ended either in an abortion or full-term delivery were more likely to have retained placenta or residual trophoblast. It was reported that more parous women bled greater than 500 mL during termination of second trimester pregnancy by gemeprost alone [8]. The reason why a higher proportion of multiparous women failed to abort completely with this regimen of mifepristone and gemeprost is not known but is similar to recent reports on medical abortion in the first trimester [9.10]. A more efficient establishment of the pregnancy at a very early stage was suggested by one of the author as the reason for a higher failure rate in multiparous women [9].

The choice of surgical versus medical termination of pregnancy poses a dilemma to clinicians in the management of women at 12–14 weeks gestation [11]. Twenty percent of multiparous women in this study required surgical evacuation for incomplete abortion. In addition, the proportion of multiparous women who failed to abort with gemeprost was higher. Dilatation of the cervix is usually easier in multiparous women, and it may be more convenient and costeffective to perform a dilatation and evacuation in this group of women. In skilled hands, dilatation and evacuation may require a shorter stay in the hospital, and women may possibly experience less pain compared to termination using this regimen of mifepristone and gemeprost.

The results of this study demonstrated that gemeprost is comparable to misoprostol in terms of efficacy and safety [3]. Misoprostol is cheap and stable at room temperature when compared to gemeprost. Oral misoprostol is available in many countries for treatment of peptic ulcer. Although vaginal misoprostol is commonly used with mitepristone for second trimester medical abortion, it is not licensed for this purpose. Moreover, gemeprost is the prostaglandin that clinicians usually resort to when the women fail to abort using misoprostol for termination of pregnancy in the second trimester [3.12.13].

In conclusion, a combination of mifepristone and gemeprost is a safe, noninvasive, and effective method for termination of pregnancy in the second trimester.

# Acknowledgments

We are grateful to the nursing staff in Ward 54 Simpson Memorial Maternity Pavilion for their excellent nursing care and record keeping.

References

- Karim SMM, Filshie GM. Therapeutic abortion using PGF2α. Lancet 1970;1:157-9.
- [2] Thong, KJ. Baird DT. Induction of second trimester abortion with mifepristone and gemeprost/Br J Obstet Gynaecol 1993;100:758-61.
- [3] Ashok PW. Templeton A. Nonsurgical mid-trimester termination of pregnancy: a review of 500 consecutive cases. Br J Obstet Gynaecol 1999;106:706-10.
- [4] Gemzell-Daniselsson K, Ostlund E. Termination of second trimester pregnancy with mifepristone and gemeprost. The clincial experience of 197 cases. Acta Obstet Gynaecol Scand 2000;79:702-6.
- [5] Bygdeman M, Swahn ML. Progesterone receptor blockage. Effect on uterine contractility and early pregnancy. Contraception 1985;32:45– 51.
- [6] Rodger MW, Baird DT. Pretreatment with mifepristone (RU 486) reduces interval between prostaglandin administration and expulsion in second trimester abortion. Br J Obstet Gynaecol 1990;97:41-5.
- [7] Webster D. Penney GC. Templeton A. A comparison of 600 and 200 mg mifepristone prior to second trimester abortion with the prostaglandin misoprostol. Br J Obstet Gynaecol 1996;103:706-9.
- [8] Thong KJ, Robertson AJ, Baird DT. A retrospective study of 932 s trimester terminations using gemeprost (16,16-dimethyl-trans- $\Delta^2$ PGE, methyl ester). Prostaglandin 1992;44:65-74.
- [9] Bartley J. Tong S. Everington D, Baird DT. Parity is a major determinant of success rate in medical abortion: a retrospective analysis of 3161 consecutive cases of early medical abortion treated with reduced doses of mifepristone and vaginal gemeprost. Contraception 2001;62: 297-303.
- [10] Child TJ, Thomas J. Rees M. MacKenzie IZ. A comparative study of surgical and medical procedures: 932 pregnancy terminations up to 63 days gestation. Hum Reprod 2001;16:67-71.
- [11] Ho PC. Termination of pregnancy between 9-14 weeks. In: Baird DT. Grimes D. VanLook PFA, editors. Modern methods of inducing abortion. Cornwall, UK: Blackwell Science, 1995. p. 259-71.
- [12] Wong KS, Ngai CSW, Yeo, ELK, Tang LCH, Ho PC. A comparison of two regimens of intravaginal misoprostol for termination of second trimester pregnancy: a randomized comparative trial. Hum Reprod 2000;15:709-12
- [13] El-Rafaey H, Templeton A. Induction of abortion in the second trimester by a combination of misoprostol and mifepristone: a randomized comparison between two misoprostol regimens. Hum Reprod 1995:10:475-8.



,°÷ ∙∽cr



 $\hat{\sigma}_{m}$ 

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

REFERENCE 4

# P.W. Ashok, A. Kidd, G.M.M. Flett, A. Fitzmaurice, W. Graham, A. Templeton

A randomized comparison of medical abortion and surgical vacuum aspiration at 10-13 weeks gestation.

Human Reproduction 2002; 17(1): 92-98

Human Reproduction Vol.17, No.1 pp. 92-98, 2002

4

# A randomized comparison of medical abortion and surgical vacuum aspiration at 10-13 weeks gestation

Premila W.Ashok^{1,3}, Avril Kidd², Gillian M.M.Flett², Ann Fitzmaurice¹, Wendy Graham¹ ្រះអាចិត្តិទៅ។ and Allan Templeton¹⁻ and States ан ин 74 на на

University of Aberdeen and ²Grampian University Hospitals NHS Trust, Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, University of Aberdeen, Aberdeen Maternity Hospital, Foresterhill, Comhill Road, Aberdeen AB25 2ZD, Scotland, UK.

³To whom correspondence should be addressed at: Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, University of Aberdeen, Aberdeen Maternity Hospital, Foresterhill, Cornhill Road, Aberdeen AB25 2ZD, Scotland, UK. E-mail: ashok@abdn.ac.uk . ... . .... The manual of the state of the

BACKGROUND: Since 1991, mifepristone in combination with a prostaglandin analogue has been licensed for termination of pregnancy in the UK at up to 9 weeks amenorrhoea, and since 1995, beyond 13 weeks. Surgical methods are used almost exclusively at 10-13 weeks amenorrhoea. METHODS: A patient-centred, partially randomized, controlled trial was carried out. Those who expressed a strong preference for either medical (n = 15)or surgical (n = 62) abortion were allocated to that method. The remainder agreed to be randomized. The medical method (n = 188) was mifepristone 200 mg followed by misoprostol up to 3 doses, and surgery (n = 180) was by vacuum aspiration under general anaesthesia. Outcome measures included efficacy rates, medical complications within 8 weeks of the procedure, patient preferences and acceptability. RESULTS: Among women who underwent medical abortion, 5.4% required a second procedure compared with 2.1% who had surgery, although this difference was not statistically significant. Side effects experienced were higher in women who underwent medical abortion compared with those who underwent surgery. There were no significant differences in the rates of major complications up to 8 weeks. Prior to termination, 80% of women had a preference for a method, with 72% preferring medical and 28% preferring surgical abortion. Following abortion, 70% of those who underwent medical termination and 79% who underwent surgery would opt for the same method in the future. CONCLUSION: Medical abortion is safe and effective at 10-13 weeks gestation and should be considered an option for those women who wish to avoid surgery and anaesthesia.

Key words: medical abortion/mifepristone/misoprostol/surgical vacuum aspiration

# Introduction

In England and Wales the majority of abortions (72%) are carried out at 9-13 weeks gestation (Office for National Statistics, 1999), while in Scotland about one-third of all abortions are carried out at 10-13 weeks (Information and Statistics Division, 2000).

In the UK, mifepristone in combination with a prostaglandin analogue was licensed for the termination of pregnancy at up to 9 weeks amenorrhoea in 1991, and since 1995 has also been available for termination of pregnancy beyond 13 weeks. At present, surgical methods (vacuum aspiration) are used at 10-13 weeks amenorrhoea, and there is little published work on the use of medical methods (Ashok et al., 1998a).

Vacuum aspiration is considered to be safe and effective but has been associated with major morbidity in up to 1% of women and minor morbidity in 10% (Joint Study of the Royal College of General Practitioners and the Royal College of Obstetricians and Gynaecologists, 1985), the major determinants of morbidity being gestational age and the procedure

used to terminate the pregnancy. In the first trimester the complication rate is lowest at 7-8 weeks gestation (0.26 per 100 abortions) and increases progressively to 1.37 per 100 abortions at 13 weeks (Grimes and Cates, 1979). Vacuum aspiration, usually performed under general anaesthesia, is currently the method of choice at 10-13 weeks gestation.

The manufacturer's recommended regimen for early medical abortion comprises mifepristone 600 mg in combination with the prostaglandin analogue gemeprost. A randomized controlled trial comparing medical abortion with vacuum aspiration at gestations up to 9 weeks showed that although both methods were highly acceptable to women, medical abortion was more painful and less effective with advancing gestation (Henshaw et al., 1993, 1994a,b).

Since then, a number of developments in the drug regimen have occurred based on randomized controlled studies (McKinley et al., 1993; World Health Organization Task Force, 1993; El-Refaey et al., 1995) and these led to the development in 1994 of a new medical regimen consisting of a reduced dose of mifepristone (200 mg) and the vaginal use of the

C European Society of Human Reproduction and Embryology

Comparison of medical abortion and surgical vacuum aspiration

prostaglandin analogue misoprostol (El-Refaey and Templeton, 1994; Ashok *et al.*, 1998b, 1999). This prostaglandin has a number of advantages over gemeprost in that it is easily stored and transported and of very low cost.

This paper compares the efficacy, early medical sequelae (up to 8 weeks following termination) and acceptability of medical and surgical abortion at 10-13 weeks gestation.

#### Materials and methods

# Study design

The preferred design for evaluating a new treatment or management policy is a randomized controlled trial, and this was adopted for the study. The partially-randomized patient preference (PRPP) design has been recommended for use in trials where motivational factors may produce bias in outcomes (Brewin and Bradley, 1989). In this study, a conventional randomized trial was conducted, alongside an assessment of preferences in those who did not wish to be randomized to one method or the other.

#### Study participants

ನಕ ವೆಗಳ

The study was approved by the Grampian Research Ethics Committee and was conducted at Aberdeen Royal Infirmary. Women presenting for termination of pregnancy at 10–13 weeks amenorrhoea, gestation confirmed by transvaginal ultrasound, and fulfilling the requirements of the 1967 Abortion Act, were eligible for recruitment. They were also required to meet the following criteria: (i) eligible to undergo either surgical vacuum aspiration or medical abortion; (ii) singleton, viable intrauterine pregnancy; and (iii) ultrasonically estimated gestational age of 10–13 weeks at the time of termination. The exclusion criteria were: (i) suspected ectopic pregnancy; (ii) chronic adrenal failure; (iii) long term corticosteroid treatment; (iv) haemorrhagic disorder and treatment with anticoagulants; (v) known allergy to mifepristone; (vi) smokers >35-years-of-age with electrocardiogramabnormalities; and (vii) breast feeding.

Eligible women were given a standardized information sheet describing medical and surgical methods of abortion and were asked if they were willing to be allocated to a method of abortion. Women were also informed of side effects and complications of each method. Women who agreed to be randomized were assigned to a method by opening consecutive sealed opaque envelopes containing a random number generated by computer. The randomization was prepared by the trial statistician using a randomized block design with blocks of 2, 4, 6 and 8, to ensure equal numbers in each group during the study.

The women who declined to be randomized were asked by the study nurse the reasons for their decision. Those not wishing to be randomized because they had a strong preference for a particular treatment were identified. The women willing to participate if they received their preferred treatment option constituted a non-randomized prospective cohort.

A total of 486 women were recruited (400 in the randomized arm) in order to achieve a 90% power of detecting at the 5% significance level a difference of 10% in the level of acceptability between the two termination methods. Eighty-six women were recruited to the preference arm of the trial. A further 93 women eligible to participate declined to take part in either the randomized or preference arm of the study. Analysis was by intention to treat, and women allocated to a method of treatment were attributed to that method for the purpose of analysis, whether or not they underwent their allocated procedure. Five women randomized to the medical group had surgical treatment by choice and three women who were randomized to surgery had medical treatment.

#### Intervention

The two alternatives were medical or surgical abortion.

#### Medical termination

Women undergoing medical abortion were asked to attend the gynaecology ward and given 200 mg of mifepristone orally in hospital under nursing supervision. They were then admitted to the ward 36-48 h later, when misoprostol 800 µg was administered vaginally. If products of conception were not passed, a further two doses (400 µg) of misoprostol were given either orally or vaginally at 3 h intervals depending on vaginal bleeding. Women who had vaginal bleeding heavier than a normal period were given misoprostol orally. After products of conception were passed, women were observed in the ward for a further 4 h. Following administration of prostaglandin, pulse, blood pressure, temperature and systemic symptoms were monitored hourly. Women were given oral (paracetamol 500 mg plus dihydrocodeine 10 mg) or parenteral (morphine 10 mg) analgesia.

If products of conception were not passed 3-4 h after the third dose of prostaglandin, a speculum examination was undertaken and any products of conception in the vagina or cervix were removed. If products of conception were not identified, an ultrasound scan was performed and surgical evacuation undertaken if necessary prior to discharge.

#### Surgical termination

Standard techniques were used to perform vacuum aspiration, under general anaesthesia. Women were admitted to the day surgery unit and were given 800 µg of misoprostol for cervical priming 3 h preoperatively.

In all other respects (e.g. counselling, infection screening) there were no differences between the two groups. All women were screened for genital tract infection including *Chlamydia trachomatis* and treated if necessary.

Women who underwent medical termination were invited to return to the hospital 14-21 days after the termination of pregnancy for follow-up. At this visit, if vaginal bleeding had not ceased then an ultrasound scan was done and high vaginal and endocervical swabs taken if indicated. Patients were commenced on antibiotics or curettage performed if necessary. Those undergoing surgical termination of pregnancy were followed up by their referring doctor, usually at ~14 days post-procedure.

#### Outcome measures

These included efficacy, major medical complications and relatively minor short-term physical symptoms. Patient preferences prior to termination and acceptability following the procedure were also assessed. These were measured by self administered questionnaires prior to the procedure following randomization, prior to discharge and at 2–3 weeks following termination.

# Efficacy and immediate medical complications prior to discharge

The efficacy of the procedure was defined as complete uterine evacuation without the need for a second procedure [subsequent surgical (re)currettage or medical regimen] within 8 weeks of abortion.

Women were asked to complete a modified 'menstrual distress questionnaire' as well as a visual analogue scale for pain, after termination and prior to discharge. The former was used to assess symptoms such as nausea, vomiting, headache, hot flushes, dizziness, tiredness and diarrhoea on a five point scale (none to very severe) (Henshaw et al., 1994c). Analgesia use in hospital was also documented.

#### Medical sequelae at 2 weeks following the procedure

Complications recorded at the follow-up visit and unscheduled visits to hospital were documented.

#### P.W.Ashok et al.

Table L Characteristics of s	tudy su	bjects	-				
Group	n	Estimated gestation (days)	Age (years)	Body mass index	Primigravid n (%)	Previous induced abortion n (%)	Chiamydia-positive n (%)
Randomized medical	188 -	71.8 (7.2)	25.5 (6.9)	23.4 (3.7)	80 (42.6%)	55 (29.3%)	11 (5.9%)
Randomized surgical	180	73.0 (7.0)	24.8 (6.7)	23.5 (3.8)	82 (45.6%)	54 (30.0%)	15 (8.3%)
Preference medical	15	71.9 (7.6)	29.3 (7.0)	23.1 (2.4)	3 (20.0%)	5 (33.3%)	0
Preference surgical	62	74.0 (5.9)	-26.0 (6.4)	23.3 (4.0)		24 (38,7%)	4 (6.5%)
Total	445	72.0 (7.0)	25.4 (6.8)	23.4 (3.8)	182 (40.9%)	138 (31.0%)	30 (6.7%)

Values are mean (SD), except where n (%).

A further questionnaire was completed and returned by post 2-3 weeks following the procedure to assess the following: (i) duration and sevenity of vaginal bleeding recorded on a menstrual calendar (each day on the menstrual calendar was subdivided into five to indicate the sevenity of bleeding, none to flooding). The values were added to give the total vaginal bleeding score (TVBS); (ii) a visual analogue scale to assess pain and analgesia use following discharge; (iii) a record of the time taken off work and to return to normal activity.

## Medical sequelae at 8 weeks following the procedure

A third questionnaire was completed by the family doctor at 8 weeks following termination and all medical problems attributable to the abortion were documented. Women experiencing more than one problem were classified for analysis according to the primary complaint.

Major and minor complications attributable to the termination up to 8 weeks following the procedure were assessed. Major complications were classified according to categories previously defined (Joint Study of the Royal College of General Practitioners and the Royal College of Obstetricians and Gynaecologists, 1985). The minor complications are listed in Table V.

Unscheduled visits to hospital related to abortion were recorded and the termination database reviewed for complications related to abortion.

#### Preference and acceptability of procedure

Preference for a particular method was included in the questionnaire completed following randomization and prior to the procedure. Acceptability was assessed with regards to preferred future method by means of questions included in the 2–3 weeks questionnaire, returned by post.

#### Statistical analysis

The data were entered into a personal computer-held database and analysed using the Statistics Package for Social Sciences program. The principal analysis compared the outcomes in the two arms of the randomized controlled trial. Independent and paired *i*-tests were used for continuous variables with a normal distribution, and Mann-Whitney's *U*-test for ordinal or non-parametric continuous variables. The  $\chi^2$  test or Fisher's Exact test, as appropriate, was used for independent nominal data and McNemar's test for paired data describing dichotomous variables. Confidence intervals (95% CI) were applied where appropriate. Comparisons were made between the randomized women and those entering the preference cohort with regard to their characteristics and outcomes.

#### Results

A total of 486 women were recruited, 400 to the randomized and 86 to the preference arm of the trial. Thirty-four (7.0%) women who had agreed to participate in the study subsequently decided to continue with their pregnancy, seven withdrew (1.4%) and one (0.2%) woman failed to attend for termination and subsequently had a midtrimester medical termination of pregnancy. Thus, a total of 445 women were enrolled in the study, 368 in the randomized and 77 in the preference group. Figure 1 shows the numbers recruited and the study design.

The 445 women were allocated to four groups: those randomized to medical abortion [n = 188 (51.1%)], those randomized to surgery [n = 180 (48.9%)], those who had a strong preference for medical abortion [n = 15 (3.4%)], and those with a strong preference for vacuum aspiration [n = 62 (13.9%)]. Thus, a total of 203 (45.6%) underwent the medical method and 242 (54.4%) vacuum aspiration. There were no differences between the groups in any baseline physical or sociodemographic characteristics (Table I).

Women treated as day cases included 179 (88.2%) of those undergoing medical abortion and 222 (91.7%) undergoing surgical abortion.

For descriptive purposes, the data in certain sections have been combined for women who underwent a particular method either by choice or chance.

#### Medical abortion

Of the 203 women allocated to the medical group, 45 (22.2%) experienced some vaginal bleeding following mifepristone administration and prior to the administration of prostaglandin; nine (4.5%) women rated this to be heavier than a normal period. One (0.5%) woman aborted on mifepristone alone, prior to the administration of prostaglandin. The median time interval from administration of mifepristone to prostaglandin administration was 44.00 h (range 33.83-48.58).

The median number of doses of prostaglandin required was 2 (range 0-3). Products of conception were identified by inspection in 192 (94.6%) women. Twenty women (9.9%) also had abortion confirmed on ultrasound scan prior to discharge. Of the 203 women who underwent medical abortion 139 (68.5%) aborted within 6 h of prostaglandin administration. The median induction abortion interval was 5.00 h (range 2.00-27.58). Following the third dose of prostaglandin, 57 women (28.1%) did not pass products of conception within 3-4 h and required a speculum examination.

#### Surgical abortion

All 242 surgical terminations were carried out under general anaesthesia on a dedicated theatre list. The consultant responsible for patients carried out 159 (65.7%) of the vacuum aspirations. The median time interval between cervical priming and surgical evacuation was 2.42 h (range 0.17-7.00).

#### Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

Comparison of medical abortion and surgical vacuum aspiration

-5

÷



Figure 1. Study design and numbers recruited.

Efficacy and immediate medical complications prior to discharge

There were no significant differences in overall efficacy between medical abortion and vacuum aspiration. Gestation did not influence efficacy in either group (Table II). Of the 11 (5.4%) failures in the medical group who subsequently had surgery, three (1.5%) had a continuing pregnancy, one (0.5%)a missed abortion and seven (3.4%) had incomplete abortions. Surgical evacuation following failed medical abortion was undertaken prior to discharge in 10 (90.9%) women, and within 2 weeks of the procedure in one woman. Products of conception from five women were sent for histological examination and chorionic villi were identified in four of these. Of the five women (2.1%) who required a second procedure in the surgical group, medical treatment was undertaken following a failed attempt to dilate the cervix at vacuum aspiration in one woman (0.4%). Surgical (re)curettage was undertaken in the other four women (1.7%) for incomplete abortion within 4 weeks of the first procedure. Products of conception were identified in all three women where histological examination was requested.

Among women who were randomized, the overall pain score [median (range)] experienced by women who underwent medical abortion was 6.2 (0–10) and with vacuum aspiration 2.5 (0–10), indicating a significant difference between the two groups (P < 0.0001). Similarly, women who underwent the medical method [7.6 (0.6–9.9)] in the preference group experienced significantly more pain than those who underwent vacuum aspiration [2.1 (0–9); P < 0.0001). However, women who were randomized to the medical method had significantly lower pain scores [5.7 (0–10)] following analgesic administra-

Table II. Efficacy of abortion method according to gestation

Gestation	Medical abortion n (%) n = 203	Surgical Abortion n (%) n = 242	P-value
64-70 days			
Total number	105 (51.7)	108 (44.6)	NS .
Failed	3 (2.9)	0 (0)	
Complete abortion	102 (97.1)	108 (100)	
71-77 days			
Total number	52 (25.6)	57 (23.6)	NS
Failed	4 (7.7)	3ª (5.3)	
Complete abortion	48 (92.3)	54 (94.7)	
78-84 days			
Total number	32 (15.8)	63 (26.0)	NS
Failed	4 (12.5)	2 (3.2)	
Complete abortion	28 (87.5)	61 (96.8)	-
85-91 days			
Total number	14 (6.9)	14 (5.8)	-
Failed	0 (0)	. 0 (0)	•
Complete abortion	14 (100)	14 (100)	
Overall .			
Total number	203	242	NS ·
Failed	11 (5.4)	5 (2.1)	
Complete abortion	192 (94.6)	237 (97.9)	

*In one woman medical treatment was undertaken following an attempt at surgery due to inability to dilate the cervix. NS = not significant.

tion compared with those randomized to surgery [7.7 (0–10); P < 0.0001). Such a significant difference was not seen in the pain scores following analgesia administration in the preference group (P = 0.53). The median (range) scores in the medical and surgical groups were 6.7 (0.3–9.3) and 6.8 (0.1–10.0) respectively.

P.W.Ashok et al.

Table III. Side effects experienced by women in the ward

	Randomized	·····		Preference		
• •	Medical abortion n (%) n = 186	Surgical abortion n (%) n = 180	P-value	Medical abortion n (%) n = 15	Surgical abortion n (%) n = 60	P-value
Nausca Vomiting Diarthoea Abdominal pain Vaginal bleeding Tirectness Headache Hot flushes Dizziness	128 (69.2) 91 (49.2) 79 (42.5) 182 (97.8) 178 (97.8) 159 (85.5) 51 (27.6) 74 (40.0) 82 (44.3)	50 (27.8) 15 (8.3) 8 (4.5) 163 (90.6) 166 (94.3) 127 (70.9) 28 (15.6) 21 (11.7) 39 (21.0)	< 0.0001 < 0.0001 < 0.0001 0.003 NS 0.001 0.005 < 0.0001 < 0.0001	9 (60.0) 7 (46.7) 15 (100) 12 (80.0) 10 (66.7) 6 (40.0) 5 (33.3) 7 (46.7)	11 (18.3) 3 (5.0) 0 (0) 53 (88.3) 53 (91.4) 45 (75.0) 4 (6.7%) 5 (8.5), 10 (16.7)	0.001 < 0.000L < 0.000F NS NS 0.001 0.012 0.013
NS = not significant.					and the second sec	

Table IV. Short-term medical sequelae (2-3 weeks following the termination)

	Randomized				Preference		2.54	····
	$\begin{array}{l} \text{Medical} \\ n = 118 \end{array}$	Surgical $n = 111$	.P-value	n = 9	$\frac{\text{Medical}}{n=36}$	Surgical	P-value.	CI .
Total number of days bleeding Mean (SD)	14.21 (4.8)	11.21 (5.9)	< 0.0001	1.59, 4.41	13.0 (4.1)	10.8 (4.7)	NS	-1.47, 5.85
Total vaginal bleeding score Mean (SD)	37.63 (13.7)	23.33 (14.8)	< 0.0001	10.58, 18.01	31.50 (8.96)	22.42 (13.35)	NS	-0.84, 18.43
Overall pain since termination Median (range)	2.1 (0-9.5)	1.6 (0–9.8)	NS	-`.	0.4 (0.1–6.2)	1.4 (0-6.0)	NS	-
Most severe pain since termination	3.9 (0-10)	2.5 (0-9.9)	NS	-	1.5 (0.2–9.9)	3.1 (0–9.2)	NS	

Median (range).

CI = confidence interval; NS = not significant.

Of the 203 women who underwent medical abortion, 61 (30.0%) required no analgesia, 120 (59.1%) requested oral analgesia only, and 22 (10.9%) requested parenteral opiate analgesia. All women who underwent surgical termination were given diclofenac per rectally 100 mg or paracetamol per rectally 1000 mg in theatre following the procedure. However, a further 96 (39.7%) women required additional analgesia with 91 (37.6%) women requesting oral analgesia and 5 (2.1%) requesting parenteral opiates.

Side effects experienced by women on the ward are shown in Table III. Four (2.0%) women who had medical abortion required syntometrine to control bleeding. Two (0.8%) women in the surgical group had a blood loss >500 ml, one (0.4%)woman requiring a blood transfusion.

## Medical sequelae at 2-3 weeks following the procedure

Of the 386 women randomly allocated, 229 (60%) returned the questionnaire, 118 (64%) of whom underwent the medical method and 111 (62%) who had vacuum aspiration. Of the 76 in the preference group, 45 (60%) returned the questionnaire, 9 (60%) in the medical group and 36 (58%) in the surgical group.

Short-term sequelae 2-3 weeks following the two methods of termination are shown in Table IV. The duration and total vaginal bleeding score was greater in women randomized to medical abortion. The median (range) time taken to return to normal activity was 2.5 days (0-14) in women who underwent medical abortion and 2.5 days (0-20) in those who underwent vacuum aspiration with no significant difference between the two groups. There were no differences in median (range) time taken to return to work, 2.0 days (0-21) in the medical group and 2.0 days (0-21) in the surgical group.

At 2-3 weeks following the procedure there was no difference in the level of pain experienced by women between the medical and surgical groups, randomized or in the preference arm (Table IV). Following discharge from hospital, of the women who returned questionnaires, overall (both randomized and preference) 12 (9.4%) women who underwent medical abortion and 11 (7.5%) who underwent vacuum aspiration required analgesia with no significant difference between the two groups.

All (both randomized and preference) women who underwent medical abortion were invited to attend follow-up 2 weeks later in hospital. Of these, 113 (55.7%) agreed to attend for follow-up, of whom 72 (63.7%) attended. The remaining 41 (36.3%) women failed to keep their hospital appointment. The remaining 90 (44.3%) women who declined the initial invitation to attend hospital were followed up by their family doctor. Women undergoing surgical abortion were followed up by the family doctor, and only seven (2.9%) women followed up in hospital for medical reasons.

Comparison of medical abortion and surgical vacuum aspiration

n an the second second	-Medical Abortion n (%) n = 158	Surgical Abortion n (%) n = 207	95% Confidence for difference be proportion ⁴	interval P-value tween
Contacted family doctor Presumed pelvic infection	30 (19.0) 7 (4.4)	43 (20,8) 17 (8.2)	-0.100, 0.065 -0.087, 0.011	NS NS
Psychiatric and psychological mothidity	10 (6.3)	10 (4.8)	-0.033; 0.063	- <u>.</u> NS
Abnormal abdomino-pelvic pain and or vaginal bleeding	5 (3.2)	8 (3.9)-	-0.045, 0.031 -	NS
Other morbidity	8 (5.1)	.8 (3.9)	-0.036, 0.047	- NS

The confidence intervals include zero and hence the differences between the two groups are not significant at the 5% level. NS = not significant.

Of the 72 women who underwent incideal abortion and were followed up in hospital, six required oral antibiotics for suspected pelvic infection. All seven women who were followed up in hospital following vacuum aspiration required oral antibiotics for suspected infection.

# Medical sequelae at 8 weeks following the procedure

Of the 445 women in the study, 385 (86.5%) agreed to the researchers contacting the family doctor at 8 weeks following the procedure to complete a questionnaire. Information was obtained from family doctors in 365 (94.8%) of these. Overall, 73 (20.0%) women consulted the family doctor with problems related to termination. There was no significant difference in the consultation rates between the medical and surgical group. Seven (4.4%) women who had medical and 17 (8.2%) who had surgical treatment were given oral antibiotic treatment by the family doctor for presumed pelvic infection (Table V).

There were no significant differences in the rates of major complications within 8 weeks of abortion. Two (0.8%) women in the surgical group and one (0.5%) woman in the medical group required i.v. antibiotics for presumed pelvic infection.

In total, 15 of the 445 women in the study had an unscheduled visit to hospital, six (3.0%) in the medical and nine (3.7%) in the surgical group. Of these, one (0.5%) women in the medical group and seven (2.9%) who had vacuum aspiration were readmitted (P = 0.04).

Of the 41 women who underwent medical abortion but failed to keep their hospital appointment, information was obtained from the family doctor in 33. Thus, in only eight women was no follow-up information obtained.

## Preferences and acceptability

Prior to termination and following randomization, 351 (80%) of 441 women who returned the questionnaire had a definite preference for a particular method. Of these, 253 women (72%) preferred the medical method and 98 (28%) preferred vacuum aspiration (P < 0.0001).

Following termination, 118 women who underwent the medical method and 111 women who had vacuum aspiration returned questionnaires, but only 67 (35.6%) women who had the medical method and 96 (53.3%) who underwent surgery answered the question regarding future preferred method.

Forty-seven women (70%) who underwent medical termination would opt for the same method in future, and 76 women (79%) who underwent vacuum aspiration would opt for the same method in future—a statistically significant difference between the two groups (P < 0.0001).

## Discussion

This study is a robust comparison of medical and surgical abortion. A pilot study had previously shown the feasibility of medical abortion at 10–13 weeks gestation (Ashok *et al.*, 1998a). A large number of women were randomized in this study in a single centre in which all data were collected prior to discharge. Furthermore, the termination database and all hospital notes could be scrutinized for re-admission and complications related to termination. There was a very good response from family doctors with nearly 95% of those contacted responding to the questionnaire at 8 weeks following the procedure. None of the women in either group (medical or surgical) was discharged home prior to confirming interruption of the pregnancy. All women with a continuing pregnancy following the medical regimen were identified and had evacuation of products of conception prior to discharge.

Although the drop-out rate was higher than expected (shortterm follow-up rate with regards to acceptability), which would directly affect the power calculation, the results achieved are believed to be a true reflection of differences between the groups. However, data regarding problems related to termination were obtained from family doctors and in only eight women who underwent medical abortion was no information obtained. All these women had passed products of conception prior to discharge.

Overall, 11.8% of women who underwent medical abortion and 8.3% who underwent surgery were managed as in-patients. The majority of women who required overnight admission had geographical reasons.

Following randomization but prior to termination, nearly 80% of women had a definite preference for a particular method. Of these, the majority preferred the medical method. Of those who underwent medical abortion, 70% would opt for the same method in future while 79% who underwent vacuum

# P.W.Ashok et al.

aspiration would opt for the same in future—a statistically significant difference. Based on these results, it appears that medical abortion is less acceptable than surgery, although the response was from a small number of women who underwent either procedure (one-third of all women who underwent medical abortion and half of who underwent surgery returned the questionnaire), which highlights difficulties in post-termination surveys.

Medical abortion has proven to be a safe and effective alternative to vacuum aspiration in the early first trimester and for midtrimester termination of pregnancy (Ashok and Templeton, 1999). The efficacy is up to 97.5% overall and at gestätions of 7-9 weeks ~97% (Ashok *et al.*, 1998b). Even when the efficacy falls to 94% at 9 weeks gestation, acceptability among women remains high, as demonstrated in a previous randomized study (Henshaw *et al.*, 1993). To demonstrate a significant difference of 2-3% in efficacy, as found in this study, would have required 1750 women, but the clinical relevance would have been doubtful given the level of acceptability.

There is now increasing experience of medical abortion in the late first and early second trimester of pregnancy in China (Cheng, 1999). Mifepristone in an oral 200 mg dose in combination with vaginal misoprostol of up to three doses has an efficacy of 94.0%. The vaginal administration of misoprostol was more effective than the oral route. In our study we used a combination of vaginal and oral misoprostol with success rates similar to the above study. It has been shown that in the second trimester, provided the first dose of misoprostol is administration of subsequent doses. (El-Refaey and Templeton, 1995).

Re-admission rates to hospital were lower than in previous studies with only 1.8% of women requiring re-admission (Henshaw et al., 1994c). This may be associated with our current policy of pre-operative screening for pathogenic organisms. However, significantly more women in the surgical group were re-admitted following termination, although there were no significant differences between the two groups in family doctor consultation rates or in the requirement for antibiotics for presumed pelvic infection.

The current care provided to women undergoing medical abortion in the UK includes in-patient hospitalization on a day case basis. Medical abortion using mifepristone and home administration of misoprostol has been shown to be feasible in the USA at gestations up to 63 days (Schaff *et al.*, 2000). Schaff and colleagues showed no difference in efficacy in relation to gestation, with medical abortion being highly acceptable (91%). The feasibility of carrying out the procedure at home needs to be evaluated in different settings and in the context of further studies.

In summary, medical abortion is as safe and effective as vacuum aspiration at 10-13 weeks gestation. The introduction of a medical method of abortion at 10-13 weeks could have a considerable impact on the provision of medical services, as well as increasing women's choice of methods, particularly for those women who wish to avoid surgery and anaesthesia.

# Acknowledgements

This study was funded by the Chief Scientist Office of the Scottish Office Home and Health Department (SOHHD). However, the views expressed are those of the authors. We would like to thank the Nursing Staff on Ward 42/43 and the Surgical Day Unit (Grampian University Hospitals NHS Trust). We would also like to thank all patients who participated in this study and Ms Fiona Preston who provided secretarial support.

References

- Ashok, P.W. and Templeton, A. (1999) Non-surgical miditimester termination of pregnancy: a review of 500 consecutive cases. Br. J. Obstet. Gynaecol., ----106, 706-710.
- Ashok, P.W., Flett, G.M. and Templeton, A. (1998a) Termination of pregnancy at 9-13 weeks amenorphoea with mitepristone and misoprostol. Lancet, 352, 542-543.
- Ashok, P.W., Penney, G.C., Fiett, G.M. et al. (1998b) An effective regimen for early medical abortion: a report of 2000 consecutive cases. Hum. Reprod., 13, 2962-2965.
- Ashok, P.W. Flett, G.M. and Templeton, A (1999) Effective, low cost regimens for medical termination of pregnancy at all gestations. *Contemp. Rev.* Obstet. Gynaecol., 207-212.
- Brewin, C.R. and Bradley, C. (1989) Patient preferences and randomised clinical trials. Br. Med. J., 299, 313-315.
- Cheng, L. (1999) The Shanghai multicentre randomized comparative trial on termination of 10-16 weeks gestation with mitepristone plus misoprostol. *Chin. J. Obstet. Gynecol.*, 5, 268-271.
- El-Refacy, H. and Templeton, A: (1994) Early induction of abortion by a combination of mifepristone and misoprostol administered by the vaginal route. *Contraception*, 49, 111-114.
- El-Refaey, H. and Templeton, A (1995) Induction of abortion in the 2nd timester by a combination of misoprostol and mifepristone—a randomized comparison between two misoprostol regimens. *Hum. Reprod.*, 10, 475–478.
- El-Refacy, H., Rajasekar, D., Abdalla. M. et al. (1995) Induction of abortion with mifepristone (RU486) and oral or vaginal misoprostol. N. Engl. J. Med., 332, 983-987.
- Grimes, D.A. and Cates, W. (1979) Complications from legally-induced abortion: a review. Obstet. Gynaecol. Surv., 34, 177-191.
- Henshaw, R.C., Náji, S.A., Russell, I.T. et al. (1993) Comparison of medical abortion with vacuum aspiration; women's preferences and acceptability of treatment. Br. Med. J., 307, 714-717.
- Henshaw, R.C., Naji, S.A., Russell, I.T. et al. (1994a) A prospective economic evaluation comparing medical abortion (using mifepristone and geneprost) with surgical vacuum aspiration. Br. J. Fam. Plan., 29, 64-68.
- Henshaw, R.C., Naji, S.A.; Russell, LT et al. (1994b) Psychological responses following medical abortion (using mifepristone and geneprost) with surgical vacuum aspiration. Acta Obstet. Gynecol. Scand., 73, 812–818.
- Henshaw, R.C., Naji, S.A., Russell, I.T. *et al.* (1994c) A comparison of medical abortion (using mifepristone and gemeprost) with surgical vacuum aspiration: efficacy and early medical sequelae. *Hum. Reprod.* 9, 2167-2172.
- Information and Statistics Division (2000) Abortion Statistics 1998. In Health Briefing No. 00/01. ISD Publications, Edinburgh.
- Joint Study of the Royal College of General Practitioners and the Royal College of Obstetricians and Gynaecologists (1985) Induced abortion operations and their early sequelae J. R. Coll. Gen. Pract. 35, 175-180.
- McKinley, C., Thong, KJ. and Baird, D.T (1993) The effect of dose of mifepristone and gestation on the efficacy of medical abortion with mifepristone and misoprostol. *Hum. Reprod.*, 8, 1502-1505.
- Office for National Statistics (1999) Abortion Statistics 1998-Series AB no 26. Office for National Statistics Legal Abortion in England and Wales, 1999, HMSO, London 2000.
- Schaff, E.A., Fielding, S.L., Eisinger, S.H. et al. (2000) Low-dose mifepristone followed by vaginal misoprostol at 48 hours for abortion up to 63 days. Contraception, 61, 41-46.
- World Health Organization Task Force (1993) WHO Task Force on Postovulatory Methods of Fertility Regulation. Termination of pregnancy with reduced doses of mifepristone. Br. Med. J., 307, 532-537.

Received April 27, 2001; accepted September 18, 2001

**EXELGYN Medical Department** 

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report nº13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002



# E.A. Schaff, S.L. Fielding, S. Eisinger, L. Stadalius

# Mifepristone and misoprostol for early abortion when no gestational sac is present.

Contraception 2001; 63: 251-254



Contraception

Contraception 63 (2001) 251-254 Original research article

# Mifepristone and misoprostol for early abortion when no gestational sac

Eric A. Schaff*, Stephen L. Fielding, Steven Eisinger, Lisa Stadalius

Reproductive Health Program, Department of Family Medicine, University of Rochester School of Medicine, Rochester, NY, USA

Received 3 March 2000; received in revised form 28 February 2001; accepted 8 March 2001

# Abstract

The study was conducted to determine whether the administration of milepristone followed by vaginal misoprostol can induce an abortion in early pregnancy when no gestational sac is present on sonogram. This report presents a prospective, pilot study of 30 healthy adult women, pregnant and seeking an abortion, and with no gestational sac on sonogram. All women had a baseline serum chorionic gonadotropin (hCG) level measured prior to using mifepristone 200 mg orally followed by misoprostol 800 mcg vaginally 48 h later, and then returned up to 4 days later for a repeat sonogram and serum hCG level. Women with initial hCG levels > 2000 IU/L were evaluated for ectopic pregnancy. At the first follow-up visit, if the hCG decreased by >50%, the women were followed with home pregnancy (25 IU/L) tests weekly until negative. If the levels did not decrease by 50%, a second dose of misoprostol was given. Surgical intervention was indicated for persistent hCG levels or excessive bleeding. Of the 30 women enrolled, the mean number of days of amenorrhea was 40 (SD 9) days. Two women had surgical intervention for continuing pregnancy, 2 had ectopic pregnancies, and 1 was lost to follow-up. Complete medical abortions occurred in 25/30 (88%) women, but when recalculated, in 25/27 (93%) women who completed the protocol and who did not have an ectopic pregnancy. There was I adverse event in a woman with an ongoing pregnancy who then received methotrexate. She was hospitalized a day later with a complicated pelvic infection and likely methotrexate-induced pneumonitis. Twenty-three women had a decrease in hCG at first follow-up visit of >50%. All 27 women who completed the protocol found the overall regimen acceptable. Mifepristone followed at 48 h by vaginal misoprostol were effective and acceptable in inducing an abortion in very early pregnancy. There may be a higher incidence of failure in very early pregnancies. Documentation of a complete abortion by hCG level is necessary to ensure the pregnancy is neither ongoing nor ectopic. © 2001 Elsevier Science Inc. All rights reserved.

Keywords: Abortion; Mifepristone; Misoprostol

#### 1. Introduction

Mifepristone for medical abortion was approved by the US Food and Drug Administration in September 2000. It is highly effective when combined with the prostaglandin misoprostol 2 days later for up to 7-week pregnancy, with efficacy rates ranging from 92–98% [1–6].

An intrauterine gestational sac on sonogram usually is first seen in a 5-week intrauterine pregnancy [7]. In recent US medical abortion trials, inclusion criteria have required a gestational sac to be present on sonogram [8,9]. In contrast, women in France do not routinely have a sonogram examination, but the mandatory 7-day waiting period prior to using mifepristone, would likely ensure that the preg-

* Corresponding author. Tel.: +1-716-341-6292; fax: +1-716-341-6293.

E-mail address: eschaff@aol.com (E.A. Schaff).

0010-7824/01/\$ - see front matter Ø 2001 Elsevier Science Inc. All rights reserved. Pfl: S0010-7824(00)00200-1

nancy is beyond  $\geq 5$  weeks gestation. Consequently, there is little information about the effectiveness of mifepristone and very early pregnancy prior to a gestational sac present on sonogram.

The advantages of offering very early medical abortion are the following: 1) identifying an ectopic pregnancy in an asymptomatic phase by ultrasound and hCG levels: and 2) reducing the anxiety of waiting when a woman knows she wants an abortion. The disadvantages of offering an early mifepristone abortion when no gestational sac is present are: 1) treating an ectopic pregnancy with an inadequate regimen with mifepristone; and 2) over-treating a spontaneous miscarriage when mifepristone is not needed. Alternatively, women can wait until an intrauterine pregnancy is confirmed by sonogram thereby excluding an ectopic pregnancy or use methotrexate that is effective in inducing an early abortion or treating an early ectopic pregnancy [10–12]. 1.42 2017-2017

a shall be

en estate

an States

ne sker i 12

- The state of the

2 2 Sa.

•

and and the Pro-

A share a second sec A share a second s Second second

and the set of the

E.A. Schaff et al. / Contraception 63 (2001) 251-254

The objective of this pilot study was to determine whether women with no gestational sac on sonogram should be offered mifepristone for medical abortion.

#### 2. Material and methods

This was a prospective study of 30 women at a single site. The study had institutional review board approval. Inclusion criteriad included: 1) age  $\geq$  18; 2) good health; 3) positive sensitive pregnancy test and wanting an abortion; .4) a normal bimanual examination; and 5) no gestational sac on vaginal probe sonogram. Additional inclusion and exclusion criteria have been previously reported [8,9]. On day 1, women had a medical history, a gynecologic examination and a vaginal probe sonogram. All women had Rh blood typing, a hemoglobin, and baseline serum human chorionic gonadotropin (hCG)-level. Rh-negative-women-received Rh immune globulin. Women were administered mifepristone 200 mg orally in the office. If the initial or subsequent hCG levels were >2000 IU/L with no gestational sac visible on sonogram, the woman was evaluated for ectopic pregnancy. On day 3, women inserted 4, dry 200 µg tablets of misoprostol (total 800  $\mu$ g) vaginally at home and returned to the office up to 4 days later for a repeat vaginal probe sonogram and hCG level. At this visit, if the hCG had deceased by >50% from baseline, the woman was followed by phone with home pregnancy tests weekly until negative. Otherwise, a second dose of misoprostol was administered vaginally and the woman returned at her option from 1 day later to day 15. If a third visit was needed and if the hCG had decreased by >50%, the woman was followed by phone with home pregnancy tests weekly until negative. Surgical intervention was indicated for persistent hCG level or excessive bleeding. Women reported by phone or postcard when their bleeding stopped. Women were considered lost to follow-up if there was no known outcome after repeated attempts by phone and certified letter.

The primary outcome measures were as follows: 1) efficacy of the regimen without surgical intervention; 2) side effects; 3) adverse outcome; and 4) woman's perception of the procedure.

Women were interviewed about symptoms and use of medications at all visits. After either a >50% decrease in hCG levels or a surgical intervention occurred, a final questionnaire was administered that rated the woman's agreement about her acceptability of: 1) overall procedure; 2) cramping pain; 3) bleeding; 4) side effects from the medications; 5) time waiting until the abortion was over; 6) willingness to use misoprostol at home; 7) willingness to recommend the procedure; and, 8) willingness to choose the procedure again. The Likert scale ranged from strongly disagree, disagree, neutral, agree, to strongly agree. Agree and strongly agree were combined in this analysis.

#### 3. Results

Thirty women were enrolled from February through December 1999. Twenty-two (73%) were white, 4 (13%) African American, and 4 (13%) Hispanic: The mean age was 28.2 (SD 7.7) years. The initial mean gestational age by last menstrual period was 40.3 days (SD 9.0). The mean initial hCG level was 547 IU/L (SD 477), excluding the woman with an initial hCG of 16,922 IU/L who had an ectopic pregnancy.

Two women had surgical intervention for continuing pregnancy. One woman had an increase in her hCG level from 1000 IU/L to 5350 IU/L on day 4, a visible gestational sac on follow-up, and an uncomplicated aspiration curettage on day 12. The other woman's course was complicated. Her initial hCG was 385 IU/L which rose over the next 2 weeks to 1312 IU/L, and then to 1814 IU/L. She had no findings on sonogram. Although feeling well, she was considered a study failure and was given methotrexate to treat an early____ intrauterine pregnancy or an occult ectopic pregnancy. She presented 24 h later with acute abdominal pain and pelvic tenderness. Her white blood cell count was 18,500 with 93% neutrophils and 4% bands. She had a diagnostic aspiration curettage and an abdominal laparoscopic examination on day 29. Both procedures confirmed a pelvic infection despite negative cervical cultures for chlamydia and gonorrhea. Pathology from the curettings revealed an inflammatory exudate and trophoblastic tissue confirming an intrauterine pregnancy. On the first post-operative day, the woman was noted to have mild tachypnea, an oxygen saturation of 80%, and a chest film showing bilateral, nonspecific, patchy alveolar densities with small effusions consistent with fluid overload, mild acute respiratory distress syndrome possibly due to her pelvic infectious process, or mild pneumonitis from methotrexate [13]. After 24 h of antibiotics, oxygen therapy and diuretics, the oxygen saturation improved and the woman had an uncomplicated recovery. Her hCG levels decreased precipitously post curettage, also consistent with having had an intrauterine pregnancy.

Two women had ectopic pregnancies; one presented with 39 days of amenorrhea and an initial hCG level of 16,922 IU/L. A formal sonogram revealed a right adnexal mass and she underwent a salpingectomy without further complications. The other woman was gravid 10, para 3 with a history of a heterotopic ectopic pregnancy 2 years earlier. Her hCG levels rose from 1,326 IU/L on day 1 to 5,598 IU/L 1 week later. A formal sonogram showed 2 right adnexal masses diagnosed as twin ectopic pregnancies measuring 2.9 cm and 3.0 cm each. She was treated successfully with methotrexate. One woman refused to return for follow-up care. Her outcome was not documented and she was considered "lost-to-follow up."

Complete medical abortions occurred in 25/30 (88%) women and in 25/27 (93%) women excluding the woman who was lost to follow-up and the two women who had ectopic pregnancies. No woman experienced excessive bleeding. Twenty-three women had a decrease in hCG at

first follow-up of >50%. Of the six women who had increases in hCG levels, three had minimal elevations (mean of 33% at first follow-up) that decreased precipitously (<50% of baseline value) by the next visit. Of the other three women with hCG increases at first follow-up (mean of 268% from baseline), two had ongoing pregnancies and 1 had an ectopic pregnancy.

Of the 26 women with a documented bleeding cessation date, the mean length of bleeding was 12.4 days (SD 12). Twenty-one (70%) women reported using an oral narcotic for pain. Twenty-seven women (90%) but 100% of responders to the post treatment questionnaire found the regimen acceptable.

#### 4. Discussion —

÷.

يند : در روسيني :

eni.

This pilot study used a protocol that differs from the FDA approved regimen in that a lower dose of misoprostol. (200 mg) was used, a higher dose of misoprostol (800 mcg) was administered, and misoprostol was used vaginally rather than orally and at home. This regimen has proven to be highly effective in our previous trials.

Women who present for a medical abortion with a very early pregnancy and no gestational sac visible on sonogram are a dilemma for clinicians. Some of these women may undergo an unnecessary medical abortion because they have a failed pregnancy (missed abortion) and would eventually bleed spontaneously, though some of these women will require a non-elective aspiration curettage for excessive bleeding. Other women will have an ectopic pregnancy that requires additional evaluation and treatment. Amenorrhea of more than 35 days, with no sac present, is less consistent with an early intrauterine pregnancy. An hCG greater than the discriminatory level (>2000 IU/L for vaginal probe ultrasound or >3600 IU/L for abdominal probe ultrasound) will help to identify a woman at risk for an ectopic pregnancy [14]. Most of these women, realizing that they have an unintended pregnancy, albeit, early, failed or ectopic, will want some intervention.

Women with no gestational sac on sonogram are at risk for ectopic pregnancy as noted in the two women in this trial. Ectopic pregnancy must also be considered when a sonogram is not used initially and either serial hCG levels are rising or there is no vaginal bleeding after misoprostol. Treatment for early ectopic pregnancy should be commenced as soon as possible to reduce morbidity. Methotrexate is most effective in early ectopic pregnancy [10].

Unexpected were the two women who had ongoing pregnancies. This is considerably higher than the expected 1% of ongoing pregnancies found in other mifepristone studies [5,6] and requires further study. Since the availability of the commercial Mifeprex, we have had another woman who presented with an initial hCG of 150 IU/L and had an ongoing pregnancy after this regimen. In all cases, women with very early pregnancies will require documentation of completion. Methotrexate is an alternative treatment for very early medical abortion and may result in fewer ongoing pregnancies. Excessive bleeding, the most common cause for surgical intervention in most medical abortion trials, did not occur in this pilot study. The possibility of excessive bleeding requires the availability of 24 h surgical aspiration skills. There is evidence that blood loss is related to gestational age so less excessive bleeding is expected with early intervention [15] i.e., early intervention may be the safest time to offer medical abortion service.

There was one unexpected and serious adverse event in one of the two women who had an ongoing pregnancy. She received methotrexate for an occult pregnancy and then presented with a pelvic infection and a likely methotrexateinduced pneumonitis. She also had a diagnostic laparoscopy and iv fluids that may confuse the clinical course. Infection after medical abortion is very rare because there is no instrumentation of the uterus. Pneumonitis is also rare after methotrexate and has not been previously reported following medical abortion. The woman recovered completely.

## 5. Conclusion

In this pilot study, low-dose mifepristone 200 mg and home administration of vaginal misoprostol 800  $\mu$ g at 48 h were effective and acceptable to women seeking a very early medical abortion. Ectopic pregnancy must be considered when no gestational sac is present on initial sonogram. There may be a higher rate of ongoing pregnancies when offering mifepristone in very early pregnancy and therefore documentation of a complete abortion is necessary to ensure the pregnancy is neither ongoing nor ectopic.

#### Acknowledgments

The authors acknowledge the contributions of the sponsor, Larry Lader, President of the Abortion Rights Mobilization, for making this study possible.

#### References

- Peyron R, Aubeny E, Tarzus V, et al. Early termination of pregnancy with mifepristone (RU486) and orally active prostaglandin misoprostol. N Engl J Med 1993;328:1509-13.
- [2] Silvestre L, Dubois C, Renault M, Rezvani Y, Baulieu E-E, Ulmann A. Voluntary interruption of pregnancy with mifepristone (RU486) and a prostaglandin analog: a large-scale French experience. N Engl J Med 1990;322:645-8.
- [3] Aubeny E, Peyron R, Turpin CL, et al. Termination of early pregnancy (up to 63 days of amenorrhea) with milepristone and increasing doses of misoprostol. Int J Fertil Menopausal Stud 1995;40(Suppl2): 85-91.
- [4] Spitz IM, Bardin CW, Benton L, Robbins A. Early pregnancy termination with mifepristone and misoprostol in the United States. N Engl J Med 1998;338:1241-7.
- [5] World Health Organization Task Force on Post-ovulatory Methods of Fertility Regulation. Termination of pregnancy with reduced doses of mifepristone. BMJ 1993;307:532-7.
- [6] World Health Organization Task Force on Post-ovulatory Methods of Fertility Regulation. Comparison of two doses of mifepristone in

2.5

.

....

 $1, 1 \leq 2^{m_{\rm el}}$ 

المراجعة بالمعرفة المعرفين والمعرف والمعرف

· . .- .

-

:.

۰.

يتشتيها ويتعارف والمتعالية

· . . . '

۰,

. . .

. . . ⁻

_____

...

ر با ہ

. جيد م کن

******

122111

5 Jac

## E.A. Schaff et al. / Contraception 63 (2001) 251-254

combination with misoprostol for early medical abortion: a randomized trial. Br J Obstet Gynaecol 2000;107:524-30.

- [7] Goldstein SR, Jacot FRM, Poulin C, Poehlmann DS, Documenting pregnancy and gestational age. Paul M, et al., editors. A Clinician's Guide to Medical and Surgical Abortion. New York: Churchill Livingstone, 1999. p. 39-51.
- [8] Schaff EA, Eisinger SH, Stadalius LS, Franks P, Gore BZ, Poppema S. Low-dose milepristone 200 mg and vaginal misoprostol for induced abortion. Contraception 1999:59:1-6.
- [9] Schaff EA, Stadalius L, Eisinger SH: Franks P. Vaginal misoprostol administered at home after milepristone for abortion: J Fam Pract 1997;44:353-60.
- [10] Stoval-TG, Ling FW. Single-dose methotrexate: an expanded clinical trial. Am J Obstet Gynecol. 1993:168:1759-62. ·. .

ur age fu

- [11] Creinin MD. Methotrexate for abortion at ≤42 days gestation. Contraception 1993;48:519-25.
- [12] Schaff EA, Penmetsa U, Eisinger SH, Franks P. Methotrexate as a single agent for early abortion up to 5 weeks gestation. J Repro Med 1997:42:56-60.
- [13] Horrigan TJ, Fanning J, Marcotte MP. Methotrexate pneumonitis after systemic treatment for ectopic pregnancy. Am J Obstet Gynecol 1997.176:714-5.
- [14] Bernaschek G. Rudelstorfer R. Csaicsich P. Vaginal sonography versus serum human chorionic gonadotropin in early detection of pregnancy, Am J Obstet Gynecol-1988;158:608-12.

÷۵,

× . . • ·

., ·

- 0 - CQ,

- . No 25

en in

and the strategy of

من بر مرجع

[15] Rodger MW. Baird DT. Blood loss following induction of early. abortion using mifepristone (RU 486) and a prostaglandin analogue-(gemeprost), Contraception 1989:40:439-47.

96. S 74.1 . - . status and the same ----_____ _____ a transformation and the second se 

4

÷.,.

دجيد

State and the second

Seal and the second second

# Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

# EXELGYN Medical Department Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 -- from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002



# FDACDER000346

. . .

0013-7227/01/\$03.0000 Printed in U.S.A. The Journal of Clinical Endocrinology & Metabolism 86(8):3563-3573 Copyright O-2001 by The Endocrine Society

. Fari

·....

# Successful Long-Term Treatment of Refractory Cushing's Disease with High-Dose Mifepristone (RU-486)

JAMES W. CHU, DWIGHT F. MATTHIAS, JOSEPH BELANOFF*, ALAN SCHATZBERG*, ANDREW R. HOFFMAN, AND DAVID FELDMAN

> د المحمد المراجع الم الم الم 1994 المراجع ال

Departments of Medicine (J.W.C., D.F.M., A.R.H., D.F.) and Psychiatry (J.B., A.S.), Stanford University School of Medicine, Stanford, California 94305

An extremely ill patient, with Cushing's syndrome caused by an ACTH-secreting pituitary macroadenoma, experienced complications of end-stage cardiomyopathy, profound psychosis, and multiple metabolic disturbances. Initially treatedunsuccessfully by a combination of conventional surgical, medical, and radiotherapeutic approaches, he responded dramatically to high-dose long-term milepristone therapy (up to 25 mg/kgd). Treatment efficacy was confirmed by the normalization of all biochemical glucocorticoid-sensitive measurements, as well as by the significant reversal of the patient's heart failure, the resolution of his psychotic depression, and the eventual unusual return of his adrenal axis to normal. His

HRONIC EXPOSURE TO excessive corticosteroids in Cushing's syndrome (CS) leads to the development of multiple metabolic abnormalities, including glucose intolerance, dyslipidemia, hypertension, osteoporosis, and weight gain (1). Cushing's disease (CD) accounts for approximately 70% of cases of endogenous CS. The standard initial treatment of CD is transsphenoidal adenomectomy, which achieves cure rates of 70-80% (1). Pituitary macroadenomas (size > 1 cm) are more difficult to cure than microadenomas (size < 1 cm). Patients suffering residual or recurrent disease undergo repeat transsphenoidal hypophysectomy, external beam pituitary irradiation, medical adrenolytic therapy, or surgical adrenalectomy to control the hyperadrenocorticism (1, 2). However, no particular therapy is completely satisfactory. Repeat transsphenoidal surgery results in high relapse rates, therapeutic effects from pituitary radiotherapy are delayed, the steroidogenic enzyme inhibitors for chemical adrenalectomy (metyrapone, mitotane, aminoglutethimide, ketoconazole) are often limited by severe toxicity and inadequate cortisol suppression, and surgical approaches to accomplish total adrenalectomy may not fully extirpate adrenocortical tissue (1, 2). Adrenalectomy also carries the risk of rapid residual pituitary corticotroph growth, i.e. Nelson's syndrome.

We describe a patient with refractory CD and multiple medical comorbidities who exhausted conventional therapies but was successfully treated with high-dose mifepristone (RU 486), a glucocorticoid receptor (GR) antagonist (3), 18-month-long mifepristone treatment course was notable for development of severe hypokalemia that was attributed to excessive cortisol activation of the mineralocorticoid receptor, which responded to spironolactone administration. This case illustrates the efficacy of high-dose long-term treatment with mifepristone in refractory Cushing's syndrome. The case also demonstrates the potential need for concomitant mineralocorticoid receptor blockade in mifepristone-treated Cushing's disease, because cortisol levels may rise markedly, reflecting corticotroph disinhibition, to cause manifestations of mineralocorticoid excess. (J Clin Endocrinol Metab 86: 3568-3573, 2001)

as a bridge until the therapeutic effects of delayed radiation therapy became manifest. Not only did the patient's hypothalamic-pituitary-adrenal axis return to normal, but his multiple medical problems all dramatically reversed. During mifepristone therapy, the patient, in addition, required spironolactone, a mineralocorticoid receptor (MR) antagonist, to ameliorate cortisol-induced MR activation, a result of elevated serum cortisol produced by mifepristone-induced corticotroph disinhibition.

#### Case Report

The patient was a 51-yr-old African-American retired mechanic who was diagnosed with diabetes mellitus type 2 and hypertension, 6 yr before his evaluation at our institution. One year before admission, he developed recurrent syncope. Transthoracic echocardiography showed severe left ventricular hypertrophy (LVH) and left ventricular ejection fraction (LVEF) of 20%. Coronary angiography revealed an isolated 60% occlusion of the left anterior descending artery that underwent percutaneous transluminal angioplasty and stenting. In the 6 months before admission, the patient was treated, at three other hospitals, for recurrent upper and lower extremity abscesses. Several incision and drainage procedures did not yield any microbial etiology. An increased frequency of syncopal episodes, concomitantly with New York Heart Association functional class IV symptoms, led to the patient's referral for evaluation of cardiac transplantation at our facility.

At the time of arrival at our institution, the patient's medications included digoxin, captopril, carvedilol, hydralazine, isosorbide, and insulin. Physical examination showed a wheelchair-bound man, with rounded facies, appearing chronically ill and acutely in distress. His blood pressure was

Abbreviations: 116HSD, 116-hydroxysteroid dehydrogenase; 8PRS, brief psychiatric rating scale; CD, Cushing's disease; CS, Cushing's syndrome; CR, glucocorticoid receptor; LVEF, left ventricular ejection fraction; LVH, left ventricular hypertrophy; MR, mineralocorticoid receptor; MRI, magnetic resonance imaging.

7

#### Chu et al. . Mifepristone Therapy of Cushing's Dis

فللاشير

2.14

Autor States

22.044

23.

يت الم

-1-10-1

- .

 $\vec{v}$ r segnári ..... 130/82, pulse was 92 and regular, height was 1.78 m, and weight was 80 kg. The patient was somnolent and unable to provide any medical history. He was extremely weak and had striking muscular atrophy of the extremities. There were no abdominal striae, but there was palpable hepatomegaly and prominent pedal edema. He had fluctuant, warm, red, tender lesions involving the right upper and left lower extremities. When the patient tried to stand, he developed syncope. During the subsequent hospitalization, chest radiography. showed diffuse cardiomegaly, an electrocardiogram revealed LVH with secondary repolarization abnormality, and a repeat echocardiogram demonstrated LVEF of 22%, concentric LVH, and left ventricular enlargement. The patient's cardiomyopathy was deemed out of proportion to the isolated coronary atherosclerosis. Cryptococcus neoformans was cultured from the extremity abscesses, serum Cryptococcus antigen titers were positive (1:512), urine and sputum-cultures revealed Candida albicans, and a left toe skin culture grew Trichophytum rubrum. The patient was started on flucytosine and fluconazole to treat the cryptococcosis. His glycemic control was poor, despite using more than 100 U insulin per day. Retinal examination showed diabetic retinopathy, and urine studies revealed proteinuria.

To screen for possible CS, a low-dose (1 mg) dexamethasone overnight suppression test was performed, demonstrating a nonsuppressed serum cortisol (1493 nm). ACTHdependent CS was diagnosed by finding concomitant elevated ACTH (81 рм) and serum cortisol levels (>828 пм). High-dose (8 mg) dexamethasone did not suppress the cortisol (1294 nm). CRF levels were undetectable. Magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) revealed a cystic 2 × 1-cm pituitary mass (Fig. 1). Formal visual field testing was negative. Computed tomography of the adrenal glands showed bilateral hyperplasia. Despite failure of the high-dose dexamethasone suppression (including a repeat test using 32 mg dexamethasone), the patient was diagnosed with CD (4) but was deemed too ill to undergo confirmatory inferior petrosal sinus sampling. The patient's antifungal regimen was changed to include ketoconazole, because this imidazole de-

#### urnal of Clinical Endocrinology & Metabolism, August 2001, 86(8):3568-3573 3569

- -.

## يسعو بمعيية يترجى

rivative can inhibit steroidogenesis (5). However, ketoconazole was incompletely effective, and metyrapone was started; but the latter was abruptly discontinued after coincident development of atrial-arrhythmias, requiring cardioversion.

During the patient's transsphenoidal adenomectomy, all visible traces of a soft cystic tumor were removed, but invasion of adjacent structures precluded complete surgical extirpation. A postoperative MRI scan confirmed residual tissue in the sella turcica. Histopathological analysis revealed a necrotic adenoma. A predominant pituitary cell type was unidentifiable by immunohistochemistry, because all immunostaining was inadequate because of the necrotic state of the specimen. Postoperatively, ACTH and cortisol levels declined but remained abnormally clevated (Fig. 2). Ketoconazole was reinstituted at 1200 mg/d to-inhibit steroidogenesis. One month later, the patient underwent 3-dimensional. conformal external beam radiotherapy, receiving 5040 cGy to the pituitary bed in 28 fractions over 6 wk. On ketoconazole, the patient developed extreme nausea-and elevated transaminases (ALT 228 IU/L), necessitating a change to mitotane therapy (2g/d) for 2 months. His ACTH remained more than 18 pm; and serum cortisol, more than 773 nm. Hisgonadal axis declined: total testosterone, 1.9 пм (normal, 12.1-24.9); free testosterone, 0.01 nm (normal, 0.04-0.11); and FSH, less than 1 IU/L (normal, 1.55-9.74). He was started on im testosterone therapy.

On psychiatric evaluation, the patient was severely depressed, with a 21-item Hamilton depression rating scale score of 27 (normal, <5). Although he denied symptoms of overt psychosis, his brief psychiatric rating scale (BPRS) was 38 (normal, <18). He showed significant cognitive impairment, as indicated by grossly diminished scores on multiple aspects of the paragraph recall test and the Stroop color-word test.

#### **Materials and Methods**

Serum cortisol was measured using the IMMULITE competitive immunoassay (Diagnostic Products Corp., Los Angeles, CA), whereas ACTH was determined by ARUP Laboratories (Salt Lake City, UT) using a chemiluminescent immunoassay. Other measurements were per-



FIG. 1. Brain MRI images of a 51-yr-old man with CD. Sagittal T1-weighted (left panel) and coronal T1-weighted postgadolinium (right panel) MRIs of the brain demonstrate a cystic pituitary mass measuring approximately  $2 \times 1$  cm.

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.



Time After Diagnosis of Cushing's Disease (months)

formed in the Stanford Clinical Laboratory using standard procedures. Bone mineral densitometry was assessed by dual-x-ray absorptiometry employing a Hologic, Inc. (Bedford, MA) QDR 4500 apparatus. Neutopsychiatric testing used the Hamilton depression rating Scale (HAMD-21), brief psychiatric rating scale, Stroop color-word test, and paragraph recall test, as reported previously (6).

3570

ΞŤ

#### Results

The patient remained extremely ill, and it was anticipated that the radiotherapy would not show benefit for at least 1 yr. Chemical adrenalectomy had been unsuccessful, and the patient's cardiac status was considered too tenuous to undergo adrenalectomy, even via a laparoscopic approach. Given the lack of feasible effective therapies, the patient was initiated on mifepristone at 400 mg/d (~6 mg/kg·d). This was done with his informed consent, permission from the human subjects committee, and an Investigational New Drug approval from the Food and Drug Administration. It was hoped that mifepristone, begun 5 months after diagnosis of CD, would control the hypercortisolism until the radiotherapy took effect.

During the initial 8 months of milepristone treatment, the dose was gradually increased to a maximum of 2000 mg/d (~25 mg/kg·d) in response to continued signs of hypercortisolism (Fig. 2). It was recognized that the fluctuating, but

persistently elevated, serum ACTH and cortisol could not accurately reflect therapeutic efficacy, because mifepristone antagonizes the hypercortisolemic effects at the receptor level, not by altering corticosteroid production (7). Severe hypokalemia (potassium < 3 mm) developed, requiring high-dose potassium replacement and initiation of spironolactone therapy. However, clinical findings attributable to CS slowly improved, and the mifepristone dosage was titrated downwards over the following 10 months. The accompanying fall in ACTH and cortisol concentrations likely represented delayed effects of radiotherapy, although spontaneous improvement could not be ruled out (8). In month 10 of mifepristone therapy, at 800 mg/d (~10 mg/kg·d), the patient experienced an episode of suspected adrenocortical insufficiency, manifested by weakness, orthostatic hypotension, and hypoglycemia (serum glucose ~1.1 mm, not on antidiabetic drugs), which necessitated dexamethasone bolus therapy and mifepristone dose reduction, to which he responded.

By month 18 of mifepristone therapy, the patient's overall appearance was markedly improved, and he now walked unassisted. The ACTH had fallen (<8.8 pM), and the serum cortisol was not only suppressible, by low-dose dexamethasone to 30 nm, but was also normally responsive to exog-

#### Chu et al. . Mifepristone Therapy of Cushing's Disease

The Journal of Clinical Endocrinology & Metabolism, August 2001, 86(8:3568-3573 3571

enous corficotropin (from 433 to 1112 nm). Presuming an intact hypothalamic-pituitary-adrenal axis, the mifepristone dose was tapered and discontinued.

Of the severe metabolic, cardiovascular, and neuropsychiatric dysfunction (Table 1) associated with CD, the most remarkable improvement in this patient was his transformation from a wheelchair-bound heart-transplant candidate to an active individual walking 1-2 miles a day. The echocardiographic finding of a marked increase in LVEF, to 35-40%, corroborated this observation. The multiple fungal infections did not recur after cessation of antifungal agents. The severe insulin resistance abated, and glycemic control remained in a desirable range without the use of antidiabetic medications. The marked hypertriglyceridemia regressed without therapy. Markers of bone turnover and bone mineral density improved. The hypokalemia resolved, and the blood pressure has been well controlled, with the remaining antihypertensives consisting of carvedilol and furosemide to treat the congestive heart failure. Other medications included levothyroxine [to treat mild hypothyroidism; FT4, 10.2 рм (normal, 9.0-25.7); TSH, 7.22 U/L (normal, 0.4-4.0)], im testosterone, and digoxin.

The patient's neuropsychiatric status improved dramatically. His elevated BPRS score, indicating psychosis, entirely resolved; and his mood normalized. His cognition improved substantially, with dramatic correction in all aspects of the Stroop color-word and paragraph recall tests. After recovery, the patient revealed that he had been far more psychotic than he had admitted at the onset of mifepristone treatment, describing previous visual hallucinations and feelings of being observed by unseen people. He had not initially acknowledged these symptoms because he thought that he would "sound crazy" (which indicates preserved insight).

#### Discussion

17β-hydroxy-11β-(4-dimethylaminophenyl)-17α-(1propynyl)-estra-4,9-dien-3-one, also known as RU 38486. RU 486, or mifepristone is a potent antagonist of both glucocorticoid and progestin receptors (3): Its clinical properties yield an effective contraceptive, as well as abortifacient; and it may have potential benefit in treating CS, unresectable meningioma and leiomyoma, refractory endometriosis, metastatic breast cancer, and even psychotic depression (6, 9). We describe a patient with a pituitary-macroadenoma, causing refractory CD, associated with multiple severe physiologic derangements that regressed after amelioration of hypercortisolism. Mifepristone was used successfully to antagonize the effects of hypercortisolism while awaiting the delayed remission induced by pituitary irradiation. Our report, describing the highest dose of mifepristone achieved for the longest duration reported in a patient with CS, coincides with the recent approval of mifepristone for usage in the United States, and it supports the utility of this therapy in managing hypercortisolism.

Previous reports have described clinically therapeutic mifepristone usage in more than 14 patients with CS (10, 11). A potential adverse effect experienced by these and other patients treated with high-dose mifepristone for long periods involves episodes of possible adrenal insufficiency that cannot be confirmed biochemically but that resolve after exogenous glucocorticoid administration and mifepristone

TABLE 1. Hormonal, metabolic, cardiovascular, and neuropsychiatric indices at diagnosis of Cushing's disease and before, during, and after mifepristone therapy

Index	At initial diagnosis	At start of mifepristone therapy	During milepristone therapy	After milepristone therapy	Normal values
Hormonal					
ACTH (pm)	81	20	28	6	2.9-11.4
Serum cortisol (nM)				-	
Fasting	949	1076	1402	320	166-580
After dexamethasone, 1 mg	1493			30	<138
Exogenous insulin use (U/d)	115	70	40	0	0
Metabolic					
Serum osteocalcin (nM)		0.80	6.43	7.66	0.99-2.39
Bone mineral density (g/cm ² )					
Left total hip	_		0.795	0.822	age-dependent
Lumbar spine (1-4)		-	0.977	0.989	age-dependent
Hemoglobin A1c (%)	11.5	10.4	7.7	6.9	4-6%
Serum cholesterol (mm)					
Total	_	8.11	7.17	5.28	<5.18
HDL	_	0.91	0.54	0.85	>0.91
LDL		_		3.52	<3.37
Fasting triglycerides (mg/dl)		4.83	5.48	2.00	<2.26
Potassium (mM)	4.0	4.2	3.0	4.4	3.5-5.0
Cardiovascular function					
New York Heart Association	ťV	IV	11–111	1	0
functional class				1	
Estimated left ventricular	19%	_	30%	35-40%	>50%
ejection fraction				i	
Neuropsychiatric function					
21-Item Hamilton-D score		27	18	8	<5
BPRS score		38	20	18	18

HDL, High-density lipoprotein; LDL, low-density lipoprotein; ---, not available.

3572 The Journal of Clinical Endocrinology & Metabolism, August 2001, 86(8):3568-3573 · ....

#### Chu et al. . Mifepristone Therapy of Cushing's Disease:

dose reduction (cited within Refs. 3 and 11). The difficult monitoring of therapeutic efficacy stems from the lack of a biomarker of CR activity. Because mifepristone antagonizes the GR of the pituitary corticotrophs, as well as that of peripheral tissues, its administration causes disinhibition of ACTH release, with consequently increased levels of ACTH . and serum cortisol (7). Thus, patients undergoing mifepristone treatment may manifest seemingly paradoxical findings of elevated circulating ACTH and cortisol concentrations accompanying symptoms of adrenocortical insufficiency. In our patient's case, the additional inhibition of MR by spironolactone may have further contributed to the symptoms that suggested adrenal insufficiency.

 $\sum_{i=1}^{n} h_i \geq n \sum_{i=1}^{n} n \sum_{i=1}^$ 

n. 24 5 7

~- <u>19</u>27

17th

Notable aspects of this patient's case include the pronounced, yet reversible, cardiac failure, as well as the severe hypokalemia. These clinical effects may be attributable to wabnormal overactivation of MR. In physiological settings, the enzyme 118-hydroxysteroid dehydrogenase (118HSD) converts cortisol, an avid GR- and MR-binding glucocorticoid, to its 11-keto analog (cortisone), a non-GR, non-MR-binding glucocorticoid (12). This conversion protects the MR from cortisol, thereby maintaining the in vivo specificity of MR activation by aldosterone, which circulates in concentrations 100-1000 times less than that of cortisol. However, in CS, where the capacity of  $11\beta$ HSD to guard the MR is overwhelmed or impaired, illicit cortisol overstimulation of MR leads to hypokalemic alkalosis and hypertension (13). Because mifepristone inhibits cortisol binding to GR, but not to MR, and causes ACTH disinhibition to further exacerbate endogenous hypercortisolism (which is likely to have provoked hypokalemia in this case), we treated this patient, in addition, with the MR antagonist spironolactone. The combination therapy was intended to prevent deleterious effects of cortisol- mediated receptor activation by achieving dual blockade of GR and MR.

The end-stage heart failure that dramatically improved, after the amelioration of glucocorticoid excess, raises the question of whether the cardiomyopathy was directly caused by hypercortisolism (14, 15). Patients with endogenous CS are commonly affected by severe LVH out of proportion to the degree of concomitant hypertension (14, 15), and this LVH frequently leads to heart failure. Are such adverse cardiovascular findings in CS mediated by cortisol activation at the GR and/or at the MR level? MRs have been reported to occur not only in kidney epithelium but also in myocardium, and increased cardiac fibrosis is seen in endomyocardial biopsies from CS patients (14), reminiscent of the fibrosis and other abnormalities attributed to aldosterone-associated MR activation in congestive heart failure (16). The same processes contributing to the progression of heart failure are effectively attenuated or reversed by antialdosterone therapy (17, 18). Thus, it is possible that the cardiomyopathy of CS may result from cortisol-mediated overstimulation of myocardial MR, just as the features of apparent mineralocorticoid excess in CS may result from cortisol-mediated overactivation of renal epithelial MR, with both abnormal findings being manifested in the setting of overwhelmed or defective 11BHSD activity.

The patient's marked elevation in serum cortisol and ACTH was nonsuppressible after high-dose dexamethasone; this is consistent with other reports of pituitary macroad-

enomas causing CD and does not necessarily denote an ectopic ACTH syndrome (4). Furthermore, it can be postulated that the hormonally aggressive behavior of the patient's macroadenoma potentiated not only the cardiomyopathy but also the hypokalemia and hypertension, the latter two findings of which are much more commonly observed in CS patients with ectopic ACTH-secreting tumors (13). A striking clinical result of this case is the reappearance of an ostensibly normal hypothalamic-pituitary-adrenal axis, at the patient's most recent evaluation; this result is uncommonly reported; given that the treatment of refractory CD tends to render patients adrenocortical-deficient. and the second second

The association between hypercortisolism and neuropsy chiatric symptoms has been known for decades, with anestimated prevalence of psychiatric dysfunction of more than-40% in patients with CS (19). Psychosis and cognitive impairment are noted less commonly than depression, but this may stem from the use of inappropriate detection techniques. If suitable tests to reveal psychosis and impaired cognition are used, it is possible that the symptoms of patients with CSwould best be classified as psychotic major depression or major depression with cognitive impairment. Our patient's features of depression improved markedly after treatment of CS, although he exhibited residual insomnia and anxiety. However, the psychosis totally abated, and cognition normalized. Interestingly, the recognition of the link between adrenal axis dysfunction and affective disorders has led to successful use of mifepristone in treating psychotic depression, as detailed in a separate report (6).

In conclusion, an improved understanding of the interactions between glucocorticoids, mineralocorticoids, receptors, and end-organ effects, in conjunction with the rational application of receptor antagonists, can lead to directed therapy of the numerous morbidities associated with severe CS. In this report, combination use of mifepristone and spironolactone allowed the dramatic reversal of cardiovascular, metabolic, and neuropsychiatric abnormalities in a patient with refractory CD.

#### Acknowledgments

Received January 9, 2001. Accepted March 13, 2001.

Address all correspondence and requests for reprints to: David Feld-man, M.D., Division of Endocrinology, Room S-005, Stanford University School of Medicine, Stanford, California 94305-5103. E-mail: feldman@ cmgm.stanford.edu.

This work was supported in part by NIH Grants DK-07217-24 (to J.W.C.), RO1-MH50604 (to A.S.), DK-42482 (to D.F.), and Human Health Service Grant MOI-RR00070, General Clinical Research Centers, National Center for Research Resources.

* J.B. and A.S. have a financial interest in Corcept Therapeutics Inc., a pharmaceutical company that is testing antiglucocorticoid treatment for psychiatric disorders.

#### References

- 1. Orth DN, Kovacs WJ 1998 Diseases of the adrenal cortex. In: Wilson JD, Foster DW, Kronenberg HM, Larsen PR, eds. Williams textbook of endocrinology. 9th ed. St. Louis: Saunders; 1848
- 2. Sonino N, Boscaro M 1999 Medical therapy for Cushing's disease. Endocrinol Metab Clin North Am 28:211-222
- 3. Spitz IM, Bardin CW 1993 Milepristone (RU 486)-a modulator of progestin
- and glucocorticoid action. N Engl J Med 329:404-412 4. Findling JW, Raff H 1999 Newer diagnostic techniques and problems in Cushing's disease. Endocrinol Metab Clin North Am 28:191-210

#### Chu et al. . Mifepristone Therapy of Cushing's Disease

- 2

. . .

مېند وېږې د وېږې . د وېږې

# The Journal of Clinical Endocrinology & Metabolism, August 2001, 86(8):3568-3573 3573

- S- Feldman-D 1986 Ketoconazole and other imidazole derivatives as inhibitors of steroidogenesis. Endocr Rev 7:409-420
- Belanoff J, Schatzberg A, Rapid reversal of psychotic major depression using
- Belanoff J, Schatzberg A, Rapid reversal of psychotic major depression using initepristone. J Clin Psychopharmacol, in press
   Bertagna X, Bertagna C, Laudat MH, Husson JM, Girard F, Luton JP 1986 Pituitary-adrenal response to the antiglucocorticoid action of RU 486 in Cush-ing's syndrome. J Clin Endocrinol Metab 63:639-643
   Gögel EL, Salber PR, Tyrrell JB, Rosenblum ML, Findling JW 1983 Cushing's disease in a patient with a 'nonfunctioning' pituitary tumor. Spontaneous development and remission. Arch Intern Mod 143:1040-1042
   Koide SS1998 Milepristone. Auxiliary therapeutic use in cancer and related disorders. J Reprod Med 43:551-560
- 10. Nieman LK, Chrousos GP, Kellner-C, et al. 1485 Successful treatment of Cushing's syndrome with the glucocorticoid antagonist RU 486. I Clin Endocrinol Metab 61:536-540
- 11. Sartor G, Cutler Jr GB 1996 Milepristone: treatment of Cushing's syndrome.
- target tissue specificity is enzyme, not receptor; mediated. Science 242:583-585 '' 사

 $\lambda_{1} \in \{1, 2\}$ 

سيغير وأيجيد والمسا  $f \in \mathcal{F} \setminus \mathcal{F}_{1}$ 

ής_Ξ 1999 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 -1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 -

- Stewart PM, Walker BR, Holder C, O'Halloran D, Shackleton CHL 1995. 118-Hydroxysteroid dehydrogenase activity in Custing's syndrume: explain-ing the mineralocurticoid excess state of the ectopic admuccurticotropin syn-drome. J Clin. Endocrinol Metab 80:3617-3620
   Sugihara N, Shimizu M, Kita Y, et al. 1992 Cardiac characteristics and post-operative courses in Custing's syndrome. Am J Cardiol. 49:1475-1480
   Fallo F, Budano S, Sonino N, Muiesan ML, Agabidi-Rosei E, Boscaro M 1994 Left ventricular structural characteristics in Custing's syndrome. J Hum Hy-portens 8:509-513

- perture 8509-513
   16. Weber KT, Brilla CG 1991 Pathological hypertrophy and cardiac interstitium.
   Fibrosis and rentin-angiotensin-aldosterine system. Circulation 83:1849-1865.
- 17. Weber KT, Villarreal D 1993 Aldosterone and antialdosterone therapy in congestive heart failure: Am J Cardiol 71:3A-11A 18. Pitt B, Zannad F, Remine WJ, let al. 1999 The effect of spironolactone on
- morbidity and mortality in patients with severe heart failure. Randomized Aldactone Evaluation Study Investigators. N Engl J Med 341:209-217 19. Dorn LD, Burgess ES, Friedman TC, Dubbert B; Gold PW, Chrousos GP 1997.
- The longitudinal course of psychopathology in Cushing's syndrome after correction of hypercontrisolism. J Clin Endocrinol Metab 82:912-919= *. * .:

FDACDER000352

٠. T

## Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

# EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002



P.T. Wagaarachchi, P.W. Ashok, N. Narvekar, N.C. Smith, A. Templeton

Medical management of early fetal demise using a combination of mifepristone and misoprostol.

Human Reproduction 2001; 16(9): 1849-1853

Human Reproduction Vol.16, No.9 pp. 1849-1853, 2001

# Medical management of early fetal demise using a combination of mifepristone and misoprostol

# P.T.Wagaarachchi¹, P.W.Ashok, N.Narvekar, N.C.Smith and A.Templeton

Aberdeen Matemity Hospital, Cornhill Road, Aberdeen AB25 2ZL, UK

To whom correspondence should be addressed .: E-mail: ogy158@abdn.ac.uk

BACKGROUND: This study aims to assess the efficacy of a combination of mifepristone and misoprostol in the management of missed miscarriage and anembryonic pregnancy. METHODS: Data of 220 consecutive women with miscarriage, undergoing medical evacuation of the uterus were collected prospectively at an early pregnancy assessment unit in a tertiary referral hospital. Each woman received a single oral dose of mifepristone 200 mg and 36-48 h later vaginal misoprostol 800  $\mu$ g. Three hours following the first dose, two further doses of misoprostol; 400  $\mu$ g each, were administered vaginally or orally at 3 h intervals. Women who failed to pass products of conception were offered repeat medical regime with misoprostol. Success was defined as complete uterine evacuation within 3 days, without the need for surgical evacuation. RESULTS: The overall success rate of medical management was 84.1%. Mifepristone alone induced natural expulsion of products of conception in 18.1% of women. The median dose of misoprostol required was 1600  $\mu$ g and the median induction miscarriage interval after first prostaglandin administration was 8.04 h (range: 0.58-50.54 h). Of the 142 women who were symptomatic at presentation the medical regime failed in 30 (21.1%), compared with five (6.4%) failures of the 78 who were asymptomatic (P = 0.007). Of the 35 women who had surgical evacuation, eight required an emergency curettage for bleeding. CONCLUSIONS: The combination of oral mifepristone 200 mg with vaginal or oral misoprostol is an alternative to surgical management of early fetal demise, although it is not as effective as surgery.

Key words: anembryonic pregnancy/fetal demise/mifepristone/misoprostol/missed miscarriage

#### Introduction

The terms 'delayed miscarriage or early fetal demise' denote missed miscarriage (presence of a non-viable embryo/fetus) and blighted ovum (anembryonic pregnancy with absent embryonic echo) (RCOG Study Group, 1997). The two conditions are felt to represent different aspects of the same clinical process. A blighted ovum results from an early disturbance of normal embryonic development. In missed miscarriage, an intrauterine sac is seen with an embryo without cardiac activity. Apart from the distinction made at the time of vaginal scan, no clinically significant differences are observed between the two conditions. The diagnosis of early fetal demise has become more common since the introduction of transvaginal ultrasound, and accounts for ~21% of all miscarriages seen in our early pregnancy assessment unit (EPAU) in Aberdeen.

The clinical management of miscarriage has changed little over the years and up to 88% of women undergo surgical uterine evacuation (Hemminki, 1998). There are welldocumented risks associated with surgical uterine evacuation (Farell et al., 1982; Heisterberg et al., 1986) and potential cost savings (Hughes et al., 1996) can be generated by promoting alternative strategies of management. The success of expectant management of missed miscarriage appears too low to justify

© European Society of Human Reproduction and Embryology

its routine use in clinical practice (Jurkovic *et al.*, 1998), although it may be an acceptable approach in individual patients. Various medical regimens with or without the antiprogesterone, mifepristone, and a prostaglandin analogue have been described to treat early fetal demise. Their efficacy vary widely from 25–92%, depending on the type of miscarriage. outcome measures used, the dose, duration and route of prostaglandin administration (El-Refaey *et al.*, 1992; Creinin *et al.*, 1997).

Based on our experience of first trimester abortion (El-Refaey and Templeton, 1994; El-Refaey *et al.*, 1995; Ashok *et al.*, 1998), we developed a regimen comprising mifepristone 200 mg followed by a combination of the vaginal or oral administration of misoprostol (800–1600  $\mu$ g) for the management of early fetal demise. We now report our experience of this regimen in 220 consecutive cases.

#### Materials and methods

A consecutive series of 220 women with 'delayed miscarriage' (missed miscarriage and anembryonic pregnancy) between 6 and 13 weeks, during the period 1998-1999, were studied. All women had chosen to undergo medical rather than surgical treatment. The study was performed in the EPAU at Aberdeen Maternity Hospital. The

1914 I.

Table I. Comparison of details of women with missô	d miscarriage and blighted ovum
----------------------------------------------------	---------------------------------

. . .

· · ·		Missed miscarriage (n = -139)	Anombryonic pregnancy (a = 81)	P value	· · · _ ·
Age (mean ± SD)		31.67 ± 6.39 -	31.61 ± 5.61	NS	~.
Multiparity		97 (69.7%)	53 (65.4%)	NS	
Previous miscarriages		47 (33.8%)	20 (24.6%)	NS	· · · · · ·
-Symptomatic at presentation		89 (64.0%)	53 (65.4%)	NS	
Medical evacuation on mifepristone :	alone	30 (21.5%)	10 (12.3%)	NS.	
Medical evacuation on full regimen	• • •	87/109 (79.8%)	58/71 (81.6%)	NS-	a - server that the little is a
Surgical evacuation -	- 1980, La	23 (16:5%)	12 (14.8%)	NS	
No analgesia		55 (39.5%)	23 (28.4%)	-NS	
-Parenteral analgesia		22 (15.8%)	16 (19.7%)	· NS	
Readmission		8 (5.7%)	6 (7.4%)	NS	
NS = not significant.		Land and the second			and the second sec

assessment of gestational age was based on menstual history-and all ultrasound measurements (crown-rump length, gestational sac diameter) were within the first trimester. The diagnosis of missed miscarriage was confirmed on ultrasound by the absence of a fetal heart pulsation when the crown-rump length was >6 mm and of an anembryonic pregnancy by absent fetal pole in a gestational sac >25 mm in diameter. Successful treatment was defined as complete uterine evacuation using medical regimen without the need for surgical intervention.

All women with a miscarriage were counselled appropriately, and were offered a choice of medical or surgical treatment. Women who consented to medical management received a single oral dose of 200 mg of mifepristone in hospital. Unless miscarriage occurred following administration of mifepristone alone, which was confirmed by ultrasound scan on patients who gave a history of heavy bleeding prior to misoprostol administration, women were admitted to the EPAU 36-48 h later. On admission, four tablets (a total of 800 µg) of misoprostol were inserted into the posterior vaginal fornix by a nurse. Following administration of the first dose, a further two doses of misoprostol (two tablets each) 400 µg were given vaginally every 3 h. If bleeding was heavy misoprostol was administered orally. If products of conception were passed on the ward, the women were observed for 4 h before being allowed home. Following misoprostol administration pulse, blood pressure, temperature and systemic symptoms were monitored hourly. Oral (paracetamol 500 mg plus dihydrocodeine 10 mg) or parenteral analgesia (morphine 10 mg) was administered every 4-6 h as required. Patients who failed to pass products of conception overnight were offered a choice of either repeat medical regimen (misoprostol 800, 400, 400 µg at 3 h intervals, orally or vaginally) or surgical evacuation. Complete uterine evacuation was confirmed clinically by observing expelled products of conception and speculum examination. In the event of uncertainty ultrasound scan was performed.

All women were offered a follow-up appointment within 2 weeks of treatment, at the hospital or in the community (referring doctor or midwife). Those women who were allowed home without passing products of conception on the ward were given an emergency telephone number for contacting staff if they were concerned at any time. The women were followed up in the hospital with ultrasound assessment undertaken if indicated.

Data were analysed using the SPSS for Windows Statistical Package (Kinnear and Gray, 1994). In presenting the results, continuous variables are presented as means with standard deviations and ranges. Categorical variables are given as numbers (percentage) and associations were tested using the Fisher's exact or  $\chi^2$  tests as appropriate. Kaplan-Meier survival analysis was used to compare (by means of the Log Rank test) the cumulative miscarriage rates in relation to parity. Differences were regarded as statistically significant if P < 0.05.

# Results

Of the 220 women with early fetal demise, 139 (63.1%) had a missed miscarriage and 81 (36.8%) had an anaembryonic pregnancy. A comparison of patient characteristics, presentation, treatment outcome, induction-miscarriage interval and complications between the two groups is shown in Table I. There were no significant differences.

The mean  $\pm$  SD age of the 220 women was  $31.6 \pm 6.1$ years (range 16-44). Of the 220 women, 67 (30.4%) were primiparous and 153 (69.5%) had one or more previous pregnancies. The mean gestation, by best estimate at the time of mifepristone administration, was  $10.1 \pm 1.84$  weeks of amenorrhoea (range 6-13). At presentation to the EPAU, 84 (38.2%) had vaginal bleeding, five (2.3%) had pain and 53 (24.1%) had both pain and bleeding. Seventy-seven (35%) women were asymptomatic and the diagnosis was made at the routine first visit scans.

Of the 220 women 44 complained of heavy bleeding within 48 h of mifepristone administration alone and in 40 complete niscarriage was confirmed on ultrasound scan. Four had emergency curettage for heavy bleeding. The treatment outcome is summarized in Figure 1. Among the 176 women who went on to receive misoprostol, complete miscarriage occurred in 145 (without the need for surgical intervention). Thus, the overall success rate was 185/220 (84.1%). The indications for surgical intervention are shown in Table II. Eight women had emergency curettage for bleeding, four before and four after misoprostol administration. A total of seven women had a blood loss >500 ml but none required a blood transfusion.

Of the 142 women who were symptomatic at presentation (pain/bleeding) the medical regime failed in 30 (21.1%) who required surgical evacuation of the uterus, while five (6.4%) women of the 78 who were asymptomatic (diagnosis of non-viable pregnancy on routine ultrasound) required surgical intervention—a statistically significant difference (P = 0.007). Of the 185 patients who had a successful outcome, complete

#### Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.



Figure 1. Outcome of medical treatment in 220 consecutive women with early fetal demise. E indicates women who had emergency curettage.

Table II. Indications and time interval for surgical intervention

Indications	Total number (%)
Emergency curettage for bleeding	8 (22.8)
Incomplete miscarriage	14 (40.0)
No products passed	6 (17.1)
Patient choice	6 (17.1)
Molar pregnancy	1 (2.8)
Total	35 (15.9)
Misoprostol to surgical intervention inter	rval
Before misoprostol	4
Up to 3 days	22
4-14 days	5
≥15 days	0
·	

uterine evacuation was confirmed clinically in 130 (70.3%) and ultrasonically in 51 (27.6%).

The median number of misoprostol doses required was three  $(800 + 400 + 400 \mu g)$ . Of the 54 women who did not miscarry following overnight stay (three doses of misoprostol), 28 (51.9%) opted for surgical evacuation. The medical regimen was repeated in the remaining 26 patients, of whom 23 (88.5%) had a complete miscarriage. Of the 176 women who received the full mifepristone/misoprostol regimen, the induction-miscarriage interval could be accurately determined in 148 (84%) and of these, 74 (50.0%) miscarried within 6 h of receiving first dose of misoprostol. The median induction-miscarriage interval was 8.04 h (range among those observed:





Figure 2. Cumulative percentage of women who miscurried in relation to parity, by 5 h intervals from the time of administration. of first dose of misprostol.

0.58-50.54). The median (range) induction-miscarriage interval was 8.16 h (2.0-50.54) and 8.0 h (0.58-30.92) in primigravid and multigravid patients respectively. The two groups were compared by Kaplan-Meier survival analysis and no significant difference was found between the two groups (Log Rank test). The cumulative frequency of induction-miscarriage interval is shown in Figure 2.

Data on analgesic use were recorded in 219 women in the study. Of these, 78 (35.6%) required no analgesia (including 40 women who miscarried following mifepristone alone). 101(46.1%) required oral analgesia only, two received diclofenac suppositories and 38 (17.4%) required parenteral opiate analgesia.

Fourteen (6.3%) women who had had medical treatment for miscarriage required readmission. Of these, four (1.8%) had presumed pelvic infection, five (2.2%) required surgical curettage for prolonged bleeding, four (1.8%) had problems unrelated to the miscarriage and one (0.5%) had a molar pregnancy. One hundred (45.5%) women were given followup appointments in hospital, of which 82 (82%) attended. Sixty-three (28.6%) women declined an appointment and the remaining 57 (25.9%) were followed up in the community (referring doctor or midwife).

#### Discussion

To our knowledge, this study of 220 women represents the largest reported series of the medical regimen for early pregnancy demise. Although incomplete miscarriage may be managed with misoprostol alone (Henshaw *et al.*, 1993; Chung *et al.*, 1997), in the presence of an intact sac and closed cervix (early fetal demise), priming with the antiprogesterone mifepristone makes the regimen more effective (El-Refaey *et al.*, 1992; Hinshaw 1997). The overall success rate of our regimen was 84.1%, but the true efficacy—by excluding women who had surgical evacuation by choice—was 86.4%.

Nielsen et al. reported a success rate of 52% using a combination of 400 mg of mifepristone and 400  $\mu$ g of

## 

Study	Regimen	Efficacy (%)	
Pandian et al., 2001	Misoprosiol 600 µg, 400 µg, 400 µg-2 hourty (PO)	84.8	
Demetroulis et al., 2001h	Misoprostal 400 µg (PV)	82.5	
Nielsen et al., 1999h	Mifepristone 400 mg	82.0	
	Misoprostal 400 µg (PO)		1.00.000
Nielsen et al., 1997	Mifepristone 400 mg	52	್ ಸೌಲಿಷ ಕನ್ನಡಚಿತ
	Misoprostol 400 µg (PO)		
Creinin et al. 1997	Misoprostal 400 µg (PO)	25	
	Misoprostol 800 µg (PV)	88	(o
Herabutya and O-Prasertsawat, 1997°	-Misoprostol 200 µg (PV)	83.3	
Hughes et al., 1996	Mifepristone 200 mg	89.1	
an state of the second s	Misoprostol 400 µg, 600 µg, 400 µg (PO)		
Chung et al., 1997 ^h	Misoprostol 400 ur. 400 ug. 400 ug-over 48 h (PO)	70.6	· · .
Eganer et al. 1995	Gemenrost 1 mg	76.7	
de Jonge et al. 1995 ^a	Misonrostol 400 ug (PO)	13	
Chung et al. 1994	Gemenrost   me	121 .	
Henshaw et al. 1993	Subrostone 0.5 mg (i.m.) or Misoprostol 400 (g (PO))	96	
Lelaidier et al. 19935	Mifenristone 600 mg	87	يونيد ر. ميروني مديست
El-Rafeav et al. 1992	Milenristone 600 mg	96	بالا الله ( ) . الأكبر ال
	Misoprostol 400 ug. 200 ug 2 h apart (PO)	a Mariana di Andrea di	
سود بر ۲۰۰۰ می است. بر سید و دیگاه این می است.	termelter and MStrate HP an along (1 of	· · · ·	

Table III. Published data on regimens of medical management of miscarriage and their efficacy

Incomplete miscarriage.

^bIncomplete miscarriage, missed miscarriage and anembryonic pregnancy. ^cMissed miscarriage and anembryonic pregnancy.

PO = per oral; PV = per vagina; i.m. = intramuscular.

misoprostol, both taken orally with 13% of women requiring emergency curettage (Nielsen et al., 1997). In our series, emergency surgical intervention was necessary in only 3.6%. Medical treatment may have been less successful in the Nielsen study because of the smaller dose (400 µg) of misoprostol administered by the oral route rather than the vaginal route. Vaginal administration of misoprostol has been shown to be more effective in comparison with the oral route in the context of medical management of miscarriage and first trimester termination of pregnancy (El-Refaey et al., 1995; Creinin et al., 1997). Plasma concentrations and bio-availability of misoprostol tend to be greater and prolonged when administered vaginally compared with the oral route (Zieman et al., 1997). In our study, split analysis showed that the medical regimen was more effective in women who were asymptomatic at presentation (93.5%) with a non-viable pregnancy being diagnosed on routine scanning as opposed to women who presented with pain and/or bleeding (78.8%). In comparison Nielsen et al. only included women who were asymptomatic at presentation and had an efficacy rate of only 52% (Nielsen et al., 1997).

In our study we used clinical parameters for defining success of the method. Once products of conception were passed and bleeding ceased, we did not perform an ultrasound scan to confirm an empty uterus unless indicated. However studies suggesting a lower efficacy with the medical regimen made ultrasound scan assessment of all women following treatment to confirm an empty uterus (Nielsen *et al.*, 1997). Only five of the women in this series required subsequent surgical evacuation following discharge from hospital for prolonged bleeding. Our work confirms no real advantage in scanning all women following treatment. In addition to increasing surgical evacuation rates this would also increase the use of resources.

The natural expulsion of products of conception with 200 mg of mifepristone alone occurred in 18.1% of women, while Lelaidier et al. reported 82% expulsion rates using a dose of 600 mg of mifepristone alone (Lelaidier et al., 1993). It has been shown that for termination of early pregnancy a single dose of 200 mg mifepristone is as effective as 600 mg, when used in combination with a prostaglandin analogue (WHO Task Force, 1993). However a higher dose of mifepristone may be required for medical treatment of miscarriage, probably due to a change in progesterone receptor sensitivity, and this is reflected in the higher success rate (96%) from our early study using 600 mg (El-Rafaey et al., 1992). This needs to be confirmed in the context of future studies. Mifepristone is relatively expensive and a reasonable success rate (>80%) can be achieved by using a combination of 200 mg mifepristone with misoprostol. Misoprostol is cheap, effective and does not require special storage facilities, hence is a promising alternative in the developing world. Most published studies using misoprostol alone for medical management of delayed miscarriage have a success rate of 13-83% (de Jonge et al., 1995; Herabutya and O-Prasertsawat, 1997). Should mifepristone be unavailable, regimens using misoprostol alone may have a place in clinical practice. Table III summarizes published data with respect to medical regimens and success rates.

Demetroulis et al. showed that a single dose of misoprostol 800 µg administered vaginally was successful in 82.5% of women with early pregnancy failure, which included women with incomplete miscarriage, missed miscarriage and anembryonic pregnancy (Demetroulis et al., 2001). If women with an incomplete miscarriage were excluded the failure rate of misoprostol alone for medical management of missed miscarriage and anembryonic pregnancy would have been 23.1% in the above study. This confirms the results from our

#### retention munagement of early felst detaise

series and previous studies that priming with the antiprogesterone milepristone makes the regimen more effective (El-Refaey *et al.*, 1992; Hinshaw, 1997). Demetroulis *et al.* (2001) also showed that 82.5% of women who underwent the medical regimen for early pregnancy failure were satisfied with treatment compared with 58% of those who underwent surgical treatment.

Medical termination of pregnancy up to 9 weeks, using a combination of milepristone and misoprostol, had an efficacy of 97.5% (El-Refaey et al., 1994): More recently the feasibility of medical abortion has been shown at gestations between 9 and 13 weeks to have an efficacy of 95% (Ashok et al., 1998). However medical management of early non-viable pregnancy, has a much lower efficacy, probably attributable to low progesterone concentrations following fetal demise. The lowerfailure rate of the medical regime in asymptomatic women compared with symptomatic may also be explained by the same hypothesis. The side effects of misoprostol have not been assessed in this study. However it is well known in the context of medical abortion that the commonest side effects. experienced by women are gastro-intestinal (El-Refaey et al., 1995).

Patient acceptability has been shown to be similar between surgical and medical evacuation for incomplete miscarriage and early fetal demise (RCOG, 2000). Acceptability tends to decrease with increasing symptoms and gestation. The uptake of the medical regimen for early fetal demise at our EPAU was 45%. It may be possible to introduce medical management without admission to the EPAU, particularly at early gestations. Out of 54 who did not miscarry following overnight stay. 26 women (48.1%) opted for repeat regimen; 23 (88.5%) were successful. This emphasises the value of offering repeat medical treatment if the standard regimen fails.

Eighteen women did not attend hospital follow-up and 28.6% of women declined an appointment. The Grampian Region is unusual in terms of its catchment population, and there is only one main hospital within a radius of 50 miles. While acknowledging that an unknown number of women may have consulted their General Practitioner with symptoms and minor complications, it can be assumed that any women with a significant complication would have been referred to hospital for further treatment.

In conclusion, medical treatment with 200 mg of oral mifepristone in combination with 800, 400 and 400  $\mu$ g of vaginal misoprostol given sequentially at 3 h intervals is an effective and safe alternative to surgical and expectant management of early fetal demise. Therefore extending the availability of medical management of early fetal demise at EPAU would reduce the need for surgery and associated complications. Finally, medical management increases women's choice of methods.

#### Acknowledgements

The authors wish to thank Sister Harriet Denny and her staff for assisting with the data collection.

#### References

يؤوم نتته أتتخطبته

21.75.N.7

.

Ashok, P.W., Penney, G.C., Flett, G.M. et al. (1998) An effective regimen for early medical abortion: a report of 2000 consecutive cases. Hum. Reprod., 13, 2962-2965.

- Chung, T.K.H., Cheung, L.P., Lau, W.C. et al. (1994) Spontaneous abortion a medical approach to management. Aust. N.Z. J. Obstet, Gynaecol., 34 432-436.
- Chung, T., Leung, P., Cheung, L.P. et al. (1997) A medical approach to management of spontaneous abortion using misoprostol. Acta Obstet Gynecol. Scand., 76, 248-251.
- Creinin, M.D., Moyer, R. and Guido, R. (1997) Misoprostol for medica evacuation of early pregnancy fuilure. Obster, Gyuecol., 89, 768-772.
- de Jonge, E.T.M., Makin, J.D., Manefeldt, E. et al. (1995) Randomised clinica trial of medical evacuation and surgical curettage for incomplete miscarriage Br. Med. J., 311, 662
- Demetroulis, C., Saridogan, E., Kunde, D. et al. (2001) A prospective randomized control trial comparing medical and surgical treatment for early pregnancy failure. *Hum, Reprod.*, 16, 365-369.
- Egarter, C., Lederhilger, J., Kurz, C. et al. (1995) Gemiprost for first trimeste ______ missed abortion_Arch. Genecal. Obstet: 256, 29-32.
- El-Refacy. H. and Templeton, A. (1994) Early induction of abortion by : combination of milepristone and misoproviol administered by the vagina route. *Contraception*, 49, 111-114.
- El-Refaey, H., Hinshaw, K., Henshaw, R. et al. (1992) Medical managemen of missed abortion and anembryonic pregnancy. Br. Med. J., 305, 1399.
- El-Refacy, H., Rajasekir, D.: Abdalla, M. et al. (1995) Induction of abornion with milepristone (RU 486) and oral or vaginal misoprostol. N. Engl. J. Med., 332, 983-987.
  - Farell, R.G., Stonington, D.J., Ridgeway, R.A. et al. (1982). Incomplete and inevitable abortion: treatment by suction curettage in the emergency department. Ann. Emerg. Med., 11, 652-658.
  - Heisterberg, L., Hebjorn, S., Andersen, L.F. et al. (1986) Sequalae of inducefiest trimester abortion. A prospective study assessing the role of postaborta pelvic inflammatory disease and prophylactic antibioxics. Am. J. Obster Gynecol., 155, 77–80.
  - Hemminki, E. (1998) Treatment of miscarriage: current practice and rationale Obstet. Gynecol., 179, 397-398.
- Henshaw, R.C., Cooper, K., El-Refaey, H. et al. (1993) Medical managemen of miscarriage: non surgical uterine evacuation of incomplete and inevitablspontaneous abortion. Br. Med. J., 305, 894–895.
- Herabutya, Y. and O-Prasensawat, P. (1997) Misoprostol in the managemen of missed abortion. Int. J. Gynecol. Obstet., 56, 263-266.
- Hinshaw, H.K.S. (1997) Medical management of miscarriage. In Grudzinkas J.G. and O Brien, P.M.S. (eds) Problems in early pregnancy: advances in diagnosis and management. RCOG Press, London, pp. 284–295.
- Hughes, J., Ryan, M., Hinshaw, K. et al. (1996) The costs of treating miscarriage: a comparison of medical and surgical management. Br. J Obstet. Gynaecol., 103, 1217-1221.
- Jurkovic, D., Ross, J.A. and Nicolaides, K.H. (1998) Expectant managemen of missed miscarriage. Br. J. Obstet. Synaecol., 105, 670-671.
- Kinnear, P.R. and Gray, C.D. (1994) SPSS for Windows made simple. Lawrence Erlbaum Associates, Hove, East Essex, UK.
- Lelaidier, C., Baton-Saint-Mleux, C., Fernandez, H. et al. (1993) Mifepristons (RU 486) induces embryo expulsion in first trimester non-developing pregnancies: a prospective randomized trial. Hum. Reprod., 8, 492–495.
- Nielsen, S., Hahlin, M., Platz-Christensen, J.J. (1997) Unsuccessful treatmen of missed abortion with a combination of an antiprogesterone and a prostaglandin E₁ analogue. *Br. J. Obstet. Gynaecol.*, 104, 1094–1096.
- Nielsen, S., Hahlin, M. and Platz-Christensen, J. (1999) Randomised tria comparing expectant with medical management for first trimestemiscarriage. Br. J. Obstet. Gynaecol., 106, 804-807.
- Pandian, Z., Ashok, P. and Templeton A. (2001) The treatment of incomplete miscarriage with misoprostol. Br. J. Obstet. Gynaecol., 108, 213-214.
- RCOG Study Group (1997) Recommendations from the 33rd RCOG study group. In Grudzinkas, J.G. and O'Brien, P.M.S. (eds) Problems in early pregnancy: advances in diagnosis and management. RCOG Press, London. pp. 327–331.
- RCOG (2000) The Management of Early Pregnancy Loss. RCOG guideline no. 25. RCOG Press, London.
- WHO Task Force (1993) WHO task force on post-ovulatory methods of fertility regulation. Termination of pregnancy with reduced doses of mitepristone Br. Med. J., 307, 532-537.
- Zieman, M., Fong, S.K., Benowitz, N.L. et al. (1997) Absorption kinetics o. misoprostol with oral or vaginal administration. Obstet. Gynecol., 90, 88-92

Received on December 21, 2000; accepted on Max 16, 2001

# EXELGYN Medical Department

ب مترج ب المعرفين بر معطويهما بر سايلر مترج Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report nº13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	a contract of the second se	
2	•	
A production of the second		
		Ang is at a T
i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	, ا هو د ۲۰ ۲۰۰۰ ۲۰۰۰ ۲۰۰۰ ۲۰۰۰ ۲۰ د ۲۰۰۰ ۲۰۰۰	
tor a lag menugation of the second		
·		
	an a	
ب بالمسلم المسلم المسلم المسلم المسلم المراجع المسلم المراجع المسلم المراجع المسلم المسلم المسلم المسلم المسلم	and the second	and a star and a star a star and a
	and the second sec	an Artelia - a parte a presidente de la companya de la
ు సార్కెస్ సి.	and the second	
(a) A set of the se		
and the second secon	a de gradie en la complementación de la completación de la completación de la completación de la completación d	
and a second second Second second second Second second	արի հանձանակություններին հանձանակությունները է հանձան հետև հանձաներություններություններում։ Աշխատությունները հանձանակությունները հանձանակությունները է հանձանակությունները։ Աշխատությունները հանձանակությունները հանձանակությունները հանձանակությունները։	
in the second	an an included the second states of the second	
		[14] A. M.
and the second	A set of the set of	
a na an		[1] M. M. M. Market and M Market and M. Market and M. Ma Market and M. Market and M Market and M. Market and M Market and M. Market and M Market and M. Market and M Market and M. Market and M Market and M. Market and M Market and Market and M Market and Market and M Market and Market and M Market and Market and Market and Market and Market and M
<ul> <li>The second s</li></ul>	and a stand of the stand of the standard standard and the standard standard standard standard standard standard	
an a	a the second s	[4] A. S. B. Corresto, Mathematical Science of the second state
المربي ميسيني من المربي مين المربي . المربي المراجع المربع المربع المربع المربع .	n an	
and a second		a na sing a sanga sa sanga sa sanga sa
	A STATE OF A	
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
		the second se
		· · · · ·
		1

D.K. Hapangama, A. Brown, A.F. Glasier, D.T. Baird

Feasibility of administering mifepristone as a once a month contraceptive pill.

Human Reproduction 2001; 16(6): 1145-1150

# Feasibility of administering mifepristone as a once a month contraceptive pill

# Dharani K.Hapangama, Audrey Brown, Anna F.Glasier and David T.Baird¹

Contraceptive Development Network, Department of Reproductive and Development Sciences, The University of Edinburgh, Centre for Reproductive Biology, 37 Chalmers Street, Edinburgh, EH3 9ET, UK

¹To whom correspondence should be addressed at: The University of Edinburgh, Centre of Reproductive Biology, Edinburgh, Scotland, UK. E-mail: dtbaird@ed.ac.uk

Many women find the idea of a once-a-month contraceptive pill an attractive concept. Mifepristone has been shown to be effective as a contraceptive if administered in the early luteal phase. We tested the contraceptive efficacy of 200 mg of mifepristone on day luteinizing hormone (LH)  $\pm 2$  in a group of 32 women who used a fertility monitor to identify the LH surge. We also recruited a control group, comprising 20 women who were trying to conceive. In this group, 12 women conceived during a total of 50 control cycles (probability of pregnancy 0.25–0.32). Women in the treatment group contributed to a total of 178 cycles and there were two pregnancies (probability of pregnancy 0.01). An LH surge was not detected in 34 cycles (19.1%). In 20 cycles (11.2%) this was due to imperfect use whilk 14 were monitor method failures (7.9%). Treatment with mifepristone in the early luteal phase did not disrupt the cycle length but women reported slight vaginal bleeding in 15% of the cycles. The combination of a home-use fertility monitor with once-a-month administration of mifepristone (especially if mifepristone is administered at the early luteal phase) is an acceptable contraceptive option with minimal side effects. Unfortunately, it is difficult to envisage how an easier way of defining the correct timing, which required less compliance, could be devised.

Key words: contraceptive/home use fertility monitor/LH surge/Mifepristone/once-a-month pill

#### Introduction

1.

Hormonal contraception is used by almost 100 million women world-wide. However, many women are deterred from using it because of perceived risks to health such as breast cancer or side effects such as weight gain. Most of the risks and the side effects are the results of prolonged exposure to steroids and many women, in a variety of cultural settings, find the idea of a pill which they need take only once each month, an attractive concept (Rimmer et al., 1992; Glasier et al., 1999).

" Progesterone is essential for the establishment and maintenance of human pregnancy. The anti-progesterone mifepristone is a synthetic 19-norsteroid, which acts by blocking the action of progesterone at the receptor level (Spitz and Bardin, 1993), and thus, has multiple potential anti-fertility actions. When administered in the early luteal phase mifepristone retards endometrial development, without disturbing the timing of menses (Swahn et al., 1988; Berthois et al., 1991; Maentausta et al., 1993). It also alters uterine contractility to a pattern more usually seen in the late luteal phase (Gemzell-Danielsson et al., 1990). In 1993 Gemzell-Danielsson and colleagues conducted a pilot study in which a single dose of 200 mg of mifepristone was given in the early luteal phase [2 days following the surge of the lutenizing hormone (LH) in urine]. Out of 124 cycles in which coitus took place during the fertile period, only one pregnancy was observed (Gemzell-Danielsson

C European Society of Human Reproduction and Embryology

et al., 1993). There was no disruption of the timing of the subsequent menstrual bleed, although in 35% of the cycles slight vaginal bleeding was reported 2-3 days after treatment.

The main problem in developing a once-a-month contraceptive is finding a means that, both reliably and easily, identifies the start of the LH surge. Gemzell-Danielsson tried to solve this problem by using the LH sticks for home urine testing (Ovu-quick; Organon). In their study 12 out of 169 cycles were deemed to be anovulatory. However, it is not possible to determine if the LH surge truly was absent, or if the method failed to detect a surge. The woman may have read the test result wrongly or even failed to perform a test on the appropriate day.

Unipath (Bedford, UK) have developed a technology that can be used in the home to monitor changes in urinary hormones. This system comprises disposable test sticks and a hand held monitor, which together are used to detect changes in the levels of oestrone-3-glucuronide (E3G), a urinary metabolite of oestradiol, and LH, to indicate the potentially fertile days leading up to ovulation. The time from the first significant rise of LH in the urine to ovulation is reported to be around 24-48 h (Collins, 1996). The monitor thus should provide a convenient method of identifying the early luteal phase. Summary data for up to six consecutive cycles can be stored in the monitor memory and these data can be retrieved.

#### Dhacani K.Hapangama

We investigated the contraceptive efficacy of 200 mg of mifepristone on day LH + 2 in a group of women who used this monitor to identify the LH surge.

#### Materials and methods

This was a single centre study in healthy female volunteers, approved by the Lothian Research Ethics Committee. All subjects gave written informed consent to participation. Fifty-two sexually active women, with regular (25-32 day) menstrual cycles were recruited from a large Family Planning Clinic in Edinburgh. If the women had a significant medical condition or if they or their partners had a history of fertility problems, they were excluded from the study.

. -- <u>-</u>

# Treatment group

يريني والمتحمد المريد

Section Street

me environment

2.322

· . mangal a m

5 V

1 z.,*

Thirty-two women were recruited to the treatment group. None hadbeen taking hormonal preparations within the 2 months prior to the start of the study and all had had at least two spontaneous menstrualperiods since stopping hormonal contraception. All women underwent screening at the time of recruitment including a routine physical and gynaecological examination. A venous blood sample was taken for full blood count, serum biochemistry and liver function. The study started on day 1 of the menstrual period following screening, and lasted for up to seven consecutive menstrual cycles in which subjects took 200 mg mifepristone once per month.

#### Control group

The control group consisted of 20 healthy women with regular menstrual cycles who were trying to become pregnant (for less than 6 months prior to the enrolment in to the study) and hence, were not using contraception. They were provided with a monitor, which they used according to the manufacturer's instructions. Women were advised that their chance of conception would be higher if they were to have sexual intercourse during the fertile period, identified by the monitor. The controls took part in the study until pregnancy occurred or for a maximum of six cycles if they did not conceive.

#### Procedure

All subjects and controls were provided with a home use hormone monitoring system (Unipath, Bedford, UK). The system comprises a hand-held monitor and disposable dual-assay urine test sticks, and is used to simultaneously detect LH and E3G levels in early morning urine. The monitor optically measures the intensity of the lines that form on the test sticks after sampling, and the system will delineate three levels of fertility (Low, High and Peak Fertility) according to the optical signal changes detected. Low fertility will be displayed from day 1 of the cycle, until the hormone levels rise above the baseline levels. A change from low to high fertility is triggered by detection of elevated E3G levels, to concentrations typically between 20 and 30 ng/ml. The change from high to peak fertility is triggered by the detection of an LH surge, typically with a concentration >30 IU/I.

Peak fertility is displayed on the day of the LH surge and on the following day. Subsequently high fertility is displayed for 1 day prior to a return to low fertility. At the start of each menses, the subjects pressed the 'm' button on their monitor to initiate that cycle of use, at a time suitable for testing the first urine of the day. For the rest of the month, the subjects were required to consult the monitor display each morning (3 h either side of the time when 'm' button was set) to determine whether they needed to perform a test that day. Beyond this 6 h time window the monitor would not accept a test. The system requests one test every day for up to a total of 10 or 20 tests, depending on the length of the woman's cycle, and the timing of her LH surge. Embedded software within the monitor collects and analyses data from each cycle to identify and display fertility status to the user, and stores data for several months.

Milepristone (Laboratories Exclgyn, Paris, France) was taken 2 days after the day of the first day of peak fertility (LH surge). With each cycle, subjects followed the same protocol, and were reviewed by the investigator monthly, on day LH + 2. Just before taking the 200 mg tablet of milepristone, a venous blood sample was taken. and later assayed for progesterone. At the beginning of the study, if the LH surge was not identified by day 21 of the cycle, the subject was instructed to continue testing, but mifepristone was not given in that cycle. The subject was also advised to use barrier contraception from day 21 until the onset of the next menses. After the second pregnancy (which occurred due to a failure in detecting an LH surge), we changed this practice. We calculated the estimated day of LH surge for each month based on information from the previous cycles. If the women did not detect an LH surge either within 3 days after the anticipated day of LH surge or by day 19, a blood sample was taken for rapid serum progesterone assay. If the progesterone level was >5nmol/ and if the woman was at risk of pregnancy, mifepristone was administered.

All subjects and controls kept a menstrual record card, recording all vaginal bleeding experienced during the study and the days on which they had sexual intercourse. Subjects also marked the first day of the peak fertility as identified by the monitor and the day of taking the study medication.

If menstruation was overdue by more than one week the investigator performed a pregnancy test. Provided this was negative, the subject continued in the study and the next cycle was deemed to start with the onset of menses. Since the effect of mifepristone taken in very early pregnancy is unknown, and teratogenic effects could not be ruled out, women who would not consider terminating any pregnancy were not recruited to the treatment group.

At the end of the study, the subjects attended for a final visit, when a routine physical and gynaccological examination was performed. Full blood count, serum biochemistry and liver function were reassessed.

The following definitions were created for the purpose of the study.

Imperfect use: was defined as failure to detect an LH surge through performing the test incorrectly (e.g. dipping a test stick in urine 30 or more min before it being read by the monitor), or failing to perform tests as requested by the monitor.

Monitor method failures: were defined as failure to detect an LH surge despite performing all tests as requested.

High fertile days: days preceding the urinary LH surge as indicated by the monitor to be potentially fertile.

Peak fertile days: The first day of a significant rise in urinary LH detected by the monitor, and the following day.

The fertile period: of the cycle was defined as 3 days before until 2 days after the urinary LH surge (LH-3 to LH+2).

Exposure cycles: were cycles in which women reported having sexual intercourse at least once during the fertile period.

#### Statistical analysis

Cycle lengths and serum progesterone concentrations were compared by two-sample *t*-tests. Confidence limits for efficacy were derived from confidence limits for relative risk calculated by the Greenland and Robins method (Greenland and Robins, 1985).

#### Results

Table I shows the demographic characteristics of the women who took part in the study.

	Treatment group $(n = 32)$	Control group $(n = 20)$
Age	·····	
Range	18-39	26-40
Mcan (± SD) BMI	- 30 (± 5.4) -	32.9 (± 4.5)
Range	19-38	21-29
Mean (± SD)	-23.6 (± 4-3)	23.8 (± 2.7)
Smokers (%)		1 (5)
Non-smokers (%)	21 (65.6)	16 (80)
Ex-smokers (%)	4 (12.5)	37(15)
Previous pregnancies	Contraction of the second	ing same a
1+ (%)	-19 (59.4)	14 (70)
Never been pregnant (%)	-13 (40.6)-	6 (30)
Ever abortion (%)	15 (46.9)	5 (25)
Married/Co-habiting (%)	28 (87.5)	20 (100)

The women in treatment group were slightly younger (mean age 30 years) than those in the control group (mean age 32.9 years). Otherwise there were no differences between subjects and controls.

# The probability of pregnancy in the control group

-

àr.

.....

. T.

Twenty women were recruited to the control group and three withdrew before completing the study. Two withdrew from the study as they found using the system 'too stressful' and one withdrew because she no longer wished to plan a pregnancy. Data were collected from 50 control cycles during which 12 pregnancies occurred. Average frequency of intercourse was 1.7 episodes per week in the 39 control cycles in which the women kept a record of their sexual activity. In 37 cycles women had intercourse at least once during the fertile period (FP). In two cycles intercourse did not occur during the FP, while in 11 cycles the exposure status was unknown, as women failed to keep a record of sexual activity. Eight pregnancies occurred in the first exposure cycle.

If we assume that all 11 cycles from which information on sexual activity was lacking were exposure cycles, the probability of pregnancy was 0.25. However if those cycles were all non-exposure cycles, the probability of conception would be 0.32. Therefore among the control group the overall probability of pregnancy if sexual intercourse took place at least once during the fertile period lies between 0.25–0.32.

#### Contraceptive efficacy of the method

Thirty-two volunteers were treated with a single dose of 200 mg of mifepristone administered in the luteal phase of the cycle as their sole method of contraception between one and seven cycles. They contributed a total of 178 cycles, and in 167 cycles mifepristone was administered. Eight women withdrew from the study before completion; two women moved out of the area, three ended their relationship, two conceived during the study and one lost confidence in the method.

Two clinical pregnancies occurred in the 178 cycles studied. The first pregnancy was a true treatment failure,

# Milepristone as a once a month contraceptive

which occurred in a woman (para 1) who took milepristone on day 14 (LH + 2) of her first treatment cycle. She opted for a surgical termination of pregnancy, which was performed at 8 weeks of gestation (confirmed by ultrasound scanning). In the second woman (para 3), an LH surge was not identified in her third study cycle hence she did not receive treatment with mifepristone, menses did not occur and on day 37 after her last menstrual period an ectopic pregnancy was diagnosed and treated surgically. In a third woman a blochemical pregnancy was diagnosed (serum BHCG only rising to 34 IU/I), which was spontaneously and completely aborted by day 34 of the third study cycle after taking mifepristone on day 14 (LH + 2). This woman continued in the study and completed six treatment cycles. . . · ..' يتدار والمشاشر التراسي

The mean frequency of sexual intercourse was 1.8 episodes per week in 167 treatment cycles in which sexual activity was recorded. If we assume the probability of pregnancy in the treatment group is similar to the control group (0.25-0.32), the expected number of clinical pregnancies during the 178 cycles (in which 140 were exposure cycles) studied should be between 35-48.3. The observed number was two. Therefore, the efficacy of the method is 94.3% (95% confidence interval 75.4-98.7) – 95.9% (95% CI 82.5-99.0).

When calculating the efficacy of the method, we excluded the 29 cycles during which women were not exposed to a risk of pregnancy, and the three cycles in which mifepristone was taken in the follicular phase.

# Contraceptive efficacy of luteal phase administration of mifepristone

In 145 cycles in which mifepristone was taken in the early luteal phase (within 2 days of the urinary LH surge) 117 were exposure cycles (Table II). Exposure status was unknown in eight cycles and in 20 cycles women were not at risk of pregnancy. In the 117 exposure cycles, there was only one clinical pregnancy.

In 19 (10.7%) cycles, no LH surge was declared by the monitor but mifepristone was given as coitus had taken place during the fertile period of the cycle (calculated according to the usual cycle length and usual day of LH surge). Occurrence of ovulation was confirmed by serum progesterone of >5 nmol/l in all 19 cycles and treatment was administered prior to day 21 of the cycle in each case [between day 13-21 of the cycle, mean 16.9 (SD  $\pm$  2.1) days]. There were no pregnancies in these cycles.

If the probability of pregnancy in all exposure cycles in the study is 0.25-0.32 (the same as that of the control group), between 34-46 clinical pregnancies would be expected in the 136 ovulatory cycles in which mifepristone was taken in the luteal phase. The observed number was one. Hence, the contraceptive efficacy of luteal phase mifepristone is between 97.1% (95% CI 78.00-99.6) - 97.8% (95% CI 83.9-99.7).

#### Performance of the home use hormone monitor

In 140 treatment cycles an LH surge was identified by the monitor, which equates to 90.9% LH surge detection when calculated for perfect use cycles; and 80.5% when imperfect use cycles are also included in the total. In 127 cycles this

	Total no.	Exposure cycles	- Unknown exposure	No Exposure
Milepristone administered	167	136	8 1	23
In follicular phase	3	0	0	- 3-
In luteal phase	164	136	8	20 -
Early lutcal phase	145	[17	8	20
LH + 2	- 127 -	100	7	20
LH++1	5 T 17	16	T 1	-0 -
LH + 0	·*····	1	0	0
In luteal phase (unknown LH sta	us)" - 19	19	- 0	0
Mifepristone not given		5*	0	6*
Total	179	140 -		

*LH surge missed, at risk of pregnancy but after day 21.

^bAnovulatory cycle n = 1. LH surge missed and no risk of pregnancy n = 5).

was confirmed by a subsequent rise in serum progesterone of >5_nmol/l in the early luteal phase. This information wasnot available from nine cycles (blood samples lost or not collected). In the remaining four cycles serum progesterone was between 2-5 nmol/l, 1 or 2 days following the urinary LH surge as detected by the monitor. This may have been due to an early detection of the first significant rise in urinary LH. None of these five cycles were prolonged after taking mifepristone, hence it is unlikely that they were anovulatory.

. . . . .

There was a total of 38 (21.3%) cycles in which an LH surge was not detected. Among them, one (0.6%) was an anovulatory cycle, defined by serum progesterone not rising above 5 nmol/l in the mid-luteal phase. In three (1.7%) other cycles we administered mifepristone on day 19, before the monitor had identified an LH surge. Serum levels of progesterone (taken on the day of administering mifepristone) confirmed that in these cycles mifepristone was administered in the follicular phase. All three cycles were prolonged (43-52 days).

In the remaining 34 cycles an LH surge probably occurred (as suggested by a rise in serum progesterone of >5 nmol/l) but was not identified by the monitor. Fourteen were missed due to monitor method failure (7.9%) and 20 were a consequence of imperfect use of the system (11.2%).

#### Cycle length

Mifepristone when given in early luteal phase did not significantly affect the cycle length (P = 0.35). The mean of the usual cycle length was 28.3 days (SD  $\pm$  1.3) and during the treatment cycles it was 28.0 days (SD  $\pm$  1.9).

#### Side effects

Women kept a record of vaginal bleeding in 139 out of the total 144 cycles where mifepristone was taken on LH + 2. Mifepristone induced vaginal bleeding within 72 h in 21 cycles (15%). In a further 19 cycles, our volunteers took mifepristone in the luteal phase but the LH status was not known. In 17 of those cycles (>89%), mifepristone induced a vaginal bleed.

Serum progesterone values in blood samples taken just prior to mifepristone administration were available for 136 cycles. The mean serum progesterone value was significantly (P < 0.0001) higher in those cycles where mifepristone induced bleeding when compared to the mean value for the cycles without bleeding [21.72 (SD  $\pm$  9.04) nmol/1 versus 13.33 (SD  $\pm$  6.23) nmol/1].

1

ياتية مراجعتين

1.00

Two women spontaneously reported improvement of their pre-menstrual symptoms during cycles in which mifepristone was administered, while one reported worsening. In one woman hepatic alanine aminotransferase (ALT) was elevated at 103 IU/1 (normal range 10–40 IU/1) at the end of the study but returned to normal within 2 months. One woman complained of diarrhoea 12 h post mifepristone in one cycle, three reported menstrual cramping within 72 h of taking mifepristone; two women reported a reduction in menstrual blood loss.

#### Discussion

A single dose of 200 mg of mifepristone administered once a month is an effective contraceptive method with an overall efficacy of 95% increasing to 97% if administered at the correct time (i.e. the early luteal phase). Thus our results are in agreement with the findings of a previous study (Genzell-Danielsson *et al.*, 1993).

One criticism of previous work in this field has been the lack of a suitable control group for the subjects studied. Unlike the Gemzell-Danielsson study, we were able to compare the results with a contemporaneous control group using the same methodology in the same cultural setting. In this control group, if sexual intercourse took place on a fertile day the probability of a pregnancy was 0.25-0.32. The calculated probability of pregnancy in a cohort of couples monitored during a study of natural family planning (WHO, 1983) was 0.486 if intercourse took place 3 days prior to and a day after the peak day of mucus discharge. The difference in the probability of pregnancy between our study and a variety of other published series (Table III) may be explained by the fact that we have extended our definition of the fertile period to 6 days (3 days prior to the urinary LH surge until 2 days after). Other authors (Wilcox et al., 1995) have calculated that the likelihood of conceiving during an ovulatory cycle to be 0.37 (95% confidence interval 0.31-0.48) if daily sexual intercourse took place during a 6 day fertile period (four days before and a day after ovulation). The lower frequency of intercourse in

#### Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

Milepristone as a once a month contraceptive

мę.



The length of the fertile period defined as 4 days. The length of the fertile period defined as 6 days.

1.1.5

Figure 1. Algorithm for administering milepristone when the LH surge is not identified

our group (untimed intercourse averaging 1.7 per week) may also explain the lower probability of pregnancy.

The limiting factor in this once-a-month approach to administering anti-progesterone is the accurate detection of the LH surge. Clearly, the failure to detect accurately the LH surge has a big impact on the overall effectiveness of the method. Using laboratory assay of LH in blood or urine to identify ovulation is neither practical nor convenient for long term use in the general population. The monitor provided us with an opportunity to overcome these problems. Gemzell-Danielsson et al. (1993) reported 49% accuracy using home LH detection sticks (Gemzell-Danielsson et al., 1993). Although the monitor performed better (over 80.5% accuracy), both of these methods remain below the required standard. We studied 32 women over a total of 178 cycles. Imperfect use of the system accounted for failure to identify an LH surge in 11.8% cycles while 7.9% were due to monitor method failure. Compliance difficulties are associated with all contraceptives and non-compliance in -12% of cycles is probably no worse than with any other method which demands action from the user, for example, compliance rates reported from oral contraceptive pill users range from 3.4-100% (Wheble et al., 1981; Molloy et al., 1985; Hamilton and Hoogland, 1989). Although our study population consisted of women who were motivated and committed and some of them already had experience in using natural family planning methods, they found the short, inflexible testing window set on day 1 of the cycle to be particularly demanding. This is inconsistent with couples using the monitor in order to get pregnant (Bonnar et al., 1999). The prevalence of imperfect use is likely to rise in the general population compared with that typical of a research study.

During the course of the study we developed an algorithm (Figure 1) for the administration of mifepristone if an LH surge was not identified. In 19 exposure cycles (out of 28 cycles in which an LH surge was not identified) mifepristone was administered using this algorithm and there were no pregnancies. Given that the methods available to be used in real life to time the administration of mifepristone cannot be 100% accurate, such an algorithm will be essential to deal with a missed LH surge.

In our study, mis-timed administration of mifepristone

led to predictable effects. When administered during the proliferative phase of the menstrual cycle, mifepristone inhibited follicular development, and delayed the mid cycle LH-surge, leading to a delay in ovulation and subsequent prolongation of the menstrual cycle (Liu *et al.*, 1987; Luukkainen *et al.*, 1988; Swahn *et al.*, 1988). Ovulation may occur later in that cycle, leaving women at risk of conception. In our study, when administered in the late follicular phase (in error) in three cycles, mifepristone prolonged the cycle length (43-52 days). The women were advised to use condoms for the remainder of that cycle and none of the three cycles resulted in pregnancy.

Administration of mifepristone in the mid or late luteal phase induces a bleed within a few days of treatment, which may or may not be followed by a second bleed at the time of expected menstruation (Shoupe et al., 1987; Swahn et al., 1988). In our study, in 17 out of the 19 cycles where mifepristone was taken after ovulation (the LH status unavailable and probably later than on LH + 2), intermenstrual vaginal bleeding occurred (89.5%). Moreover, there was an increased risk of bleeding seen in those women who may have taken mifepristone slightly later in the LH + 2 window. The mean serum progesterone concentration was significantly higher in those women who had bleeding after taking mitepristone within LH + 2, when compared with those who did not. The higher serum progesterone value in some on LH + 2, could be due to a delayed identification of the first significant rise in urinary LH, or because of a more rapid increase in serum progesterone due to early ovulation. Nevertheless, in our group of women, in all cycles where mifepristone induced a vaginal bleed, a second bleed occurred at the time of the expected menses. Therefore, while the bleeding may have been inconvenient, it did not jeopardise efficacy or continued use of the method. There was less inter-menstrual bleeding (15% of the cycles) reported in our study when mifepristone was taken within LH + 2, less than half of that reported by Gemzell-Danielsson et al. (32%) (Gemzell-Danielsson et al., 1993). This is possibly due to the fact that the majority of women in our study received mifepristone at the correct time. In their study, in 51% of the cycles, mifepristone was taken between 3 and 5 days after the LH surge.

In conclusion, the use of the combination of home use

#### Dharani K.Hapangama

fertility monitor with once-a-month administration of mifepristone (especially if mifepristone is administered at the early luteal_phase) is an attractive contraceptive option with minimal side effects. However, to be an effective contraceptive method, the women have to be committed to using a device, which identifies the LH surge, in order that the pill can be taken at the correct time in the cycle. Whilst this regimen may be acceptable to motivated women, it may be regarded as too complicated for others to adopt on a routine basis. There was evidence of such non-compliance in this study, with 11.2% of LH surges being missed as a consequence of imperfect use of the monitor. Unfortunately, it is difficult to envisage how an easier way of defining the correct timing, which obligated less compliance, could be devised.

# Acknowledgements

The authors would like to thank Laboratories Exelgyn (Paris-France) for providing-us with the study medication, Unipath Ltd. for the provision of the home use monitors and data collected from the monitors, Dr Rob Elton for his assistance and advice on statistics, Mrs Ann. Mayo for helping with the recruitment of patients, and Mrs Martha Urquhart for laboratory assays. The study was supported by the Medical Research Council and Department for International Development (Grant No. G9523250).

#### References

- Berthois, Y., Salat-Baroux, J., Cornet, D. et al. (1991) A multi-parametric analysis of endometrial oestrogen and progesterone receptors after postovulatory administration of mifepristone. Fertil. Steril., 55, 574-554.
- Bonnar, J., Flynn, A., Freundl, G. et al. (1999) Personal hormone monitoring for contraception. Brit. J. Fam. Plann., 24, 128-134.
- Collins, W.P. (1996) Indicators of potential fertility: scientific principles. In Bonner, J. (ed) Natural Conception Through Personal Hormone Monitoring. New York: The Parthenon Publishing Group, pp. 13-33.
- Genzell-Danielsson, K., Swahn, M.-L., and Bygdeman, M. (1990) Regulation of non-pregnant human myometrial contractility. Effects of anti-hormones. *Contraception*, 42, 323–335.

- Genzell-Danielsson, K., Swahn, M.-L., Svalander, P. and Bygdeman, M. (1993) Early luteal phase freatment with milepristone (RU 486) for fertility regulation, *Hum. Reprod.*, 8, 870–873.
- Glasier, A.F., Smith, K.B., Cheng, L. et al. (1999) An international study on the acceptability of a once-a-month pill. Hum. Reprod., 14, 3018-3022.
- Greenland, S. and Robins, J.M. (1985) Estimation of a common effect parameter from sparse follow-up data. Bioinetrics, 41, 55-68.
- Hamilton, C.J.C.M. and Hoogland, H.J. (1989) Longitudinal ultrasonographic study of the ovarian suppressive activity of a low dose triphasic oral contraceptive during correct and incorrect pill-intake. Am. J. Olistet. Gynecol., 161, 1159-1162
- Liu, I.H., Garzo, G., Morris, S. et al. (1987) Disruption of follicular maturation and delay of ovulation after administration of the antiprogesterone RU 486. J. Clin. Endocrinol. Metab., 65, 1135-1140.
- Luukkainen, T., Heikinheimo, O., Haukkamaa, M., and Lahteenmaki, P. (1988). Inhibition of folliculogenesis and ovulation by the antiprogesterone RU
- 186: Fertil. Steril: 49, 961-963. Maeritausta, O., Svalander, P., Gemzell-Daniellsson, K. et al. (1993) The
- effects of an antiprogestin, milepristone and antiestrogen tamoxilen on endometrial 17 $\beta$ -hydroxysteroid dehydrogenase and progestin and estrogen receptors during the luteal phase of the menstrual cycle: An immunohistochemical study. J. Clin. Endocrinol. Metab., 77, 913-918.

147 m2

- Molloy, B.G., Coulson, K.A.; Loo, J.M. and Watters, J.K. (1985) 'Missed pill' conception: fact or fiction? BMJ, 290, 1474-1475.
- Rimmer, C.; Horga, M., Cerar, V. et al. (1992) Do women want a once-amonth pill? Hum. Reprod., 7, 608-611.
- Shoupe, D., Mishell, D.R., Lahteenmaki, P. et al. (1987) Effects of the antiprogesterone RU 486 in normal women. Am. J. Obstet. Gynecol., 157, 1415-1420.
- Spitz, LM. and Bardin, C.W. (1993) Clinical pharmacology of RU 486 an antiprogestin and antiglucoconticoid. *Contraception*, 48, 403 - 444.
- Swahn, M.-L., Johannisson, E., Daniore, V. et al. (1988) The effect of RU 486 administered during the proliferative and secretory phase of the cycle on the bleeding pattern, hormonal parameters and the endometrium. Hum. Reprod., 3, 915-921.
- Wheble, A.M., Street, P. and Wheble, S.M. (1981) Contraception: Failure in practice. Br. J. Fam. Planu, 7, 41-44.
- WHO Task Force on Methods for the determination of the fertile period (1983) A prospective multicentre trial of the ovulation method of natural family planing. III. Characteristics of the menstrual cycle and of the fertile phase. Fertil. Steril., 40, 773-778.
- Wilcox, A.J., Weinberg, C.R. and Baird, D.D. (1995) Timing of sexual intercourse in relation to ovulation: effects on the probability of pregnancy and sex of the baby. *NEJM.*, 333, 1517–1521.

Received on November 22, 2000; accepted on March 6, 2001





Efficacy of mifepristone followed on the same day by misoprostol for early termination of pregnancy: report of a randomised trial.

B. Journal of Obstetrics & Gynaecology 2001; 108: 469-473
# Efficacy of mifepristone followed on the same day by misoprostol for early termination of pregnancy: report of a randomised trial

Mitchell D. Creinin^{*}, Jill L. Schwartz, Helen C. Pymar, Wendy Fink

Objective To examine the clinical efficacy of mifepristone 600 mg followed on the same day or two days later by misoprostol 400µg orally in women undergoing medical termination of pregnancy whose pregnancies have a gestational age up to 49 days.

Design Prospective, randomised trial.

Setting Clinical research office

Participants Eighty-six women, requesting elective termination of a pregnancy which has a gestational age of  $\leq$  49 days.

Methods After administration of mifepristone 600 mg, participants were randomised to take misoprostol six to eight hours later (Group 1) or 48 hours later (Group 2). Women returned for a follow up evaluation  $24 \pm 1$ hours after taking the misoprostol. Participants in Group 1 who had not aborted received a second dose of misoprostol to take 48 hours after the mifepristone. All women returned approximately two weeks-after receiving mifepristone. If termination of pregnancy had still not occurred and the pregnancy was non-viable, the woman returned again in three weeks.

Main outcome measures Rate of complete abortion 24 hours after administration of misoprostol.

- Results At 24 hours after receiving misoprostol, 21/42 (50%, 95% CI 35%, 65%) women in Group 1 and 40/44 (91%, 95% CI 82%, 99%) women in Group 2 had complete abortions. By follow up two weeks later after the administration of mifepristone, 40/42 (95%, 95% CI 89%, 100%) women in Group 1 and 43/44 (98%, 95% CI 93%, 99%) women in Group 2 were known to have complete abortions. Nausea, vomiting or diarrhoea in women using the standard regimen (Group 2) occurred in 68%, 36%, and 20%, respectively.
- Conclusions After treatment with mifepristone 600 mg, administration of misoprostol 400 µg orally on the same day is not as effective at causing abortion within the first 24 hours compared with the standard time interval of 48 hours between medications.

## INTRODUCTION

In Europe and China more than three million women have received mifepristone, an antiprogestin, in a treatment regimen for medical termination of pregnancy. Complete abortion at gestations up to 49 days occurs in 64% to 85% of women when mifepristone is used alone in doses of 140mg to 1600mg administered over one to 10 days¹. However, when mifepristone is followed two days later by a prostaglandin analogue, the efficacy rate for complete abortion increases to 87% to 97%².

Misoprostol is an inexpensive, orally active prostaglandin analogue that is used for the prevention of gastric ulcers induced by non-steroidal anti-inflammatory drugs;

Department of Obstetrics, Gynecology and Reproductive Sciences, University of Pittsburgh School of Medicine, Magee-Womens Hospital, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, USA

© RCOG 2001 British Journal of Obstetries and Gynaecology Pll: \$0306-5456(00100117-0 the dose is 200 $\mu$ g four times daily. Its effects on uterine tone are similar to those of other prostaglandin analogues³. When misoprostol 400 $\mu$ g orally is administered 48 hours after mifepristone 600mg, abortion occurs in 92% to 97% of women whose pregnancies have a gestational age of  $\leq$  49 days⁴⁵. Side effects are similar to those reported with other prostaglandin analogues. Currently, misoprostol is the prostaglandin analogue most commonly used with mifepristone for early abortion.

The largest clinical evaluation of the mifepristonemisoprostol combination was an American multicentre trial involving 17 sites, including free-standing clinics, Planned Parenthood clinics and university hospitals⁵. The protocol was similar to that used in common practice in France. Woman received mifepristone 600mg orally, and returned two days later to receive misoprostol 400 $\mu$ g orally. Approximately 25% of participants had bleeding that was equivalent to or heavier than their menses during the interval between the medications; only 11% of those women (3% of the total study population) had aborted. A total of 2015 women with a gestation of up to 63 days were included in the final analysis. The complete abortion rate up to 49 days' gestation was 92%; however, the rate declined to 83% from 50 to 56 days amenorrhoea and

www.hjog-elsevier.com

FDACDER000367

Correspondence: Dr M. D. Creinin, University of Pittsburgh School of Medicine. Department of Obstetrics, Gynecology and Reproductive Sciences, Magee-Womens Hospital, 300 Halket Street, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15213-3180, USA.

#### 470 M. D. CREININ ET AL.

742. .

1. T. - .

. .

김 씨는

1.4

متوجد يادينا والمتحصص فيتشريق والمتدعين والمتدشر

n Attender der

77% from 57 to 63 days amenorrhoea. The time of expulsion was known for 1468 women, of whom 84% aborted

within 24 hours after the administration of misoprostol. Based on these, and many other published trials, the standard time to administer the prostaglandin analogue after mifepristone is 36 to 48 hours. The endometrium of a non-pregnant uterus begins to thin between 18 and 32 hour after the administration of antiprogestin⁶. Studies have demonstrated that the myometrium has more reactive contractility to low dose prostaglandin after treatment with mifepristone⁷. However, there are no studies that identify the time interval at which the increased reactivity to prostaglandin analogues occurs in a pregnant uterus.

It is therefore worthwhile to investigate the efficacy of administration of a low-dose prostaglandin analogue sooner than 48 hours after the administration of mifepristone. Regimens with a shorter interval between mifepristone and misoprostol, if effective, would lessen the time necessary for a medical abortion to occur and, potentially, increase acceptability. In addition, since approximately 55% of women bleed during the 48 hours between mifepristone and misoprostol with the standard regimen⁵, administration of the drugs on the same day would decrease such an undesirable side effect.

This study was performed as a preliminary evaluation of the efficacy of mifepristone and misoprostol given on the same day for medical termination of a pregnancy with a gestational age of up to 49 days. Due to funding restrictions, we tested the hypothesis that the standard regimen would have resulted in expulsion within 24 hours of misoprostol in 90% of women treated with the standard regimen (i.e. the 48 hour interval between mifepristone and misoprostol) and 65% in women treated on the same day. If the regimens did appear similarly effective, then a larger study would be performed to test equivalence.

#### METHODS

Healthy women at least 18 years of age were enrolled in a prospective, randomised trial approved by the Institutional Review Board of Magee-Womens Hospital of the University of Pittsburgh Health System. Entry criteria included: 1. a singleton intrauterine pregnancy not exceeding a gestation age of 49 days as documented by vaginal ultrasound; 2. requesting an elective abortion; 3. willing to comply with the schedule of visits; 4. willing to have a surgical abortion if indicated; 5. adequate venous access for multiple phlebotomies; and 6. access to a telephone.

Exclusion criteria included: 1. contraindications to mifepristone including chronic systemic corticosteroid administration or adrenal disease; 2. contraindication to misoprostol including glaucoma, mitral stenosis, sickle cell anaemia, poorly controlled seizures, or known allergy to prostaglandins; 3. haemoglobin less than 1( gm/dL; 4. cardiovascular disease including angina, valvular disease, arrhythmia, or cardiac failure; 5. known coagulopathy or treatment with anticoagulants; 6. pregnancy with an intrauterine device *in utero*; and 7. breastfeeding.

Women who enrolled signed an informed consent form and agreed to suction evacuation of the uterus, should the pregnancy be viable (defined as the presence of cardiac activity on vaginal ultrasound) I4 days after initiating the study. Vaginal ultrasound was performed and gestational age estimated using the following criteria: gestational age (days) = mean sac diameter (fmm) + 30^k, or embryonic pole (mm) + 42^y. Mean sac diameter ([length + width + depth]/3) was used to estimate gestational age only when no embryonic pole is present. Estimated Gestational Age was based on the last menstrual period; however, if the ultrasound estimate differed by four days or more from the gestational age by the last menstrual period, the ultrasound estimate was used.

On the day of consent, a history and physical examination. baseline haemoglobin, and blood graph were performed. At least 24 hours after obtaining consent (as required by the Pennsylvania Abortion Control Act), the women ingested mifepristone 600mg in front of a member of the research staff, if all of the entry criteria were met. The day of this visit was considered study day one. If the woman's blood graph was Rh-negative, she also received Rh-immune globulin 50  $\mu$ g intramuscularly.

The women were given two tablets of misoprostol 200  $\mu$ g to take home. They were randomised to take the misoprostol six to eight hours (Group 1) or 48 hours (Group 2) after taking the mifepristone. Randomisation was performed using a random number table to create 100 women in each of the two groups; the group was assigned by opening the next sequentially numbered sealed opaque envelope. The randomisation sequence and preparation of the envelopes were performed by a person unrelated to the study. The researchers and medical staff were not blinded to group assignment.

All participants were given written instructions with a 24-hour phone number for emergencies. The directions stated to call the Research Office if vaginal bleeding exceeded two soaked sanitary towels in one hour for two consecutive hours. All women received a prescription for 20 tablets of codeine phosphate 30 mg. The women were instructed to use ibuprofen or acetaminophen initially and to use the prescribed narcotic only if necessary.

All women returned  $24 \pm 1$  hours after taking the misoprostol, at which time they were questioned about side effects that occurred during the interval between mifepristone and misoprostol and after the misoprostol, as well as the time of administration of the misoprostol. When questioned about severity of bleeding, the women

@ RCOG 2001 Br J Obstet Gynaccol 108, pp. 469-473

#### MIFEPRISTONE FOLLOWED BY MISOPROSTOL FOR TERMINATION 471

were instructed that "bleeding" was defined as flow equalto or heavier than menses, and "spotting" was flow lighter than menses. A vaginal ultrasound scan was performed. If the woman was in Group 1 and the gestational sac was still present, she was given an additional 400 µg (two tablets) of misoprostol to take orally 48 hours after she received the mifepristone.

All women returned for a follow up visit between days 14 and 20. A history of events since the prior visit was obtained. A vaginal ultrasound scan was performed if the examination at the last visit had not demonstrated absence of the gestational sac. If the gestational sac andembryonic cardiac activity were present, a surgical termination of pregnancy was performed. If the gestational sac was still present without cardiac activity, the women returned in three weeks (day 36) at which time her history was taken and another ultrasound scan performed. If the vaginal ultrasound scan on day 36 showed the gestational sac to be still present, the woman was offered a surgical termination of pregnancy. If she declined intervention at this time-then-she was followed at one or two weekly intervals until she either aborted or requested a surgical abortion. All women were permitted at any time to request a surgical procedure rather than continuing to wait for expulsion.

## Statistical analysis

The sample size was estimated based on complete abortion rates 24 hours after the misoprostol, of 90% with the standard regimen (48-hour interval) and 65% with administration of the misoprostol six to eight hours after the mifepristone. A sample of 86 women was calculated to have an 80% power to detect this difference using the z-statistic at a two-tailed significance level of 0.05¹⁰. Statistical analyses were performed using Fisher's exact test, Wilcoxon non-parametric rank tests, and  $\chi^2$  analysis with Yates' correction where appropriate. The procedure was considered successful if complete abortion occurred without requiring a suction evacuation of the uterus. Body surface area was calculated using a body surface area table¹¹.

## RESULTS

The characteristics of the women are presented in Table 1. One (2.3%) of the women in Group 2 aborted during the interval between mifepristone and misoprostol. She called the office with heavy bleeding beginning 27 hours after the mifepristone; ultrasound evaluation in the office confirmed expulsion of the pregnancy, so she was instructed not to use the misoprostol. Of the remaining 43 women in Group 2, forty-two (97.6%) used the misoprostol 48 hours  $\pm$  0.5 hours after the mifepristone. The other woman used the misoprostol two hours after

© RCOG 2001 Br J Obstet Gynaecol 108, pp. 469-473

were instructed that "bleeding" was defined as flow equal ----- the 48-hour mark. All of the women in Group 1 used the to or heavier than menses, and "spotting" was flow lighter misoprostol at the correct time.

At 24 hours after receiving misoprostol, 21/42 women in Group 1 (50%, 95% CI 35%, 65%) and 40/44 women in Group 2 (91%-95% Cl 82%, 99%) had complete abortions (RR = 0.55 [95% CI 0.42, 0.73]). By follow up two weeks after the mifepristone, 40/42 women in Group 1 (95%; 95% Cl 89; 100%) and 43/44 women in Group 2 (98%, 95% CI 93%, 100%) were known to have complete abortions (RR = 0.97 [95% CI 0.90, 1.06]). One woman in Group 1 was lost-to follow up after she received the mifepristone; as her final outcome could not be verified. her treatment was considered to have failed. One woman in Group I was thought to have aborted after a single dose of misoprostol but was seen on day 51 with an incomplete abortion requiring-surgical evacuation of the uterus. One woman in Group 2 had a collapsed gestational sac 24 hours after receiving misoprostol. This sac remained at the two-week and five-week follow up visits. She continued to experience intermittent bleeding and requested surgical evacuation. The pathology report for both of the women who had surgical evacuation of the uterus showed chorionic villi.

Information on cramping and bleeding after the first dose of misoprostol is presented in Table 2. Information on the duration of vaginal bleeding and spotting was available for 37 (88%) and 38 (86%) women in Groups 1 and 2, respectively. Total vaginal bleeding lasted 17 (SD9) days and 17 (SD10) days, respectively. Only one woman had vaginal bleeding that soaked two sanitary towels in one hour for two consecutive hours; this occurred in the woman who aborted after the mifepris-

Table 1. Characteristics of the women. Values are given as u (5) or mean [SD].

	Group 1 (n = 42)	$\begin{array}{l} \text{Group 2} \\ (n = 44) \end{array}$
Age (years)	26 [6]	25 171
Gravidity		
t	7 (17)	11 (25)
2	11 (26)	13 (30)
3	10 (24)	7 (16)
4	8 (19)	2 (5)
>5	6 (14)	11 (25)
Mean (SD)	3 [1]	3 (3)
Parity		
I	17 (40)	18 (41)
2	12 (29)	11 (25)
3	8 (19)	X (18)
>4	5 (12)	7 (16)
Mean (SD)	1 (1)	1111
Marital status		~
Single	33 (79)	33 (75)
Married	7 (17)	5 (11)
Divorced or separated	2 (5)	6 (14)
Prior termination of pregnancy	20 (48)	22 (50)
Body surface area (m ² )	1.80 [0.2]	1.80 [0.2]
Gestational age (days)	-14 [4]	43 [5]

. <u>مح<del>جزة</del> (ا</u>

محافظ يصبيه معادر

 $a \in \mathcal{I}$ 

#### 472 M. D. CREININ ET AL.

-17-

1422

Table 2. Cramping and bleeding after misoprostol. Values are given as mean (SD). Women in Group 1 received a second dose of misoprostol 400 µg orally if the abortion had not occurred within 24 hours of the initial dose. Data for bleeding and cramping for Group 1 are only for the first dose of misoprostol. Women in Group 2 received only a single dose of misoprostol.

4 <del></del>	Group I	Group 2
Orest of blooding (b)	2 8 (2 0)	17/25
Ouset of cramping (h)	2.9 (2.8)	1.4 (1.4)
Total days of bleeding	16.9 (9.2)	17.0 (10.2)

tone without using misoprostol. Her bleeding subsided during the third hour and no intervention other than telephone contact was required. No women required a blood transfusion.

Side effects are presented in Table 3. The incidence of vomiting, bleeding and spotting in women who received misoprostol on the same day was significantly less compared with women who received misoprostol 48 hours after the mifepristone. Otherwise, there was no difference between the groups in their side effects. There was no statistical difference in side effects after misoprostol between the groups, including after the repeat dose of misoprostol when needed for the women in Group 1. The overall rate of nausea, vomiting or diarrhoea during the medical abortion process (after either or both medications) for women using the standard regimen was 68%, 36%, and 20%, respectively. One significant complication was a tubo-ovarian abscess occurring nine days after the administration of misoprostol and a successful abortion. The woman responded well to treatment with seven days of intravenous antibiotics followed by seven days more of oral antibiotic therapy.

Analgesia was not required at any time by 8 of 42 (19%)

and 11 of 44 (25%) women in Groups 1 and 2, respectively (P = 0.7); all of these women aborted successfully. All o, the remaining women used only oral medication; 24% and 28% (P = 0.9) of women in Groups 1 and 2, respectively used narcotics for pain relief.

م الم المحمد الم

Sector Street,

## DISCUSSION

This is the first published trial to evaluate the use of mifepristone and a prostaglandin analogue on the same day for medical termination of pregnancy. Clearly, after treatment with mifepristone 600 mg, the administration of misoprostol 400 µg orally on the same day is not as effective at causing abortion within the first 24 hours compared with the standard time interval of 48 hours between medications.

Only 5% of women had any bleeding within six to eight hour after mifepristone, and that was only spotting. In the standard treatment group, 52% of women experienced bleeding during the 48 hours between the drugs. This rate is consistent with the 55% rate reported by Spitz et al.⁵ after 600 mg mifepristone and the 48% rate reported by Schaff et al.¹² in 933 women after mifepristone 200 mg. Thus, bleeding during the 48-hour standard interval appears to occur in approximately half of the women after using mifepristone and usually begins more than eight hours after the mifepristone.

In the French study of Peyron *et al.*⁴, mifepristone 600 mg followed in 36 to 48 hours by misoprostol 400  $\mu$ g orally in women up to 49 days gestation, resulted in nausea, vomiting and diarrhoea being reported by 43%, 17% and 14%, of the women, respectively. In contrast, the women in our study reported these side effects in 68%, 36%, and 20%, respectively; these rates are nearly

Table 3. Side effects after treatment with milepristone 600 mg and misoprostol 400 µg orally for early abortion. Values are given as n (%) or RR with (95% CI).

	· · · · · ·	Mifepris	tone	·.		Misopros	Misoprostol		
	Group 1	Group 2	R.R.*	Gro	up l	RR⁺	Group 2	RR*	
	n = 42	n = 44		$1^{\circ}$ dose $n = 42$	$2^{n1}$ dose $n = 18$	1	n = 43		
Nausea	18 (43)	21 (48)	0.90 (0.56, 1.43)	23 (55)	3 (17)	2.90 (1.00, 8.41)	18 (42)	1.31 (0.84, 2.05)	
Vomiting	2 (5)	12 (27)	0.17 (0.04, 0.73)	5 (12)	2(11)	1.07 (0.23, 5.02)	6(14)	0.85 (0.28, 2.58)	
Diarrhea	0 .	1 (2)	0.98 (0.93, 1.02)	15 (36)	4 (22)	1 57 (0.60, 4.08)	8 (19)	1.92 (0.91, 4.04)	
Cramping	13 (31)	20 (45)	0.68 (0.39, 1.19)	39 (93)	16 (89)	1.04 (0.87, 1.26)	35 (81)	1.14 (0.97, 1.35)	
Dizziness	7 (17)	11 (25)	0.67 (0.29, 1.56)	12 (29)	3 (17)	1.71 (0.55, 5.35)	8 (19)	1.54 (0.70, 3.37)	
Spotting	2 (5)	23 (52)	0,09 (0,02, 0,36)	-	-	<u>'</u> –	-	-	
Bleeding	10 (24)	18 (41)	0.59 (0.46, 0.76)	32 (90)	<b>18 (100)</b>	0.90 (0.82,1.00)	43 (100)	0.90 (0.82, 1.00)	
Headache	6 (14)	9 (20)	0.70 (0.27. 1.79)	5 (12)	3 (17)	0.71 (0.19, 2.68)	8 (19)	0.64 (0.23, 1.80)	
Warmth/chills	10 (24)	10 (23)	1.05 (0.49, 2.26)	12 (29)	5 (28)	1.03 (0.42, 2.49)	(30)	0.95 (0.49, 1.83)	

^a One woman in Group 2 aborted after mifepristone and did not receive misoprostol. Data was missing for one of the 19 women in Group 1 who received a second dose of misoprostol.

* Relative risk and 95% confidence intervals; 1* dose versus 2^{ad} dose.

* Relative risk and 95% confidence intervals of 1* dose of misoprostol in Group 1 compared to Group 2

© RCOG 2001 Br J Obstet Gynaecol 108, pp. 469-473

identical to those reported in the American study by Spitz et al.⁵ (61%, 26%, and 20%, respectively). Thus, either French women have a lower rate of side effects from medical termination of pregnancy or do not report side effects when they occur.

Similarly, use of narcotic drugs in the French studies is different to that reported in the United States. Peyron et al.⁴ reported that 81% of women experienced cramping and only 16% requested any pain relief, which consisted of a non-opiate analgesic. In the American trial reported by Spitz et al.⁵, 29% of women received a narcotic analgesic. Women in both of these trials were required to remain in the office for four hours after misoprostol for observation. In contrast, the women in our study used the misoprostol at home, a practice that has been well-documented in the medical literature to be safe and effective ^{12,14}. Still, the use of narcotics was approximately the same as that reported in American women who remain under observation⁵. Overall, the use of narcotic analgesics is more prevalent in the United States compared with France.

Studies using mifepristone 200 mg followed in 48 hours by misoprostol 800  $\mu$ g vaginally appear to result in higher rates of complete abortion and more rapid expulsion compared with oral misoprostol^{12,13}. Thus, it is possible that a regimen with vaginal misoprostol may hold promise for same day treatment. Since a same-day, regimen is desirable from the woman's point of view and has fewer side effects (especially bleeding), vaginal misoprostol given on the same day as mifepristone deserves investigation.

#### References

61a

ور مورد و مو

ميني بر الم ميني بر الم

> Spitz IM, Bardin CW, RU 486-A modulator of progestin and glucocorticoid action. N Engl J Med 1993:329:404-412.

## MIFEPRISTONE FOLLOWED BY MISOPROSTOL FOR TERMINATION 473

- 2. Grimes DA. Medical abortion in early pregnancy: a review of the evidence: Obstet Gynecol 1997:89:79(1-796.
- Norman JE, Thong KJ, Baird DT, Uterine contractility and induction of abortion in early pregnancy by misoprostol and milepristone. Lancet 1991:338:1233-1236.
- Peyron R. Aubeny E. Targosz V. et al. Early termination of pregnancy with milepristone (RU 486) and the orally active prostaglandin misoprostol. N Engl J Med 1993;328:1509-1513.
- Spitz IM, Bardin CW, Benton L, Robbias A. Early pregnancy termination with mifepristone and misoprostol in the United States. N Engl J Med 1998:338:1241-1247.
- Koeriñg MJ, Healy DI, Coddington CC, et al. Morphological response of endometrium to progesterone anagonists in monkeys. Fertil Steril 1986:45:280-287.
- 7. Norman JE, Thong KJ, Baird DT. Uterine contractility and induction of
- abortion in early pregnancy by misoprostol and mifepristone. Luncer 1991:338:1233-1236.
- Rossavik IK, Torjusen GO, Gibbons WE. Conceptual age and ultrasound measurements of gestational sac and erown-rump length-invitro fertilization programmics. *Fertil Steril*: 1988:49:1012-1017.
- 9. Goldstein SR, Wolfson R. Endovaginal ultrasonographic measurement of early embryonic size as a means of assessing gestational age, J Ultrasonal Med 1994;13:27-31.
- 10. Browner WS, Black D, Newman TB, Hulley SB, Estimating sample size and power. In: Hulley SB, Cummings SR, editors. Designing Clinical Research, Baltipore: Williams & Wilkins, 1988;139–150.
  - DiSuia PJ, Creasman WT, Clinical Graecologic Oncology, St. Louis: C.V. Mosby Company, 1989.
  - Schaff EA, Eisinger SH, Stadalius LS, Franks P, Gore BZ, Poppena S, Low-dose mifepristone 200mg and vaginal misoprostol for abortion. *Contraception* 1999:59:1–6.
  - Schaff EA, Stadalius LS, Eisinger SH, Franks P. Vaginal misoprostol administered at home after milepristone (RU486) for abortion. J Fam Pract 1997;44:353–360.
  - Creinin MD, Vittinghoth E, Schaff E, Klaisle C, Darney PD, Dean C. Medical abortion with oral methotrexate and vaginal misoprostol. Obstet Gynecol 1997;90:611-616.
  - Ashok PW, Penney GC, Flett GM, Templeton A. An effective regimen for early medical abortion: a report of 2000 consecutive cases. *Hum Reprod* 1998;13:2962–2965.

Accepted 23 January 2001

© RCOG 2001 Br J Obstet Gynaecol 108, pp. 469-473

## EXELGYN Medical Department d via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc. Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 – from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

		والاستعماد والمتحد والمتحد والمتحد والمتحد والمتحد والمتحد والمتحد	احتبدتك والشربيج الشريكين ويسوسن وحبين	° apana kanananananan atau sabaran 1000	an a
	the state of the s			-	y ny takanana ara ara ara ara ara ara ara ara ar
	ب بيتروني المراجع المنابي				e en vertitie e en en el esta e
- the second second		· · ···· · · · · · · · · ·			17-
					<u></u>
				4	· · · ·
	م الم الم الم الم الم الم الم الم الم ال	ter an and a graffic graffication of the state of the state a final case and a final case and a final case and	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	a tr <u>és</u> a se a	می مدینی مع
جەت	· · · · · · · · · · · ·	··· , ···		ale pro	
المعادية المحادثة محادثة محدثة محادثة محادث		، معجد معجد بالمشاكن المراجع المراجع			
ي سين بي اين د ان تي اين د ان تي اين اين اين اين اين اين اين اين اين اي		ا من معمد المريب التي والمعالية المريبة المريبة المريبة المريبة المريبة المريبة المريبة المريبة المريبة المريبة من من م	- water - a failur - a -	ار میسیر این از در - میشیر این ا	
ي د اي کې د پرې کې د ورو د د د د د د د د د د د مورو د د کې د موجو کې د د		الم	م معنی اور محمد و توزیر با الله و مرد ا مرد الله الله و توزیر با		بتعادي مراجع ومعرف
ೆ ಗ್ರಾಮಿಸಿ ಸಂಗ್ರೆ ಸ ಸ್ಟಾನ್ ಸಂಗ್ರೆ ಸ		and a second sec		یک بر این میں میں میں میکند داری میں ا	
serve and the server in the		a da anti-anti-anti-anti-anti-anti-anti-anti-			
	್ಯಾನ್ ಸೇರೆಯಲ್ ಆಡಿಯಲ್ಲಿ ಬ್ರೇಟ್ ಸ್ಟ್ರೀಯ್ ಸ್ಟ್ರಿಯಿಂದ ಸ್ಥಾನ ಸಂಸ್ಥೆ ಸಂಸ್ಥೆ ಸಿದ್ದಿ ಸ್ಥಾನ ಸ್ಥಾನ ಸ್ಥಾನ ಸ್ಥಾನ ಸ್ಥಿತ ಸ್ಥ ಸ್ಥಳ ಸಂಸ್ಥೆ ಸಿದ್ದ ಸ್ಥಳ ಸಂಸ್ಥೆ ಸಿದ್ದಿ ಸ್ಥಳ ಸಿದ್ದ ಸ್ಥಳ ಸಿದ್ದ ಸ್ಥಳ ಸಿದ್ದ ಸ್ಥಳ ಸಿದ್ದ ಸ್ಥಳ ಸಿದ್ದ ಸಿದ್ದ ಸ್ಥಳ ಸಿದ್ದ ಸಿದ ಸ್ಥಳ ಸಿದ್ದ ಸ್ಥಳ ಸಿದ್ದ ಸ್ಥಳ ಸಿದ್ದ ಸ	and a second second Second second second Second second		a na huningaya A a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a	a mangan yang sa
		المستعمدة أوكرك ستلاقي تشبيعه المستقلين المعيد المراجع من			ార్యంగా గోర్ చే
- State of the	e un service a sum service a	<ul> <li>The state of the s</li></ul>			francisco de la companya de la comp La companya de la comp
್ಯಾಗಿದ್ದೇ 7 ಕ್ಷೇತ್ರ ಸೆಪ್ಟ್ ಗೋಗಿಕೊಂಡಿಗಳು ಹಾಗೆ ಕ್ಷೇತ್ರ ಗೋಗಿಕೊಂಡಿಗೆ ಗೋಗಿಕೊಂಡುವುದು ಕ್ಷೇತ್ರ ಹಾಗೆ ಕ್ಷೇತ್ರ ಗೋಗಿಕೊಂಡಿಗೆ ಕ್ಷೇತ್ರಗಳು ಕ್ಷೇತ್ರಗಳು ಕ್	ang gan ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang	ر المحمود المراجع المحمود المحمو المحمود المحمود		3004 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
and the second sec				En alteration in the	
San Jan Barran and San		್ಲಾ ವಿಜ್ಞಾನವನ್ನು ಮಾಡಿದ್ದರೆ ಬಾಗಿಗಳು ಸಂಗಾಣಕ್ರಮ ಸಂಪಾ ಸಂಘಟನವರು ಮಾಡಿಗೆ ಮಾಡಿದ್ದರೆ ಸಾಹಿತ್ಯಾಗಳು ಸಂಪಾ		- ಇಲ್ಲಾರಿಕೆ ಸಂಪ್ರದಿಗಳು - ಜ್ಯಾತ್ರೋ ಸಂಪ್ರದಿಗಳು -	
and the second state of th			- Libraria	and a straight of the straight	10 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 − 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1
1.00	a series and a series of the s				
أأراء المتجا متراهين					a rair r
·					
	je samo stas poli			a dingan ing ing ing ing ing ing ing ing ing in	· . · ·
· · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
		REFERENC	F 10		
		<b>5.</b> 7		۰ ^۰ ۰	
		•			
		A.,		· .	

J. Rademakers, E. Koster, A.C.V. Jansen-van Hees, F. Willems

Medical abortion as an alternative to vacuum aspiration: first experiences with the "abortion pill" in The Netherlands.

The European Journal of Contraception & Reproductive Health Care 2001; 6: 185-191

- 81 -

The European Journal of Contraception and Reproductive Health Care 2001;6:185–191

# Medical abortion as an alternative to vacuum aspiration: first experiences with the 'abortion pill' in The Netherlands

## J. Rademakers, E. Koster, A. C. V. Jansen-van Hees* and F. Willems*

Netherlands Institute of Social Sexological Research (NISSO), Utrecht, *MR'70, Amsterdam; [†]Stimezo Den Haag, The Netherlands

ABSTRACT

Objective To establish to what extent medical abortion is desired as a supplement to existing care provision in The Netherlands and to establish the (dis)advantages of medical abortion versus surgical vacuum aspiration.

Methods The research project began in November 1999 and ended in September 2000. In two abortion clinics, the clients were asked to answer some questions about their expectations (before treatment) and their experiences with the treatment (at the post-treatment check-up). At the post-treatment check-up, the clients were also asked to fill out the Hopkin's Symptom Checklist (HSCL) which is an objective measure for the psychological and physical well-being of the clients during the previous week.

Results One hundred and thirty-one clients who chose medical abortion and 131 clients who chose surgical vacuum aspiration participated in the study. The failure rate was 3.3% for medical abortion and 1.5% for surgical vacuum aspiration. Of the medical abortion clients, 80.2% reported they were satisfied with this treatment and 68.1% said they would choose the same treatment procedure in the future. For vacuum aspiration, these figures were 92.9% and 83.2%, respectively.

The most reported advantage of medical abortion was the fact that it was a pill, and no surgical procedures were necessary. The most reported disadvantages of medical abortion were the amount of blood loss and insecurity concerning the time of abortion.

Conclusions Medical abortion seems to be a good supplement to the existing care provision in The Netherlands and should be offered in other clinics.

KEY WORDS Medical abortion, Comparative study

### INTRODUCTION

Mifepristone (Mifegyne®), also known as the 'abortion pill', was developed by the French professor, Emil-Etienne Baulicu, and was introduced onto the French market in 1989 by the pharmaceutical company, Roussel Uclaf, under the name of RU 486. Within the same year, the Medicines Evaluation Board

Correspondence: Dr J. Rademakers, Netherlands Institute of Social Sexological Research (NISSO), PO Box 9022, 3506 GA Utrecht, The Netherlands

MS 1189 Accepted 19-9-01

ORIGINAL ARTICLE

Medical abortion as alternative to vacuum aspiration

Rademakers et al.

in The Netherlands proposed a registration request for RU 486. Several months later, Roussel decided not to continue with further distribution of milepristone, due to pressure from the pro-life movement in several countries. Registration procedures in The Netherlands were also halted. In the years following, RU 486 was eventually introduced in a few countries: Great Britain in 1991 and Sweden in 1992¹. At the end of 1998, a request for milepristone was proposed to the European Community, and, since the end of 1999, milepristone has been available on the Dutch market.

Mifepristone is an antiprogestin, which can cause spontaneous abortion within the first weeks of pregnancy. In France, the use of mifepristone is limited to the period up to 49 days after the first day of the last menstrual period (in other words, until 3 weeks late) and, in Great Britain and Sweden, up to 63 days (5 weeks late). Mifepristone acts as a competitive blockade against progesterone (a hormone necessary for sustaining pregnancy) which, in turn, causes the uterine lining to shed. Simultaneously, mifepristone heightens the sensitivity of the myometrium, which is necessary for the contraction effects of prostaglandin during pregnancy. The substance itself does not work as a prostaglandin; it is combined with a small dose of a prostaglandin², for example, misoprostol. This is a synthetic form of prostaglandin E1 analog which is stable at room temperature. It can be administered orally (buccally or sublingually) and vaginally, and has a half-life of approximately 90 min. Misoprostol stimulates uterine contractions and has a softening effect on the cervix. Dangerous side-effects have not been reported and the gastrointestinal side-effects are relatively mild³. Therefore, in addition to the fact that it is less expensive than other prostaglandins, such as gemeprost, misoprostol is becoming more popular in gynecological procedures.

The procedure developed in France, and most used, is carried out as follows⁴⁻⁶. On the first day of treatment, the woman is administered 600 mg mifepristone (three tablets of 200 mg) in an abortion clinic or hospital. On the third day (48 h after the first administration), the woman returns to the clinic or hospital and is administered 400  $\mu$ g misoprostol (in the form of pills or vaginal suppositories). Thereafter, she stays 4–6 h in the clinic or hospital for observation. Most clients (approximately 61%) have an abortion within this timeperiod; others have an abortion at home within the following 24 h. Between days 10 and 12, the woman must return to the clinic or hospital for a follow-up. In the situation where an abortion has not taken place, vacuum aspiration is performed during the follow-up visit.

Some studies report giving a lower dosage of mifepristone⁷⁻⁹ or giving a second administration of 400  $\mu$ g. misoprostol^{5,10-12}. There are also publications which suggest that administration of misoprostol on day 2 or day 4 is equally successful¹³.

The reported successful cases using such procedures vary from 95.4% to 98.7% in France^{4-6,10,12}, 94.8% in the UK¹⁴, 77–92% in the United States¹⁵ and 97.3% in Austria¹¹. The success of cases seems to be dependent on the pregnancy duration: the mifepristone– misoprostol combination seems to be most suitable for the termination of pregnancies of a duration of < 49 days of amenorthea^{8,15}.

Dutch physicians do not have much experience with medical abortion. The organization of Dutch abortion services, compared to other western countries, is unique. In other countries, specialists in hospitals usually carry out the termination of pregnancies. The procedure is often carried out under general anesthesia with a pregnancy duration usually more than 7 weeks. It is also not unusual that the patient stays for one to several days in the hospital. Treatment in The Netherlands for termination of pregnancy is easily accessible and not unnecessarily medicalized. Almost 90% take place in abortion clinics where the vacuum aspiration procedure is carried out, usually under local anesthesia¹⁶. After a resting period, the woman is able to return home. The percentage of complications is extremely low (0.3%)¹⁶. The question to be answered is to what extent is medical abortion, or treatment with the abortion pill, a viable and desired supplement to the Dutch health-care system and what are the advantages and disadvantages of this method of pregnancy termination in comparison to the vacuum aspiration method? The Netherlands Institute for Social Sexological Research (NISSO), in collaboration with two abortion clinics (Stimezo Den Haag and MR'70 in Amsterdam), carried out research looking at the experiences with medical abortion from November 1999 until

Rademakers et al.

December 2000. Within this article, the results from this research will be discussed.

#### METHODS

The Medical Ethics Testing Committee approved the research protocol; however, 2s 2 consequence of the Medical-Scientific Research with People Act, the review committee put the following restriction into place. Women 2ged 16-17 years were only allowed to participate if they had written permission signed by both parents.

The research took place from November 1999 until December 2000. Participants were recruited from the two abortion clinics working in collaboration with this project. All the clients who met the research criteria and who qualified for the medical abortion treatment were included (Tables 1 and 2). These clients were then asked to choose between the medical and vacuum aspiration treatment (with or without intravenous sedation). Beforehand, they received neutral information about the different methods. The women who chose to participate in this project were asked prior to the treatment and at the follow-up visit to answer several questions. For example, participants were asked what their expectations were of the chosen method before and after treatment. The Hopkin's Symptom . Checklist (HSCL) was also used during the follow-up visit. This questionnaire was used as an objective measurement device for the psychological and physical well-being of the clients during the previous week. The HSCL uses three scales. The first scale measures the complaints concerning the psychoneurological state, the second scale measures physical health and the third scale measures psychological and physical health17.

The recruitment of participants was difficult. Approximately one-half of all Dutch abortion clients should, when looking at the pregnancy duration (< 49 days of amenorrhea) qualify for a medical abortion: approximately 10 000 women per year. Ultimately, 283 respondents from the two participating clinics were recruited. One hundred and thirty-one women chose medical treatment, 131 women chose vacuum aspiration with local anesthetic and 21 women chose vacuum aspiration with intravenous sedation. This last group is too small to include in further statistical analysis¹⁸.

The data from the questionnaires were calculated with help of an SPSS program. Differences between the groups were tested using Pearson's  $\chi^2$  test and the *t* test for independent samples (significance level at p < 0.05):

RESULTS

KESULI.

Characteristics of the participants

The average age of the patients opting for the abortion pill was 27.7 years, and 30.4 years for the vacuum aspiration clients. The paticipants as a whole were highly educated, with 73.9% of the abortion pill clients and 73.3% of the vacuum aspiration clients having a minimum of an intermediate-level secondary school diploma. The high level of education can be explained by a selection bias in the clinics and the fact that the majority of women with lower levels of education (immigrants) cannot speak Dutch fluently. Fluent Dutch was included as part of the criteria to participate in the research (Table 1).

#### Failure rate

During treatment with the abortion pill, eight women (6.1%) discontinued treatment. Of the 123 women who completed treatment with the abortion pill, four received additional vacuum aspiration during the follow-up visit. The failure rate of treatment with the abortion pill within this project was 3.3%. Reasons for vacuum aspiration during the follow-up visit were

Table 1 Inclusion criteria for the research

Singular pregnancy ≤ 49 days of amenorrhea, diagnosed
through an echogram
Fluent Dutch
Good health
AWBZ qualified
Aged 16 years or older
Prepared to follow visiting schedule
Prepared to sign "informed consent"
For clients of 16 or 17 years, permission from parents or
legal guardian required

AWBZ, national health insurance for special medical costs

The European Journal of Contraception and Reproductive Health Care

187

· · · · ·

.

.

positive pregnancy tests and continued blood loss (this can be the result of an incomplete abortion). Of the 131 women who-completed treatment with vacuum aspiration, two required treatment with an additional vacuum aspiration (1.5%).

## Motivation for chosen treatment and experiences of advantages and disadvantages

Most-of the clients agreed that the most important advantage of medical abortion was that no surgical procedure was required. This was mentioned by almost three-quarters of the-women who chose the abortion pill. Further, four out of ten women considered it to be a more natural method and approximately one-third considered it to be an advantage that

## Table 2 Exclusion criteria

Adrenal gland disease or use of corticosteroids With respect to misoprostol: severe bronchial asthma, glaucoma, mitral stenosis, sickle cell anemia, hypertension, prostaglandin allergy History of severe liver, lung or kidney disease Cardiovascular disease Coagulation disorder, use of anticoagulation medicine Intrauterine device insertion Insulin-dependent diabetic Unwilling to stop breastfeeding for 1 week Suspicion of pelvic inflammatory disease Extrauterine gravidity or threatened abortion 35 years or older + smokes more than 20 cigarettes per day + risk factors Unwilling or unable to give up the following medications: salicylic acid, anticoagulants, indomethacin,

prostaglandin inhibitors (naproxen, etc.), uterotonica, antipsychotics (haldol trilafon)

a doctor would not physically handle them. The fact that taking a series of pills does not involve surgery seemed to be the most frequently mentioned advantage following treatment (Table 3). Other significant advantages mentioned following this, treatment method were a greater feeling of control (t = -2.42, p = 0.02), being fully aware of what was happening (t = -2.95, p < 0.01) and it is a more natural experience (t = -2.47, p = < 0.05). Also, for some, it was a comforting idea that the abortion could take place at home (t = -3.76, p < 0.001). The most important disadvantage of medical abortion, mentioned prior to treatment, was that there was a greater chance of failure after treatment. Almost one-half of the women considered this to be a disadvantage. One-third considered it to be a disadvantage that they were required to come to the clinic several times. Onequarter of the clients mentioned the unreliability of the time-frame in which the abortion would take place and the fact that there could be more blood loss (Table 4). Blood loss was mentioned significantly more after treatment (t = 3.32, p = 0.001). The amount of blood loss is, therefore, disappointing when compared to what was initially expected. The fact that medical treatment had a greater failure rate than vacuum aspiration was actually mentioned less after treatment (t = 2.65, p = 0.01). This initial perceived disadvantage was mentioned less after a successful treatment.

Women who chose vacuum aspiration mentioned, both prior and following treatment, that the short procedure time and the fact that a direct result was obtained were the most important advantages (Table 5). Pain was mentioned as the most important disadvantage prior to treatment (65.4%) and pain was again mentioned as the most important disadvantage

Table 3 Perce	ived advantages o	f the abortion	pill, prio	r to and	following	treatment
---------------	-------------------	----------------	------------	----------	-----------	-----------

	Before treatment		After treatment	
	n	%	n	%
Pill, no surgical intervention	93	72.7	71	80.7
It is a more 'natural' way to terminate a pregnancy	53	41.4	46	52.3
No doctors touching my body	39	30.5	33	37.5
Conscious experience	17	13.3	20	22.7
Self-control	15	11.7	21	23.9
Chance that abortion will happen at home, in own environment, is high	14	10.9	19	21.6

Rademakers et al.

#### Table 4. Perceived disadvantages of the abortion pill, prior to and following treatment

· · · · · · ·	Beforë treatment		After trea	atment	
	п	%		.%	
Slightly-larger chance of failure in treatment	56	45.5	- 25	28.1	
Necessary to come back to the clinic	43	35.0	25	28.1	
Not sure when abortion will take place	32 -	- 26,0	27	30.3	
More blood loss (in comparison to vacuum	30	24.4	35 -	. 39.3	
No disadvantages/no negative experiences	17 2.	13.8		18.0	
Chance that abortion will take place at home is high	4	3.3	4	4.5	

Table 5 Perceived advantages of vacuum aspiration (under local anesthetic), prior to and following treatment

	Before	treatment 🙃 🔤	After t	ter treatment	
	n	%		%	
Short treatment time	79	62.2	96	85.0	
Direct result	72	56.7	72	63.7	
Smaller chance of failure	41	32.2	55	48.7	
Small chance of or no problems with side effects such as nausea and diarrhea	27	21.3	25	22.1	
Conscious experience	17	13.4	29	25.7	

Table 6 Perceived disadvantages of vacuum aspiration (under local anesthetic), prior to and following treatment

	Before treatment		After treatment		
	n	%	'n	%	
Pain	85	65.4	64	57.1	
Conscious experience	41	31.5	23	20.5	
Position on examination table	28	21.5	19	17.0	
Surgical intervention	27	20.8	9	8.0	
No disadvantages/no negative experiences	13	10.0	21	18.8	

following treatment (Table 6). However, pain was mentioned less frequently as a disadvantage following the procedure than prior to it (t = -1.96, p < 0.05), as was the idea of a surgical procedure (t = 2.09, p < 0.05) and the fact that it is a conscious experience (t = 3.59, p < 0.001), following the procedure than prior to the procedure. This means that the actual procedure exceeded prior expectations.

## Information sources

Almost half (46.0%) of the clients who chose medical treatment had chosen the participating abortion clinics

especially because such a treatment was available. They had made their choice for this treatment based on information they had received from the media. Family practitioners did not play any role.

Through the research, it became clear that the clients did not always receive the correct information concerning medical treatment, resulting in them coming to the clinic with false expectations. During the explanation of the differences between the two methods at the clinic, it became clear that the medical treatment consisted of taking pills and that they would be required to come back to the clinic several times.

The European Journal of Contraception and Reproductive Health Care

189

Rademakers et al.

- 11

#### Physical and psychological effects

The abortion pill clients had higher scores especially on the somatic scale: 55.7% of the women scored higher than average. This high score can probably be explained by the side-effects that were experienced from the medication. Examples on this scale include headaches and lower back pain. The differences between the abortion pill and vacuum aspiration clients are significant on the third scale, the total scale, which measures both the psychological and the physical complaints.

## Satisfaction rate

Of the women who chose the abortion pill, 80.2% were satisfied with the treatment and 68.1% would opt for this method again, if necessary. With vacuum aspiration, the numbers were, respectively, 92.9% and 83.2% (Tables 7 and 8).

## DISCUSSION

Through the research it is evident that the clients regard medical abortion as a positive addition to Dutch public health services. It is clear that the women in both groups were satisfied with the choices they made for treatment. The research encouraged other abortion clinics to start offering medical abortion as well:

Although the abortion pill failure rate (where additional vacuum aspiration was necessary) is higher than with vacuum aspiration, both failure rates (3.3% for medical abortion and 1.5% for vacuum aspiration). are acceptable.

The research does not offer any insight into the use of medical abortion treatment for adolescent girls (under 18 years) and women with lower levels of education, due to the restrictions put in place by the Medical Ethics Testing Committee. Additional insights into the experiences of these groups with the abortion pill could lead to further tightening of criteria used in the selection and screening of clients for the

Table 7 Scale of satisfaction following medical abortion or vacuum aspiration

· ·	Medica	al abortion	Vacuum	aspiration
_	n	%	л	%
0. Stopped	8	8.3		
1. Absolutely not satisfied	4	4.2	3	2.7
2. Slightly satisfied	7	7.3	5	4.4
3. Satisfied	34	35.4	70	61.9
<ol> <li>Very satisfied</li> </ol>	17	17.7	17	15.0
5. Very much satisfied	26	27.1	18	15.9
Total	96	100.0	113	100.0

#### Table 8 Number of patients who would choose the same treatment again

	Medical abortion		Vacuum	aspiration
	n	%	n	%
0. Stopped	8	8.5	_	
1. No, absolutely not	5	5.3	. 3	2.7
2. No, I don't think so	5	5.3	7	6.2
3. I don't know	12	12.8	9	8.0
4. Yes, I think so	18	19.1	45	39.8
5. Yes, absolutely	46	48.9	49	43.4
Total	94	100.0	113	100.0

The European Journal of Contraception and Reproductive Health Care

190

FDACDER000378

Rademakers et al.

abortion pill, which could lead to formulating standards for responsible qualitative services for thesegroups.

In relation to the treatment protocol, further research is necessary to look at the possibilities of lower doses of milepristone and the influences of that on the efficacy of the treatment. At the moment, milepristone is only registered in The Netherlands as a method for pregnancy termination. In low doses of 10 mg, mifepristone can also be used as a 'late' morning after pill¹⁹⁻²¹. Considering the positive experiences in other countries, it is desirable to research other possibilities for the use of mifepristone in The Netherlands.

## REFERENCES

....

- 1. Fiala C. Medical abortion: where we are in Europe. Entire Notic 2000;47-8:16-17
- 2. Registrationicuws. Gebu prikbord 1999;33;113
- WHO. Medical Methods for Termination of Pregnancy. Technical Report Series 871. Geneva: World Health Organization, 1997
- Aubeny E. Medical abortion early reports. Entre Nous 1994;26–7:11–12
- Aubeny E, Peyron R., Turpin C, et al. Termination of early pregnancy (up to 63 days of amenorthea) with mifepristone and increasing doses of misoprostol. Int J Fertil Menopause Stud 1995:40(Suppl 2):85-91
- Aubeny E. Methods of abortion in Europe during the first trimester of pregnancy. Eur J Contracept Reprod Health Care 1997;2:75-80
- Christin-Maitre S, Bouchard P, Spitz IM. Medical termination of pregnancy. N Engl J Med 2000;342: 946-56
- Kahn JG, Becker BJ, MacIsaa L, et al. The efficacy of medical abortion. A meta-analysis. Contraception 2000; 61:29-40
- 9. Trussel J, Ellertson C. Estimating the efficacy of medical abortion. *Contraception* 1999;60:119-35
- Peyron R, Aubeny E, Targosz V, et al. Early termination of pregnancy with mifepristone and the orally active prostaglandin misoprostol. N Engl J Med 1993; 328:1509-13
- Safar P, Fiala C. Schwangerschafstabbruch mit Mifepriston und Misoprostol in Österreich. Erste Erfahrungen. Frauenarzt 2000;41:325-30
- Silvestre L. Dubois C. Renault M. et al. Voluntary interruption of pregnancy with mifepristone (RU 486)

and a prostaglandin analogue. N Engl J Med 1990;322: 645-53

- Schaff EA, Fielding SL, Westhoff C, et al. Vaginal misoprostol administered 1, 2 or 3 days after mifepristone for early medical abortion. J Am Med Assoc 2000;284:1948-53
- Urquhart D, Templeton A, Shinewi F, et al. The efficacy and tolerance of mifepristone and prostaglandin in termination of pregnancy of less than 63 days gestation, UK multicentric study – final results. Contraception 1997;55:1-5
- Spitz IM, Bardin WC, Benton L, et al. Early pregnancy termination with mifepristone and misoprostol in the United States. N Engl J Med 1998;338:1241-7
- 16. Rademakers J. Abortus in Nederland 1991-1992. Utrecht: Stimezo Nederland, 1995
- Luteijn F, Hamel LF, Bouwman TK, et al. HSCL Hopkins Symptom Checklist, handleiding. Lisse: Swets & Zeitlinger, 1984
- Cohen J. Statistical power analysis for the behavioral sciences. New York: Academic Press, 1977
- Glasier A, Thong KJ, Dewar M, et al. Mifepristone (RU 486) compared with high-dose estrogen and progestogen for emergency postcoital contraception. N Engl J Med 1992;327:1041-4
- Ashok PW, Wagaarachchi PT, Flett GM, et al. Mifepristone as a late post-coital contraceptive. Hum Reprod 2001;16:72-5
- WHO Task Force on Postovulatory Methods of Fertility Regulation. Comparison of three single doses of mifepristone as emergency contraception: a randomised trial. Lancet 1999;353:697-702

The European Journal of Contraception and Reproductive Health Care

191

## EXELGYN Medical Department via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc. Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 – from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

APPENDIX 11.6.

UPDATED LISTING ON ONGOING PREGNANCIES FROM 1987 TO 2002

#### Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

**EXELGYN Medical Department** 

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

	MIF ALONE	MIF+ MIS	MIF+ SUL	MIF+ UNK	MIF+ PG	MIF+ GEM	TOTAL
Normal Babies	14	15	2	4	2	5	42
Malformation At Term	0	0	0	0	0	3	3
MALF/ TToP	1	1	0	0	0	5	7
Delayed spont. Abortion	5	1	0	0	0	0	6
TToP UNK	4	6	0	0	2	0	12
TToP Normal Foetus	.2	14	1	1	1	0	19
UNK/USNL	3	4	0	2	3	0	12
UNK	22	16	1	5	1	0	45
TOTAL	51	57	4	12	9	13	146

Update on June 30, 2002

LEGENDS

MIF= mifepristone MIS= misoprostol SUL= sulprostone GEM= gemeprost PG= prostaglandin (unspecified) UNK= unknown TToP= Therapeutic Termination of Pregnancy USNL= Ultrasound Normal (at second or third trimester) Delayed Spont. Abortion= Delayed Spontaneous Abortion MALF/TToP= Malformation with Therapeutic Termination of Pregnancy

## Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

## EXELGYN Medical Department

. . . .

-

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report nº13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

		• • • •	ONGOIN	IG PR	EGN	ANGIE	<u>-S</u>		
1	N°	Case Number	Date MIF or week of Am.	PG	TERM	DOSE	CAT	TYPE	OUTCOME
1		PMIF0001.87FR\$	^{(b) (6)} 5 w	NO		400	TTOPM	Sirenomelia,*	
2	GI	PMIF0002.88FR\$ -	6 w	SUL		600	TTOP.		NL Foetus
3	2	PMIF0001.89FR	7w	YES		600	TTOP	1**	NL Foetus, Male
-4	3	-PMIF0002.89FR-	the set of practic	NO ·	TERM	600	NL		Female
5	5	PMIF0004.90FR		NO		600	TTOP	488	NL Foetus
6	8 -	PMIF0003.89FR\$	End 1989, 6-7 w	NO,	TERM	400	NL	Published,Pons,*,***	Male
7		PMIF0001.90UK£	8w	NO.	TERM	600	NL		Male
- 8		PMIF0002.90UK£	8w	NO	TERM	600	NL	e	Male
9		PMIF0003.90UK£	9w •	NO	TERM	600	NL_		Female
10	7	PMIF0005.90FR	1990	NO	-	600	TTOP	At 2 months, U	NL Foetus
11	9	PMIF0006.90FR	^{(b) (6)} -6 w	SUL		600	U	*, ***, SA?	
12	10	PMIF0007.91FR	· ·	SUL	TERM	600	NL	1ª, 0x .	Male
13	•	MIF0029.91FR/OS	U	υ	TERM	600	NL	U .	
14	[	MIF0030.91FR/OS	U	Ū		600	U	.***	NL 2 nd semester
15	11	PMIF0008.91FR	1991	NO	TERM	600	NL		
16	12	PMIF0009_92FR/RA	U	NO		600	U	1444	NL 2 nd semester
17	13	PMIF0004.92FR\$	CT;470A	NO		600	U	1444	
18	14	PMIF0010.92FR	^{(b) (6)} 7 w, Trinordiol	SUL	TERM	600	NL	•	Female
19		PMIF0002.93UK	8 w	YES		600	U	***	NL 2 nd semester
20	15	PMIF0011.92FR/RA	(b) (6), 5 w	YES		600	TTOP	1	7,5
21	16	PMIF0012.93FR	U	MIS		600	TTOP		NL Foetus
22	17	PMIF0013.93FR/RA	6/7 w a	MIS		600	U	Lost to FU	NL 2 nd semester
23	18	PMIF0014.93FR	U	NO		600	TTOP	]***	
24	19	PMIF0015.93FR	^{(b) (6)} 7 w 2 d	MIS		600	U		
25		PMIF0003.93UK	U	GEM	TERM.	600	ABN	Bilateral talipes, *	
26	20	PMIF0016.93FR/RA	(b) (6) vomits) Twice 3	NO		1200	U	lu -	
27	21	PMIF0017.93FR	1993	MIS		600	υ	Ů	
28	22	PMIF0018.93FR	U	MIS	TERM	600	NL	1	
29	23	MIF/PG0024.93FR	^{(b) (6)} , 5 w	NO		600	SA		Bled since MIF, 5 m
30	24	MIF/PG0026.93FR	(b) (6) at 8 w	MIS		600	SA		
31	25 .	MIF0001.94FR\$	At 7 w of am	MIS		600	U	Unsure at start	
32		MIF0001.94UK	U	NO		600	U ,	1U	-
33	26	MIF/PG9011.93UKE	^{(b) (6)} 9 w 2 d	GEM	TERM	600	ABN	Finger nail defect(3),	Oral Contraceptive
34		MIF/PG0001.93SE	48 d	GEM	TERM	600	NL	Premature birth/cesarean	DMPA, Male
35	27	MIF0003.94FR	U	YES	TERM	600	NL		Male
36	28	MIF0004.94FR	(b) (6)	YES		600	U	**, US NI, Lost to FU	NL 2 nd semester
37	29	MIF0005.94FR	6,5 w of a	U	1	600	U	U	NL 2 nd semester
38		MIF0005.94.UK	U	GEM	TERM	600	NL	U.	· · · ·
39	30	MIF/PG0029.93FR	^{(b) (6)} 6 w of am	MIS	TERM		NL	U	Male
40	31	MIF0009.94FR		MIS		600	TTOP	***	NL Foetus, 25 w
41	32	MIF0013.94FR	à 52 d of am.	NO		200	U	*	

...

• •

## EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

					LON				
, 1	N°,	Case Number	Date MIF or week of Am.	PG'	TERM	DOSE	CAT	TYPE	OUTCOME
42	33	MIF0017.94FR	7,5 w of am	MIS		600	TTOP	Unsure	Foetus
43	- 34	MIF0021.94FR	7 w of am	MIS	TERM	600	NL	*	Female
44	-35	MIF0022.94FR\$	^{(b) (6)} 6 w	MIS	TERM	600	NL	At 3 Mths (Hepatitis)	Other medicat,
45	36	MIF0003.95FR	1995	NO		600	TTOP		Fem
46		MIF0003.95UK£	8 w of pregnancy	GEM -		- 600	TTOPM	**, Talipes Equinovares	OC .
47	- 37	MIF0011.95FR	U				U	U	
48_	38	MIF0005.95FR	(b) (6)	NO	· · · · ·	600	-U .	*	
49	40	MIF0008.95FR	U	MIS		600	TTOP	***	NL Foetus, Mal
50	41	MIF0009.95FR	(b) (6), 7 w, in fact 11 w	GEM	TERM	600	NL .	*?	
51	42	MIF0012.95FR/RA-	7 w of am	YES	-		TTOP	t is the second	
52	43	MIF0013.95FR	(b) (6)	MIS		600	TTOP	-U -	
53	44	MIF0015.95FR	6 w	MIS	TERM	· · 600	NL	U	Male
54	45	MIF0019.95FR/RA	mic (b) (6)	NO	TERM	600	NL	***	
55	46	MIF0021.95FR	Beginning (b) (6) 5 w of	MIS	TERM	600	NL :	*	Female
56	47	MIF0004.96UK	a. (b) (6) 7 w pregnancy	GEM		600	тторм	Acheiria/talipes	Mandibula hypo
57	48	MIF0005.96FR	Unk, 5.5 w of am	MIS		600	U	• ***	NL 2 nd semeste
58	49	MIF0007.96FR/RA	(b) (6)	MIS		600	U	***	
59	50	MIF0003.96SE		GEM		600	тторм	Anencephaly, talipes	
60	51	MIE0001 97EB	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	NO		600		eq	Fomale
61		199500383RU(FR)	55 d of am	MIS		600	TOP	11	NIL Egetue
62	52	199710066RDF	6/7 w of am	NO		600	TOP		THE POELDS
63	53	199710097RDF	(Aw of pred)	VES			NI	+	
64	55	100710270005		NO		003		·	
65	55	100710278DDE	[ 11 w			600	TTOP	•	MI Eastus
66	50	100710202DDE	1107.00	1		600			INC FOELDS
67	57	1997 10303RDF	6	110		600	TTOP		M. Fastus
10	51	MIE0004 079E	0w	CEU2	TEDM	600		Heart malfametion *	NL FOELDS
60	50	S07000411//MIE4	67	GEM	TERM	200	TTOPH	Gershellum etrenbu	
70	09	59700010K/WIF1	6-7 W		TEDM	200	NU	Cerebellum alrophy,	
70	01	590002F/WIF1	0w	MIS	TEDM	200	NL.	**	Malo M
72		S080001000/101		MIS	1 ERM	200		***	INDIE NL
72		590004F/WIF1	/ W	MIS		6002		***	US INL at 16 W
73		5900005F/WIF1	6-7 W			0001			
75		590009F/MIF1	0 W	CEM	TERM	200	N	+++	
76	<u> </u>	5900010K/MIF1	l W	GEW		200			INL IVIAIE
70	· ·			ivii o	· ·	200	110P		anomaly
77		S980013F/MIF1	14.5 w	3	?	?	NL	?	NL Male
78	L	S980014F/MIF1	8 w	?	?	?	NL	?	Female NL
79	ļ	S980015F/MIF1	16 w + 2 d	?	?	?	NL	?	NL
80		S980016F/MIF1	9w+3d	MIS		400	NL	?	NL at 31 w
81		S980017UK/MIF1	8-9 w	GEM		200		***, Hydroceph, cleft P	Cyclopia, Talipes
-		1		1				1	

## Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

## **EXELGYN Medical Department**

.

4

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

....

		_	-	ONGOI	NG PF	REGN	ANCI	ES		
1	1.	N°	Case Number	Date MIF or week of Am.	PG	TERM	DOSE	CAT	TYPE	OUTCOME
	- 82	<u> </u>	S980018FR/MIF1	6 w	MIS	TERM	600	NL I		Male NI
	83		S980020UK/MIF1	13 w	NO	TERM	600	NL		NI delivery
			\$990004F/MIE1	7.5 w	MIS	TERM	600	NL	***	Male MI
	85			6.5 w	MIS		600	TTOP	+++ US Viable at 14 w	No evam
¥	- 86		\$990006UK/MIF1	14 w	NO	.SA	200	SA	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	SA
	87		S990009UK/MIF1	8w	NO		200	NL	•	Male NI
	- 88	-	\$990013UK/MIF1		NO		200		•	
	89		\$990007F/MIE1	-8 w am.	MIS	:			•	
·····	90		\$990008F/MIE1	7 w	MIS			<u>·</u>		ļ
	91		\$990015E/MIE1	6 w of preonancy	NO	1.1	600		*2 US Ni at 17 w	
Ę	02		S990016F/MIE1	8 w	NO		600		* US NI	
<del>.</del>	03	<u> </u>	\$990019UK/MIE1	8 w am	MIS		200		* US Vishla preg	
	- 04		500002011//MIE1	Swe down am	MIG	ļ	200		+++	
	- 05	<u> </u>	\$9900200H/MIF1	7 w om	ANC		200	·		Ni male baby
	. 95	<u> </u>	59900210K/MIF1	7 w am.	MIS DO	·			45	NI baby
	90		- 5990022F7WHF1	7 wam.	NO			TTOP		
	31	ļ	59900230K/MIF1	<b>0</b>	NO	<u> </u>		TIOP	, intrautenne death	
	98		59900240R/MIP1	8 w preg.	NO		200		delaved SA	
	99		\$990025UK/MIF1	8 w Preg	MIS		200			
	100	<u> </u>	S990026UK/MIF1	21 w preg.	NO		200	i	•	
	101	1-	S990027UK/MIF1	8 w am	MIS	1	600	1		
	102	1	S990028UK/MIF1	15 w am	NO		200	<u>í</u>	*	
	103		S990029UK/MIF1	8 w am.	NO		200		•	
	104		S990031UK/MIF1	21 w preg	NO			TTOP	•	
	105		S990032UK/MIF1	Mosaic .	NO		600		· · · · ·	Left multicystic kidney
	106		S990035UK/MIF1\$	13-21 w	NO		200		•	NL baby
	107		S990036UK/MIF1\$	13-21 w	NO		200		*	NL baby
	108		S2000001F/MIF1	8 w preg.	NÖ	TERM	600	NL	Premature birth	NL Male
	109		S2000002F/MIF1	4-5 w preg;	MIS		600	TTOP	At 14 w, U	U
	110		S2000005F/MIF1	U	MIS		600	TOP	At 12 w	NL Foetus
	111		S2000009UK/MIF1	20 w preg.	NO		600	SA	•	SA
	112		S20000010UK/MIF1	17-18 w preg.	?		200	1	•	U
	113		S20000011F/MIF1	6-7 w preg.	MIS	· ·	600	TOP	At 11 w	U
	114		S20000012UK/MIF1	9 w preg.	?		200		•	U.
	115		S20000016F/MIF1	7 w preg	NO		600	TOP		U
	116		S20000018UK/MIF1	mid-tremester	?	?	?	?	?	U
	117		S20000019UK/MIF1	6 w preg	NO		200	SA	At 7 w	SA
	118		S20000020UK/MIF1	15 w preg	?		600		•	U
	119		S20000021UK/MIF1	17 w preg	?		200	*****	*	U
	120	1	S20000022UK/MIF1	6-7 w preg	MIS		200	?	?	U
	121	1	S20000023UK/MIF1	12 w preg	NO		200	1	•	U
	122	1	S20000024S/MIF1	8-9 w preg	GEM	1	600	TERM 1		NL baby

#### Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

## EXELGYN Medical Department

Mifepristone - Periodic Safety Update Report n°13 - from June 1st, 2001 to May 31st, 2002

								İ	· · ·	
		-	ONGOIN	<u>G PF</u>	REGN	ANCI	<u>ES</u>			
1	N°	Case Number	Date MIF or week of Am.	PG	TERM	DOSE	CAT	Ī	TYPE	OUTCOME
123	-	S20000025F/MIF1	?	NO	TERM	600	NL.	İ		NL Baby
124	-	S20000026F/MIF1	5 w preg	MIS		600.		F	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	U
125	·	S20000027F/MIF1	6 w preg	NO		600				U
126		S20000028D/MIF1	6 w preg	MIS .		600-	Ta San San	F	*	U .
127		S20000027F/MIF1	6 w preg	MIS	TERM	600	NL _	1		NL Baby
128		S20010003F/MIF1	Date of am (b) (6)	MIS	TERM	-600-	NL -		Delivery by Caesarean section (b) (6)	-NL baby boy
129		S20010012UK/MIF1	-15 weeks of gestation	NO.	- 5.9.	200_			· •	. :
130	···	S20010013UK/MIF1	10 weeks gestation	MIS		200				1
131		S20010014UK/MIF1	First trimester of pregnancy	PG		200			1 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
132	·	S20010015UK/MIF1	8 weeks of gestation	MIS		200		·	• •	<u>F</u>
133		S20010016UK/MIF1	First trimester of pregnancy	NO		200			•	
134		S20010017UK/MIF1	First trimester of pregnancy	MIS		200	SA		At 22 weeks	NL
135		S2001023D/MIF1	First trimester of pregnancy	MIS		600	TOP		?	U
136	1	S2001024D/MIF1	6 weeks of gestation	MIS		600	TOP		?	U
1,37	1	S2001025F/MIF1	7 weeks of gestation	MIS	[	600	TOP		At 9 weeks	U
138		S2001026F/MIF1	First trimester of pregnancy	MIS		600	TOP		?	U
139	1	S2001027F/MIF1	7 weeks of gestation	MIS		600	TOP	1	At 9 weeks	U
140		S2001028F/MIF1	6 weeks of gestation	MIS		600	TOP		At 10 weeks	U
141		S2001029F/MIF1	7 weeks of gestation	MIS		600	TOP		At 9 weeks	U
142		S2001031UK/MIF1	17 weeks of gestation	NO		200	1			U
143	1	S2001032UK/MIF1	First trimester of pregnancy	MIS		200	1		h <del>an</del>	U
144		S2001033UK/MIF1	18 weeks of gestation	NO		600	i			U
145		S2001034UK/MIF1	9 weeks of gestation	NO		200	i	1		U
146		S2001035UK/MIF1	10 weeks of gestation	MIS		200		-		U

## Summary table of ongoing pregnancies

Abbreviations: ABN (Abnormality at term), Am or ame (amenorrhea), Cat (Category), GEM (Gemeprost), MIF (Mifepristone), MIS (Misoprostol), NL (Normal), OC (Oral contraceptive). OUT (Outcome), PG (Prostaglandins), SA (Spontaneous abortion), SUL (Sulprotone), TToP (Therapeutic Termination of Pregnancy), TToPM (Therapeutic Termination of Pregnancy with Malformation), U or UNK (Unknown), W (weeks), * (changed her mind), ** (diagnosis error), *** (did not return), TOP (Surgical early termination of pregnancy). · · · .

ڊ جين

## FDACDER000385

## Population Council/Danco Laboratories, LLC Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg

. '

.

ļ

# ATTACHMENT 3

FDACDER000386

Page 1 of 2

#### Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

, ...

(b) (4),	(b) (6)	)	
		<u>И.D.</u>	
	-		

(b) (4), (b) (6)

To: Tuesday, April 23, 2002 1:08 PM Sent: Subject: AE report

(b) (4), (b) (6)

April 23, 2002

Danco Laboratories

From:

Dear

The following is a report of an infection that occurred with an incomplete --abortion following treatment with mifepristone and misoprostol. in in in its second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second sec

The patient was a 24 yo G4P2Tab1 black female at 60 days' gestation who received mifepristone 200 mg followed 6 hours later by misoprostol 800 mcg ^{(b) (6)}in an IRB-approved study protocol. She presented for on follow-up 24 hours after misoprostol and was noted, by transvaginal ultrasound examination, to have expelled the gestational sac. Her endometrial lining was 19.2 mm. She was scheduled as per the protocol for a follow-up evaluation on

^{(b) (6)}) with complaints of She called our office on study day 5 ( malodorous vaginal discharge. She was seen that day (on the weekend) in our office by a study investigator. Her exam revealed malodorus necrotic tissue in the cervical os and her uterus was 8 weeks size and non-tender. Her bleeding was scant at that time. She was afebrile. Transvaginal ultrasound examination failed to demonstrate an easily identifiable endometrial stripe. The pregnancy tissue was removed from the cervical os using ring forceps and a suction aspiration using MVA and a 7 mm cannula was performed. Tissue was obtained which was sent for pathologic examination. After the aspiration, the patient was observed for 30 minutes and had an uneventful immediate post-operative course. She was discharged with doxycycline 100 mg bid and flagyl 500 mg bid for 7 days. She was instructed to keep her scheduled follow-up visit.

The final pathology report demonstrated necrotic villi with chronic and acute inflammation, numerous colonies of coccoid bacteria were present.

She did not return for her visit as scheduled or otherwise despite numerous phone calls and registered letters. She finally called our office back on ^{(b) (6)} stating she was pregnant again and wanted to schedule an appointment for a medical abortion. She never showed for that appointment.

As this was not a serious adverse event, the infection was not reported to

4/24/2002

,

,

Please let me know if you need any further information.	th	e IRB.													
	}.p]	ease let-n	ne knov	w if you ne	ed an	v furth	ier ir	orma	tion						
	. ,	-		, ir you ne		,				·		-		1	na ann an
			11.400 V			(b) (4)	), (b) (6)			*					·
										·· · · ·	·				
	* -								,		- 	· · · · · ·			
4/24/2002	112								· · ·			-	· • • •		
4/24/2002								144 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1.	ىتى باليىد يىشە ئىر		-	·			
			• -		· -		2 . · ·		· · · ·	· ·	-				· · · · ·
							· · · ·			· ··· ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	+		····	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
		1997 - 1997 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 -		بری درمر ۲۰۰۱ کی . مر <u>د مارسون</u> ۲۰۰۱ م	· · · -		ن میدد - ۲۰۰	1923 - 24 1940 - 1 1940 - 1	n sean dag an Tin Sing Sing Sing Sing Sing Sing Sing Si		n 15 e ars n n			ng sa san Ng sa san	ي معد ملي المراجع " مراجع المرجع ال
	·····		•	,	•		-, , , ,	V.T.		······································	··			<u> </u>	-
4/24/2002	**		· ·		4 ·		1		in internet		n statelit La fact	*	- <u>1</u> -1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-		
		•		; <u>.</u>				·	*	مسب	-	-		-	
4/24/2002			· · · ·	· · · · ·		e ba	· .v * ·	·: ·· ··				1.			· · · ·
4/24/2002					-			.i							· · · _ · ·
4/24/2002										÷					
4/24/2002						• •		1							
4/24/2012															
4/24/2002															
4/24/2002															
4/24/2002															
4/24/2002															
4/24/2002															
4/24/2002															
4/24/2002															
4/24/2002															
4/24/2002													~		
4/24/2002															
4/24/2002															
4/24/2002															
4/24/2002												1			
4/24/2002															
4/24/2002															
4/24/2002															
4/24/2002															
4/24/2002															
4/24/2002															
												-		4/24/200	)2

.

Page 1 of 2

## , Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

ĸ

2

.

1

(b) (4), (b) (6)

· 1	2* · · ·	· · · · ·
	^{(b) (4), (b) (6)} <b>M.D.</b>	(b) (4), (b) (6)
÷.,		a a sugar a second
	From:	The second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second se
	Sent: Monday, May 13, 2002 4:41 PM	
- 3 - 1 - 1	Subject: AE report	
· · · · ·	May 13 2002	Y
ar state	(b) (4), (b) (6)	
ار ده وي. بينسيرين	Danco Laboratories	an an an an an an an an an an an an an a
	Danco Lavoratorics	2 former annuales, s'ar a faraire ann an an ann an ann an Statistic ann an 1997 - Statistic ann an Anna ann an Anna ann an Anna 2000 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1 1997 - Natistic Anna ann an Anna ann an Anna ann an Anna 2000 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997
್ಷ ಸ್ಪರ್ಧಿಕರು ಸ್ಪರ್ಧಿಕರು ಸ್ವಾಗ್ಗಳು ಸ್ಪಾರ್ಟ್ಗಳು	(b) (4), (b) (6).	and an and a second second second second second second second second second second second second second second Second second br>Second second br>Second second br>Second second se
	Dear	
	-The following is a report of an integration that occurred with an incomplete	n na han an
	abortion following dealinent with antepristone and misoprositor.	
ر ما المرد	The patient was a 19 yo G1P0 white female with IDDM at 36 days' gestation	
- 1	who received mifepristone 200 mg on ^{(b) (6)} o be followed 24 hour	S and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second s
2	later by misoprostol 800 mcg in an IRB-approved study protocol. She	
	of a fever of 101.9 with chills and sweats. She had normal amounts of	
1	bleeding and cramping after insertion of the misoprostol and was having	
, ,	light bleeding at the time of her visit. On examination, hertemperature was	<i>.</i> ,
1	98.8 degrees and her uterus and adnexa were non-tender. Transvaginal	
1	restational sac. Given her fever and ultrasound findings a a suction	
	aspiration using MVA and an 8 mm cannula was performed. Tissue was ob	tained
	which was sent for pathologic examination. After the aspiration, the patient	
	was observed for 30 minutes and had an uneventful immediate post-operativ	
1	course. She was discharged with ciprofloxacin 500 mg bid and flagyl 500 m	
	She returned as per the protocol for a follow-up evaluation on (b) (6)	
	and had no complaints at that time.	
	No acute inflammation or pregnancy tissue was evident. Thus, the diagnosi	
-1	of infection and incomplete abortion was made totally on clinical grounds at	
· .	the time of the patient's visit.	
	As uns was not a serious adverse event, the infection was not reported to the IRB	
	Please let me know if you need any further information.	

SC

5/13/2002

rage 1 Of 2

	rage 1 of 2
Obtained via FOIA by Judi	cial Watch, Inc.
(b) (4), (b) (6)	
IVI. D.	
(b) (4), (b) (f	
To:	
Sent: Wednesday, June 12, 2002-11:01 AM	
Subject: AE report	
fime-FZ 2002	
(b) (4), (b) (6)	
an an an an an an an an an an an an an a	
> Danco Laboratories	مند الا المحمون المراجع المحمول المحمول المراجع و من المحمول المحمول المحمول المحمول المحمول المحمول المحمول ال المحمول المحمول br>المحمول المحمول
> Dear	
a de la comparación de la comparación de la comparación de la comparación de la comparación de la comparación d La comparación de la c La comparación de la c	
> The following is a report of an infection that occurred	with an incomplete
abornon ronowing treatment with intreprisione and mi	
> The nation was a 27 vo GSP2Tah ISah I black female	with IDDM at ST dave
> gestation who received miterristone 200 mg on	^{(b) (6)} fo be
> followed 6-8 hours fater by misoprostol 800 mcg in an	IKB-approved study
> protocof. She presented on (6) for a follow-u	up examination as per
> the study protocol. The ultrasound examination revea	aled a moderate
> amount of intrauterine clot (endometrial lining $17 \text{ mm}$	) and no gestational
> sac. No further treatment was indicated at this time an	d she returned for
> another scheduled follow-up on $(6)$ . The parameters is the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the parameters of the p	articipant stated she
> had intercourse after her first follow-up visit with a co	ndom. She had
> noted severe back pain and passage of large clots in th	e preceding two
> days. The ultrasound examination revealed a large am	ount of clot and
> blood in the uterine cavity. She was alebrile, her uteri	is was non-tender,
> and no cervical motion tenderness was present.	
Because of the unusual ultrasound findings, the subject y	was asked to return
for another follow-up visit on ^{(b) (6)} . At that tim	ie the participant
had noted heavier bleeding with clots over the preceding	two days. Ffer
temperature was 99.5F, her cervix had malodorous clot	presect which was
removed with a ring forceps. The ultrasound examination	on showed a 27 mm clot
in the cavity. The physician evaluating the patient felt the	iat the clot in
the os was necrotic tissue and she performed a $D\&C$ and	f treated her for an
infection with ciprofloxacin and metronidazole.	
	(b) (6)
The woman returned for a follow-up evaluation on	at which time
she was alcorne and without significant complaints. She	a had only taken the
antibiolics for one day because they caused diatrinea. Its	emonstrated an (f )
endometrial lining of 5 mm	
encontextar mining of 9 minit.	
> The final pathology report demonstrated blood old an	d'degenerating
Chorionic villi with bacterial colonies (predominantly)	cocciì, gestatinal
> endometrium and implantation site. Thus, the diagnos	sis of infection and
	6/12/2002
,	
	FDACDER000390
1	1

## rage 2 of 2

anan Ara yasan Arat Kataka d

16. Collection (* 1812)

## Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

127

124

، چہ آپ

. A. 1

1.77-

" > incomplete abortion was confirmed.

. - . > As this was not a serious adverse event, the infection was not reported to > the IRB. .

(b) (4), (b) (6)

>

±g.≞

1.1.1

>

حر >

> > 5

> Please let me know if you need any further information.

6/12/2002

## FDACDER000391

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc. (b) (4), (b) (6) October 17, 2002 (b) (4), (b) (6) - OGT-22 2002 (b) (4), (b) (6 (b) (4), (b) (6 출기 # 5 8 P Sec. 6 1 1 1 12 1 1.5617 (b) (4), (b) (6) Dear 

Enclosed is a copy of an adverse experience report submitted to our IRB for a woman enrolled in our current mifepristone trial. A copy of this report has been sent to all of the study centers for submission to their local IRBs.

Please let me know if you have any questions about the content of this report.

maralu (b) (4), (b) (6)

 $\sim$ 

MOD STUD

FDACDER000392

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

2 2002

(D) (4), (D) (

(b) (4), (b) (6

0CT

(b) (4), (b) (6)

2

# **IEMORA**

October 14, 2002 Date: To Study sites From:

> RE: Adverse experience report from

The second second Attached is a serious adverse experience report that was submitted to the (b) (4), (b) (6) IRB. I have reviewed the report and concur with the

findings as outlined in the cover letter from

Please submit a copy of this report to your local IRB.

FDACDER000393

MOD STUDY

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Inc.

د. د يكام جارد في محافظي حافظ در ما

ې کې چې د

(b) (4), (b) (6)

. . . . . .



مستر بالمبدر

## October 11, 2002

示法に

- 27

5.- ji - ji

RE: Mifepristone and Misoprostol for Abortion up to 63 Days' Gestation: A Multicentered Randomized C (6)(4), (5) son of Misoprostol Administration 6-8 Hours vs. 24 Hours Following Mifepristone ( (6)22-024)

(b) (4), (b) (6)

I am writing to provide the IRB with follow-up information regarding the serious adverse event that occurred in our ongoing trial. The IRB was initially notified upon the subject's hospitalization on (b) (6)

Incomplete abortion, heavy bleeding requiring D&C, and infection are known risks of medical abortion as stated in the consent form and protocol. The risk of infection from a D&C is also stated in the protocol and consent document. Given the time course, this subject's infection most likely resulted from uterine instrumentation rather than the medications administered for the medical abortion or the regimen used within the protocol. This adverse experience does not alter the risk-benefit ratio of the protocol.

This infection and hospitalization has been reported to the study sponsor, (b) (4), (b) (6) Please contact me if you have any questions or concerns regarding the above event.

(b) (4), (b) (6)

Principal Investigator

CC:

(b) (4), (b) (6) Study Sponsor

(b) (4), (b) (6)

RB Adverse Event Form       Image: Contract within IRS#       Event occurred within IRS#       Event occurred within Contract Within Other S7,890       F7,890         Protocol Title: Mitepristone and Misoprostol for Abortion up to 63 Days' Gestation: A Multicentered Randomized Comparison of Misoprostol Administration 6-8 Hours vs. 24 Hours Following Mitepristone Randomized Comparison of Misoprostol Administration 6-8 Hours vs. 24 Hours Following Mitepristone Administration 6-8 Hours vs. 24 Hours Following Mitepristone Administration 6-8 Hours vs. 24 Hours Following Mitepristone Administration 6-8 Hours vs. 24 Hours Following Mitepristone Administration 6-8 Hours vs. 24 Hours Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Following Mitepristone Foll	RB Adverse Event Form       Image: Control of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second sec	^{b) (4)} (b) ⁽⁶⁾ IRB Advers01.doc	Obtained via (b) (4), (b) (6)	FOIA by Judicial W	atch, Inc.	О ост	
A Protocol Lifermation       Event occurred within       Event occurred within (RB#)       Event (RB#)       Event occurred within	Protected Information.       Event occurred within IR#:       Event occurred within Other       FDA-IND#:         9 22:024       Manufacturer Protocol #:       Associated Protocol #:       57,890         Protocol Thie: Mifepristone and Misoprostol for Abortion up to 63 Days' Gestation: A Multicentered andomized Comparison of Misoprostol Administration 6-8 Hours vs. 24 Hours Following Mifepristone         PI Name/Address/Phone #:       Study Size and Enrollment:       300 in Entire Study:1200.         # of subjects to be enrolled at 1994% @ 173       in Entire Study:344         Investigational Drug Names: Misoprostol 800 µg vaginality, Mifepristone 200 mg orally       Adverge Folenet Information (check all that apply):       Event Report:         Batter of Event       Subject ID #       Event Report:       Initial Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Browney and Brown		RB Ad	verse Event	Form		(b) (4) (b) (6
Event occurred within IRB#:       Event occurred within Other       FDA.ND#:         Manufacturer Protocol #:       Associated Protocol #:       F7,890         Protocol Title: Mifepristone and Misoprostol for Abortion up to 63 Days' Gestation: A Multicentered       France         Randomized Comparison of Misoprostol Administration 6-8 Hours vs. 24 Hours Following Mifepristone       France         PI Name/Address/Phone #:       Study Size and Enrollment:       # of subjects to be enrolled at	Internet occurred within IRB#       Event occurred within Cher       FDX-IND#:         22-024       Manufacturer Protocol #:       Associated Protocol #:       FDX-IND#:         Protocol Title: Milepristone and Misoprostol for Abortion up to 63 Days' Gestation: A Multicentered       Associated Protocol #:       FDX-IND#:         Protocol Title: Milepristone and Misoprostol Administration 6-8 Hours vs. 24 Hours Following Milepristone       # of subjects to be encolled at the subject of the subject of subjects to be encolled at the subject of subject of the subject of the subject of subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subject of the subjec	A. Protocol Information	a desta da fara a conservante. Servada presentar a presentar a conservativa da fara d Servada da fara	- State of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second			
Protocol Title: Mifepristone and Misoprostol for Abortion up to 63 Days' Gestation: A Multicentered Randomized Comparison of Misoprostol Administration 8-8 Hours vs. 24 Hours Following Mifepristone PRIName/Address/Phone #:	Protocol Title: Milepristone and Misoprostol for Abortion up to 63 Days' Gestation: A Multicentered andomized Comparison of Misoprostol Administration 6-8 Hours vs. 24 Hours Following Milepristone         PiName/Address/Phone #:       Bstudy Size and Enrollment:         # of subjects to be enrolled at       10/01.000         # of subjects to be enrolled at       10/01.000         # of subjects enrolled to date at       10/01.000         # of subjects enrolled to date at       10/01.000         # of subjects enrolled at       173 in Entire Study:1200.         # of subjects enrolled to date at       10/01.000         Bate of Event       Classification (check all that apply):         Bate of Event (Please describe a brief description):       Sorious         Sorious       Drobable         Ature of Event (Please describe a brief description):       Sorious antibiotics and remained and many and antibiotics were started on day #8. Due to persistent fevers on study day #11, she was difficited for index on subjects and remained many and antibiotics. After discharge, she completed a 14 day course of antibiotics as an outpatient and remained well.         Remomendations       No	Event occurred within IRB#: (6) 22-024	Event occurred within Manufacturer Protocol #	Event occurr Associated F	ed within Other Protocol #:	FDA-IND#: 57,890	-
Protocol Title: Mifepristone and Misoprostol for Abortion up to 63 Days' Gestation: A Multicentered Randomized Comparison of Misoprostol Administration 6-8 Hours vs. 24 Hours Following Mifepristone Pi Name/Address/Phone #: Study Size and Enrollment: # of subjects to be enrolled at300 in Entire Study:1200. # of subjects enrolled to date at61 = 300 in Entire Study:1200. # of subjects enrolled to date at61 = 300 in Entire Study:344 Investigational Drug Names: Misoprostol 800 µg vaginally; Mifepristone 200 mg orally B. Adverge Fuent Indomesting: Date of Event Death Death Death Death Probable Death Death Death Nemote Probable Nemote Probable Negotion and heavy bleeding after her medical abortion. The D&C took place on study day #5. Fevers developed on admetritis after undergoing a D&C for an incomplete abortion and heavy bleeding after her medical abortion. The D&C took place on study day #5. Fevers developed on admetritis after undergoing a D&C for an incomplete abortion and heavy bleeding after her medical abortion. The D&C took place on study day #5. Fevers developed on admetritis after undergoing a D&C for an incomplete abortion and heavy bleeding after her medical abortion. The D&C took place on study day #5. Fevers developed on admetritis after undergoing a D&C for an incomplete abortion and heavy found to reveal to days admission. After discharge, she completed a 14 day course of antibiotics as an outpatient and remained well. B the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol? Is the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form? If answered "No" to any questions above, are changes necessary to address increased monitoring or to provide new information to the subject? J Yes, J Mease attach on days and subject form and protocol/consent with changes highlighted to this report. J Yes, Dease attach o	Pi Name/Address/Phone #: Budy Size and Enrollment: # of subjects to be annoled at				•	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
PI Name/Address/Phone #:       Study Size and Enrollment:         # of subjects to be enrolled at       300 in Entire Study 1200         # of subjects in be enrolled at       300 in Entire Study 1200         # of subjects to be enrolled to date at       10/44.00/173 in Entire Study 1200         # of subjects in be enrolled to date at       10/44.00/173 in Entire Study 1200         # of subjects enrolled to date at       10/44.00/173 in Entire Study 344         Investigational Drug Names: Misoprostol 800 µg vaginally; Mifepristone 200 mg orally	Pi Name/Address/Phone #:       Study Size and Enrollment:       # of subjects to be enrolled at	Protocol Title: Mifepristone a Randomized Comparison of	nd Misoprostol for Abortion Misoprostol Administration	up to 63 Days' 6-8 Hours vs. 2	Gestation: A Mi 4 Hours Followin	Iticentered g Mifepristone	
Pi Name/Address/Phone #:       Study Size and Enrollment:       (0)(4),(0)(0)         # of subjects to be enrolled at       300in Entire Study:1200.         # of subjects enrolled to date at       (0)(4),(0)(0)       (1)(3)(3)(4)         Investigational Drug Names: Misoprostol 800 µg väginally; Mifepristone 200 mg orally       Investigational Drug Names: Misoprostol 800 µg väginally; Mifepristone 200 mg orally         B. Adverge Event       Subject ID #:       (0)(0)         Date of Event       Subject ID #:       (0)(0)         Date of Event       Death       Event Report:         Death       Death       Probable         Death       Death       Probable         Nature of Event (Please describe a brief description):       Subject developed post-procedural endometritis after undergoing a D&C for an incomplete abortion and heavy bleeding after her medical abortion. The D&C took place on study day #1, she was admitted for intravenous antibiotics. She received 48 hours of intravenous antibiotics and remained afterile throughout har 2 ½ days admission. After discharge, she completed a 14 day course of antibiotics as an outpatient and remained well.         B: the event listed in the current sponsor protocol or Investigational brochure?       Yes No         Is the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol?       Yes No         Is the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol?       Yes No         If answered "No"	PiName/Address/Phone #:       Study Size and Enrollment:       # of subjects to be enrolled at       300 in Entire Study 1200.         # of subjects anrolled to date at       00.01 million       in Entire Study 344         Investigational Drug Names: Misoprostol 800 µg vaginally, Mifepristone 200 mg orally       in Entire Study 344         Adverge Event Information       Subject ID #       Intral         Point       Subject ID #       Intral         Point       Death       Possible         Possible       Possible       Possible         Possible       Death       Possible         Possible       Possible       Possible         Increased Frequency       Highly Probable         Nature of Event (Please describe a brief description):       Subject developed post-procedural endometritis after undergoing a D&C for an incomplete abortion and newy bleeding after her medical abortion. The D&C took place on study day #3. Fevere developed on tay #8. Oral antibiotics were started on day #8. Due to ersistent fevers on study day #1. she was domited for intravenous antibiotics. She received 48 hours of intravenous antibiotics and remained febrie throughout her 2 ½ days admission. After discharge, she completed a 14 da						
(0) (4), (0) (6)       # of subjects to be enrolled at # of subjects enrolled to date at [0) (4), (0) (6)       300 in Entire Study.1200. # of subjects enrolled to date at [0) (4), (0) (6)         Adverse Event Instant Study.344       Investigational Drug Names: Misoprostol 800 µg vaginally; Mifepristone 200 mg orally         Adverse Event Instant Study.344       Investigational Drug Names: Misoprostol 800 µg vaginally; Mifepristone 200 mg orally         Adverse Event Instant Study.100       Subject ID #:       [0) (6)         External Site       Death       Classification (check all that apply):       Classification (check all that apply):         Butter of Event (Please describe a birle description):       Serious       Possible       Probable         Nature of Event (Please describe a birle description):       Subject developed post-procedural endometritis after undergoing a D&C for an incomplete abortion and heavy bleeding after her medical abortion. The D&C took place on study day #1, she was admitted for intravenous antibiotics. She received 48 hours of intravenous antibiotics and remained aftebrile throughout her 2 ½ days admission. After discharge, she completed a 14 day course of antibiotics as an outgrated well.         C. Recommendations       [2] Yes [] No         Is the event listed in the current sponsor protocol or Investigational brochure?       [2] Yes [] No         Is the event listed in the current sponsor protocol or Investigational brochure?       [2] Yes [] No         Is the event listed in the current sponsor protocol or Investigational brochure?	(a) (a) (b) # of subjects to be enrolled at     (b) (a) (b) (b) f a subjects to be enrolled at     (b) (a) (b) (b) f a subjects enrolled to date at     (b) (a) (b) (b) (c) (c) (c) (c) (c) (c) (c) (c) (c) (c	PI Name/Address/Phone #:	Study Size and Enrollme	ent:	······		
# of subjects enrolled to date at       (0)(4),(0)       173       in Entire Study:344         Investigational Drug Names: Misoprostol 800 µg vaginally; Mifepristone 200 mg orally         B. Advarse Forent Information         Date of Event       Subject ID #:       (0)(0)         Classification (check all that apply):       Causality:         Date of Event       Classification (check all that apply):       Causality:         Date of Event       Classification (check all that apply):       Causality:         Death       Sorious       Probable         Increased Frequency       Highly Probable         Nature of Event (Please describe a brief description):       Subject tok place on study day #5. Fevers developed on day #8. Oral antibiotics such remained adordion. The D&C tock place on study day #5. Fevers developed on day #8. Sorial antibiotics such remained afebrile throughout her 2 ½ days admission. After discharge, she completed a 14 day course of antibiotics and remained afebrile throughout her 2 ½ days admission. After discharge, she completed a 14 day course of antibiotics as an outpatient and remained well.         C Recommendations       Yes No         If answered "No" to any questions above, are changes necessary to address increased monitoring or to orovide new information to the subject?         Yes, please attach a modification request form and protocol/consent with changes highlighted to this report.         No, please explain:         Signature of Principal Investigator:	# of subjects enrolled to date at (1) 173 in Entire Study:344	(b) (4), (b) (6	# of subjects to be enrol	ed at (b) (4), (b) (6)	300 in Entin	Study:1200	e caper suspection
Investigational Drug Names: Misoprostol 800 µg vaginally; Mifepristone 200 mg orally	Nestigational Drug Names: Misoprostol 800 µg vaginally; Mifepristone 200 mg orally  Adverse Fuent  Subject ID #:  Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death Death		# of subjects enrolled to	date at (b) (4), (b)	173 in Entin	e Study:344	
B. Adverse Found Information         Date of Event       Subject ID #:       Initial         B. Adverse Found Information       Initial       Initial         B. Adverse Found Information       Increased Frequency       Initial         Nature of Event (Please describe a brief description):       Subject developed post-procedural endometritis after undergoing a D&C for an incomplete abortion and neavy bleeding after her medical abortion. The D&C took place on study day #5. Fevers developed on day #40. Oral antibiotics were started on day #40. Due to persistent fevers on study day #1, she was admitted for intravenous antibiotics. She received 48 hours of intravenous antibiotics and remained afebrile throughout her 2 ½ days admission. After discharge, she completed a 14 day course of antibiotics as a outpatient and remained well.	A doverse Firent Information  A doverse Firent Information  Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect ID # Bublect I	Investigational Drug Names	Misoprostol 800 ug vagina	Ilv: Mifenristone	200 mg orally		
Adverge Function of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second sec	Adverse For and Information         Date of Event       Subject ID #:       Event Report.         Initial       Follow-up         Initial       Follow-up         Detain       Event Report.         Initial       Follow-up         Death       Follow-up         Death       Possible         Probable       Unexpected         Unexpected       Probable         Value of Event (Please describe a brief description):       Unexpected         Subject developed post-procedural endometritis after undergoing a D&C for an incomplete abortion and neavy bleeding after her medical abortion. The D&C took place on study day #5. Fevers developed on lay #8. One to persistent fevers on study day with, she was admitted for intravenous antibiotics. She received 48 hours of intravenous antibiotics and remained ifebrile throughout her 2 ½ days admission. After discharge, she completed a 14 day course of antibiotics as an outpatient and remained well.         Recommendations       She event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?         Yes       No         s the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?       Yes         Yes       No         Yes       No         fanswered "No" to any questions above, are changes necessary to address increased monitoring or to rovide new information to the subject?         Yes, please attach a modification	nivesligational Diug Names.			200 mg orany		
Bate of Event       Subject ID #:          (b) (0)           Event Report:         Initial             Initial             Eclow-up             Initial             Solidow-up             Initial             Solidow-up             Initial             Solidow-up             Causality:             Remote             Possible             Possible             Posbable             Posbable             Posbable             Posbable              Posbable             Posbable             Posbable             Posbable             Posbable             Posbable             Solject to a brief description):             Solject developed post-procedural endometritis after             unexpected             Increased Frequency             View Posbable             Posbable             Posbable             Posbable             Posbable             Solject to eveloped post-procedural endometritis after             undergoing a D&C for an incomplete abortion and             reavy bleeding after her medical abortion. The D&C took place on study day #5. Fevers developed on             day #8. Oral antibiotics were started on day #8. Due to persistent fevers on study day #11, she was             admitted for intravenous antibiotics. She received 48 hours of intravenous antibiotics             sa an outpatient and remained             affebrile throughout her 2 ½ days admission. After discharge, she completed a 14 day course of antibiotics             sa an outpatient and remained well.          C. Recommendations:               Mes             informed consent form?               Yes             No             Yes             No             Yes             No             Yes             No             yes, please attach a modification request form and protocol/consent with changes highlighted to this             porort.                  Yes, please explain:	Adverse Total interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview interview i		and the second of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second	unterfaire different and the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the st	¹ . A During a start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the start of the st	لې کې نې د دې کې ور د د. د کې کې ور د و. د و. د و. د و. و. و. و. و. و. و. و. و. و. و. و. و.	;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;
	A A Olice   (D) (4), (D) (6)   Classification (check all that apply):   Death   Serious   Unexpected   Unexpected   Initial   Subject developed post-procedural endometritis after undergoing a D&C for an incomplete abortion and neavy bleeding after her medical abortion. The D&C took place on study day #5. Fevers developed on study day #6. Fevers developed on admitted for intravenous antibiotics. She received 48 hours of intravenous antibiotics. She received 48 hours of intravenous antibiotics and remained affebrile throughout her 2 ½ days admission. After discharge, she completed a 14 day course of antibiotics is an outpatient and remained well. <b>Recommendations</b> s the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol?   s the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol?   f answered "No" to any questions above, are changes necessary to address increased monitoring or to provide new information to the subject?   Yes, please attach a modification request form and protocol/consent with changes highlighted to this eport.   No, please explain:	Date of Event	(6) (6) (6) (6) (6) (6) (6)	and the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of the second state of th	Event Report:	le a distribut das des traines ante tabases p _{ersonanti} s	
Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Serious       Image: Series       Image: Series <td>Image: Bit in the current sponsor protocol or investigational brochure?       Set       Yes       No         Image: Bit information to the subject?       Image: Bit information request form and protocol/consent with changes highlighted to this sport.       No         Image: Bit information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information informatin information information information informa</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>-</td> <td></td>	Image: Bit in the current sponsor protocol or investigational brochure?       Set       Yes       No         Image: Bit information to the subject?       Image: Bit information request form and protocol/consent with changes highlighted to this sport.       No         Image: Bit information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information information informatin information information information informa					-	
				k all that analy At	Follow-up		-
External Site       Serious       Possible         Increased Frequency       Highly Probable         Nature of Event (Please describe a brief description):         Subject developed post-procedural endometritis after undergoing a D&C for an incomplete abortion and neavy bleeding after her medical abortion. The D&C took place on study day #5. Fevers developed on day #8. Due to persistent fevers on study day #11, she was admitted for intravenous antibiotics. She received 48 hours of intravenous antibiotics and remained afebrile throughout her 2 ½ days admission. After discharge, she completed a 14 day course of antibiotics as an outpatient and remained well.         C       Recommendations         Is the event listed in the current sponsor protocol or investigational brochure?       Yes No         Is the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol?       Yes No         If answered "No" to any questions above, are changes necessary to address increased monitoring or to brovide new information to the subject?       Yes, please attach a modification request form and protocol/consent with changes highlighted to this report.         INo, please explain:       (b) (4), (b) (6)       Date: 10/11/02         Name of individual who prepared this report:       (b) (4), (b) (6)       Date: 10/11/02	External Site       Serious       Possible         Nature of Event (Please describe a brief description):       Highly Probable         Subject developed post-procedural endometritis after undergoing a D&C for an incomplete abortion and eavy bleeding after her medical abortion. The D&C took place on study day #5. Fevers developed on tay #8. Oral antibiotics were started on day #8. Due to persistent fevers on study day #11, she was admitted for intravenous antibiotics. She received 48 hours of intravenous antibiotics and remained afebrile throughout her 2 ½ days admission. After discharge, she completed a 14 day course of antibiotics as an outpatient and remained well.         Recommendations       Yes       No         s the event listed in the current sponsor protocol or investigational brochure?       Yes       No         s the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol?       Yes       No         f answered "No" to any questions above, are changes necessary to address increased monitoring or to provide new information to the subject?       Yes, please attach a modification request form and protocol/consent with changes highlighted to this aport.         No, please explain:       (b) (4), (b) (6)       Date: 10/11/02         ignature of Principal Investigator:       (b) (4), (b) (6)       Date: 10/11/02	(b) (4), (b)	Death	k all that apply):	Remote		
□ External Site       □ Unexpected       □ Probable         □ Increased Frequency       □ Probable         Nature of Event (Please describe a brief description):         Subject developed post-procedural endometritis after undergoing a D&C for an incomplete abortion and heavy bleeding after her medical abortion. The D&C took place on study day #5. Fevers developed on day #8. Oral antibiotics were started on day #8. Due to persistent fevers on study day #11, she was admitted for intravenous antibiotics. She received 48 hours of intravenous antibiotics and remained afebrile throughout her 2 ½ days admission. After discharge, she completed a 14 day course of antibiotics as an outpatient and remained well.         C. Recommendations       □ Yes □ No         Is the event listed in the current sponsor protocol or investigational brochure?       □ Yes □ No         Is the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol?       □ Yes □ No         If answered "No" to any questions above, are changes necessary to address increased monitoring or to provide new information to the subject?       □ Yes, please attach a modification request form and protocol/consent with changes highlighted to this         □ No, please explain:       □ No(4), (b) (6)       □ Date: 10/11/02         Name of individual who prepared this report:       □ (b) (4), (b) (6)       □ Date: 10/11/02	□ External Site       □ Unexpected       □ Probable         □ No, please explain:       □ Unexpected       □ Probable         □ Increased Frequency       □ Probable         □ Highly Probable         □ Ature of Event (Please describe a brief description):         Subject developed post-procedural endometritis after undergoing a D&C for an incomplete abortion and teavy bleeding after her medical abortion. The D&C took place on study day #5. Fevers developed on tay #8. Oue to persistent fevers on study day #11, she was admitted for intravenous antibiotics. She received 48 hours of intravenous antibiotics and remained afebrile throughout her 2 ½ days admission. After discharge, she completed a 14 day course of antibiotics as an outpatient and remained well.         ▶ Recommendations         s the event listed in the current sponsor protocol or investigational brochure?         s the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol?         s the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol?         S fease attach a modification request form and protocol/consent with changes increased monitoring or to rovide new information to the subject?         □ Yes, please explain:         □ No, please explain:         □ No, please explain:         □ No, please explain:		Serious		Possible		
Nature of Event (Please describe a brief description):         Subject developed post-procedural endometritis after undergoing a D&C for an incomplete abortion and heavy bleeding after her medical abortion. The D&C took place on study day #5. Fevers developed on day #8. Oral antibiotics were started on day #8. Due to persistent fevers on study day #11, she was admitted for intravenous antibiotics. She received 48 hours of intravenous antibiotics and remained afebrile throughout her 2 ½ days admission. After discharge, she completed a 14 day course of antibiotics as an outpatient and remained well. <b>C. Recommendations</b> Is the event listed in the current sponsor protocol or investigational brochure?         Is the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol?         Is the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?         If answered "No" to any questions above, are changes necessary to address increased monitoring or to provide new information to the subject?         If yes, please attach a modification request form and protocol/consent with changes highlighted to this report.         (b) (4), (b) (6)       Date: 10/(11/02)         Name of individual who prepared this report:       (b) (4), (b) (6)       Date: 10/(11/02)	Nature of Event (Please describe a brief description):         Subject developed post-procedural endometritis after undergoing a D&C for an incomplete abortion and neavy bleeding after her medical abortion. The D&C took place on study day #5. Fevers developed on fay #8. Oral antibiotics were started on day #8. Due to persistent fevers on study day #11, she was admitted for intravenous antibiotics. She received 48 hours of intravenous antibiotics and remained afebrile throughout her 2 ½ days admission. After discharge, she completed a 14 day course of antibiotics as an outpatient and remained well.         Recommendations       Image: State of the current sponsor protocol or investigational brochure?         Is the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol?       Image: State or No         Is the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol?       Image: State or No         Is the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?       Image: State or No         Is answered "No" to any questions above, are changes necessary to address increased monitoring or to rovide new information to the subject?       Image: State or No         Is yes, please attach a modification request form and protocol/consent with changes highlighted to this eport.       Image: State or No         Is not provide this report:       (b) (4), (b) (6)       Date: 10/11/02         Is no please explain:       Image: State or No       Image: State or No         Is no please explain:       Image: State or No       Image: State or No	_ External Site	Unexpected	lency	_ Probable	able	
Nature of Event (Please describe a brief description): Subject developed post-procedural endometrifis after undergoing a D&C for an incomplete abortion and heavy bleeding after her medical abortion. The D&C took place on study day #5. Fevers developed on day #8. Oral antibiotics were started on day #8. Due to persistent fevers on study day #11, she was admitted for intravenous antibiotics. She received 48 hours of intravenous antibiotics and remained afebrile throughout her 2 ½ days admission. After discharge, she completed a 14 day course of antibiotics as an outpatient and remained well.	Nature of Event (Please describe a brief description):         Subject developed post-procedural endometritis after undergoing a D&C for an incomplete abortion and neavy bleeding after her medical abortion. The D&C took place on study day #5. Fevers developed on tay #8. Oral antibiotics were started on day #8. Due to persistent fevers on study day #11, she was admitted for intravenous antibiotics. She received 48 hours of intravenous antibiotics and remained afebrile throughout her 2 ½ days admission. After discharge, she completed a 14 day course of antibiotics as an outpatient and remained well.         Image: the event listed in the current sponsor protocol or investigational brochure?       Yes No         Image: the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol?       Yes No         Image: the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?       Yes No         Image: the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?       Yes No         Image: the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?       Yes No         Image: the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?       Yes No         Image: the event listed in the subject?       Yes       No         Image: the event listed in the subject in the subject in the subject in the subject in the subject in the subject in the subject in the subject in the subject in the subject in the subject in the subject in the subject in the subject in the subject in the subject in the subject in the subject in the subject in the subject in the subject in the subject in the subject in	1 1					
C Recommendations         Is the event listed in the current sponsor protocol or investigational brochure?       Yes No         Is the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol?       Yes No         Is the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?       Yes No         If answered "No" to any questions above, are changes necessary to address increased monitoring or to provide new information to the subject?       No         Yes, please attach a modification request form and protocol/consent with changes highlighted to this report.       No, please explain:         Signature of Principal Investigator:       (b) (4), (b) (6)       Date: 10/11/02         Name of individual who prepared this report:       (b) (4), (b) (6)       Date: 10/11/02	Recommendations         s the event listed in the current sponsor protocol or investigational brochure?       Yes No         s the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol?       Yes No         s the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?       Yes No         f answered "No" to any questions above, are changes necessary to address increased monitoring or to provide new information to the subject?       Yes, please attach a modification request form and protocol/consent with changes highlighted to this eport.         Yes, please explain:       Image: No       Image: No         Signature of Principal Investigator:       (b) (4), (b) (6)       Date: 10/11/02         Name of individual who prepared this report:       (b) (4), (b) (6)       Date: 10/11/02	Nature of Event (Please desc Subject developed post-proc heavy bleeding after her med day #8. Oral antibiotics were admitted for intravenous antil afebrile throughout her 2 ½ d as an outpatient and remaine	cribe a brief description): edural endometritis after un lical abortion. The D&C to estarted on day #8. Due to biotics. She received 48 ho lays admission. After disch ed well.	ndergoing a D& ok place on stud persistent feve ours of intravend narge, she comp	C for an incomp dy day #5. Feve rs on study day ous antibiotics a pleted a 14 day c	ete abortion and rs developed on #11, she was nd remained course of antibiotics	
Is the event listed in the current sponsor protocol or investigational brochure?       Image: Construction of the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol?         Is the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?       Image: Construction of the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?         If answered "No" to any questions above, are changes necessary to address increased monitoring or to provide new information to the subject?       Image: Construction of the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the current is the curre	s the event listed in the current sponsor protocol or investigational brochure?       Image: Spin state event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol?       Image: Spin state event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol?       Image: Spin state event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol?       Image: Spin state event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol?       Image: Spin state event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?       Image: Spin state event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?       Image: Spin state event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?       Image: Spin state event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?       Image: Spin state event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?       Image: Spin state event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?       Image: Spin state event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?       Image: Spin state event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?       Image: Spin state event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?       Image: Spin state event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?       Image: Spin state event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent with changes highlighted to this eport.       Image: Spin state event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent with changes highlighted to this eport.         Signature of Principal Investigator:       Image: Sp	2 Recommendations		n ingenaliger og var det som og more ganger. Vir 173 - Jahre Galart - Tri 184	รารการการที่สาวารอย่างสาวาราชาวาราชาวาราชาวาร 1995 - 1995 - 1996 - 1996 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997	ને <u>તે કે દુર્વત કે પ્</u> રાથમાં આવેલા તે આવેલા કે આવ્યું કે આવેલી છે. આ ગામ જ	R
Is the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol?   Is the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form?   If answered "No" to any questions above, are changes necessary to address increased monitoring or to provide new information to the subject?   If yes, please attach a modification request form and protocol/consent with changes highlighted to this report.   In No, please explain:   Signature of Principal Investigator:   (b) (4), (b) (6)   Date:   10/11/02	s the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB summary protocol? Yes No s the event listed in the current, most recently approved IRB informed consent form? Yes No f answered "No" to any questions above, are changes necessary to address increased monitoring or to rovide new information to the subject? Yes, please attach a modification request form and protocol/consent with changes highlighted to this eport. No, please explain: Signature of Principal Investigator: (b) (4), (b) (6) Jate: 10/11/02 Jame of individual who prepared this report: No State: 10/11/02	is the event listed in the our	ant sponsor protocol or inve	estinational broc	bure?		24
If answered "No" to any questions above, are changes necessary to address increased monitoring or to provide new information to the subject?      Yes, please attach a modification request form and protocol/consent with changes highlighted to this report.     No, please explain:      Signature of Principal Investigator:         (b) (4), (b) (6)         Date:         10/11/02  Name of individual who prepared this report:         (b) (4), (b) (6)         Date:         10/11/02	f answered "No" to any questions above, are changes necessary to address increased monitoring or to provide new information to the subject? Yes, please attach a modification request form and protocol/consent with changes highlighted to this eport. No, please explain: Signature of Principal Investigator: Name of individual who prepared this report: (b) (4), (b) (6) Date: 10/11/02 Date: 10/11/02	is the event listed in the curre is the event listed in the curre	ent, most recently approved	d IRB summary	protocol? consent form?	⊠ Yes □ No ⊠ Yes □ No	
Image: Signature of Principal Investigator:       (b) (4), (b) (6)       Date:         Mame of Individual who prepared this report:       (b) (4), (b) (6)       Date:         10/11/02       Date:	Port.         No, please explain:         Signature of Principal Investigator:         (b) (4), (b) (6)         Date:         10/11/02         Vame of individual who prepared this report:         (b) (4), (b) (6)         Date:         10/11/02	If answered "No" to any ques provide new information to th Yes, <i>please attach a mod</i>	tions above, are changes r e subject? ification request form and p	necessary to ad	dress increased	monitoring or to ighlighted to this	. *
Signature of Principal Investigator:       (b) (4), (b) (6)       Date: 10/11/02         Name of individual who prepared this report:       (b) (4), (b) (6)       Date: 10/11/02	Signature of Principal Investigator:       (b) (4), (b) (6)       Date:         Name of individual who prepared this report:       (b) (4), (b) (6)       Date:         10/11/02       Date:         10/11/02       Date:	тероп. No, please explain:					
Name of individual who prepared this report: (b) (4), (b) (6) Date: 10/11/02	Aame of individual who prepared this report: (b) (4), (b) (6) Date: 10/11/02	Signature of Principal Investig	gator:		(b) (4), (b) (6)	Date: 10/11/02	
		Name of individual who prepa	ared this report:	(b) (4), (b) (6)	•	Date: 10/11/02	

Notes by IRB Office Staff:

ıl.

⁽⁶⁾RB Date Stamp:

1

-

. . .

## Population Council/Danco Laboratories, LLC Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg

·

.

. .

# ATTACHMENT 4

· · ·

## FDACDER000396

# 1.6.2 Auxiliary Raw materials and Suppliers

Revision: October 2002

Page 146

FDACDER000397

(b) (4)

## CMC SECTION: Drug Substance Mifepristone

Code Number	Name	Supplier	1
-------------	------	----------	---

(b) (4)

Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Ir	IC.
Population Council/Danco Laboratories, LLC Sep	ot. 28, 2001 - Sept. 27, 2002
Annual Report for Mifepristone Tablets, 200 mg	NDA 20-687

÷

# **ATTACHMENT 5**

NG TERM STA	ABILITY	Y STUDIES (	1)			
	RESULTS & TEST DATES					
NS 99.01.	07	99.02.09	99.03.10	99.04.09	99.07.	14 _(b)
		(b) (4)				
				(b) (	(4)	
	JS 99.01.	JS 99.01.07	JS 99.01.07 99.02.09 (b) (4)	JS 99.01.07 99.02.09 99.03.10 (b) (4)	(b) (4) (b) (4) (b) (4) (b) (4) (b) (4) (b) (4) (b) (4) (c) (c) (c) (c) (c) (c) (c) (c) (c) (c)	JS 99.01.07 99.02.09 99.03.10 99.04.09 99.07.

.

Date: January 16th,2002

Date: <u>January 18th,2002</u>

Revision: October 2002

Page 26

LONG TERM STABILITY STUDIES (2)						
LOT No	RESULTS & TEST DATES					
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	99.10.16	00.01.16	00 07 13	01 01 13	02 01 14 (b) (
			(b) (4)			
ENVIROMMENTAL CO	NDITIONS:		(b) (4)			
Tabulated by _ (b) (4)	), (b) (6)			Reviewed b	(b) (4), (b) (6)	
Date: <u>January 1</u>	6 th ,2002			Date:	January 18 th ,20	02

Page 27

(b) (4)

CMc SECTION: Drug Substance Mifepristone

LONG TERM STABILITY STUDIES (1)								
LOT No. (b) (4)	RESULTS & TEST DATES							
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	99.01.15	99.02.25	99.03.22	99.04.16	99.07.14 ^{(b}		
ENVIROMMENTAL C PACKING	ONDITIONS:		(b) (4) (b) (4)					
Tabulated by	) (4), (b) (6)			Reviewed by	(b) (4), (b) (6)			
Date: January	16 th ,2002			Date:	January 18 th ,200	02		

CMC SECTION: Drug Substance Mifepristone

FDACDER000402

(b) (4)


Revision: October 2002

CMc SECTION: Drug Substance

Mifepristone

Page 29

FDACDER000403

_OT No (b) (4)		<b>RESULTS &amp; TEST DATES</b>				
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	99.01.20	99.02.22	99.03.24	99.04.22	99.07.28
			(b) (4)			
NVIROMMENTAL C	ONDITIONS:		(b) (4)			
NVIROMMENTAL CO	ONDITIONS:		(b) (4) (b) (4)			
NVIROMMENTAL CO	ONDITIONS:		(b) (4) (b) (4)			
NVIROMMENTAL CO ACKING:	ONDITIONS:		(b) (4) (b) (4)			
NVIROMMENTAL Co ACKING:	ONDITIONS:		(b) (4) (b) (4)	Reviewed by	(b) (4), (b) (6)	

Page 30



Obtained via FOIA by Judicial Watch, Ir	nc.
-----------------------------------------	-----

Смо SECTION: Drug Substance Mifepristone

·

## LONG TERM STABILITY STUDIES (2)

	r						7
LOT No. (b) (4) RESULTS & TEST DATES							
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	99.10.16	00.01.16	00.07.13	01.01.13	02.01.14	1.
							(b)
							1
ENVIROMMENTAL CO	NDITIONS:		(b) (4)				
			(b) (4)				
PACKING:							
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·						
							_
abulated by	ł), (b) (6)			Reviewed by	(b) (4), (b) (6)		
······································							
Date: <u>January 1</u>	<u>6",2002</u>			Date: <u>J</u> a	anuary 18 [™] ,2002		

Page 31

Obtained via FOIA by	Judicial Watch, Inc.
----------------------	----------------------

CMC SECTION: Drug Substance Mifepristone

	LONG T	ERM STABIL	ITY STUDIES (	(1)		
LOT No (b) (4)	RESULTS & TEST DATES					
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	00. 01.21	00.03.03	00.04.03 00.	05.07 00.08.09	
ENVIROMMENTAL CO PACKING:	ONDITIONS:		(b) (4)		(b) (4)	
Tabulated by [®] Date: <u>March 1</u>	⁽¹⁾ (4), (b) (6) 			Reviewed Date:	by ^{(b) (4), (b) (6)} <u>March 2nd, 2002</u>	
Revision: October 2002	2				Page 31 a	

FDACDER000406

Mifepristone				
LONG TE	ERM STABILITY S	TUDIES (2)		
		RESULT	S & TEST DATES	8
TESTS SPECIFICATIONS	00.11.06	01.02.06	01.08.10 02	2.02.28 / / /
ENVIROMMENTAL CONDITIONS		(b) (4)		
		(b) (4)		
PACKING				
PACKING				
Tabulated by			Reviewed	by . (b) (4), (b) (6)
PACKING:         Tabulated by			Reviewed Date:	by
PACKING:         Tabulated by			Reviewed Date:	by ^{(b) (4), (b) (6)} <u>March 2nd, 2002</u>
PACKING:         Tabulated by			Reviewed Date:	by ( ^{(b) (4), (b) (6)} <u>March 2nd, 2002</u>
PACKING:         Tabulated by			Reviewed Date:	by ^{(b) (4), (b) (6)} <u>March 2nd, 2002</u>

.

<b>DATES</b> 00.07.05 00.10
<b>DATES</b> 00.07.05 00.10
00.07.05 00.10
<u> </u>
·
eviewed by(b) (4), (b) (6)
41

FDACDER000408

Obtained via FOIA	A by Judicial	Watch, Inc.
-------------------	---------------	-------------

CMC SECTION: Drug Substance Mifepristone

	LONG TE		Y STUDIES (2)			
LOT No. (b) (4)		RESULTS & TEST DATES				
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	01.01.13	01.04.10 01.10.05 02.04.14 / /			
ENVIROMMENTAL CC	ONDITIONS:		(b) (4)			
PACKING:			(b) (4)			
abulated by®	(4), (b) (6)		(b) (4), (b) (6)			
Date: <u>April 16th, </u>	2002		Date: April 17 th , 2002			

FDACDER000409

## LONG TERM STABILITY STUDIES (1)

LOT No (b) (4)_			RESU	ILTS & TEST DA	TES	
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	00. 05.31	00.07.14	00.08.17	00.09.14	00.12.13 (b) (4)
ENVIROMMENTAL CONI PACKING:	DITIONS:		(b) (4)		(b) (4)	
Tabulated by ^{(b) (4),} Date:June 13 th , 200	^{(b) (6)} )2			Revier Date:	wed by ^(b)	(4), (b) (6)

Revision: October 2002

Page 31 e



	0	btained via FOIA by	Judicial Watch, Inc.				
MC SECTION: Drug Substan	ce						(b) (4)
	LONG	TERM STAB	ILITY STUDIES	(1)			,
LOT No			RES	SULTS & TEST	DATES		
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	00.05.31	00.07.14	00.08.17	00.09.14	00.12.15	(b) (4
							1
			(b) (4)				
ENVIROMMENTAL COND	DITIONS:						
PACKING			(b) (4)				
		-					
Fabulated by (b) (4), (1	b) (6)			R	eviewed by	(b) (4), (b) (6)	
Date: June 13 th 2004	2			D,	to: luno '	12 th 2002	
Jale. <u>Julie 13</u> , 200.	<u> </u>			Da	ale. <u>Julie</u>	13,2002	
Revision: October 2002						Page 31 I	า
							-

.....

FDACDER000412



(b) (4)

:

Obtained via	FOIA by	/ Judicial	Watch, Inc.
--------------	---------	------------	-------------

JI No		RESULTS & TEST DATES				
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	00.05.31 00.07.14 00.08.17 00.09.14 00.12.16				
NVIROMMENTAL CO	NDITIONS:	(b) (4) (b) (4)				

	LONG TE	ERM STABILITY S	STUDIES (2)			đ
LOT No (b) (4)		RESULTS & TEST DATES				
TESTS	SPECIFICATIONS	01.03.15	01.06.11	01.12.13	02.06.12 (b) (4)	
					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
ENVIROMMENTAL CON	DITIONS:		(b) (4)			

Date: <u>June 13th, 2002</u>

607-207 ° 273-5

-----

June 13th, 2002

Date:

Revision: October 2002

Page 31 I